
ko' co`,       City of Covina/Successor Agency to the
Qtir.i.''`'  7 Covina Redevelopment Agency/

diii Covina Public Financing Authority/h;,.
0/
4/F60 Covina Housing AuthorityY

Mayor John King — Mayor Pro Tem Stapleton

Council Members: Walter Allen — Peggy Delach — Jorge Marquez

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

125 E. College Street, Covina, California

Council Chamber of City Hall
Tuesday, June 2, 2015

7: 30 p.m.

As a courtesy to Council/Agency/Authority Members, staff and attendees, everyone is asked to
silence all cellular telephones and any other communication devices.

Any member of the public may address the Council/Agency/Authority during both the public
comment period and on any scheduled item on the agenda.  Comments are limited to a maximum of
five minutes per speaker unless, for good cause, the Mayor/Chairperson amends the time limit.

Anyone wishing to speak is requested to submit a yellow Speaker Request Card to the City Clerk;
cards are located near the agendas or at the City Clerk' s desk.

Please provide 10 copies of any information intended for use at the Council/Agency/Authority
meeting to the City Clerk prior to the meeting.

MEETING ASSISTANCE INFORMATION: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities

Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk' s
Office at ( 626) 384-5430.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.

DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY:  Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the
Council/Agency/Authority regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public
inspection at the City Clerk' s Office at City Hall located at 125 E. College Street and the reference
desk at the Covina Library located at 234 North Second Avenue during normal business hours.  In

addition, such writings and documents are available in the City Clerk' s Office and posted on the
City' s website at www.covinaca.gov.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2,  no matter shall be acted upon by the City
Council/ Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Public Financing Authority/Covina
Housing Authority unless listed on agenda, which has been posted not less than 72 hours prior to
meeting.

If you challenge in court any discussion or action taken concerning an item on this agenda, you may
be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised during the meeting or in written
correspondence delivered to the City at or prior to the City' s consideration of the item at the meeting.

The Covina City Clerk' s Office does hereby declare that the agenda for the June 2, 2015 meeting was
posted on May 28, 2015 near the front entrance of the City Hall, 125 East College Street, Covina,
near the front entrance of the Covina Public Library, 234 N. Second Avenue, Covina near the front
entrance of the Joslyn Center, 815 N. Barranca Avenue, Covina, and on the City' s website in
accordance with Section 54954.2(a) of the California Government Code.

June 2, 2015



CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COVINA

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY/COVINA PUBLIC FINANCING
AUTHORITY/COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY

JOINT MEETING—OPEN SESSION

7: 30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

Council/Agency/Authority Members Allen, Delach, Marquez, Mayor Pro Tem/ Vice Chairperson
Stapleton and Mayor/Chairperson King

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Council Member Marquez

INVOCATION

Given by Covina Police Chaplain Truax

PRESENTATIONS —No matters scheduled.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

To address the Council/Agency/Authority please complete a yellow speaker request card located at the
entrance and give it to the City Clerk/Agency/Authority Secretary.  Your name will be called when it is

your turn to speak.  Those wishing to speak on a LISTED AGENDA ITEM will be heard when that item is
addressed.  Those wishing to speak on an item NOT ON THE AGENDA will be heard at this time.  State
Law prohibits the Council/Agency/Authority Members from taking action on any item not on the agenda.
Individual speakers are limited to five minutes each.

COUNCIL/AGENCY/AUTHORITY COMMENTS

Council/Agency/Authority Members wishing to make any announcements ofpublic interest or to request
that specific items be added to future Council/Agency/Authority agendas may do so at this time.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS

City Council/CSA/ CPFA/ CHA Agenda 2 June 2, 2015



CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed under consent calendar are considered routine, and will be enacted by one motion.
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council/Agency/Authority votes
on them, unless a member of the Council/Agency/Authority requests a specific item be removed from the
consent calendarfor discussion.

CC 1.   City Council to approve the payment of demands in the amount of$ 1, 330,848. 80.

CC 2.   Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency to receive payment of demands in the
amount of$ 60,643.95.

CC 3.   City Council to adopt Resolution No. 15- 7352, Amending the City of Covina Parks &
Recreation Department' s Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Operating Budget.

CC 4.   City Council to approve request by Valley Development Services Inc. for exemption
from the City' s business license tax.   The organization is located at 1115 E. Puente
Street, Covina.

CC 5.   City Council to approve Acceptance of Notice of Completion of Public Works Project
No. F- 1415: Police Department Heating Ventilation Air Conditioning ( HVAC) System
Upgrade.

CC 6.   City Council to authorize Execution of Memorandum of Understanding  ( MOU)

Between Los Angeles County Flood Control District (LACFCD) and Cities of Baldwin
Park, Covina, Glendora, Industry, La Puente, and South El Monte for Implementation of
the Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program ( CIMP) for the Upper San Gabriel
River Watershed.

CC 7.   City Council to authorize Execution of Memorandum of Agreement ( MOA) with Los
Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management Joint Powers
Authority ( GWMA) for Cost Sharing for Installation of Monitoring Equipment and
Monitoring Pursuant to Dominguez Channel and Greater Los Angeles and Long Beach
Harbor Waters ( Harbor Toxic Pollutants) Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL).

CC 8.   City Council to approve Change Orders Nos. 3, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13 & 14 for Project T-
0814B, Pedestrian and Metrolink Station Improvements ( increasing the construction
contract by a total of $44,546) and authorizing the City Manager to execute approved
change orders.

CONTINUED BUSINESS

CB 1.  Budget Options Report.

Staff Recommendation:

Review City Manager recommendations and provide direction.

City Council/CSA/ CPFA/ CHA Agenda 3 June 2, 2015



NEW BUSINESS

NB 1.  Resolutions relating to the annexation of territory to Community Facilities District No.
2007- 1 ( 269- 275 W. Center Street).

Staff Recommendation:

1)  City Council to consider and adopt Resolution No. 15- 7353, declaring its intention to
authorize the annexation of territory to Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1
Public Services); and

2)  City Council to consider and adopt Resolution No. 15- 7354, adopting boundary map
showing territory proposed to be annexed in the future to Community Facilities
District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services).

NB 2.  Review of User Fees.

Staff Recommendation:

City Council to review User Fees as presented.

NB 3.  Approve Contract Amendment No.  1 with Alliant Consulting,  Inc.  for Cougar Park
Project# M- 1204 in the amount of$ 4,351.

Staff Recommendation:

City Council to consider and approve Contract Amendment No.  1 with Alliant

Consulting, Inc. for Cougar Park Project # M- 1204 in the amount of $4,351, increasing
the contract cost from$ 19,410 to $23, 761.

NB 4.  Approve Change Orders Numbers 1- 46 for Cougar Park Project #M-1204 completed by
GMZ Engineering in the amount of$ 204,665. 33.

Staff Recommendation:

City Council to consider and approve Change Orders for Cougar Park Project #M- 1204

completed by GMZ Engineering in the amount of$ 204,665. 33.

ADJOURNMENT

The Covina City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Covina
Public Finance Authority/Covina Housing Authority will adjourn to its next regular meeting of
the Council/Agency/Authority scheduled for Tuesday, June 16, 2015, at 6: 30 p.m. for closed
session and 7: 30 p.m. for open session inside the Council Chamber, 125 East College Street,
Covina, California, 91723

City Council/ CSA/ CPFA/ CHA Agenda 4 June 2, 2015





















































ion'cop

1-0'
y/= 

lUe

r G

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE June 2, 2015 ITEM NO. CC 6

STAFF SOURCE Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager

ITEM TITLE Authorization to Execute Memorandum of Understanding   ( MOU)

Between Los Angeles County Flood Control District  (LACFCD)  and

Cities of Baldwin Park, Covina, Glendora, Industry, La Puente, and South
El Monte for Implementation of the Coordinated Integrated Monitoring
Program( CIMP) for Upper San Gabriel River Watershed

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

1)  Authorize the City Manager to execute MOU between LACFCD and Cities of Baldwin Park,
Covina, Glendora, Industry, La Puente, and South El Monte for Implementation of the CIMP
for Upper San Gabriel River Watershed; and

2)  Authorize the Department of Public Works to submit payment of$21, 634.28 for FY 2014- 15

upon receipt of invoice.

FISCAL IMPACT

The MOU covers the cost of implementing the CIMP through FY 2018- 19 and includes the
following payment schedule for the City of Covina:

Invoice Date amount ($)

June 2015 ( FY2014-15)     21, 634.28

July 2015 (FY2015-16)      63, 544. 74

July 2016 (FY2016-17)      57,687. 77

July 2017 (FY 2017-18)      66,288.09

July 2018 (FY2018-19)      56,641. 43

Subtotal— Invoice Amount 265,796.31

Contingency( 10%)   26,579. 63

Total 292,375.94

The June 2015 invoice amount of$21, 634.28 is included in the FY 2014- 15 Department of
Public Works budget( account 6200-5550- 51800).  The proposed FY 2015- 16 Department of

Public Works budget (account 6200- 5550- 51800) includes $ 63, 544.74 for the July 2015 invoice
amount.  Subsequent annual invoice costs, including the contingency, if applicable, will be
requested as part of the annual City budget process.

While Environmental Services collects various fees for stormwater-related services provided by
the City( development plan reviews, construction site inspections, facilities inspections, etc.) that



historically covered the costs of implementing the prior( 2001) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer
System( MS4) Permit, for the 2012 MS4 Permit those fees are insufficient to cover the full cost

of implementing the Upper San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed Management Program
EWMP) and not applicable to cover the costs of the CIMP. There are no Environmental

Services fee revenues that can be used to cover the cost implementing the CIMP.  Beginning
with the Fiscal Year 2015- 16 budget, the General Fund will be required to subsidize the City' s
stormwater compliance programs. As a result, expenses associated with this MOU will be borne

by the General Fund unless additional funding sources can be identified.

BACKGROUND

The Los Angeles County Flood Control District, the County of Los Angeles,  and the 84
incorporated cities within Los Angeles County (collectively referred to as Permittees), including
Covina, are regulated by the Federal Clean Water Act under a MS4 Permit (Order No. R4-2012-
0175; National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System [ NPDES] Permit No. CAS004001) for

the discharge of urban runoff to waters of the United States. The purpose of the MS4 Permit is to

ensure that water bodies in the Los Angeles region meet the standards established to protect the

specific beneficial uses of those water bodies, such as habitat, recreation, groundwater recharge,

etc.

The Permit was adopted by the California Water Quality Control Board, Los Angeles Region
Regional Board) on November 8, 2012, and became effective December 28, 2012.

The MS4 Permit gives Permittees the option of implementing a collaborative, watershed-based
approach to Permit compliance through development of a Watershed Management Program

WMP)  or an Enhanced Watershed Management Program  ( EWMP).  While a handful of

Permittees chose to be subject to the " baseline" permit and are now in violation of the MS4

Permit if water quality monitoring results show pollutant exceedances, 33 WMP and EWMP
groups were formed.

On September 3, 2013 the Covina City Council authorized the City to enter into an MOU in an
amount not to exceed $ 89,436.06 for the collaborative development of an EWMP and a CIMP

for portions of the San Gabriel River Watershed,  which are required components of the

Monitoring and Reporting Program ( MRP) of the MS4 Permit.  The MOU authorized the City's
participation in the Upper San Gabriel River( USGR) EWMP Group, comprised of the County of
Los Angeles, LACFCD, and the Cities of Baldwin Park, Covina, Glendora, Industry, and La
Puente ( Group Members). Group Members started meeting in early 2013 to establish the EWMP
Group and collaboratively develop an EWMP and a CIMP for the Upper San Gabriel River
Watershed.

Since that time, staff from the EWMP Group jurisdictions have met at least monthly with the
EWMP and CIMP consultants to gather and assess data,  discuss statistical modeling and
projections, evaluate alternatives and determine appropriate, cost-effective approaches for the

EWMP and CIMP.   Two stakeholder workshops were held to solicit input on the EWMP.

Elected officials, chambers of commerce, environmental groups, school districts and community
groups, among others, were invited.   On March 4, 2015, an executive briefing was held for
elected officials, city managers, and staff.

While the EWMP specifies the actions that the EWMP Group will take to comply with the water
quality requirements of the MS4 Permit, the CIMP provides details about the how the various
monitoring requirements of the MS4 Permit are to be conducted and reported, including:



Receiving water monitoring
Total Maximum Daily Load( TMDL) receiving water monitoring
Stormwater outfall monitoring
Non-stormwater outfall screening and monitoring
Frequency and scheduling of monitoring
Sampling procedures

The CIMP is meant to inform Covina and the other individual EWMP Group jurisdictions
individually,  and the Group as a whole,  whether the EWMP as formulated and being
implemented, is working to ensure that it will meet the water quality requirements of the MS4
Permit.  If monitoring results show that the water quality objectives are not being met, then the
EWMP has to be reevaluated quantitatively and revised so that the water quality objectives are
met by the required interim and final deadlines.

The CIMP is the EWMP Group' s approach to an effective,  efficient and well-thought-out
monitoring program that covers the majority of the monitoring requirements of the MS4 Permit
for the City of Covina  ( the Dominguez Channel and Harbor Toxic TMDL monitoring
requirements are being addressed under a separate MOU for City Council consideration on June
2, 2015).  Unlike other watersheds in the Los Angeles region, existing water quality data in the
San Gabriel River Watershed Management Area is sparse.   Like most other cities in the

watershed, Covina has not previously conducted monitoring of stormwater runoff but has relied
on data from the LACFCD.  The CIMP provides for continued use of LACFCD data and savings

through coordination and economies of scale.

In developing the CIMP, the EWMP Group worked closely with other watershed groups and
reached out to individual cities to ensure the CIMP monitoring programs are coordinated and
integrated across the watershed (Exhibit B). The collaborating groups and individual cities are all
each contributing data and/ or cost sharing with all groups in the watershed, avoiding duplicative
monitoring efforts. As a result of the unprecedented collaboration among the groups, the CIMPs
together provide a comprehensive and consistent long-term monitoring plan for the watershed.

The CIMP includes the details of the following programs:

1)  Receiving Water Monitoring — Monitoring in the river and waterbodies to assess whether
water quality objectives ( WQOs) are being met.

2)  TMDL Monitoring — TMDLs are a numeric calculation of the maximum amount of a

pollutant that a waterbody can receive and still meet water quality standards,  and an

allocation of that load among the various sources of that pollutant.   TMDL monitoring is
conducted to evaluate attainment of or progress in attaining the waste load allocations
WLAs).

3)  Stormwater Outfall Monitoring — During a precipitation event, monitoring of runoff from
each EWMP Group member's storm drain system " outfall" into water bodies of the Upper

San Gabriel River to determine whether the jurisdiction is causing or contributing to water
quality issues observed in the receiving water.

4)  Non-Stormwater Outfall Screening and Monitoring — Monitoring of runoff during dry
weather to determine whether non-stormwater discharges are potentially impacting the
receiving water and whether significant non-stormwater discharges are allowable or



prohibited in the MS Permit.

5) Assessment of Low Impact Development (LID) Effectiveness —Use of monitoring data to
assess the effectiveness of the LID requirements for land development and to fulfill reporting
requirements.

6)  Regional Study Participation — LACFCD will continue to participate in the Southern

California Stormwater Monitoring Coalition( SMC) on behalf of the group.

In addition to the direct costs of implementing the monitoring program as outlined in the CIMP
and the consultant scope of work( Exhibit C), the MOU provides for five percent of the total cost

of the MOU to be paid to Los Angeles County for contract administration and a contingency of
10 percent of the total invoice amount.  The contingency will not be invoiced unless there is a
need for its expenditure as agreed to by all parties.

The EWMP Group submitted a Draft CIMP in June 2014, and revised the CIMP ( Exhibit D) in
May 2015 to address comments from the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board
Regional Board), dated February 6, 2015.  Subsequently, the City of South El Monte indicated

in a letter to the Regional Board, dated February 26, 2015 of its intention to join the CIMP. As a
result, the EWMP Group agreed to include South El Monte in the Revised CIMP.

Implementation of the CIMP, as noted in the implementation schedule, is required to commence

within 90 days of the Regional Boards approval of the document.  The EWMP is in the process

of being finalized and will be brought to the City Council for consideration at the June 16, 2015
meeting.  It must be submitted to the Regional Board by June 28, 2015.

EXHIBITS

A. Upper San Gabriel River Watershed Group  ( USGR) Coordinated Integrated Monitoring
Program( CIMP) MOU

B. USGR CIMP Collaboration Map and Matrix
C. USGR CIMP Consultant Scope of Work

D. USGR Revised CIMP, Submitted to Regional Board May 6, 2015
E. USGR Revised CIMP Attachments [ on file in the Office of the City Clerk]

Respectfully submitted,

Siobhan Foster/Director of Public Works

Public Works Department



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY
FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT, AND THE CITIES OF BALDWIN PARK, COVINA,

GLENDORA, INDUSTRY, LA PUENTE, AND SOUTH EL MONTE

REGARDING THE ADMINISTRATION AND COST SHARING FOR IMPLEMENTING
THE COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM

FOR THE UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER WATERSHED

This Memorandum of Understanding ( MOU), made and entered into as of the date of

the last signature set forth below by and between the COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
COUNTY),  a political subdivision of the State of California,  the LOS ANGELES

COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT ( LACFCD), a body corporate and politic, and
the CITIES OF BALDWIN PARK, COVINA, GLENDORA, INDUSTRY, LA PUENTE, and

SOUTH EL MONTE, municipal corporations. Collectively, these entities shall be known
herein as PARTIES or individually as PARTY.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS,  the Regional Water Quality Control Board,  Los Angeles Region

REGIONAL BOARD)  adopted National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Permit Order No.  R4- 2012-0175  ( MS4

Permit); and

WHEREAS,  the MS4 Permit became effective on December 28,  2012,  and

requires that the COUNTY, the LACFCD, and 84 of the 88 cities ( excluding Avalon,
Long Beach, Palmdale, and Lancaster) within the Los Angeles County comply with the
prescribed elements of the MS4 Permit; and

WHEREAS, the MS4 Permit identified the PARTIES as MS4 permittees that are

responsible for compliance with the MS4 Permit requirements pertaining to the
San Gabriel River Watershed Management Area; and

WHEREAS,  the PARTIES entered into a memorandum of understanding on
October 24,  2013 to collaborate in the development of a Coordinated Integrated

Monitoring Program  ( CIMP)  for the Upper San Gabriel River Watershed,  with the

exception of South El Monte; and

WHEREAS,  the CIMP was submitted to the REGIONAL BOARD by the
PARTIES on June 30, 2014, with the exception of South El Monte, and is anticipated to

be approved by the REGIONAL BOARD; and

WHEREAS, South El Monte indicated its intention to join the CIMP in a letter to

the REGIONAL BOARD, dated February 26, 2015; and

Page 1 of 20

Exhibit A,  20 Pages



WHEREAS,  the PARTIES agreed to include South El Monte in the Revised

CIMP, which was submitted to the Regional Board on May 6, 2015; and

WHEREAS,  the PARTIES collaboratively prepared a final Scope of Work to
obtain a consultant ( CONSULTANT) to assist the PARTIES with complying with certain
elements of the MS4 Permit, as specified in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated

into this MOU by reference; and

WHEREAS, the PARTIES propose engaging a CONSULTANT as set forth in
Section 6( a),  below,  to implement the CIMP,  prepare CIMP Annual Reports,  and

prepare any necessary revisions to the CIMP in compliance with the MS4 Permit; and

WHEREAS,  the PARTIES have determined that hiring the CONSULTANT to
implement the CIMP will be beneficial to the PARTIES, and they have agreed to pay the
PARTIES' fair share of the cost to COUNTY, who will act on behalf of the PARTIES to

contract with the CONSULTANT for the implementation of the CIMP; and

WHEREAS, the PARTIES have agreed to cooperatively share and fully fund the
estimated costs of implementing the CIMP, as shown in Exhibit A; based on the cost
allocation formula contained in Exhibit A of this MOU; and

WHEREAS,  the PARTIES have agreed that the total five-year cost for

implementing the CIMP shall not exceed $$ 4, 574, 552.28, which includes a 5 percent

contract administration cost and a 10 percent contingency; and

WHEREAS, the PARTIES agree that each shall assume full and independent

responsibility for ensuring its own compliance with the MS4 Permit despite the
collaborative approach of the MOU.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by the
PARTIES, and of the promises contained in this MOU, the PARTIES agree as follows:

Section 1.     Recitals. The recitals set forth above are incorporated into this MOU.

Section 2.   Purpose.   The purpose of this MOU is to cooperatively fund the

implementation of the CIMP and to coordinate the payment and performance of the

monitoring services.

Section 3.     Cooperation.   The PARTIES shall fully cooperate with one another to
attain the purposes of this MOU.

Section 4.     Voluntary. This MOU is voluntarily entered into for the implementation of
the CIMP.

Section 5.     Term. This MOU shall become effective on the last date of execution by a
PARTY ( EFFECTIVE DATE) or June 30, 2015, whichever comes first, and shall remain

Page 2 of 20



in effect until ( 1) COUNTY has provided the PARTIES with an accounting as set forth in
Section 6( f) and the PARTIES have paid all outstanding invoices, or ( 2) December 31,
2019, whichever comes first.

Section 6.  COUNTY AGREES:

a.  Consultant Services.  To select a CONSULTANT from COUNTY's as- needed

watershed engineering and water quality support consultant services contractors
for implementation of the CIMP in accordance with the Scope of Work, and any
subsequent changes to the CIMP as agreed upon by the PARTIES and approved
by the REGIONAL BOARD.      COUNTY will be compensated for the

administration of the consultant contract at a rate of 5 percent of each PARTY'S
contract cost as described in Exhibit A.     COUNTY will comply with all
procurement requirements applicable to said selection.

b.  Invoice. To invoice the PARTIES in amounts not exceeding the invoice amounts
shown in Table 5 of Exhibit A.   The annual payments for the period of July 1
through June 30 will be invoiced in July of that year, except for the first invoice,
which will be issued upon the execution of this MOU by all PARTIES or in June
2015, whichever comes first.  At the end of each fiscal year, any unused funds
will be rolled over and used towards future years of CIMP implementation, and

the outstanding invoice amounts set forth in Table 5 of Exhibit A for future years
will be reduced accordingly.

c.  Expenditure.  To utilize the funds deposited by the PARTIES only for the
administration of the consultant contract and the implementation of the CIMP.

COUNTY will provide an accounting of funds expended and remaining at the end
of each fiscal year.

d.  Contingency.  COUNTY will notify the PARTIES if actual expenditures are
anticipated to exceed the cost estimates contained in Table 1 of Exhibit A and
obtain written approval of such expenditures from all PARTIES.  Upon approval,

the PARTIES agree to reimburse COUNTY for their proportional share of these
additional expenditures at an amount not to exceed 10 percent of the original

cost estimate as shown in Table 5 of Exhibit A.  This 10 percent contingency will
not be invoiced, unless actual expenditures exceed the original cost estimate.

Expenditures that exceed the 10 percent contingency will require an amendment
to this MOU.

e.  Report. To submit reports to the REGIONAL BOARD as described in the CIMP

and distribute copies of the reports to the PARTIES prior to submittal to the
REGIONAL BOARD for review and comment.    COUNTY will provide the

PARTIES with an electronic copy of the completed CIMP Annual Report within 7
business days after receipt from the CONSULTANT.   In addition, COUNTY will

submit to the PARTIES the data used to prepare the reports.  No report shall be

submitted to the REGIONAL BOARD unless and until it has been approved, in

Page 3 of 20



writing, for submittal by all PARTIES, excepting a PARTY or PARTIES whose
involvement in this MOU has been terminated or who fails to respond to requests

for approval.

f.   Termination. To provide an accounting upon termination of this MOU.   At the

completion of the accounting,  COUNTY shall return any unused portion of all
funds deposited with COUNTY in accordance with the cost allocation formula set

forth in Exhibit A.

g.  Permit.  To work with the CONSULTANT to obtain all necessary permits for
installation of permanent infrastructure or modifications to monitoring sites, and
access within storm drains,  channels,  catch basins,  and similar properties

FACILITIES) during monitoring events and maintenance.

Section 7.  The LACFCD AGREES:

a.  Mass Emission Stations Monitoring. To conduct monitoring at the existing mass
emission stations owned and operated by the LACFCD in accordance with the
CIMP, but limited to water column chemistry and aquatic toxicity.  The LACFCD

will conduct monitoring for the first two dry weather events and three wet weather
events at no cost to the PARTIES or their CONSULTANTS.

b.  Additional Monitoring at LACFCD Mass Emission Stations. To coordinate with
COUNTY for any additional monitoring required by the CIMP at its existing mass
emission stations beyond two dry weather events and three wet weather events.
The actual cost of such additional monitoring, not to exceed $6,000 per additional

event, will be deducted from LACFCD's contribution.

c.  Monitoring Results.  To provide monitoring results for the CONSULTANT to
conduct analyses and include in all required CIMP reporting.

d.  Access. To grant access to the PARTIES and the CONSULTANT to LACFCD' s

FACILITIES, to achieve the purposes of this MOU, provided the PARTIES and
their CONSULTANTS obtain a permit and provide written notice 72 hours in

advance of entry to LACFCD's FACILITIES.  Access permits will be issued by the
LACFCD at no cost to the PARTIES or their CONSULTANTS.    Permits for

construction or installation of structures in LACFCD right of way will incur fees to
cover the cost of review, inspection, etc., by LACFCD.

Section 8.  THE PARTIES FURTHER AGREE:

a.  Payment.  To fund the cost of the implementation of the CIMP and to pay
COUNTY for their proportional share of the estimated cost for the implementation

of the CIMP and contract administration not exceeding the invoice amounts as
shown in Table 5 of Exhibit A, within sixty (60) days of receipt of the invoice from
COUNTY.  The cost estimates presented in Exhibit A have been agreed upon by

Page 4 of 20



the PARTIES and are subject to changes in the CIMP pursuant to new

REGIONAL BOARD requirements and/ or unforeseen challenges in the field. Any
such changes proposed to the PARTIES'  proportional share are subject to

funding appropriation and will require written approval of the PARTIES as
explained in section 6(d).

b.  Documentation. To make a good faith effort to cooperate with one another to

achieve the purposes of this MOU by providing all requested information and
documentation in their possession and available for release to the

CONSULTANT that is deemed necessary by the PARTIES to implement the
CIMP.

c.  Access.   Each PARTY will allow reasonable access and entry to the

CONSULTANT,  on an as needed basis during the term of this MOU,  to the
PARTY' S FACILITIES to achieve the purposes of this MOU, provided, however,

that prior to entering any of the PARTY'S FACILITIES, the CONSULTANT shall
obtain all necessary permits and execute a Right-of-Entry Agreement and
provide written notice 72 hours in advance of entry from the applicable PARTY.

d.  Permit. Each PARTY will work with the CONSULTANT to obtain all necessary
permits for installation of permanent infrastructure or modifications to stormwater

monitoring sites within each PARTY'S jurisdiction.

e.  Additional Participants.  The PARTIES agree that if any other entity decides to
cost share any element of the CIMP, COUNTY will enter into a separate MOU
with that entity and will reduce the PARTIES' future invoice amount(s) based on
the cost share formula contained in Table 3 of Exhibit A of this MOU.

f.   Additional Studies.  The PARTIES agree that additional watershed- wide special

studies, monitoring with other watershed groups, conducting necessary special
studies,  preparing grant applications,  and/ or conducting other collaborative

activities for the purpose of complying with the MS4 Permit may be funded by the
PARTIES subject to the terms of this MOU, provided that there are available

excess contract funds or contingency funds available to fund these activities.
Prior to the performance of any such activities, all PARTIES must provide written
approval of the activities and a revised Exhibit A showing which PARTIES will be
funding the activities and in what amounts.

Section 9.  Indemnification

a.  Each PARTY shall indemnify,  defend,  and hold harmless each other PARTY,
including its special districts, elected and appointed officers, employees, agents,
attorneys,  and designated volunteers from and against any and all liability,
including, but not limited to demands, claims, actions, fees, costs, and expenses
including reasonable attorney's and expert witness fees),  arising from or

connected with the respective acts of each PARTY arising from or related to this

Page 5 of 20



MOU; provided, however, that no PARTY shall indemnify another PARTY for that
PARTY' S own negligence or willful misconduct.

b.  In light of the provisions of Section 895.2 of the Government Code of the State of

California imposing certain tort liability jointly upon public entities solely by reason
of such entities being parties to an agreement (as defined in Section 895 of said
Code), each of the PARTIES hereto, pursuant to the authorization contained in

Section 895.4 and 895.6 of said Code, shall assume the full liability imposed
upon it or any of its officers, agents, or employees, by law for injury caused by
any act or omission occurring in the performance of this MOU to the same extent
such liability would be imposed in the absence of Section 895.2 of said Code.  To

achieve the above stated purpose, each PARTY indemnifies, defends, and holds

harmless each other PARTY for any liability,  cost,  or expense that may be
imposed upon such other PARTY solely by virtue of said Section 895.2.   The

provisions of Section 2778 of the California Civil Code are made a part hereof as

if incorporated herein.

Section 10.  Termination and Withdrawal

a.  This MOU may be terminated upon the express written agreement of all
PARTIES.   If this MOU is terminated,  then all PARTIES must agree on the

equitable redistribution of remaining funds deposited, if there are any, or payment
of invoices due at the time of termination.  Completed work shall be owned by the
PARTY or PARTIES who fund the completion of such work.     Rights to

uncompleted work by the CONSULTANT still under contract will be held by the
PARTY or PARTIES who fund the completion of such work.

b.  If a PARTY fails to substantially comply with any of the terms or conditions of this
MOU, then that PARTY shall forfeit its rights to work completed through this

MOU, but no such forfeiture shall occur unless and until the defaulting PARTY
has first been given notice of its default and a reasonable opportunity to cure the
alleged default.

c.  COUNTY will notify all PARTIES in writing of any PARTY failing to cure an
alleged default in compliance with the terms or conditions of this MOU.  The non-

delinquent PARTIES will determine the next course of action.   The remaining
cost will be distributed based on the existing cost allocation formula in Exhibit A.
If the increase is more than the 10 percent contingency, an amendment to this
MOU must be executed to reflect the change in the PARTIES' cost share.

d.  If a PARTY wishes to withdraw from this MOU for any reason, that PARTY must
give the other PARTIES and the REGIONAL BOARD prior written notice thereof.

The withdrawing PARTY shall be responsible for its share of the CIMP

implementation cost through the end of the current monitoring year  (July 1
through June 30), including costs for reporting of data and results. The effective
date of withdrawal shall be the 6th day after COUNTY receives written notice of

Page 6 of 20



the PARTY'S intent to withdraw.   Should any PARTY withdraw from this MOU,
the remaining PARTIES' cost share allocation shall be adjusted in accordance
with the cost allocation formula in Exhibit A.

Section 11.  General Provisions

a.  Notices.   Any notices, bills, invoices, or reports relating to this MOU, and any
request,  demand,  statement,  or other communication required or permitted

hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered to the representatives of the
PARTIES at the addresses set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference.  The PARTIES shall promptly notify each other
of any change of contact information, including personnel changes, provided in
Exhibit B.  Written notice shall include notice delivered via e- mail or fax.  A notice

shall be deemed to have been received on ( a) the date of delivery, if delivered by
hand during regular business hours, or by confirmed facsimile or by e- mail; or
b) on the third ( 3rd) business day following mailing by registered or certified mail
return receipt requested) to the addresses set forth in Exhibit B.

b.  Administration.   For the purposes of this MOU, the PARTIES hereby designate
as their respective PARTY representatives the persons named in Exhibit B.  The

designated PARTY representatives,   or their respective designees,   shall

administer the terms and conditions of this MOU on behalf of their respective
PARTY.   Each of the persons signing below on behalf of a PARTY represents
and warrants that he or she is authorized to sign this MOU on behalf of such

PARTY.

e.  Relationship of the PARTIES.  The PARTIES are, and shall at all times remain as

to each other, wholly independent entities.   No PARTY to this MOU shall have

power to incur any debt, obligation, or liability on behalf of any other PARTY
unless expressly provided to the contrary by this MOU.  No employee, agent, or

officer of a PARTY shall be deemed for any purpose whatsoever to be an agent,
employee, or officer of another PARTY.

c.  Binding Effect.  This MOU shall be binding upon, and shall be to the benefit of
the respective successors,  heirs,  and assigns of each PARTY;  provided,

however, no PARTY may assign its respective rights or obligations under this
MOU without prior written consent of the other PARTIES.

d.  Amendment.   The terms and provisions of this MOU may not be amended,
modified,   or waived,   except by an instrument in writing signed by all

non-delinquent PARTIES.    For purposes of this MOU,  a PARTY shall be

considered delinquent if that PARTY fails to timely pay an invoice as required by
Section 8( a) or withdraws pursuant to Section 10( d).

e.  Law to Govern.  This MOU is governed by, interpreted under, and construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

Page 7 of 20



f.   Severability.  If any provision of this MOU shall be determined by any court to be
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable to any extent, then the remainder of this MOU
shall not be affected, and this MOU shall be construed as if the invalid, illegal, or

unenforceable provision had never been contained in this MOU.

g.  Entire Agreement.  This MOU constitutes the entire agreement of the PARTIES

with respect to the subject matter hereof.

h.  Waiver.  Waiver by any PARTY to this MOU of any term, condition, or covenant
of this MOU shall not constitute a waiver of any other term,  condition,  or

covenant.  Waiver by any PARTY to any breach of the provisions of this MOU
shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision,  nor a waiver of any

subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this MOU.

i.   Counterparts.  This MOU may be executed in any number of counterparts, each
of which shall be an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one

and the same instrument, provided, however, that such counterparts shall have

been delivered to all PARTIES to this MOU.

j.   All PARTIES have been represented by counsel in the preparation and
negotiation of this MOU.  Accordingly, this MOU shall be construed according to
its fair language.  Any ambiguities shall be resolved in a collaborative manner by
the PARTIES and shall be rectified by amending this MOU as described in
section 11( e).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have caused this MOU to be

executed by their duly authorized representatives and affixed as of the date of signature
of the PARTIES:

Page 8 of 20



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

By
GAIL FARBER, Director of Public Works Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

MARK J. SALADINO

County Counsel

By
Deputy Date

Page 9 of 20



LOS ANGELES COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT

By
GAIL FARBER, Chief Engineer Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

MARK J. SALADINO

County Counsel

By
Deputy Date

Page 10 of 20



CITY OF BALDWIN PARK

By
Shannon Yauchzee, P. E.     Date
Chief Executive Officer

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

By
Daniel Wall, P. E.

Public Works Director/City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By
Robert N. Tafoya, Esq.
City Attorney

Page 11 of 20



CITY OF COVINA

Name:

Date
Title:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Name:

Title:

Page 12 of 20



CITY OF GLENDORA

By
Chris Jeffers Date

City Manager

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

By
David A. Davies

Public Works Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By
D. Wayne Leech

City Attorney

Page 13 of 20



CITY OF INDUSTRY

By
Kevin Radecki Date

City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By
Michelle Vadon

City Attorney

Page 14 of 20



CITY OF LA PUENTE

By
David Carmany Date

City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By
James M. Casso

City Attorney

Page 15 of 20



CITY OF SOUTH EL MONTE

By
Anthony Ybarra Date

City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By
Quinn Barrow

City Attorney

Page 16 of 20



EXHIBIT A

Upper San Gabriel River Watershed

Funding Contributions for CIMP Implementation

Table 1. Contract Cost

Deliverable Estimated Cost

Receiving Water Monitoring 1, 313, 573. 50

Stormwater Monitoring 1, 048,955.50

Non-Stormwater Screening and Monitoring 1, 106,943.00

Reporting, Meetings, and Project Management 609, 536.00

Total Contract 4,079, 008.00

Table 2. LACFCD's Contribution

Item Estimated Cost

LACFCD's Five- Percent Cost 203, 950.40

Cost to LACFCD for Conducting Four Additional Metals Sampling 24,000.00
at San Gabriel River Mass Emission

LACFCD's Contribution 179,950.40

Table 3. Remaining Contract Cost

Item Estimated Cost

Contract Cost 4, 079, 008.00

LACFCD's Contribution 179,950.40

Remaining Contract 3,899, 057.60

Additional Participants with Executed MOU with COUNTY 0.00

Remaining Contract 3, 899, 057.60

Table 4. Cost Allocation Formula

Percent Allocated
Contract

Estimated
Party Acres Administration

of Area Cost
5 percent)     

Cost

COUNTY 40,812 59. 1    $ 2, 305, 539.54 2, 305, 539. 54

City of Baldwin
4, 335 6.3      $ 244, 891. 55 12, 244.58       $ 257, 136. 13

Park

City of Covina 4,481 6.5      $ 253, 139. 34 12, 656. 97       $ 265, 796. 31

City of Glendora 9,307 13. 5      $ 525, 768. 31 26,288.42 552, 056.73

City of Industry 7,647 11. 1       $ 431, 992. 08 21, 599.60       $ 453, 591. 68

City of La Puente 2,207 3. 2      $ 124,677. 20 6,233. 86       $ 130, 911. 06

City of South El
231 0. 3 13, 049. 58 652,48 13, 702. 06

Monte

Total 69, 020 100. 0    $ 3, 899, 057.60 79,675.91     $ 3, 978, 733.51

Page 17 of 20



w

CONI-  OD a)      Co
O CO

N
CO co

W O C  ' at W CO
CCOO COC)     O N-      LO 2

O = a)  0 O 00 co N Cr)     O O CO
V .

2 C M M CO
N 01 O N NI

r I C
43

7 C

O C C 69 N to to 69
a)

I- - V 69 EA X

U)w

V O a))      CO CO CO r N M O

C-     CC)  ()      M CA CO CA r O CO
a)       CA CO r N-      O CO CA N.      CO
O o CA co N-       co CV CO O CO CO N
c a N-  O co-       CO CO CO M r co- C

4 r r CO N N Ct)      Nr r EA r

C
v EA

CVO 69 69 69-     EA EA
Cl)

U
2

co
d co)     -       co N-      COO

CO O co
0 C

C CO M M N co CA r O co
N

O
CA co r N -      O CO O N -      CO w

O
O N-  O C[       CCOO CO CO M O

CCO
r M N N CC)      r Ef}     r

Q 69
CV

69 EA 69 EA ER
as

N a)      
U

O O co co N      CA CO N O
N O ^   Tr CC)      CA N      N .      N CA O C

Q r r CC)  N Ln r M O N.:       CA N- a)
co E 0 i r r CY)       d•      CO C)       r 00 JO

N CO NI-  M N -       CO CO CO CO CA N

W
v"    

NN r CO ti CO N:       N Cn O
L 7 >-    M O CO CC)      r CO N EA CO C O

v 69 69 69
rEA

fA 69
609

9V
E

m O 0 CO O O CO r N
co co N O CO r N C co

Co M CO CO CO O M CO ti Cfl a)

X     -a C 0 'T CO CO N CO ti N r M t>)

W co O N 1....    co CA r N CO r C)       V'      r C O

N-      O CO CO M 69 CO
C a

CO

N
Q LPL I CO EA EA r r 69 O

EA-       EA EA
r

C to

0 1. 11 CO CO N -      N r CO CO
C

Q U m ^   N r N-      O
r

m 0o Co O
0_ p)     0 M Co CO N-      N-      CO N_       C' r)      N

C N r N
CN CO

COO CO CO 0 N
CO

O O CO CA CO CO N r U_
CV EA CD= 

LL 69 in 69 EA r 609     ( ft CA O
W v

69 6} to
C

co CO co Nr r CO r 0 CO
in CO0 N Nr CO N-      O)      0.      co N-      CO Co
0

C()  N Ni r r N-       CO CO 0r

N N-      Nr
N-       

CO
CO

N N
co

a)r

CV
CO CO CO Cr)      O CO 64 C) 9-

d 7 EA in EA69 r r 69 O
te3

a O N O CO CO O N-      CO
C

a)       in ^   N CO Nt N N N N r U   •
r

O r O CO N M M CO r Nr a) W
Cn N V N-  CO CA CO CA CA CO r in

C.

C)       W r
CO N      O r V CO O r O Or L-C C }    r CO N N Nt CO     -       E9 d

Cj 0 IL.    to N-     EAEA to EA CA EA M69 N d
O

7

U_
C N

N CO a)

CA t.) d U O '
C

Y O CO O O O ? 4_ .E•  O
W CI

d       * O       -  a N6      >      c a)   >     
C

ca J 0
Uma

UU U   U c UNi Uco      ~ U rnRI
I—      to



EXHIBIT B

Upper San Gabriel River Watershed

Responsible Agency Representatives

1.  County of Los Angeles
Department of Public Works

Watershed Management Division, 11th Floor

900 South Fremont Avenue

Alhambra, CA 91803- 1331

Paul Alva, Assistant Division Head

E- mail:  palva @dpw.lacounty.gov
Phone:  ( 626) 458-4325

2.  Los Angeles County Flood Control District
Department of Public Works

Watershed Management Division, 11th Floor

900 South Fremont Avenue

Alhambra, CA 91803- 1331

Terri Grant, Assistant Division Head

E- mail:  tgrant@dpw.lacounty.gov
Phone:  (626) 458-4309

3.  City of Baldwin Park
14403 East Pacific Avenue

Baldwin Park, CA 91706-4297

Daniel Wall, Director of Public Works/City Engineer
E- mail:  dwall @baldwinpark.com

Phone:  (626) 813-5251

4.  City of Covina
125 East College Street

Covina, CA 91723

Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager

E- mail:  vcastro@covinaca.gov

Phone:  ( 626) 384- 5480

5.  City of Glendora
116 East Foothill Boulevard

Glendora, CA 91741

David A. Davies, Director of Public Works

E- mail:  ddavies@ci.glendora. ca. us

Phone:  (626) 914-8246

Page 19 of 20



EXHIBIT B

Upper San Gabriel River Watershed

Responsible Agency Representatives

6.  City of Industry
15625 East Stafford Street, Suite 100

City of Industry, CA 917447
John D. Ballas, Director of Public Works/City Engineer
E- mail:  jdballas@cityofindustry.org
Phone:  (626) 333-2211

7.  City of La Puente
15900 East Main Street

La Puente, CA 91744

John Di Mario, Development Services Director

E- mail:  jdimario@lapuente.org
Phone:  ( 626) 855- 1517

8.  City of South El Monte
1415 North Anita Avenue

South El Monte, CA 91733

Anthony (Tony) Ybarra, City Manager
E- mail: TYbarra@soelmonte.org
Phone: (626) 579-6540

Page 20 of 20



CIMP COLLABORATION MAP FOR

SAN GABRIEL RIVER WATERSHED MANAGEMENT AREA

Status as of May 6, 2015

it iiii'iiiiiiiii''.!ii'v 4,..,. i'iS'. ,..%iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i4%.iiiiiii'ii-i iiiiiiiiiiiii i0!
v+w`' 1.-  .)!-'

iii$$::iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii•'O i.

L        i  i `     i 4
iiii i.... iiiiiiii ii     .

iiiiiiiiii
iiiii

iii
1iii

iii

iiii
iiiiiiiii

i

iiii
iii

i
iiiii

ii
iiiiiii

i
iii

i

ii
ii,•'   ii•i•:   

t „ .,

e.e .  i.'-' '., .     ,#10.  
i,D '

4

BEATTY     > t

i      S
DRAIN • a

i,' r ,
B

DRAIN
o r     I'  

r;

eac BI 3701    ?,  MTD 766 Qe
t Irt    

F.    I«, s-   T, 

ri; ;       1 ' LE"
5s

BI1219 1.'!".:-,.'•'.:'"   V
A

1c-D
tr:      0iQ t.  Li      '   SDW_DS

@ia, lrt, r>€ r,   o
I

L'DW$ DW a WCW DS.
Bt05'66 .. r, r

Qom,   s  '     ..  SDW DSJr R4RAMONT B1-11231p",;, o 4 ° x.,01 "• OW) PUD_RES t
cSGR Reach3 WES ' MV  ':—      ' 11`.:';',

4*.",‘Chanty
e

re x<- r d r
BI 1701 a1nUt

Cre
S

1-     
F'„ err , 4,-,

C' rk r
I• , _  WCW_BP

1 :'      
W

WALNUT h

Anti_!  r SJC_C 1”  ",''   
B14801,     O, SJC_DS

s

51   '  i4
B 4301

rad3 iI*_f̀  -     

t1. 9, ar
LA HAB

H G TS     f  !:   1 ,     sC1

r op  ,  •    PPO 2425

SG 4 N
R Reach 1

r,,; Osc1
0 3.25 6. 5

i r. rr„ a= e, rr

r Miles
P = i 1

NFC- 1 1 -',>,  LACFCD Mass Emission Stations

I • I General Receiving Water Sites     

LEGEND
O

t„ ," ' ° 1

I 0 TMDL Monitoring Sites

J       % o A Outfall Monitoring Sites
C) 

Rio Hondo/ San Gabriel River Water Quality Group EWMP
r,.. 1;, 1 GR1

S13
Upper San Gabriel River Watershed EWMP

HillI
East San Gabriel Valley Watershed WMP

Fgt Low San Gabriel River WMP,

rii

J

v`
y 1 Individual Cities

tc Ii

I

0    ,,,       Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, US,G$, Intermap, increment P Corp., NRCAN,
R8 Esri Japan, METI, Esri China( Hong Kong), Esri( Thailand), TomTom,

Mapmylndia,© OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

Exhibit B,  2 Pages



CIMP COLLABORATION MATRIX FOR SAN GABRIEL RIVER WATERSHED MANAGEMENT AREA

Status as of May 6, 2015

WMP/ EWMP
Agencies Harbor Toxics Monitoring

San Gabriel North Fork San Jose Creek San Jose Creek Puddingstone

Group River Reach 4 Coyote Creek Reach 1 Reach 2 Reservoir

Baldwin Park

Covina

Glendora
X

Industry
Conduct X

Conduct
X

X Receiving       ( Conduct X Conduct In-
La Puente ReceivingExecute MOU)    Water Outfall Receive Data)       Lake

South El Monte Water
k Monitoring)     Monitoring) Monitoring)CIMP Only) Monitoring)

County of LA
Execute MOU)

LACFCD

Arcadia

Azusa

Rio Hondo/ San
Bradbury

Duarte X
Gabriel River

Monrovia Execute MOU)
EWMP

Sierra Madre

County of LA
LACFCD

Artesia

Bellflower

Cerritos

Diamond Bar

Downey
Hawaiian Gardens

X X

Lower San
Mirada       (

Conduct Wet Weather Conduct
La

Gabriel River Monitoring at S13 and Receiving
X

WMP
Lakewood

GR1)   Water      (
Receive Data)

Long Beach
Execute MOU)   Monitoring)

Norwa l k

Pico Rivera

Santa Fe Springs

Whittier

LACFCD

Claremont X

attbriel
La Verne  _      

X
Conduct

X

Pomona Receivingm a Execute MOU) 
Water

Stormwater

San Dimas Monitoring)
Monitoring)

El Monte
X X

Execute MOU)       ( Execute MOU)

X X

X In MOU In MOU
La Habra Heights

Execute MOU) Discussion with Discussion with

Individual Cities
LSGR)   USGR)

X

Irwindale      ( Potential Participation;

Awaiting Confirmation)
X

Walnut Potential Participation;

Awaiting Confirmation)
X

Los Angeles      ( Conduct Dry Weather
Other Agency County Sanitation Monitoring at R8)

Districts Data Sharing Only, No
MOU)



CH2M HILL

CI-12MH I LL 1000 Wilshire Boulevard

mow' Suite 2100

Los Angeles, CA

90017

Tel 714.429. 2000

Fax 714.429.2050

May 19, 2015

Jolene Guerrero

Watershed Management Division

LA County Department of Public Works
900 S. Fremont Ave.

Alhambra, CA 91803

Subject:   Proposal for Upper San Gabriel River EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated
Monitoring Program for FY 15-16, 16-17 and 17-18

Dear Jolene:

CH2M HILL is pleased to submit the attached scope of work, schedule, and fee estimate for

the above subject project to provide TMDL receiving and stormwater monitoring, non-
stormwater outfall screening and monitoring, CIMP evaluation and revisions, and semi-
annual and annual reports.

We look forward to continuing to work with you on this exciting project. If you have any
questions regarding this proposal, please call Kathleen Higgins (714) 435- 6161.

Sincerely,

CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc.   CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc.

Gerard Orozco Kathleen Higgins, P.E.

Area Manager Project Manager

Exhibit C,  21 Pages



Scope of Work for Upper San Gabriel River EWMP

Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program

Purpose

The purpose of this project is to implement the first 3 years of the Upper San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed

Management Program Group( USGR EWMP Group) Draft Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program ( CIMP)
June 2014) in accordance with the December 28, 2012 MS4 permit.

Background

The following Permittees formed the USGR EWMP Group and collaboratively developed and submitted their Draft
CIMP to the Regional Board on June 30, 2014. Comments from the Regional Board were received in February 2015.

1.  County
2.  City of Baldwin Park
3.  City of Covina
4.  City of Glendora
5.  City of Industry
6.  City of La Puente
7.   Los Angeles County Flood Control District( LACFCD)

The CIMP utilizes alternative approaches to meet the Primary Objectives of the Monitoring and Reporting Program
MRP) of the MS4 permit, pending approval of Regional Board Executive Officer. The CIMP will be designed to

provide the information necessary to guide management decisions in addition to providing a means to measure
compliance with the Permit and is composed of four elements:

1.   Receiving Water Monitoring
2.  TMDL Receiving Water Monitoring
3.  Stormwater Outfall Monitoring
4.   Non- Stormwater Outfall Screening and Monitoring

The non-stormwater outfall screening has been performed as part of a separate project in Fiscal Year( FY) 2014-
15. Outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharge were identified, and source investigations for these outfalls
will be performed later this year. Outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges that remain unaddressed
after source investigation shall be monitored as part of this project. The remaining items of the CIMP will also be
implemented as part of the scope of the work for this project as detailed herein.

Scope of Services
Task 1  - TMDL Receiving Water Monitoring and Stormwater Monitoring
CH2M HILL will install equipment and conduct monitoring as described in the Approved CIMP( anticipated to be
July 1, 2015 or within 90 days of receipt of Regional Board approval, whichever is later.) All sample collection and
field measurements shall be performed in accordance with the process and procedures described in the Approved
CIMP. CH2M HILL will perform the following tasks:

Provide a brief 4 to 6 page technical memorandum (TM 1) detailing sampling team activation procedures
with decision criteria, rain gage or website information, field reports forms, identified staff supporting
sampling, and contact information to the County Project Manager for review. CH2M HILL will notify the



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 2

County Project Manager 48 hours prior to arrival of a qualifying storm electronically by e- mail and by
phone.

Perform a hydrologic analysis of the TMDL receiving water and stormwater outfall monitoring sites to
determine the flow pacing for sampling. Collect watershed data for each monitoring site, including rainfall
and flow data. Estimate watershed size and determine an approximate runoff coefficient to be used for
sampler pacing. Update pacing at monitoring sites after each storm.

Collect and analyze monitoring data at the TMDL receiving water sites as described in the Approved CIMP,
except for Puddingstone Reservoir. The monitoring sites and number of events are summarized in
Attachment 1. The constituents to be monitored and frequency of events are summarized in Attachment
2. Coordination with Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts regarding their NPDES monitoring and the
San Gabriel River Regional Monitoring Program and other WMP/ EWMP groups may be necessary to
ensure consistent monitoring approaches. CH2M HILL will submit a post-event memorandum within 30
calendar days after each event.

Collect and analyze monitoring data at the stormwater outfall sites as described in the Approved CIMP.
The monitoring sites and number of events are summarized in Attachment 1. The constituents to be
monitored and frequency of events are summarized in Attachment 2. CH2M HILL will submit a post- event
memorandum within 30 calendar days after each event.

CH2M HILL will follow the approach described in the Approved CIMP for conducting aquatic toxicity
monitoring and toxicity identification evaluations based on the following:

o Sample locations for toxicity testing assumed to be required at three TMDL sites for all three
years( FY 15- 18). Toxicity testing will occur in samples collected 3 times per year( 2 wet and 1 dry
weather event) and once at the indicated number of storm water outfalls.

o The toxicity testing scope assumes toxicity will be observed in one of the TMDL monitoring site
samples in each sampling year. This will trigger a TIE at the TMDL sample location in the first year

FY 15- 16), sampling at 2 stormwater outfalls in the second year( FY 16- 17), and sampling at 2
stormwater outfalls in the third year( FY 17- 18).

o It is assumed that prior testing has identified Ceriodaphnia dubia as the most sensitive species for
toxicity testing as identified in the draft CIMP.

o The draft CIMP ( Table C- 9) lists a sample volume for toxicity testing as 40 liters. The requested
sample volume for toxicity testing differed among labs but ranged from 3- 5 gallons per sample.
More is better when it comes to having volume for supporting TIEs and 5 gallons should be a goal
with an absolute minimum sample requirement of 3 gallons.

o Lab fees for toxicity testing includes C. dubia reference toxicant tests which will be reported as
monthly( not concurrent) testing with in- lab cultures.

o The Permit( Attachment E, Section XIV. B, Page E- 36) identifies requirement for toxicity labs to
have participated in intercalibration studies. Toxicity testing and TIE quotes were provided by
Pacific EcoRisk( Fairfield, CA) and Aquatic Bioassay& Consulting Laboratory, Inc. ( Ventura, CA)

who have participated in the most recent marine toxicity interlaboratory calibration study
conducted by SCCWRP as part of the California Bight project, which evaluated toxicity testing with
marine species Eohaustorius and Mytilus.

o TIE costs include sample specific chemical analysis for validating and interpreting toxicity tests
Chronic C. dubia Phase 1 TIE at 100% as described in Table C- 10( Attachment C) of the draft CIMP

with the following treatments: baseline, pH 7, pH 8. 5, filtration, EDTA, STS, PBO, carboxylesterase,

SPE, SPE extraction. Water quality monitoring and chemical analyses to comply with TMDLs and
permit requirements are assumed to be addressed by other elements of the scope.



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 3

o The toxicity testing scope assumes a THE Corrective Action Report will be required each year to
indicate progress identifying the source of toxicity and how to control it.

Obtain necessary permits for access and/ or installation of equipment to conduct monitoring at the TMDL
receiving water sites and stormwater outfall sites as described in the Approved CIMP.

Submit information indicating that the selected testing laboratory will be capable of performing the water
quality analysis with Method of Detection Limits meeting the Minimum Levels of Table E- 2 of the Permit
Attachment E prior to the first monitoring event.

Evaluate monitoring sites for FY 16- 17 and 17- 18.

Provide the County Project Manager with the Site Health and Safety Plan ( SHSP) prior to the start of any
field work. The SHSP shall address site-specific safety concerns at all sites including, but not limited to,
permit required confined- space entry safety requirements, vandalism, sites' accessibility, lane closures,
storm drain laterals, etc. The SHSP will also address procedures and practices for:

o Acceptable entry conditions

o Testing, monitoring, communications and lighting equipment

o Barriers and shields

o Ladders

o Retrieval of devices

CH2M HILL is responsible for the monitoring equipment and will perform maintenance on the monitoring
sites to fix equipment malfunctions and conduct the initial reinstallation at all sites just prior to the storm
season ( FY 16- 17 and 17- 18).

Deliverables

Electronic copy of Site Health and Safety Plan ( 1 submittal)

Electronic copy of Technical Memorandum 1 ( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Event Summary Reports( 4 wet and 2 dry events per year; 1 submittal each)

Assumptions

The design of monitoring stations will not be required to follow the County' s standard plans for water
quality monitoring station installation.

It is assumed that two field teams will conduct pre- storm set up of monitoring stations and post-storm
collection of samples for FY 2015- 16 and 2016- 17, and three field teams for 2017- 18.

One to three bottle changes are anticipated at each monitoring station for all storm events.

The outfalls are assumed to be readily accessible and visible. The County will provide CH2M HILL with any
necessary gate keys to access the outfalls prior to the field screening.

Technical Memorandum 1 will be limited to one round of review by the EWMP Group Members. The
review period from the EWMP Group Members will be two weeks. The County Project Manager will
compile all comments from the EWMP Group Members, with no conflicting comments. After CH2M HILL
submits the final TM, any additional comments from the EWMP Group Members will be incorporated in
the Annual Report.

The post event memorandums will be limited to one submittal. Any comments from the EWMP Group
Members will be incorporated in the Annual Report. The post event memorandums will be limited to the
following:



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 4

o The date, time of sampling or measurements, exact place, weather conditions, and rain fall
amount.

o The individual( s) who performed the sampling or measurements.

o The date(s) laboratory analyses were performed.

o The individual( s) who performed the laboratory analyses.

o The analytical techniques or methods used.

o The results of the laboratory analysis and the exceedances as compared to the water quality
objectives.

o The data sheets showing toxicity test results.

The post event memorandums will not include any figures or storm hydrographs.

The County project manager will be notified by email prior to mobilization of each sampling event.

The County project manager will be notified by e- mail when a false start occurs. The false start will be
documented in a brief 1 page memo limited to the following information: description of the rainfall
information, event activities, and reason for the false start.

The County project manager will be notified by email immediately after a sampling event indicating
whether the samples were successfully collected. The email will include the following information: date,

time of sampling or measurements, exact place, weather conditions, rainfall amount, and the individual( s)
who performed the sampling or measurements.

Task 2 - Non- Stormwater Outfall Screening and Monitoring
CH2M HILL will implement a portion of the non- stormwater outfall screening and monitoring program that has

not already been completed as part of a separate project.

CH2M HILL will conduct source investigation of outfalls with significant discharge in accordance with the

procedures and schedule approved by the County Project Manager.

o The first phase of the source investigation for 25% of the outfalls with significant discharge will be

completed by a separate project no later than December 28, 2015.

o The second phase of the source investigation for 25% of the outfalls with significant discharge will

be completed by a separate project no later than December 28, 2016. CH2M HILL will submit a
technical memorandum (TM 3) identifying the source( s) of the discharge within 30 calendar days
after completion of the source investigation.

o CH2M HILL will complete the third and last phase of the source investigation for 50% of the

outfalls with significant discharge no later than December 28, 2017, and submit a technical

memorandum (TM 5) identifying the source( s) of the discharge within 30 calendar days after
completion of the source investigation. Six of the outfalls will be completed by a separate project

and two of the outfalls will be completed by this project.

CH2M HILL will monitor outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges that remain unaddressed

after source investigation starting in the next scheduled dry weather monitoring period. CH2M HILL will
collect and analyze monitoring data at the non- stormwater outfall sites. The monitoring parameters and
procedures shall follow the Approved CIMP. CH2M HILL will submit a post-event memorandum within 30

calendar days after each event.

The County project manager will be notified by email immediately after a non-stormwater outfall
sampling event indicating whether the samples were successfully collected. The email will include the
following information: date, time of sampling or measurements, exact place, weather conditions, rainfall
amount, and the individual( s) who performed the sampling or measurements.



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 5

CH2M HILL will notify members of the USGR EWMP Group immediately if a potential Illicit Discharge as
defined in the MS4 Permit is observed during field screening event.

CH2M HILL will prepare draft letters for members of the USGR EWMP Group to notify the Regional Board
and the upstream jurisdiction within 3 calendar days of determining a NSW discharge source is from an
upstream jurisdiction, including characterization data, contribution determination efforts, and efforts
taken to identify its source in accordance with the requirements of the MRP. Assume CH2M HILL will
prepare up to 2 letters each in FY 15- 16, 16- 17, and 17- 18.

CH2M HILL will prepare draft letters for members of the USGR EWMP Group to notify the Regional Board
within 3 calendar days of determining authorized or conditionally exempt essential NSW discharges are a
source of pollutants in accordance with the requirements of the MRP. Assume CH2M HILL will prepare up
to 2 letters each in FY 15- 16, 16- 17, and 17- 18.

CH2M HILL will update the water quality characteristics for significant outfalls in the GIS database every
year prior to June 30.

CH2M HILL will obtain paper-based outfall drainage maps from LACFCD and other USGR EWMP Group
members and include an electronic copy in the GIS database.

CH2M HILL will delineate drainage areas for significant outfalls and update the GIS database.
Deliverables

Electronic list of related as- builts and number of catch basins to check for the source in the field

Electronic copy of Technical Memorandum 3( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Technical Memorandum 5( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic files of outfall inventory GIS database

Assumptions

It is assumed that the EWMP Group Members will be able to provide a complete set of as- builts to CH2M
HILL related to all outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharge. If no as- builts are available, CH2M
HILL will conduct a desktop review of the County' s GIS stormdrain database.

It is assumed that a total of 15 outfalls have significant non- stormwater discharge. It is assumed that
source identification on 13 outfalls will be performed by a separate project, and 2 outfalls will be
performed by this project in FY 2017- 18.

The source identification will be limited to 10 hours for each site for the desktop review and one day for
field inspection.

It is assumed that each outfall with significant non- stormwater discharge will have four upstream
manholes that require traffic control for source identification. It is assumed that traffic control plans will
need to be prepared for two manholes per outfall, and one day of traffic control is required to access
manholes for each outfall.

Each technical memorandum will be limited to one round of review by the EWMP Group Members. The
review period from the EWMP Group Members will be two weeks. The County Project Manager will
compile all comments from the EWMP Group Members, with no conflicting comments. After CH2M HILL
submits the final TM, any additional comments from the EWMP Group Members will be incorporated in
the Annual Report.

It is assumed that the number of outfalls that will require non- stormwater monitoring will increase
starting from 3, to 5, and to 10 outfalls in Fiscal Years 2015- 16, 2016- 17, and 2017- 18, respectively.



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 6

Non- stormwater outfall monitoring will be by grab sample, the sites will be readily accessible and will not
require any special equipment to access the sites. It is assumed that one access permit will be obtained

from LACFCD and/ or cities to cover both the source identification and non- stormwater outfall monitoring.
It is assumed that no traffic control will be required for non-stormwater outfall monitoring.

Task 3 - CIMP Evaluation and Revision

CH2M HILL will analyze monitoring data collected by the LACFCD, other watershed management program groups,
Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts, San Gabriel River Regional Monitoring Program, and relevant special
studies in accordance with the Approved CIMP. CH2M Hill will review monitoring data from other NPDES
permittees, including municipalities and industrial waste dischargers as requested by County Project Manager.
CH2M HILL will perform the following tasks:

Prepare a technical memorandum (TM2, TM 4, TM 6) that includes an assessment of the water quality of
receiving water and stormwater and non- stormwater discharges based on data analysis and

recommendations on any changes to the Approved CIMP by April 30 of each year. The source assessment
tech memos( TM3 and TM5) are discussed in Task 2.

As directed by County Project Manager, prepare a letter requesting Regional Board' s approval for
modifying the CIMP as described in the Approved CIMP, such as removing constituents, reducing
monitoring frequencies, or relocating monitoring sites.

Upon approval by the Regional Board and as directed by County Project Manager, prepare a Revised CIMP
for the County Project Manager to submit to the Regional Board.

Deliverables

Electronic copy of Technical Memorandum 2 in 2016( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Technical Memorandum 4 in 2017 ( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Technical Memorandum 6 in 2017 ( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Revised CIMP— 2016( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Revised CIMP— 2017 ( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Revised CIMP— 2018( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Assumptions

Each technical memorandum will be limited to one round of review by the EWMP Group Members. The
review period from the EWMP Group Members will be two weeks. The County Project Manager will
compile all comments from the EWMP Group Members, with no conflicting comments. After CH2M HILL
submits the final TM, any additional comments from the EWMP Group Members will be incorporated in
the Annual Report.

Task 4 - Semi-Annual Data Reports

CH2M HILL will prepare Semi- Annual Data Reports as described in the Approved CIMP and meet the requirements

of the MRP for the County Project Manager to submit to the Regional Board. CH2M HILL will perform the
following tasks:

Submit the Semi- Annual Data Report for the CIMP Implementation period from July 1 to December 31 no
later than April 15 of each year.

Submit the Semi- Annual Data Report for the CIMP Implementation period from January 1 to June 30 no
later than October 15 of each year.

Provide data in both Stormwater Monitoring Coalition (SMC) and California Environmental Data Exchange
Network( CEDEN) formats.



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 7

Deliverables

Electronic copy of Semi- Annual Report in October 2015( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Semi- Annual Report in April 2016( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Semi- Annual Report in October 2016( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Semi- Annual Report in April 2017 ( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Semi- Annual Report in October 2017 ( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Semi- Annual Report in April 2018( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Assumptions

Each Semi- Annual Report will be limited in scope and will only present the following data that have
already been analyzed in TMs 2, 4, and 6:

o Exceedances applicable to WQBELs, RWLs, action levels, or aquatic toxicity thresholds.

o Corresponding sample dates and monitoring locations and other relevant information previously
collected.

The Semi- Annual Report will not require any new analysis of data or comparison of exceedances.

Each Semi- Annual Report will be limited to one round of review by the EWMP Group Members. The
review period from the EWMP Group Members will be two weeks. The County Project Manager will
compile all comments from the EWMP Group Members, with no conflicting comments. After CH2M HILL
submits the final TM, any additional comments from the EWMP Group Members will be incorporated in
the Annual Report.

Task 5 - Annual Reports

CH2M HILL will prepare and submit to the County Project Manager an Annual Report for Years 4, 5, and 6 that
covers the CIMP Implementation period from July 1 to June 30. The Annual Report will contain the Annual Report
elements described in the Approved CIMP and the Annual Assessment and Reporting requirements of the MRP
Parts XVI to XVIII of Attachment E).

Submit the Draft Annual Report no later than May 31 of each year.

Submit the Final Annual Report no later than June 30 of each year.

Prepare a Municipal Action Level ( MAL) Assessment Report as a part of the Annual Report in accordance
with Attachment G of the MS4 Permit.

Prepare a MAL Action Plan as a part of the Annual Report in accordance with Attachment G of the MS4

Permit if stormwater monitoring data exceeds the MALs specified in Attachment G of the MS4 Permit.

Conduct Adaptive Management Process as described in Part V. C. 8 of the MS4 Permit( pages 66-67) for the

first two years of EWMP implementation, which is anticipated to cover the period from April 28, 2016 to
April 28, 2018( the USGR EWMP is expected to be approved no later than April 28, 2016.)

Prepare a Draft Revised EWMP as necessary based on results of the Adaptive Management Process.

Deliverables

Electronic copy of FY 2015- 16 Annual Report—Year 4( 2 submittals— Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of FY 2016- 17 Annual Report—Year 5( 2 submittals— Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of FY 2017- 18 Annual Report—Year 6( 2 submittals—Draft/ Final)

Electronic copy of Revised EWMP— 2017( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 8

Electronic copy of Revised EWMP— 2018( 2 submittals- Draft/ Final)

Assumptions

Part XVII of Attachment E requires watershed summary information to be included in its odd year Annual
Report. It is assumed that most information required in Part XVII is readily available from the Year 3
Annual Report and will be provided for CH2M HILL to include for Year 5. The County will provide rainfall
data for CH2M HILL to develop the isohyetal maps for the subwatershed.

It is assumed that all EWMP Group Members will prepare the requirements listed under Part XVIII. A. 1
Storm Water Control Measures) in the same format, and CH2M HILL will compile all of the information

for the Annual Report. The information prepared by EWMP Group Members will include:

o a. Estimated cumulative change in percent EIA since the effective date of this Order and, if

possible, the estimated change in the storm water runoff volume during the 85th percentile storm
event.

o b. Summary of New Development/ Re- development Projects constructed within the Permittee(s)

jurisdictional area during the reporting year.

o c. Summary of Retrofit Projects that reduced or disconnected impervious area from the MS4

during the reporting year.

o d. Summary of other projects designed to intercept storm water runoff prior to discharge to the
MS4 during the reporting year.

o e. For the projects summarized above in 1. b through 1. d, estimate the total runoff volume

retained on site by the implemented projects.

o f. Summary of actions taken in compliance with TMDL implementation plans or approved
Watershed Management Programs to implement TMDL provisions in Part VI. E and Attachments L-
R of this Order.

o g. Summary of riparian buffer/ wetland restoration projects completed during the reporting year.
For riparian buffers include width, length and vegetation type; for wetland include acres restored,
enhanced or created.

o h. Summary of other Minimum Control Measures implemented during the reporting year, as the
Permittee deems relevant.

o i. Status of all multi-year efforts that were not completed in the current year and will therefore

continue into the subsequent year(s). Additionally, if any of the requested information cannot be
obtained, the Permittee shall provide a discussion of the factor(s) limiting its acquisition and steps
that will be taken to improve future data collection efforts.

It is assumed that all EWMP Group Members will provide the following information listed under Part
XVIII. A. 2. c( Effectiveness Assessment of Stormwater Control Measures):

o c. Where control measures were designed to reduce impervious cover of storm water peak flow

and flow duration, provide hydrographs or flow data or pre- and post-control activity for the 85th
percentile, 24- hour rain event, if available.

CH2M HILL will work with EWMP Group Members and lead Part XVIII. A. 6. It is assumed that all EWMP
Group Members will provide information on Part XVIII. A.6( Adaptive Management Strategies), and CH2M

HILL will provide an assessment of overall effectiveness after the initial information is submitted by the
EWMP Group Members. The information provided by EWMP Group Members will include:

o a. Identify the most effective control measures and describe why the measures were effective and
how other control measures will be optimized based on past experiences.



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 9

o b. Identify the least effective control measures and describe why the measures were deemed
ineffective and how the control measures will be modified or terminated.

o c. Identify significant changes to control measures during the prior year and the rationale for the
changes.

o d. Describe all significant changes to control measures anticipated to be made in the next year
and the rationale for the changes. Those changes requiring approval of the Regional Water Board
or its Executive Officer shall be clearly identified at the beginning of the Annual Report.

o e. Include a detailed description of control measures to be applied to New Development or Re-

development projects disturbing more than 50 acres.

o f. Provide the status of all multi-year efforts that were not completed in the current year and will
continue into the subsequent year(s).

All data will be collected and submitted in the CEDEN format per the appropriate Submission Guidance
Documents and Templates updated 8/ 23/ 2013.

Each Annual Report will be limited to one round of review by the EWMP Group Members. The review
period from the EWMP Group Members will be two weeks. The County Project Manager will compile all
comments from the EWMP Group Members, with no conflicting comments.

Each Annual Report will be limited in scope and will present data in a simplified way. The level of effort is
commensurate with a concise Annual Report that provides information requested in A. 1 through A. 7 of

Part XVIII. Completion of the Annual Report is dependent on each EWMP Group Member providing data
that can easily be compiled into the Annual Report.

The Annual Reports will not include any figures or storm hydrographs.

Task 6 - Project Management

CH2M HILL will provide project management services as follows:

Provide a detailed schedule to complete all the tasks of this Scope of Work to be approved by the County
Project Manager. This schedule shall be updated monthly as necessary and provided to the County
Project Manager.

Perform project management duties including coordinating with County Project Manager and
coordination calls as needed.

Schedule and prepare agenda, presentation, and summary notes for meetings with the USGR EWMP
Group. Assume that two CH2M HILL staff will attend up to 4 meetings with the USGR EWMP Group per
year.

Attend, participate, or support USGR EWMP Group members in meetings with other watershed
management program groups, Regional Board staff, City Councils, County staff, stakeholders, and/ or
other consultants as necessary to deliver the project. Assume that two CH2M HILL staff will attend up to 4
meetings per year.

Deliverables

Electronic copy of schedule

Electronic copy of all meeting agendas and summaries

Electronic monthly invoices



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 10

Deliverable Schedule

Fiscal Year 15- 16:

August 2015— Site Health and Safety Plan

August 2015— Draft Tech Memo 1— Team Activation Procedures

August 2015—Laboratory Credentials

September 2015— Final Tech Memo 1— Team Activation Procedures

September 2015— Draft Semi- Annual Report

October 2015— Final Semi- Annual Report

March 2016— Draft Tech Memo 2— Water Quality Analysis

March 2016— Draft Semi- Annual Report

April 2016— Final Tech Memo 2— Water Quality Analysis

April 2016— Final Semi- Annual Report

May 2016— Letter to Regional Board to Revise CIMP

May 2016— Draft Annual Report

June 2016— Final Annual Report

June 2016— Draft Revised CIMP

June 2016— Final Revised CIMP

June 2016— Updated outfall GIS database

Fiscal Year 16- 17:

August 2016— Draft Tech Memo 3— Source Identification for Second 25% of Significant Non- Stormwater

Discharge

September 2016— Final Tech Memo 3— Source Identification for Second 25% of Significant Non-

Stormwater Discharge

September 2016— Draft Semi-Annual Report

October 2016— Final Semi- Annual Report

March 2017— Draft Tech Memo 4— Water Quality Analysis

March 2017— Draft Semi- Annual Report

April 2017— Final Tech Memo 4— Water Quality Analysis

April 2017— Final Semi- Annual Report

May 2017— Letter to Regional Board to Revise CIMP

May 2017— Draft Annual Report

May 2017— Draft Revised EWMP

June 2017— Final Annual Report

June 2017— Draft Revised CIMP



SCOPE OF WORK FOR UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER EWMP GROUP COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM 11

June 2017— Final Revised CIMP

June 2017— Updated outfall GIS database

June 2017— Final Revised EWMP

Fiscal Year 17- 18:

August 2017— Draft Tech Memo 5— Source Identification for Last 50% of Significant Non-Stormwater

Discharge

September 2017— Final Tech Memo 5— Source Identification for Last 50% of Significant Non-Stormwater

Discharge

September 2017— Draft Semi-Annual Report

October 2017— Final Semi- Annual Report

March 2018— Draft Tech Memo 6— Water Quality Analysis

March 2018— Draft Semi-Annual Report

April 2018— Final Tech Memo 6— Water Quality Analysis

April 2018— Final Semi- Annual Report

May 2018— Letter to Regional Board to Revise CIMP

May 2018— Draft Annual Report

May 2018— Draft Revised EWMP

June 2018— Final Annual Report

June 2018— Draft Revised CIMP

June 2018— Final Revised CIMP

June 2018— Updated outfall GIS database

June 2018— Final Revised EWMP



1
12,1

W
W

E.      aj
A 14"

II

1 ireil

1 v

3 3

i I 111

f I O

L

1LLi

m'       
I

0

o: rv!

0
O

z°

li
noa

1.   0
a

E
fl 5On07.   

a

81 w w

m

II

1

kp
1 1

fit
UU a
a Z

E

Z N
E
E

N d

i

m   -

LL

v:
2 9$

s°

2 r  !, 12 n m
n Vmmtenn m 1

W-     ' m E i o o li w

S S V m f
3 m

n m m
a

sLLLL       
cLLLLLLLLm 33       '    W 2     '       '  m   $     '    mm  $$     

333i2$$$$$$$$g,, fig''   
A

mmm. mmmmmmmm. mmmm. m.—..... mmm mmmmmmmmm,, wmmmmmmmmmm. m'.

aMMMrm_„__  <   « ammoo  „ m aa a-;,; aa; m; a---- a- z a'
Y 1”    ---- c„ m"--  ;

m5°
m a°= o§ FM1=5<; a  ; em- aam°" MSP< a5MI 5'

5.    ' 9a ' 9A9   . aA ' n f a ' a ' a''  > q'''' Ann n

LiiC

j xh
ry       ` a° N u

c
5

A .
r

kW
W

3 m e° r g o _  
3 m a    -  

3 rc
n

pm
3 Y

1m
o i 3 Y d°.    Y;  Y

I 1122111 c E 1F'41; 1 E a s a1  °

1 114,15gg
rc    . t tEE o' o. l  ¢    w    .  a  ¢    m c33 1 rc..

w, ¢°    n% E d+
t    

zrw o aW"     m o   am az o muu> ez°tl  =  >; i     b

g A  ; W   °     i. g s8 m fG E    '
rcas=

5 -° 3 a    ? 3 3 4 E y_  a r v m 3
i°

r a

ry

a w: a„ rc'  y° t y inn° I m
S
i a`°  a`.

1
a.

a 4 o° 3t,         ry E t.       rvi W>    >
c

E m E E m E c m    E

E

I

0 8
c

o m°° a u
c£ 3°  ` m 7 m° i o E    "°° i 3 0 E E a rc o J rc c 4 d 5 h- d_5 1 d_- a a`°`  a` u u°

a  
vm

rc LLE nBEm rc."

LL  :  :   

rcmLL
rc"

LLE`  
a.

mLL
rc.

yLL`    

rc  E
a v' E E E g E a v ry E E` u n E m E

mm
u E m E a E

m
E a E

m
E m

i e    a' Ot me me-'° 9 Y      a         a' a a'       a U'  a a V'  a< m  (
7 a

a N
OgUU1111U W 0 4 11111 WFillilill i rill jili!  ll b. toN

d N m d
Y Y Y Y Y
A a m a

m

U. 2

mi
1 im

ry ry ry m
Ir m n.,3 S n 8



r'

o

i     /a
i

v 1iu
a

1,

s

11,
I„

d

LL 1, 1,

e

t    •  
o

il

it113-, lo
J

Z

i II
2 o

il

0.LL

a

0.

r

IQ

g     .... 

firli
jd    '   

E
I rEc

E o
i 01 in a`

oU
1

m- C$.1.._.. ._....... .. ...   ... ............. 5,.'... _..

mV....
m...

Y  '  m m e N`  +    NNoV  ' VNNVVeg
ll

Y
nC

om°  
C C C C;      

m mm            MMY` Cm5Cim
LLcVLL    “  LLLL    " 32

Ym     ,      ; ,      m

22  '”'     22$ 223333g$      i gg' ggr-V- gg':=
1

m

g'
mr mN o

n n m Nmm, m n,    , 7'

a°.

Y'

i.

m

a. C°.
m

DU>aC mA
E-

S',

e'

li
N^ I•   `

n$ m      n    

mc t

c    ; 
u c u ac u a ,    

a$
i it=> rLL >  . i'

i ii,i,  --.    ..  3 3 F F i LL
a `c tEt E   ( SEEien EEEi Ma 1. S. Ei   * S. ESiv. i £  r    >.    S. .. Sr a.   , 1' a

E a.
9 p'  O9 9°"

O r

N
o_      _  

n    __  __  _ N  -- o

N
o__ o p G

ti

x
a

a

T
aZ is

g d i g x a o E
u

ro A d w e y u

1 W v a W
o N       . .. 33. t

CCC

N
o

c

1 a o      • t y
UI z r

yyi
n 2i m c c

n n
3

m     a. O y W
a r0      ' O y. c.  5 n n

H rl/

im
y c u q

c^= s u o:  
a a { u m— n W u a W    , t

n
a t a

E

o$ 1G   -  WI'  I ii l̂ `i a la”  av $ rcCrcrc ' rc_ 
C

1-   
C'C

ciQua moo.   
qq

m U m^`
LL

Wg m A O s-011,4„, !  N
m

U y' S U m K  ¢   

5 5^¢  

j i a    ?  » 
n Y g

e c` 3a33 t E3 E° tea   - - A3 wo' ra„ 1-.   rra eo:    ina'? m2wa rn ^ , Q` a  . rca " rc ^€    
ua u w en    - 

O1

m a c E c E g E c E W
a'  

m    -      ' v-

uE
o f u

v8EGu« ag.
gENO   $ `  

v      °   8t222 81-12 y22   ^' E.°   ' LLE°   wt Q` i,.

i t
E

IIx
H 9° c. g° c° c jZ. E a C9 m v n c U NO m aj

n c9
E

h aaU ml aat7 oa Q ma U y M m n a Y,,   mo

I    =
8O: 8 u w O 18 a rn S' if ii. if. o ci Y m' S u e)  dr32 E.      a Iii a t a 71LL a y a` r'n D ir3 a` in D u in Y g   N:

a.

o N; n N
N m Y Y Y. Y IY Ih

k i   : . : . i

N- N N 0.
m

e . 

Y Y
S   . 

h b gym,      

O"'

I a`O



ri

Ii-
I

r
m

li
1...    

A m SS° "* 1

I

il
1j a a 1
0

1
1_

111
40?,
4

I A

a

1. 1
I

1Di

ILi
c

I a

0
I

coil 1''  1o 1

A l
0

i

Z
H

I
i

To To

gi

N

1

cLt

o§    °      8
a E

S Iq ll

il

Pt

Kw IIc 1 a

U 11 I°     

1
D

a

a
sl E

r7 W 1 Z in

d

1

E o
N a`

i    '1111

o

LL

m m m n n n r m e a° m m m m i"..o s m m........m.......r...r..  n n m m d....do_ H< m m m m.._...

a.......a.......e...
m......._._.

ImCL

a

55.  rnL     = ro5m__';  mnmmmn 7, N    _" 5aao_ 5'' m;; ; aaC w °

t    ' C4 5^ 555. ` C 5 o 5 F, M M atl i   ,F555 a°   5 3 Mn AC<C F,-',F5
m 5 b 55;

55Nei

L
1
i

N
IL IL

N
E E 1

c c c;    ; 

L Y 0 0 i 0 0 O O g g O
c c c c

g 2
2 2

14     =  15
22NILL"   2 M 22722 22I- 1- 1-  r I- I- I-  I- I-

C

i

I
1

5

m 1 o 2 m

o
W 01

2om

O!;:  M O O V
pp

0b ro,~ i~
W

2  , pY h N p m O N P, 1—, 2—,1

mJ i N! f i
0

E E g i'i f g i1212§. r 3 r r 3 r
LL LL

F
LL

g
LL

LL

g a LL m i
T•> T T T . T T T T Y T T T W j, T W T T A T j j i a

li y v m a v a a a y a a 9 a a 9 a o y om Ip
g N

1°

N<? H
N?

N°?      r r    ?    ?     ??° p N  ? g N
o?    

N  ??° b Ci
O 1

N N
I

I i

i d IMo
3 5 a

m
m   §   

g

w
a C w

ao 3°       c a m p
w o, q8 o m

r r r r m°
g       = cq cN       X59 c. S d

a a a a

N  ,._°_. b.!,._°_.°,.°_..=       - 

C
d`. C

r d     °
ce

d d
A > a t y N>  { p d 0  °. 

m I- ,m c ° 2'° °   ° 
m

o v m     ° e c y Ly

o.    
m m

2 cfO2Jg
n Ng°  2 

a a    `
maU aU

ate '
aR'  2 u12 pt gawlE w d

2 - 212 : 122"'   o i ,   o m y._ > U._   c.

E o c.
E

c

E o  . 
Ly

K ' ° rc y °

v>   :: d
9 Y3 

d    (

7 d >m a°'   >d m dC7 d d( 7 m a  °[ 7   ° 81 >       Yd.   3.=    33 3
N,  . S5.   

m d' 3 A°! aS5N
S  :

0S5-
2a 1g0-1Ng0-4N m 1aa a dE a^   II

Id 1. 30 °  N ` W>  JJdOwr

mSf °  KmS   =_ 4fAmSN cN  > fq = qQ
g0ac   "`  

K = :
I>   7 o w d d 3 o IL °  O w w ILL

m w LL w d
IL w d

IL m U BiO i Ti d  -

g   '
o

9       
m d

z E N d e
w

I mc' t c cZ c' OtNa m d d  UNa a y°
maN° ( 7 m a Q dyC7 ca yaC9 ma ^ y+   ins

N c N c N c N N N _      N c to
Z

IZ  - U a U U U a f N LL a` a` o H N 7 1i 41 J a N 7 LL N Y a N 7 ILL N a N 7 iLL N a N ir_ N d N 7 LL N
Y 2a1       

y
e r   . lr i.. _. r' x r

N

r.     I
I

I
1    ...

r r..     i_....   H
2 1- 1N 1M IN Im 4N

1
d I   ;

m  !

i 1N N IN N NN N 10 1 i,.
V m i>6 N

I 4444 4 X11 N N

Il



O 2 2 8 N   ( N m N O N m NT 4 4 4 2M
O Q m 0m O O O m 0O m N N O

0

O
O O b m M n H H H H
CO MN co O m!C

H H
O I ppg N H N H

m M m N H H
H

H H H H H H
M O O]  a
H H H H

I r

i N O

p
M H A H H< 

pp
N N N H

pp H M pp pp b MN o N
n m
io 

N

V H O ^   Q Q '   °
N.,'   N N N

H
0

co

41.7,.   .. i.   
He   (..7..   H

r.:'    
wH in

N O    H M M H

HRN
M O M

H HH w

St N W N

m m M
O O '   O '   O

n

in H

4 8 00 000 N H

11 J
w      . NM mH

6.--   cf.'   O O m nH H

HNyy     ..     d

JY a g L22 °
v .-     

m m m m m m m m 2 3 O O O O N O

uoddns N
ulw ypV e°9 M O O O 0 0 0 O

uepluuoel-    Q
m     ° N   ° co    N   ° N n m

PRA w 0N m

IsIluapg m a 0

iuelsissy rrn 0 0 m CO m o

C n 3spuoioS m m M   ; el M zz M in u)  a o

In
a

N•      Ja6euew <

U-

0

pal M
V.- QQ N 0N 0N 0N 0 0 N O

Al
E W

7.J mH H N w     «  H H N H
N

W LLLLLL11l

m

d gU o w
9 o

A
d 0

aft w
in

0a m Q n n U)   n 0)   O) ' n q) . 0 ow ow 1... 1...  n n 0 0 0 MM M 0 0 0 0

I
O A

Q Q

en
n m m O N O N N   . N N O N

O 2 2 2 n H H

N Q W M O N 0 N N N u5

H   . q:‘,7>   O y M
H H H-       

M
H

O
E W M y y     «     «     H y H w
E0

O)       

pppp q

M O { p

N

U) N g1 T.   N ,T Og , T O
m go   °

r
m

M N M N 0 O SS R O O O O
O)       

r9 x r O)  N

c

o 3J° ddnS 0

UIWPV H Z2 Q m N m N m N m N Q N Q N NV N Q N   .' r .°2 N
0O

O•      ISguepS m
N

m luelsissy »    M PI o

0N
C J lsgueps ro V N o

J y

Y
W 3sauapS o

U Jo[ u90S` zy

n N 0 0

O
O

0V3 m o m O
O

O
9 lsilepad5 a

m

f510 Joiues w    °

w•      uepug30-
V V N N 0 m

Plaj w
N

co V

K
m Jaew6u3 m m

a 3uelsIssV y n U V     - 7- :=1   - IV f:4 N N N N N m N m V g m
W

Jaew6u3
w    °   

Q O N N
N

co
N

O Q Fa cow m m 4 : 2  °

0'

a Je6eueyl o 0 m

n Ua(ojd w A' 0 0 m Q m Q m 0 m 0 m N m N NN NN N N N Q m 3

ledoiuud m
IOOIOJd H

44N —   — —   .- .-   .- —   .... ... N

A

7,    
d UY m N FL.

0 9

9

M N N OF m a^

4
W Q_o C

C C C

V a  ~      N
Y

o W W     ) j m
M..

9

o
W

o d N
a

2 p
c ta t =   t

mt°   t o
W       °

a  .. a
O S. 7.4....   0

r.   °    n c
2

ow
3—. 4 .  mow m

Bo c ae  ?, F t2'   &      m 1' c z 'o 1- o cES . ° N N
en 8 m o o o L.' S Z c r.c rc m2

ba

e E E.    E.    E.,B
a

o E o E o E o E o o 2 4 na

4 i'2 w .    
g E E i

y
9

g
i e m c

m W m g d   « d   « v Y d   ^ c
f

m
d y   '^       (

3
w

r ° m i y v i m iW
A
nw

5     , 
r

Ya
0 e a. O

m O3lnnw5pN  =o
n o.

a

E

g

d c E m 3 m 3
3 m 3

3 m 3
3 m t m t

LL

O
o

Q
o cccm m a v rn Z

a

a, R

3

5

N
c c c Q _ _ _ CC

tNu c2t 2 m g a a g a

a g n

a
a

s  
a

s
p a

a l
a

a l
a a n n> > A o c c `` o €

to.

O reJ r N a °   a E E E

a _     _ 

E

i
g E E ` ' E E E

i '> a LA € m M z
N G c

U ° 
i ° n i

U aU "   LL aLL
n

U
n

aU
n n n n

Wu
W O

o
aKN

p

Z
4

A V  _—.   
C) 

Q N m n 0 m
O—     —     N M

N r N M Q
r LL

N N N N•



E       , Vi..., N t 2 N  ? 228 O W U
M fryD

0M
A T

3
W

W

v 1,    r M M M m M NV — O • N O O

a M y H N:  oo N N ° M M g a 3 V e  ' 6 T
W N

N
N N N

H
N

4
N M N N n

F
p

O N O O N O O O O O O O O O O N O 0 0 0 0

F
C

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N aD m N
1 D

N

eD

pO

WO

N M

N

0 0 0 00 0 0 0 O 0

N N N N N N N N N NWH
N

3
t

N N b.10_
11

N N
W N

N

Y$ ]  
O 0 O20 o
M

o

IJOddns r
ulwpy y

o 0 0 0 0 2

7, uepluupal-  0

F,PRA
o 0 0 0 0

isguaps „
U4 SlSsy w

0 o 0 m o
N

A Isgueps m 0 0 7. T.   0

n

i°y Ja6eueyl ,
Hsel w

0 o M M o a
LL

m

A N N N N N
el

m A 2 2 M
W

m

p SLL N N N M N
OC

C 0 OOCO
00 a K N

O

L

so M
A m   " ° n Op

01 Mr T 0° iJ M ER VO < 00
V

r N m M M v m  N N°

N g4.-..y N N N  N N N N N W 4. 4..- 4. 4. 4. m .- NE I- J W M N N
NL N

0I

o
S

a

N M V N 0b 00 2 A
a

1 N E n0       °   ! 8 qa F  =
OI

M

C

M 7JOddns 0

ulwpy y
00 a v V 0 m M m ,I V N N tE N N N N W N N A N

NE

0f
0      ) squads y
m wejsmSV w

0 O N N 0 3
E
lam
C J Jsnuelps

y

0 0 N N 0 0

17 y

NN      ; sgaps o
O O O OE U JO! Ue3S y

o0
CV       0 0 0 o m

C.
w

7

Q
O 7sgel3eds
C S19 JOIueS` w

00 O 0 1 1 O n
2

W•      uepluupa

p aij ly N R so 0o N

Jaew6u 00
m 3 m     '

42V
0D v N O : 223 N O 0 0 0 N O

d IueJSlssy » 
v v

N 0i  . 0D
00 N 7.;   v 0p

CO0
C

W
m      .

001. 6u3 »     ° w 00 00 co ?  1
0Qj oo 0 . 4 1 2 O 002 .0000 m

m
o.

Parmid  : 4,'     00 00 0 v 1 N 0p N .`2F 2 O N N 2 v N v N N v 8 W.  a

Iedpluud m
pppp

pafoJd y

f g  «   00 ,4r-       N – – N   –     .- .- N r- r- r-   N N

I m
o w a J

F
El-  2 m a

O
O

xa m f
v

a     . 0

fQQ
o a i o '     o m 5 v o 3 o f E O1 G

L.',     
r W     ., E  '

gip     °       
a NW

E O w N N 2,

C N N 2 N 2 a y 2 N O
V C w C h

01

O N     ' C._  7 O y N Y
A ' p0]       O

o o m a c o
O

r U 7.     O Q o „   ° 3 E '
2.? ¢     67,

w mo- m mo z,  
A   .

2r c o w E ° in as ay
g ' o o ,

iiio r , mL m   . 10i.   d i as t i'   
E ° m i L1a

t%.o y t%.o y D Q 0 c 6 f U o K K %   r o   « o « 
E " m

qc.   
d

c
Al f w m m 2 y°°^ m m g g E o  

Z

m 9 m m   $ u°   a v o c Q O m E 7 O
P

Z' O « iO - drzmo` m2cot m > > S W
mYa "   '^ 

A9 `
AQa Arnr= t

O Ao
0 a m a0 c

1'
5' 11 . 1'

w E c . l0s W R d J J N A—       J O: N
OJ ] C C y 3   _       LL O AT.

8 3 0, 8 3 E E\' A 2 2, m S e . Z'   0 Q Q ce Q E Yi mad °   z c c d•
5 SE 333-. 5 Si- 

2. : 22, 10 aa:! aac aoF E m +°•   w wv> CJ m as
m   ° 5,0 2° a o 2 e' d °! - A m d a ° E A A c 2   ¢ m Q m m

F
0 i2 U u)     a s ca 0

2,
3 0. o.   O

N
07 w

Q
O

N

K 22 2222.

g
N N A 00 O N M v 10 N N M v N N n 00 N y

F fV N N N N °  M M M th t+ i   ' P v
O .

t7 V)     N N N N N 6 w O 00
Z



c o

O) H
o m n Nq) N

n

0 '   o

oP n

a

O     ° 
0

n

0
0 8,  n n     °   m

0,     0) N0) 0 0
N

W h
To M

O G N C  _  H n H  ..    '

W H y W H w N N W
N

N H H N

V V N on" M WN NH N C
N

O
I r

0

w

N
Nro ro ff4

N mM
n

N
m o - ) o

M      °
A

n

t

N
N°

oa

N ' 

o NO

Op
o o

01` 
HO 0ova h

O

o

ooO
v

n 0

N

CO ffO

b

0 H n N H
0 n

H H H N N NN NN N ff' ^

NH N N
H N H H

N N O
V OH NH N M

ei

oH

S Y

W

NO (
H<

y

CO CV CO N 0 N 0 m 0b     )OM 0 N M 0
0

n
CV

W W H

H
W

H H N N N H 4.9 49

O
H N H N ON N

N
r

Y
C r,-n

n V n V n O n Y n <   V r o 4 0 0 0 00 0 Q N 4 o

J x      -

uoddns m
U1wpy 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0

uep(u
pY

piaj
a1

w A P 8 _ 100 100 C ( 00 H o 400 _   0 M
CI)     ) 0 0

ispuapS 4 0 00
CO CO CO CO CO CO CO 0 0 0lUe4sissV A

A7ei3UapS8 ov a a    a  v '^   v  v '
r°   

a ro In 0 w 0

ui

N      a6eueyy s 1y0 o,     N N

se1 Q N N N N a N O 0 N O

yU.

E 8 8 ns m m 4{
J ry 0 N O H

a

H W H
n

qO H N W 0 N CV

0 N H

v

M

W N
Ul

0 m 0 0 p 0 M
U-  

m
0

N H 0
O m a.      ro M
N

0. X N H

O

IL

oN
n Oyy

NV
H

N
O

N

Nn
T 0 N n

0
N 0 0

N

N N O N
O

n

V
n
N

n O O

N n + N 
N

a W O L       , r

N
t0 . to N   < co V 0 V V N a n v n V O 0 0 CO 2 n 0 O N

J
rJw      --     

a — v -   e a :     
ww v N 0 o a CO aM 44

w
H 69 49   ` 0w H 4a N

E NN
N C 69H N H

E

d• o W
N • N C G

N N w   ^ 
0 Pa

M N M     ° O

01
N Y V

C)

pJoddn$ 
N 0

O uiwpi 4      --     
0 V 0 v 0 V 0 0 0 < 0 v   ( O v v N V N N <  N <       CV   < o M

c02 7snuaps

13 7uelsissv ,    CC M 0

y J ; quoin N CO

C
I

0

C_   

014ls
uapS

101Ua0$ »    A n n 2 O

E0O
OVO Z.71 a 0 0

00

2•      7sHepad$

IU 101UeS` w O N
CL

f

uepluyoal-    m
Li'

pleij  »    r 0 M M M   )% 1 M M M N N CO CO 4 o

L.

K i801.116u3 a S
y lue7sissy »    m M     )'+ 

0 .
n     . n n of of of N N

m
cv

m
N

Co•AO      . aaui5u 4    ° O

N N NC
3 » N N N N

N N to CO CO CO N - y CO

COCO
O Jafeueyy
O-       pet% N O N Y N NI N M N O N +) N 0 *   CO 4-   10 •-  N N N N N N N N co N O
a

ledp)uud
7oafad  »    r       - - -     - - -     - - -     .- .-       m c., ,       N

m

b N N N

w   ^     
d wJ,°_

W       ' 0 m m m m m
m     -    

c O 15 gG0 0   n tO   -   ~ 0 U in f',   0 M E 0. N O
G

N

M M ,   M
0     ?      

C

d 3 3 >   3 3 m 3 3 3 d P N     ° e o
0 w>   E aw   . E   =

w>   
C.S.   Cw'   a m     >     0 9 m m

w m-. t t   .-. t tp,-, t r   ,.. .t t°   r m
w

a>2wm
p)      .

r. N a au« a a. N. N a a.s.. N a v av a W K
O Ol> qE

C  .
m,   C» 0 n 0 W M K ^ 0 w N 0 7 z w N 0 0 z w z .o       =     C w y 0

r uJ m
om ZN Z °   zY Z' ° m Z'!_ IoM Z o Z' o e.       m2     ° e ° m

5  - 0-   $ E N? E   « E m E   « E m E   « E o 0=     =    c co m N'^
2 c d3 Ei E

3 g w E23 E `
w E23 E m m   E2 ED     -       y c a5m m e

m ' 2 V, , 13 m H « y `v m ''^ « « ` 3 c `^ ^     '- f;  
t

t   t a 1 r y m ° e

3 U) v w =    3 > m .>   a i m '>   3 m '> ` i m u   « is i t r .   m w

0 c

W W m w o w m v
w

E > m - 
w

E m ' m w w in v) m m u ,. «. « 3 m
c t 3 '   • « ! a « o    y   ` o

w

w m
t

m3 3
w E u w m   "   i g°

w o` i 3 3 c m 3 3 m 3 3 m 3 m >' 3 m + c m c w O c v c° < c c °° ur o.     wa c
m

e 9 5 3 m       -`

m c N`
y  C p; 

r' c kit,'  nm ` m Ti  i`a
c `

n 
c

ul c el c c c   n a       .°.    =
c0 a J Q a D E y m° E m°   E m° E m°   E m° N E m°   E y E y E y E

N E 1 i n f 9 e;x D c a o vl 131.-'33 a In a` o umi a` in a` o In o`   in a` — In a o vl o. o v10i o v.       w O

F=    f
S U U U U LL 0.     U U

6

U

m   '

w ZO)o° 'o5

Y

LL

V O N

F
m

d
N C;.-1 71:  N 10

r

N
r r

N



r
2

b m 2 N O r o O 0 N
7 m N Cl

V     °   
0 b

W
1

t Ni V V V V M CO Cl m V O N et N CO r C., N CO CO N N Q

co.

H
M 0

OD

el

H p H N WH N N H N H H bH W 02 N y N U H H

co co oi.

N

H

N.
1
C

12

W

O O 0 ONO O N O O O O N 0 O O O

m
N

N

N
N

N O 0000000000 O m
H H H CO H o CO N H H N N H N H N. H

N
CO H H H H H H H H H   «  H

m m A
h

N

N N

f

10
Y

W

M

N H
0
ei

N

Yg=  
O O VO M O N

lJoddnS
ulwpy a 0 0 00 0 m

7 uepiu4oal F o
0

PRA 7.;
0 0 0 0

A

lslluepg $
o o e 0 o wWelslssy

n A lsauapS$ o o N N 0 a

o
01 JOIfSej  '- O 0 Cl M 0 V
LL_  _

d 0 0 0 o m

I v m
N N N N N

en

W

N      «       
Nw

N 0 0 noi
0 0 0

oo

E e

v
8e,

c a x N

as w

O

0
O 0 N

a
N 1 0 N N N

a°   n ° n H
V N o N N m M m

Cl m d m

N
N

N V Ul V M co,  m V V O N m f V CO V N N m
J

H J
n w H    ; yw H N

o as N
m M

N H« i c M V sr N v WM' N m U o
N   « H N   «     '      A

N      «    CO N N NH H N

x

g
m

Q O
IO

0 O O N O N m m O m A 51
O < 

N Q N N
W O O N

O &
I .-

r

N 0 N O ' V m MCL 12 II

7JOddns 0

O UIWpV  «    
m V V O m m m m m V N N N N N N N N V N N N N "      N

CO2 ISIJU0105` A 0 0 Cl N 0 V

d welsissy M

L.      7spuepg $ o o Cl N o
or

x

r IspuapS O
V,C V JOIU9OS`   

0 0 0 0 w

E
0O• av3 0 0 0 o m

00

2•      ls!IepadS a,
SIJ̀ Joiueg„    °      °

1D o o m V V o M
0.

Uepuoal
VW

aj w N 0 1! 

O V e O 0

m

K JOOul6u
A

r          '–     

n
m luelslssy «    

ro N     N V- V
N      ° 

I° 

U V V
ClV.     

v   ° " 
o

O
a

C0mO Jeeu16u3 V
co'    IN        N

m I` 1 w m V V
m

CO V O U, M V LO N 0 O
c

m v en

0y
a6eue

ollC loalo9d  «    
N co    ‘, 1-` ,.0 C ,

o v V N b N
N

tO 12 PI V N N n N N N - •- N N V , N p  <  mV
O.M

ledpluud 0,
100(0m  «    

V V V •
Cl V – co co

0,2 N .- •- -     V   •- . N •- .— .— '. N V N N

6- mn z
a

z r   ¢ :   

E,

c

a O

9   `
o a H d a

m a p c
r. Q

zJ Y 3 y
A W    a a

S       . 75 re       

9

o
l,     

N

3
E

v5eN
N' o C d c

m
a N K N

to I
E W

W C      $  7 j m  "    L
O

E a      + 

o•
c

r     ?   c
N

o N
a mms

d  °
v     °       ' O t a m 0. a

C
e

S 0)  c:     C' 2 7 2
L

U to «   

HN '  
5,P Q g

E

v    °  °-  3=     cg     '
O

a  °   
o0 U D

O ¢
d

n E o ? E
a

m E
7,

a m m a    % c
r

1 c rW c      ' S I,'   i m
2 U

Lf.   M@

E= 1 ° .

s

3 oo o  " ooz
UO m

C  aa am y g  .   « o

2
iva _   C U

i m 3a t ct,'= c%.<5 m c ° ca f 6a s O E m > >       O: 6

g D do  - I T w3 w2T. f www c 0Oe L Z . 9 N ¢ u o cQ c

m y70v QQ
O

N o o
1

n ZO° o8 Oro t er r om
r 2 i i ,f,C u   .,,   3a A w m y

w c " v f m? Qa' g E  $
E=  

u _ '"  ^ 2 y pc O'  Ny       €   f, N ) 2c

7e
E >     > Ct – s ¢ • a aA      = € y

oa0= 
3

n    § c-       
L   $ 3 SQg      !   YE mo a-y

a

A mm9d° fcornao5jddg' d a
2-° m d d c . E

E E c m3uw " g ¢ ' m ca E mwm

H
KU) 0 O. r.U0 i)     OU)     as oDO f H W a a V 0 u wen ce E m o_ o22 E

U N 4 0.

V h

N N N

co.     

IN  N c°,1 -,  M

N

M

M
V

V

N
N N N   .

M

O

V N IO r

N N m
t0

N

mu



O NON W O W N MOONM N M O O N O W N W N W N N 11 ,T4 N W COrO M N H N Q M N Qr

0
Or N

NW O QN W N Q V W N N W N W N MOM .    W CO
N'      M

o O M N N
H H H N H N W N W H H

H M H W 9 H

Y V u) N r o 1

Z'    W.

Yq
I

N H H

iO M

H

W O* W

w
W O

H
W W W 0 O O O O O O O O O O O Q Q n

M
W

yy

O W
H H

M

a n r
O

1N N n n
H

N N n N   ? r_ 
0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Q
N

n H a"

O.      ! D W     '
O H CO" H H

N
H

WH H N N N N N N
44

W N H H H     ...;;
71

H

AI o a O o
v

N EM   °     °     
Nr°

0 .w H v H

NN w w N N
H wH

H _   
NH H

w

Q

n '25 r

C M N W r
M N W N M N W lg ..   N N o o o o 0

2
u

7J° ddnS N
wwpy  „ 1

coto°,     
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ueIOryyoel-    w WY
plaij a A N S '- @ "   S'- 2N 2.   S N 8 .   2 1°D

O

siluai3S p m 0

lue1SISSy „    
CO

N
W CO CO CO W CO W 0 0 0

CT A ISVUeos!    V Q M .- Y) N N' N N M ) N N M M M M O

o
N Ja6euen

lsel N N M M M
N N O O O

U.   _ 

pp ppW m      .-
QW m O N O O)   O

OW)  
N V A co

o co

n cE m 6.   Q w Q w N     ` H° w w w: N NJ

l M w w H H H H w
CO

W

N N N O M N O W M. O.   0 W 0 W O)     NW NW r 0 0 W A r W or.
CD H W n m a O)   Q N N Q N N O N ON W O Q  '    r

LL N O S r Q N V r uD N V r W ) O Q M 7141 Q N W O W O W W O W N f0

0 1,--- iK M N 71,- 4   %     NH N Q NH r w   - a 07.   O pp M pp Q
H

r m NJ W
or H H H o

ff
H co H

H Z
H

H
H N H N H H

o..-    H H H H
co

O

N0233 MEO 0 aN
W

0- N- 2 o °' m a. N 2 .   

2o .  
Mw NN NNNN

N  .    i^ NJ r_1 S N

E
IT 1, Oddns Q coO)       

ulwpy       * co
W Q W Q W Q W Q W N W Q W Q NN NCO W Q WO.       N3 CO N Q

v
o.     

lsyual0SC

CO luempsy g
M

LNi °

i
O

lspuerOS g v_   O

vd
12   -' lspuarQs o
N   =  JOJUe3S 19

r°'.       r r   °

N
U

OVO  &    °     0

CU H

c

0 lsueloads m m co co
O SIO Jolues w    °     M

o

Q uemitioel g N O

plalj w N

1N',   
tQ0 M tQ0 M M N N W W n a

o.

IBBU16U3 N N
lUelelSSy A co

M r ° r M r
N

r M r
1$ 

r 2: 2 N N     . W
N O N

Q
Y W

W
m

Jeeul6u  $3 h A Q^     N Wtp, W N W2 W N W 2o N W   ; E' sr   ,` o-  tow W W co N a o

NCJ0 oBeueyyto

1 efold P
t.::N CO N N N M N r N CO N N N M Q CO N W N NN NV'   N N N m W  -    2 .

CWN ledIOlupd

O
7OefoJd  » N N W Qa

O.

SCUan3 A o

1

E
d

N_       N y
w a -     y

m

a  .,

N H T h W O
E W W co

1° Z

O

a N
E ' N n

iii w z
N

z
E

a v u
W D'

e w e.w w m e  ° m
c 11, ., C t2 ,-7, t C a .-. t r r t

w
a

c c a  °
n

a       %:., a a;. a al;; a a   a N O c     ¢ a.- 2 o m
C m E. 

in K K W , n C ,^ i C W'^ K ^ S W
C W K . E W s O

N J O'

E W
m o

m ,,   _ ° m t H r° m Z c °   Z E Z o C° ,°^-
O  °  

15f.
m•.

o Ca - « E W E   « E W E .. « Ee E E o c=     =      u .. p
1:

f   " A°   E E °   E E °   E E
E

E
E E E E E E a W W a  ?   E   ° a

S l (2t m Y ~   r c
vi «. v). m m r. ii .

N. 
m   .

N. 

c
c

r
6-   ,^ o v) S     .. L `O v 2    ° « O:

1 N v " > E 3 E I
3 E m > w 3 w m E >     w 10 m E A E 11

N 7-,'O 9-=      
5 h '

a a d ' a E m E   ° w E w m w w in in

w °   w Y c       . 1 3 v_    m f w'
c c c r a w O

L

3     ' m   °' ° c 14;     3     . w > i   C    1 3 L

C .   
O' W V W          b

y 2`     Z' J w       = 
C ' 

C O Laoa  ' s  .  A d

a 3 m

a
d

m 3 W a
d LL r o . Woo

w w

1 °
W

t
r

I.E u W  = 3 =   __°  ? _°   _°  ' c c c c
W ° p W p

c a m m m
W iA 0 aiT m 4` m- ` n I` m - ` m 0 = m= ` n == min = mwilTAi=- 

A y - _     € W Nmvi qp

i J.,
O_,q 9 a E v E v a E a E a a E v E v a P E v e E a a E

ya
a E v e E E E , ot  W  '°    w

G c 4) a co N a N a E N a N a O N a )N a cO In a m N a m N a` cO N a` cO N a O N N g c v a g E m o O`
m S °- m U 0 0 0 LL LL U U U       ° a - 51- OOW
r__i4 z

w N
U N M

r

Q n CO r w m
N N N Mr

I LL



C

C

N O
N

N N i
N m O V N 8 8 8 O

W
ON N N

N M 0 W m HN   •    tD a 0 O N '     N O th n M V CO V N Nvs

W

m ro   "   N h

CO

0 o n
y w w H

H H

co w w w w
N

N q w w w w w w M H w

I N

i
COO 0 0 0 0 0 O 000 0

AO w
N

w H w H H NOH H w N N W H o y w w w w w N w H H  -

w N
i w M

Bz
J

WJ

N U. 02
CO

N Ill

o

CO

N

O

Y m=    
0 o N CO

0 N

IJOddns
wwpy I 0 0 0 0 0 0

Y- uepUyOel
Plaid w

0 0 0 0 0 0

Ispualos A 0 0     ^' 0
0

luelslssy , 0 Nes

m A Ispuaps S o o N N 0 oes

p

NJaBeueyl $  
oO o t. l

Y Msel  . 7,   
1O

N

U.

st N 0
N

0

T
E m n3.
a w

N

W
N

m OD f` N N CO O CO n 0 0 V N c- •- Of O O` N O N h OO CO
OD 00 V

CLL
A
O

O
N M M N to'    a s

0 ro M M ' H W
O b

A ` 

M V O O V N N N
13 O

J W
N r N N co to co O7 A H w a N a N e N co- a co n

HN tv H H H
N MW N O H H CO w w w N

N

o
a

Ca
o G ,      NI NI' 

CO
Op m  . V M N a N V O O N N M Si N F Oi

J F J V

E
E IJOddns
O 8

rD
a

0
0 0 tO 0 0 a N N H N N N N N V N N N H nOOwpy

0.    

c Ispuaps
o

C Iuelslssy r, 
0 N N O A

O

2•      
Ispaps 8 O O N N O r

9

E•   J_ Isguaps p
JOIUaOS` . n

0 O O 0 A

CN

N
U

OVO
w

O O O O O

C

aIspepeds 0

O 89) J0IUOS w
N o o a s o

U

C.O UepUgoal
plaid N N a m e o o w

CI

a

Wluelsssy w a - a a ar4 1g10 oo — am N - - -   o u> ,n Oa0O0 '- oao a

m
Jaew6u3 z

Oo. 
o

r 0 a N a a N 0 co    N a 4O co ° a occ

0

a J4Oelod  .-    N 0 a a 01- P+  N N ''
p - 

E a N N y a N N   - a a a N

casU)      ledpluud a
y w

O.       I'J0IOJd w

V .- N a V ( O7 co N N     ;   c-   1- ! N ,- 1- !  N 3 Nf t7

0.  _

sluan3 R o

JOJegwnry P      •"    a a

co

v.
C I,
O p>      Qt J

QzQsa°  m     >      2

z

n a0

KK
11"     V Q N N c

O a   p       ...       " 
N U'

O O OT p O p
N 0       >   K N E

v

Q N V.,  G N a N     . 8 N 0 C N
C

N

i a m
W       ?

le 7
V p     . 8 ,: i@

m % a«    e a
4

n c o
2 U w 0 o N o E E t

Q O

N
It o m e     >   tcc T E

wup '^

c w t
6-

O ` per"=      z3tvaa a $ g
o

Ef c `waa

m w~
rece

ca o Em<  
a

no 2U p̀ m A
o N   ." mm ' c3 w geY08

38 E «. f? O C c g e ` udi y w
i

p p "     a u c o Q = m y s s
D O w u s d O w  , v   ' 

w
a

c a m " c :: w v c c Q -°-: 1   .
J J N O J K N a c O C

d u 3 aq W. c_
WQ € 

W 2zz.; 4QQ .  EE « E m. na nQ o f WTI
oY o`.m o a` S S..59 a

2
9 e e E ` o E aEi E c 2 y    5 ¢ .' n

5 d..2.: : :
F UOn aauJOO VFinaaa U (

0

4E0 '   
smma .

V N  '

C'21:
1 N N

N

O01
V     ; N N O7 a 0 r m r r N

N N t7 NJ l7 OM t6
V

V V
N N u)   Yi N N   Od N 2°.-7 N b N fO



Upper San Gabriel 1 River EWMP Group

r

t,'   "
Oo Y e

BALDWIN
P A R K itA

X00,'

June 2014

Rev. May 2015

LOS ANGELES REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

Revised Coordinated Integrated

Monitoring Program  (CIMP)

Prepared for:

Upper San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed Management Program Group

County of Los Angeles, Los Angeles County Flood Control District, Cities of Baldwin
Park, Covina, Glendora, Industry, La Puente, and South El Monte)

Exhibit D,  75 Pages



REVISED COORDINATED INTEGRATED

MONITORING PROGRAM (CIMP)

June 2014

Rev. May 2015

Prepared For:

Upper San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed Management Program Group

County of Los Angeles
Los Angeles County Flood Control District
City of Baldwin Park
City of Covina
City of Glendora
City of Industry
City of La Puente
City of South El Monte

Prepared By:

Z))  MWH

300 N. Lake Avenue, Suite 400

Pasadena, CA 91101

In Conjunction with Larry Walker Associates, Paradigm Environmental, and Tetra Tech



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Executive Summary

Executive Summary

The Upper San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed Management Program Group ( EWMP

Group) is comprised of the County of Los Angeles, Los Angeles County Flood Control District
LACFCD), and the Cities of Baldwin Park, Covina, Glendora, Industry, and La Puente ( Group

Members). Group Members started meeting in early 2013 to establish the EWMP Group and
collaboratively develop a Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program ( CIMP) and an Enhanced
Watershed Management Program ( EWMP) for the Upper San Gabriel River Watershed. The

EWMP Group formalized their collaboration and commitment to completing the program
development in a Memorandum of Understanding on October 24, 2013.

The EWMP Group submitted the Draft CIMP in June 2014, and revised the CIMP in May 2015
to address comments from the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Regional
Board), dated February 6, 2015. Subsequently, the City of South El Monte indicated in a letter to
the Regional Board, dated February 26, 2015 of its intention to join the CIMP. As a result, the
EWMP Group agreed to include South El Monte in the Revised CIMP.

This document presents the CIMP, which is the EWMP Group' s approach to an effective and
well-thought-out monitoring program. Existing water quality data in the San Gabriel River
Watershed Management Area is sparse, and a goal of the CIMP is to provide a more complete

picture of the receiving water conditions in the EWMP area. The geology of the San Gabriel
River Valley provides rapid infiltration of water, and the EWMP area is likely hydraulically
disconnected from the downstream water bodies during the dry weather. Another goal of the
CIMP is to determine when and where the discontinuity occurs. Additionally, the EWMP Group
has also been working closely with other watershed management groups and reached out to
individual cities to ensure our monitoring programs are truly coordinated and integrated across
the watershed. The collaborating groups and individual cities are all each contributing data
and/or cost sharing with all groups in the watershed, avoiding duplicative monitoring efforts. As
a result of the unprecedented collaboration among the groups, our CIMPs together provide a
comprehensive and consistent long- term monitoring plan for the watershed.

The CIMP fulfills the Monitoring and Reporting Program ( MRP) requirements of the National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System

MS4) Permit Order No. R4-2012- 0175 ( Permit). The Permit was adopted by the Regional Board
November 8,  2012,  and became effective December 28,  2012.  The EWMP,  containing
customized strategies, control measures, and best management practices ( BMPs) for the EWMP

Group, is currently under development and will be presented in a separate document according to
the Permit schedule.

RECEIVING WATER MONITORING

Receiving water monitoring is designed to assess whether water quality objectives ( WQOs) are
being met in water bodies and if beneficial uses are being supported. The EWMP Group
proposes two types of receiving water monitoring:

Long-Term Assessment — Long-Term Assessment ( LTA) monitoring is intended to
determine if receiving water limitations ( RWL) are achieved, assess trends in pollutant

Page ES- 1



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Executive Summary

concentrations over time, and to determine whether designated uses are supported. LTA
sites include:

o Existing San Gabriel River Mass Emission Station( S 14)
o Existing Coyote Creek Mass Emission Station ( S 13)

Total Maximum Daily Load ( TMDL) — TMDL monitoring is conducted to evaluate
attainment of or progress in attaining the waste load allocations ( WLAs). New TMDL

monitoring stations will be installed at the following locations:

o San Jose Creek Reach 1 at the Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts (LACSD)
R10 site upstream from the San Jose Creek Water Reclamation Plant ( WRP)

discharge.

o Walnut Creek near the confluence with San Gabriel River

o San Gabriel River Reach 4 at Ramona Boulevard

TMDL monitoring also will be performed in the following location:

o Puddingstone Reservoir

In addition, the EWMP Group will be coordinating on the receiving water monitoring with other
watershed management program groups and the LACSD to share monitoring data in the San
Gabriel River Watershed Management Area. The EWMP Group may use the data in evaluating
its progress in meeting the goals and requirements of the Permit.

STORMWATER OUTFALL MONITORING

Stormwater outfall monitoring is intended for determining if a Group Member' s MS4 system is
causing or contributing to water quality issues observed in the receiving water. The EWMP
Group proposes six stormwater outfall monitoring sites, one per Group Member. The sites were
selected to be representative of the land uses within each Group Member' s jurisdiction.
Parameters to be monitored during the three events at each stormwater outfall monitoring site are
based on the monitoring requirements of the water body to which they discharge, as well as
downstream water bodies, where applicable. Monitoring at these outfalls will be used to assess
compliance with water quality based effluent limitations  ( WQBELs),  TMDL WLAs,  and

whether the MS4 may be causing or contributing to observed exceedances of RWLs.

NON-STORMWATER OUTFALL SCREENING AND MONITORING

The non-stormwater outfall screening and monitoring program is focused on dry weather
discharges from major outfalls to receiving waters. The program serves to provide an assessment
on whether non-stormwater discharges are potentially impacting the receiving water and whether
significant non- stormwater discharges are allowable. Three screening events will be conducted
within the EWMP area beginning in summer 2014. Visual observations gathered from the
screening events,  such as size,  estimated flow,  flow characteristics,  and receiving water
conditions, will be used to determine and prioritize significant non- stormwater discharges. In the

order of prioritization, sources will be investigated, and monitoring sites will be determined.
Monitored parameters will depend upon the receiving water on which the non- stormwater outfall
site is located.

Page ES- 2



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Executive Summary

NEW DEVELOPMENT/RE- DEVELOPMENT EFFECTIVENESS TRACKING

Group Members have developed mechanisms for tracking information related to new and
redevelopment projects that are subject to post- construction BMP requirements in Part VI.D.7 of

the Permit. The data will be used to assess the effectiveness of the low- impact development

LID) requirements for land development and to fulfill reporting requirements. Although the data
requirements are clear, the procedures for reviewing projects, tracking data, and reporting are
different for each jurisdiction and may even be different across departments within the same
jurisdiction. As such, this CIMP provides general details on the requirements and approaches

related to the new and redevelopment tracking requirements. Each Group Member may modify
the general requirements as appropriate to reflect their own jurisdictional specific practices.

REGIONAL STUDIES

Only one regional study is identified in the MRP:  Southern California Stormwater Monitoring
Coalition ( SMC). The MRP states that each Permittee shall be responsible for supporting the
monitoring described at the sites within the watershed( s) that overlap with the Permittee' s
jurisdictional area.  The LACFCD will continue its participation in the SMC Regional

Bioassessment Monitoring Program on behalf of the Group Members.

ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT

The monitoring specified in the CIMP is, in part, dynamic. An adaptive management process
will be utilized on an annual basis to evaluate this CIMP and update the monitoring requirements
as necessary. Monitoring data from the CIMP will tie into the EWMP by providing feedback on
water quality changes resulting from control measures implemented by the Group Members.

Page ES-3



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Table of Contents

Table of Contents

Executive Summary 1

Receiving Water Monitoring 1

Stormwater Outfall Monitoring 2

Non-Stormwater Outfall Screening and Monitoring 2

New Development/Re- Development Effectiveness Tracking 3

Regional Studies 3

Adaptive Management 3

1 Introduction 1

1. 1 Upper San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed Management Plan Area 1

1. 2 Applicable TMDL and 303( d) Listings 4

1. 3 Water Quality Priorities 6

2 Receiving Water Monitoring Program 14

2. 1 Receiving Water Monitoring Objectives 14

2. 2 Description of Receiving Water Monitoring 14

2. 3 Receiving Water Monitoting Sites 15

2.4 Monitored Parameters and Frequency of Monitoring 19

2. 5 Receiving Water Monitoring Site Summary 24

2.6 Receiving Water Monitoring Summary 25

3 MS4 Outfall Database 26

3. 1 Program Objectives 26

3. 2 Available Information 27

3. 3 Pending Information 27

4 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring 29

4. 1 Program Objectives 29

4.2 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Sites 29

4. 3 Parameters and Frequency for Stormwater Outfall Monitoring 36

4.4 Stormwater Outfall monitoring Summary 38

5 Non-Stormwater Outfall Program 39

5. 1 Non-Stormwater Outfall Screening and Monitoring Program 40

5. 2 Identification of Outfalls with Significant Non-Stormwater Discharges 42

5. 3 Inventory of MS4 Outfalls with Non- Stormwater Discharges 44

5. 4 Prioritized SOurces Identification 45

5. 5 Significant Non-Stormwater Discharge Source Identification 45

5. 6 Non- Stormwater Discharge Monitoring 46

5. 7 Non-Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Summary 49

6 New Development/Re- Development Effectiveness Tracking 51

7 Regional Studies 53

8 Non-Direct Measurements 54

9 Monitoring Procedures 55

9. 1 Monitoring Procedures 55

9.2 Adaptive Monitoring Triggers 56

9. 3 Aquatic Toxicity Testing 57

10 Adaptive Management 59

10. 1 Integrated Monitoring and Assessment Program 59

Page i



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Table of Contents

10.2 CIMP Revision process 59

11 Data Management and Reporting 61

11. 1 Documents and Records 61

11. 2 Monitoring Reports 61

11. 3 Data Management 62

12 Schedule for CIMP Implementation 63

13 References 65

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

A Los Angeles County Flood Control District Service Area Map
B Monitoring Location Fact Sheets
C Analytical and Monitoring Procedures
D Water Quality Objectives
E Stormwater Outfall Selection

F Stormwater Outfall Sites( Including Potential Alternates)
G CIMP Participation by City of South El Monte

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1- 1 Water Bodies and Geographic Boundary of the USGR EWMP Group 3

Figure 2- 1 Overview of Receiving Water Monitoring Sites 16

Figure 4- 1 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Sites 32

Figure 5- 1 Non-Stormwater Outfall Program Flow Diagram 42

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1- 1 List of Group Members with land use summaries within jurisdictional boundaries 4

Table 1- 2 List of Group Members with land use summaries within MS4 service area 4

Table 1- 3 TMDLs Applicable to the EWMP Area 5

Table 1- 4 Category 2 Water Body-Pollutants 6

Table 1- 5 Details for Water Body-Pollutant Combination Subcategories 7

Table 1- 6 Summary of San Gabriel River Watershed Water Body-Pollutant Categories 9

Table 2- 1 Annual Frequency of Receiving Water Monitoring during Wet and Dry Weather
Conditions 21

Table 2-2 Summary of Puddingstone Reservoir TMDLs Monitoring 23

Table 2- 3 Summary of Receiving Water Monitoring 24

Table 2-4 Summary of Other Receiving Water Monitoring in San Gabriel River Watershed
Management Area 24

Table 2- 5 Summary of Receiving Water Monitoring Program Objectives 25

Table 3- 1 MS4 Database Elements to Be Developed 28

Table 4- 1 Summary of Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Sites in the EWMP Group Area 30

Table 4-2 Relative Land Use Area within Drain Area to Stormwater Outfall Sites 31

Table 4- 3 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— City of Baldwin Park 33

Table 4- 4 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— Covina 33

Table 4- 5 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— Glendora 34

Page ii



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Table of Contents

Table 4- 6 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— Industry 34

Table 4- 7 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— La Puente 35

Table 4- 8 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— County of Los Angeles 35

Table 4- 9 Parameters and Frequency for Stormwater Outfall Monitoring 37

Table 4- 10 Summary of Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Program Objectives 38

Table 5- 1 Non- Stormwater Outfall Screening and Monitoring Program Summary 41

Table 5- 2 Approach for Establishing a Non-Stormwater Outfall Screening Process 44

Table 5- 3 Summary of Endpoints for Source Identification 46

Table 5- 4 Parameters and Frequency for Non-Stormwater Outfall Monitoring 48

Table 5- 5 Summary of Non-Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Program Objectives 50

Table 6- 1 Required Data to Track for New and Redevelopment Projects per Part X.A of the

MRP 51

Table 6- 2 Required Data to Track for New and Redevelopment Projects per

Part VI.D.7.d. iv.( 1)( a)       52

Table 12- 1 Receiving Water and Outfall Phasing 64

Page iii



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Table of Contents

LIST OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Ag/Nur Agricultural and nursery
Bioassessment Program Regionally Consistent and Integrated Freshwater Stream

Bioassessment Monitoring Program
BMP Best Management Practice

BPA Basin Plan Amendment

C. dubia Ceriodaphnia dubia

CERCLA Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act

CIMP Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program
Com/Ind Commercial and industrial

County County of Los Angeles
DDT Dichloro-diphenyl- trichloroethane

DO Dissolved Oxygen

EC Electrical Conductivity
E. coli Escherichia coli

ESGV East San Gabriel Valley
EWMP Enhanced Watershed Management Program

EWMP Group Upper San Gabriel River EWMP Group
GIS Geographic Information System

Group Members County of Los Angeles, LACFCD, and Cities of Baldwin Park, Covina,
Glendora, Industry, and La Puente

Hg Mercury
HUC Hydrologic Unit Code

IC/ID Illicit Connection/ Illicit Discharge

LACDPW Los Angeles County Department of Public Works
LACFCD Los Angeles County Flood Control District
LACSD Los Angeles County Sanitation District
LID Low Impact Development

LSGR Lower San Gabriel River

LTA Long Term Assessment
MAL Municipal Action Level

MCM Minimum Control Measure

MRP Monitoring and Reporting Program
MS4 Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System

NAL Non-Stormwater Action Level

NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

PAH Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbon

PCB Polychlorinated Biphenyl

QAPP Quality Assurance Project Plan( p. 2- 1)
Permit NPDES MS4 Permit Order No. R4-2010- 0175

Regional Board Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board
Res Residential

RWL Receiving Water Limitation
S13 Coyote Creek Mass Emission Station

S14 San Gabriel River Mass Emission Station

Page iv



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Table of Contents

SGR San Gabriel River

SJC San Jose Creek

SMC Stormwater Monitoring Coalition
SQO Sediment Quality Objectives
SUSMP Standard Urban Stormwater Mitigation Program

TDS Total Dissolved Solids

TIE Toxicity Identification Evaluation
TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load
TSS Total Suspended Solids

USGR Upper San Gabriel River

USEPA United States Environmental Protection Agency
WBPC Water Body-Pollutant Combination
WLA Waste Load Allocation

WMP Watershed Management Program

WQBEL Water Quality Based Effluent Limitation
WQO Water Quality Objective
WRP Water Reclamation Plant

Page v



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 1

1 Introduction

The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm

Sewer System ( MS4) Permit No. R4- 2012- 0175 ( Permit) was adopted November 8, 2012 by the
Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Regional Board) and became effective
December 28, 2012. The purpose of the Permit is to ensure the MS4s in Los Angeles County are
not causing or contributing to exceedances of water quality objectives set to protect the
beneficial uses in the receiving waters. Included as Attachment E to the Permit are requirements
for a Monitoring and Reporting Program ( MRP). The stated primary objectives for the MRP,
listed in Part II.A. 1 of the MRP, are as follows:

1.  Assess the chemical, physical, and biological impacts of discharges from the MS4 on

receiving waters.

2.  Assess compliance with receiving water limitations ( RWLs) and water quality-based
effluent limitations ( WQBELs) established to implement Total Maximum Daily Load
TMDL) wet weather and dry weather waste load allocations( WLAs).

3.  Characterize pollutant loads in MS4 discharges.

4.  Identify sources of pollutants in MS4 discharges.
5.  Measure and improve the effectiveness of pollutant controls implemented under the

Permit.

Permittees of the MS4 Permit have the option to develop a Coordinated Integrated Monitoring
Program ( CIMP) that may be used to specify alternative approaches for meeting the primary
objectives. Additionally, the CIMP is the vehicle to modify TMDL monitoring requirements and
other historical monitoring program requirements, to collaborate on a watershed scale, and
provide consistent and comparable water quality observations throughout the watershed. The
attachments and appendices to this CIMP describe additional background information and detail

specific analytical and monitoring procedures that will be used to implement this CIMP. This
CIMP meets the requirements of the MS4 Permit, including TMDL monitoring requirements.

1. 1 UPPER SAN GABRIEL RIVER ENHANCED WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN
AREA

The San Gabriel River receives drainage from a 682- square mile area of eastern Los Angeles

County and has a main channel length of approximately 58 miles. Its headwaters originate in the
San Gabriel Mountains with the East,  West,  and North Forks.  The river flows through

residential, commercial and industrial areas before reaching the Pacific Ocean in Long Beach.
The main tributaries of the river are Walnut Creek Wash, San Jose Creek, and Coyote Creek.

The Enhanced Watershed Management Program ( EWMP) area is located in the upper portion of

the San Gabriel River Valley. Water bodies within the EWMP area include:

Thompsons Wash

Little Dalton Wash

Big Dalton Wash
San Dimas Wash

Walnut Creek Wash

Page 1



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 1

Puente Creek

San Jose Creek Reaches 1 and 2

San Gabriel River Reaches 2, 3, 4, and 5

North Fork of Coyote Creek

Coyote Creek

Flowing receiving waters downstream of the EWMP area include:

San Gabriel River Reach 1 San Gabriel River Estuary

Additionally, there are unnamed tributaries draining unincorporated County areas that discharge
into Puddingstone Reservoir.

The geology of the San Gabriel River Valley provides rapid infiltration of water. During dry
weather, the upper watershed is likely to be disconnected from the lower watershed. A goal of
the monitoring in the CIMP will be to establish when the EWMP area is hydraulically connected
to the downstream water bodies. If there is no flow to the downstream areas, the discharges in

the EWMP area cannot possibly be causing or contributing to the downstream water quality
impairments. Water quality data for the receiving waters in the EWMP area are sparse. Future
monitoring results will allow the evaluation of whether MS4 discharges are causing or
contributing to water quality objective exceedances in receiving waters downstream of or within
the EWMP area.

The County of Los Angeles ( County), Los Angeles County Flood Control District ( LACFCD),
and the Cities of Baldwin Park, Covina, Glendora, Industry, and La Puente ( Group Members)
comprise the Upper San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed Management Program Group
EWMP Group).

Subsequent to the formation of the EWMP Group, the City of South El Monte indicated in a
letter to the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Regional Board),  dated

February 26, 2015 of its intention to join the EWMP Group for the implementation of the CIMP.
As a result, the EWMP Group agreed to include South El Monte in this Revised CIMP.
Information regarding South El Monte is included in Attachment G.

The EWMP area is shown on Figure 1- 1 along with the named water bodies. Size and land uses
for the Group Members jurisdictional boundaries are provided in Table 1- 1. Note that the
LACFCD service area underlies the EWMP area, however, does not include any land area
contributing to the facilities they operate and maintain. The LACFCD service area is included as
Attachment A. For purposes of the CIMP, the areas like the Angeles National Forest and vacant

land parcels are excluded from consideration, as they do not contain a MS4. The areas serviced
by the MS4 system for the Group Members and the land use breakdowns are presented as
Table 1- 2.

Subsequent to the submittal of the Draft CIMP, the City of South El Monte indicated in a letter
to the Regional Board, dated February 26, 2015 of its intention to join the CIMP. As a result, the
EWMP Group agreed to include South El Monte in this Revised CIMP. Additional information
specific to South El Monte is contained in Attachment G.

Page 2



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 1

Figure 1- 1

Water Bodies and Geographic Boundary of the USGR EWMP Group

4,--     ____

drapr-
J

SGR Reach S
t

r C unty A
sf tend.     ;

a

0  

K 
ssb r.    t

Oa"  
YIaS      7 .,.  —O

eot`
A— :      

Puddingstone

SGR Rea h
Reservoir'  -"

Covina-  _ -. 

irk-  E w s ,
1

InutfWash,    C' u V

4     -     Kf

SGR.Rea fl       `'
A L_ Puente Crk

9'
z fr 1rrS

w

GR Reach 2
San Bernardino

county

Co

4

C 7    ',.      Orange County

r-   N.. Fork

Coyote Creek

SGR Reach 1 7,

i

i44.;,_ ,    

et

y 1       ' .  
t._       .

4Aod
A  _

USGR EWMP Group Jurisdictional Boundaries

Q San Gabriel River WMA
SGR Estuary

County Boundary

Basin Plan Water Body
0 2 4 6 8 Storm Drain System

sw Miles0
Page 3



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 1

Table 1- 1

List of Group Members with land use summaries within jurisdictional boundaries

Area Percent of Land Areai' 1
square

Group Member miles)     Res Com/ Ind Ag/ Nur Open

Baldwin Park 6 66 31 2 1

Covina 7 65 32 1 3

Glendora 15 48 13 1 38

Industry 11 1 75 3 22

La Puente 4 71 24 1 5

County of Los Angeles 62 50 14 1 35

LACFCD N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

All Members 104 47 23 1 29

1 Land use classifications include: residential ( res), commercial and industrial ( com/ ind), agriculture and nursery
ag/ nur), and open space( open). Totals correspond to the percent of the total area considered in the CIMP.

Table 1- 2

List of Group Members with land use summaries within MS4 service area

Area Percent of Land Area(1)
square

Group Member miles)     Res Com/ Ind Ag/ Nur Open

Baldwin Park 6 66 31 2 1

Covina 7 65 32 1 2

Glendora 10 70 20 1 8

Industry 10 1 91 3 6

La Puente 3 72 25 1 3

County of Los Angeles 45 68 20 2 11

LACFCD N/ A N/A N/A N/ A N/ A

All Members 81 60 30 2 8

1 Land use classifications include: residential ( res), commercial and industrial ( com/ ind), agriculture and nursery
ag/ nur), and open space ( open). Totals correspond to the percent of the MS4 area considered in the CIMP.

The area of National Forest and vacant land parcels within individual jurisdictions is excluded from the land use

calculation.

1. 2 APPLICABLE TMDL AND 303( D) LISTINGS

The TMDLs applicable to the EWMP area are listed in Table 1- 3.  The Metals TMDL lists

grouped wet-weather WLAs for lead at San Gabriel River Reach 2 and all upstream tributaries.

Additionally, the grouped dry-weather selenium WLAs apply to San Jose Creek Reaches 1 and
2. Because both allocations are applied as grouped allocations, the combined loading from all
upstream tributaries must meet the allocations at the listed reaches. Monitoring will be necessary
to identify the contribution to the loads from the EWMP area. The Regional Board adopted a

Page 4



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 1

Basin Plan Amendment  ( BPA)  incorporating an implementation plan and schedule on
June 6, 2013. The adopted BPA contains general requirements for ambient monitoring and
TMDL effectiveness monitoring. However, very specific requirements were incorporated into
the MRP.

The Lakes TMDL was promulgated by United States Environmental Protection Agency
USEPA), and implementation provisions, including monitoring, were not explicitly required in

the TMDL. Rather, the TMDL proposed monitoring recommendations for the Puddingstone
Reservoir.   Specific monitoring requirements to address the TMDL constituents were
incorporated into the MRP and are considered for developing a monitoring plan at Puddingstone
Reservoir.

While the Harbors Toxics TMDL was developed to address impairments in ( among other water
bodies) San Pedro Bay, the Permit links the Harbors Toxics TMDL to the San Gabriel River
watershed requiring monitoring by all responsible parties subject to the Metals TMDL.
Monitoring is intended to identify the contribution to the loads from the San Gabriel River
Watershed Management Area. As recognized by the footnote in Attachment K-4 of the Permit,
the Group Members have entered into an Amended Consent Decree with the United States and
the State of California, including the Regional Board, pursuant to which the Regional Board has
released the Group Members from responsibility for toxic pollutants in the Dominguez Channel
and the Greater Los Angeles and Long Beach Harbors. Accordingly, no inference should be
drawn from the submission of this CIMP or from any action or implementation taken pursuant to
it that the Group Members are obligated to implement the Harbors Toxics TMDL, including this
CIMP or any of the Harbors Toxics TMDL' s other obligations or plans, or that the Group
Members have waived any rights under the Amended Consent Decree.

Table 1- 3

TMDLs Applicable to the EWMP Area

Effective Date or Regional Board Resolution

TMDL EPA Approval Date Number

Dominguez Channel and Greater Los Angeles and 03/ 23/2012 2011- 008

Long Beach Harbor Waters Toxic Pollutants TMDL
Harbors Toxics TMDL)

Los Angeles Area Lakes Toxics and Nutrients TMDL 03/ 26/2012 None

for Puddingstone Reservoir ( Lakes TMDL) USEPA TMDL)

San Gabriel River Metals TMDL( Metals TMDL)  03/ 26/ 2007 None')

USEPA TMDL)

1 Regional Board adopted an implementation Plan for the San Gabriel River Metals TMDL as BPA

through resolution R13- 004 on June 6, 2013.

Water body-pollutant combinations ( WBPCs) on the 303( d) List that are not already addressed
by a TMDL or other action are included as Category 2. All listings within or downstream of the
EWMP area were identified and included to acknowledge that discharges from upstream reaches

could impact the listed area, particularly during wet weather. However, a constituent included in
the table does not infer MS4 discharges from the EWMP area contribute to the downstream

Page 5



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 1

impairment. The 303( d) listed water bodies are presented in Table 1- 4.

Table 1. 4

Category 2 Water Body-Pollutants

San Gabriel San Jose

River Reach:    Creek Reach:    Walnut San

Coyote Creek Gabriel Puente

Constituent Creek 1 2 3 1 2 Wash Estuary Creek

Ammonia L L

Coliform/    L L L L L L L L

Indicator Bacteria

Cyanide L

Total Dissolved Solids( TDS)     L

Benth ic-Macro i nve rtebrates L

Diazinon L

Dioxin("    L

Dissolved Oxygen( DO)   L

Nickel L

pH L L L L

Selenium L(
2) 

L

Toxicity L L

1 Dioxin measured and assessed as 2, 3, 7, 8- TCDD
2 Listing is for North Fork of Coyote Creek
L Listed on 2010 303( d) List.

1. 3 WATER QUALITY PRIORITIES

As part of the EWMP development, the available data were analyzed to determine water quality
priorities for the watershed. While the water quality priorities analysis will be finalized as part of
the EWMP, an initial characterization of the water quality priorities has been developed. Water
quality priorities are based on TMDLs, State Water Resources Control Board 2010 303( d) List of
Impaired Water Bodies ( 303( d) List), and monitoring data. Based on available information and
data analysis, WBPCs were classified in one of the three Permit categories, as described in

Table 1- 5. The Permit categories are utilized in this CIMP to identify parameters that will be
monitored at each receiving water and outfall monitoring site. Since the analysis is water body
specific, different parameters may be monitored at different monitoring sites.

Page 6



a)   1 u) C N a_ a)    C a) N a) a)    a) C

e N c -°. 0
c L y N    . 0 N c N N 0 O C n

H- Nm       = o €   ; coo a m
O L

1- 0 N m N U' C N      • N w w
0 7 2 A

N N a)       co d•

U) N V E .. c
100 CU i)   ' N O-   

164—
O

7 i N
7 . '

D)  C
E

m NBC   , 0 N C N: c E
c c i s c? 

Ra

i c ° (   y E

cf0..) 
no

N    °    o_c _c ! c mTs i w E   " o N C

N
N N i N "

L-'   

i L RS" 6 N
m•

v c
as

E
a) 

N   ? w o 0-
1 ( 1) 10c _     

w N
N     '     

a)    
O w     --   E

as aai o
c u)• r_ c c Ea NU m !

to
E O. 7 O N >`•°      mm> •° a)  m.--    a N L_     aci f76 as• N a)     w o

E     • C
C

C      °' D ( U N o C ' N O C a) (
0 O N o

v i C CO
m

L ,9 E. c M
as  - 0 E (5    -0. S a) ai   "    -

a C'  : 2   ` C U

C '°0 0)       
o) N o

ui
a). 7 CO d i O r-

c c a i• c c••c      >
J O-  N O H(51:12 --. = 0 a `) :     

o

J L•
C

7 i a) O O.      >    E`: L .0 °
a

g

C Ra. S c J L a)     J   ! s

d.!    

U

l6
L C i 4_ S8': w 70 f6 l6 l6 y a)  

a
w -s•-• C ' Q     -   a.

RS
7E11—   

aN

E o
o E oi.a.  c   .,-     Ew w i-     c m

f0 F-     C a)

o E W o ui U °  
c( •

7-       

aN) acid
at c ow y..  L ivy

ac)  
L C.)   E

a)  cp $    o
O.

o_ cow : a) w°     -   v o   >     a). 0     >     o y
Q.   a_ 

N
0 

C)   a>)  .
o

N O V V O! - a o c ? C'm y i- 

o•o ' N   ! N as    ` o
V   C i l6 f' C   ' o i C- o a a) N       ' o c=   i N p•c .N o

O-  
o U N

y u)   
Es N oa) a_  a) ca VUC o > 

c Ea. o•c w   ` ocE  -C is m d
Q U a)  . O a 0 L,7 ` T-O

N N m N
C

O U as c.   N
i

C   .
O CO

i m a N

cwa U ' CO CD 4....    
N TN

d
o a

T m

r
co

aoi o aai o N m
E mU c ac E

a)  

aZi m '  
E.° N it N

of 7 i w L o y ,       a o, d -e N c a o .Q c N i N p a°)  _ ca o  ' o
0 C     °   • N' C a O o m       €    p O  ) y V N 0 7 p U 0 C U a_  m d
NN

CO' C
o

i'       

O

C N N a)       Q a 7 o N ' o w O c a j N V N a)

CL CL I v as w '    a)    N Oa_       a

C
w 2w E vi  ,

v— nL       —   of 0 cYi U n
40

o E
w

as
N     >,  0 hc ,       o Ra o

o c ,     v

c
CO

1 L
C N C- 012- 02

2 N           N oa 8 a c

aU) 
y N co)  .

0 a   °O- '
C E E w

Q N i N a. C . N a)     > 4= 0C: 0
X

o a > a N N N 0=   N a  .D O) a.
E 2.c o a) asay ; dt a) 

aUi m aNiL d   
c°     

y
c;°  °     o m` r c

o
L N w if O' o L N

L
L _c I a) o ... LP

L P

N N O ca t   ' a) • 
c  =  N n•v

w 3     '€ ou) ° m CO
3 3iv c. cLo_  sc5lRà w

c. g     ' a>   E o
d A N C i a) a) 7 Q C): N 13 N N O i N E C i N

10
N C N

O
N C   '     O N N

4
413

4.. UO .   a_-o C   . 0 I U- a) a
U   w Ua' Fs

c= a) ' a a)   a 7 1   , c=  

c w y a ,)
0

3 a
m

O
i a) —_ c > -  m O-      m

N
Elm a a)-0 : 130 X +

L..'m O m a
a) ! O   ? )   o f O

d a! 1- oNRaai> a) U asp € . E  as   a)     a     .   a H   •- Q °

N N
i 15'     ..+ N    .•+  _       ..,   N 0 o

a) N

CO
a)     

6 L

E a E "       E a       .
0     ( Ca a) w o c

d C a)       N C a)    w

L ! Raw CO. e.       i CO N R6

as

m
a) us

j0 a >.  
E

N •
C

N j N -0
0 i s d o   . N

v
Hs

N '
sc c `n  _     U o

U 0 m    ..C Lo 1 N O m Co m  i c
o : H i a) US CO m 0 a>

03 s      ,
M X a)     

i s a_   me a)

o Ra
T i Q Ra o Q T  > N    >ii v a  Lo w a v c a      o

Ra

o

aa))   
1 a>i o . co

E N A o

LO '"
O6 m ') o o -°     N   ° N     ° C

c
L R6 t w w a

La
0 c a) c

a'   :'    a) 
N 1

a) 
Ra N X   ' N N a) C a E

o L a i L 7 N

o V N Q t
c

c
a) i 7 c

a) 0
RO n i T

N

N L w RO
i   '-     L N L     ' OA-.   o in    c '   ` in xi m   3 o

co

U   '.°   
o 

o
i   _ o

O C L-0 :- c N N a  ?L o i
L

a)  
N co)   : C N N N

m
i m m   ? C  • C

C
UUC  -° E 3 c 3

5

m

t   'N      >
O

o>  

N O J E J
E

iJ EC xi cu"oi
N t

t2 CDiU o d L     °       

i
o i0 U a iUia vo T V

a m z m>       Q  '  m CO s-    M s_C•   5 N i> w 5 N
I C) Q Q v T

a '  12 0 I L N al to
m

a 0 N C
0)

C iM Mw V ' m Em io :r .       •N i   ' R  '     s-  ()       i i t)   0 C co
C N V
TS A Z` o Z` a> i `      Z o 2`J 2' J  .     Z' J Z' a)  Z+.o Z' a) i 2`     m

Rv 3 o710 oc 10710c o uiio o ui o >  ox olio RaE

C a)—I co'- i O) o  ' co_ 1  ) T=   ) n-0 Li cnV."-
T'     

coV
L

co in
01O

o) co       ).. 
7

mQimEim RuQido ID.,    ° im v m
R

d   : m  -   : m im a) o
S L ? r+ 

CO
r     ++ Fu a+ R.j a); ++ M.      a+ M a)     ++ o : ++  •   : r y : ++   C

a
CO2i00IRIN  ; A2 CO a)   COcsT1CO0F   ; Rocs ›.     RI co RpN RRa 0

Roo

0V  _  CF U    ,  U 0R 0a0z    ...0...._.......a.......'0   '5 u) °)oo

O a)U i _      i i 1  _      .

rL r
aw

0 o N
N 47

N M7
w

r

CO

V



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 1

Where available, the most recent 10 years of data were analyzed to identify WBPCs.  Additionally, the
last 5 years of data were analyzed to determine if historical issues were abated and refine the

categorization of WBPCs. Subcategories were identified and created to refine the prioritization process.

Those pollutants with measurements exceeding water quality objectives are further evaluated and
categorized based on the frequency, timing, and magnitude of exceedances. The WBPCs are placed in the
respective subcategories in Table 1- 6.



co To E.     i   ,   :   :   I i   :   i i   :    i   :   :   i       :    :    :    :    .    :    .
1: 11 0)

LI) a)      ec• r_ as      :   :   :   ..   ..    ..   ..   ..   :   :    ..   .   .   :       :    „    ,    ,    ,.    ,    ,      
0)t sa. 0 =      :-  u_..   .   .   .    .   .   !   :       z 0

a. a.

2 o W 0
o

w

4-O 0. 7 > &I 1—  LI- 1 i i i i i I I       •    .    .    .    .    .    •

a
C.9 re i i I it t:    i

11 e.„

c 05)

3 a)      i - i- 1-- !   I ILI- ILL : u- :   :    1   :   1 1       ..    ..    ..    ..    ..    ..    :
o

01.

I    . a-

a)   a

f: X : XiXIX    : XIXIX : XIX : XIX
0 vi xs 4- ( g

Cl)   
CD

i an   : u„,  Li_

11)
C U. 0 1 i 1 1 11 1 1 I I 1 1 1 1 1 I I I        i i

g

o c 0) ( 0 i ( 1) 11111

0-    € 5to 3 0 I    .    .    .    .    .    .

cc
I-   1-   1-•  ... 1--  ... 1 1 I

co)      :   :   :   :   : ci   :   „   :    :   :   :   :       
L.    2

4-.    w C.) a)
ea    , a.      .

g111118 :
E n F  ••• 1••••••••••••••1 11 x t•••  1 1-   t 1

0 .
5    :=      .  8 •:   :   •:   :   : 0 :   ..   ..   ..   ..    :   :   :   :       .    .    .    .    .

n- e S g 4N1 21   .   1 I— HEI 1 1 U- 1 CI 1 1 I       :•    i I 1    :    i    :

w . 0
0 43 01 i i I ii I 1 i imi I i j       .    .    ..    ..    ..    .    .

040
2

C- 14 81 i i I
I

i— IT1 g 0
0

i i   -:   i i C

X11111
0) 1.

4) 
I E :   :   J ill: .7 :   1 I 1

C.) C :   I 1 1 i .- :

r...       4- :   1   :   :   i 0 1   .   .   ,   . -•-•     .   .   ,
i C

0) i

W 1). 0 el g311111E11111E1111
E 0 S- 1 I I 1 I 81!     1 1 1 1 a

E ;   :   :   i       .    .    .    .    .    .    .

it'  ate 0

413
i

3CL c :   :   i i   :

7, 1 1 1 1
0
C Ce 2 :   1   :   1 1 cu i   :   :   :   : _ c i   :   ;   ;       :    ..    ..    ..    ..    ..    ..
co i— :   :   :   it -cr t   :   t

4 4    ;_•   4    :    ;    ;

U)       
E1111173- 1111121111

9-o 1) ..   1 t I I 0 i i   :   i 1 0
i   :   ;   .   . 0 .   .   .   ;   : .= :   :   ;   ;       :•    :    ..•    :•    :•    :•    :

a)  cc)       
c :   :   :   :   : 

la .   .   ;   :   . 1— :   .   .   .S I   :   .   .   .    .   .   .   .   .    .   .   .
O E t 1 I i I I w :   :   !   J   ! a :   i i   :       :    :•    ,    :    .    :    :

ot E

Cl)

L_° :   
i i I 1 . s :   I i i 1 ,„ LIJI 1 1 INcoc d„   ,   ,   I co :   ,   .   .   . s-••

M ITS .   .   .   .   .    .   .   .   ..    .    .    .    .    .    .    .

O I) :   :   :   1   : g.)

CC
0 ,   :   :   : -

in' 1 1 1 1 1 CD 1 1 1 I i a) 1 I   :   I
0 I i i i i21 I   .   .   121   :   I   : 0_35 0- i 1 I I 11- :   1   .   1   . .. .     to lifj i 1E1 .`-  t1e

i   .   .   . _ i •- :   ,       :    : .- : cui a) :    i .-.....:
0 0 :   : a :   .__    :    : - 0 1 ..-. .I   ,.. 4.       .....-.  •-• :    --.

ir,,e i   ]..--.  i i > 0 •  i E.--- 1   : >,, - 0 : c : .0 : ...: a)    :    : Q) : .. si    , a) ,    ,

C
v) i a": lii lqi 1 O 1 0) : L' i a) ict ini cnic)  0. 1 = Im ..._,I ,„-, 1 — i - 10 : -,(01E1

c a)   (...) : 0 ,   : ----]--! oia :   !..--...: '-': 0 : 0 : a): c.3i. g -.-• : .,... : a) :I i   : •.- : ,-:    : „_ : 0, )_ : " c : ,.. .    :    . _,..: „,:    1 ,...

a       —: ..-..! 0 it ! Q. : -- 1 ,-,! a) ! tiCLi ..-. 1 ,-, a) : 0 ,,, : ••• : 
C i C i    :      a) ; ••••0 I i co :

4-) 1051i.?- : 03 : `, 51 : 51   : . 21c01Z10- 12 :_c El  .. 1 - 21 - 21 . 21 . Eicni
co n   > i a.: a.:   1 c i    : ai a:   I ci 1.-- i- i- i 0 Lai    • 0 : 01 -ol -cli_ i i_e c I aloJoioi 10-: 0- ic-> ia):    : (131 ( 01 ( 0 : >• 

01031

IP:       o    "  0 : 01ci7) : •• 10 : oiclei " io , oio , 7)     (.) i _  i _ Ci 0 : oi0 , 0
0   " ClUiC) ! iclico ! Cal() ! C.) liCsiU), (-) I1- 11- 11- : 0_ 5../-) 10_ 1 (.) 10i5 : 510 : 0

o T- ,   :

O e' 1 1   ' i i Z": 0 i I
ir,--    o i „     o :       0 : c     ,   , >.

rL ft 0) 4 i 0)  U)    I 7)  0 1 M 1 0
O

TO 1 . 921 , L=     : ( 131a
Cl)       

413
0 i 0 I eg i 0 7 03 : =     ! Wig)

7 0 0 :2 1 C.) I 2 I 0 z 1 2 1_ 1



of d r aa)  
a

0 C •— RI O 0
a 7 M C

OfcaQ CO
M C aCI. t9 w o

2 0

V Mw al. C2 !  
N M M

i i

O Yd 0  - 0

O
00 M MM

0

0)   
0

r C a) 0
Ct

o ooy
o m

N
a.

d Y s
iLLLL 'i M IMi

S.0 N
6 O     : U •

d 50   m

El
LL '    ' 

M M !     M
L a) :   :     c

j i

d U)      
a y    : cC

v a`
c

w a V as I(() o .
w

C
L

L-• U O

43 1+   d N C      — ; N LL M
i X

0c u)   
N

I-    

a.v!
co

V
N d

r IL i X i M i M'
0 a) : E T

o :       : ._     i
i

Vl
M 101101

a) 

C 0 O :      L0 : 0. : > :>L0 :   :   :
r , a)

RI CD(

7 a
L aC y N

C   )of N c t LL i
0

X M c
N —      o o as

N
2 Q€   

o

0 Q
E o

i

a

as
ai

oL C
a)   a) i   ,

c C

N X Joi d
a

a   0

t-       
m :•

C) U 0 N
O a

i w  ( a

M '      0 I 0 a) iL O J a.  a)  
U     : d ro

ia'  c E
ci

R Y L
iN   - C `-  iN a) : 0)  O N  `

O i

o)   C   '§  Z'      . 3 rim y 6 '       iQi      : ccaal
a)   

N
1 0 ; D , 

V7
D i a) i J  > i E

i U i J : 2 i

N
a

D_i
i i

d
Q - p ' M .

cN_ :   
i-

0
c 1

0. i U i c M  '
L'.  U

R O O ' 
aS i >  

O : N; M me ' c : N i N O i O i T M  (
ai 0 i = e O

C V UiJ  ..  0 J !     .E N Jio 0 d U :    im 0 o. i1-

O r N N

O
r r r r
O : O O ;   T O

N O C
O

o

o
M a : o i of  (     :  a> ' i o i a3 ' a) : 0 : N i N€ N i a)

N R a7 : N aS N     :  0 : chi a)    i O ; w   ( 0 w: w  .t-. : ..-.
0 v 2 i c.)  2 V m 2 0 : 00 ; 0: 0 :0



as t7) Z"    1:1 4-

z
4-

a)co
was -7,      I I ic) :   :   1

o. Ow i   !   imi 1 1 I 1mi
I   :    o

0
2 Tut. '

i i   ..   ..   ..I.    CO. O2
O0   ( 0 co ix CO)  

E0 w
i

a)    1 I I 1 I I I I 1 1

U) 91- se      : ----: —.   .   .   .   .   .   .   .
c ow 1 : SI I 7-1 I I I 1 I 1 1 to' :      - 1 l  ' i 115i

0 1 101 1011 1

0
Ow it-1 : 01:

1.-  

o moa)      :   :   :   :   :   :   :   :   :   :    
0 o 4. 0      :   i I 1 I   :   :   1 1   '       

o 7 In et 1 I   .   .   .   .   .   i I
0 0.   IX 1 I   :   !   !   i   !   I i
u)       

t t t-   t t t t t-!•••  t   • i-  :    i
tc 0 1   !   1 1   'co ...-Ng      ••   .•••   ••   i i i i i i

H   :   :
X la^

u. 0

I 1 I I I I 1 1 1 145- v. c

0 :

i i.   1.--•  ••• 1 i•

w 0

1 1

il
0

11il
i   :

w
t-•

fl
V C      -

C
I   :   :   :       i

X •i•:
0 E asu c4      •   • a^.... a^....   ....   ....

Ic was 10101
a) C 0 CD I   :   .   .   .   .   .       

I470 C4
CI c 1 1 1as 0

c- Ne
Ca CD iI D i       :   :   :   :   :   :   :

X !   I X !   1 IMA1 Cc) I 1       .   .   .   .   . ciici :   :     
X

7).c in LO 1 1 1 1 1 15 1 L": L' i
X

C 0 iii 1
0 0 ! 0 !

CO a) 03 I0_:.   
i. E0

0 Ce
C

C a,4a > Cl)      Fat iu)....   (• i a) I a)     .:   :   .•   ...

ct C.) ,   C j   . 1.0
Cli.

E 811111111   :     0_
La xl   :   :   :   :   :   :   ,   :     a)  
5 a) :    c

2 51       ...   ...   ..   ..   :   ,   .•
w

ca 21 6

0c 1 p.
2 us !       .   .   .   .   .   .   .     cCO     :   :   :   i   : CO

o 0- 1 R ;       .   .   .   .     
a)

C

2 co !       10 : 8
0 1 col       :   :   :   .   :I i i i i

x     ,   ,   ,   . c ,     20 ...0 co0 i

La
4.   

cl) I i 0
5 C ra 0 i       :   :   ]   : 0 :       0 :     - C i

O w   '_ 1 ! 1- :    v :    
w wo CO 1 I   :   : —:       c :

c 1 :
t-- : ,,-- : , i , i ,_ :   :   I   : p....: C.)     :   lol iwiw 0     ..••

vix : - : ,:0 :_ : „,, :   :   1   : - :    
1 EL  (/)  CD I : C21 1 I 1 73 0-     ,

M  < 14181W1= 12 Cj9     :
0 CO I El =saisn ! asio ! 0 ! c : 0 ! wio 001 = 11012-1 ›.  >  01 '

c

S 0    •
0•  < 

1. 0 :(.110101_ 1mNIZ 211--      ••  2 ! u) : 0 : 1- 1< 10  , 2 01 0.

ZS
aai•  •••• 1•••  ... i   "   "   '   - i-

csil 1 i i a*     .     a*

o
0 Z'    1

i i t'
7..--    wi c :   :   : I o o

re as co: a): ,- : ,.... I-    
0       )  ,_ 

I
0 Ca   , 25) i • C 1 CD i a.) i Ca C1)  0 : Cf)

0
m alLEI -ci-clw I CS CO  •-• : 0 CD : •-•   CO  .-'

0 0Z1 -61012 i Cl)     0 0  (l) I— I I 0 0 0



TD O

ea ter x X '  ofCO N
C9 w X L a

O m m
g
W C' C a). 0 a a vi> 

R XiaOy    
oa)    mE o

y  ...............................................     ......................................   ....   ..._  .._   ........._  
E C

I-    c o N       -
C ccZrm.   

c Nco a ° y m
c 3 m o

o 0 0 m
v°

mCY

co       -

a am
0, 

O 0)   0) 
c06

0 E in
v) vv m

tO 6 . 0) m
co cco c

N 0
fl

U
O •

w0 O Y
O

UO c

E  .  J dZ VVU.  
O c c

U   - c C o~ 
Oa) N m y m Z`

7Y t E .L "a N Q O C
C N

A
O co X X       • C O m - o

O— O coMU
C m N

0

c N W    )
L a)    T

L
d

Z

U -A. 7 co

co ' p Q
LL a)       a N CL c

d aOY C N u) N N O ` 
m

EL
y y oam

co L 0 o    '"     
v m

a U v0 ca
C     W d V

al co

N
N

a)      
N N O

QO
y N N a)

V c
m

0. "    N R m
V •GI'L

a

caw
R  ...._._....... a) ..........................._...-  .._._.. _....       

E v    °)    - C o
o 

c
c

o y
R c X w $    

aa) - 
Yce .€ 0 3

U)    0 t T' C j •a a)    m c O)
c i O V O. N G)    m e

1.........._. e.....................  ...    
as

N c m
U _o -- -• in

m
EL

py
V c .N N o Ur

a)•

M V X m e 7 O N O + N:- ...a c N N ...       c

CO ys m E    _     cN
L•

o co

E
m . a

g ansd x 3ccow c o c c c mi
a m       • m m C C J•`

C L      •o
r a C= Q Q U    " O

OO N c
a) w O a)    M

N E M O

N c N O ..    W - 6 O O E .
L V N c

N f6 ) O Nco

m 7 V N N - 0 m J O O m m wL-  o
e co

co 0

Qamc off a       °c e     ' m 0 co p Ud ' O ' o'   I N c co UC j d m as
O

2, ._ 
O

co°

o
M d E Om 0505

U Z'
N M 10 CO LLN o

Q

b
L

L a) p
M t.)   U O 2 O M



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 1

Constituents may change subcategories with new information as the monitoring progresses,
source investigations occur,  and BMP implementation begins.  Constituents for which

exceedances decrease over time will be removed from the priority list and moved to the
monitoring priority categories; or, dropped from the priority list. If the frequency of constituent
exceedances increases to a consistent level, for a constituent that is currently not a priority, then
the constituent would be reevaluated using the prioritization procedure, likely increasing the
priority of the constituent. Due to the natural rate of infiltration, the San Gabriel River and some

of the tributaries are dry with the exception of storm flows. Future monitoring will be assessed to
determine where discontinuity occurs between the upper and lower watershed during dry and
minor storm events. Upon establishing the discontinuity, the corresponding WBPCs flagged due
to downstream water quality issues will be adjusted or removed from the categorization.

Page 13



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

2 Receiving Water Monitoring Program

Receiving water monitoring is designed to provide data to determine whether the RWLs and
WQOs are being achieved and if beneficial uses are being supported. Over time, the monitoring
will allow the assessment of trends in pollutant concentrations. The following subsections
describe how the MRP requirements for receiving water monitoring will be met within the
EWMP area.

2. 1 RECEIVING WATER MONITORING OBJECTIVES

The objectives of the receiving water monitoring include the following:

Determine whether the RWLs are being achieved;

Assess trends in pollutant concentrations over time, or during specified conditions; and

Determine whether the designated beneficial uses are fully supported as determined by
water chemistry, as well as aquatic toxicity and bioassessment monitoring.

The following presents the receiving water monitoring sites,  monitoring parameters and

frequency, and a discussion on monitoring coordination. A summary of how the receiving water
monitoring program meets the objectives of the MRP concludes the section. The approach builds
off the MRP requirements, the TMDL monitoring requirements, as well as existing monitoring
programs in the watershed. Implementation of the CIMP will meet the monitoring requirements
for TMDLs that had not yet developed monitoring programs ( e. g., Harbors Toxics TMDL, San
Gabriel River Metals TMDL,  etc.).  Note that the Harbors Toxics TMDL required the

development of a monitoring program and quality assurance project plan ( QAPP). This CIMP

addresses those requirements. While not all aspects of a QAPP are explicitly addressed herein
the primary requirements that are not included relate to the implementation of the CIMP ( e. g.,
definition of project manager, lines of communication, and standard operating procedures).
These requirements will be addressed prior to the implementation of the CIMP.

2. 2 DESCRIPTION OF RECEIVING WATER MONITORING

Prioritizations of WBPCs were utilized to support the development of the monitoring approach
as identified in the EWMP Work Plan to address the different monitoring objectives and
priorities. Two types of monitoring are proposed:

Long-Term Assessment — LTA monitoring is intended to determine if RWLs are
achieved, assess trends in pollutant concentrations over time, and to determine whether

designated uses are supported.

TMDL — TMDL monitoring is conducted to evaluate attainment of or progress in
attaining the TMDL.

While not explicitly established in the MRP, the monitoring types proposed distinguish between
the different end goals of monitoring for specific constituents within specific water bodies in the
EWMP area. LTA monitoring provides a long-term record to understand conditions within the
EWMP area, for a robust suite of parameters. TMDL monitoring addresses TMDL related

Page 14



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

constituents.  WBPCs on the 303( d)  list,  those meeting the listing requirements,  or those
exceeding receiving water objectives will be monitored at LTA sites and applicable TMDL sites.

The receiving water monitoring sites meet the MRP objectives and support an understanding of
potential impacts associated with MS4 discharges. However, as described in the MRP, receiving
water sites are intended to assess receiving water conditions. An exceedance of a RWL at a
receiving water site does not indicate MS4 discharges caused or contributed to the RWL
exceedance, as the receiving water sites also receive runoff from non- MS4 sources, including
open space and other permitted discharges that may have been caused or contributed to by a non-
MS4 source. A determination regarding whether MS4 discharges caused or contributed to a
RWL exceedance will be made using data collected through outfall monitoring.

2.3 RECEIVING WATER MONITOTING SITES

The requirements in the MRP include receiving water monitoring sites at previously designated
LACFCD' s mass emission stations, TMDL receiving water compliance points, and additional
receiving water locations representative of the impacts from MS4 discharges. Receiving water
sites selected by the Group Members are shown in Figure 2- 1.   The following subsections
integrate the TMDL and MS4 monitoring requirements and describe the sites,  frequency,
parameters, and duration of receiving water monitoring.

Page 15



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

Figure 2- 1

Overview of Receiving Water Monitoring Sites

OW
i.

1

A.

r ' r- C n

liJ
i

lendora

4- 
I

N I+t'    Fr

Itin s.,. ,-

USGR R4 RAMS S USGR . PUD.. RES

4111 110117

USGRT,WCWaBP ....  

R

C 4e*r u
USGR

SJC
C 1 yi   .- '—       -}

letr 13
i t to=    

404 ,    f

4   c
San BernardinoY

County

te
Orange County

f

1 1 Sim c.,

r v

il
s

JUSGR EWMP Group Receiving Water Sites
513

San Gabriel River WMA

LTA Site( Existing Mass Emission)

0 0 TMDL Site

4.      A Sites Monitored by Other WMP/EWMP Groups

Storm Drain System

0 2 4 6 8
Basin Plan Water Body

Miles

Page 16



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

2. 3. 1 Long Term Assessment Sites

One of the primary objectives of receiving water monitoring is to assess trends in pollutant
concentrations over time, or during specified conditions. As a result, the primary characteristic of
an ideal monitoring site is a robust dataset of previously collected monitoring results so that
trends in pollutant concentrations over time, or during specified conditions, can be assessed.

The LTA monitoring meets the receiving water objectives and supports an understanding of
potential impacts associated with MS4 discharges. However, receiving water sites are intended to
assess receiving water conditions.

Two LTA monitoring sites are proposed at the existing mass emission stations S14 and S13.
Note that station S14 is physically located on Reach 2, however, it is located just downstream
from Reach 3, therefore, data collected at S14 is reflective of the Reach 3 water quality. These
sites provide a long historical record by which trends can be assessed over time and long-term
attainment of RWLs and beneficial uses within the EWMP area to be evaluated. The sites are
shown on Figure 2- 1.

The LTA monitoring sites will also be utilized to support monitoring of prioritized WBPCs. It is
anticipated that the LACFCD will continue to conduct monitoring at the mass emissions. The
EWMP Group will coordinate with the LACFCD for monitoring at S14 and if necessary, using
the mass emissions to conduct monitoring of any additional parameter or frequency beyond
LACFCD' s program. The Lower San Gabriel River ( LSGR) WMP Group will coordinate with
the LACFCD for monitoring at S13 and, therefore, monitoring details for S13 are not included in
this CIMP.  Photographs of the LTA sites and flow monitoring locations are included in
Attachment B.

2.3. 2 TMDL Sites

Within the EWMP area, Metals TMDL monitoring sites are required in San Gabriel River
Reaches 2, 3, 4, and 5, San Jose Creek Reaches 1 and 2, Walnut Creek Wash, and Coyote Creek.
The LTA stations S13 and S14 will be used to monitor Metals TMDL requirements for Coyote

Creek and San Gabriel River Reach 3, respectively. The LSGR WMP Group will monitor the
North Fork of Coyote Creek for Metals TMDL Sites are presented in Figure 2- 1 with symbol

shape corresponding to Watershed Group. The sites will be located and monitored as follows:

Sites to be monitored by the EWMP Group:

San Gabriel River Reach 4 TMDL site will be downstream of Ramona Boulevard at flow
control structure.

San Jose Creek Reach 1 TMDL site will be at the LACSD R- 10 monitoring site located
upstream of the Discharge Serial No. 002 discharge point for LACSDs' San Jose Creek
Water Reclamation Plant( WRP).

Walnut Creek Wash TMDL site will be located in the transition between lined and
unlined portion of Walnut Creek Wash, upstream of the confluence with the San Gabriel
River.

Puddingstone Reservoir TMDL monitoring at approximately the center of the lake.

Sites to be monitored by other WMP/EWMP Groups and the LACSD, and their relevant data
will be shared with USGR EWMP Group for assessment:

Page 17



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

Live Oak Wash LTA site upstream of the discharge into Puddingstone Reservoir to be

monitored by the East San Gabriel Valley( ESGV) WMP Group.
Potential Walnut Creek Wash TMDL site upstream of the ESGV boundary to be
monitored by the ESGV WMP Group.
San Dimas Wash TMDL site upstream of the ESGV boundary to be monitored by the
ESGV WMP Group.
San Jose Creek Reach 2 TMDL site will be located at the upstream intersection of San

Jose Creek and the Group Members' jurisdictional boundary, approximately one mile
downstream of the terminus of San Jose Creek Reach 2. Monitoring will be conducted by
the ESGV WMP Group.
Little Dalton LTA site will be located upstream of the confluence with San Dimas Wash,

which is tributary to Walnut Creek and eventually San Gabriel River Reach 3.
Monitoring will be conducted by the Rio Hondo/ San Gabriel River EWMP Group.
North Fork of Coyote Creek TMDL site located upstream of the confluence with Coyote

Creek. Monitoring will be performed by the LSGR WMP Group.
Potential San Gabriel River Reach 2 TMDL site located in the vicinity of the downstream
reach break. Monitoring will be performed by the LSGR WMP Group.
San Gabriel River Reach 1 TMDL site located upstream of the confluence with Coyote

Creek. Monitoring will be performed by the LSGR WMP Group.
San Gabriel River Estuary TMDL site located at the LACSD R- 8 site. Monitoring will be
performed by the LACSD.

Monitoring for the Metals TMDL is also required in San Gabriel River Reach 1 and the Estuary.
Given that jurisdictions outside of the EWMP area primarily surround these water bodies, TMDL
monitoring sites for these water bodies are not discussed within this CIMP. However, monitoring
sites within the EWMP area will be utilized to assess the Group Members' contribution to
downstream water bodies.

A Lakes TMDL monitoring site is required at the Puddingstone Reservoir. A location at the
center of the reservoir will be used to monitor water column and lake bed sediment. Fish tissue

samples will be collected as necessary depending on the behavioral patterns of the targeted fish
species ( largemouth bass for mercury assessments and common carp for OC pesticide and PCB
assessments.) Within this EWMP Group, the County and LACFCD are the only Group Members
contributing to the monitoring in Puddingstone Reservoir. Monitoring of stormwater discharge to
the reservoir for OC pesticides and PCBs on suspended sediment will be performed by the

ESGV Group at the Live Oak Wash LTA site. The proposed sites are located on Figure 2- 1.

Additionally, one Harbors Toxics TMDL monitoring site is also required at the mouth of the San
Gabriel River to determine the River' s contribution to the impairments in the Greater Harbor

waters. All responsible parties to the Metals TMDL are responsible for performing the specified
monitoring. The dry weather and benthic sediment Harbors Toxics TMDL site will be located at
LACSD' s R- 8 monitoring site in the San Gabriel River Estuary at Marina Drive. The dry
weather and benthic sediment monitoring will be performed by the LACSD. Wet weather
monitoring will occur at San Gabriel River Reach 1 and existing Coyote Creek mass emission
S13, allowing the relative proportions of the respective areas be determined as well as the total
contribution to the estuary. The Lower San Gabriel River WMP Group will coordinate with
LACFCD to conduct wet weather Harbors Toxics TMDL monitoring.

Page 18



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

2.4 MONITORED PARAMETERS AND FREQUENCY OF MONITORING

Receiving water sites will be monitored for the constituents listed in Table 2- 1. The program
will operate three wet weather events per year, including the first significant rain event of the
storm year, and during two dry weather events per year, conducted in January and July. In the
first year of monitoring, the full list of constituents on Table E-2 of the MRP will be monitored
at the LTA sites for the first large storm and the July dry event. The constituents listed in
Table 2- 1, will be monitored for the remaining events during the first year. Any constituents
listed in Table E- 2 of the MRP found to exceed water quality objectives will be added to
Table 2- 1 and included in monitoring events beginning the second year of monitoring. Where
constituents on Table E- 2 of the MRP were not detected above WQOs, they will not be included
for monitoring as part of the CIMP. The list of WQOs used for the analysis is presented in
Attachment D. Historic precipitation data for the EWMP Group area was analyzed from the
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration National Climate Data Center precipitation

gage USC00043452, located in the City of Glendora. Data from 1895 to 2011 was analyzed to
determine that July is the historically driest month for the EWMP Group, receiving on average
approximately 0. 08 inches of precipitation. Stream flow rates were not used to determine the
critical dry month, because wastewater flows and water transfers may influence the results. The
frequency of monitoring for wet and dry events is specified by site in Table 2- 1

For toxicity, monitoring will be conducted during two wet weather events per year and during
the one dry weather event that takes place coincident with the summer dry weather sampling
event.

Monitoring details for Puddingstone Reservoir are listed in Table 2- 2. Analytical methods,
detection limits,  sampling methods,  sample handling procedures, and details regarding the
collection ofquality assurance/quality control samples are outlined in Attachment C.

Metals TMDL ambient monitoring will be conducted at a frequency consistent with the default
LTA monitoring of three wet and two dry events. The Metals TMDL specifies four wet weather
events annually for effectiveness monitoring. For the receiving water sites used for Metals
TMDL compliance,  a fourth storm will be targeted for monitoring metals and associated
constituents. After the first year of monitoring, the metals data will be evaluated to determine if
three storms provide sufficient information. If three storms are found to provide sufficient

information, a reduction in monitoring to three storms per year will be requested from the
Regional Board.  If a reduction in sampling is appropriate,  the frequency of supporting
parameters will likewise be reduced.  The supporting parameters include:  flow and field

parameters, TSS, and hardness. Dry weather metals TMDL sampling will be conducted by the
LSGR WMP Group for North Fork of Coyote Creek, and the ESGV WMP Group will monitor
San Jose Creek Reach 2. Once implementation has occurred and TMDL monitoring data is
available, effectiveness monitoring will be included as part of the adaptive management process.

Water column, bed sediment, and fish tissue will be monitored in Puddingstone Reservoir as per

the MRP with the exception of the bed sediment frequency. The sedimentation rate identified in
the TMDL ranges between two to four centimeters per year, equivalent to the depth typically
sampled for surface sediments. Collection of sediment samples for multiple times throughout

year would essentially represent a duplicate sample rather than produce data indicative of a
changing condition associated with new sediment deposited over the course of a year. The bed

Page 19



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

sediment will be collected and analyzed every other year to allow the long-term tracking of
sediment quality.

Page 20



Co a
cazr.   

a

12
i i I

E e : e NININ :    IN :    : e :    
7 J role" : a- : #  a- 1    : # i in :    1 1    ' n

2
c Z"  3

22 2

k
c k

u @ :    : i 1...„,   04 : CN : C• 110cN @ : CNI@     ' C 11 01 : 0,1 : ®
as 0»

0 (   
n ; co t : ' : » : cr : n : n ; n :    : n oio : a

o 3 Co i s    :    1    :    I I i    :    :    ;    i I I 1 1    :    1    :
c
e    _a

a
E

q I@ : o : c ;    e :
0 niA !    v : Tticr :    n

c

k    §
cc ...   .   .   

0-
7

a) C
L

e =    = 
as

i    :    :    :    1    :    :
o

c 2
1    !  :_  !  ! o :  : 91  !    : e :  !  ! 

0)   n : % I » : & 7 I # : » : d' : n : a :    : nI % :    : n : G ! G ! 0

Of  ........   a ©s  ©:C

A
0 2
ca

k_
E2 C J

0 ;E  : y  : Elc F2 : 0_:-0 :
a I :

10-  § : o : .

e
a1    : £  0 :     : : a3 :

E :    : :
N :

a : 
OuQ

a L 0 : -0 i _ ; - 0 ;   

2 i     = !     >:      
Cl)' 

k f :    i   2i2in21 l 2: -  
2I -0 1 . 0 , -0 : m : co : 

i i    : >

C   : 1    :    :    : m :    :      : O »  :    i    :    :    , o
o

cu   ® : I     :    : 41    :    : s  ,    :    :    .    :    :    :    :    
i 1m= ;    :  »  : - . 

73 : 10 ! -0 !  : E : T
o

I 2 :    :a
m   :    : m :    '    :    :    : g     :    1 IC 0 ; 0u
m

i
m  .  m     >- : _ :       a) :    : 2 : _ : _ : _ : _ : c : m : 

S     ,    : a . e ,    : 0     : core 1 _ 1 . : '   :    1 1 1    : e ; I :    : E  < 2     : a
o o : q : e : o :    : 2 , 0 : o : 0 : I : < :E : m : >.: 0 : C ; = : 5 : 2

LI 1e1e : Rte ! R ; e1e1eim : aIgl < 121Oi21  iQ1m : eq



N N N d   .
0
a4 ca.

0 N u'       N
o nom o w cco rn

o.
rn

W v E. 

aa   .. •_       
N

co o•°   .   c N OU E a

2 O fa- a C 2 to
7 0 C

QE a`)   j oo—      H E   €. o  •
m   • 8 c N

0 0 U_   E Cr S U N a)
4 N L

C u) 
a) L

U c
3

NQ-   0_ 
c

N
C

O' O C 0   ' N f0 a) ° 
N

D
CO fna-   

H

HW
f6

cov p O 2m_
o a)   

c c Ew m 3      ( 0
0-     m ` >

Ny c T 7 T C
N

0a N    a N.0 O o a) E .
N U u) X-     N t N c)
o

N

c   ' 0 0 O a a) N as N

5 N u) u) N L•'C L co O  )      
E a) C

L_       

t woN. N
a w v= d

N. U 7 3
m_ 0 0

C a C C

a) °. N c   .-. O E W 3 C
0•,w e O 0 0)

c    . O. W o o
C. 00

a)    o 5
O 2 N C

O" N   . L.      O 0   ' 0 U7 CO'  C a) 7

aU `      
c

ZCE     )—
Ca)

2__   
0)
di 0

a)    0 3 i m
U. k- (    a n 0- c    > m )
o Ow~    > N a) ai
L...L= a-    ,-•    

O > s- CC1 Ndy3 d U3a)    QmC
v3y a 2•   _   aN

7+ w E   . O. ZN 3 NN 0)- c'
a) a)    

a co a a) € 
C

C 0)      c O i V N D. C
C C' O

0
L N N , 

0 fn

E ° c L E• c aoa)•

7 C w 0 N u1
N O o   ~ a)

0• Tc N   ' O
EM

E 0) . c –
m in' 5 3 c a) m

c'

ca) E
C 0

L`   •' in t   •E Eo o

62 d• 5

aV
m— c oca =

m m

0 N 0 2 0 N y C 3 C N O

y C a)    O)   > . 0 O O'§ N

N0NSa)    
m W. OZ Yd

aS 7.
c y >. N.

L..,    N Caw N- 0= m
N OO       > N.

N 0 C C N    • E. c N 3 c
N ca

E a) 
a) N    >.   CO

a1 , 

L_
E 0 o.- 0 o

c t S L
O

W y
o.. 

c
a)   c a m a)

co
y y om

w
@   .     isE

VI a)    - ca a)    °   US V O    € a =
o      >   w a)    o c NI

c
caa) 0 0 a)   

w3- m co•
cac)

T.

X rnw   ..-    €    O 0_ 0 a) o °
0

2 a)      °      O      .
L..      a U Q

e a) c ° p
E

y c 3 0 0`  0
o a -o N 30 a)    la U)    0yd) a)

N 0 W~ O O)      a ch J a) O 0
a om a.—    ` a 0-0 c2.

5TT

e O   moi
N ENcO1- OCm

0 7 N C N O
c

0
0 0 ° 0 0• NC 0 F 4f   - C L a

N a) C
C 47, 

d

c E c o N

af))    
u a E d d ma) 7, 

aciY 3 d o,  m ua mwas cc7c °.  c
o• L- 

a N L in 2 3 7 a) 7 7 a) 
a.   O N

U — C_ 2

1_ Uo    _   >    au)   wmagi31— u0i au) ig
Le
o

N CO In 0 n
N



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

Table 2. 2

Summary of Puddingstone Reservoir TMDLs Monitoring

TMDL 1 Frequency 1 Monitoring Requirements

Nutrient TMDL I Two summer I   •   Ammonia, Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen or organic nitrogen, nitrate

and plus nitrite, orthophosphate, total P, TSS, TDS, and

One winter chlorophyll a. Sampled at half Secchi depth.

Temperature, DO, pH, specific electrical conductivity, and
Secchi depth taken throughout the water column

Mercury TMDL I Once in three I   •   Monitoring largemouth bass 325-375 mm length mercury
years fish tissue

Once in two I   •   In- lake sediment mercury, methylmercury, sulfate
years

Twice per I   •   Total Mercury, methylmercury, chloride, sulfate, total organic
year carbon, alkalinity, TSS, TDS sampled at half Secchi depth.

Temperature, DO, pH, electrical conductivity( EC), and
Secchi depth should be taken throughout the water column

Organochlorine I Once in three I   •   Monitoring of skin off fillets from at least five common carp
Pesticides and 1 years with length at least 350 mm: total PCBs, total chlordane,

PCBs TMDLs dieldrin, and total DDTs

Once in two 1   •   In- lake sediment parameters: total PCBs, total chlordane,
years dieldrin, and total DDTs

Once per I   •   In- lake water quality parameters: TSS, total PCBs, total
year chlordane, dieldrin, and total DDTs sampled at half Secchi

depth.

Temperature, DO, pH, EC, and Secchi depth should be

taken throughout the water column

Page 23



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

2.5 RECEIVING WATER MONITORING SITE SUMMARY

Six sites are selected in the EWMP area to address the receiving water monitoring program
objectives.   Altogether with other watershed management groups, there will be 14 receiving
water sites in the San Gabriel River Watershed Management Area. The receiving water sites are
summarized in Table 2- 3, and located on Figure 2- 1. A summary of the monitoring data, which
the Group Members are responsible for collecting at the receiving water sites, is presented as
Table 2- 1. Monitoring requirements for Puddingstone Reservoir are listed in Table 2- 2, which
will be fulfilled by the County and LACFCD.

Table 2- 3

Summary of Receiving Water Monitoring

Coordinates I Monitoring Type
Water Body

Site ID I Represented 1 Latitude I Longitude I LTA 1 TMDL

S14m 1 SGR Reach 3 1 34.01277 118. 06381 1 X 1 X

S13(
2)    

1 Coyote Creek 1 33.80982 118. 07671 X X

USGR_SJC_C- 1 1 SJC Reach 1 1 34.03339 118. 01700 X

USGR_WCW_BP 1 Walnut Creek 1 34. 06272 1    - 117. 98600 1 X

Wash

USGR_ R4_ RAM 1 SGR Reach 4 1 34. 07296 1    - 118.00200 1 X

USGR_ PUD_ RES i Puddingstone 1 34.08789(
2) 

1    - 117.80445(
3) I X

Reservoir

1 Existing mass emission station operated by LACFCD. Monitoring will be coordinated with EWMP Group.
2 Existing mass emission station operated by LACFCD. Monitoring will be coordinated with LSGR WMP Group.
3 Approximate location.

Monitoring sites utilized by collaboration partners are listed in Table 2- 4.

Table 2-4

Summary of Other Receiving Water Monitoring in San Gabriel River Watershed Management Area

Coordinates 1 Monitoring Type
Water Body

Coordination Partner I Represented 1 Latitude 1 Longitude 1 LTA I TMDL

LACSD 1 SGR Estuary 1 33.74705 1   - 118. 11313 1 X

LSGR WMP 1 SGR Reach 2 1 33. 97053 1   - 118.08765 1 X

LSGR WMP 1 SGR Reach 1 33. 8041 118.0906 X      _ X

LSGR WMP 1 North Fork Coyote 1 33.91722 1   - 118.03811 1 X

Creek

ESGV WMP 1 SJC Reach 2 1 34.03223 1   - 117.82489 1 1 X

ESGV WMP Live Oak Wash 34.094064       - 117.792934 X X

ESGV WMP 1 Walnut Creek   '   34.086672 117.845592   ?      i X

Wash

ESGV WMP 1 San Dimas Wash 1 34. 121341 1   - 117.820088 1 X

RH/ SGR EWMP 1 Little Dalton Wash 1 34.099445 1   - 117.926766 1 X 1 X

Page 24



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 2

2.6 RECEIVING WATER MONITORING SUMMARY

A summary of how the receiving water monitoring program meets the intended objectives of the
receiving water monitoring program outlined in Part II.E. 1 of the MRP is presented in Table 2- 5.

Table 2- 5

Summary of Receiving Water Monitoring Program Objectives

MRP Objective CIMP Component Meeting Objective
Determine whether the I  •   Six total receiving water monitoring sites.
RWLs are being Receiving water monitoring sites located as required by TMDLs.
achieved.     Constituents added for monitoring based on the water quality priorities

i. e., the constituents at the highest risk of exceeding RWLs).

Assess trends in I  •   LTA station existing within the EWMP area.
pollutant concentrations I  •   Three wet and two dry events of metals monitoring at all receiving
over time, or during water monitoring sites.
specified conditions.      I  •   Monitoring of other constituents during dry weather and wet weather at

frequency specified in the MRP.
Constituents added for monitoring based on the water quality priorities.

Determine whether the  !  •   At least one monitoring site located in the majority of water bodies
designated beneficial I specified in the Basin Plan.
uses are fully supported I  •   Aquatic Toxicity monitoring to be conducted during dry and wet weather
as determined by water    •   Constituents added for monitoring based on the water quality priorities.
chemistry, as well as

aquatic toxicity and
bioassessment

monitoring.

Page 25



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 3

3 MS4 Outfall Database

The objective of the MS4 outfall database is to geographically link the characteristics of the
outfalls within the EWMP area with watershed characteristics including: subwatershed, water
body, land use, and effective impervious area. The information will be compiled into geographic
information system ( GIS) layers. The MS4 database is discussed below.

3. 1 PROGRAM OBJECTIVES

A GIS based database of the MS4 storm drains and outfalls is required as part of the CIMP. The

database structure must accommodate the following data fields:

1.  Surface water bodies within the Group Member jurisdictions.
2.  Sub-watershed Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC) - 12 boundaries.

3.  Land use overlay.
4.  Effective Impervious Area overlay( if available).
5.  Jurisdictional boundaries.

6.  The location and length of all open channel and underground pipes 18 inches in diameter

or greater( with the exception of catch basin connector pipes).

7.  The location of all dry weather diversions.
8.  The location of all major MS4 outfalls within the Group Members' jurisdictional

boundary. Each major outfall shall be assigned an alphanumeric identifier, which must be
noted on the map.

9.  Notation of outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges( to be updated annually).
10. Storm drain outfall catchment areas for each major outfall within the Group Members'

jurisdiction.

11. Each mapped MS4 outfall shall be linked to a database containing descriptive and
monitoring data associated with the outfall. The data shall include:
a.  Ownership
b.  Coordinates

c.  Physical description

d.  Photographs of the outfall, where possible, to provide baseline information to track

operation and maintenance needs over time

e.  Determination of whether the outfall conveys significant non-stormwater discharges.

f.   Stormwater and non- stormwater monitoring data

Available GIS data were reviewed to determine which components were available to populate

the database for submittal with the CIMP. Information currently available includes components
1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, and 11. b. For the remaining components 8, 9, 10, 11. a, 11. c, 11. d, 11. e, and 11. f,
the Group Members has begun the efforts to gather the information. All outstanding data will be
collected upon completion of the non- stormwater outfall screening by the end of 2014. Based on
the review of the GIS data, the components were divided into two categories: ( 1) available

information being submitted with the CIMP, and ( 2) pending information that will be submitted
after completion of the non- stormwater outfall and screening program.

Page 26



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 3

3. 2 AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The following data are being submitted in a database concurrently with the CIMP ( note, the
numbering corresponds to the item number in the Permit list):

1 Surface water bodies within the Group Members' jurisdiction.
2.  Sub-watershed( HUC- 12) boundaries.

3.  Land use overlay.
5.  Jurisdictional boundaries.

6.  The location and length of all open channel and underground pipes 18 inches in diameter

or greater( with the exception of catch basin connector pipes).

7.  The location of all dry weather diversions.

11. Each mapped MS4 outfall shall be linked to a database containing descriptive and
monitoring data associated with the outfall. The data shall include:

b.   Coordinates

3. 3 PENDING INFORMATION

An ongoing effort is collecting the data that are not currently available for submittal with the
CIMP. The MS4 database will be populated as the data are collected. Annual reports will include

the most recent updated database. The fields that will be updated through implementation of the

CIMP include:

4.  Effective impervious area overlay( if available).
8.  The location of all major MS4 outfalls within the Group Members' jurisdictional

boundary.
9.  Notation of outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges( to be updated annually).
10. Storm drain outfall catchment areas for each major outfall within the Group Member' s

jurisdiction.

11. Each mapped MS4 outfall shall be linked to a database containing descriptive and
monitoring data associated with the outfall. The data shall include:

a.    Ownership
c.    Physical description

d.   Photographs of the outfall, where possible, to provide baseline information to

track operation and maintenance needs over time

e.   Determination of whether the outfall conveys significant non- stormwater

discharges.

f.    Stormwater and non- stormwater monitoring data.

The EWMP Group anticipates implementing the non- stormwater outfall program beginning in
summer 2014 and the information necessary to determine pending elements is expected to be
generated, as seen in Table 3- 1. A schedule for completing each of the elements is provided. As
the data become available, they will be entered into the GIS and water quality databases.

Page 27



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 3

Table 3. 1

MS4 Database Elements to Be Developed

To Be I Date of First

Database Element I Developed I Submission

Effective Impervious Area overlay( if available).    As Available
I

Notation of outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges( to I
X1

I December 2014
be updated annually). i and ongoing
Detailed analysis of storm drain outfall catchment areas for any I

X2       ` 

Ongoing
new outfall monitoring locations, outfalls identified as having
significant non- stormwater discharges, and outfalls addressed by
structuralbest management practices ( BMPs)............................................................................................... ...................................................................................................................................................................................................>.................................................................:...................................................................................._:

Photographs of the outfall, where possible, to provide baseline
X3

I December 2014
information to track operation and maintenance needs over time and ongoing

Determination of whether the outfall conveys significant non-
X1

Ongoing
stormwater discharges.     

Stormwater and non- stormwater monitoring data
X4

Ongoing

1.   The determination of significant will be made after the initial screening process outlined in this CIMP is
completed.

2.   Storm drain outfalls were linked in the database to the modeling subwatersheds to provide information on the
contributing areas. Detailed analysis of storm drain outfall catchment areas for the stormwater outfall monitoring
sites have been developed and additional detailed analysis for any new outfall monitoring locations, outfalls
identified as having significant non- stormwater discharges, and outfalls addressed by structural BMPs will be
conducted as needed.

3.   These data will be gathered as part of the screening and monitoring program and will be added to the database
as they are gathered.

4.   These data will be gathered as part of the screening and monitoring program and will be added to a separate
water quality database as they are gathered.

Page 28



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

4 Stormwater Outfall Monitoring

Stormwater outfall monitoring of discharges from the MS4 support meeting three objectives
including:

Determine the quality of stormwater discharge relative to municipal action levels
MALs).

Determine whether stormwater discharge is in compliance with applicable stormwater
WQBELs derived from TMDL WLAs.

Determine whether the discharge causes or contributes to an exceedance of RWLs.

Stormwater outfall selection and monitoring requirements are discussed below.

4. 1 PROGRAM OBJECTIVES

Stormwater outfall monitoring of discharges from the MS4 support meeting three objectives
including:

Determine the quality of stormwater discharge relative to MALs.
Determine whether stormwater discharge is in compliance with applicable stormwater

WQBELs derived from TMDL WLAs.

Determine whether the discharge causes or contributes to an exceedance of RWLs.

4.2 STORMWATER OUTFALL MONITORING SITES

The primary criteria for the stormwater outfall monitoring program is selecting monitoring sites
that are representative of the range of land uses in the EWMP area and provide accurate data for

measuring flows and characterizing pollutant loads. The Permit provides default requirements for
one outfall site per jurisdiction per HUC- 12. The default procedure was modified to select one

outfall per jurisdiction. The Permit allows an alternative approach to increase the cost efficiency
and effectiveness of the monitoring program. To facilitate the approval of the outfall selection
process, the proposed process is demonstrated to achieve equivalent monitoring in Attachment
E. The following subsections outline the approach to meet the MS4 Permit requirements related
to stormwater outfall monitoring.

The stormwater outfall monitoring sites for the Group Members have been identified. Prior to the
field investigations, a desktop analysis was performed to determine potential locations and
ensure consideration of representative monitoring sites. The field investigations were then used
to evaluate safety, accessibility, and suitability of the potential sites.  Field investigations were

performed January 17, 2013,  February 7, 2014 and February 8, 2014 to evaluate potential
monitoring sites.

Six stormwater outfall monitoring sites are presented in Figure 4- 1. The selected sites are most
representative of the land uses within each respective Group Member' s jurisdiction based on site
constraints. Potential outfalls were identified if they the minimum size requirement in the Permit
and have the majority of the drainage within a particular jurisdiction were identified. Site visits
of the potential outfalls were then conducted to evaluate site accessibility, available physical
space for equipment installation and sampling crews, and safety of sampling crews. While land

Page 29



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

use within an outfall catchment was used as a guide, the final selection of the most suitable

outfalls was determined based on site constraints.

The data collected at the monitored outfalls will be considered representative of the MS4
discharges within each respective Group Member' s jurisdiction.  The stormwater outfall

monitoring sites in the EWMP area are summarized in Table 4- 1. The land uses within the
outfall catchment area for the selected drains are incorporated in Table 4-2. For the outfalls

meeting the minimum size constraint in the Permit and the drainage mostly within a particular
jurisdiction, the land use within an outfall catchment was determined. While the land use within

an outfall catchment was used as a guide for selecting potential outfalls, site visits were used to
determine the most suitable outfalls for monitoring. Of the potential outfalls, the selection was
determined considering the site accessibility,  installation space,  and safety.  The safety of
sampling crews and physical space availability were used to make the final selections to
maximize the likelihood of obtaining the stormwater samples.

Table 4-1

Summary of Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Sites in the EWMP Group Area

Water I Group I Drain

Body I Member I Name I Size I Shape I Material I Latitude I Longitude

Walnut Baldwin   ' BI 1701 -      126 Square or Reinforced 34.062694     - 117.988920

Creek Wash I Park Line A inches Rectangle Conc. Box
i...................................................;...................................................>............................................................;..............................................................._ i...................................................................._i

Big Dalton Covina BI 1123 81 inches Round Reinforced I 34. 086451 1  - 117.915529

Wash(
1' 2)     

I I Conc. Pipe

Big Dalton I Glendora ' BI 3701 -    I 60 inches I Round I Reinforced I 34. 128306 I  - 117.846414

Wash Line C Conc. Pipe

San Jose I Industry 1 BI 4301 -    1 72 inches I Round I Reinforced I 34.020765 I  - 117.971385
Creek I Industry I I Conc. Pipe
Reach(1)

Puente I La I BI 4801 —   I 66 inches I Round I Reinforced I 34.033704 I  - 117. 950301

Creek(
1. 2)     

I Puente I Line B I Conc. Pipe

North Fork r County I PD 2425—  I 36 inches I Square or 1 Reinforced I 33. 936115 1  - 118.036951

Coyote 1 Sorenson I I Rectangle I Conc. Box
Creek Ave Drain

1 Drain eventually discharges to water body.
2 Manhole location.

Page 30



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

Table 4-2

Relative Land Use Area within Drain Area to Stormwater Outfall Sites

Percent of Land Area(1)

Group Member Area 1 Res 1 Com/ Ind 1 Ag/Nur I Open

Baldwin Park I Jurisdiction 66 I 31 I 2 1 1

BI 1701- Line A 75 1 24 1 0 I 1

Covina I Jurisdiction 65 32 1 2

BI1123 66 31 0 3

Glendora 1 Jurisdiction 70 I 20 1 8 I
BI 3701- Line C 90 8 i 1 1 1

Industry 1 Jurisdiction 1 1 91 1 3 1 6

BI 4301- Industry I 5 1 92 i 0 1 3

La Puente 1 Jurisdiction 72 I 25 1 3

BI 4801- Line B 64 1 26 1 0 1 10

County of Los Angeles 1 Jurisdiction 68 1 20 i 2 1 11

PD 2425 71 1 28 1 0 1 1

1 Land use classifications include: residential( res), commercial and industrial( com/ ind), agriculture and nursery( ag/nur), and
open space( open). Totals correspond to the percent of the MS4 area considered in the EWMP.

Page 31



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

Figure 4-1,

Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Sites

MIillir*

J111‘  ::      
711141)     

r

fialir
i

SGR.R app       4   `
r  ,    

a     ..,..,,,••.

W ti . . k
f+L12,

J       ''   ' ''       -      -tr.r

f\      f,J.
ir   % SST

C Ap. , '       p.Re Guddingstone..       j

0,
06111.r+l it,__lei"/   j-

ns
i :),:

r.,r
S.

j dVf

X14
r c t.„•    

Zr

r
t C'

1..  '-'      

4  _

eapp
SGR' am

4     ,,..-  

740/      r'''      .._,    ),•      t

Nt.-
f:

vo art

aj''j ,     .:.
r-

i«
r_+ _.,a-  i. .

Its t..    w

ten':    
4    ^ ' w

San Bernardi4    '
f

t no County

1'

e Orange County

3
Toe

1  . ) ker.

P 1 vi

IrrJ

USGR EWMP Group Outfall Sites
A Seled Outlet' s Land Use

Alik

Q SGRVVMIA Residential

1111111111 HU • 12 Equivalent Commercial/ Industrial

aS5°'

41

0 125 2.5 5 7.5
MOM cuts' Drainage Area Open Space

MI  -    Miles Basin Plan Water Body Agno + fe

Page 32



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

The stormwater outfall monitoring sites for the six jurisdictions of the EWMP Group are
presented in the following subsections. Photographs of each of the stormwater outfall monitoring
sites are included in Attachment B. If the outfall locations are found to be unsuitable due to

safety concerns or other factors, the Group Members will choose an alternate outfall site from
Attachment F. If alternate sites in Attachment F are not suitable, the Group Members would
investigate and propose new sites to the Regional Board for approval.

4.2. 1 City of Baldwin Park
The selected site for Baldwin Park is an outfall to Walnut Creek Wash, downstream of Baldwin

Park Boulevard.  The primary land use types for the City of Baldwin Park include:  66%
residential, 31% commercial/ industrial, and 1% open space. In the outfall catchment area the

land use breakdowns include: 75% residential, 24% commercial/ industrial, and 1% open space.

The catchment area is entirely in the city limits. Table 4- 3 details relevant information for the
stormwater outfall monitoring site in the City of Baldwin Park.

Table 4- 3

Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— City of Baldwin Park

Water Body Drain Name Size Shape Material Latitude Longitude

Walnut Creek BI 1701 -    126 inches Square or Reinforced 34.062694      - 117. 988920
Wash Line A Rectangle Conc. Box

The primary factor contributing to the selection of the BI 1701- Line A site is its
representativeness within its drainage area with respect to the primary land uses of the City of
Baldwin Park. Other factors that contributed to the selection of the BI 1701- Line A site include

available space for the placement of a sampling station, a drainage area which is larger than the
other sites which were evaluated,  and safe and easy access for set- up and tear-down of
autosampling equipment.

4.2. 2 City of Covina
The selected site is a manhole located on West Badillo Street and North Lark Ellen Avenue

upstream from the city boundary. The drain discharges to Big Dalton Wash approximately
2 miles downstream from the selected site. The primary land use types for the City of Covina
include: 65% residential, 32% commercial/ industrial, and 2% open space. Land uses in the

catchment area include: 66% residential, 31% commercial/ industrial, and 3% open space. The

catchment area is 7% County of Los Angeles, with the balance within the City of Covina.
Table 4- 4 details relevant information for the stormwater outfall monitoring site in the City of
Covina.

Table 4-4

Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— Covina

Water Body Drain Name Size Shape Material Latitude Longitude

Big Dalton BI 1123 81 inches Round Reinforced Conc.    34.086451       - 117. 915529
Wash

l' 2
Pipe

1 Drain eventually discharges to Big Dalton Wash.
2 Manhole location.

Page 33



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

The primary factor contributing to the selection of the BI 1123 site is its representativeness
within its apparent drainage area with respect to the primary land uses of the City of Covina.
Because the outfall is located outside of the City of Covina, sampling will occur at the nearest
upstream manhole within the EWMP area. Other factors that contributed to the selection of the

BI 1123 site include easy access to the manhole, much safer access than the other sites which
were evaluated, a drainage area which is larger than the other sites which were evaluated, and

being located on a wide median which allows an adequate amount of space for autosampler
placement, set-up, and tear-down.

4.2. 3 City of Glendora

The selected site is an outfall to Big Dalton Wash downstream from East Route 66. The primary
land use types for the City of Glendora include: 70% residential, 20% commercial/ industrial,

and 8% open space. The land use in the catchment area for the drain includes: 90% residential,

8% commercial/ industrial, and 1% open space. The catchment area is entirely within the city
limits. Table 4- 5 details relevant information for the stormwater outfall monitoring site in the
City of Glendora.

Table 4-5

Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— Glendora

Water Body Drain Name Size Shape Material Latitude Longitude

Big Dalton Wash BI 3701 -     60 inches Round Reinforced Conc.    34. 128306      - 117.846414

Line C Pipe

The primary factor contributing to the selection of the BI 3701- Line C site is its

representativeness within its apparent drainage area with respect to the primary land uses of the
City of Glendora. Other factors that contributed to the selection of the BI 3701- Line C site
include available space for the placement of a sampling station, a drainage area which is larger
than the other sites which were evaluated, and safe and easy access for set-up and tear-down of
autosampling equipment.

4.2.4 City of Industry
The selected site is an outfall to San Jose Creek Reach 1, located downstream of Turnbull

Canyon Road. The primary land use types for the City of Industry include: 1% residential, 91%

commercial/ industrial, and 6% open space. The land use composition of the catchment area

includes: 5% residential, 92% commercial/ industrial, and 3% open space. The catchment area is

21% City of La Puente with the balance within the City of Industry. Table 4-6 details relevant
information for the stormwater outfall monitoring site in the City of Industry.

Table 4-6

Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— Industry

Water Body Drain Name Size Shape Material Latitude Longitude

San Jose Creek BI 4301 -     72 inches Round Reinforced Conc.    34.020765      - 117.971385

Reach 1 Industry Pipe

The primary factor contributing to the selection of the BI 4301- Industry site is its
representativeness within its apparent drainage area with respect to the primary land uses of the
City of Industry. Other factors that contributed to the selection of the BI 4301- Industry site

Page 34



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

include available space for the placement of a sampling station, and safe and easy access for set-
up and tear-down of autosampling equipment.

4.2. 5 City of La Puente
The site selected for La Puente is a manhole in N Hacienda Boulevard north of the intersection

with Glendora Avenue. The site is the nearest manhole upstream of the discharge to Puente
Creek. The primary land use types for the City of La Puente include: 72% residential, 25%

commercial/ industrial, and 3% open space. Land use in the catchment area includes:  64%

residential, 26% commercial/ industrial, and 10% open space. The catchment area is within the

city limits. Table 4- 7 details relevant information for the stormwater outfall monitoring site in
the City of La Puente.

Table 4-7

Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— La Puente

Water Body Drain Name Size Shape Material Latitude Longitude

Puente Creek"     BI 4801 -     66 inches Round Reinforced Conc.    34.033704       - 117. 950301

Line B Pipe

1 Drain eventually discharges to Puente Creek.
2 Manhole location.

The primary factor contributing to the selection of the BI 4801- Line B site is its

representativeness within its apparent drainage area with respect to the primary land uses of the
City of La Puente. Because the outfall is located at a point where Puente Creek is underground,
sampling will occur at the nearest upstream manhole. Other factors that contributed to the
selection of the BI 4801- Line B site include easy access to the manhole, a drainage area which is
larger than the other sites which were evaluated, and being located in a location where traffic can
easily be diverted around the site during set-up and tear-down of autosampling equipment.

4.2. 6 County of Los Angeles

The selected site for the County of Los Angeles is an outfall to the North Fork of Coyote Creek
upstream from Telegraph Road.  The primary land use types for Los Angeles County
unincorporated areas in the EWMP area include: 68% residential, 20% commercial/ industrial,

and 11% open space. Land used in the catchment area draining to the selected outfall include:
71% residential, 28% commercial/ industrial, and 1% open space. The catchment area is entirely
within the County island. Relevant information for the stormwater outfall monitoring site in the
Los Angeles County unincorporated areas in the EWMP area is detailed in Table 4- 8.

Table 4- 8

Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Site— County of Los Angeles

Water Body Drain Name Size Shape Material Latitude Longitude

North Fork PD 2425—    36 inches Square or Reinforced Conc.    33.936115      - 118.036951

Coyote Creek Sorenson Ave Rectangle Box

Drain

The primary factor contributing to the selection of the PD 2425 — Sorenson Ave Drain site is its

representativeness within its apparent drainage area with respect to the primary land uses of the
Los Angeles County unincorporated areas in the EWMP area. Other factors that contributed to
the selection of the PD 2425 —Sorenson Ave Drain site include available space for the placement

Page 35



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

of a sampling station, safe and easy access for set- up and tear-down of autosampling equipment,
and concerns regarding possible theft or tampering with sampling equipment at the other sites
which were evaluated.

4.3 PARAMETERS AND FREQUENCY FOR STORMWATER OUTFALL MONITORING

Outfalls discharging to flowing water bodies will be monitored for all required constituents
during three storm events per year concurrently with receiving water monitoring, with the
exception of toxicity. Toxicity monitoring is only required when triggered by recent receiving
water toxicity monitoring where a toxicity identification evaluation ( TIE) on the observed

receiving water toxicity test was inconclusive as described further in Section 10 of this
document. The requirements for monitored constituents at each outfall are outlined in the MRP.

Parameters that will be monitored at each stormwater outfall monitoring site are dependent on
the receiving water to which they discharge. Parameters and frequency of stormwater monitoring
are presented in Table 4- 9. At the discretion of the EMWP Group, the data from other CIMP
monitoring sites in the San Gabriel River Watershed Management Area may be used to modify
the monitored constituent list. For example, the RHSGR LTA site on Little Dalton Wash may be
used to evaluate the monitoring of upstream outfalls in the City of Glendora. The process for
adapting monitoring parameters and locations is presented in Sections 9 and 10.

Page 36



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

Table 4-9

Parameters and Frequency for Stormwater Outfall Monitoring

Subwatershed( number of wet events per year)

North 1 San Gabriel River I San Jose Creek
Fork of I Reach Reach

Coyote Walnut

Constituents 1 Creek(
1)
13 1 4 1 1 1 2 I Creek Wash

Flow, pH, DO, temperature,     I 3 I 3 I 3 I 3 I 3 I 3

electrical conductivity,
hardness, and TSS

Table E- 2 of the MRP

3)   3)  3)

2)

3....  ......... .....( 3j..... .. 3)....
Toxicity

TIE Identified Pollutants
a)   a)  4)  4) 4)     a)....

Total and Dissolved Copper 1 3 I 3 3 3 I 3

Total and Dissolved Lead 3 3 3 3 3 3

Total and Dissolved Cadmium 3

Total and Dissolved Zinc 131313131 3

PAHs( ) 3 3 3

E. coli I 3 3 3 3 3 3

Ammonia I 3

MBAS I 3

Cyanide I 3 3 3

Lindane I 3

Selenium 1 3 I I 1 3 3

Mercury 3 3

1 The EWMP Group may consider monitoring data collected at ME Station S- 13 as part of future updates to the
list of constituents being monitored.

2 Two or more exceedances in the immediate downstream receiving water of Table E- 2 of the MRP constituent(s)
will result in the constituent(s) being added to the outfall monitoring list of constituents at 3/year.

3 Where immediate downstream receiving water wet weather monitoring observes toxicity and a subsequent TIE
is inconclusive, toxicity monitoring will be added to the monitoring list at 2/year. Duffel' and downstream
receiving water toxicity monitoring will occur on the same event.

4 Where immediate downstream receiving water wet weather monitoring observes toxicity and a subsequent TIE
identifies a constituent(s), the constituent(s) will be added to the monitoring list at 3/ year. The monitoring for the
additional constituent( s) will commence at the scheduled event following notification of TIE results.

5 PAHs include:     Benzo(a) pyrene,     3,4 Benzofluoranthene,     Benzo(k)flouranthene,     Chrysene,
Dibenzo(a, h) anthracene, and Indeno( 1, 2, 3- cd) pyrene

Page 37



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 4

4.4 STORMWATER OUTFALL MONITORING SUMMARY

A summary of how the stormwater outfall monitoring program meets the intended objectives of
the stormwater outfall monitoring program outlined in Part VIII.A of the MRP is presented in
Table 4- 10.

Table 4-10

Summary of Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Program Objectives

MRP Objective CIMP Component Meeting Objective
Determine the quality of a I  •   Stormwater outfall monitoring sites chosen using a representative land
Permittee' s discharge use approach.

relative to municipal action 1  •   Extensive list of constituents being collectively monitored at stormwater
levels, as described in outfall monitoring sites.
Attachment G of MS4

Permit.

Determine whether a 1  •   Stormwater outfall monitoring sites located in water bodies with
Permittee' s discharge is in 1 applicable WQBELs.
compliance with applicable 1  •   Stormwater outfall monitoring sites chosen using a representative land
WQBELs derived from use approach.

TMDL WLAs.  List of constituents based on the water quality priorities which includes
constituents with WQBELs derived from TMDL WLAs and considers

current and historical exceedances in receiving waters.      

Determine whether a 1  •   Stormwater outfall monitoring sites chosen to be representative of each
Permittee' s discharge subwatershed.

causes or contributes to an I  •   Monitoring frequency equal to receiving water monitoring frequency to
exceedance of RWLs.       enable determination of whether the Permittee' s discharge is causing or

contributing to any observed exceedances of water quality objectives in
the receiving water.
Stormwater outfall monitoring sites chosen using a representative land
use approach.

List of constituents based on the monitoring requirements of the water
body to which they discharge, as well as downstream water bodies.

Page 38



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

5 Non-Stormwater Outfall Program

Objectives of the non- stormwater outfall monitoring include the following:

Determine whether a discharge is in compliance with applicable non-stormwater
WQBELs derived from TMDL WLAs.

Determine whether a discharge exceeds non-stormwater action levels (NALs).

Determine whether a discharge contributes to or causes an exceedance of RWLs.

Assist in identifying illicit discharges.

Additionally, the outfall screening and monitoring process is intended to prioritize outfalls for
assessment and, where appropriate, scheduling of BMPs to address the non- stormwater flows.

The non- stormwater outfall screening and monitoring program is focused on dry weather
discharges to receiving waters from major outfalls. The program serves two roles: The first is to
assess whether the non- stormwater discharge is allowable,  and the second is to provide

monitoring to determine whether the non- stormwater constituent load is adversely impacting the
receiving water. The non-stormwater outfall program is designed to be complimentary to the
illicit connection/ illicit discharge ( IC/ ID) minimum control measures ( MCMs).

Additionally, the outfall screening and monitoring process is intended to meet the following
objectives( Part IX.A of the MRP):

1.  Develop criteria or other means to ensure that all outfalls with significant non-stormwater
discharges are identified and assessed during the term of the Permit.

2.  For outfalls determined to have significant non-stormwater flow, determine whether

flows are the result of IC/ IDs, authorized or conditionally exempt non-stormwater flows,
natural flows, or from unknown sources.

3.  Refer information related to identified IC/ IDs to the IC/ ID Elimination Program ( Part
VI.D. 10 of the Permit) for appropriate action.

4.  Based on existing screening or monitoring data or other institutional knowledge, assess
the impact of non- stormwater discharges ( other than identified IC/ IDs) on the receiving
water.

5.  Prioritize monitoring of outfalls considering the potential threat to the receiving water
and applicable TMDL compliance schedules.

6.  Conduct monitoring or assess existing monitoring data to determine the impact of non-
stormwater discharges on the receiving water.

7.  Conduct monitoring or other investigations to identify the source of pollutants in non-
stormwater discharges.

8.  Use results of the screening process to evaluate the conditionally exempt non- stormwater
discharges identified in Parts III.A.2 and III.A.3 of the Permit and take appropriate
actions pursuant to Part III.A.4.d of the Permit for those discharges that have been found

to be a source of pollutants. Any future reclassification shall occur per the conditions in
Parts III.A.2 or III.A.6 of the Permit.

9.  Maximize the use of resources by integrating the screening and monitoring process into
existing or planned Integrated Monitoring Plan and/or CIMP efforts.

Page 39



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

In summary, the intent of the non- stormwater outfall program is to demonstrate that the Group
Members are effectively prohibiting non- exempt or conditionally non- exempt discharges to
receiving waters and to assess whether non- stormwater discharges are causing or contributing to
exceedances of RWLs. Where the discharges are deemed " significant", the program will discern

whether they are illicit, exempt, or conditionally exempt. Furthermore, following the program
procedures will allow determination of whether the discharges may be causing or contributing to
exceedances of RWLs.

5. 1 NON-STORMWATER OUTFALL SCREENING AND MONITORING PROGRAM

The Permit specifies a process for screening, investigating, and ultimately monitoring of outfalls
with non- stormwater discharges. For the receiving water and stormwater monitoring programs,
sufficient information is available,  including guidance from the MRP,  to support the

identification of sites and begin the process of initiating water quality monitoring upon approval
of this CIMP.  For the non- stormwater outfall program, the MRP specifies a process for

screening, investigating, and ultimately monitoring. The outfall screening and investigation must
be completed prior to initiating monitoring for all constituents of interest at an individual outfall.
A summary of the approach to address the required elements of the non- stormwater outfall
program is presented in Table 5- 1. A flowchart of the program is presented as Figure 5- 1.

Detailed discussion of each element is provided in the following subsections.

Page 40



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

Table 5- 1

Non-Stormwater Outfall Screening and Monitoring Program Summary

Element Description Implementation Dates

Outfall Screening I A screening process will be implemented to I The screening process will
collect data for determining which outfalls I begin summer 2014
exhibit significant non-stormwater discharges.

Inventory and I Based on data collected during the Outfall
Identification of I Screening process, identify non- stormwater
outfalls with non-       I discharges.
stormwater discharge

Inventory of ouffalls I Develop an inventory of major MS4 outfalls
with non-stormwater I with known significant non- stormwater
discharge I discharges and those requiring no further

assessment.   

Prioritized source I Use the data collected during the screening
investigation I process to determine significant discharges

and prioritize ouffalls for source investigations.

Identify sources of Perform source investigations per the Source investigations will be
significant non- I prioritization schedule. If not exempt or I conducted for at least 25% of

stormwater I unknown, determine abatement process. I the significant non- stormwater

discharges discharges by the end of
December 28, 2015, and 100%

by December 28, 2017.
Monitorin.......non-....................................  ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................._:g Monitor outfalls that have been determined to I First regularly scheduled dry
stormwater I convey significant non- stormwater discharges i weather monitoring event after
discharges exceeding I comprised of either unknown or non-essential 1 completing source investigation
criteria I conditionally exempt non- stormwater I or after the CIMP has been

discharges, or continuing discharges attributed approved by the Executive
to illicit discharges.   I Officer, whichever is later.

Page 41



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

Figure 5- 1

Non-Stormwater Outfall Program Flow Diagram

CONDUCT OUTFALL

SCREENING

Il
1

IDENTIFY OUTFALLS WITH

SIGNIFICANT NSW DISCHARGE

USING DEFINED CRITERIA

DEVELOP INVENTORY OP OUTFALLS

j j
OUTFALLS WITHOUT OUTFALLS WITH

SIGNIFICANT NSW SIGNIFICANT NSW

DISCHARGES DISCHARGES

1 1
No ADDITIONAL PRIORITIZE

SCREENING OUTPALLS

CONDUCT SOURCE

INVESTIGATIONS INS

WITH TOP PRIORITIES

Ij

ILLICIT NON- ESSENTIAL ESSENTIAL
NATURAL

DISCHARGE
UNKNOWN CONDITIONALLY AUTHORIZED CONDITIONALLY

SOURCE

Il

EXEMPT EXEMPT

REFER TO APPROPRIATE

ICID PROGRAM.

IMPLEMENT CONTROL

MEASURES

Ltr ICAD CANNOT 8E EUSSNATID-       

CONDUCT

MONITORING

DOCUMENT IN
ANNUAL REPORT

5. 2 IDENTIFICATION OF OUTFALLS WITH SIGNIFICANT NON-STORMWATER

DISCHARGES

The Group Members will begin developing an outfall inventory and anticipates conducting
outfall screening events in summer 2014. Information to identify major outfalls exhibiting
significant non-stormwater discharges will be collected during the screening events. The Group
Members propose using one or more of the following characteristics to determine significant
non- stormwater discharges:

Discharges from major outfalls subject to dry weather TMDLs.

Discharges for which monitoring data exceeds NALs.

Page 42



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

Major outfalls observed to have Greater Than Garden Hose flows at two or more

screening events

Inaccessible major outfalls observed to have Greater Than Garden Hose Flows at the

nearest downstream receiving water or nearest upstream manhole at two or more
screening events

Discharges into receiving waters with flows at the point of discharge

To collect data for determining the significant non- stormwater outfalls, the Group Members will
perform three dry-weather screening events for outfalls within the EWMP area. The initial
screening provides the dual purpose of data collection for completing the outfall database and
initial evaluation of outfalls. Outfalls greater than 12 inches in diameter will be visited during the
first screening event. The second and third screening events will collect visual information on
outfalls greater than 36 inches in diameter and outfalls between 12 inches and 36 inches in

diameter if they are near industrial areas. A standard form will be used to collect characteristic
data, consisting of:

Receiving water channel bottom
Presence of water in channel

Visual estimate of discharge flow rate

o No Flow/Wet( 0 gallons per minute( gpm))

o Trickle(< 2 gpm)

o Garden Hose ( 2- 10 gpm)

o Greater than Garden Hose (> 10 gpm)

Whether discharge ponds in the channel or reaches a flowing receiving water
Clarity
Presence of odors or foam.

Data collected through the screening process are the characteristics that will be utilized to
determine which outfalls should be targeted for the next steps in the non- stormwater outfall

program. The characteristics utilized will support a focus on discharges that have, or the potential

to have, an impact on receiving waters. The receiving waters within the EWMP area discharge to
various downstream water bodies. The components of the outfall screening process are presented
in Table 5- 2. The determination of significance will be made after the three screenings have
been completed and the characteristics have been reviewed.

Page 43



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

Table 5- 2

Approach for Establishing a Non-Stormwater Outfall Screening Process
Component Description

Data Collection Data include qualitative flow size, channel bottom, ponding of discharge, clarity,
color, and odor. Any additional information needed to complete the inventory will
be collected. Land use and permitted dischargers will be considered in the
evaluation with field data to determine significant non-stormwater discharge.

Frequency Three field screening events will be conducted for outfalls within the EWMP
area. The first event will collect visual information on outfalls greater than 12
inches in diameter. The second and third events will collect visual information on

outfalls greater than 36 inches in diameter and outfalls between 12 inches and

36 inches in diameter if they are near industrial areas.

Defining I Will be determined after screening events are completed. Visual information from
Significant the screening, such as flow size persistent flow, flow condition in receiving water,
Discharges may be considered to determine significant discharges.

Timeline I The non- stormwater outfall screening process will begin in the Summer of 2014.

5.3 INVENTORY OF MS4 OUTFALLS WITH NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES

An inventory of MS4 outfalls greater than 12 inches in diameter will be developed in a GIS
format from the first screening. After three screening events, those outfalls with observed
significant non- stormwater discharges and those requiring no further assessment will be
identified and the database will be updated. If the MS4 outfall requires no further assessment, the

database will include a data field to retain the rationale for no further action required. Rationale

for a determination of no future action would be expected to include, but not limited to, 1) the
outfall does not have flow; 2) the outfall does not have a known significant non- stormwater
discharge;  3)  discharges observed were determined to be exempt;  and 4)  the immediate

downstream receiving water has no flow. Each year, the database will be updated to incorporate
the most recent characterization data for outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges.

Physical attributes of outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges will be collected as part

of the MS4 outfall database process described in Section 3 include the following:
a.  Date and time of last visual observation or inspection

b.  Outfall alpha-numeric identifier

c.  Description of outfall structure including size( e. g., diameter and shape)
d.  Description of receiving water at the point of discharge ( e. g., natural, soft-bottom with

armored sides, trapezoidal, concrete channel)

e.  Latitude/ longitude coordinates

f.   Nearest street address

g.  Parking, access, and safety considerations
h.  Photographs of outfall condition

i.   Photographs of significant non- stormwater discharge or indicators of discharge unless

safety considerations preclude obtaining photographs

j.   Visual estimation of discharge rate

k.  All diversions either upstream or downstream of the outfall

Page 44



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

1.   Observations regarding discharge characteristics such as odor, color, presence of debris,
floatables, or characteristics that could aid in pollutant source identification.

m. Flow condition in the receiving water at the point of discharge ( dry, ponding, flowing, or
tidal influence).

5.4 PRIORITIZED SOURCES IDENTIFICATION

Once the major outfalls exhibiting significant non- stormwater discharges have been identified
through the screening process, the Group Members will prioritize the outfalls for further source
investigations.  The MRP identifies the following prioritization criteria for outfalls with
significant non- stormwater discharges:

Outfalls discharging directly to receiving waters with WQBELs or RWLs in the TMDL
provisions for which final compliance deadlines have passed.

All major outfalls and other outfalls that discharge to a receiving water subject to a
TMDL shall be prioritized according to TMDL compliance schedules.

Outfalls for which monitoring data exist and indicate recurring exceedances of one or
more of the Action Levels identified in Attachment G of the Permit.

All other major outfalls identified to have significant non-stormwater discharges.

Data collected during the three screenings may be used to refine the determination of
significance.  Once the prioritization is complete,  a source identification schedule will be

developed. The scheduling will focus on the outfalls with the highest ranking first. Unless the
results of the field screening justify a modification to the schedule in the MRP, the schedule will
ensure that source investigations are completed on no less than 25% of the outfalls with

significant non-stormwater discharges by December 28, 2015 and 100% by December 28, 2017.

5.5 SIGNIFICANT NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGE SOURCE IDENTIFICATION

The screening and source identification component of the program is used to identify the
source( s) and point(s) of origin of the non- stormwater discharge. Based on the prioritized list of

major outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges, investigations will be conducted to

identify the sources of non- stormwater flows.

Source investigations will be conducted using site- specific procedures based on the
characteristics of the non- stormwater discharge. Investigations could include:

Gathering field measurements to characterize the discharge.

Following dry weather flows from the location where they are first observed in an
upstream direction along the conveyance system.

Compiling and reviewing available resources including past monitoring and investigation
data, land use/ MS4 maps, aerial photography, and property ownership information.

Part IX.A.2 of the MRP requires each Group Member to classify the source investigation results
into one of four endpoints outlined as follows and summarized in Table 5- 3:

A. IC/ IDs: If the source is determined to be an illicit discharge, the Group Member must
implement procedures to eliminate the discharge consistent with IC/ ID requirements and

document actions.

Page 45



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

B.  Authorized or conditionally exempt non- stormwater discharges:  If the source is

determined to be an NPDES permitted discharge, a discharge subject to Comprehensive

Environmental Response,   Compensation,   and Liability Act   ( CERCLA),   or a

conditionally exempt essential discharge, the Group Member must document the source.
For non-essential conditionally exempt discharges, the Group Member must conduct
monitoring consistent with the MRP to determine whether the discharge should remain
conditionally exempt or be prohibited.

C.  Natural flows: If the source is determined to be natural flows, the Group Member must
document the source.

D. Unknown sources:  If the source is unknown,  the Group Member must conduct
monitoring consistent with the MRP.

Table 5-3

Summary of Endpoints for Source Identification

Endpoint Follow-up Action Required by Permit

A. Illicit Discharge or Connection Refer to IC/ ID Implement control measures and
program report in annual report. Monitor if

cannot be eliminated.

B. Authorized or Conditionally Document and identify Monitor non-essential discharges

Exempt Discharges'    if essential or non-

essential

C. Natural Flows End investigation Document and report in annual

report

D. Unknown Refer to IC/ ID Monitor

program

1 Discharges authorized by a separate NPDES permit, a discharge subject to a Record of Decision approved by
USEPA pursuant to section 121 of CERCLA, or is a conditionally exempt non- stormwater discharge addressed
by other requirements. Conditionally exempt non- stormwater discharges addressed by other requirements are
described in detail in Part III.A. Prohibitions— non- stormwater Discharges of the Permit.

Where investigations determine the non- stormwater source to be authorized, natural, or essential

conditionally exempt flows, the Group Member' s will conclude the investigation and move to
next highest priority outfall for investigation. Where investigations determine that the source of
the discharge is non-essential conditionally exempt, an illicit discharge, or is unknown— further

investigation may be conducted to eliminate the discharge or demonstrate that it is not causing or
contributing to receiving water problems. In some cases, source investigations may ultimately
lead to prioritized programmatic or structural BMPs to address the non- stormwater discharge. If

required, modifications to programs or implementation of structural BMP implementation will be

incorporated into the implementation schedule developed for the EWMP. Once addressed, the

outfall will then be lowered in priority for investigation, such that the next highest priority outfall
can be addressed.

5. 6 NON- STORMWATER DISCHARGE MONITORING

As outlined in the MRP,  outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges that remain

unaddressed after source investigation shall be monitored to meet the following objectives:

Page 46



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

a.  Determine whether a discharge is in compliance with applicable non- stormwater

WQBELs derived from TMDL WLAs;

b.  Determine the quality of a discharge exceeds NALs, as described in Attachment G of the
Permit; and

c.  Determine whether a discharge causes or contributes to an exceedance of RWLs.

As identified in Table 5- 3, outfalls that have been determined to convey significant non-
stormwater discharges where the source investigations concluded that the source is attributable to

a continued illicit discharge ( Endpoint A), non-essential conditionally exempt ( Endpoint B), or

unknown (Endpoint D) must be monitored. Monitoring will begin at the next regularly scheduled
dry weather event after completing a source investigation or after the EO approves the CIMP,
whichever is later in time. The non-stormwater outfall monitoring will be conducted coincidently
with the dry weather receiving water monitoring.

5.6. 1 Non- Stormwater Outfall-Based Monitoring Sites
The non- stormwater outfall monitoring sites will be determined after source investigation of
significant non- stormwater discharges is concluded. The information to determine the number

and location of outfalls requiring monitoring will be available after the screening is completed.

5.6. 2 Monitored Parameters, and Frequency of Monitoring
Outfalls with significant non- stormwater discharges that remain unaddressed after source

investigation shall be monitored to meet the following objectives:

a.  Determine whether a Permittee' s discharge is in compliance with applicable non-

stormwater WQBELs derived from TMDL WLAs;

b.  Determine whether the quality of a Permittee' s discharge exceeds non- stormwater action
levels, as described in Attachment G of the Permit; and,

c.  Determine whether a Permittee' s discharge causes or contributes to an exceedance of

RWLs.

The requirements for constituents to be monitored are outlined in the Part VIII.G. I. a- e of the

MRP.  Outfalls will be monitored for all required constituents except toxicity.  Toxicity
monitoring is only required when triggered by recent receiving water toxicity monitoring where
a TIE on the observed dry weather receiving water toxicity test was inconclusive. A list of
parameters applicable to non- stormwater outfall monitoring, based on which receiving water the
outfall discharges to, is presented in Table 5- 4. The list of constituents is adjusted per the

adaptive management process. Constituents are added or removed based on the triggers listed in

Section 10.

Page 47



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

Table 5-4

Parameters and Frequency for Non- Stormwater Outfall Monitoring

Subwatershed( dry weather events per year)

North 1 San Gabriel River 1 San Jose

Fork of Reach Creek Reach '  Walnut

Coyote '  Coyote 1 1 Creek

Constituents 1Creek1Creek 121314151112 Wash

Flow, pH, dissolved 1 2 I 2 12 1 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 2

oxygen, temperature, EC,

hardness, and TSS
1

Table E- 2 of the MRP
1)     i      ( 1)      i O O     ( 1)     ( 1)      ( 1)   !   ( 1)   , 1)

TIE Identified Pollutants
2)   2)      i   ( 2)   i  ( 2)  i  ( 2)     ( 2)      ( 2)   i   ( 2)   i      ( 2)

Toxicity
3)     1      ( 3)      ?   ( 3)   :  ( 3)  ,  ( 3)  .  ( 3)..................(3).... ..............( 3).... ....      ( 3)....

Total and Dissolved Copper 1 2 1 2 121212121 2 1 2 I 2

Total and Dissolved Lead 1 2 I 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Total and Dissolved Nickel 1 2

Total and Dissolved Zinc 1 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Total and Dissolved 2

Cadmium

Selenium 2 2 1 2 1 2

PAHs( ) 2 2 2 2

E. coli 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2•

Ammonia 2 2

Cyanide 1 2 1 2 2 2 2

MBAS 1 2 1 i 2

Diazinon 1 2

Mercury 2 2

Lindane 1 2

Alpha- Endosulfan 1 2

Chloride 1 2 2 1       .       1 2 1 2

Sulfate 2 1 1 2 1 2

TDS 2 2

1 Two or more exceedances in the immediate downstream receiving water of Table E- 2 of the MRP constituent(s)
will result in the constituent( s) being added to the non- stormwater monitoring list at 2/ year.

2 Where immediate downstream receiving water dry weather monitoring observes toxicity and a subsequent TIE
identifies a constituent(s), the constituent(s) will be added to the monitoring list at 2/ year. The monitoring for the
additional constituent(s) will commence at the scheduled event following notification of TIE results.

3 Where immediate downstream receiving water dry weather monitoring observes toxicity and a subsequent TIE
is inconclusive, toxicity monitoring will be added to the monitoring list at 1/ year. Outfall and downstream
receiving water toxicity monitoring will occur on the same event.

4.  PAHs include: Benzo(a) pyrene, 3,4 Benzofluoranthene, Benzo( k)flouranthene, Chrysene,

Dibenzo(a, h) anthracene, and Indeno( 1, 2, 3- cd) pyrene

Page 48



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

The MRP specifies the following monitoring frequency for non- stormwater outfall monitoring
as:

For outfalls subject to a dry weather TMDL, the monitoring frequency shall be per the
approved TMDL monitoring plan or as otherwise specified in the TMDL or as specified
in an approved CIMP.

For outfalls not subject to dry weather TMDLs, approximately quarterly for first year.

Monitoring can be eliminated or reduced to twice per year, beginning in the second year
of monitoring if pollutant concentrations measured during the first year do not exceed
WQBELs, NALs or water quality standards for pollutants identified on the 303( d) List.

While a monitoring frequency of four times per year is specified in the Permit, it is inconsistent
with the dry weather receiving water monitoring requirements. The receiving water monitoring
requires two dry weather monitoring events per year. By coordinating the monitoring with the
receiving water events the discharge can be compared to the watershed conditions. As a result,
the Group Members intend to conduct non- stormwater outfall monitoring events twice per year.
The non- stormwater outfall monitoring events will be coordinated with the dry weather receiving
water monitoring events to allow for an evaluation of whether the non- stormwater discharges are
causing or contributing to an observed exceedance of water quality objectives in the receiving
water.

5. 6. 3 Adaptive Monitoring

Monitoring for non-stormwater discharges will be more dynamic than either the receiving water
or stormwater outfall monitoring. As non- stormwater discharges are addressed, monitoring at the
outfall will cease. Additionally, if monitoring demonstrates that discharges do not exceed any
WQBELs,  NALs,  or water quality standards for pollutants identified on the 303( d)  list,

monitoring will cease at an outfall after the first year. Thus, the number and location of outfalls
monitored has the potential to change on an annual basis. The process for adapting monitoring
locations and frequency is presented in Section 9 and 10.

5.7 NON-STORMWATER OUTFALL MONITORING SUMMARY

Non-stormwater outfall monitoring sites will be determined after the screening events are
completed and significant discharges are identified. Parameters that will be monitored at each

non- stormwater outfall site will depend upon the receiving water to which the non- stormwater
outfall monitoring site discharges. A summary of how the non-stormwater outfall monitoring
program meets the intended objectives of the non- stormwater outfall monitoring program
outlined in Part II.E.3 of the MRP is presented in Table 5- 5.

Page 49



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 5

Table 5- 5

Summary of Non- Stormwater Outfall Monitoring Program Objectives

MRP Objective CIMP Component Meeting Objective

Determine whether a       •   List of constituents based on the water quality priorities which
Permittee' s discharge is incorporate constituents with WQBELs derived from TMDL WLAs and
in compliance with considers current and historical exceedances in receiving waters.
applicable non-

stormwater WQBELs

derived from TMDL

WLAs

Determine whether a       •   Extensive list of constituents being collectively monitored at non-
Permittee' s discharge stormwater outfall monitoring sites.
exceeds non-

stormwater action

levels, as described in

Attachment G of the

MS4 Permit.

Determine whether a       •   List of constituents based on the monitoring requirements of the water
Permittee' s discharge body to which they discharge, as well as downstream water bodies.
causes or contributes to

an exceedance of

RWLs.

Assist a Permittee in Non-stormwater outfall program is designed to be complimentary to
identifying illicit IC/ ID program.

discharges as Where non- stormwater discharges are deemed" significant", the non-
described in Part stormwater outfall program will discern whether the discharges are illicit,
VI. D. 10 of the MS4 exempt, or conditionally exempt.
Permit. If the source identification component of the non- stormwater outfall

program determines a discharge to be an illicit discharge, the discharge

will be referred to the IC/ ID program.

Page 50



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 6

6 New Development/Re-Development Effectiveness

Tracking

Group Members have developed mechanisms for tracking information related to new and
redevelopment projects that are subject to post-construction BMP requirements in Part VI.D.7 of

the Permit. The specific data to be tracked is listed in Part X.A of the MRP are listed in

Table 6- 1. The data will be used to assess the effectiveness of the low- impact development

LID) requirements for land development and to fulfill reporting requirements. Although the data
requirements are clear, the procedures for reviewing projects, tracking data, and reporting are
different for each jurisdiction and may even be different across departments within the same
jurisdiction. Due to the complexity of land development processes across jurisdictions, data
management and tracking procedures will vary by jurisdiction.

Table 6- 1

Required Data to Track for New and Redevelopment Projects per Part X.A of the MRP

Name of the Project Project design storm volume (gallons or

million gallons per day)
Name of the Developer Percent of design storm volume to be

retained onsite

Project location and map'     Design volume for water quality mitigation
treatment BMPs( if any)

Documentation of issuance of One year, one hour storm intensity2 ( if flow
requirements to the developer through treatment BMPs are approved)
85th

percentile storm event for the project Percent of design storm volume to be
design ( inches per 24 hours)      infiltrated at an offsite mitigation or

groundwater replenishment site
95th

percentile storm event for projects Percent of design storm volume to be

draining to natural water bodies( inches per retained or treated with biofiltration at an
24 hours)     offsite retrofit project

Other design criteria required to meet Location and maps of offsite mitigation,
hydromodification requirements for groundwater replenishment, or retrofit

drainages to natural water bodies sites'

Project design storm ( inches per 24 hours) Date of Certificate of Occupancy

1.   Preferably linked to the GIS Storm Drain Map
2.   As depicted on the most recently issued isohyetal map published by the Los Angeles County hydrologist

The Standard Urban Stormwater Mitigation Program ( SUSMP) requirements implemented under

the previous MS4 Permit ( Order R4- 01- 182) laid the foundation for the MCMs contained in

Part VI.D.7 of the current MS4 Permit. With implementation of the SUSMP, Permittees required

post construction BMPs on applicable projects, developed standard requirements for project

submittals, and began to track related data. The Group Members will build on the existing
procedures for land development to ensure that all required project data is captured.

Internal procedures and data protocols that clearly define departmental roles and responsibilities
pertaining to data collection, data management, and tracking will be utilized. These procedures
will include points in the process where data are generated and tracked, who is responsible for

tracking the data, and how the data will be managed. Data management protocols and internal

Page 51



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 6

procedures, will also consider the land development data tracking requirements contained in
Part VI.D.7. d. iv.( 1)( a). These requirements are distinct from those listed in the MRP but will be

addressed similarly. Data requirements under Part VI.D are contained in Table 6-2.

Table 6- 2

Required Data to Track for New and Redevelopment Projects per Part VI. D. 7.d. iv.( 1)( a)

Municipal Project ID Maintenance Records

State Waste Discharge Identification Inspection Date( s)

Number

Project Acreage Inspection Summary(ies)
BMP Type and Description Corrective Action( s)

BMP Location ( coordinates)  Date Certificate of Occupancy Issued
Date of Acceptance Replacement or Repair Date

Date of Maintenance Agreement

Page 52



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 7

7 Regional Studies

The LACFCD will continue to participate in the Regional Watershed Monitoring Program
Bioassessment Program) being managed by the Southern California Stormwater Monitoring

Coalition Regional Watershed Monitoring Program. The LACFCD will contribute necessary
resources to implement the bioassessment monitoring requirements of the MS4 permit on behalf
of all permitees in Los Angeles County during the current permit cycle. Initiated in 2008, the
SMC' s Regional Bioassessment Program is designed to run over a five-year cycle.. Monitoring
under the first cycle concluded in 2013, with reporting of findings and additional special studies
planned to occur in 2014.   SMC, including LACFCD, is currently working on designing the
bioassessment monitoring program for the next five-year cycle, which is scheduled to run from
2015 to 2019.

Page 53



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 8

8 Non-Direct Measurements

Water quality data collected through other monitoring programs ( e. g., WRPs receiving water
monitoring) in the watershed will be evaluated to the extent practicable. The extent practicable
will be dictated by the cost of gathering and compiling information from outside programs. It is
not the intent or purpose of the CIMP to compile and analyze all available data. Data reported by
these entities will be evaluated for suitability for inclusion in the CIMP database. If the data are
deemed to be suitable they will be included in the database described in Section 11. Data from
other programs will be used to supplement land use data to evaluate loading to the receiving
water as well as to evaluate receiving water quality. Environmental data reported by other
entities will be evaluated for suitability for inclusion in this CIMP database and will be accepted
if it meets the following requirements:

Conducted and documented consistent with the sampling procedures outlined in this
CIMP.

Sampling collection is performed and documented by a competent party consistent with
applicable guidance and this CIMP.

Sample analysis is conducted using approved analytical method by a certified analytical
laboratory.

Receiving water monitoring sites were selected to allow coordination between this CIMP and
LACSD receiving water monitoring programs. Currently, the San Gabriel River estuary site, R-8,
will be used for dry weather Harbors Toxics TMDL monitoring requirements. The methods and
analytical levels for the LACSD monitoring program are listed in Attachment C.

Currently,  LACFCD operates the existing mass emission stations.  Data collected by the
LACFCD will be used to assess the LTA monitoring requirements. The methods and analytical
levels for the LACFCD program are listed in Attachment C.

Due to the absence of previously collected monitoring results, an understanding has not been
obtained of the extent to which pollutants associated with suspended sediment being discharged
from the MS4 may be causing or contributing to the impairments identified in the Harbor Toxics
TMDL. As such, to gain a clear understanding, environmental data representative of the entire
San Gabriel River Watershed Management Area will be collected downstream of the EWMP

area and directly used for suspended sediment monitoring associated with meeting the
requirements of the Harbor Toxics TMDL. The downstream LSGR WMP Group will conduct
wet weather suspended sediment monitoring associated with meeting the requirements of the
Harbor Toxics TMDL.

Non- direct measurements of flow and rainfall information will be obtained from the LACFCD as

described in Attachment C.

Page 54



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 9

9 Monitoring Procedures

A general outline of the monitoring procedures is presented in this section. Detailed discussion
of the procedures is included in Attachment C.

9. 1 MONITORING PROCEDURES

Monitoring will occur during dry and wet conditions.  The period of record from USGS

11085000 flow gage measuring discharge from the Santa Fe Dam contains approximately 60%
of years there with zero discharge from the dam, due to the capacity available in Santa Fe Dam,
two upstream dams, and the rapid infiltration rate of the riverbed. The SGR Metals TMDL

specifies San Gabriel River wet conditions when flow is measures at 260 cfs or greater from the

gage. The rational in the TMDL for specifying 260 cfs is the upper portion of the watershed
would be hydrologically connected to the lower portion. Because there are years with zero
discharge, defining wet weather conditions using the measured flowrate is problematic. Rather,
the definitions for wet and dry weather for the USGR CIMP is as follows:

Wet weather condition for triggering storm events will be defined as a 70%
probable forecast of greater than 0. 25 inches of precipitation of rain where the

preceding 72 hours were dry weather with less than 0. 1 inches of rain. To qualify
the event as wet weather, the receiving water flow would need to be measured
greater than 20% over the base flow.

Dry weather is defined in the MRP as when the flow of the receiving water body
is less than 20 percent greater than the base flow or, in the case of an estuary, on
days with less than 0. 1 inch of rain and those days not less than three days after a

rain event of 0. 1 inch or greater within the watershed,  as measured from at
least 50 percent of Los Angeles County Department of Public Works
LACDPW) controlled rain gauges within the watershed.

Note that if rainfall begins after dry weather monitoring has been initiated, then dry weather
monitoring will be suspended and continued on a subsequent day when weather conditions meet
the dry weather conditions. Generally, grab samples will be collected during dry weather and
composite samples will be collected during wet weather. Grab samples will be used for dry
weather sampling events as the composition of the receiving water will change less over time;
and thus, the grab samples sufficiently characterize the receiving water. Additionally, grab
samples for dry weather are consistent with similar programs throughout the region.

However, composite samples will be used for wet weather sampling events to sufficiently
characterize the receiving water during wet weather. Grab samples may be utilized to collect wet
weather sampling in certain situations, which may include, but are not limited to, when the
constituent of interest requires the use of grab samples ( e. g., E. coli; oil and grease), conditions

are considered unsafe to collect composite samples, or to perform investigative monitoring
where composite sampling or installation of an automatic sample compositor ( autosampler) may
not be warranted. Usually, autosamplers are used to capture the storm. The program will target
the first 24 hours of the storm water discharge or for the entire storm water discharge if it is less

than 24 hours. Additionally, if autosamplers fail during a rain event, or if the rain event is such
that composite samples cannot be collected ( e. g., very short in duration or volume), grab samples

will be collected will be collected every 20 minutes for 3 hours or the duration of the storm, if it

Page 55



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 9

is less than 3 hours, and submitted for analysis for all analytes. For those events and sites where

aquatic toxicity testing is required, grab volumes will be adjusted such that enough water is
collected to perform the required analyses. ( Reference: EPA NPDES Storm Water Sampling
Guidance Document EPA 833- B- 92- 001, 40 CFR 122. 21 ( g)( 7)( ii).)

For dry weather toxicity monitoring, the sampling event must take place during the historically
driest month. A review of the long-term precipitation record results in July being the driest
month,  on average.  As a result,  the dry weather monitoring event that includes toxicity
monitoring will be conducted in July. The second dry weather monitoring event will take place
during January unless sampling during another month is deemed to be necessary or preferable.

All reasonable efforts will be made to monitor the first significant rain event of the storm year
first flush). The targeted storm events for wet weather sampling will be selected based on a

reasonable probability that the events will result in substantially increased flows in the San
Gabriel River over at least 12 hours. Sufficient precipitation is needed to produce runoff and

increase flow. The decision to sample a storm event will be made in consultation with weather

forecasting information services after a quantitative precipitation forecast has been determined.
All efforts will be made to collect wet weather samples from all sites during a single targeted
storm event. Because a significant storm event is based on predicted rainfall, it is recognized that

this monitoring may be triggered without 0. 25 inches of rainfall actually occurring. In this case,
the monitoring event will still qualify as meeting this requirement provided that sufficient sample
volume is collected to do all required laboratory analysis.   Documentation will be provided

showing the predicted rainfall amount as part of the event summary in the annual report.
However, safety or other factors may make it infeasible to collect some or all samples from a
given storm event. For example, storm events that will require field crews to collect wet weather

samples during holidays and/or weekends may not be sampled due to sample collection or
laboratory staffing constraints.

Additional information to support evaluating weather conditions, collecting grab and composite
samples, and targeting wet weather sampling events is provided in Attachment C.

9. 2 ADAPTIVE MONITORING TRIGGERS

Monitoring of a specific constituent will be considered for elimination if:

For a WBPC covered in a TMDL, no exceedances are observed over a five-year period.

For a WBPC on the 303( d) list, data collected are sufficient to support delisting per State
policy.

WBPC being monitored due to downstream 303( d) listings, two years of monitoring of
no exceedances are observed for the same condition as the listing ( i.e., wet or dry
weather).

Category 3C WBPCs having no exceedances over two years.

If the nearest downstream LTA or TMDL receiving water site has observed two consecutive
exceedances during the same condition, the constituent will be added to the upstream stormwater
outfall or significant non- stormwater outfall site for wet or dry weather, respectively.

Page 56



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 9

The monitoring data will be reviewed annually to determine if prioritized WBPCs or constituent
lists for all types of monitoring sites require updating. When updates are made, the changes will
be reported in the annual report and become effective for the subsequent monitoring year.

9. 3 AQUATIC TOXICITY TESTING

Aquatic toxicity testing supports the identification of BMPs to address sources of toxicity in
urban runoff The following outlines the approach for conducting aquatic toxicity monitoring and
evaluating results. Control measures and management actions to address confirmed toxicity
caused by urban runoff are addressed by the EWMP, either via currently identified management
actions or those that are identified via adaptive management of the EWMP. As Ceriodaphnia

dubia (C. dubia) is identified as the most sensitive to known potential toxicant(s) typically found
in receiving waters and urban runoff in the freshwater potions of the watershed, C. dubia is
selected as the most sensitive species. The species also has the advantage of being easily
maintained in house mass cultures. The simplicity of the test, the ease of interpreting results, and
the smaller volume necessary to run the test, make the test a valuable screening tool.

Per the MRP, acute and chronic toxicity test endpoints will be analyzed using the Test of
Significant Toxicity (TST) t-test approach specified by the USEPA (USEPA, 2010). The Permit

specifies that the chronic in- stream waste concentration is set at 100% receiving water for
receiving water samples and 100% effluent for outfall samples. Using the TST approach, a t-
value is calculated for a test result and compared with a critical t-value from USEPA' s TST

Implementation Document( USEPA, 2010).

For acute C. dubia toxicity testing, if a statistically significant 50% difference in mortality is
observed between the sample and laboratory control, a TIE will be performed. For chronic C.
dubia toxicity testing,  if a statistically significant 50% difference in mortality is observed
between the sample and laboratory control, a TIE will be performed. If a statistically significant
50% difference in a sub- lethal endpoint is observed between the sample and laboratory control, a
confirmatory sample will be collected from the receiving water within two weeks of obtaining
the results of the initial sample. If a statistically significant 50% difference in mortality or sub-
lethal endpoint is observed between the sample and laboratory control on the confirmatory
sample, a TIE will be performed.

In cases where significant endpoint toxicity effects greater than 50% are observed in the original

sample, but the follow-up TIE positive control " signal" is not statistically significant, the cause
of toxicity will be considered non-persistent. No immediate follow-up testing is required on the
sample. However, future test results should be evaluated to determine if parallel TIE treatments

are necessary to provide an opportunity to identify the cause of toxicity.

The results of toxicity testing will be used to trigger further investigations to determine the cause
of observed laboratory toxicity. The primary purpose of conducting TIEs is to support the
identification of management actions that will result in the removal of pollutants causing toxicity
in receiving waters. Successful TIEs will direct monitoring at outfall sampling sites to inform
management actions. As such, the goal of conducting TIEs is to identify pollutant(s) that should
be sampled during outfall monitoring so that management actions can be identified to address the
pollutant(s). The Group Members will prepare a discharge assessment plan if TIEs conducted on
consecutive sampling events are inconclusive. Discharge assessments will be conducted after

Page 57



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 9

consecutive inconclusive TIEs, rather than after one, because of the inherit variability associated
with the toxicity and TIE testing methods.

Monitoring for constituents identified based on the results of a TIE will occur as soon as feasible
following the completion of a successful TIE ( i.e., the next monitoring event that is at least 45
days following the toxicity laboratory' s report transmitting the results of a successful TIE).

The intent of the approach is to identify the cause of toxicity observed in receiving water to the
extent possible with the toxicity testing tools available, thereby directing outfall monitoring for
the pollutants causing toxicity with the ultimate goal of supporting the development and
implementation of management actions. Additional information for aquatic toxicity testing can
be found in Section C- 1. 7 in Attachment C.

Page 58



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 10

10 Adaptive Management

The adaptive management process will be utilized on an annual basis to evaluate this CIMP and

update the monitoring requirements as necessary. As noted in this CIMP, several monitoring
elements are dynamic that will require modifications to the monitoring sites, schedule, frequency
or parameters. In particular, the non- stormwater screening program and the toxicity monitoring
will likely generate changes that need to be incorporated. This section lays out a range of
possible modifications to this CIMP and the process for CIMP revision and update.

10. 1 INTEGRATED MONITORING AND ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

Monitoring is based on water quality issues identified in downstream water bodies. As data are
collected and currently identified constituents prove to not be an issue in the EWMP area water
bodies, they will be removed from the monitoring program. Likewise, if new constituents are
identified, they will be added to the ongoing monitoring program. Every year, an evaluation will
be conducted to identify potential modifications resulting from the following:

TIEs result in the identification of additional constituents that need to be monitored.

Additional upstream receiving water monitoring is necessary to characterize the spatial
extent of RWL exceedances.

Additional outfall monitoring is needed in response to RWL exceedances.
Non-stormwater outfall sites will change as discharges are addressed.

Monitoring data demonstrates that water quality objectives are not being exceeded in the
receiving waters.

Source investigations determine that MS4 discharges are not a source of a constituent.

The results from the monitoring are meant to tie into the EWMP as feedback for the water
quality changes resulting from control measures implemented by the Group Members. As a
result, additional changes may be considered during the evaluation based on the control measure
implementation needs.

10. 2 CIMP REVISION PROCESS

A range of sampling specified in the CIMP may result in data that will require changes to ensure
monitoring meets the requirements and intent of the MRP and supports EWMP implementation.
Changes identified in this section will be discussed in the annual report and implemented starting
no later than the first CIMP monitoring event of the next monitoring year ( i.e., the first event

after July 1 of the year following the annual report submittal), including:

1.  Adding constituents at receiving water and/or outfall monitoring sites,  increasing
monitoring frequency, or adding sites as a result of requirements in the MRP ( e. g., TIE
results), procedures outlined in this CIMP or to further support meeting the monitoring
objectives.

a.  Constituents identified through a TIE will be added to upstream receiving water
monitoring sites. Where the constituents exceed water quality objectives in the
receiving water twice, they will be added to the monitoring of outfall sites
upstream of the receiving water site.

Page 59



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 10

b.  Constituents found to exceed through Table E- 2 of the MRP monitoring will be
added to the upstream receiving water sites. Two exceedances of water quality
objectives for the constituent( s) in the receiving water will trigger monitoring of
the constituent at the outfall site( s) upstream of the receiving water site.

2.  Discontinuing monitoring for Table E-2 constituents that are not identified as a water
quality priority, i. e. not previously monitored, and are not detected at levels above
relevant water quality objectives in the first year of monitoring.

3.  Discontinuing monitoring of any Category 3 constituent at a specified site if there are two
consecutive years of monitoring for the same condition ( i.e., wet or dry weather) with no
exceedances observed.

4.  Modifying methods for consistency with USEPA method requirements or to achieve
lower detection limits.

5.  Changing analytical laboratories.
6.  Relocating an outfall monitoring location determined to be not representative of MS4

discharges in the EWMP area, for reasons other than the observed water quality, or
because monitoring at the site is not feasible.

7.  Implementing the changes associated with conducting at least one re-assessment of the
Non-stormwater Outfall Program during the Permit term.

8.  Modifications to sampling protocols resulting from coordination with other watershed
monitoring programs.

Modifications,  such as reducing the sampling frequency,  discontinuing moniotinrg of
consituents, or moving or removing a stormwater outfall or receiving water location, will be
proposed in a separate letter to the Regional Board requesting Executive Officer approval of the
change.

Page 60



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 11

11 Data Management and Reporting

The following sections provide an overview of the monitoring and reporting the Group Members
will follow. Details of the data management and reporting are included in Attachment C.

11. 1 DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS

The EWMP Group shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration
and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring
instrumentation, copies of all reports required by the Permit, and records of all data used to
completed the Report of Waste Discharge and application of this Permit, for a period of at least

three years from the date of the sample, measurement, report, or application.

11. 1. 1 Event Summary Reports

Reports of monitoring activities will include, at a minimum, the following information:

The date, time of sampling or measurements, exact place, weather conditions, and rain
fall amount.

The individual( s) who performed the sampling or measurements.
The date( s) analyses were performed.

The individual( s) who performed the analyses.

The analytical techniques or methods used.

The results of such analyses.

The data sheets showing toxicity test results.

11. 1. 2 Semi-Annual Analytical Data Reports

Results from each of the receiving water or outfall based monitoring station conducted in
accordance with the Standard Operating Procedure shall be sent electronically to the Regional
Board' s stormwater site at MS4stormwaterRB4 @waterboards. ca.gov. Analytical data reports are

required to be submitted on a semi- annual basis and will include the following:

Exceedances applicable to WQBELs, RWLs, action levels, or aquatic toxicity thresholds
Corresponding sample dates and monitoring locations.

Semi- annual data reports will be submitted on June 15, covering the monitoring period of July 1
through December 31, and on December 15, covering the monitoring period of January 1
through June 30.

11. 2 MONITORING REPORTS

Annual monitoring reports will be submitted by December 15 of each year.  The annual

monitoring reports will cover the monitoring period of July 1 through June 30. The annual
monitoring reports will include the following:

Watershed Summary Information
o Watershed Management Area

o Subwatershed( HUC- 12) Descriptions

o Description of Permittee( s) Drainage Area within the Subwatershed

Annual Assessment and Reporting

Page 61



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 11

o Stormwater Control Measures

o Effectiveness Assessment of Stormwater Control Measures

o Non-stormwater Water Control Measures

o Effectiveness Assessment of Non- Stormwater Control Measures

o Integrated Monitoring Compliance Report
o Adaptive Management Strategies

o Supporting Data and Information.

Details on the reporting requirements from the MRP that will be submitted with the semi- annual
analytical data reports and annual monitoring reports are presented in Attachment C. In addition
to the requirements from the MRP, a discussion of how the reported data are to be used is

included in Attachment C.

11. 3 DATA MANAGEMENT

The acceptability of data is determined through data verification and data validation. In addition
to the programmatic data quality objectives, the standard data validation procedures documented
in the subcontracted laboratory' s quality assurance ( QA) manual will be used to accept, reject, or
qualify the data generated by the laboratory. Each laboratory' s QA Officer will be responsible
for validating data generated by the laboratory.

Once analytical results are received from the analyzing laboratory, the EWMP Group will
perform an independent review and validation of analytical results. Decisions to reject or qualify
data will be made, based on the evaluation of field and laboratory quality control data. Data
verification involves verifying that required methods and procedures have been followed at all
stages of the data collection process,  including sample collection,  sample receipt,  sample
preparation,  sample analysis,  and documentation review for completeness.  Data validation

involves identifying project requirements, obtaining the documents and records produced during
data verification, evaluating the quality of the data generated including that laboratory equipment
to be free of analytes of interest below the reporting limit, to evaluate if any potential exists for
cross- contamination or assigning a value to an otherwise chemical contaminant- free sample, and
determining whether project requirements were met.

The field log and analytical data generated will be converted to a standard database format. After
data entry or data transfer procedures are completed for each sample event, data will be
validated. After the final quality assurance checks for errors are completed, the data will be
added to the database.

Details of the data management protocols are provided in Attachment C.

Page 62



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 12

12 Schedule for CIMP Implementation

Existing monitoring at LACFCD mass emission sites will continue to be conducted during the
CIMP approval process. Beginning summer 2014, the dry weather screening of major outfalls
will commence.   Implementation of new monitoring programs and modifications to existing
monitoring will commence on July 1, 2015 or 90 days after approval by the Executive Officer of
the Regional Board, whichever is later.

The EWMP Group intends to phase in the receiving water and stormwater outfall elements of
this CIMP to accommodate multiple agency coordination and permitting as well as processes for
acquiring and installing autosamplers.  Numerous autosampler stations have been installed
throughout the County and provide significant experience in understanding the challenges and
timelines for designing, permitting, and installing autosampler stations. The following provides
an overview of the tasks and timelines associated with autosampler installation and what would

be considered a relatively straightforward installation timeframe:

Detailed autosampler site configuration/design,  which includes data collection and

review, identification of permit requirements, concept design, development of summary
technical memos, and review by participating agencies and associated divisions:  12

months

Obtaining permits from one or more of the following entities: Army Corps of Engineers,
LACFCD, United States Fish and Wildlife Service, California Department of Fish and

Game, California Coastal Commission, and the Regional Board: 3 to 10 months

Purchase of equipment via contractor or via agency procurement process ( can occur
somewhat concurrently with permitting): 2 to 6 months

Connecting to power via an upgrade to existing service or establishing new service: 1 to 6
months

Construction of monitoring station assuming no bid/award process: 1 month
Total time: 18 to 30 months

Phase I of the CIMP Implementation:

Fiscal Year 14- 15

Non-stormwater screening
Determination of significant non- stormwater outfalls

Continued monitoring at the existing receiving water LTA site( S 14)

Phase II of the CIMP Implementation ( beginning July 1, 2015 or 90 days after CIMP approval;
whichever is later):

Fiscal Year 15- 16

Continued implementation of non-stormwater outfall program

Modifications to monitoring at the existing receiving water LTA site
Installation and monitoring of 3 new TMDL receiving water sites
Monitoring of 1 new TMDL receiving water site at Puddingstone Reservoir

Page 63



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 12

Phase III of the CIMP Implementation:

Fiscal Year 16- 17

Continued implementation of non- stormwater outfall program

Continued monitoring at all existing LTA and TMDL receiving water sites
Installation and monitoring of 3 new stormwater outfall sites

Phase IV of the CIMP Implementation:

Fiscal Year 17- 18

Continued implementation of non- stormwater outfall program

Continued monitoring at all existing LTA, TMDL receiving water,  and stormwater
outfall sites

Installation and monitoring of 3 new stormwater outfall sites

The below Table 12- 1 summarizes the installation and monitoring schedule for LTA, TMDL
receiving water and stormwater outfall sites.

Table 12- 1

Receiving Water and Outfall Phasing

Installation and Monitoring Sampling Frequency
Site Schedule Wet/Dry(

I)

Receiving Water

S14 Existing 4/2

San Gabriel River Reach 4 FY15- 16(
2)       

4/ 2

Walnut Creek Wash FY15- 16°       4/ 2

San Jose Creek FY15- 16(
2)       

4/ 2

Puddingstone Reservoir FY 15- 16(
3)   Varies(3)

Outfall

County of Los Angeles FY16-
174)       

3/ 0

Covina FY16-
174)       

3/ 0

Industry FY16-
174)       

3/ 0

Baldwin Park FY17-
184)       

3/ 0

Glendora FY17-
184)       

3/ 0

La Puente FY17- 18(
4)       

3/ 0

1. The sampling frequency per constituent per receiving water site is detailed in Table 2- 1 for receiving water
sites and Table 4-9 for outfall sites. Wet weather sampling for metals, TSS, hardness and field parameters
will be conducted four times per year, other constituents will be collected three times per year. After the first

year, data will be evaluated to determine if reducing monitoring frequency to three wet events per year will
provide sufficient data. If three events of wet-weather data can provide sufficient data, the Group will submit
a request to the Executive Officer to reduce the sampling frequency.
2. If an autosampler cannot be installed in time for wet season monitoring, grab samples will be collected
every 20 minutes for 3 hours, or the duration of the storm if it is less than 3 hours.
3. No equipment will be installed since sampling will be taken at the center of the Lake. The sampling
frequency is detailed in Table 2- 2.
4. As installation of sites proceeds, the outfalls will be added to the wet weather monitoring schedule.

Page 64



USGR- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Section 13

13 References

Los Angeles RWQCB, Final Staff Report for the Implementation Plans and Schedules for the
Los Cerritos Channel and San Gabriel River Metals TMDLs, 2013

LARWQCB. 2011. Amendment to the Water Quality Control Plan — Los Angeles Region to

Incorporate the Total Maximum Daily Load for Toxic Pollutants in Dominguez Channel and
Greater Los Angeles and Long Beach Harbor Waters. Attachment A to Resolution No. R11-
008. Adopted May 5, 2011. Effective March 23, 2012.

RWQCB ( California Regional Water Quality Control Board Los Angeles Region). 2012. Water

Discharge Requirements for Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems  ( MS4s)

Discharges within the Coastal Watersheds of Los Angeles County,  Except Those
Discharges Originating from the City of Long Beach MS4. Order No. R4-2012-0175.
NPDES No. CAS004001. December 6, 2012.

USEPA. 2007. Total Maximum Daily Loads for Metals and Selenium — San Gabriel River and

Impaired Tributaries. USEPA Region 9. March 26, 2007.

USEPA. 2012. Los Angeles Area Lakes Total Maximum Daily Loads for Nitrogen, Phosphorus,
Mercury, Trash, Organochlorine Pesticides and PCBs. USEPA Region 9. March 26, 2012.

Page 65



vtF,

o,.

a,'

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE June 2, 2015 ITEM NO. CC 7

STAFF SOURCE Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

Vivian Castro, Environmental Services Manager

ITEM TITLE Authorization to Execute a Memorandum of Agreement ( MOA) with Los

Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management Joint
Powers Authority  ( GWMA)   for Cost Sharing for Installation of

Monitoring Equipment and Monitoring Pursuant to Dominguez Channel
and Greater Los Angeles and Long Beach Harbor Waters ( Harbor Toxic
Pollutants) Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

1)  Authorize the City Manager to execute MOA with GWMA for Cost Sharing for the
Installation of Monitoring Equipment and Monitoring Pursuant to the Harbor Toxic
Pollutants TMDL; and

2)  Authorize the Department of Public Works to submit payment of$ 4, 121. 00 by June 30, 2015
for Fiscal Year( FY) 2015- 16 upon receipt of invoice.

FISCAL IMPACT

The MOA covers the cost of installing monitoring stations and conducting monitoring through
FY 2017- 18. The MOA require the following payment schedule for the City of Covina:

Invoice Date Maximum Amount($)

June 2015 ( FY 2015-16)     4, 121. 00

April 2016 ( FY 2016-17)    2, 247. 70

April 2017 ( FY 2017-18)    2,247. 70

Total( Maximum Amount) 8, 616.40

Includes administrative fee of5% o Ci  ' s annual cost share amount.

The June 2015 invoice amount of$ 4, 121. 00 is included in the FY 2015- 16 Department of Public

Works proposed budget( account 6200-5550-51800). The proposed FY 2015- 16 Department of

Public Works budget (account 6200- 5550- 51800) includes $2, 247.70 for the April 2016 invoice

amount ( for FY 2016- 17). The April 2017 invoice cost( for FY 2017- 18) will be requested as

part of the FY 2016- 17 City budget process.

While Environmental Services collects various fees for stormwater-related services provided by
the City( development plan reviews, construction site inspections, facilities inspections, etc.) that

historically covered the costs of implementing the prior( 2001) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer
System( MS4) Permit, for the 2012 MS4 Permit those fees are insufficient to cover the full cost



of implementing the Upper San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed Management Program
EWMP) and not applicable to cover the costs of the CIMP and Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL

monitoring. At this time, there are no Environmental Services fee revenues that can be used to
cover the cost of implementing the CIMP and Harbor Toxic Pollutants TDML monitoring.
Beginning with the Fiscal Year 2015- 16 budget, the General Fund will be required to subsidize
the City' s stormwater compliance programs. As a result, expenses associated with this MOA
will be borne by the General Fund unless other funding sources are identified.

BACKGROUND

On May 5, 2011, the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Los Angeles Region
Regional Board) adopted the Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL. The City of Covina is identified

in the TMDL as a responsible party because the San Gabriel River, to which the City drains, is
tributary to the Harbor.  This TMDL requires water quality monitoring of toxic  " legacy"
pollutants. Numerous cities tributary to the Harbor propose to share the cost of implementing the
monitoring program and share monitoring data.  The proposed MOA (Exhibit A) allows for joint
monitoring of several locations within the Harbor areas, which results in a cost savings to all
participants.

The Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL became effective upon approval by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency on March 23,  2012.  Subsequently, this TMDL has been
incorporated into the Los Angeles County Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System ( MS4)

Permit ( Order No. R4-2012-0175; NPDES Permit No. CAS004001), which regulates the City' s
storm drain discharges, and is enforceable through the federal Clean Water Act.

As explained in the Agenda Report for Item CC 3 of this June 2, 2015 Covina City Council
agenda, the MS4 Permit gives Permittees the option of implementing a collaborative, watershed-
based approach to Permit compliance through development of a Watershed Management
Program (WMP) or an Enhanced Watershed Management Program (EWMP).  On September 3,

2013 the Covina City Council authorized the City to collaborate in the development of an Upper
San Gabriel River EWMP and a Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program ( CIMP) for the
group, as required by the Monitoring and Reporting Program( MRP) of the MS4 Permit.

The Upper San Gabriel River Watershed CIMP provides the details of the EWMP Group' s
monitoring program that covers the majority of the monitoring requirements of the MS4 Permit
for the City of Covina.  However, the CIMP does not include monitoring for the Harbor Toxic
Pollutants TMDL, which is required of Permittees in the Los Angeles River and San Gabriel

River watersheds, not just the Upper San Gabriel River EWMP Group members.

To facilitate the achievement of the objectives of the Harbor Toxic TMDL while accruing
financial savings and benefits from this cost-sharing arrangement, the Department of Public
Works recommends that Covina participate in the MOA.

The MOA proposes that the City of Covina collaborate with the Permittees noted in Exhibit A to
install three water quality monitoring stations and conduct monitoring at said stations to ensure
consistency with other regional monitoring programs and usability with other TMDL-related
studies. Covina and other participating Permittees are assessed costs based on the formula as
detailed in the MOA. The overall cost to Covina for the three year program will be a maximum

of$ 8, 616.40. The formula currently assumes the participation of the maximum number of MS4
Permittees required to comply with the monitoring requirements of the TMDL, however, it is
currently unknown how many MS4 Permittees will ultimately participate in the cost sharing of



the monitoring.  For that reason, an initial payment that includes the first year payment plus a
deposit that is 25% of the first year payment cost is due June 30, 2015 to account for possible

non-participation of some MS4 Permittees in the cost share for the Monitoring Costs

The initial payment amount and the two annual payment amounts represent the maximum dollar

amounts that Covina is required to submit to the GWMA, but may be reduced based on the final
number of MS4 Permittees that participate in the cost sharing for the Monitoring Costs.  In the

event that fewer than the maximum number of MS4 Permittees participate, the GWMA will

notify Covina in writing that the City' s cost share will be reduced accordingly

The GWMA has agreed to act as the fiduciary agent for the TMDL monitoring project. The
GWMA has experience with similar projects such as the Lower Los Angeles and Lower San

Gabriel River and Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Management Programs.

Key Elements of the MOA are listed below:
Obligates the City of Covina to pay an annual fee for participation in the monitoring.
Allows the City to terminate the agreement, but the deposit may be forfeited if not within
specified timeframe.

Includes in Covina' s annual payment a fee of 5% of Covina' s annual cost share to the

GWMA for contract administration.

Establishes the GWMA as the entity to contract with and process payments for
consultants.

Outlines a process for invoicing and payment.

Like the CIMP,  the Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL MOA provides for continued use of

LACFCD data and savings through coordination and economies of scale.  By coordinating the
monitoring requirements of this TMDL with other Permittees, the City is able to comply with the
MS4 Permit and Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL while reducing costs and administrative burden.

To meet the MS4 Permit deadline, the MOA must be signed by the City by June 14, 2015 so that
the City's participation can be documented in the EWMP Plan that must be submitted to the
Regional Board by June 28, 2015.

EXHIBITS

A.  Agreement Between the GWMA and the City of Covina for Cost Sharing for the Installation
of Monitoring Equipment and Monitoring Pursuant to the Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL.

Respectfully submitted,

Siobhan Foster/Director of Public Works

Public Works Department



04/ 06/ 15

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION INTEGRATED REGIONAL

WATER MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

AND

THE CITY OF COVINA

FOR COST SHARING FOR THE INSTALLATION OF MONITORING EQUIPMENT

AND MONITORING PURSUANT TO THE HARBOR TOXIC POLLUTANTS TMDL

This Agreement is made and entered into as of May 22, 2015, by and between
the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management Joint Powers
Authority (" GWMA"), a California Joint Powers Authority, and the City of Covina, ( the

Permittee").

RECITALS

WHEREAS,  the mission of the GWMA includes the equitable protection and
management of water resources within its area;

WHEREAS, for the purposes of this Agreement, the term " MS4 Permittees" shall
mean those public agencies that are co- permittees to a National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Permit Order  (" MS4

Permit") issued by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board;

WHEREAS, the United States Environmental Protection Agency established the
Total Maximum Daily Loads (" TMDL") for Toxic Pollutants on March 23, 2012, with the

intent of protecting and improving water quality in the Dominguez Channel and the
Greater Los Angeles and Long Beach Harbor Waters (" Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL");

WHEREAS, the Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL regulates certain discharges from
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (" NPDES") permit holders,  requiring
organization and cooperation among the Permittees;

WHEREAS, the Permittee manages, drains or conveys storm water into at least

a portion of the Los Angeles River including the estuary or Coyote Creek or the San
Gabriel River including the estuary;

WHEREAS, various MS4 Permittees desire to facilitate the achievement of the

objectives of the Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL by installing one monitoring station in
the Los Angeles River at Wardlow Road, one monitoring station in the San Gabriel
River near Spring Street, and one monitoring station in the Coyote Creek, also near
Spring Street and conducting monitoring at said monitoring stations  ( collectively
Monitoring Stations") to ensure consistency with other regional monitoring programs

and usability with other TMDL related studies;

WHEREAS, installation of the Monitoring Stations and future monitoring requires
administrative coordination for the various MS4 Permittees that the GWMA can provide;

Page 1 of 10

12664/ 0001/ 1816452- 2

Exhibit A,  13 Pages



04/ 06/ 15

WHEREAS,  individual MS4 permittees that are not GWMA members have

indicated a desire to participate in the cost sharing for the installation of the Monitoring
Stations and the costs of monitoring conducted at the Monitoring Stations ( collectively
Monitoring Costs");

WHEREAS, the GWMA Board of Directors authorized the GWMA to enter into

individual separate agreements with such individual MS4 Permittees ( which shall not

have voting rights in any group relating to the GWMA Members) for purposes of only
cost sharing in the Monitoring Costs;

WHEREAS,  the members of the GWMA are the Cities of Artesia,  Bell,  Bell

Gardens,   Bellflower,   Cerritos,   Commerce,   Cudahy,   Downey,   Hawaiian Gardens,

Huntington Park, La Mirada, Lakewood, Long Beach, Lynwood, Maywood, Montebello,
Norwalk, Paramount, Pico Rivera, Santa Fe Springs, Signal Hill, South Gate, Vernon,

Whittier, Central Basin Municipal Water District and the Long Beach Water Department
GWMA Members");

WHEREAS, because GWMA Members already currently pay annual membership
fees that pay for GWMA administrative costs, GWMA Members that participate in the
cost share for the Monitoring Costs shall pay a three percent (3%) administrative fee on

each payment to cover various administrative costs;

WHEREAS, MS4 Permittees that are not GWMA Members that participate in the
cost share for the Monitoring Costs shall pay a five percent ( 5%) administrative fee on

each payment to cover various administrative costs;

WHEREAS, currently a majority of MS4 Permittees tributary to the Los Angeles
and San Gabriel River systems have committed to cost share for the Monitoring Costs;

WHEREAS,  because of the financial savings and benefits resulting from this
cost-sharing arrangement, other MS4 Permittees may request to participate in the cost
sharing of the Monitoring Costs;

WHEREAS, the cost-share formula, set forth in Exhibit " A" of this Agreement,

currently assumes the participation of the maximum number of MS4 Permittees required
to comply with the monitoring requirements of the Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL;

WHEREAS,  it is currently unknown how many MS4 Permittees will ultimately
participate in the cost sharing of the Monitoring Costs;

WHEREAS,   because some definite maximum cost share amount per

participating Permittee is required for planning purposes, this Agreement requires each
participating Permittee to submit an initial payment that includes the first year payment
plus a deposit that is 25% of the first year payment cost identified in Exhibit "A" of this
Agreement, to account for possible non- participation of some MS4 Permittees in the

cost share for the Monitoring Costs;

Page 2 of 10

12664/0001/ 1816452- 2



04/ 06/ 15

WHEREAS, depending on how many MS4 Permittees ultimately participate in
the cost sharing for the Monitoring Costs, each participating Permittee' s annual cost
share amount will be adjusted and the GWMA will notify each participating Permittee of
its adjusted annual cost share amount in writing;

WHEREAS,  the " Initial Payment Amount"  and the " Annual Payment Amount"
identified in Section 8 (" Financial Terms") of this Agreement represent the maximum

dollar amounts that the Permittee is required to submit to the GWMA,  but may be
reduced based on the final number of MS4 Permittees that participate in the cost

sharing for the Monitoring Costs;

WHEREAS,  if the actual cost share amount is less than the Initial Payment

Amount paid by the Permittee, the GWMA will notify the Permittee and shall credit any
balance in excess of the actual cost share amount towards the Permittee' s " Annual
Payment Amount" in subsequent years;

WHEREAS, the Permittee desires to share in the Monitoring Costs;

WHEREAS,  the Permittee and the GWMA are collectively referred to as the
Parties";

WHEREAS,  the Parties have determined that authorizing GWMA to hire
additional consultant as necessary to install the Monitoring Stations and conduct the
monitoring required by the Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL will be beneficial to the
Parties;

WHEREAS,  the Permittee agrees to pay:  ( a)  its proportional share of the

Monitoring Costs to be incurred by the GWMA in accordance with the Cost Sharing
Formula reflected in Exhibit " A", ( b) a deposit of 25% of the " Initial Payment Amount"
and a deposit of 25%  of the  " Annual Payment Amount";   and   ( c)   applicable

administrative fees to cover administrative costs; and

WHEREAS, the role of the GWMA is to: ( 1) invoice and collect funds from the
Permittee to cover its portion of the Monitoring Costs;  and  ( 2)  hire and retain

consultants to install Monitoring Stations and conduct monitoring at the Monitoring
Stations.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set

forth herein, the Parties do hereby agree as follows:

Section 1.     Recitals. The recitals set forth above are fully incorporated as part
of this Agreement.

Section 2.     Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is for the Permittee to cost

share in the Monitoring Costs.

Section 3.     Cooperation. The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another to
achieve the purposes of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 10

12664/ 0001/ 1816452- 2



04/ 06/ 15

Section 4.     Voluntary Nature. The Parties voluntarily enter into this Agreement.

Section 5.     Binding Effect. This Agreement shall become binding on GWMA
and the Permittee.

Section 6.     Term.  This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2015 and shall
expire on June 30, 2018, unless terminated earlier pursuant to this Agreement.

Section 7.     Role of the GWMA.

a)     The GWMA shall invoice and collect funds from the Permittee to

cover the Monitoring Costs; and

b)      The GWMA shall administer the consultants'  contracts for the

Monitoring Costs.

Section 8.     Financial Terms.

a)      Initial Payment Amount.   The Permittee shall pay no more than
Four Thousand One Hundred Twenty-One Dollars ($ 4, 121. 00) for the initial payment

Initial Payment Amount") , for the 2015- 2016 fiscal year to the GWMA for managing
the installation of the Monitoring Stations and the monitoring data collected at the
Monitoring Stations for the 2015-2016 fiscal year.    This Initial Payment Amount

includes:  ( 1) the Permittee' s cost share amount (" Cost Share Amount") identified in

Exhibit  " A",  attached hereto and incorporated herein;  ( 2)  the administrative fee

identified in subsection ( c) of this Section 8; and ( 3) a deposit in the amount of 25% of

the Permittee' s Cost Share Amount identified in Exhibit " A".

b)     Annual Payment Amount.     For each subsequent fiscal year,

commencing with the 2016-2017 fiscal year, the Permittee shall pay no more than Two
Thousand Two Hundred Forty-Seven Dollars and Seventy Cents ($ 2, 247. 70) (" Annual

Payment Amount") annually on a fiscal year (July 1st to June 30th) basis to the GWMA in

exchange for the monitoring data collected from the Monitoring Stations.   This price

assumes the participation of the maximum number of MS4 Permittees subject to the
Harbor Toxic Pollutants TMDL.    This Annual Payment Amount includes:  ( 1)  the

Permittee' s Cost Share Amount identified in Exhibit  " A",  attached hereto and

incorporated herein; ( 2) the administrative fee identified in subsection ( c) of this Section
8;  and  ( 3)  a deposit in the amount of 25% of the Permittee' s Cost Share Amount
identified in Exhibit "A".

c)      Adjustment of Cost Share Based on Number of Participants.  The

Initial Payment Amount"  and the  "Annual Payment Amount"  identified in Section 8
Financial Terms") of this Agreement represent the maximum dollar amounts that the

Permittee is required to submit to the GWMA, but may be reduced based on the final
number of MS4 Permittees that participate in the cost sharing for the Monitoring Costs.
In the event that fewer than the maximum number of MS4 Permittees participate, the

GWMA will notify the Permittee in writing that the Permittee' s cost share amount will be
adjusted accordingly.   If the Permittee' s actual cost share amount plus administrative

Page 4 of 10

12664/ 0001/ 1816452- 2



04/ 06/ 15

costs are less than the Initial Payment Amount paid by the Permittee, the GWMA will
notify the Permittee in writing and shall credit any balance in excess of the actual cost
share amount towards the Permittee' s " Annual Payment Amount" in subsequent years;

d)     Administrative Costs.   As part of the Initial Payment Amount and

the Annual Payment Amount, the Permittee shall also pay its proportional share of the
GWMA's staff time for hiring the consultants and invoicing the Permittee,  audit

expenses and other overhead costs, including reasonable legal fees incurred by the
GWMA in the performance of its duties under this Agreement (" Administrative Costs").
The GWMA shall charge five percent ( 5%) of each Permittee' s Cost Share Amount

identified in Exhibit " A" to the Permittee' s annual invoice to cover the Permittee' s share
of the Administrative Costs.

e)      The Permittee' s Initial Payment Amount shall cover the 2015-2016

fiscal year and is due upon execution of this Agreement, but in no event later than June
30, 2015.  For each subsequent fiscal year, commencing with the 2016- 2017 fiscal year,
the GWMA shall submit annual invoices to the Permittee for the Annual Payment
Amount no later than the April 1st prior to the new fiscal year.

f)       Upon receiving an invoice from the GWMA, the Permittee shall pay
the invoiced amount to the GWMA within thirty (30) days of the invoice' s date.

g)      The Permittee shall be delinquent if its invoiced payment is not
received by the GWMA within forty- five  ( 45)  days after the invoice' s date.    If the

Permittee is delinquent, the GWMA will:  1) verbally contact the representative of the
Permittee;  and 2)  submit a formal letter from the GWMA Executive Officer to the
Permittee at the address listed in Section 12 of this Agreement.   If payment is not

received within sixty ( 60) days of the original invoice date, the GWMA may terminate
this Agreement.  However, no such termination may be ordered unless the GWMA first
provides the Permittee with thirty ( 30) days written notice of its intent to terminate the
Agreement.    The terminated Permittee shall remain obligated to GWMA for its

delinquent payments and any other obligations incurred prior to the date of termination.
If the GWMA terminates this Agreement because the Permittee is delinquent in its

payment, the Permittee shall no longer be entitled to the monitoring data collected from
the Monitoring Stations.

h)     Any delinquent payments by the Permittee shall accrue compound
interest at the average rate of interest paid by the Local Agency Investment Fund during
the time that the payment is delinquent.

Section 9.     Independent Contractor.

a)     The GWMA is, and shall at all times remain, a wholly independent
contractor for performance of the obligations described in this Agreement. The GWMA's
officers,  officials,  employees and agents shall at all times during the term of this
Agreement be under the exclusive control of the GWMA.  The Permittee cannot control

the conduct of the GWMA or any of its officers,  officials, employees or agents. The

Page 5 of 10

12664/0001/ 1816452- 2



04/ 06/ 15

GWMA and its officers,  officials, employees, and agents shall not be deemed to be
employees of the Permittee.

b)      The GWMA is solely responsible for the payment of salaries,
wages, other compensation, employment taxes, workers' compensation, or similar taxes

for its employees and consultants performing services hereunder.

Section 10.   Indemnification and Insurance.

a)     The Permittee shall defend,  indemnify and hold harmless the
GWMA and its officers,  employees,  and other representatives and agents from and
against any and all liabilities,  actions,  suits proceedings,  claims,  demands,  losses,

costs, and expenses, including legal costs and attorney' s fees, for injury to or death of
person( s),  for damage to property  ( including property owned by the GWMA)  for

negligent or intentional acts, errors and omissions committed by the Permittee or its
officers,   employees,   and agents,   arising out of or related to that Permittee' s

performance under this Agreement, except for such loss as may be caused by GWMA's
negligence or that of its officers,  employees,  or other representatives and agents,

excluding the consultant.

b)      GWMA makes no guarantee or warranty that any monitoring data
prepared by the consultants shall be approved by the relevant governmental authorities.
GWMA shall have no liability to the Permittee for the negligent or intentional acts or
omissions of GWMA's consultants.  The Permittee' s sole recourse for any negligent or
intentional act or omission of GWMA's consultants shall be against consultants and their
insurance.

Section 11.   Termination.

a)      The Permittee may terminate this Agreement for any reason, or no
reason, by giving the GWMA prior written notice thereof, but the Permittee shall remain
responsible for its entire Annual Payment Amount through the end of the current fiscal

year during which Permittee terminates the Agreement and shall not be entitled any
refund of any portion of said Annual Payment Amount.  Moreover, unless the Permittee

provides written notice of termination to the GWMA by February 15th immediately prior
to the new fiscal year, the Permittee shall also be responsible for its Annual Payment
Amount through the end of the new fiscal year ( e. g.,  If the Permittee terminates on

March 1st, 2016, the Permittee is responsible for the Annual Payment Amounts for both
FY 2015- 2016 and FY 2016-2017.   If the Permittee terminates on February 10, 2016,
the Permittee is responsible for its Annual Payment Amount only for FY 2015-2016, not
for FY 2016- 2017).   If the Permittee terminates the Agreement,  the Permittee shall

remain liable for any loss, debt, or liability otherwise incurred through the end of the new
fiscal year.

b)     The GWMA may, with a vote of the GWMA Board, terminate this
Agreement upon not less than thirty ( 30) days written notice to the Permittee.   Any
remaining funds not due and payable or otherwise legally committed to Consultant shall

Page 6 of 10

12664/0001/ 1816452- 2



04/ 06/ 15

be returned to the Permittee.

Section 12.   Miscellaneous.

a)      The Permittee has been accepted as a participant in the cost

sharing for the Monitoring Costs and shall not be entitled to appoint a representative or
to vote or participate in any way in decisions assigned to GWMA Members.  Participant

status entitles the Permittee only to the monitoring data collected from the Monitoring
Stations for any fiscal year in which the participant has paid its Annual Payment
Amount.

b)      Notices.  All Notices which the Parties require or desire to give

hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when delivered personally or
three ( 3) days after mailing by registered or certified mail ( return receipt requested) to
the following address or as such other addresses as the Parties may from time to time
designate by written notice in the aforesaid manner:

To GWMA:

Ms. Toni Penn

GWMA Administrative/Accounting Assistant
GWMA

16401 Paramount Boulevard

Paramount, CA 90723

To the Permittee:

Ms. Vivian Castro

Environmental Services Manager

City of Covina
125 E. College Street

Covina, CA 91723

vcastro@covinaca. gov

c)      Amendment. The terms and provisions of this Agreement may not
be amended, modified or waived, except by a written instrument signed by all Parties.

d)      Waiver. Waiver by either the GWMA or the Permittee of any term,
condition, or covenant of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term,
condition, or covenant. Waiver, by the GWMA or the Permittee, to any breach of the
provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision or a
waiver of any subsequent breach of any provision of this Agreement.

e)      Law to Govern:  Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted,

construed, and governed according to the laws of the State of California. In the event of
litigation between the Parties, venue shall lie exclusively in the County of Los Angeles.

Page 7 of 10

12664/0001/ 1816452- 2



04/ 06/ 15

f)       No Presumption in Drafting. The Parties to this Agreement agree

that the general rule than an agreement is to be interpreted against the Party drafting it,
or causing it to be prepared, shall not apply.

g)      Severability.  If any term,  provision,  condition or covenant of this
Agreement is declared or determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be
affected thereby and this Agreement shall be read and construed without the invalid,
void, or unenforceable provisions(s).

h)      Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior or
contemporaneous agreements, whether written or oral, with respect thereto.

i)       Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which taken together shall
constitute but one and the same instrument, provided, however, that such counterparts
shall have been delivered to all Parties to this Agreement.

j)       Legal Representation.  All Parties have been represented by
counsel in the preparation and negotiation of this Agreement.  Accordingly,  this

Agreement shall be construed according to its fair language.

k)      Authority to Execute this Agreement. The person or persons

executing this Agreement on behalf of Permittee warrants and represents that he or she
has the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Permittee and has the
authority to bind Permittee.

Page 8 of 10

12664/ 0001/ 1816452- 2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be

executed on their behalf, respectively, as follows:

DATE:       LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION

INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS

AUTHORITY

Christopher S. Cash

GWMA Chair

DATE:       PERMITTEE

City of Covina

Signature

Print Name

Print Title

Page 9 of 10

12664/ 0001/ 1816452- 2



EXHIBIT " A"

COST SHARE MATRIX

ATTACHED

Page 10 of 10

12664/0001/ 1816452- 2



u° ,•.; o a 0° o N N U QI o N a s   , n ..   o o w
a m n a o 0

N 10 w m w b M a a N UI w Ia N n
n

Ian .( N N
o en UI

ti N
co N

O      , 
01 0 0

m U  • Cr N ti N N  • a UI UI , n L
a

a1 n • a1 co CO n    • CO CO w `. m m m m  . nw a1 co
C m ai

0•

N N   ./ T VF VT VT N V> N u! ut M . n Vl VI. A. A. A VT VI VT N N V1 N VT N N m N. m n

To'  12
p L1 IA

N N tn.     N V1 N N N U1 VI

Td C

N0Q w

8
E a O V M

N
O Ion

a
N 41 ~ W M

Uaf O w 8 Owl .'". n a a M Vf N a1
b m O

a' a

m
M twn N ' N O w VI     ° a .N M.7-1

9 N w Vt VT N   ' A V,N Val VT N V! VT VT VT VT N h N
A6 VI VT VT' A. M/

1 N N N N
V1 N LT N V1 VT'

A
VT'

A
VT V, N N

Q tA

c n
o al

eo L
Et CN w

0 1a a ID b b a
1a

a 1a a 10 10 a b a
1a .

mi . M_ N N . M1 M . a_
i . 3. 3 .3 N . Vi a 3 .ay . ai ti N 3 .a.     

O O IAu

m UI UI UI N UI N UI U1 m m UI UI N in UI N 1/ 1

N M co M co m m M M Men m m M N N r N N N N n CO CO CO w w CO COw CO CO CO 00 CO w CO

NN
N./ T N N N N VI VT VT N VT u! N VT VT V! VI N./ T N VT N VT V} N ut N N./ T N VT N N H V1 H V1 VT N N N

CO
V

VT

MC VI
L d O O a n 01 UI n O n 01 UI LO O VI . My n N N 01 UI 00 LO UI O apa UI N N LA

pp
01 N t0 N 0 0

o L
V M N N a W V v ill n .~-1 o cn o o m W m o n Uw1 of a m v v UPI b ry n Cr n n CO

IO - o0.     Nw a N IA
L C

IA

G N N N VT Vr N VT{ A N N VT
N

N VT V1 VI VT 1A N N UT u1 N tn. Vl VT VT VT VT N LT N N lA VI N VNT N N .01
A I

2
co   `  t

Ol

a o

JC  _

CC
L A

G

N

y ry In

ad V
A m   ( 0 N. my N N N ani

7.3 m n re, 

not M n cn N n trn

N .
N. O IND n 0 ^ .

n. .. N N N N aa, A n .Ooy to    , M ry , N

I.A.
l0 a M In V1 a     .. IO 01 v°     N N UI N In    . lO

N N
N al N.~

A
V1 N N N N N N N./ T VI N v1 N H VT VI V1 N V1 V1 to   '

A
oo VT VT VI VT VT N VT oo V1 VT to V1 N

V in T' A 4
R 0)   g m
o TA al O
H 00 g  •„

8
y

M M M m m M m m m m m m M M M M
1O 10 iO I° M M M m M M M m M M M M m m N N NLO LO

L oNNNUtutututNmvlut UIUIUIutut0MMOOIMMMMMaaa aaaaaaatoaaa    ' NN • 
N

Q N A
10 ID b 10 ID 10 b t0 b t0 t0 IO b ID b

Si
v

CO J VT N V1 N N VT V1 V• N N Vl N N V> VT N y U1 U1 N

2 m In N VT N N N V1 VT 1. VT V1 N V• VI N V1 V. VT N VT VT V1 M V1 H
C

COU

o

C

N eeeeeemelenee a eeeeaeleo * * ease egeeeeee eeo ee0 o e g
M O M M ut a O CI n 10 lO n O O m w a N m 01 v N a IA VI N a N VI N 01 ry a

m . i oio .•i y .. .- i ac: 00000 , .ioniooco .. .' 000 .•. 000c .: 0000     .; o a o
r

E
0

ti 00 v

L.       a
CO

a T b CO
a CO N N  .. UI O 10 n N ID   ~

O CO O a .Ny N
b b UI O w e C j

co
O o u m N

m aO1 w M tto O co
Inn 0 N m o 0U1 u1 n On • QI O m o

01 01 n I ti
IO 01 a 01 O0 h m O O

O

ti ti .
w-

I . Ni
w - 

N
N a01 3 M N N n 0 m

n u1 w n n E E

yd
V y C U1 CO U1 V N

a     „ y
N V l0 U1 V M V N

Q

m

L E.
a

c
N N

o

m o
o

a d
o

co
a c  >    n

a

c 3 v a
x 3

c
y n N
00 3 a o

Z c c v d m
C

y v
E y e a

o w m L o u
m ° 

o w V
c

y

o E ¢   °   c
0 2 N a1 S

O
e ` C ei   .` Ip

i. J a p eJ M J G! — N a 9     .
0.,

C
2 E , C

y
E a a c   '° a c c

a w ( 7 b r a ° c 3 m E . c
f

4 m a r 2 A °      E 3 o p n cot YI    ,     Q

t m
a a

u
o 0 o N o c c E 3 y c c L° o c

L

u m '° o     - - E a c > E E g 10 3 0 3

u ¢ m v 5 = 23 -. 2 2 a K v1 In Ion g 0 2 3 2 a a i Ion . i '4 . 152`   2 ' v1 m m u° 0 2 2 > ci t.9 w I°n  . 5 2 v
a

0
i i w
c e a In

G
od y Ur I N

Od0
D

Od9 q N i0
y C C N L

E a
s a

m p `w m X Cr

z N N 0 m d
0

C ?      a p a
a N d N d d u a

d LL

w 3 33 Ft m s
u

El



O m CO M 01 CO 01 Q   . a O1 M m M ID 10 00 Cl Q N LO 8
O

u
N 01 N 1f N 0 Q 0 10 N m Q m Cr. 0 0 N l0 O 1 N V1 If 1 0 Cl 01 Q N

CIn Oml CO
N

co
N

00
o n N V1 N M O Q N co m W V1 M M ^ Tr ID N V1 N ID Q N Q

n
cce

I/ O N Vf N V> N N. 00 N N N 1/ 1 N 010 N M N
0 a/ 1 N V1 Vl Vl V1 VI N Vf VI V1 N VV N N VT N Vf V> N V• N N N N

d

d j

F

0 w

0 cd

N cd

c

W 0 0

i d 0 U
p

N „ '. 
O

Q m m , N Q O Q m   . a M   . 

m
00 OO m Q tO O

M V n O m W 0 O n CO m nt p CO CO ID n p NI p N

H N b W v?   V. VT N u V> N " r N n N   " N N ti . r.71. N N " ti N N VI

v
N N N N N N N u}     N N VF

NQ

Cr etd
o a

m cry
83 .4 01 0101010101000000 ry ry ry N O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o ry ry ry ry N1 V1 N V1 V1 V1 Q Q Q Q n n n N n n n n n Q Q Q v

N CO 00 CO CO CO CO CO 01 m 01 m 01 m e. 1 N Vl VI N Vl N 1 Vl 0p
V N V! V! aA u> V1 I/ O N v> an N 1/ 0 N

N N N V)
an N NNN N U) N N an.

N V• h a/ 1     
N

CO
N

MO
C V,
gm 13 lil•
L O Q m N m m m . i O N CO N a N V1 m m N Q m n LO Ln N O 1 In m m N p pO

OV V M Al
N m N O Q N . i M M Q m m Vl N m N VI M n O Ill0

L VI m n Vl 1l1 Q D n Q
n

Q N m 3 00 Q Q n o 00 0 . a 1 3 , , 0

M A
M M ni V e ti V 0 Ill VI N N N M V n1 O ni? ' In

C I d

O F N Vf In in Vr N a/ 0 I/ O VF I/ O UT N, N V1 N N /0 I/ O VF an aA I/ O N Vf N V, VV N N I/ O N N

A

J a 0

gE  «    - " W   ° °° 0 a m v m 3 o 8 m° [, 1 n M n 3 m a Vo m N m m N m V. o ,  , Nry
V N 9 N

E VF
V!'" N   "

V) N aA N,, - N N N a N
1 a N,,

N
N a an N,, N Vl ut     . N

X0 N

I—
co

CO g
w  =

m m m m m M M N N N N m m M m V1 in VI Vl l 1 1 1 1 1 m m m M
O

m m m m m 2't
a a Q Q a a Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q

I^

L Q .
c'
c' v c c Q n n n n n n o 0 o e g o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o e c o N

@ H r- r.~    NN NNN   '  ' N 0
S m V. N N N VI N N N V. t4 V) N N N N N V, N h Vf VT N Vf Vf Vf N V! VI N aA IX

v.  

0QI
CO

O

LI

y

b Q 0 0 0 CO b n n n M m 00 A. n Q CO b oo m oo Q 1 n o a0 Vl

81 o en O ci o 0 o N ni u; v . t N In ni V IA o M N N o . a n; N ni u; .+ ni . m a'o

0

v

y o
Q . n rv. o o to

m e m n   '      °
m

00
Q

Q Q Q ao o v o m m ry m v 0 m m a CO CO N VI ry N m   ' '.   °
m a IO b

o m m Q M l0 N n O 01 Ill N t0 Vl ry N . a N Ol IO m N . 4 00 n .  . 

00 M E ovi a e of N °
Q vi vi r oo + vi o a.. N vi m vi a? .: a ri ui to 1

iio*-5-

o

M O
O a,

C C
9

a '>,   C

i C a O
0 0   °

c 3
r,   N I

y 3 c

T
v

d ra EE d j '

Le-
0

p°  _a a c      '" `   v o
u      ^      

d
f j i

o

cd
v ? a d ° m o 2

A ` 
E' w ° 

Ed
c E   ° o d O m y LL

Y
c a

w

c 8 3

m c :     
o3

n   ¢      ¢   

e

r u   ° ' 
g ' E v > c ' 

a      > E   — ` m 3 dc E c t 2   « _

3
v      3 °   3 p

u ¢ ¢ mof :  m  7E « emu « a . n oo N 3 . -   o z 0

n

To
G

i
an

d

vaL z

To*     d W ry
c '     d W A 33

R N
d Qd 7

cE o d v B
C 3Z N L: ,       y 0A C

O       =       
d Y d

A d d J
a`+     a

o eke W3a 3 6 s



o a co a co m n al c o m o O °
u O n

N
n b N c m O l0

N O O
O ry 0 M C N N V l0 ti T Np N N N N N N N N N N N N N

O

0 ra c

o  ,t^    

o     ' m m m v m N

u ^ 4 L m m ^ 4 v  •.n:
l N N FA

N N N N
N

N
N lot V.I. N N ry

C N
Q

N

OJ y

o  >O 9C
V

N
N

NO N N N N N N N N N N E:2,   O
T, c v v a a a a a a o

0

s

N. d.- N N
ryvs N N N N N N N N N N Ncoto

OA

L•  y O N V tO n N ap1 m `
i   " 0 0

O 13 u
l0 t4VI N N n 0 W O V

N . n 2 v
nnN N N N0 i 45 V N V   4/ 5 N r-I

C L p v

o L A
C

N a
J f0 a N
c

o
Y o O W n a1 m N m m 0N o n

N

worD
N 6 N

O n t0 0 . I m   ' n. m t0 ' 

01 : 
N

H  -      .   V1 a N vi / N t of 01 01   —

V L  -  
R

N a
N N N N N N N N N N

N

X U
O 0 01 O

Y

L  `  N
Q O m

N m
rmi ti N m m m m N N

L
V t0 tO tD l0 to l0 l0 l0 to t0

N

N N N N N N

2
N N N N N N N N N Nm N H 0

OV
O

U

d O " art N 0o0 In N N O . O . G Z'
Q N N m . 4 Ol N a ti ti W N

O

O Ed L
wV. N N m 00 m 00 t0 m N 0 al O

m V tO n.   m   . 4 m m o 0   . o

I
o

m

o

tri o to
N .. ri to tri m ai o

N
c

E
a
O

2F
m°

v

a

a
a
g

e a
N y

y c n 3 a  °   c
5 a c m y C

Ei
u

m
v o v °    Ea v . x LL n c_

y y A 3 2 Y m 3 m « =' 
c m Z

C.       c

iJ Q u o =     ° z N 3 S D ; / 2 3U'  2 0 O

d

N

o

a
u

1i
e

E
w X

N C Y
Z N C
a

LLd
0 3 r u

tiw 3 6 5



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment A

Attachment A

LACFCD Service Area

Page A- 1

Exhibit E,  179 Pages



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment A

Los Angeles County Flood Control District( LACFCD) Background Information

In 1915, the Los Angeles County Flood Control Act established the LACFCD and empowered it
to manage flood risk and conserve stormwater for groundwater recharge.  In coordination with

the United States Army Corps of Engineers,  the LACFCD developed and constructed a
comprehensive system that provides for the regulation and control of flood waters through the
use of reservoirs and flood channels.    The system also controls debris,  collects surface

stormwater from streets,  and replenishes groundwater with stormwater and imported and
recycled waters.  The LACFCD covers the 2, 753 square- mile portion of Los Angeles County
south of the east-west projection of Avenue S, excluding Catalina Island.  It is a special district

governed by the County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors, and its functions are carried out
by the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works.  The LACFCD service area is shown

in Figure A-1.

Unlike cities and counties, the LACFCD does not own or operate any municipal sanitary sewer
systems, public streets, roads, or highways.  The LACFCD operates and maintains storm drains
and other appurtenant drainage infrastructure within its service area.   The LACFCD has no

planning, zoning, development permitting, or other land use authority within its service area.
The permittees that have such land use authority are responsible under the MS4 Permit for
inspecting and controlling pollutants from industrial and commercial facilities, development
projects, and development construction sites. ( Permit, Part II.E, p. 17.)

The MS4 Permit language clarifies the unique role of the LACFCD in stormwater management
programs:  "[ g] iven the LACFCD' s limited land use authority, it is appropriate for the LACFCD
to have a separate and uniquely-tailored stormwater management program. Accordingly, the
stormwater management program minimum control measures imposed on the LACFCD in Part

VI.D of this Order differ in some ways from the minimum control measures imposed on other

Permittees. Namely, aside from its own properties and facilities, the LACFCD is not subject to
the Industrial/Commercial Facilities Program, the Planning and Land Development Program, and
the Development Construction Program. However, as a discharger of storm and non- stormwater,

the LACFCD remains subject to the Public Information and Participation Program and the Illicit

Connections and Illicit Discharges Elimination Program. Further, as the owner and operator of

certain properties, facilities and infrastructure, the LACFCD remains subject to requirements of a
Public Agency Activities Program." ( Permit, Part II.F, p. 18.)

Consistent with the role and responsibilities of the LACFCD under the Permit, the EWMPs and
CIMPs reflect the opportunities that are available for the LACFCD to collaborate with permittees

having land use authority over the subject watershed area.  In some instances, the opportunities

are minimal; however, the LACFCD remains responsible for compliance with certain aspects of

the MS4 permit as discussed above.

During the development of the CIMP, LACFCD infrastructure was evaluated for monitoring
opportunities within the EWMP area shown in Figure A-2.  The LACFCD will be collaborating
with the groups for all of the monitoring.

Page A-2



Z

1u
1..

H

d a
z C
a

t

w

Z zC

r    '%.,,,, 3.7.., -..,=..-       66
c

M

CL)      tNSr

i.

v

2
b

t
Q a

9

y

1.  '',7i'',',.
a'''°.\../... am""

mm."'",'  

g

a.

i-,  wA

ii
ad

il'  T   „
r.1 Rte,   0

yy
S b u

o Q

T5

4'
1IA a          

c'      .
a

sQk

ta

cn

J v
V6e 2

OD

1q

a   , aJ

O

w

4 p aVS
I

a
a

4.1

o

L

tein

on

C

d

R
C

n

ooV
Z

a w C

O 2
A

a-

m

w

r
0
0
7



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment A

Los Angeles

River

Watershed
invindaie

San Gabriel

River

GeV Watershed

Duarte

4 INI Bradbury
Monrovia

y ..   
Duarte-

III
y

tc
YlY 3 Azusa t'-'     

Claremont
Glendora

a 1 t
ar La Verne

1 r

Cov

4.      I

Baldwin Park   
ma

San

Bernardino
El Monte San Dimas

is
County

West Covina Pomona

South El Mont

La Puente
Walnut

I

9 rr

1 Y'     Industry

nI1flMM      
a Habra Heights

11# 41P''
41141111

I

La Wade X
t`     t'Paramount Orange

4ti County
Bellflower _ 

of ,

11,   
a Coyote Creek N

Watershed

ALos
f Miles—Cerritos   -

a^

Watershed ti 0 1 2 4

Sign I. Hrf7 Streams

Watershed Boundary

Dams Reservoirs Lakes

Long Beach
City Boundary

P Alamitos
r^, Los Angeles County Flood Control DISInCI Area m E WSW GrouO

Bay. 
Los Angeles County Flood Control Dslncl Area rn Angeles Natonal Forest

fd^, Lon Beach

Figure A-2. Los Angeles County Flood Control District Area in USGR EWMP Group

Page A-4



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

Attachment B

Monitoring Location Fact Sheets

Page B- 1



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 1 RECEIVING WATER SITES

B- 1. 1 San Gabriel River Long-Term Assessment Site

Waterbody Waterbody Historical

Name Type Site ID Site ID Site Type Latitude Longitude

SGR
Main Stem S14

MS4 ME LTA and
34. 01277    - 118. 06381

Reach 3 S14 TMDL

General Description:  LTA monitoring site located at a historic stream gage station below San Gabriel
River Parkway in Pico Rivera. This monitoring site is a historic and current MS4 Mass Emission Station.
Although this monitoring site is located in SGR Reach 2, it is located near the terminus of SGR Reach 3
and is representative of the conditions within SGR Reach 3.

WillIPPIPIWOrAllpilarjrAirr

I 1

c C n7

Glendora

77:_./....)

Eu  ..  1

r- 7-
f' 

11
lOVina

1

BaldPark

44IP
411101h

County
l

r

t.La•Puente   ^ . 1

r
o.uny ndusfry -!  ,      

i7

dipihi

II

i

t1     ; `      S14 Drainage Area

S14 Drainage Area

4 S14 Monitoring Site

nSan Gabriel River WMA
1 HUC12s

Basin Plan Water Body

0 1 2 4 6 8 Storm Drain System
1 Miles

Page B- 2



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

u

fa o

w

or   '''' -'
1-  '' l   '''''...-IV.

71

W4464-r4p. . -,,
v,i4., •  1       .  _       _ , ,

um r

z

S14 Aerial View

its.;     
ka.,

r

s.

e
rt, f

S14 Looking Downstream

Page B-3



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 1. 2 Coyote Creek Long-Term Assessment Site

Waterbody Waterbody Historical

Name Type
Site ID

Site ID
Site Type Latitude Longitude

Coyote
Tributary S13

MS4 ME LTA and
33. 80982    - 118. 07671Creek S13 TMDL

General Description: This monitoring location is situated at an existing Army Corps of Engineers
stream gage below Spring Street in the lower San Gabriel River WMA. This is a historic and current
MS4 ME station. The LSGR WMP Group will coordinate the monitoring with LACFCD.

14111111raffillifieggirlripirappl

t 1G/
L'  .',  c_,----   

f1 County

Glendora
r

4.

County

ts Pue        
r   •

i Q' J ue  ?
r ,.: 4111" 1:Y

County iL1Jt1 J'      Nat`l,OM

4t-A

f
7

4101

401

F

S13 Drainage Area

S13 Drainage Area

S13 Monitoring Site

WSan Gabriel River MA

HUC12s

Basin Plan Water Body

111 i

1 0 1 2 4 6 8
Miles

Storm Drain System

Page B-4



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

rTm
Vt(L.   .....: 61ZZOIC= SMS

I,

i.--.
ivia&a),Alk, 

111.    '''''''''', ,, z----

y     •,,,.. 0 t

4

eft:,

t,  
106.

1

10,

4):

I
S13 Aerial View

t

i 1

do"

S13 Looking Downstream

Page B- 5



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 1. 3 San Gabriel River Reach 4 TMDL Site

Waterbody Waterbody Historical

Name Type
Site ID

Site ID
Site Type Latitude Longitude

SGR Reach
Main Stem USGR R4 RAM N/ A TMDL 34. 07296     - 118. 002004

General Description: TMDL monitoring site located in San Gabriel River Reach 4 at control structure just
downstream from Ramona Boulevard.

IP°

coynty'  

j. Glendora   --

Covin .--'  

r; r.7r ? rrk

it-
j'

44"    4
County•'.„,,,

A 4
41likie

f
r

r111   .

r.

I

E:r r_.

934 _
o?     USGR R4_RAM Drainage Area

I

sr
USGR_ R4_ RAM Drainage Area

USGR_ R4_ RAM TMDL Monitoring Site

WINN San Gabriel River MA

HUC12s

Basin Plan Water Body

y 4 6 8 Storm Drain System
Miles

Page B- 6



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

r3
r.

I x

p.  rti,

USGR_R4_ RAM Aerial View

a   

USGR_ R4_ RAM Looking Upstream

Page B- 7



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 1. 4 San Jose Creek Reach 1 TMDL Site

Waterbody Waterbody Historical

Name Type
Site ID

Site ID
Site Type Latitude Longitude

SJC Reach
Tributary USGR_ SJC_ C- 1

L

C
SD

TMDL 34. 03339    - 118. 01700

General Description: TMDL monitoring site located in San Jose Creek and is situated upstream of the
San Jose Creek WRP discharges. The LACSD has historically monitored this site.

wisimpoinriviluirpieoro101.
J

f

1       `' F 7„.      n"ty

Glendora       ,

7
111  .

i .    
0_  _   Covi, F

F.:..,   ,

A

Nmill    .01;7% 7 tfil1TJ

11W 4111

r     

r
Or

i  

O w USGR_SJC_ C1 Drainage Area

iiimp`

4.,V4:

1
USGR_ SJC_ C1 Drainage Area

y/ 

USGR_ SJC_ C1 TMDL Monitoring Site

MI WSan Gabriel River MA

HUC12s

Basin Plan Water Body

BMiles Storm Drain System

Page B- 8



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

JO&      

Jpre
f. F

USGR SJC C- 1 Location View

E

4

s

s

USGR_ SJC_ C- 1 Looking Upstream

Page B- 9



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 1. 5 Walnut Creek TMDL Site

Waterbody Waterbody Historical

Name Type
Site ID

Site ID
Site Type Latitude Longitude

Walnut
LACDPW

Creek Tributary USGR_WCW_BP
SGLT506

TMDL 34. 06272    - 117. 98600

Wash

General Description: TMDL monitoring site located in the lined portion of Walnut Creek just upstream
of the confluence with the San Gabriel River upstream of the Baldwin Park Blvd bridge.

mlerimPirwi), __ srA1111. 11, 0111r   '

j Count

f/
Glendora

v

ov

Ai i. i.)) y Park

County

La•Puente   - J,       '

iii.
fir

d
y( Y..41`      

7r
r,  ,

mai     ,

1Sp?y

e E

r
i

4'' Al!

iii it  ,

fir
1

USGRi.. ..  
r

t1.      ----- LL,,,._, USGR_WCW_BP Drainage Area

USGR_ WCW_BP Drainage Area

WCW_BP TMDL Monitoring Site

I WSan Gabriel River MA

HUC12s

Basin Plan Water Body

BMiles      Storm Drain System

Page B- 10



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

USGR_WCW_BP Location View

USGR_WCW_BP Looking Upstream

Page B- 11



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 1. 6 Puddingstone Reservoir TMDL Site

Waterbody Waterbody Historical

Name Type
Site ID

Site ID
Site Type Latitude Longitude

Pudding-
stone Lake USGR_ PUD_ RES Various TMDL 34. 085689   - 117. 803300

Reservoir

General Description: The monitoring site will be located at the center of Puddingstone Reservoir.
The exact location of the monitoring site may vary due to hydrologic conditions affecting reservoir
levels. Fish sample collection may require locations dependent on species of fish ( Largemouth bass for
mercury and common carp for OC pesticide and PCBs)

41~ ,

1

Glendora

C„     .,,,, ,,,,ovina

lei rz rk

County

i

f

3JFJ`

4iJ f1

USGR_ PUD_ RES Drainage Area

J    )     USGR_ PUD_ RES Drainage Area

JP

USGR_ PUD_ RES TMDL Monitoring Site

San Gabriel River WMA

HUC12s

Basin Plan Water Body

0 1 2 4 6 8 Storm Drain System
IIICIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII Miles

Page B- 12



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

Via:

I

PI/ "`tit       te,      i,.      

I

I
4

m l  ,       

6

OD

TO

j

USGR PUD RES Aerial View

Page B- 13



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B-2 SELECTED STORMWATER OUTFALL SITES

B- 2. 1 BI 1701 - Line A

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Walnut
Baldwin 126

Creek
Park

BI 1701 - Line A
inches

SW Outfall 34. 062694   - 117. 988920
Wash

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Walnut Creek Wash downstream
of Baldwin Park Blvd.

Y4 ir]   <----'

i

Al4fr
e

I

d m 0 175

v

l

4 a

2
5 A

i4

J-

Legend

Potential Outfall

NN Residential
t.

Commercialilndustnal

Open Space 1  . ',
1..,,,„,4

Agriculture a

Page B- 14



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

K,

Cit
41L'  'gplif‘   ,,,,

vt‘ iiii.:$:.

1% '......   **

6    -
00,  

iir  _,,
A,,I.,'_ 4„.

7,,,,,

t4

v 44

aA•       

ii00
BI 1701 - Line A Aerial View

Mk
k :

v

i•

g
r

x

4' iw#-?

r

BI 1701 - Line A

Page B- 15



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B-2. 2 PD 2425 —Sorenson Ave Drain

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

North Fork PD 2425—

Coyote County Sorenson Ave 36 inches SW Outfall 33. 936115 118. 036951

Creek Drain

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to North Fork Coyote Creek
upstream of Telegraph Rd.   _,...... 

ail, . 4..-...7111*.  -

i,      I

E    ,"

o

L'f44stn''   

v

g

et

rn
1

Legend

Potential OuHall

Residential

i Commercial! Industr al

Open Space
ri.,,  

Agr culture a- ws

Page B- 16



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program,    .,       Attachment B

ails.   

ft•'1*"""   • 1*,'   3' 3

IA%.      

4,

i t-.. , .     .,-

f---    
4,

9 11Pr--.•,..--.‘-:—

f      .;,„:   fr.,   tAr----..•;,  /tit''. eiZat "" ' —
Jr3 1

3    •  
Lk       '' °   '—' 4111 ,...

x  .,,$pfie?      4. .11 . :       ,.., - iiiy,      1:%t
n:

9114\ 114
di.       /.   4

1. i 41:  i 4'  1.-.
y

t*

il

7,  ,      r::
4. ,   

44,--   -,   -
A. i 14,...•.,     -   -  . 6.....

PD 2425—Sorenson Ave Drain Aerial View
Y.•' r, '  -  .;     '   '` tt,'•'' ' 4-• ."

i" '',,;' t' 1,,, .•    e

In•••%

41, • t.•

7...'    '
9,,„

t...

9   -       9. 9,   Alit,--', 94".,:
9•;!:‘ 9_, _ 9_, _    4..•••,   '

1

lit

9

W•••e•     ik..f/.•
9.••   '-'.:' '     

9  '     -   •'`-

1 9' .'   , ..-• l,,    .  -'4.10''.:   "

4.-   '-   ••     
9

1.,.

PD 2425—Sorenson Ave Drain

Page B- 17



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 2. 3 BI 1123

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Big Dalton
Covina BI 1123 81 inches SW Outfall 34. 086451   - 117. 915529

Wash

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Big Dalton Wash. Located on
W Badillo St east of N Lark Ellen Ave at nearest manhole upstream of city boundary.

t.

it

r

oy,    
T

i;

R

r,

0 t-     0

r, Np.
iii;      

71 R

Legendg F*      

y4
11,4 k

r

Le

J
Potential Outfall

Residential 4

Commercialilndustnal '      r•-,.,,,   ra....

Open Space

Agriculture

Page B- 18



Attachment BUSGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program

4 f a!

ei-

r)

i t

I..       

Ti

A'

4 yarA.,   4     '    '     ii,  .....     .

4,,    {
Z r

BI 1123 Aerial View

t 1t
TO r     ,i°.

QV1NA

f*

7
f

Y.'.. x?
d

Y'. s X# Yr.. ,
w

i6

113 x111   { 7'     
x ",     :

V e . tip

BI 1123

Page B- 19



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 2. 4 BI 3701 - Line C

Water Group
Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude

Body Member

Big Dalton
Glendora BI 3701 - Line C 60 inches SW Outfall 34. 128306   - 117. 846414

Wash

General Description:  New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Big Dalton Wash downstream of
E Route 66.

J

ea

r,   

I

Legend

t
e Potential Outfall

Residential
c'^

Commercial.!lndustnal

Open Space

Agriculture

S q
y 

ww

ti 5i uz g-

Page B- 20



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

GF1bV Gt12 rIv)

fait
zusts

f  .`

ttE

u   :

BI 3701 - Line C Aerial View

N,4 kt-

BI 3701 - Line C

Page B- 21



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 2. 5 BI 4301 —Industry
Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

San Jose

Creek Industry BI 4301 - Industry 72 inches SW Outfall 34. 020765   - 117. 971385

Reach 1

General Description:  New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to San Jose Creek Reach 1 just
downstream of Turnbull Canyon Rd.

44
y: «

075 015        01 Irn

Legend srr+

Potential Outfall

Residential
r

Commercial: IndustnW

1; 4
41n Open Space

0,  4 y
a Agr;culture

Page B- 22



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

i

4 I

s

1,

1 4301 - Industry Aerial View

f

I

a
t   ,„' °

a'

w.

fire

BI 4301 - Industry

Page B-23



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

B- 2. 6 BI 4801 —Line B

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Puente
La Puente BI 4801 —Line B 66 inches SW Outfall 34. 033704   - 117. 950301

Creek

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Puente Creek. Located on
N Hacienda Blvd just north of Glendora Ave at nearest manhole upstream of subsurface discharge to
Puente Creek.

MEV

te

t` ; 1065 011Wes

Legend s

Potential Outfall t°.',.  •

Residential k r f

COmmerCialrintlUStr at

Open space

Agriculture

Page B-24



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment B

r

s
4

7 i 4 t s v n

ci   /III&       ii salt...    .

1,:?'.. /   "'''. ''':''''''      

41

i  '''''''.    

41  ,:

ti.,,,.
1,\,\.\.„.

1)\   

in    , .., '''

t

7,'„:„,'   ,:-:,',it-,-.

1).,,,,,_

its
r

1.   1f.

4/

0' / 4.,,..,/ H '.',..-*',.   ' 

1r    ,    
ill

BI 4801 —Line B Aerial View

i

t t

1 k+     
y,    '+  r` kc

i .    Ilitie- ',  :.  ,. _ - - 
4a 1' 1.

i

BI 4801 —Line B

Page B- 25



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Attachment C

Analytical and Monitoring Procedures

Page C- 1



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Attachment C details the monitoring procedures that will be utilized to collect and analyze
samples to meet the goals and objectives of the CIMP and the Permit. The details contained

herein serve as a guide for ensuring that consistent protocols and procedures are in place for
successful sample collection and analysis. The attachment is divided into the following sections:

Analytical Procedures

Sample Method and Sample Handling
Quality Control Sample Collection
Instrument/Equipment Calibration and Frequency
Data Management

C- 1 ANALYTICAL PROCEDURES

The following subsections detail the analytical procedures for data generated in the field and in
the laboratory.

C- 1. 1 Field Parameters

Portable field meters will measure field parameters within specifications outlined in Table C- 1.

Table C- 1.

Analytical Methods and Project Reporting Limits for Field Parameters

Parameter Method Range Project RL

Current velocity Electromagnetic 0. 5 to+ 20 ft/s 0. 05 ft/s

pH Electrometric 0— 14 pH units NA

Temperature High stability thermistor 5— 50 oC NA

Dissolved oxygen Membrane 0— 50 mg/ L 0. 5 mg/ L

Turbidity Nephelometric 0— 3000 NTU 0.2 NTU

Conductivity Graphite electrodes 0— 10 mmhos/cm 2. 5 umhos/ cm

RL— Reporting Limit NA— Not applicable

C- 1. 2 Analytical Methods and Method Detection and Reporting Limits

Method detection limits ( MDL) and reporting limits ( RLs) must be distinguished for proper
understanding and data use. The MDL is the minimum analyte concentration that can be
measured and reported with a 99% confidence that the concentration is greater than zero. The RL

represents the concentration of an analyte that can be routinely measured in the sampled matrix
within stated limits and with confidence in both identification and quantitation.

For this CIMP, RLs must be verifiable by having the lowest non-zero calibration standard or
calibration check sample concentration at or less than the RL. RLs have been established in this

CIMP based on the verifiable levels and general measurement capabilities demonstrated for each

method. These RLs should be considered as maximum allowable RLs to be used for laboratory
data reporting. Note that samples diluted for analysis may have sample- specific RLs that exceed
these RLs. This will be unavoidable on occasion. However, if samples are consistently diluted to
overcome matrix interferences, the analytical laboratory will be required to notify the EWMP
Group regarding how the sample preparation or test procedure in question will be modified to
reduce matrix interferences so that project RLs can be met consistently.

Page C- 2



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Analytical methods and RLs required for samples analyzed in the laboratory are summarized in
Table C- 2, Table C-3, and Table C- 4 for analysis in water, sediment, and tissue, respectively.
For organic constituents, environmentally relevant detection limits will be used to the extent
practicable. The RLs listed in Table C- 2 are consistent with the requirements of the available
minimum levels provided in the MRP, except for total dissolved solids, which was set equal to
the minimum level identified in the California State Water Resources Control Board' s Surface

Water Ambient Monitoring Program' s ( SWAMP) Quality Assurance Project Plan. Alternative
methods with RLs that are at or below those presented in Table C-2, Table C- 3, and Table C- 4
are considered equivalent and can be used in place of the methods presented in Table C-2,
Table C-3, and Table C-4.

Prior to the analysis of any environmental samples, the laboratory must have demonstrated the
ability to meet the minimum performance requirements for each analytical method presented in

Table C- 2, Table C-3, and Table C- 4. The initial demonstration of capability includes the
ability to meet the project RLs, the ability to generate acceptable precision and accuracy, and
other analytical and quality control parameters documented in this CIMP. Data quality objectives
for precision and accuracy are summarized in Table C- 5.

Table C- 2.

Analytical Methods and Reporting Limits (RLs) for Laboratory Analysis of Water Samples

Parameter/Constituent Method(')       Units
RL

Project
MRP Table D- 2 ML

Toxicity

EPA-821- R- 02- 013
Pimephales promelas 1000. 0) and EPA-821- R-   NA NA NA

02- 012 (2000. 0)

EPA-821- R- 02- 013
Ceriodaphnia dubia 1002. 0) and EPA-821- R-   NA NA NA

02- 012( 2002. 0)

Selenastrum Capricornutum
EPA-821- R- 02- 013

NA NA NA
1003. 0)

Bacteria

Escherichia colt SM 9221 MPN/ 100mL 10 235

Conventionals

Oil and Grease EPA 1664A mg/ L 5 5

Cyanide SM 4500-CN E mg/ L 0. 005 0. 005

pH
SM 4500 H+ g/ EPA 9040/   

NA NA 0- 14
EPA 9045D

Dissolved Oxygen NA mg/ L 0. 5 Sensitivity to 5 mg/ L

Specific Conductance EPA 120. 1 ps/cm 1 1

Turbidity EPA 180. 1 NTU 0. 1 0. 1

Total Hardness SM 2340C mg/ L 2 2

Dissolved Organic Carbon SM 5310B mg/ L 0. 6 NA

Total Organic Carbon SM 5310B mg/ L 1 1

Page C- 3



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Parameter/Constituent Method')       Units
ProProject

MRP Table D- 2 ML

Total Petroleum Hydrocarbon EPA 1664 mg/ L 5 5

Biochemical Oxygen Demand SMOL- 5210 mg/ L 5 2

Chemical Oxygen Demand SM 5220D mg/ L 20 20- 900

MBAS SM 5540C mg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

Chloride EPA 300. 0 mg/ L 1 2

Fluoride EPA 300. 0 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

Sulfate EPA 375.4 mg/ L 1 NA

Perchlorate EPA 314. 0 pg/ L 4 4

Chlorophyll a SM 10200 H mg/ L 0. 01 NA

Dissolved Phosphorus SM 4500- P E mg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

Total Phosphorus SM 4500- P E mg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

Orthophosphate- P EPA 300. 0 mg/ L 0. 2 NA

Ammonia ( as N)    SM 4500- NH3 C mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

Nitrate + Nitrite( as N)      EPA 300.0 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

Nitrate ( as N) EPA 300. 0 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

Nitrite ( as N) EPA 300. 0 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

Total Kjehdahl Nitrogen ( TKN)    SM 4500- NH3 C mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

Total Alkalinity SM 2320B mg/ L 2 2

Solids

Suspended Sediment
ASTMD 3977- 97 mg/ L 3 NA

Concentration ( SSC)

Total Suspended Solids (TSS)    SM 2540D mg/ L 2 2

Total Dissolved Solids ( TDS)     SM 2540C mg/ L 10 2

Volatile Suspended Solids EPA 1684 mg/ L 1 2

Metals in Freshwater

dissolved and total)

Aluminum EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 100 100

Antimony EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

Arsenic EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 1 1

Beryllium EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

Cadmium EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 0. 25 0. 25

Chromium ( total)    EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

Chromium ( Hexavalent)   EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 5 5

Copper EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

Iron EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 100 100

Lead EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

Mercury EPA 245. 7 or 1631E pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

Page C- 4



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Parameter/Constituent Method"       Units
RL

Project
MRP Table D- 2 ML

Nickel EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 1 1

Selenium EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 1 1

Silver EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 0. 25 0. 25

Thallium EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 1 1

Zinc EPA 200. 8 pg/ L 1 1

Organochlorine Pesticides

Aldrin EPA 608 ng/ L 5 5

alpha- BHC EPA 608 ng/ L 10 10

beta- BHC EPA 608 ng/ L 5 5

delta- BHC EPA 608 ng/ L 5 5

gamma- BHC ( Lindane)    EPA 608 ng/ L 20 20

Chlordane- alpha EPA 608 ng/ L 100 100

Chlordane- gamma EPA 608 ng/ L 100 100

Oxychlordane EPA 608 ng/ L 200 NA

Cis- nonachlor EPA 608 ng/ L 200 NA

Trans- nonachlor EPA 608 ng/ L 200 NA

2, 4'- DDD EPA 625/ 8270C ng/ L 2 NA

2, 4'- DDE EPA 625/ 8270C ng/ L 2 NA

2, 4'- DDT EPA 625/ 8270C ng/ L 2 NA

4, 4'- DDD EPA 625/ 8270C ng/ L 50 50

4, 4'- DDE EPA 625/ 8270C ng/ L 50 50

4, 4'- DDT EPA 625/ 8270C ng/ L 10 10

Dieldrin EPA 608 ng/ L 10 10

Endosulfan I EPA 608 ng/ L 20 20

Endosulfan I I EPA 608 ng/ L 10 10

Endosulfan Sulfate EPA 608 ng/ L 50 50

Endrin EPA 608 ng/ L 10 10

Endrin Aldehyde EPA 608 ng/ L 10 10

Heptachlor EPA 608 ng/ L 10 10

Heptachlor Epoxide EPA 608 ng/ L 10 10

Toxaphene EPA 608 ng/ L 500 500

PCBs

Congeners(
2) 

EPA 625/ 8270C ng/ L 2 NA

Aroclors  ( 1016,  1221,  1232,   
EPA 608/ 625/ 8270C ng/ L 500 500

1242, 1248, 1254, 1260)

Organophosphorus
Pesticides

Page C- 5



i

USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Parameter/Constituent Method(')       Units
ProProject

MRP Table D- 2 ML

Chlorpyrifos EPA 614 ng/ L 50 50

Diazinon EPA 614 ng/ L 10 10

Malathion EPA 614 ng/ L 1000 1000

Triazine

Atrazine EPA 530 pg/ L 2 2

Cyanazine EPA 530 pg/ L 2 2

Prometryn EPA 530 pg/ L 2 2

Simazine EPA 530 pg/ L 2 2

Dioxins

2, 3, 7, 8- TCDD EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 005 NA

1, 2, 3, 7, 8- PeCDD EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 7, 8- PeCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

2, 3, 4, 7, 8- PeCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8- HxCDD EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 8- HxCDD EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 7, 8, 9- HxCDD EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8- HxCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 8- HxCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 7, 8, 9- HxCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8- HxCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8- HpCDD EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8- HpCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, 9- HpCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

OCDD EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 025 NA

OCDF EPA 1613 ng/ L 0. 050 NA

Herbicides

2, 4- D EPA 8151A pg/ L 10 10

Glyphosate EPA 547 pg/ L 5 5

2, 4, 5- TP-SILVEX EPA 8151A pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

Semivolatile Organic

Compounds( SVOCs)

1, 2- Diphenylhydrazine EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

2,4, 6- Trichlorophenol EPA 625 pg/ L 10 10

2,4- Dichlorophenol EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

2, 4- Dimethylphenol EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

2, 4- Dinitrophenol EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

2, 4- Dinitrotoluene EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Page C- 6



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Parameter/Constituent Method(')       Units
ProProject

MRP Table D- 2 ML

2, 6- Dinitrotoluene EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

2- Chloronaphthalene EPA 625 pg/ L 10 10

2- Chlorophenol EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

2- Methyl- 4, 6- dinitrophenol EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

2- Nitrophenol EPA 625 pg/ L 10 10

3, 3'- Dichlorobenzidine EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

4- Bromophenyl phenyl ether EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

4- Chloro- 3- methylphenol EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

4- Chlorophenyl phenyl ether EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

4- Nitrophenol EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Acenaphthene EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

Acenaphthylene EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

Anthracene EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

Benzidine EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Benzo( a) anthracene EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Benzo( a) pyrene EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

Benzo( b) fluoranthene EPA 625 pg/ L 10 10

Benzo(g, h, i) perylene EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Benzo( k) fluoranthene EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

Benzyl butyl phthalate EPA 625 pg/ L 10 10

bis( 2- Chloroethoxy) methane EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

bis( 2- Chloroisopropyl) ether EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

bis( 2- Chloroethyl) ether EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

bis( 2- Ethylhexyl) phthalate EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Chrysene EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Dibenzo( a, h) anthracene EPA 625 pg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

Diethyl phthalate EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

Dimethyl phthalate EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

Di- n- butylphthalate EPA 625 pg/ L 10 10

Di- n- octylphthalate EPA 625 pg/ L 10 10

Fluoranthene EPA 625 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

Fluorene EPA 625 pg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

Hexachlorobenzene EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

Hexachlorobutadiene EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

Hexachloro-cyclo pentadiene EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Hexachloroethane EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

Indeno( 1, 2, 3- cd) pyrene EPA 625 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

Page C- 7



r

USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Parameter/Constituent Method(')       Units
Pro

MRP Table D- 2 ML

Isophorone EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

Naphthalene EPA 625 pg/ L 0. 2 0. 2

Nitrobenzene EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

N- Nitroso- dimethyl amine EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

N- Nitrosodiphenylamine EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

N- Nitroso- di- n- propyl amine EPA 625 pg/ L 5 5

Pentachlorophenol EPA 625 pg/ L 2 2

Phenanthrene EPA 625 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

Total Phenols EPA 625 mg/ L 0. 2 0. 1

Phenol EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

Pyrene EPA 625 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

Volatile Organic Compounds

1, 2, 4- Trichlorobenzene EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

1, 2- Dichlorobenzene EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

1, 3- Dichlorobenzene EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

1, 4- Dichlorobenzene EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

2- Chloroethyl vinyl ether EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

Methyl tert- butyl ether( MTBE)    EPA 625 pg/ L 1 1

RL- Reporting Limit NA- Not applicable

1.   Methods may be substituted by an equivalent method that is lower than or meets the project RL.
2.   Analysis for PCB congeners includes the following constituents: PCB- 8, 18, 28, 31, 33, 37, 44, 49, 52, 56, 60, 66,

70, 74, 77, 81, 87, 95, 97, 99, 101, 105, 110, 114, 118, 119, 123, 126, 128, 132, 138, 141, 149, 151, 153, 156,
157, 158, 167, 168, 169, 170, 174, 177, 180, 183, 187, 189, 194, 195, 201, 203, 206, and 209.

Page C- 8



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Table C- 3.

Analytical Methods and Reporting Limits ( RLs) for Laboratory Analysis of Sediment

Parameter/Constituent Method(')     Units Project RL

General Parameters

Solids EPA 1684 NA

Total Organic Carbon (TOC)    SM5310B Dry Weight 0. 05

Chlordane Compounds

alpha- Chlordane USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

gamma- Chlordane USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

Oxychlordane USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

trans- Nonachlor USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

cis- Nonachlor USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

Other OC Pesticides

2, 4'- DDD USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

2, 4'- DDE USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

2, 4'- DDT USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

4, 4'- DDD USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

4, 4'- DDE USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

4, 4'- DDT USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 5

Total DDT USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g NA

Dieldrin USEPA 8081A/8270C ng/ dry g 0. 02

PAHs

1- Methylnaphthalene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

1- Methylphenanthrene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

2- Methylnaphthalene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

2, 6- Dimethylnaphthalene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Acenaphthene USEPA 8270C/8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Anthracene USEPA 8270C/8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Benzo( a) anthracene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Benzo( a) pyrene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Benzo( e) pyrene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Biphenyl USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Chrysene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Dibenz(a, h) anthracene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Fluoranthene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Fluorene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Naphthalene USEPA 8270C/ 8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Perylene USEPA 8270C/8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Phenanthrene USEPA 8270C/8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 20

Page C- 9



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Parameter/Constituent Method(
1)     

Units Project RL

Pyrene USEPA 8270C/8270D - SIM ng/dry g 20

Total PCBs(
2)      

USEPA 8270C/8270D- SIM ng/ dry g 0. 2

Metals

Cadmium EPA 6020 pg/ dry g 0. 05

Copper EPA 6020 pg/ dry g 0. 05

Lead EPA 6020 pg/ dry g 0. 05

Silver EPA 6020 pg/ dry g 0. 05

Zinc EPA 6020 pg/ dry g 0. 05

RL- Reporting Limit NA- Not applicable
1.   Methods may be substituted by an equivalent method that is lower than or meets the project RL.
2.   Analysis for PCBs includes the following constituents: PCB- 8, 18, 28, 31, 33, 37, 44, 49, 52, 56, 60, 66, 70, 74, 77, 81, 87, 95,

97, 99, 101, 105, 110, 114, 118, 119, 123, 126, 128, 132, 138, 141, 149, 151, 153, 156, 157, 158, 167, 168, 169, 170, 174,
177, 180, 183, 187, 189, 194, 195, 201, 203, 206, and 209.

Table C- 4.

Analytical Methods and Reporting Limits (RLs) for Laboratory Analysis of Tissue

Parameter/Constituent Method(
1)    

Units Project RL

Chlordane> 1
EPA 8081A ng/ dry g 15

Dieldrin EPA 8081A ng/ dry g 15

Mercury EPA 7471 ng/ wet g 20

DDTsl31 EPA 8081A ng/ dry g 15

PCBs(
4)     

EPA 8270C ng/ dry g 5

RL- Reporting Limit NA- Not applicable
1.   Methods may be substituted by an equivalent method that is lower than or meets the project RL.
2.   Analysis for chlordane includes the following constituents: alpha- chlordane, gamma-chlordane, oxychlordane, cis- Nonachlor,

and trans- Nonachlor.

3.   Analysis for DDTs includes the following constituents: 2, 4' DDD, 2, 4' DDE, 2, 4' DDT, 4, 4' DDD, 4,4' DDE, and 4,4' DDT.
4.   Analysis for PCBs includes the following constituents: PCB- 8, 18, 28, 31, 33, 37, 44, 49, 52, 56, 60, 66, 70, 74, 77, 81, 87, 95,

97, 99, 101, 105, 110, 114, 118, 119, 123, 126, 128, 132, 138, 141, 149, 151, 153, 156, 157, 158, 167, 168, 169, 170, 174,
177, 180, 183, 187, 189, 194, 195, 201, 203, 206, and 209.

Page C- 10



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Table C- 5.

Data Quality Objectives

Parameter Accuracy Precision Recovery Completeness

Field Measurements

Water Velocity ( for Flow calc.)  2% NA NA 90%

pH 0. 2 pH units    + 0. 5 pH units NA 90%

Temperature 0. 5 oC 5%       NA 90%

Dissolved Oxygen 0. 5 mg/ L 10%     NA 90%

Turbidity 10% 10% NA 90%

Conductivity 5% 5% NA 90%

Laboratory Analyses— Water

Conventionals and Solids 80— 120% 0— 25%   80— 120%    90%

Aquatic Toxicity 1)  2)  NA 90%

Nutriente1 80— 120% 0— 25%   90— 110%    90%

Metalsl3l
75— 125% 0— 25%   75— 125%    90%

Dioxin(
3)    

50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

Semi- Volatile Organice1 50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

Volatile Organice1 50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

Triazinee1
50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

Herbicidesl3l
50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

OC Pesticidest3l
50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

PCB Congeners131

50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

PCB Aroclore1 50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

OP Pesticidee1 50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

Laboratory Analyses— Sediment

Solids NA NA NA 90%

Total Organic Carbon ( TOC)    80— 120% 0— 25%   80— 120%    90%

OC
Pesticidesl3>   

25— 140% 0— 30%   25— 140%    90%

PCB Congenersl3l 60— 125% 0— 30%   60— 125%    90%

PAHe1
50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

Metals131 60— 130% 0— 30%   60— 130%    90%

Laboratory Analyses— Tissue

Chlordane) 50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

DDTe1

35— 140% 0— 30%   35— 140%    90%

Dieldrinl3l
50— 150% 0— 25%   50— 150%    90%

1.   Must meet all method performance criteria relative to the reference toxicant test.

2.   Must meet all method performance criteria relative to sample replicates.

3.   See Table C- 2, Table C- 3, and Table C- 4 for a list of individual constituents in each suite for water, sediment, and tissue,

respectively.

Page C- 11



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 1. 2. 1 Monitoring and Analysis Carried out by other Agencies

Monitoring and analysis for the existing S14 mass emission station will be carried out by
LACFCD. Analysis of receiving water samples will be evaluated according to the analytical
methods and method detection limits found in Table C- 6. Monitoring and analysis for the
SGRRMP in the San Gabriel River Estuary is carried out by the LACSD. Analytical methods
and data quality objectives for analysis of sediment samples are found in Table C- 7 and Table
C- 8.

Table C- 6.

LACFCD Analytical Methods and Reporting Limits ( RLs) for Laboratory Analysis of Water

Analytical LACFCD' s Ag
Method

Analyte Permit ML Unit Comment
Lab

MRL MDL

Conventional Pollutants

EPA 1664A Oil and Grease 5 mg/ L 5 1. 44

EPA 420. 1 Total Phenols 0. 1 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 03

SM 4500- CN- E Cyanide 0. 005 mg/ L 0. 005 0. 005

SM 4500- H+ B pH 0- 14 pH Field test 0. 1 0. 1

SM 2550B Temperature N/ A C Field test 0. 01 0. 01

SM 4500-0 G Dissolved Oxygen Sensitivity to 5 mg/ L Field test 1 1

BACTERIA( single sample limits)

form
SM9221 B

Total c

Ovates)(

marine
10, 000 MPN/ 100m1

20
20

ccus
SM 9230B

Entero

Ovate s)(

marine
104 MPN/ 100m1

20
20

SM 9221E
Fecal coliform ( marine&     

400 MPN/ 100ml
fresh waters)  20 20

SM 9221E/  
E. coli ( fresh waters)       235 MPN/ 100ml

Colilert-QT 1 1

GENERAL

SM 4500- P E Dissolved Phosphorus 0. 05 mg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

SM 4500- P E Total Phosphorus 0. 05 mg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

SM 2130 B Turbidity 0. 1 NTU 0. 1 0. 1

SM 2540D Total Suspended Solids 2 mg/ L 2 1

SM 2540E Volatile Suspended Solids 2 mg/ L 1 1

SM 5310B Total Organic Carbon 1 mg/ L 1 0. 5

EPA 418. 1
Total Petroleum

5 mg/ LHydrocarbon 5 1. 5

SM 5210 B Biochemical Oxygen 2 mg/ L 2 1

Page C- 12



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Analytical
Analyte Permit ML Unit Comment LACFCD's Ag

Method Lab

MRL MDL

Demand

SM 5220 D Chemical Oxygen Demand 20- 900 mg/ L 20 10

SM 4500- NH3 C Total Ammonia-Nitrogen 0. 1 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

SM4500- NH3 C Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen 0. 1 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

EPA 300. 0 Nitrate-N 0. 1 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

EPA 300. 0 Nitrite- N 0. 1 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

SM 2320B Alkalinity 2 mg/ L 2 2

SM 2510 B Specific Conductance 1 umho/ cm 1 1

SM 2340C Total Hardness 2 mg/ L 2 2

SM 5540C MBAS 0. 5 mg/ L 0. 5 0. 1

EPA 300. 0 Chloride 2 mg/ L 1 1

EPA 300. 0 Fluoride 0. 1 mg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

EPA 624
Methyl tertiary E)

tyl
ether

1 mg/ L
1

0. 33

EPA 314. 0 Perchlorate 4 pg/ L 4 4

METALS (Dissolved & Solid)

EPA 200. 8 Aluminum 100 pg/ L 100 50

EPA 200. 8 Antimony 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 200. 8 Arsenic 1 pg/ L 1 0. 2

EPA 200. 8 Beryllium 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 1

EPA 200. 8 Cadmium 0. 25 pg/ L 0. 25 0. 1

EPA 218. 6 Chromium ( Hexavalent)       5 pg/ L 5 0. 25

EPA 200. 8 Chromium ( total)  0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 200. 8 Copper 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 200. 8 Iron 100 pg/ L 100 50

EPA 200. 8 Lead 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 2

EPA 245. 7 Mercury 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 1

EPA 200. 8 Nickel 1 pg/ L 1 0. 5

EPA 200. 8 Selenium 1 pg/ L 1 0. 5

EPA 200. 8 Silver 0. 25 pg/ L 0. 25 0. 1

EPA 200. 8 Thallium 1 pg/ L 1 0. 1

EPA 200. 8 Zinc 1 pg/ L 1 1

SEMIVOLATILE ORGANIC COMPOUNDS

Page C- 13



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Analytical LACFCD's Ag
Method

Analyte Permit ML Unit Comment
Lab

MRL MDL

ACIDS

EPA 625 2- Chlorophenol 2 pg/ L 2 0. 67

EPA 625 4- Chloro- 3- methylphenol 1 pg/ L 1 1

EPA 625 2, 4- Dichlorophenol 1 pg/ L 1 1

EPA 625 2, 4- Dimethylphenol 2 pg/ L 2 0. 67

EPA 625 2, 4- Dinitrophenol 5 pg/ L 5 1

EPA 625 2- Nitrophenol 10 pg/ L 10 1

EPA 625 4- Nitrophenol 5 pg/ L 5 1

EPA 625 Pentachlorophenol 2 pg/ L 2 0. 67

EPA 625 Phenol 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 2, 4, 6- Trichlorophenol 10 pg/ L 10 3. 33

BASE/ NEUTRAL

EPA 625 Acenaphthene 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 Acenaphthylene 2 pg/ L 2 0. 67

EPA 625 SIM Acenaphthylene 2 pg/ L

EPA 625 Anthracene 2 pg/ L 2 0. 67

EPA 625 Benzidine 5 pg/ L 5 1. 67

EPA 625 1, 2 Benzanthracene 5 pg/ L Benzo( a) Ant 5 1. 67

EPA 625 Benzo( a) pyrene 2 pg/ L 2 0. 67

EPA 625 Benzo(g, h, i) perylene 5 pg/ L 5 1. 67

EPA 625 3, 4 Benzofluoranthene 10 pg/ L
Benzo( b) fluo

r 10 3. 33

EPA 625 Benzo( k) flouranthene 2 pg/ L 2 0. 67

EPA 625
Bis( 2- Chloroethoxy) 5 L

methane
pg 5 1. 67

EPA 625
Bis( 2- Chloroisopropyl)

2 pg/ L
ether 2 0. 67

EPA 625 Bis( 2- Chloroethyl) ether 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 Bis( 2- Ethylhexyl) phthalate 5 pg/ L 5 1. 67

EPA 625
4- Bromophenyl phenyl

5 L
ether

pg 5 1. 67

EPA 625 Butyl benzyl phthalate 10 pg/ L 10 3. 33

EPA624 2- Chloroethyl vinyl ether 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 2- Chloronaphthalene 10 pg/ L 10 3. 33

Page C- 14



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Analytical LACFCD' s Ag
Method

Analyte Permit ML Unit Comment
Lab

MRL MDL

EPA 625
4- Chlorophenyl phenyl

5 Ng/ L
ether 5 1. 67

EPA 625 Chrysene 5 pg/ L 5 1. 67

EPA 625 Dibenzo(a, h) anthracene 0. 1 pg/ L 0. 1 0. 033

EPA 625 1, 3- Dichlorobenzene 1 pg/ L 1 0. 5

EPA 625 1, 4- Dichlorobenzene 1 pg/ L 1 0. 5

EPA 625 1, 2- Dichlorobenzene 1 pg/ L 1 0. 5

EPA 625 3, 3- Dichlorobenzidine 5 pg/ L 5 1. 67

EPA 625 Diethyl phthalate 2 pg/ L 2 1

EPA 625 Dimethyl phthalate 2 pg/ L 2 1

EPA 625 di- n- Butyl phthalate 10 pg/ L 10 3. 33

EPA 625 2,4- Dinitrotoluene 5 pg/ L 5 1. 67

EPA 625 2, 6- Dinitrotoluene 5 pg/ L 5 1. 67

EPA 625 4, 6 Dinitro- 2- methylphenol 5 pg/ L 5 1

EPA 625 1, 2- Diphenylhydrazine 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 di- n- Octyl phthalate 10 pg/ L 10 3. 33

EPA 625 Fluoranthene 0. 05 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 017

EPA 625 Fluorene 0. 1 pg/ L 0. 1 0. 033

EPA 625 Hexachlorobenzene 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 Hexachlorobutadiene 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625
Hexachloro

5 pg/ L
cyclopentadiene 5 1. 67

EPA 625 Hexachloroethane 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 Indeno( 1, 2, 3- cd) pyrene 0. 05 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 017

EPA 625 Isophorone 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 Naphthalene 0. 2 pg/ L 0. 2 0. 067

EPA 625 Nitrobenzene 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

EPA 625 N- Nitroso-dimethyl amine 5 pg/ L 5 1. 67

EPA 625 N- Nitroso-diphenyl amine 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

N- N itroso-d i- n- propyl
EPA 625

amine
5 pg/ L

5 1. 67

EPA 625 Phenanthrene 0. 05 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 017

EPA 625 Pyrene 0. 05 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 017

EPA 625 1, 2, 4- Trichlorobenzene 1 pg/ L 1 0. 33

Page C- 15



laramoremmor

USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Analytical
Analyte Permit ML Unit Comment LACFCD' s Ag

Method Lab

MRL MDL

Chlorinated Pesticides

EPA 608 Aldrin 0. 005 pg/ L 0. 005 0. 005

EPA 608 alpha- BHC 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 01

EPA 608 beta- BHC 0. 005 pg/ L 0. 005 0. 005

EPA 608 delta- BHC 0. 005 pg/ L 0. 005 0. 005

EPA 608 gamma- BHC ( lindane)      0. 02 pg/ L 0. 02 0. 02

EPA 608 alpha-chlordane 0. 1 pg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

EPA 608 gamma-chlordane 0. 1 pg/ L 0. 1 0. 1

EPA 608 4, 4'- DDD 0. 05 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

EPA 608 4, 4'- DDE 0. 05 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

EPA 608 4, 4'- DDT 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 01

EPA 608 Dieldrin 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 01

EPA 608 alpha- Endosulfan 0. 02 pg/ L 0. 02 0. 02

EPA 608 beta- Endosulfan 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 01

EPA 608 Endosulfan sulfate 0. 05 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 05

EPA 608 Endrin 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 01

EPA 608 Endrin aldehyde 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 01

EPA 608 Heptachlor 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 01

EPA 608 Heptachlor Epoxide 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 01

EPA 608 Toxaphene 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

EPA 608 Aroclor-1016 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 608 Aroclor- 1221 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 608 Aroclor- 1232 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 608 Aroclor-1242 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 608 Aroclor- 1248 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 608 Aroclor- 1254 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

EPA 608 Aroclor- 1260 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 5 0. 5

ORGANOPHOSPHATE PESTICIDES

EPA507 Atrazine 2 pg/ L 2 0. 667

EPA507 Chlorpyrifos 0. 05 pg/ L 0. 05 0. 02

EPA507 Cyanazine 2 pg/ L 2 0. 667

EPA507 Diazinon 0. 01 pg/ L 0. 01 0. 003

Page C- 16



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Analytical LACFCD' s Ag
Method

Analyte Permit ML Unit Comment
Lab

MRL MDL

EPA507 Malathion 1 pg/ L 1
1 0. 33

EPA507 Prometryn 2 pg/ L 2 0. 67

EPA507 Simazine 2 Ig/ L 2 0. 67

HERBICIDES

EPA 515. 3 2,4- D 10 pg/ L 0. 2 0. 02

EPA 547 Glyphosate 5 pg/ L 5 5

EPA 515. 3 2, 4, 5- TP-SILVEX 0. 5 pg/ L 0. 2 0. 067

Table C- 7.

LACSD Analytical Methods and Reporting Limits (RLs) for Laboratory Analysis of Sediment

Group AnalyteName MethodName Units MDL RL

Phosphorus as P SM 4500- P E mg/ Kg dw 0. 016 0. 05

General
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen EPA 351. 3 mg/ Kg dw 5 5

Chemistry
Total Organic Carbon SM 5310 B dw 0. 01 0. 02

Arsenic EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 0. 025 0. 05

Cadmium EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 0. 025 0. 05

Chromium EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 0. 025 0. 05

Copper EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 0. 025 0. 05

Iron EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 1 5
Metals

Lead EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 0. 025 0. 05

Mercury EPA 245. 7 mg/ Kg dw 0. 00001 0. 000102

Nickel EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 0. 025 0. 05

Selenium EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 0. 025 0. 05

Zinc EPA 6020 mg/ Kg dw 0. 025 0. 05

Aldrin EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Chlordane, cis-       EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Chlordane, trans-    EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

DDD( o, p')     EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Organochlorine DDE( p, p')     EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

DDE( o, p')     EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

DDE( p, p')     EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

DDT( o, p')      EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

DDT( p, p')      EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Page C- 17



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Group AnalyteName MethodName Units MDL RL

Dieldrin EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Endosulfan I EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Endosulfan II EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Endosulfan sulfate EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Endrin EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Endrin Aldehyde EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Endrin Ketone EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

HCH, alpha EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

HCH, beta EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

HCH, delta EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

HCH, gamma EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Heptachlor EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Heptachlor epoxide EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Methoxychlor EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Mirex EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Nonachlor, cis-       EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Nonachlor, trans-    EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Oxychlordane EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Acenaphthene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Acenaphthylene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PAHs Anthracene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Benz( a) anthracene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Benzo( a) pyrene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Benzo( b) fluoranthene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Benzo( e) pyrene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Benzo( g, h, i) perylene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Benzo( k) fluoranthene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Biphenyl EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Chrysene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PAHs Dibenz(a, h) anthracene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Dibenzothiophene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Dimethylnaphthalene,

2, 6-    EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Fluoranthene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Fluorene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Indeno( 1, 2, 3- 
EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Page C- 18



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Group AnalyteName MethodName Units MDL RL

c,d) pyrene

Methylnaphthalene, 1-      EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Methylnaphthalene, 2-      EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Methylphenanthrene,

1-       EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Naphthalene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Perylene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Phenanthrene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Pyrene EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Trimethylnaphthalene,

2, 3, 5-  EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 003 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 008 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 018 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 028 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 031 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 033 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 037 EPA 8270C ng/g dw 1 5

PCB 044 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 049 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 052 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCBs PCB 056 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 066 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 070 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 074 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 077 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 081 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 087 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 095 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 097 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 099 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 101 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 105 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 110 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5
PCBs

PCB 114 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 118 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Page C- 19



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Group AnalyteName MethodName Units MDL RL

PCB 119 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 123 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 126 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 128 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 138 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 141 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 149 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 151 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 153 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 156 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 157 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 158 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 167 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 168 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 169 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 170 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 174 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 177 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 180 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 183 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 187 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 189 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 194 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 195 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 201 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 206 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

PCB 209 EPA 8270C ng/ g dw 1 5

Page C- 20



U N
C

EE a)

t
o)

O
a)

2 I
a

ti
3 a s 3
o a a a a 0 3 3 3 3

a a a a

C
O)    O    - O 0)  O)  O)  O O O)  O)  CO CO CO

7_  Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 0)  CO 0)  CD

D a E)      a a a)  rn m m a s a m a)  C)  Cr)  C)
E E E E E E E E E E E E

c c C C

N
8)  0

n

r'      0 0 0 LO v LO CO o  .-  No LO LO LO
0 0

E_ 0 0    ,    0 0 0 0 0 0    •  0 0 0o

1— 0 J O
re NV

O V)    V)    V) V)  (. 1)  (/)  V)  V)  (/)  ( 1)  U)  ( 1)  V) V)  ( 1)  U)  V)

C 0 W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W ll)

oa Q CC CC CC CC CC CC CC CC CC CC tY CC CC CC CC tY CC
J

N Na)Cd o 0 0 0 0
a)   O O O O O

C.  a)   a) a)      a) a)

E

00

15 0 V

0 0

o
o o o o

o L)     U 0
C Q*) O-) O d QN E QY CO o Q aa_

y D C)     aaO o' E 0U.QN 0 x.--
Z' C1 z' o Z'--° 2 m a)      z' i

v
a..,-. O

o o o,   o a)- J
m o

p 0 o m
N

a El f: m  mii 0 v
m^
22

ia2

0

o

CCo , o .   0a 20_-      O o2 3-
0 0 0 m m

u= 
o   -° cU

J J J in J co J

o

Z"       o t....,-,O 0 0  '
0 O O O O C)

OO Z Z N o t

d

CO
0 0

IX
U") ,   LC)  

0  )
C)  CCC)

a N-

VM
7 N

N
x a) a) C

a) 

c a x
C) N O a) O x E > — O

N N a) O

y   .)  
C

a2 iv C2 m w. ° w oa °   co t m

E m Q d aY N-02 E

ac) 
y co aU_  d

o_ 
a Y

V.  
d 2'u)  2 Q-'( n Q a)   

N
L U Q-'( n

2 0 UUU 0
NLC

3 `°
co

J
a)

o o a)   a) To m CO m CO CO m CO CO a)   a)   m m CO m
0 CO C C

o M     `   
0 O 0 0 O 0 O O 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 O 0  '

Cr)
p Z Z H H H H H H H H H H H H H H I-  H

2 CJ LL

V cts

p C

E d
E
E y

cr)     C a)
a) d a c O

0 0 o o) EN N d
a Ce N 2 a v N

NN w co 0 d V)Z.  co

2
V

0 C     ) 0
Z

N
0 N d C      ( n co

H     ( 6    «    L C U a'    m a)      U  .
co

n
N

W     °    
W

a o
E E o

f
c c  .2 o;  c a)    L

N E p ci
co 0

W V N N E in:    Y     -    _ O W  ' E E  ' E n a)  ' E u 0 c a a   °
d a c as 0 ns     •.   a)  a   °   Q c m 2 a)   0 O o   ` o C)

re C a)     a)    o L O co L O O N
O a)   C C a7 zi L L C)

O 0 V)   H d H    ;:  Q U U U  -  J 2 Z V)  N r Q 0 0 0
m

CO

a 0 Z 2 O w



U N

C

N

0
0

E a)

t a)a,
uo a
IS

Q
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

w o  - o  - o  - o  - o  - o a  - o  - a a  - o a a a  - 0  - 0 a  - 0  - 0  - 0  - 0 a o a

o)  0)  0 m o)  0)  m m m m 0)  0)  m m 0)  0)  m CD o)  m rn 0)  CM m o)

7 0)  co o)  Cr)  Co Cr)  o)  o)  o)  C)  o)  o)  o)  a)  C)  C)  o)  CO C)  C)  C)  o)  o)   C)  o)
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

a)C
0)t*-     N N

o E n Lo  ' n  ' n to  ' n

co 0..-
O O

dcC

O CO N 0 co co

C LU al LWU WU WU al LU LU LU LU LU LU LU LU LU LU W LU W LU LU W W LU LU W

eaJ

0U)G)Ca)
O O

a 0)

E

00
a)

U x
V

0

C 0_  0_

O U) Ix
N O x

U Z.: m

O g2= U
O. 7,5 x!

72 -

m o0 0

o
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O W O O O O O O O M O O O O O
In U)  U)  0 10 0 0 LO LC)  0 CO  ) f)  U)  U)      ) f)  U)  U0 Cr In In In In In LO

0UO O O O O O O O O O O M O O O O O O O Sr O O O O O p
O:  U)  U)  U)  U)  U)  U)  U)  U)  U)  U0 M U)  U)  U)  U)  U)  0 U)  CO U)  U)  U)  U)  U) Un

T

E 0
X

C 0 O' i
U0

o.=> a)

E E a) U)- 7
U

co 7 ai z s̀
rn a 2 IX a

a C, J
a)C
o,,   Y a)   N 0   ( 6 N N U6 N a)   CO CO a)   a)   a)   a)   N N M   ( 6   ( O CO CO CO 0 U6 U6

E U 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C)   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

o CO F-  I-  I-  H H H H H H I-  I-  I-  H I-  I-  F-  F-  I-  I-  I-  H H H H H H

rL W

v

id
s

to)a) C
C 0

a)     
a)    E

a C

o w 0 X 0 a)
0 C

O U)      L C
co

W O Cl
N

C
Cl)

C C C a)   O co a3
E L

J   (

6 a)   Rd
w w N

L  : d E O O U O C

2
L

d a a d Q Q Y
0_  a)   a)   N L L   >,      

O 0
0 a)   3 M co

d 0_  O 0_  O 0_  ' C
0 0 0 C C C

f6 I]  "o m
N f06

Ox
U U L Q W O O

ill 0 o W W H H
2  - oo  - oo  - oo  - o  - o  = o

S  =  2 2 n a
L L c c   (,  

o   ' vi O UCC E O 0 0 0 0 0 C C C C a C 0 O U U a)   a)   Cl)       o o x

U,     0 0 0 0 0 p W W W W W W 1 2 2 2 1 2 2 Z Z O H m d d

uI)   
o 0

7 d a



M

CL)    U
E m

t

ma

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

c m s m m 0)  tT m s Cr)  rn 0)  Cr)  0)  0)  m 0)  0)  Cr)  0)  m s s m s o)  0)  rn

CM o)  o)  rn CD o)  o)  Cr)  o)  rn 0)  o)  0)  o)  0)  o)  0)  o)  CD o)  0)  0)  rn 0)  C)  rn 0)
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C CC C C C C C C C C C

Cr)C N
OI p£  N NNN N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

HG J
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

d

O V)  V)  V)  V)  V)  V)  V)  V)  CO CO CO CO CO CO CO  (/)  V)  CO  ( 1)  (/)  CO CO CO CO CO CO CO
W W W W W W W W W W W LU W W W LU W W W LU W W W W W W W

a ct cC cC II CC cC

J

N

CCN
0
a
E

0C.)

Co_
N o

NN
a

0m

0

0m

am
a

u C

Q 0

E
E

7  (/)
s o-

2 m

s

C       -       

O„   co N c6 co   (   co   )   co Cr;   c6   )   )   N l6 C C6   (   Cl(   N C CO C C   )   N co f6

o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

LL

0

N

O)0
C
a

0

oCD
d o

2
co CO CO h.      C)  N  ( O  ( O 0 CO 0 V N-       t`  CO r O CO 0 a CO O)  M

N M CO M at cr  )!)  CO CO CO CO N-  r r CO CO O)  C)  O)  0 0 r  -  N
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

W d CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO m CO CO m CO CO CO CO m CO m CO m CO CO CO CO m
re E U U U U U c)  U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U 0
C9 a a a a CL CL a a Cl a CL d n.  n.  CL a a a d a a a 0_  d a.  d a
N p

a



N

o 0
E C)

r co

o A
o a

Q
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
o  - o a  - o a a  - 0  - o a a a a  - 0 a a a  - o a a a a a  - o  - o a  - o

C rn CO CO 0)  0)  CO m CO 0)  CO 0)  m 0)  0)  m m 0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  m 0)  CD 0)  m

M CO rn rn CO CO rn m m CO 0)  O)  o>  o)  0)  rn o)  CO CO CO CO 0)  C)  CO CO CM rn
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

CDC_ y
00 C.-  N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

O)  U,O._  O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O ON
dW

O     ( 1)  V)  V)  V)  U)  V)  V)  CO V)  V)  V)  U)  V)  V)  U)  (/)  V)  U)  V)  U)  V)  V)  V)  U)       U)  ( 1)

j0 W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

cC a'  EC Ct cC CC EC a'  a a_  CC a'  CC Et cC cC cC ct r:C cC CC a'  a'  X a_  a'

coJ

N0CDCd
o 00 O O

0- CO CO

E

O0
o m

mC) v mC) V

a n o-C n a a

0 x o O x o
CO N N N0 CO

a O
U N 2 CO

o
C ]  C

N o a N o
J J

t•       0 0
C)

O
U M)  LO

V
r r

K O O C)

T
In LCD LO

UO`6
7   ) X

N
X

V N p' 8 C) 0' E.V C
CO COQ

E 2cc a)    20 C)

E m 0Ua a tea a
0 C oV)     C2- oU)

2 0

a
U J U J

a)C
a

2 o 0 0 0 CO Of O3 CO CO OD CO CO CS CO CO O6 CC OD OO CZ CO OD CO OS CO CC 76
c 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
O H F F-  F-  F H F F-  H H F-  F H H F-  I-  H H I-  F H F F F F F-
E LL

vN
E
rn
d

Iii
C

o

2 co co co O co co N-  co N-  co W O O V r co co N-  O v On O O L L
d N N CO V LO On LO LO On CO CJ CO CO I-  I,-  N-  CO CO OD CO CO O C)   

L   ( O

0

IAL.0 CC CO C0 O]  00 00 m m O]  O]  OO Ca Ca m m m CO CO CO CO Ca m CO 0]  Ca
C C

re E 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0
0 E a a a a a a a a a a a a_  a a a a a a a a a a a a x a  <
ti R Q
m a a



U U)N

U
a)

E 0)

U
of

r T
a.

Q a

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
u,     - 0  - 0  - o  - 0  - 0  - 0  - o  - 0 a  - 0  - o  - o a a a a  - 0 a a a a a a Z
0 m o)  m m m 0)  m m rn m m m m 0)  rn m m rn m m m 0)  rn       >

M 0)  o)  0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  0)  CM 0)  o)  o)  0)  o)  0)  0)  0)      

co__,

C C C C C C C C C C CC C C C C CC C C C C C
7   . o
U)   

t0

0)S N
Q

O E  ( O  ( O  ( O LO  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O u-)  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O  . O  ( O  ( O  ( O  . 0  ( O  ( O
Z

F y J
CC

O CO CO CO CO  ( n CO  ( n CO CO CO N CO CO U)  ( n CO CO  ( n CO N N  ( n  ( n

N W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

0 0

CC CC CC CC CC CC CC CC CC Ct C CC CC CC CY CC CC E Ct CC CC 1Y       <    <

a 1
J

NNa)Cd o
a)       O

O.       co

E

0U

o w
N

c
0 w

o

y
N N

C)      
1 0)

x CN
0a) 0

0_      H a

a) N
CL 0-

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  •   0 0 0  •   0  •   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

O  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O LO l0 l0  ( O LO LO l0  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O  ( O O  ( O 20  ( O 20 Q
O

Z

0•  
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O v O O O 0re U)  U)  U)  U)  LO LO U)  U)  U)  U)      U)      U)  U)  U)  2020 O  ( O  ( O  ( n

tl       ....    ..    _._._..   R c
O

C.)•  .. c2

Q O
OO

N 0'= 
co

a)
Q

O NE
W ( a Ca J

o y 0 a l0 00)     cc C ( a
O`     cc a)   Caa ( 6
0_       2

N

a)c
C

2.
o

C)   C)   N C)   N CO N C)   N CO N C)   CO N m O CO a3 CO C)   N C)   @ Q Q:

E 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o Z 2
o ES H H H H H H 1-  H F-  t-  I-  F-  F-  H H H H H H H H H H

2 LL

N N
a

0) CS a) N 0)
O

a)   a)   Ca) aj N N a)   E
c C a)   C O C C  - 0

a)       a)       C
0 U

N n 0 0 C a)   y C
a.      C L N  . 0 N a)    C C 2 16 N a)

O
Cl

a)  c a)   L'  C L a  _c O N N  _ c C 0-   E
L O C N C a)   `, 2 C L U N N C a)       r Z'  N   -

O

o r
N 0O a

O N 0-  a N M L L
N a)       C 0_  a)   co 0

CI)       >.  7   >.       7
O C C  - C C C N       ( a 7 7 0)

CL C C 0.  =  0-  L C
O

L
L C L N 0-  o_  a)   a)       c N O2 U N a a)   6 Y T C

CO
O  -,  C a)  

s-   

C C 0.  N
a)
a)  >.>  W

N U
W a)     L N N N N N N N N C L L L C N N     ' C

0_   E c

ac)   ac)   ac)   
a)   a)   a)   0-  _c  -

0  -   E   =   =  - 00 a)   Cl)  a)   (a a)  . 0   >.  , C  .' E 0   ^ w
0 tv Q CO CO 0]  m m m m U 0 0 0 LL LL E 2 2 2 2 a-  0-  a.  H  - K W 2

V)   a7 O
D 0_       F-



U
WN

aa))    
U

E 0

0 as
co a

Q

Y
c

Z z
7

en
C)  

aoc c
0 001

O
0

J
Q

I—as a
J

y
N

Z

IY
O J

Zs

0
0 m

O Q Q

amJ

00

CCa)    0 0
o O O
p.   3)    C)

E

00

c0
N_    Q Q
V z Z
a)

a

0)

z.      C T
O E U

O C

c)  Z o

a)       o E
r[       co W

a Cr)

O

o
V  

e      >.     T
0 c O

3
C.)   ) f°N       -  
m mC

v C

ys
o o

Q 0 a a O N a) 7o O. O
E C co co     = = 0 10 0

E a)       0 J E w o
C C E

cr)   N._

1-     7 h c E
c.- 0 0•

1:0 Cf

O
C

o
E o c

o. 0- 3. 5 o
a

a'       vi o a'.   ( 0 E
Q

ci c

O 0
Q Q

c o
Z Z

o

2 LL

aa)

Ccoc

a/ 0
C

10

a
V

F. F
O` C C

O 0

E
a

m t: COO a mw m 0 L`   E f
Ce E
0 or
I)   co    > co
7 a Cw



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 1. 3 Method Detection Limit Studies

Any laboratory performing analyses under this program must routinely conduct MDL studies to
document that the MDLs are less than or equal to the project- specified RLs. If any analytes have
MDLs that do not meet the project RLs, the following steps must be taken:

Perform a new MDL study using concentrations sufficient to prove analyte quantitation at
concentrations less than or equal to the project-specified RLs per the procedure for the

Determination of the Method Detection Limit presented in Revision 1. 1, 40 Code of
Federal Regulations ( CFR) 136, 1984.

No samples may be analyzed until the issue has been resolved. MDL study results must
be available for review during audits, data review, or as requested. Current MDL study
results must be reported for review and inclusion in project files.

An MDL is developed from seven aliquots of a standard containing all analytes of interest spiked
at five times the expected MDL. These aliquots are processed and analyzed in the same manner

as environmental samples. The results are then used to calculate the MDL. If the calculated MDL

is less than 0. 33 times the spiked concentration, another MDL study should be performed using
lower spiked concentrations.

C- 1. 4 Project Reporting Limits
Laboratories generally establish RLs that are reported with the analytical results— these may be
called reporting limits, detection limits, reporting detection limits, or several other terms by the
reporting laboratory. These laboratory limits must be less than or equal to the project RLs listed
in Table C-2. Wherever possible, project RLs are lower than the relevant numeric criteria or

toxicity thresholds. Laboratories performing analyses for this project must have documentation
to support quantitation at the required levels.

C- 1. 5 Laboratory Standards and Reagents

All stock standards and reagents used for standard solutions and extractions must be tracked

through the laboratory. The preparation and use of all working standards must be documented
according to procedures outlined in each laboratory' s Quality Assurance ( QA) Manual; standards
must be traceable according to USEPA,  A2LA or National Institute for Standards and

Technology ( NIST) criteria. Records must have sufficient detail to allow determination of the
identity, concentration, and viability of the standards, including any dilutions performed to
obtain the working standard. Date of preparation, analyte or mixture, concentration, name of
preparer, lot or cylinder number, and expiration date, if applicable, must be recorded on each

working standard.

C- 1. 6 Sample Containers, Storage, Preservation, and Holding Times

Sample containers must be pre-cleaned and certified free of contamination according to the
USEPA specification for the appropriate methods. Sample container, storage and preservation,

and holding time requirements are provided in Table C- 9. The analytical laboratories will supply
sample containers that already contain preservative  ( Table C- 9),  including ultra-pure
hydrochloric and nitric acid, where applicable. After collection, samples will be stored at 4° C

until arrival at the contract laboratory.

Page C-27



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Table C- 9.

Sample Container, Sample Volume, Initial Preservation, and Holding Time Requirements for
Parameters Analyzed at a Laboratory

Sample Sample
Immediate

HoldingParameter Processing and
Container Volume

Storage
Time

Water

Toxicity

Initial Screening Glass or

Follow- Up Testing
FLPD

40 L Store at 4° C 36 hours(2)
lined

Phase I TIE jerrican

E. coli ( fresh)    PE 120 mL
at 4° C•

3 and Store
8 hours

at 4° C

Oil and Grease PE 250 mL
HCI and Store at

28 days

Filter w/ in 48

Chlorophyll a Amber PE 1 L Store at 4° C hours,     28

days

Cyanide PE 1 L
NaOH and Store at

14 days
4° C

Dissolved Organic Carbon ( DOC)    PE 250 mL Store at 4° C
Filter/28

days

Total Organic Carbon ( TOC)  PE 250 mL C•   
04 and Store at

28 days

Total Petroleum Hydrocarbon Glass 1 L
HCI or H2SO4 and

7/40 days(3)
Store at 4° C

Biochemical Oxygen Demand PE 1L Store at 4° C 48 hours

Chemical Oxygen Demand PE 500 mL C•   
04 and Store at

28 days

MBAS PE 1 L Store at 4° C 48 hours

Fluoride PE 500 mL None required 28 days

Chloride 28 days
PE 250 mL Store at 4° C

Sulfate 28 days

Boron PE 250- mL Store at 4° C 180 days

Perchlorate PE 500 mL Store at 4° C 28 days

Nitrate Nitrogen

Nitrite Nitrogen PE 250 mL Store at 4° C
48 hours

Orthophosphate- P

Ammonia Nitrogen

Total and Dissolved Phosphorus H2SO4 and Store at
Glass 250- mL

4° C
28 days

Organic Nitrogen

Nitrate + Nitrite ( as N)

Total Kjehdahl Nitrogen ( TKN) PE 250 mL H2SO4 and Store at 28 days

Page C- 28



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Sample Sample
Immediate

HoldingParameter Processing and
Container Volume

Storage
Time

4° C

Total Alkalinity PE 500 mL Store at 4° C 14 days

Suspended Sediment Concentration
PE 250 mL Store at 4° C 120 days

SSC)

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) PE 250 mL Store at 4° C 7 days

Total Dissolved Solids (TDS)  PE 250 mL Store at 4° C 7 days

Volatile Suspended Solids PE 250 mL Store at 4° C 7 days

Hardness 180 days
PE 500 mL Store at 4° C

Metals 6 months(4)

Mercury Glass 500 mL Store at 4° C 48 Hours

Dioxin
Amber

2 x 1 L Store at 4° C 1 year
glass

PCBs,       OC Pesticides,       OP Amber
4 x 1 L Store at 4° C 7/40 days(3)

Pesticides,Triazine Pesticides glass

Suspended Solids Analysis for Organics Amber
20 x 1 L Store at 4° C 1 year 5i

and Metals glass

Herbicides Glass 2 x 40 mL
Thiosulfate and

14 days
Store at 4° C

Semivolatile Organic Compounds Glass 2 x 1 L Store at 4° C 7 days

Volatile Organic Compounds VOA 3 x 40 mL 4
CI and Store at

14 days

Sediment

Solids 7 days

Total Organic Carbon ( TOC)  2 x 8 oz 1 year(6)
Glass Store at 4° C

OC Pesticides, PCBs, PAHs jar

Metals
1 year

Tissue

Lipids

Chlordane teflon

DDTs sheet
200 g Store on dry ice 1 year15i

Dieldrin

PE— Polyethylene

1.   Additional volume may be required for QC analyses.
2.   Tests should be initiated within 36 hours of collection. The 36- hour hold time does not apply to subsequent analyses for TIEs.

For interpretation of toxicity results, samples may be split from toxicity samples in the laboratory and analyzed for specific
chemical parameters. All other sampling requirements for these samples are as specified in this document for the specific
analytical method. Results of these analyses are not for any other use( e. g., characterization of ambient conditions) because of
potential holding time exceedances and variance from sampling requirements.

3.   7/ 40= 7 days to extract and 40 days from extraction to analysis.

4.   6 months after preservation.

5.   One year if frozen, otherwise 14 days to extract and 40 days from extraction to analysis.

6.   One year if frozen, otherwise 28 days.

Page C- 29



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 1. 7 Aquatic Toxicity Testing and Toxicity Identification Evaluations

Aquatic toxicity testing supports the identification of BMPs to address sources of toxicity in
urban runoff Monitoring begins in the receiving water and the information gained is used to
identify constituents for monitoring at outfalls to support the identification of pollutants that need
to be addressed in the EWMP.  The sub- sections below describe the detailed process for

conducting aquatic toxicity monitoring,  evaluating results,  and the technical and logistical
rationale. Control measures and management actions to address confirmed toxicity caused by
urban runoff are addressed by the EWMP, either via currently identified management actions or
those that are identified via adaptive management of the EWMP.

C- 1. 7. 1 Sensitive Species Selection

The MRP ( page D-32) states that a sensitivity screening to select the most sensitive test species
should be conducted unless " a sensitive test species has already been determined, or if there is
prior knowledge of potential toxicant(s) and a test species is sensitive to such toxicant(s), then

monitoring shall be conducted using only that test species." Previous relevant studies conducted

in the watershed should be considered. Such studies may have been completed via previous MS4
sampling, wastewater NPDES sampling, or special studies conducted within the watershed. The
following discuss the species selection process for assessing aquatic toxicity in receiving waters.

As described in the MRP ( page D-31), if samples are collected in receiving waters with salinity
less than 1 part per thousand ( ppt), or from outfalls discharging to receiving waters with salinity
less than 1 ppt, toxicity tests should be conducted on the most sensitive test species in
accordance with species and short-term test methods in Short- term Methods for Estimating the
Chronic Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Waters to Freshwater Organisms ( EPA/821/ R-
02/ 013, 2002; Table IA, 40 CFR Part 136). The freshwater test species identified in the MRP are:

A static renewal toxicity test with the fathead minnow, Pimephales promelas ( Larval
Survival and Growth Test Method 1000. 04).

A static renewal toxicity test with the daphnid,  Ceriodaphnia dubia ( Survival and

Reproduction Test Method 1002.05).

A static renewal toxicity test with the green alga, Selenastrum capricornutum ( also

named Raphidocelis subcapitata) (Growth Test Method 1003. 0).

The three test species were evaluated to determine if either a sensitive test species had already
been determined, or if there is prior knowledge of potential toxicant( s) and a test species is

sensitive to such toxicant( s). In reviewing the available data in the watershed, metals, historical
organics, and currently used pesticides have been identified as problematic and are generally
considered the primary aquatic life toxicants of concern found in urban runoff. Given the
knowledge of the presence of these potential toxicants in the watershed, the sensitivities of each

of the three species were considered to evaluate which is the most sensitive to the potential

toxicants in the watershed.

Ceriodaphnia dubia ( C. dubia) has been reported as a sensitive test species for historical and

current use of pesticides and metals, and studies indicate that it is more sensitive to the toxicants

of concern than Pimephales promelas  ( P.  promelas)  or Selenastrum capricornutum  ( S.

capricornutum). In Aquatic Life Ambient Freshwater Quality Criteria - Copper, the USEPA

reports greater sensitivity of C.  dubia to copper ( species mean acute value of 5. 93 µ g/ I)

Page C- 30



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

compared to P. promelas ( species mean acute value of 69.93 µ g/ 1; EPA, 2007). C. dubia' s

relatively higher sensitivity to metals is common across multiple metals.  Additionally,
researchers at the University of California ( UC), Davis reviewed available reported species

sensitivity values in developing pesticide criteria for the Central Valley Regional Water Quality
Control Board. The UC Davis researchers reported higher sensitivity of C. dubia to diazinon and
bifenthrin ( species mean acute value of 0. 34 µ g/ 1 and 0. 105 µ g/ 1) compared to P. promelas
species mean acute value of 7804 µ g/ 1 and 0.405 pg/1; Palumbo et al., 2010a,b). Additionally, a

study of the City of Stockton urban stormwater runoff found acute and chronic toxicity to C.
dubia, with no toxicity to S. capricornutum or P. promelas ( Lee and Lee, 2001). The toxicity
was attributed to organophosphate pesticides,  indicating a higher sensitivity of C.  dubia
compared to S. capricornutum or P. promelas. C. dubia is also the test organism selected to

assess the ambient toxicity of the Los Angeles River by the Los Angeles River Watershed
Monitoring Program and has been the most-sensitive species to the Donald C. Tillman and the
Los Angeles-Glendale Water Reclamation Plant effluent as well as the Los Angeles River

receiving water in the vicinity of the water treatment plants. While P. promelas is generally less
sensitive to metals and pesticides, this species can be more sensitive to ammonia than C. dubia.

However, as ammonia is not typically a constituent of concern for urban runoff and ammonia is
not consistently observed above the toxic thresholds in the watershed, P. promelas is not
considered a particularly sensitive species for evaluating the impacts of urban runoff in receiving
waters in the watershed.

S. capricornutum is a species sensitive to herbicides. However, while sometimes present in urban

runoff, herbicides are not identified as a potential toxicant in the watershed. Additionally, S.
capricornutum is not considered the most sensitive species as it is not sensitive to pyrethroids or

organophosphate pesticides and is not as sensitive to metals as C. dubia. Additionally, the S.
capricornutum growth test can be affected by high concentrations of suspended and dissolved
solids, color, and pH extremes, which can interfere with the determination of sample toxicity. As
a result, it is common to manipulate the sample by centrifugation and filtration to remove solids
to conduct the test; however, this process may affect the toxicity of the sample. In a study of
urban highway stormwater runoff (Kayhanian et. al, 2008), S. capricornutum response to the

stormwater samples was more variable than the C. dubia and the P. promelas and in some cases

the algal growth was possibly enhanced due to the presence of stimulatory nutrients. Also, in a
study on the City of Stockton urban stormwater runoff( Lee and Lee, 2001) the S. capricornutum
tests rarely detected toxicity where the C. dubia and the P. promelas regularly detected toxicity.

As C. dubia is identified as the most sensitive to known potential toxicant( s) typically found in
receiving waters and urban runoff in the freshwater potions of the watershed, C. dubia is selected
as the most sensitive species. The species also has the advantage of being easily maintained in
house mass cultures. The simplicity of the test, the ease of interpreting results, and the smaller
volume necessary to run the test, make the test a valuable screening tool. The ease of sample
collection and higher sensitivity will support assessing the presence of ambient receiving water
toxicity or long-term effects of toxic stormwater over time. As such, toxicity testing in the
freshwater portions of the watershed will be conducted using C. dubia. However, C. dubia test
organisms are typically cultured in moderately hard waters ( 80- 100 mg/L CaCO3) and can have
increased sensitivity to elevated water hardness greater than 400 mg/L CaCO3), which is beyond

their typical habitat range. Because of this, in instances where hardness in site waters exceeds

400 mg/L (CaCO3), an alternative test species may be used. Daphnia magna is more tolerant to

Page C- 31



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

high hardness levels and is a suitable substitution for C. dubia in these instances ( Cowgill and

Milazzo, 1990).

C- 1. 7. 2 Testing Period

The following describes the testing periods to assess toxicity in samples collected in the EWMP
area during dry and wet weather conditions. Although wet weather conditions in the region
generally persist for less than the acute and chronic testing periods ( typically 48 hours and 7
days, respectively), the shorter of the two testing methods, in the case of C. dubia chronic testing
measuring survival, will be used for wet weather toxicity testing in accordance with Short-term
Methods for Estimating the Chronic Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Waters to Freshwater
Organisms ( EPA, 2002b). Because storm events are short duration, chronic tests performed on

wet weather samples are not expected to generate results representative of the typical conditions

found in the receiving water intended to be simulated by toxicity testing.

Chronic toxicity tests will be used to assess both survival and reproductive/ growth endpoints for
C. dubia in dry weather samples. Chronic testing will be conducted on undiluted samples in
accordance with Short-term Methods for Estimating the Chronic Toxicity of Effluents and
Receiving Waters to Freshwater Organisms ( USEPA, 2002a).

C- 1. 7. 3 Toxicity Endpoint Assessment and Toxicity Identification Evaluation
Triggers

Per the MRP, acute and chronic toxicity test endpoints will be analyzed using the Test of
Significant Toxicity (TST) t-test approach specified by the USEPA ( USEPA, 2010). The Permit

specifies that the chronic in- stream waste concentration ( IWC) is set at 100% receiving water for
receiving water samples and 100% effluent for outfall samples. Using the TST approach, a t-
value is calculated for a test result and compared with a critical t-value from USEPA' s TST

Implementation Document( USEPA, 2010). Follow-up triggers are generally based on the Permit
specified statistical assessment as described below.

For acute C. dubia toxicity testing, if a > 50% reduction in survival or reproduction is observed

between the sample and laboratory control that is statistically significant, a toxicity identification
evaluation( TIE) will be performed.

TIE procedures will be initiated as soon as possible after the toxicity trigger threshold is
observed to reduce the potential for loss of toxicity due to extended sample storage. If the cause
of toxicity is readily apparent or is caused by pathogen related mortality or epibiont interference
with the test, the result will be rejected. If necessary, a modified testing procedure will be
developed for future testing.

In cases where significant endpoint toxicity effects greater than 50% are observed in the original

sample, but the follow-up TIE baseline control " signal" is not statistically significant, the cause
of toxicity will be considered non-persistent. No immediate follow-up testing is required on the
sample. However, future test results should be evaluated to determine if parallel TIE treatments

are necessary to provide an opportunity to identify the cause of toxicity

C- 1. 7. 4 Toxicity Identification Evaluation Approach

The results of toxicity testing will be used to trigger further investigations to determine the cause
of observed laboratory toxicity. The primary purpose of conducting TIEs is to support the
identification of management actions that will result in the removal of pollutants causing toxicity

Page C- 32



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

in receiving waters. Successful TIEs will direct monitoring at outfall sampling sites to inform
management actions. As such, the goal of conducting TIEs is to identify pollutant( s) that should
be sampled during outfall monitoring so that management actions can be identified to address the
pollutant( s).

The TIE approach is divided into three phases as described in USEPA' s 1991 Methods for

Aquatic Toxicity Identification Evaluations — Phase I Toxicity Characterization Procedures —
Second Edition( EPA/600/ 6- 9/ 003) and briefly summarized as follows:

Phase I utilizes methods to characterize the physical/ chemical nature of the constituents

that cause toxicity.  Such characteristics as solubility,  volatility and filterability are
determined without specifically identifying the toxicants. Phase I results are intended as a
first step in specifically identifying the toxicants but the data generated can also be used
to develop treatment methods to remove toxicity without specific identification of the
toxicants.

Phase II utilizes methods to specifically identify toxicants.
Phase III utilizes methods to confirm the suspected toxicants.

A Phase I TIE will be conducted on samples that exceed a TIE trigger described above. Water

quality data will be reviewed to future support evaluation of potential toxicants. TIEs will
perform the manipulations described in Table C- 10. TIE methods will generally adhere to
USEPA procedures documented in conducting TIEs( USEPA, 1991, 1992, 1993a-b).

Table C- 10.

Aquatic Toxicity Identification Evaluation Sample Manipulations

TIE Sample Manipulation Expected Response

pH Adjustment( pH 7 and 8. 5) Alters toxicity in pH sensitive compounds ( i. e., ammonia and
some trace metals)

Filtration or centrifugation Removes particulates and associated toxicants

Ethylenedinrilo-Tetraacetic Acid
Chelates trace metals, particularly divalent cationic metalsEDTA) or Cation Exchange Column

Sodium thiosulfate( STS) addition
Reduces toxicants attributable to oxidants ( i. e., chlorine) and

some trace metals

Reduces toxicity from organophosphate pesticides such as
Piperonyl Butoxide( PBO)      diazinon,   chlorpyrifos and malathion,   and enhances

pyrethroid toxicity
Carboxylesterase addition(

1)    
Hydrolyzes pyrethroids

Temperature adjustments(
2)       Pyrethroids become more toxic when test temperatures are

decreased

Solid Phase Extraction ( SPE) with Removes non- polar organics ( including pesticides) and some
C18 column relatively non- polar metal chelates

Sequential Solvent Extraction of Further resolution of SPD- extracted compounds for chemical
C18 column analyses

No Manipulation Baseline test for comparing the relative effectiveness of other
manipulations

Denotes treatments that will be conducted during the initiation of toxicity monitoring, but may be revised as the program is
implemented. These treatments were recommended for initial stomiwater testing in Appendix E( Toxicity Testing Tool for Storm
Water Discharges) of the State Water Resources Control Board' s June 2012 Public Review Draft " Policy for Toxicity
Assessment and Control".

Page C-33



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

1.   Carboxylesterase addition has been used in recent studies to help identify pyrethroid- associated toxicity ( Wheelock et al.,
2004; Weston and Amweg, 2007). However, this treatment is experimental in nature and should be used along with other
pyrethroid- targeted TIE treatments( e. g., PBO addition).

2.   Temperature adjustments are another recent manipulation used to evaluate pyrethroid-associated toxicity.   Lower

temperatures increase the lethality of pyrethroid pesticides.( Harwood, You and Lydy, 2009)

The USGR EWMP Group will identify the cause( s) of toxicity using the treatments in Table C-
10 and, if possible, using the results of water column chemistry analyses. After any initial
determinations of the cause of toxicity, the information may be used during future events to
modify the targeted treatments to more closely target the expected toxicant or to provide
additional treatments to narrow the toxicant cause( s). Moreover, if the toxicant or toxicant class

is not initially identified, toxicity monitoring during subsequent events will confirm if the
toxicant is persistent or a short-term episodic occurrence.

As the primary goals of conducting TIEs is to identify pollutants for incorporation into outfall
monitoring, narrowing the list of toxicants following Phase I TIEs via Phase II or III TIEs is not
necessary if the toxicant class determined during the Phase I TIE is sufficient for: ( 1) identifying
additional pollutants for outfall monitoring; and/or (2) identifying control measures. Thus, if the
specific pollutant( s) or the analytical class of pollutant( e. g., metals that are analyzed via USEPA
Method 200. 8) are identified then sufficient information is available to inform the addition of

pollutants to outfall monitoring.

Phase II TIEs may identify pollutant or analytical class of pollutants, the result of a TIE is
considered conclusive, and utilized to identify specific constituents causing toxicity in a given
sample if information beyond what is gained via the Phase I TIE and review of chemistry data is
needed to identify constituents to monitor or management actions. Phase III TIEs will be
conducted following any Phase II TIEs.

For the purposes of determining whether a TIE is inconclusive,  TIEs will be considered
inconclusive if:

The toxicity is persistent( i. e., observed in the baseline), and
The cause of toxicity cannot be attributed to a class of constituents ( e. g., insecticides,

metals, etc.) that can be targeted for monitoring.

If( 1) a combination of causes that act in a synergistic or additive manner are identified; ( 2) the

toxicity can be removed with a treatment or via a combination of the TIE treatments; or ( 3) the
analysis of water quality data collected during the same event identify the pollutant or analytical
class of pollutants, the result of a TIE is considered conclusive.

In cases where significant endpoint toxicity effects > 50% are observed in the original sample,

but the follow-up TIE baseline " signal" is not statistically significant, the cause of toxicity will
be considered non-persistent.  No immediate follow-up testing is required on the sample.
However, future test results should be evaluated to determine if parallel TIE treatments are

necessary to provide an opportunity to identify the cause of toxicity.

Note that the MRP ( page D-33) allows a TIE Prioritization Metric ( as described in Appendix E

of the Southern California Stormwater Monitoring Coalition' s  ( SMC)  Model Monitoring
Program) for use in ranking sites for TIEs. However, as the extent to which TIEs will be
conducted is unknown, prioritization cannot be conducted at this time. However, prioritization

may be utilized in the future based on the results of toxicity monitoring and an approach to

Page C- 34



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

prioritization will be developed through the CIMP adaptive management process and will be

described in future Annual Reports.

1. 1. 1 Follow Up on Toxicity Testing Results

Per Parts VIII.B. c. vi and XI.G. 1. d of the MRP, if the results of a TIE on a receiving sample are
inconclusive, a toxicity test conducted during the same condition ( i. e., wet or dry weather), using
the same test species, will be conducted at applicable upstream outfalls as soon as feasible ( i.e.,

the next monitoring event that is at least 45 days following the toxicity laboratory' s report
transmitting the results of a inconclusive TIE). The same TIE approach presented in Sections C-

1. 7. 3 and C- 1. 7.4, respectively will be followed based on the results of the outfall sample.

If a toxicant or class of toxicants is identified through a TIE, the MRP (page E- 33) indicates the

following actions should be taken:

Group Members shall analyze for the toxicant(s) during the next scheduled sampling event in the
discharge from the outfall( s) upstream of the receiving water location.
If the toxicant is present in the discharge from the outfall at levels above the applicable receiving
water limitation, a toxicity reduction evaluation ( TRE) will be performed for that toxicant.

The list of constituents monitored at outfalls identified in the CIMP will be modified based on

the results of the TIEs. Monitoring for constituents identified based on the results of a TIE will
occur as soon as feasible following the completion of a successful TIE ( i. e., the next monitoring
event that is at least 45 days following the toxicity laboratory' s report transmitting the results of
a successful TIE).

The requirements of the TREs will be met as part of the adaptive management process in the

USGR EWMP rather than conducted via the CIMP. The identification and implementation of

control measures to address the causes of toxicity are tied to management of the stormwater
program, not the CIMP. It is expected that the requirements of TREs will only be conducted for
toxicants that are not already addressed by an existing Permit requirement ( i. e., TMDLs) or

existing or planned management actions.

C- 1. 7. 5 Summary of Aquatic Toxicity Monitoring

The approach to conducting aquatic toxicity monitoring as described in the previous sections of
this Attachment is summarized in detail in . The intent of the approach is to identify the cause of
toxicity observed in receiving water to the extent possible with the toxicity testing tools
available, thereby directing outfall monitoring for the pollutants causing toxicity with the
ultimate goal of supporting the development and implementation of management actions.

Page C- 35



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Figure D- 1.

Detailed Aquatic Toxicity Assessment Process
Valid results from toxicity test with

sensitive species

1
Are the results of the toxicity test No Evaluate cause of test failure and

valid compared to the test address prior to next event

acceptability criteria?

1 Yes

Do the results of the toxicity test No0 No further action related to this sample

exceed the toxicity identification
TIE) thresholds?

IYes

Conduct TIE

1
Was TIE Inconclusive? No 0 Add identified constituents to outfall

monitoring, continue receiving water

toxicity monitoring, and refer
toxicant(s) to the Adaptive

Management Process in the EWMP

Yes

Was this the second inconclusive No Continue receiving water toxicity
TIE in three years? monitoring and incorporate

information into EWMP

IYes

Add toxicity monitoring to
upstream outfalls during the same

condition, continue receiving water

toxicity monitoring, and incorporate
information into EWMP

C- 1. 8 Bio-Assessment/Macrobenthic Community Assessment

The LACFCD has indicated that it will continue its participation in the SMC Regional

Bioassessment Monitoring Program on behalf of all MS4 Permittees.  Thus no specific

monitoring and analytical procedures are included in the CIMP at this time. If in the future, such
monitoring is necessary under this program, the CIMP will be revised to include appropriate
procedures.

Page C- 36



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 1. 8. 1 List of Laboratories Conducting Analysis

The chosen laboratories will be able to meet the measurement quality objectives set forth in
Table C- 2 through Table C-5. Laboratories will meet California Environmental Laboratory
Accreditation Program  ( ELAP)  and/or National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation
Program ( NELAP) certifications and any data quality requirements specified in this document.
Due to contracting procedures and solicitation requirements, qualified laboratories have not yet
been selected to carry out the analytical responsibilities described in this CIMP.  Selected
laboratories will be listed along with lab certification information in Table C- 11. Following the
completion of the first monitoring year, the CIMP will be updated to include the pertinent
laboratory specific information. At the end of all future monitoring years the USGR EWMP
Group will assess the laboratories performance and at that time a new laboratory may be chosen.

Table C- 11.

Summary of Laboratories Conducting Analysis for the USGR CIMP

Laboratory(
1)    

General Category of Analysis Lab Certification No. & Expiration Date(2)

1.   Information for all laboratories will be added to this table following their selection and upon CIMP update.

2.   Lab certifications are renewed on an annual basis.

In the event that the laboratories selected to perform analyses for the CIMP are unable to fulfill

data quality requirements outlined herein  ( e. g.,  due to instrument malfunction),  alternate

laboratories need to meet the same requirements that the primary labs have met. The original
laboratory selected may recommend a qualified laboratory to act as a substitute. However, the
final decision regarding alternate laboratory selection rests with the USGR EWMP Group.

Page C- 37



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C-2 SAMPLING METHOD AND SAMPLE HANDLING

The following sections describe the steps to be taken to properly prepare for and initiate water
quality sampling for the CIMP.

C- 2. 1 Monitoring Event Preparation

Monitoring event preparation includes preparation of field equipment, placing bottle orders, and
contacting the necessary personnel regarding site access and schedule. The following steps will
be completed two weeks prior to each sampling event ( a condensed timeline may be appropriate
in storm events, which may need to be completed on short notice):

1.   Contact laboratories to order sample containers and to coordinate sample transportation

details.

2.   Confirm scheduled monitoring date with field crew( s), and set- up sampling day itinerary
including sample drop-off.

3.   Prepare equipment.

4.   Prepare sample container labels and apply to bottles.
5.   Prepare the monitoring event summary and field log sheets to indicate the type of field

measurements, field observations and samples to be collected at each of the monitoring sites.
6.   Verify that field measurement equipment is operating properly  ( i.e.,  check batteries,

calibrate, etc.)

Table C- 12 provides a checklist of field equipment to prepare prior to each monitoring event.

Page C- 38



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Table C- 12.

Field Equipment Checklist

Monitoring Plan

Sample Containers plus Extras with Extra Lids

Pre- Printed, Waterproof Labels ( extra blank sheets)

Event Summary Sheets

Field Log Sheets

Chain of Custody Forms

Bubble Wrap

Coolers with Ice

Tape Measure

Paper Towels or" Rags in a Box"

Safety Equipment

First Aid Kit

Cellular Telephone

Gate Keys

Hip Waders

Plastic Trash Bags

Sealable Plastic Bags

Grab Pole

Clean Secondary Container(s)

Field Measurement Equipment

New Powder-Free Nitrile Gloves

Writing Utensils

Stop Watch

Camera

Blank Water

C- 2. 1. 1 Bottle Order/ Preparation

Sample container orders will be placed with the appropriate analytical laboratory at least two
weeks prior to each sampling event. Containers will be ordered for all water samples, including
quality control samples, as well as extra containers in case the need arises for intermediate
containers or a replacement. The containers must be the proper type and size and contain

preservative as appropriate for the specified laboratory analytical methods. Table C-9 presents
the proper container type, volume, and immediate processing and storage needs. The field crew
must inventory sample containers upon receipt from the laboratory to ensure that adequate
containers have been provided to meet analytical requirements for each monitoring event. After
each event, any bottles used to collect water samples will be cleaned by the laboratory and either
picked up by or shipped to the field crew.

Page C- 39



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 2. 1. 2 Container Labeling and Sample Identification Scheme

All samples will be identified with a unique identification code to ensure that results are properly
reported and interpreted. Samples will be identified such that the site, sampling location, matrix,
sampling equipment and sample type  ( i.e.,  environmental sample or QC sample)  can be

distinguished by a data reviewer or user. Sample identification codes will consist of a site
identification code, a matrix code, and a unique sample identification code. The format for
sample identification codes is USGR-###.# - AAAA - XXX, where:

USGR indicates that the sample was collected as part of the USGR CIMP.

identifies the sequentially numbered monitoring event, and the # is an optional indicator

for re- samples collected for the same event. Sample events are numbered from 001 to 999 and

will not be repeated.

AAAA indicates the unique site ID for each site.

XXX identifies the sample number unique to a sample bottle collected for a single event.

Sample bottles are numbered sequentially from 001 to 999 and will not be repeated within a
single event.

Custom bottle labels should be produced using blank waterproof labels and labeling software.
This approach will allow the site and analytical constituent information to be entered in advance

and printed as needed prior to each monitoring event. Labels will be placed on the appropriate
bottles in a dry environment; applying labels to wet sample bottles should be avoided. Labels
should be placed on sides of bottles rather than on bottle caps. All sample containers will be pre-

labeled before each sampling event to the extent practicable. Pre- labeling sample containers
simplifies field activities, leaving only sample collection time and date and field crew initials to
be filled out in the field. Labels should include the following information:

Program Name Date Analytical Requirements

Station ID Collection Time Preservative Requirements

Sample ID Sampling Personnel Analytical Laboratory

C- 2. 1. 3 Field Meter Calibration

Calibration of field measurement equipment is performed as described in the owner' s manuals

for each individual instrument. Each individual field crew will be responsible for calibrating their
field measurement equipment. Field monitoring equipment must meet the requirements outlined
in Table D-6 and be calibrated before field events based on manufacturer guidance, but at a

minimum prior to each event.  Table C- 13 outlines the typical field instrument calibration

procedures for each piece of equipment requiring calibration.  Each calibration will be

documented on each event' s calibration log sheet.

If calibration results do not meet manufacturer specifications, the field crew should first try to
recalibrate using fresh aliquots of calibration solution. If recalibration is unsuccessful, new
calibration solution should be used and/ or maintenance should be performed. Each attempt

should be recorded on the equipment calibration log. If the calibration results cannot meet
manufacturer' s specifications, the field crew should use a spare field measuring device that can

Page C- 40



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

be successfully calibrated. If a spare field measuring device that can be successfully calibrated is
unavailable, field crews shall note the use of unsuccessfully calibrated equipment on each
appropriate field log sheet. Additionally, the USGR EWMP Group should be notified.

Calibration should be verified using at least one calibration fluid within the expected range of
field measurements, both immediately following calibration and at the end of each monitoring
day. Individual parameters should be recalibrated if the field meters do not measure a calibration
fluid within the range of accuracy presented in Table D-6.  Calibration verification

documentation will be retained in the event' s calibration verification log  ( presented in

Appendix 1).

Table C- 13.

Calibration of Field Measurement Equipment

Equipment /   Calibration and Verification Frequency Frequency of
Responsible

Instrument Description
of Calibration

PartyCalibration Verification

Calibration for pH measurement is

accomplished using standard buffer

pH Probe solutions. Analysis of a mid- range buffer

will be performed to verify successful
calibration.

Temperature Temperature calibration is factory-set and
requires no subsequent calibration.

Calibration for dissolved oxygen

measurements is accomplished using a
water saturated air environment.

Dissolved Dissolved oxygen ( DO) measurement of

Day prior to After
Oxygen water-saturated air will be performed and

1st day or calibration and
Probe compared to a standard table of DO Individual

concentrations in water as a function of
1st day of at the end of

Sampling Crews
temperature and barometric pressure to sampling each sampling

verify successful calibration.   
event day

Conductivity calibration will follow

Conductivity
manufacturer's specifications.  A mid-

range conductivity standard will be

analyzed to verify successful calibration.

Turbidity calibration will follow

Turbidity
manufacturer's specifications.  A mid-

range turbidity standard will be analyzed
to verify successful calibration.

C- 2. 1. 4 Weather Conditions

Monitoring will occur during dry and wet conditions. Wet weather conditions for triggering
storm events will be defined as a 70 percent probable forecast of greater than 0.25 inches of

precipitation of rain where the preceding 72 hours of dry weather has less than 0. 1 inches of rain.
To qualify the event as wet weather, the receiving water flow would need to be measured greater
than 20% over the base flow. Dry weather is defined in the MRP as when the flow of the

Page C-41



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

receiving water body is less than 20 percent greater than the base flow and occurring more than
three days after a rain event of 0. 1 inches or greater within the watershed.

Note that if rainfall begins after dry weather monitoring has been initiated, then dry weather
monitoring will be suspended and continued on a subsequent day when weather conditions meet
the dry weather conditions. Generally, grab samples will be collected during dry weather and
composite samples will be collected during wet weather. Grab samples will be used for dry
weather sampling events because the composition of the receiving water will change less over
time; and thus, the grab sample can sufficiently characterize the receiving water. Grab samples
during dry weather are consistent with similar programs within the region.  However,  to

sufficiently characterize the receiving water during wet weather,  composite samples will
generally be used for wet weather sampling events. Grab samples may be utilized to collect wet
weather sampling in certain situations, which may include, but are not limited to, when the
constituent of interest requires the use of grab samples ( e. g., E.  coli and oil and grease),

situations where it is unsafe to collect composite samples, or to perform investigative monitoring
where composite sampling or installation of an automatic sample compositor ( autosampler) may
not be warranted.

The MRP includes specific criteria for the time of monitoring events. With the exception of
bacteria and metals monitoring, most constituents will be monitored during two dry weather
monitoring events. For dry weather toxicity monitoring, sampling must take place during the
historically driest month. As a result, the dry weather monitoring event that includes toxicity
monitoring will be conducted in July. The second dry weather monitoring event will take place
during January unless sampling during another month is deemed to be preferable.

The first significant rain event of the storm year ( first flush) will be monitored. The targeted

storm events for wet weather sampling will be selected based on a reasonable probability that the
events will result in substantially increased flows in the San Gabriel River over at least 12 hours.
Sufficient precipitation is needed to produce runoff and increase flow. The decision to sample a

storm event will be made in consultation with weather forecasting information services after a
quantitative precipitation forecast ( QPF) has been determined. All efforts will be made to collect

wet weather samples from all sites during a single targeted storm event. However, safety or other
factors may make it infeasible to collect samples from a given storm event. For example, storm
events that will require field crews to collect wet weather samples during holidays and/or
weekends may not be sampled due to sample collection or laboratory staffing constraints.

For a storm to be tracked, the first flush event will have a predicted rainfall of at least 0.25 inches

with at least a 70 percent probability of rainfall 24 hours prior to the forecasted time of initial
rainfall. Subsequent storm events must meet the tracking requirements, flow objectives, as well
as be separated by a minimum of three days of dry weather. Antecedent conditions will be based
on the LA County Department of Public Works (LACDPW) rain gage listed in Table C- 14. The
rain gage has been used to define wet and dry weather during TMDL monitoring in the
watershed since 2009. Data can be obtained at http:// dpw. lacounty.gov/wrd/Precip/ index.cfm by
clicking the ` See Data' link in the " Near Real-Time Precipitation Map" section. The web page
displays a map showing real- time rainfall totals ( in inches) for different rain gages. Although the
default precipitation period is 24 hours, the user can view rainfall totals over different durations.

Data from the rain gages is updated every 10 minutes.

Page C- 42



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Table C- 14.

Real-Time Rain Gage Used to Define Weather Conditions for CIMP Monitoring'')
Rainfall Gage Operator Gage Type Latitude Longitude

University of Southern Los Angeles County Manually Observed Non-   
34.0226   - 118.2908California ( USC) ( 375)    Department of Public Works Mechanical Rain Gage

7.   Information for the gage can be found at http:// dpw. lacounty.gov/wrd/ Precip/alertlist.cfm.

The targeted storm events for wet weather sampling will be selected based on a reasonable
probability that the events will result in substantially increased flows in the San Gabriel River for
at least 12 hours. Sufficient precipitation is needed to produce runoff and increase flow. The

decision to sample a storm event will be made in consultation with weather forecasting
information services after a quantitative precipitation forecast ( QPF) has been determined. All
efforts will be made to collect wet weather samples from all sites during a single targeted storm
event. However, safety or other factors may make it infeasible to collect samples from the same
storm event.

For the purpose of triggering wet weather sampling preparation, field staff can estimate that any
rainfall prediction for downtown Los Angeles of 0. 1- 0. 5 inches in a 6- to 12- hour period would

be sufficient to mobilize for wet weather sampling, or by utilizing the analyses of the CMP staff.
The sampling crew should prepare to depart at the forecasted time of initial rainfall. The first of
the four manual composite samples should be targeted for collection within 2 hours of local
rainfall.

Publicly available meteorological forecasting systems are suggested for identifying and
anticipating storm event sampling for the Study. The sampling decision protocol begins when the
sampling crew recognizes an approaching storm, through weekly monitoring of forecasts. The
National Weather Service' s weather forecast for downtown Los Angeles can be accessed on- line
at:

http:// www.wrh. noaa. gov/ lox/ then click on" Los Angeles" on the area map
From the forecast page, the link to " Quantitative Precipitation Forecast" provides forecasted

precipitation in inches for the next 24 hours, in 3- hour increments for the first 12 hours and in 6-
hour increments for the last 12 hours.

C- 2. 1. 5 Flow Gage Measurements

USGS flow gages along the San Gabriel River will be used to determine whether the receiving
water flow has exceeded the 20 percent threshold. Flows above the 20 percent threshold will
classify the receiving water body as being in " wet" conditions and flows that are less than the 20
percent threshold will be " dry" conditions. In addition to the USGS rain gages, field crews will
monitor flow at each of the sampling sties. Table C- 15 presents the location of flow gages
located on the San Gabriel River.

Table C- 15.

LA River and Tributary Flow Gages

Waterbody WaTypBody
Gage Location Gage ID

San Gabriel River Main Stem San Gabriel River above Whittier Narrows Dam SGRW

Page C- 43



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

San Gabriel River Main Stem San Gabriel River Below Santa Fe Dam SGRS

C- 2.2 Sample Handling

Proper sampling handling ensures the samples will comply with the monitoring methods and
analytical hold time and provides traceable documentation throughout the history of the sample.
C- 2. 2. 1 Documentation Procedures

The USGR EWMP Group is responsible for ensuring that each field sampling team adheres to
proper custody and documentation procedures. Field log sheets documenting sample collection
and other monitoring activities for each site will be bound in a separate master logbook for each
event. Field personnel have the following responsibilities:

1.  Keep an accurate written record of sample collection activities on the field log sheets.
2.  Ensure that all field log sheet entries are legible and contain accurate and inclusive

documentation of all field activities.
3.  Note errors or changes using a single line to cross out the entry and date and initial the

change.

4.  Ensure that a label is affixed to each sample collected and that the labels uniquely
identify samples with a sample ID, site ID, date and time of sample collection and the
sampling crew initials.

5.  Complete the chain of custody forms accurately and legibly.
C- 2. 2. 2 Field Documentation/ Field Log

Field crews will keep a field log book for each sampling event that contains a calibration log
sheet, a field log sheet for each site, and appropriate contact information. The following items
should be recorded on the field log sheet for each sampling event:

Monitoring station location( Station ID);
Date and time( s) of sample collection;

Name( s) of sampling personnel;
Sample collection depth;

Sample ID numbers and unique IDs for any replicate or blank samples;
QC sample type ( if appropriate);

Requested analyses ( specific parameters or method references);

Sample type( e. g., grab or composite);
The results of field measurements  ( e. g.,  flow,  temperature,  dissolved oxygen,  pH,

conductivity, turbidity) and the time that measurements were made;

Qualitative descriptions of relevant water conditions ( e. g., water color, flow level, clarity)
or weather( e. g., wind, rain) at the time of sample collection;
Trash observations( presence/absence);

Observations of recreational activities;

A description of any unusual occurrences associated with the sampling event, particularly
those that may affect sample or data quality.

Page C- 44



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

The field log will be scanned into a PDF within one week of the conclusion of each sampling
event. Alternatively, all measurements could be collected on an electronic device such as laptop
or tablet computer. Appendix 1 contains an example of the field log sheet.
C- 2. 2. 3 Sample Handling and Shipment

The field crews will have custody of samples during each monitoring event. Chain-of-custody
COC) forms will accompany all samples during shipment to contract laboratories to identify the

shipment contents. All water quality samples will be transported to the analytical laboratory by
the field crew or by courier. The original COC form will accompany the shipment, and a signed
copy of the COC form will be sent, typically via fax, by the laboratory to the field crew to be
retained in the project file.

While in the field, samples will be stored on ice in an insulated container. Samples that must be
shipped to the laboratory must be examined to ensure that container lids are tight and placed on
ice to maintain the appropriate temperature. The ice packed with samples must be approximately
2 inches deep at the top and bottom of the cooler, and must contact each sample to maintain
temperature. The original COC form( s) will be double-bagged in re- sealable plastic bags and
either taped to the outside of the cooler or to the inside lid. Samples must be shipped to the
contract laboratory according to transportation standards. The method( s) of shipment, courier
name, and other pertinent information should be entered in the " Received By" or " Remarks"
section of the COC form.

Coolers must be sealed with packing tape before shipping, unless transported by field or lab
personnel, and must not leak. It is assumed that samples in tape- sealed ice chests are secure
whether being transported by common carrier or by commercial package delivery.  The

laboratory' s sample receiving department will examine the shipment of samples for correct
documentation,  proper preservation and compliance with holding times.  The following
procedures are used to prevent bottle breakage and cross- contamination:

Bubble wrap or foam pouches are used to keep glass bottles from contacting one another
to prevent breakage, re- sealable bags will be used if available.

All samples are transported inside hard plastic coolers or other contamination- free
shipping containers.

If arrangements are not made in advance, the laboratory' s sample receiving personnel
must be notified prior to sample shipment.

All samples remaining after successful completion of analyses will be disposed of properly. It is
the responsibility of the personnel of each analytical laboratory to ensure that all applicable
regulations are followed in the disposal of samples or related chemicals. Samples will be stored
and transported as noted in Table C- 9. Samples not analyzed locally will be sent on the same
day that the sample collection process is completed, if possible. Samples will be delivered to the
appropriate laboratory as will be indicated in Table C- 16.  Note that due to procurement
procedures, the analytical laboratories have not been identified at this time. Information for all
laboratories will be added to this table following their selection and upon CIMP update.
Appropriate contacts will be listed along with lab certification information in Table C- 16.

Page C- 45



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Table C- 16.

Information on Laboratories Conducting Analysis for the USGR CIMP

General Lab Certification
Category of Shipping No. & Expiration

Laboratory(
1)      

Analysis Method Contact Phone Address Date(2)

1.   Information for all laboratories will be added to this table following their selection and upon CIMP update.
2.   Lab certifications are renewed on an annual basis.

C- 2. 2.4 Chain-of Custody Forms

Sample custody procedures provide a mechanism for documenting information related to sample
collection and handling. Sample custody must be traceable from the time of sample collection
until results are reported. A sample is considered under custody if:

It is in actual possession.

It is in view after in physical possession.

It is placed in a secure area ( accessible by or under the scrutiny of authorized personnel
only after in possession).

A COC form must be completed after sample collection and prior to sample shipment or release.
The COC form, sample labels, and field documentation will be cross- checked to verify sample
identification, type of analyses, number of containers, sample volume, preservatives, and type of
containers. A complete COC form is to accompany the transfer of samples to the analyzing
laboratory. A typical COC form is presented in Appendix 1.

C- 2. 2. 5 Laboratory Custody Procedures

Laboratories will follow sample custody procedures as outlined in the laboratory' s QA Manual.
A copy of each contract laboratory' s QA Manual should be available at the laboratory upon
request. Laboratories shall maintain custody logs sufficient to track each sample submitted and to
analyze or preserve each sample within specified holding times. The following sample control
activities must be conducted at the laboratory:

Initial sample login and verification of samples received with the COC form;
Document any discrepancies noted during login on the COC;
Initiate internal laboratory custody procedures;
Verify sample preservation( e. g., temperature);
Notify the USGR EWMP Group if any problems or discrepancies are identified; and,
Perform proper sample storage protocols, including daily refrigerator temperature monitoring
and sample security.

Laboratories shall maintain records to document that the above procedures are followed. Once
samples have been analyzed, samples will be stored at the laboratory for at least 30 days. After
this period, samples may be disposed of properly.

Page C- 46



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 2. 3 Field Protocols

Briefly, the key aspects of quality control associated with field protocols for sample collection
for eventual chemical and toxicological analyses are as follows:

1.  Field personnel will be thoroughly trained in the proper use of sample collection gear and
will be able to distinguish acceptable versus unacceptable water samples in accordance
with pre-established criteria.

2.  Field personnel will be thoroughly trained to recognize and avoid potential sources of
sample contamination( e. g., engine exhaust, ice used for cooling).

3.  Sampling gear and utensils which come in direct contact with the sample will be made of
non- contaminating materials ( e. g., borosilicate glass, high-quality stainless steel and/or
TeflonTM, 

according to protocol) and will be thoroughly cleaned between sampling
stations according to appropriate cleaning protocol( rinsing thoroughly at minimum).

4.  Sample containers will be of the recommended type and will be free of contaminants
i.e., pre-cleaned).

5.  Conditions for sample collection, preservation, and holding times will be followed.

Field crews will be comprised of two persons per crew, minimum. For safety reasons, sampling
will occur during daylight hours, when possible. Sampling on weekends and holidays will also
be avoided. Other constraints on sampling events include, but are not limited to, lab closures and
toxicity testing organism availability. Sampling events should proceed in the following manner:

1.  Before leaving the sampling crew base of operations, confirm number and type of sample
containers as well as the complete equipment list.

2.  Proceed to the first sampling site.
3.  Fill-out the general information on the field log sheet.
4.  Collect the environmental and quality assurance/ quality control  ( QA/QC)  samples

indicated on the event summary sheet and store samples appropriately. Using the field log
sheet, confirm that all appropriate containers were filled.

5.  Collect field measurements and observations, and record these on the field log sheet.
6.  Repeat the procedures in steps 3, 4, and 5 for each of the remaining sampling sites.
7.  Complete the COC forms using the information on the field log sheets.
8.  After sample collection is completed,  deliver and/or ship samples to appropriate

laboratory.

C- 2.4 Sample collection

All samples will be collected in a manner appropriate for the specific analytical methods to be
used. The proper sampling techniques, outlined in this section, will ensure that the collected
samples are representative of the waterbodies sampled. Should field crews feel that it is unsafe to
collect samples for any reason, the field crews SHOULD NOT COLLECT a sample and note
on the field log that the sample was not collected, why the sample was not collected, and provide
photo documentation, if feasible.

C- 2.4. 1 Overview of Sampling Techniques

As described below, the method used to collect water samples is dependent on the depth, flow,
and sampling location( receiving water, outfall). Nonetheless, in all cases:

Page C- 47



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

1.  Throughout each sample collection event, the sampler should exercise aseptic techniques
to avoid any contamination ( i. e., do not touch the inner surfaces or lip edges of the
sample bottle or cap).

2.  The sampler should use clean, powder- free,  nitrile gloves for each site to prevent
contamination.

3.  When collecting the sample, the sampler should not breathe, sneeze, or cough in the
direction of the container.

4.  Gloves should be changed if they are soiled, or if the potential for cross- contamination
exists from handling sampling materials or samples.

5.  While the sample is collected, the bottle lid shall not be placed on the ground.
6.  The sampler should not eat or drink during sample collection.
7.  The sampler should not smoke during sample collection.
8.  Each person on the field crew should wear clean clothing that is free of dirt, grease, or

other substances that could contaminate the sampling apparatus or sample bottles.
9.  Sampling should not occur near a running vehicle. Vehicles should not be parked within

the immediate sample collection area, even non- running vehicles.
10. When the sample is collected, ample air space should be left in the bottle to facilitate

mixing by shaking for lab analysis, unless otherwise required by the method.
11. After the sample is collected and the cap is tightly screwed back on the bottle, the time of

sampling should be recorded on the field log sheet.
12. Any QA/QC samples that are collected should be also be noted on the field log sheet and

labeled according the convention described in Section C- 1
13. Samples should be stored as previously described.
14. COC forms should be filled out as described in Section C- 2.2.4 of this Attachment and

delivered to the appropriate laboratory as soon as feasible to ensure hold times are met.

To prevent contamination of samples, clean metal sampling techniques using USEPA protocols
outlined in USEPA Method

16691

will be used throughout all phases of the water sample
collection.  The protocol for clean metal sampling,  based on USEPA Method 1669,  is
summarized below:

1.  Samples are collected in rigorously pre-cleaned sample bottles with any tubing specially
processed to clean sampling standards.

2.  At least two persons, wearing clean, powder- free nitrile or latex gloves at all times, are
required on a sampling crew.

3.  One person, referred to as " dirty hands", opens only the outer bag of all double- bagged
sample bottles.

4.  The other person, referred to as " clean hands", reaches into the outer bag, opens the inner
bag and removes the clean sample bottle.

5.  Clean hands rinses the bottle at least two times by submerging the bottle, removing the
bottle lid, filling the bottle approximately one-third full, replacing the bottle lid, gently
shaking and then emptying the bottle.  Clean hands then collects the sample by
submerging the bottle, removing the lid, filling the bottle and replacing the bottle cap

1 USEPA. April 1995. Method 1669: Sampling Ambient Water for Trace Metals at EPA Water Quality Criteria
Levels. EPA 821- R-95-034.

Page C- 48



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

while the bottle is still submerged.

6.  After the sample is collected, the sample bottle is double-bagged in the opposite order

from which it was removed from the same double- bagging.
7.  Clean, powder- free gloves are changed whenever something not known to be clean has

been touched.

C- 2.4.2 Field Measurements and Observations

Field measurements will be collected and observations made at each sampling site after a sample
is collected. Field measurements will include the parameters identified in the CIMP for which a

laboratory analysis is not being conducted.  Field monitoring equipment must meet the
requirements outlined in Table C- 5. Field measurements for sediment samples shall be collected

from within one meter of the sediment. All field measurement results and field observations will

be recorded on a field log sheet similar to the one presented in Appendix 1 and as described in
Section C-2. 2. 4 of this Attachment.

Measurements ( except for flow) will be collected at approximately mid- stream, mid-depth at the
location of greatest flow ( if feasible) with a Hydrolab DS4 multi-probe meter, or comparable

instrument(s). If at any time the collection of field measurements by wading appears to be
unsafe, field crews will not attempt to collect mid-stream, mid-depth measurements. Rather, field

measurements will be made either directly from a stable, unobstructed area at the channel edge,
or by using a telescoping pole and intermediate container to obtain a sample for field
measurements and for filling sample containers. For situations where flows are not sufficiently
deep to submerge the probes, an intermediate container will be utilized. The location of field
measurements will be documented on the field log sheet.

Flow measurements will be collected as outlined in the following subsections at freshwater
receiving water and non- stormwater outfall monitoring sites.  Regardless of measurement
technique used, if a staff gage is present the gage height will be noted. Field crews may not be
able to measure flow at several sites during wet weather because of inaccessibility of the site. If
this is the case, site inaccessibility will be documented on the field log sheet.

The field sampling crew has the primary responsibility for responding to failures in the sampling
or measurement systems. Deviations from established monitoring protocols will be documented
in the comment section of the field log sheet and noted in the post event summaries. If
monitoring equipment fails, monitoring personnel will report the problem in the notes section of
the field log sheet and will not record data values for the variables in question. Broken
equipment will be replaced or repaired prior to the next field use. Data collected using faulty
equipment will not be used.

C-2.4.2. 1 Shallow Sheet Flow Measurements

If the depth of flow does not allow for the measurement of flow with a velocity meter(< 0. 1- foot)

a " float" will be used to measure the velocity of the flowing water. The width, depth, velocity,
cross section, and corresponding flow rate will be estimated as follows:

Sheet flow width: The width (W) of the flowing water( not the entire part of the channel
that is damp) is measured at the " top", " middle", and" bottom" of a marked- off distance—

generally 10 feet ( e. g., for a 10- foot marked-off section, WTop is measured at 0- feet,   Mid

Page C- 49



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

is measured at 5 feet, and WB° n(' m is measured at 10 feet).

Sheet flow depth: The depth of the sheet flow is measured at the top, middle, and bottom
of the marked-off distance. Specifically, the depth ( D) of the sheet flow is measured at

DMid

25%, 50%, and 75% of the flowing width ( e. g.,    50% is the depth of the water at middle

of the section in the middle of the sheet flow) at each of the width measurement

locations. It is assumed that the depth at the edge of the sheet flow ( i. e., at 0% and 100%

of the flowing width) is zero.

Representative cross-section: Based on the collected depth and width measurements,

the representative cross- sectional area across the marked- off sheet flow is approximated

as follows:

Representative Cross Section =

Average
l

WTop
x(

D25p + ( D50%+ D25p)+ ( D75%+ Dsoar°)+ D75p)
4 2 2 2 2   ],

W
x(

DMid   ( r,Mid+ DMid)+( DMid+   Mid)+ r Mid)]

Mid 25/ +    50%     25%       75%     50%       75%

4 2 2 2 2    '

W D
5%      

DBottom+ DBo" om DBottom+ DBottom DBottom

r Bottom
x(  

25%   +    50%       25%    +    75%       5( P/o  )+   750  )] l
L

4 2 2 2 2

Sheet flow velocity: Velocity is calculated based on the amount of time it took a float to
travel the marked-off distance ( typically 10- feet or more). Floats are normally pieces of
leaves, litter, or floatables ( suds, etc.). The time it takes the float to travel the marked- off

distance is measured at least three times. Then average velocity is calculated as follows:

Distance Marked offfor Float Measurement
Average Surface Velocity =

Average Time for Float to Travel Marked offDistance

Flow Rate calculation: For sheet flows, based on the above measurements/estimates, the

estimated flow rate, Q, is calculated by:

Q = fx (Representative Cross Section) x (Average Surface Velocity)

The coefficient f is used to account for friction effects of the channel bottom. That is, the float

travels on the water surface, which is the most rapidly-traveling portion of the water column. The
average velocity, not the surface velocity, determines the flow rate, and thus f is used to
convert" surface velocity to average velocity. In general, the value of f typically ranges from

0. 60— 0. 90 ( USGS 1982). Based on flow rate measurements taken during the LA River Bacteria
Source Identification Study ( CREST 2008) a value of 0. 75 will be used for f in the equation.

Page C- 50



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

However, the soft-bottom channels may require adjustment of the factor f, due to different
hydraulic friction.

C-2.4.2.2 Free-flowing Outfalls

Some storm drain outfalls are free- flowing, meaning the runoff falls from an elevated outfall into
the channel, which allows for collection of the entire flowing stream of water into a container of
known volume ( e. g., graduated bucket or graduated Ziploc bag). The time it takes to fill the

known volume is measured using a stopwatch, and recorded on the field log. The time it takes to
fill the container will be measured three times and averaged to ensure that the calculated

discharge is representative. In some cases, a small portion of the runoff may flow around or
under the container.  For each measurement,  " percent capture",  or the proportion of flow

estimated to enter the bucket, will be recorded. For free- flowing outfalls, the estimated flow rate,
Q, is calculated by:

Filled container Volume
Q= Average[       

Time to Fill Container) x( Estimated Capture)

Based on measurements of free- flowing outfalls during the LA River Bacteria Source
Identification Study( CREST, 2008), estimated capture typically ranges from 0. 75 — 1. 0.

C- 2. 4.3 Sampling Techniques for the Collection of Water

The following subsections provide details on the various techniques that can be utilized to collect
water quality samples. Should field crews feel that it is unsafe to collect samples for any reason,
the field crews SHOULD NOT COLLECT a sample and note on the field log that the sample
was not collected, why the sample was not collected, and provide photo documentation, if
feasible.

C-2.4.3. 1 Direct Submersion: Hand Technique

Where practical, all grab samples will be collected by direct submersion at mid- stream, mid-
depth using the following procedures:

1.  Follow the standard sampling procedures described in Section C- 2.4. 1 of this
Attachment.

2.  Remove the lid, submerge the container to mid- stream/ mid-depth, let the container fill

and secure the lid. In the case of mercury samples, remove the lid underwater to reduce
the potential for contamination from the air.

3.  Place the sample on ice.

4.  Collect the remaining samples including quality control samples, if required, using the
same protocols described above.

5.  Follow the sample handling procedures described in Section C-2. 2 of this Attachment.

C-2.4.3.2 Intermediate Container Technique

Samples may be collected with the use of a clean intermediate container, if necessary, following
the steps listed below. An intermediate container may include a container that is similar in
composition to the sample container, a pre- cleaned pitcher made of the same material as the

sample container, or a Ziploc bag. An intermediate container should not be reused at a different
site without appropriate cleaning.

Page C- 51



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

1.  Follow the standard sampling procedures described in Section C- 2.4. 1 of this
Attachment.

2.  Submerge the intermediate container to mid-stream/ mid-depth  ( if possible),  let the

container fill, and quickly transfer the sample into the individual sample container( s) and
secure the lid(s).

3.  Place the sample( s) on ice.
4.  Collect remaining samples including quality control samples, if required, using the same

protocols described above.
5.  Follow the sample handling procedures described in Section C-2.2 of this Attachment.

Some flows may be too shallow to fill a container without using an intermediate container. When
collecting samples from shallow sheet flows it is very important to not scoop up algae, sediment,
or other particulate matter on the bottom because such debris is not representative of flowing
water. To prevent scooping up such debris either: ( 1) find a spot where the bottom is relatively
clean and allow the sterile intermediate container to fill without scooping; or ( 2) lay a clean
sterile Ziploc® bag on the bottom and collect the water sample from on top of the bag. A fresh
Ziploc® bag must be used at each site.

C-2.4.3.3 Pumping

Samples may be collected with the use of a peristaltic pump and specially cleaned tubing
following the steps listed below. Sample tubing should not be reused at a different site without
appropriate cleaning.

1.  Follow the standard sampling procedures described in Section C-2. 4. 1 of this
Attachment.

2.  Attach pre- cleaned tubing into the pump, exercising caution to avoid allowing tubing
ends to touch any surface known not to be clean. A separate length of clean tubing must
be used at each sample location for which the pump is used.

3.  Place one end of the tubing below the surface of the water. To the extent possible, avoid
placing the tubing near the bottom so that settled solids are not pumped into the sample
container.

4.  Hold the other end of the tubing over the opening of the sample container, exercising care
not to touch the tubing to the sample container.

5.  Pump the necessary sample volume into the sample container and secure the lid.
6.  Place the sample on ice.
7.  Collect remaining samples including quality control samples, if required, using the same

protocols described above.
8.  Follow the sample handling procedures described in Section C-2.2 of this Attachment.

C-2.4.3.4 Autosamplers

Autosamplers are used to characterize the entire flow of a storm in one analysis. They can be
programmed to take aliquots at either time- or flow-based specified intervals. Before beginning
setup in the field, it is recommended to read the manufacturer' s instructions. The general steps to
set up the autosampler are described below:

Page C- 52



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

1.  Connect power source to autosampler computer. This can be in the form of a battery or a
power cable.

2.  Install pre- cleaned tubing into the pump. Clean tubing will be used at each site and for
each event, in order to minimize contamination.

3.  Attach strainer to intake end of the tubing and install in sampling channel.
4.  If running flow based composite samples; install flow sensor in sampling channel and

connect it to the automatic compositor.

5.  Label and install composite bottle(s). If sampler is not refrigerated, then add enough ice

to the composite bottle chamber to keep sample cold for the duration of sampling or until
such time as ice can be refreshed. Make sure not to contaminate the inside of the

composite bottle with any of the ice.
6.  Program the autosampler as per the manufacturer' s instructions and make sure the

autosampler is powered and running before leaving the site.

After the sample collection is completed the following steps must be taken to ensure proper
sample handling:

1.  Upon returning to the site, check the status of the autosampler and record any errors or
missed samples. Note on the field log the time of the last sample, as this will be used for
filling out the COCs.

2.  Remove the composite bottle and store on ice. If dissolved metals are required, then

begin the sample filtration process outlined in the following subsection, within 15
minutes of the last composite sample, unless compositing must occur at another location,
in which case the filtration process should occur as soon as possible upon sample

compositing.

3.  Power down autosampler and leave sampling site.
4.  The composite sample will need to be split into the separate analysis bottles either before

being shipped to the laboratory or at the laboratory. This is best done in a clean and
weatherproof environment, using clean sampling technique.

C-2.4.3.5 Dissolved Metals Field Filtration

When feasible, samples for dissolved metals will be filtered in the field. The following describes
an appropriate dissolved field filtration method. An alternative an equivalent method may be
utilized, if necessary. A 50mL plastic syringe with a 0.45µ m filter attached will be used to
collect and filter the dissolved metals sample in the field. The apparatus will either come

certified pre-cleaned from the manufacturer and confirmed by the analytical laboratory or be pre-
cleaned by and confirmed by the analytical laboratory at least once per year. The apparatus will
be double bagged in Ziploc plastic bags.

To collect the sample for dissolved metals, first collect the total metals sample using clean
sampling techniques. The dissolved sample will be taken from this container. Immediately prior
to collecting the dissolved sample, shake the total metals sample. To collect the dissolved metals
sample using clean sampling techniques, remove the syringe from the bag and place the tip of the
syringe into the bottle containing the total metals sample and draw up 50 mL of sample into the
syringe. Next, remove the filter from the zip- lock bag and screw it tightly into the tip of the
syringe. Then put the tip of the syringe with the filter into the clean dissolved metals container
and push the sample through the filter taking care not to touch the inside surface of the sample

Page C- 53



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

container with the apparatus. The sample volume needs to be a minimum of 20 mL. If the filter

becomes clogged prior to generating 20 mL of sample, remove and dispose of the used filter and
replace it with a new clean filter ( using the clean sampling techniques). Continue to filter the

sample. When 20 mL has been collected, cap the sample bottle tightly and store on ice for
delivery to the laboratory.

C- 2.4.4 Receiving Water Sample Collection

A grab sample is a discrete individual sample. A composite sample is a mixture of samples

collected over a period of time either as time or flow weighted. A time- weighted composite is

created by mixing multiple aliquots collected at specified time intervals. A flow-weighted
composite is created by mixing multiple aliquots collected at equal time intervals but where the
volume of the aliquot is based on flow rate. Generally, grab samples will be collected during dry
weather and composite samples will be collected during wet weather. Should field crews feel
that it is unsafe to collect samples for any reason, the field crews SHOULD NOT COLLECT a
sample and note on the field log that the sample was not collected, why the sample was not
collected, and provide photo documentation, if feasible.

Grab samples will be used for dry weather sampling events, because the composition of the
receiving water will change less over time;  and thus,  the grab sample can sufficiently
characterize the receiving water. Grab samples will be collected as described in Section C- 2. 4. 1
of this Attachment. Monitoring site configuration and consideration of safety will dictate grab
sample collection technique. The potential exists for monitoring sites to lack discernable flow.
Except in the case of lakes, the lack of discernable flow may generate unrepresentative data. To
address the potential confounding interference that can occur under such conditions,  sites
sampled should be assessed for the following conditions and sampled or not sampled
accordingly:

Pools of water with no flow or no visible connection to another surface water body
should not be sampled. The field log should be completed for non- water quality data
including date and time of visit) and the site condition should be photo-documented.

Flowing water ( i.e., based on visual observations, flow measurements, and a photo-

documented assessment of conditions immediately upstream and downstream of the
sampling site) site should be sampled.

Wet weather samples will generally be collected as either time- or flow-weighted composites.
Grab samples may be utilized to collect wet weather sampling in certain situations, which may
include, but are not limited to, situations where it is unsafe to collect composite samples or to

perform investigative monitoring where composite sampling or installation of an autosampler
may not be warranted.

It is the combined responsibility of all members of the sampling crew to determine if the
performance requirements of the specific sampling method have been met, and to collect
additional samples if required. If the performance requirements outlined above or documented in

sampling protocols are not met, the sample will be re- collected. If contamination of the sample
container is suspected, a fresh sample container will be used. The USGR EWMP Group will be
contacted if at any time the sampling crew has questions about procedures or issues based on
site- specific conditions.

Page C- 54



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 2.4.5 Stormwater Outfall Sample Collection

Stormwater outfalls will be monitored with similar methods to stormwater receiving water
monitoring as discussed in Section C-2. 4.4 of this Attachment. Generally, autosamplers will be
used to composite samples, with exceptions, for example, where the analytical method specifies

collection via the grab method. Sampling will not be undertaken if the outfalls are not flowing or
if conditions exist where the receiving water is back- flowing into the outfall. It is the combined
responsibility of all members of the sampling crew to determine if the performance requirements
of the specific sampling method have been met, and to collect additional samples if required. If
the performance requirements outlined above or documented in sampling protocols are not met,
the sample will be re-collected. If contamination of the sample container is suspected, a fresh

sample container will be used. The USGR EWMP Group will be contacted if at any time the
sampling crew has questions about procedures or issues based on site- specific conditions.

C- 2.4. 6 Non-Stormwater Outfall Screening Surveys and Sample Collection

The outfall screening process is designed to identify outfalls that have significant non-
stormwater ( NSW) discharges. The collection of water quality data, where flow abatement
efforts are unsuccessful, will support characterization of dry weather loading. Dry weather
outfall samples will be collected with the grab method, to be consistent with receiving water
monitoring. As the identified NSW outfalls are deemed significant, the flow and source of flow,
will be more consistent in nature than NSW outfalls discharging sporadically. To maintain
comparability between NSW receiving water quality measurements and outfall, both sets of data
will be collected as grabs.

C-2.4.6. 1 Preparation for Outfall Surveys

Preparation for outfall surveys includes preparation of field equipment, placing bottle orders, and
contacting the necessary personnel regarding site access and schedule. The following steps
should be completed two weeks prior to each outfall survey:

1.  Check weather reports and LACDPW rain gage to ensure that antecedent dry weather
conditions are suitable.

2.  Contact appropriate Flood Maintenance Division personnel from LACDPW to notify
them of dates and times of any activities in flood control channels.

3.  Contact laboratories to order bottles and to coordinate sample pick-ups.
4.  Confirm scheduled sampling date with field crews.
5.  Set- up sampling day itinerary including sample drop-offs and pick-ups.
6.  Compile field equipment.
7.  Prepare sample labels.

8.  Prepare event summaries to indicate the type of field measurements, field observations,
and samples to be taken at each of the outfalls.

9.  Prepare COCs.

10. Charge the batteries of field tablets( if used).

C-2.4.6. 2 Non-Stormwater Sample Collection

Water quality samples will be collected consistent with the dry weather requirements outlined in
the receiving water monitoring section using the direct submersion, intermediate container,
shallow sheet flow, or pumping methods described in Section C- 2. 4.3 of this Attachment.

Page C- 55



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 2.4. 7 Stormborne Sediment Sampling

The Puddingstone Reservoir TMDLs and the Harbors Toxics TMDLs include requirements for

the analysis of water quality samples to assess the contribution of certain organic pollutants
associated with bulk sediment ( Table C- 17). The East San Gabriel Valley WMP Group will
collect and analyze the stormwater outfall samples to Puddingstone Reservoir. The Lower San

Gabriel River WMP Group will collect and analyze the samples for San Gabriel River and
Coyote Creek near the confluence with the San Gabriel River Estuary. Both groups will share the
analytical results with the USGR EWMP Group.

Table C- 17.

Categories of Constituents for Assessing Sediment Concentrations in Water for the Puddingstone
Reservoir and the Harbors Toxics TMDLs

General Category of Harbors Toxics

Constituent TMDLs Puddingstone Reservoir TMDLs

Metals')     X

DDTs(
2)     

X X

Chlordanes(
2)      

X

Dieldrin X

PCBs(
2)     

X X

PAHs(
2)     

X

1.   Metals include copper, lead, silver, and zinc.

2.   See Table C- 3 for a list of individual constituents in each category.

Most of the organochlorine ( OC) pesticides and PCBs and many of the PAHs tend to strongly
associate with sediment and organic material. These constituents commonly have octanol/water
partition coefficients ( log Kow) that are greater than six, elevated soil/water partition coefficients
log Kd) and elevated soil adsorption coefficients ( log Koc). The lighter weight PAHs such as

naphthalene, acenaphthene and acenaphthylene tend to be more soluble in water and volatile.

Concentrations of OC pesticides, PCBs, and PAHs are often below or are very close to the limits
of detection for conventional analytical methods used for analyzing water samples. Although
collection and filtration of high volumes of stormwater will allow improved quantification of

these constituents, it also introduces substantial potential for introduction of errors.

Use of filtration methods in combination with conventional analytical methods requires

collection of extremely large volumes of stormwater and challenging filtration processes. Use of
conventional analytical methods for analysis of the filtered sediment is then expected to require

at least 5 grams of sediment ( typically 10 grams is preferred by laboratories) for each of the
groups of analyses ( metals, OC pesticides, PCBs and PAHs) in order to achieve detection limits

necessary to quantify loads.  In addition, the direct impacts of filtering samples with high
sediment content are not well understood. Efforts by the City of Los Angeles and Los Angeles
County in the Ballona Creek and Marina del Rey watersheds, respectively, have demonstrated
the challenges associated with collecting and analyzing suspended sediments. Assuming samples
contain sediment at an average TSS concentration of 100 mg/L and that all sediment could be
recovered, analyses might require as much as 50 liters for each test method ( total of 200 liters).

An ongoing special study is underway in Marina del Rey to evaluate various methods for
capturing sufficient sediment to conduct analysis. In Ballona Creek, the City of Los Angeles has

Page C- 56



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

been successful in collecting sufficient volumes of sediment over the course of a year to conduct
the analysis. This allows for the quantification of annual loading; however, it does not allow for
an evaluation of concentrations and loads under various storm conditions. Although use of lower

sediment volumes may be possible, both detection limits and quality control measures might be
impacted. In Ballona Creek, duplicate and quality control analysis have been limited to the
available sediment, resulting in situations where either certain target constituents or quality
control analysis are not completed.

An alternative approach for assessing the loads of the constituents of interest will be utilized in
this CIMP to substantially reduce the amount of sample needing to be handled and potential for
introduction of error. This approach will utilize High Resolution Mass Spectrometry (HRMS) to
analyze for OC pesticides ( USEPA 1699), PCBs ( USEPA 1668) and PAHs ( CARB). HRMS

analyses are quantified by isotope dilution techniques. Analytical performance is measured by
analysis of Ongoing Precision and Recovery ( OPR) analyses and labeled compound recovery.
Conventional methods for analyzing for metals of interest are sufficiently sensitive to assess
concentrations on suspended sediments. During the first three years, analyses will be conducted
on whole water samples. These test methods provide detection limits that are roughly 100 times
more sensitive than conventional analytical methods. In addition, these extremely low detection
limits can be achieved with as little as 3- 6 liters of stormwater at a TSS of approximately
50 mg/L.

As with any low detection level method, clean sample techniques are of paramount importance.
Field blanks are essential to ensure the sample collection mechanism do not introduce

contamination.

Use of this approach is expected to greatly enhance the ability to consistently obtain appropriate
samples for measuring and comparing loads of constituents of interest associated with each
sampling event. This will assure that all key toxics can be quantified at levels suitable for
estimation of mass loads.

For purposes of load calculations, it would be assumed that 100% of OC pesticides, PCBs and

PAHs were associated with suspended solids. Separate analyses of TSS would be used to

normalize the data. After three years ( approximately four to six storm events) the data will be
reevaluated to assess whether continued use of the HRMS approach remains to be beneficial. If

deemed necessary, a modified approach will be evaluated for analysis of filtered suspended
sediments.

C-2.4. 7. 1 Sampling and Analytical Procedures

Stormwater samples for outfalls to Puddingstone Reservoir PCBs and OC Pesticide TMDLs and

the Harbors Toxics TMDLs will be collected by the East San Gabriel Valley WMP Group and
the Lowe San Gabriel River EWMP Group using autosamplers as described in Section C-
2. 4.3.4. Both groups will share the analytical results with the USGR EWMP Group. Based on
TSS measurements at three mass emission sites in LA County ( Table C- 18), use of a TSS

concentration of 100 mg/L is expected to provide a conservative basis for estimating reporting
limits for OC pesticides, PCBs, and PAHs in suspended sediments based upon 1- liter samples.

However, two liters of storm water will be provided for each organic analytical suite for a total

of six liters. An accurate measure of suspended sediments is critical to this sampling approach.
TSS will be analyzed;  however,  SSC will be used as the standard for calculating the
concentrations of target constituents in suspended sediments and total loads.

Page C- 57



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Since detection limits will depend upon the concentration of suspended sediment in the sample,

the laboratory analyzing the suspended sediment concentrations will be asked to provide a rush
analysis to provide information that can be used to direct processing of the samples for the
organic compounds.  If TSS/ SSC are less than 150 mg/L, two liters will be extracted for
subsequent HRMS analysis. If TSS concentrations are between 150 and 200 mg/L, one of the
additional liter samples may be used to increase the volume of sample water for just PAHs or the
additional liter may be used as a field duplicate for each analysis. If TSS concentrations are
greater than 200 mg/L, the additional liter may be used as a field duplicate for each analysis. If
the initial TSS sample indicates that sediment content is less than 50 mg/L, additional measures
will be taken to improve PAH reporting limits with respect to suspended sediment loads. A field
duplicate from one site will be analyzed if adequate sample volumes are obtained.

Target reporting limits ( Table C- 19 and Table C- 20) were established based upon bed sediment
reporting limits listed in the Coordinated Compliance and Reporting Plan for the Greater Los
Angeles and Long Beach Harbor Waters ( Anchor QEA, 2013). Table C- 19 and Table C-20

provide a summary of the detection limits attainable in water samples using HRMS analytical
methods. Estimated detection limits are provided for concentrations of the target constituents in

suspended sediments given the assumption that suspended sediment content of the water sample

is 100 mg/L and that 100 percent of the target constituents are associated with the suspended
sediment. This provides a conservative assumption with respect to evaluating the potential
impacts of concentrations of OC pesticides,  PCBs,  and PAHs in suspended sediment on

concentrations in bed sediment. Additionally, Table C- 19 and Table C-20 present relevant
TMDL targets and reporting limits suggested in the SWAMP QAPP ( SWRCB, 2008) and the
SQO Technical Support Manual ( SCCWRP, 2009). The following summarizes a comparison
between the estimated detection limits for OC pesticides, PCBs, and PAHs in the suspended

sediments to target reporting limits:

For OC pesticides( Table C- 19), estimated detection limits in the suspended sediment are

at or below TMDL targets limits for bed sediments, except for dieldrin. The dieldrin

estimated detection limit is above the lowest TMDL target, but not the remaining TMDL
targets,  and is below observed concentrations reported in the TMDL staff reports.

Additionally, estimated detection limits in the suspended sediment are below target bed
sediment reporting limits for this CIMP and target reporting limits presented in the
SWAMP QAPP ( SWRCB, 2008) and the SQO Technical Support Manual ( SCCWRP,

2009), except for dieldrin. Dieldrin is above the bed sediment reporting limit in this
CIMP, but below target reporting limits presented in the SWAMP QAPP ( SWRCB,
2008) and the SQO Technical Support Manual ( SCCWRP, 2009).

For PCBs ( Table C- 19), estimated detection limits in the suspended sediment are below

TMDL targets limits for bed sediments. Additionally, estimated detection limits in the
suspended sediment are at or below target bed sediment reporting limits for this CIMP
and below target reporting limits presented in the SWAMP QAPP ( SWRCB, 2008) and
the SQO Technical Support Manual ( SCCWRP, 2009).

For PAHs ( Table C-20), estimated detection limits in the suspended sediment are below

TMDL targets limits for bed sediments. Most individual PAH compounds would be

expected to be detectable in the suspended sediment at concentrations about 2. 5 times

greater that the target bed sediment reporting limits for this CIMP and the target reporting
limits presented in the SWAMP QAPP ( SWRCB, 2008). Approximately half of the

Page C- 58



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

individual PAH compounds are above the target reporting limits presented in the SQO
Technical Support Manual ( SCCWRP, 2009), while the other half are below. Two

compounds, naphthalene and phenanthrene, would have detection limits roughly 6 times
the target bed sediment reporting limits for this CIMP. Naphthalene is an extremely light
weight PAH that is not considered a major analyte of concern in storm water.

As noted previously,  metals of interest are quantifiable with standard analytical methods.
Detection limits for trace metals ( Table C- 2) are suitable for calculation of concentrations in
suspended solids and the concentration of trace metals associated with the particulate fraction

will be calculated as:

CP= CT- CD

where CT= Concentration of total recoverable metals

CD= Concentration of dissolved fraction

CP= Concentration of the particulate fraction

USEPA' s guidance document for development of metals translators ( EPA, 1996) uses the same
approach for calculation of the trace metals in the particulate fraction.

In summary, all but one of the target reporting limits are below relevant TMDL targets and the
overwhelming majority are below bed sediment reporting limits identified in this CIMP and the
SWAMP QAPP ( SWRCB, 2008) and SQO Technical Support Manual ( SCCWRP, 2009). The

approach to analyzing whole water samples to estimate concentrations of target pollutants on bed

sediment provides an opportunity to improve the understanding of loads during multiple storms
each year.

Table C- 18.

Summary of Median TSS Measurements( mg/ L)
at the San Gabriel River Mass Emission Site

Waterbody LACFCD Monitoring Site ID Median

San Gabriel River S14 113

Coyote Creek S13 265

Page C- 59



@  / \ s 2
2  m

a) 

2 2     \   0 a  =    a)

k d ( a  /   6  /       
0) /     

o.

co       =     

2
0

0
I- z =     ?

ca A

k R  /      
CO E R  ®

o o w 7 a  §

J       .
0 a)       

I-
Ze e

k 2
E     {       2
E   /       g i

k       \ / \ \       f
0

k  /     2
ee t 2

co
H

2 \     \      1-    y
o

G
0.
a)       f\      /     /       t
cc 3 §    =     _

2SE 0 f2 to .

o \ .   
as"

2 r z  <  @  <      @  <      o z r r  »   0 e m2 a a z z o a a d a d a w w 0 _

C    .       2 /

1 22{ _    0 --

O
c \

Z

a Ce

9 k
m a a CO N r i CV o E E

0

o k      / j \ \ k
a E g E? E2

as

os J e r r r r r  <  z r r   ,  0 a 9 =

0
0 6 6 6 6 a d d d a d I a 6 7 .-

kA Q     =    _    

f      % EaR m %£_

2 c2 k\ \ _ 7 2 

J  •
a-  ' I'  

o o  '
Cr      /  /  

j  /  /  /  /  o a) / k
0 (‘:/  co a m >

0
Cr)    

22 fk    13. 0 k\ c CD k a a aE

E ) 
0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q

2 / Q
G 0.  0 fq ƒ /

RJ f c E a
m  X22 $

C..1 o u)•

a t }      @  \  /  £     2
v 2 j@ 5 u e 5 & E 7
2 2  }  E o Owl-  Owl-  0 2 / Z « q all

Et e y C e 5  &  k W 9 9 9@ 9 9 e k .- 4 m e
2 k ,  @ k E  >  §  $  t 1-  o Q
7 e 0 0 s c 0  _  =  0  &  & & ¥ *     e 5 Z w w a



o

0

E a)

k i a_

QQ
c
a) ;

f
0

UC

kk I
0)a)     

f y  ' a o   ,       o  §     m C

z  $       %  *       
r-  

a a)
z   - Ol

2  Gy jm

C E
m     = ` \       e

8  =      Jbz
m     ® tom y2

I—     

o \/       
a) ° 2

7 7 ƒ  S g G G C)  S 2 2 2 S 2 2 g  \  g 2 g g     . ) \
I—    _      a

k e $
9    = o f

2 iyf 2j \
ct a0Ee @ ] o    .

a R u £ o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c

al

ce - a a m m a a N a  (  a N m a a a a m m      \ E s  -

ci)  
2(O ;     -

f 7kE    §      k
2 J
a o ,   `

f     t / \     k \ QE e

E a   \ % 2 E 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C)  0 0 0 0 C)  0 2 E
I— v) cc a  (N  ( N a a a CV  ( N a N a  (N a N a N  ( N a E 5 2 o

y 00  -
t-

2    _ E     »

t-    I S S  /  S 2 S 2 S S S 2 S 2 S G S G S      \\ 0  /
CL

j2A \      ao   $
E a) \

a) a aau   \CD

co
r r r  <  c r z r  »       z r r  \  r  {  r      ' \ o a)

S J \ \     k
2 ©  j

o 0 a)  
I

7 @   ®   §    a)     
a)       

o y° /   E
C

a)

E
c

a   °   0   (   {    E   °       a)       °       \ \ j k  •\E
3  /   2 E @  ƒ   »      2 0 2  $

o
W 3 E  /  ƒ  Q.  

a 2  =  C

S G  -   e  -   ;    E  )   _  _
CI- d k  £  ƒ  _   @

a  %  2 t 2  §   g  ®  y  \   >   0 2 G E  ƒ
N  /   S E  ƒ  

Cl)   
Q z . ° ¥   

m

Q s 7 7 E k  ®   B E o E z       ± I ƒ k e E
7 i a)      Z 422  /

Co

CL

Al 0
w



0 6 &

E
CD G J
E f a w

4E3
o

2

k
To ca

G

z
C

7

C0
k

k    &
C

o

a EC -

R

0
68

2
7/ /

o       § £ S
@

y±ƒ

2 E
2•

0

as

cEC

2 3
2    =

o
4 § 2

0
2E ±

m



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 2. 4.8 Sediment Sample Collection in Lakes

The top layer of sediment will be sampled from the bottom of the lake using an Eckman dredge
or a similar device. While on a boat, the field crew will drop the Eckman dredge to the bottom of
the lake and obtain a sample. Using a pre- cleaned stainless steel trowel, the field crew will scoop
the top two to three centimeters of the sample and place it in a clean polyethylene bag. This
procedure will be repeated, carefully to as not sample the exact same location, and the final
composited sample will be mixed and placed into the appropriate sample jars.

C- 2.4.9 Bioaccumulation Sample Collection

Bioaccumulation sampling will be used to monitor trends in the concentration of contaminants in
the tissues of aquatic organisms. This will be conducted in order to assess both ecological and
human health concerns and to see if the trends or patterns of contaminant concentrations mirror

those observed from the sediment analyses. Human health concerns will be assessed by sampling
the tissues from fish species that are commonly taken for consumption by sport fisherman.

Fish sampling protocols shall be conducted in accordance with the California Office of
Environmental Health Hazard Assessment' s  ( OEHHA)  General Protocol for Sport Fish

Sampling and Analysis. Fish may be analyzed, as individuals ( preferred) or as composites
secondary). During each survey, the goal will be to collect at least nine fish per targeted species

that are of legal size and/or edible size.
2

If fish are analyzed as composite samples, each

composite sample shall include a minimum of three fish, with up to five fish per sample
preferred, especially if smaller fish are caught( OEHHA, 2005). All fish composite samples must
follow OEHHA' s " 75 percent rule," where the length of the smallest fish should be at least 75%

of the length of the largest fish of a species in a composite sample.

Fish sampling techniques may vary due to season, weather, flow rate, target species, etc. Sport
fish may be taken by hook and line or seine. Sampling gear may include electrofishing boats,
backpack electrofishers, seine nets, gill nets, trap nets, hook and line, or other equipment as
required. Reasonable attempts will be made to collect two to three species of sport fish; but, if

sport fish cannot be obtained, whatever species of fish, if any, that can be obtained will be
collected and analyzed. However, data collected from species that are not typically consumed
will be for informational purposes only and not considered representative of human health
exposures. The more likely a species is to be consumed by anglers, the greater the importance of
information.

C-3 QUALITY CONTROL SAMPLE COLLECTION

Quality control samples will be collected in conjunction with environmental samples to verify
data quality. Quality control samples collected in the field will generally be collected in the same
manner as environmental samples. Detailed descriptions of quality control samples are presented
in Section C- 3. 1 of this Attachment.

2 The Department of Fish and Wildlife( DFW) Sport Fishing Regulations define legal size requirements using total
length. All size measurements are in terms of total length.

Page C- 63



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 3. 1 Quality Assurance/Quality Control

This section describes the quality assurance and quality control requirements and processes.
Quality control samples will be collected in conjunction with environmental samples to verify
data quality. Quality control samples collected in the field will generally be collected in the same
manner as environmental samples. There are no requirements for quality control for field
analysis of general parameters ( e. g., temperature, pH, conductivity, dissolved oxygen, and pH)
outlined in SWAMP guidance documents. However, field crews will be required to calibrate

equipment as outlined in Section C-2 of this Attachment. Table C-21 presents the quality
assurance parameter addressed by each quality assurance requirement as well as the appropriate
corrective action if the acceptance limit is exceeded.

Page C- 64



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Table C- 21. Quality Control Requirements

Quality Control
QA Parameter Frequencyt'   Acceptance Limits Corrective Action

Sample Type

Quality Control Requirements— Field

Equipment Blanks Contamination
5% of all

MDLz
Identify equipment contamination source.

samples Qualify data as needed.

Field Blank Contamination
5% of all

MDL Examine field log. Identify contamination
samples source. Qualify data as needed.

5% of all RPD< 25% if
Reanalyze both samples if possible.

Field Duplicate Precision
samples Difference' > RL Identify variability source. Qualify data as

needed.

Quality Control Requirements— Laboratory

1 per Identify contamination source. Reanalyze
Method Blank Contamination analytical MDL method blank and all samples in batch.

batch Qualify data as needed.

1 per
RPD< 25% if

Lab Duplicate Precision analytical
Difference' > RL

Recalibrate and reanalyze.

batch

80- 120% Recovery
for GWQC

1 per Check LCS/CRM recovery. Attempt to
Matrix Spike Accuracy analytical 75- 125% for Metals correct matrix problem and reanalyze

batch samples. Qualify data as needed.

50- 150% Recovery
for Pesticides( 3)

Matrix Spike
1 per

RPD< 30% if
Check lab duplicate RPD. Attempt to

Duplicate
Precision analytical

Difference' > RL
correct matrix problem and reanalyze

batch samples. Qualify data as needed.

80- 120% Recovery
for GWQC

Laboratory
Control Sample

Accuracy analytical 75- 125% for Metals
Recalibrate and reanalyze LCS/ CRM

or CRM or Blank
batch

and samples.

Spike)

50- 150% Recovery
for Pesticides( 3)

1 per Check lab duplicate RPD. Attempt to
Blank Spike

Precision analytical
RPD< 25/ o if

correct matrix problem and reanalyze
Duplicate

batch
Difference' > RL

samples. Qualify data as needed.

Each Check surrogate recovery in LCS.
Surrogate Spike environmental Attempt to correct matrix problem and

Organics Only)    
Accuracy

and lab QC
30- 150% Recovery3

reanalyze sample. Qualify data as
sample needed.

MDL= Method Detection Limit RL= Reporting Limit RPD= Relative Percent Difference

LCS= Laboratory Control Sample/Standard CRM= Certified/ Standard Reference Material

GWQC= General Water Quality Constituents
1.   " Analytical batch" refers to a number of samples ( not to exceed 20 environmental samples plus the associated

quality control samples) that are similar in matrix type and processed/prepared together under the same
conditions and same reagents( equivalent to preparation batch).

2.   Equipment blanks will be collected by the field crew before using the equipment to collect sample.
3.   Or control limits set at+ 3 standard deviations based on actual laboratory data.

Page C- 65



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 3. 2 QA/QC Requirements and Objectives

C- 3. 2. 1 Comparability

Comparability of the data can be defined as the similarity of data generated by different
monitoring programs. For this monitoring program, this objective will be ensured mainly through
use of standardized procedures for field measurements, sample collection, sample preparation,

laboratory analysis, and site selection; adherence to quality assurance protocols and holding
times; and reporting in standard units. Additionally, comparability of analytical data will be
addressed through the use of standard operating procedures and extensive analyst training at the
analyzing laboratory.

C- 3. 2. 2 Representativeness

Representativeness can be defined as the degree to which the environmental data generated by
the monitoring program accurately and precisely represent actual environmental conditions. For
the CIMP,  this objective will be addressed by the overall design of the program.
Representativeness is attained through the selection of sampling locations,  methods,  and

frequencies for each parameter of interest, and by maintaining the integrity of each sample after
collection. Sampling locations were chosen that are representative of various areas within the
watershed and discharges from the MS4, which will allow for the characterization of the

watershed and impacts MS4 discharges may have on water quality.

C- 3. 2. 3 Completeness

Data completeness is a measure of the amount of successfully collected and validated data
relative to the amount of data planned to be collected for the project. It is usually expressed as a
percentage value. A project objective for percent completeness is typically based on the
percentage of the data needed for the program or study to reach valid conclusions.

Because the CIMP is intended to be a long term monitoring program,  data that are not
successfully collected during a specific sample event will not be recollected at a later date.
Rather subsequent events conducted over the course of the monitoring will provide robust data
sets to appropriately characterize conditions at individual sampling sites and the watershed in
general. For this reason, most of the data planned for collection cannot be considered absolutely
critical, and it is difficult to set a meaningful objective for data completeness.

However, some reasonable objectives for data are desirable, if only to measure the effectiveness
of the program when conditions allow for the collection of samples ( i. e., flow is present). The

program goals for data completeness, shown in Table C- 5, are based on the planned sampling
frequency, SWAMP recommendations, and a subjective determination of the relative importance
of the monitoring element within the CIMP. If, however, sampling sites do not allow for the
collection of enough samples to provide representative data due to conditions ( i.e., no flow)

alternate sites will be considered. Data completeness will be evaluated on a yearly basis.

C- 3. 3 QA/QC Field Procedures

Quality control samples to be prepared in the field will consist of equipment blanks, field blanks,
and field duplicates as described below.

Page C-66



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 3. 3. 1 Equipment Blanks

The purpose of analyzing equipment blanks is to demonstrate that sampling equipment is free
from contamination. Equipment blanks will be collected by the analytical laboratory responsible
for cleaning equipment and analyzed for relevant pollutants before sending the equipment to the
field crew. Equipment blanks will consist of laboratory-prepared blank water ( certified to be
contaminant- free by the laboratory) processed through the sampling equipment that will be used
to collect environmental samples.

The equipment blanks will be analyzed using the same analytical methods specified for
environmental samples. If any analytes of interest are detected at levels greater than the MDL,
the source( s) of contamination will be identified and eliminated ( if possible), the affected batch

of equipment will be re- cleaned, and new equipment blanks will be prepared and analyzed before
the equipment is returned to the field crew for use.

C- 3. 3. 2 Field Blanks

The purpose of analyzing field blanks is to demonstrate that sampling procedures do not result in
contamination of the environmental samples. Per the Quality Assurance Management Plan for
SWAMP (SWRCB, 2008) field blanks are to be collected as follows:

At a frequency of 5% of samples collected for the following constituents: trace metals in
water ( including mercury), VOC samples in water and sediment, DOC samples in water,
and bacteria samples.

Field blanks for other media and analytes should be conducted upon initiation of

sampling, and if field blank performance is acceptable ( as described in Table C-21),
further collection and analysis of field blanks for these other media and analytes need

only be performed on an as- needed basis, or during field performance audits. An as-
needed basis for the USGR CIMP will be annually.

Field blanks will consist of laboratory-prepared blank water ( certified to be contaminant- free by
the laboratory) processed through the sampling equipment using the same procedures used for
environmental samples.

If any analytes of interest are detected at levels greater than the MDL, the source( s) of

contamination should be identified and eliminated, if possible. The sampling crew should be
notified so that the source of contamination can be identified ( if possible) and corrective

measures taken prior to the next sampling event.

C- 3. 3. 3 Field Duplicates

The purpose of analyzing field duplicates is to demonstrate the precision of sampling and
analytical processes. Field duplicates will be prepared at the rate of 5% of all samples, and

analyzed along with the associated environmental samples. Field duplicates will consist of two
grab samples collected simultaneously,  to the extent practicable.  If the Relative Percent

Difference ( RPD) of field duplicate results is greater than the percentage stated in Table C- 21

and the absolute difference is greater than the RL, both samples should be reanalyzed,  if

possible. The sampling crew should be notified so that the source of sampling variability can be
identified( if possible) and corrective measures taken prior to the next sampling event.

Page C- 67



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

C- 3. 4 QA/QC Laboratory Analyses

Quality control samples prepared in the laboratory will consist of method blanks, laboratory
duplicates, matrix spikes/duplicates, laboratory control samples ( standard reference materials),
and toxicity quality controls.

C- 3. 4. 1 Method Blanks

The purpose of analyzing method blanks is to demonstrate that sample preparation and analytical
procedures do not result in sample contamination. Method blanks will be prepared and analyzed

by the contract laboratory at a rate of at least one for each analytical batch. Method blanks will
consist of laboratory-prepared blank water processed along with the batch of environmental
samples. If the result for a single method blank is greater than the MDL, or if the average blank
concentration plus two standard deviations of three or more blanks is greater than the RL, the

source( s) of contamination should be corrected, and the associated samples should be reanalyzed.

C- 3. 4.2 Laboratory Duplicates

The purpose of analyzing laboratory duplicates is to demonstrate the precision of the sample
preparation and analytical methods. Laboratory duplicates will be analyzed at the rate of one pair
per sample batch. Laboratory duplicates will consist of duplicate laboratory fortified method
blanks. If the RPD for any analyte is greater than the percentage stated in Table C-21 and the
absolute difference between duplicates is greater than the RL, the analytical process is not being
performed adequately for that analyte. In this case, the sample batch should be prepared again,
and laboratory duplicates should be reanalyzed.

C- 3. 4.3 Matrix Spikes and Matrix Spike Duplicates

The purpose of analyzing matrix spikes and matrix spike duplicates is to demonstrate the
performance of the sample preparation and analytical methods in a particular sample matrix.

Matrix spikes and matrix spike duplicates will be analyzed at the rate of one pair per sample

batch. Each matrix spike and matrix spike duplicate will consist of an aliquot of laboratory-
fortified environmental sample. Spike concentrations should be added at five to ten times the

reporting limit for the analyte of interest.

If the matrix spike recovery of any analyte is outside the acceptable range, the results for that
analyte have failed to meet acceptance criteria. If recovery of laboratory control samples is
acceptable, the analytical process is being performed adequately for that analyte,  and the
problem is attributable to the sample matrix. An attempt will be made to correct the problem
e. g., by dilution, concentration, etc.), and the samples and matrix spikes will be re- analyzed.

If the matrix spike duplicate RPD for any analyte is outside the acceptable range, the results for
that analyte have failed to meet acceptance criteria. If the RPD for laboratory duplicates is
acceptable, the analytical process is being performed adequately for that analyte,  and the
problem is attributable to the sample matrix. An attempt will be made to correct the problem
e. g., by dilution, concentration, etc.), and the samples and matrix spikes will be re- analyzed.

C- 3. 4.4 Laboratory Control Samples

The purpose of analyzing laboratory control samples ( or a standard reference material) is to
demonstrate the accuracy of the sample preparation and analytical methods. Laboratory control
samples will be analyzed at the rate of one per sample batch. Laboratory control samples will
consist of laboratory fortified method blanks or a standard reference material. If recovery of any

Page C-68



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

analyte is outside the acceptable range, the analytical process is not being performed adequately
for that analyte. In this case, the sample batch should be prepared again, and the laboratory
control sample should be reanalyzed.

C- 3.4.5 Surrogate Spikes

Surrogate recovery results are used to evaluate the accuracy of analytical measurements for
organics analyses on a sample- specific basis. A surrogate is a compound ( or compounds) added

by the laboratory to method blanks, samples, matrix spikes, and matrix spike duplicates prior to
sample preparation,  as specified in the analytical methodology.  Surrogates are generally
brominated,  fluorinated or isotopically labeled compounds that are not usually present in
environmental media. Results are expressed as percent recovery of the surrogate spike. Surrogate
spikes are applicable for analysis of PCBs and pesticides.

C- 3. 4.6 Toxicity Quality Control

For aquatic toxicity tests,  the acceptability of test results is determined primarily by
performance-based criteria for test organisms, culture and test conditions, and the results of
control bioassays.  Control bioassays include monthly reference toxicant testing.  Test

acceptability requirements are documented in the method documents for each bioassay method.

C-4 INSTRUMENT/ EQUIPMENT CALIBRATION AND FREQUENCY

Frequencies and procedures for calibration of analytical equipment used by each contract
laboratory are documented in the QA Manual for each laboratory. Any deficiencies in analytical
equipment calibration should be managed in accordance with the QA Manual for each contract

laboratory. Any deficiencies that affect analysis of samples submitted through this program must
be reported to the USGR EWMP Group. Laboratory QA Manuals are available for review at the
analyzing laboratory.

C-5 DATA MANAGEMENT

Section C-5 details the procedures for managing and reporting data meet the goals and
objectives of the CIMP and in turn the Permit. The details contained herein serve as a guide for

ensuring that consistent protocols and procedures are in place for successful data management
and reporting.

C- 5. 1 Data Review, Verification, and Validation Requirements

The acceptability of data is determined through data verification and data validation. Both
processes are discussed in detail below. In addition to the data quality objectives presented in
Table C- 5, the standard data validation procedures documented in the contract laboratory' s QA
Manual will be used to accept, reject, or qualify the data generated by the laboratory. Each
laboratory' s QA Officer will be responsible for validating data generated by the laboratory.

Once analytical results are received from the analyzing laboratory, the USGR EWMP Group will
perform an independent review and validation of analytical results.  Appendix 2 provides

equations that are used to calculate precision, accuracy, and completeness of the data. Decisions
to reject or qualify data will be made by the USGR EWMP Group, based on the evaluation of
field and laboratory quality control data, according to procedures outlined in Section 13 of
Caltrans document No.  CTSW-RT-00- 005,   Guidance Manual:  Stormwater Monitoring

Page C- 69



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Protocols, 2nd Edition( LWA, 2000). Section 13 of the Caltrans Guidance Manual is included as

Appendix 2.

C- 5. 1. 1 Data Verification

Data verification involves verifying that required methods and procedures have been followed at
all stages of the data collection process, including sample collection, sample receipt, sample
preparation, sample analysis, and documentation review for completeness. Verified data have

been checked for a variety of factors, including transcription errors, correct application of
dilution factors, appropriate reporting of dry weight versus wet weight results, and correct
application of conversion factors. Verification of data may also include laboratory qualifiers, if
assigned.

Data verification should occur in the field and the laboratory at each level ( i.e., all personnel

should verify their own work) and as information is passed from one level to the next ( i.e.,
supervisors should verify the information produced by their staff). Records commonly examined
during the verification process include field and sample collection logs, COC forms, sample
preparation logs, instrument logs, raw data, and calculation worksheets.

In addition, laboratory personnel will verify that the measurement process was " in control" ( i. e.,

all specified data quality objectives were met or acceptable deviations explained) for each batch
of samples before proceeding with the analysis of a subsequent batch. Each laboratory will also
establish a system for detecting and reducing transcription and/or calculation errors prior to
reporting data.

C- 5. 1. 2 Data Validation

In general, data validation involves identifying project requirements, obtaining the documents
and records produced during data verification, evaluating the quality of the data generated, and
determining whether project requirements were met. The main focus of data validation is
determining data quality in terms of accomplishment of measurement quality objectives ( i. e.,
meeting QC acceptance criteria). Data quality indicators, such as precision, accuracy, sensitivity,
representativeness, and completeness, are typically used as expressions of data quality. The
USGR EWMP Group, will review verified sample results for the data set as a whole, including
laboratory qualifiers, summarize data and QC deficiencies and evaluate the impact on overall
data quality,  assign data validation qualifiers as necessary,  and prepare an analytical data
validation report. The validation process applies to both field and laboratory data.

In addition to the data quality objectives presented in Table C- 5, the standard data validation
procedures documented in the analyzing laboratory' s QA Manual will be used to accept, reject,
or qualify the data generated. The laboratory will only submit data that have met data quality
objectives, or data that have acceptable deviations explained. When QC requirements have not

been met, the samples will be reanalyzed when possible, and only the results of the reanalysis
will be submitted, provided that they are acceptable. Each laboratory' s QA Officer is responsible
for validating the data it generates.

C- 5. 1. 3 Data Management

Analytical Data Reports will be sent to and kept by the USGR EWMP Group. Each type of
report will be stored separately and ordered chronologically. The field crew shall retain the
original field logs. The contract laboratory shall retain original COC forms.  The contract
laboratory will retain copies of the preliminary and final data reports. Concentrations of all

Page C- 70



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

parameters will be calculated as described in the laboratory SOPs or referenced method
document for each analyte or parameter.

The field log and analytical data generated will be converted to a standard database format
maintained on personal computers. After data entry or data transfer procedures are completed for
each sample event, data will be validated. After the final quality assurance checks for errors are
completed, the data will be added to the final database.

C-6 REPORTING

The MRP includes a number of reporting requirements to summarize CIMP implementation
efforts, the data collected as part of the CIMP, as well as to report on implementation of the

Permit requirements as a whole.  The following sections detail monitoring and reporting
requirements outlined in the MRP and provides information on how the water, sediment, and

tissue data collected as part of this CIMP data are to be used.

C- 6. 1 Semi-Annual Analytical Data Reports

As required by Part XIV.L of the MRP, results from each of the receiving water or outfall based
monitoring stations conducted in accordance with the SOP shall be sent electronically to the
Regional Board' s Stormwater site at MS4stormwaterRB4@waterboards. ca.gov. The monitoring
results will be submitted on a semi- annual basis and will highlight exceedances applicable to

WQBELs, RWLs, action levels, or aquatic toxicity thresholds. Corresponding sample dates and
monitoring locations will be included. Data will be transmitted in the most recent Southern
California SMC' s Standardized Data Transfer Formats. Reports of monitoring activities will
include, at a minimum, the following information ( records of which are required by Part
XIV.A. 1. c of the MRP):

1.  The date, time of sampling or measurements, exact place, weather conditions, and rain fall
amount.

2.  The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements.
3.  The date( s) analyses were performed.

4.  The individual(s) who performed the analyses.

5.  The analytical techniques or methods used.

6.  The results of such analyses.

7.  The data sheets showing toxicity test results.

C- 6. 2 Annual Monitoring Reports

As outlined in Part XVI.A of the MRP, the annual reporting process is intended to provide the
Regional Board with summary information to allow for the assessment of the Permittee' s:

1.  Participation in one or more Watershed Management Programs.

2.   Impact of each Permittee(s) stormwater and non- stormwater discharges on the receiving water.
3.   Each permittee' s compliance with RWLs, numeric WQBELs, and non- stormwater action levels.

4.  The effectiveness of each Permittee(s) control measures in reducing discharges of pollutants from
the MS4 to receiving waters.

5.  Whether the quality of MS4 discharges and the health of receiving waters is improving, staying the

Page C- 71



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

same,  or declining as a result of watershed management program efforts,  and/or TMDL
implementation measures, or other MCMs.

6.  Whether changes in water quality can be attributed to pollutant controls imposed on new
development, re- development, or retrofit projects.

The annual report process also seeks to provide a forum for Permittee( s) to discuss the

effectiveness of its past and ongoing control measure efforts and to convey its plans for future
control measures. Detailed data and information will also be provided in a clear and transparent

fashion to allow the Regional Board and the general public to review and verify conclusions
presented by the Permittee. Annual reports shall be organized to include the information as
described in the following subsections.

C- 6. 3 Watershed Summary Information

According to Section XVII.B of the MRP, Permittees shall include the information requested in
MRP Section XVII.B parts A. 1 through A.3 in its odd year Annual Report ( e. g., Year 1, 3, 5).
The requested information shall be provided for each watershed within the Permittee' s

jurisdiction. Alternatively, Permittees participating in a EWMP may provide the requested
information through the development and submission of a EWMP plan and any updates. As the
EWMP Group is submitting an EWMP the information is not required as a separate submittal.
However, updates to information requested in Section XVII.B parts A. 1 through A.3 ( presented
in Sections C- 6. 3. 1 through C- 6.3. 3 below) will be noted in EWMP plan updates.

C- 6. 3. 1 Watershed Management Area

When a Permittee has collaboratively developed an EWMP, reference to the EWMP and any
revisions to the EWMP may suffice for baseline information regarding the following watershed
management area details:

1.  The effective TMDLs,  applicable WQBELs and RWLs,  and implementation and reporting
requirements, and compliance dates.

2.  CWA section 303(d) listings of impaired waters not addressed by TMDLs.
3.   Results of regional bioassessment monitoring.
4.  A description of known hydromodificaitons to receiving waters and a description,  including

locations, of natural drainage systems.

5.   Description of groundwater recharge areas including number and acres.
6.   Maps and/ or aerial photographs identifying the location of Environmentally Sensitive Areas( ESAs),

Areas of Special Biological Significance ( ASBS), natural drainage systems, and groundwater
recharge areas.

C- 6. 3. 2 Subwatershed (HUC- 12) Descriptions

When a Permittee has collaboratively developed an EWMP, reference to the EWMP and any
revisions to the EWMP may suffice for information regarding the following Subwatershed
twelve digit Hydrologic Unit Code or HUC- 12) descriptions:

1.  Description including HUC- 12 number, name and a list of all tributaries named in the Basin Plan.
2.   Land use map of the HUC- 12 watershed.

Page C- 72



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

3.   85th percentile, 24- hour rainfall isohyetal map for the subwatershed.
4.   One- year, one- hour storm intensity isohyetal map for the subwatershed.
5.   MS4 map for the subwatershed, including major MS4 ourfalls and all low-flow diversions.

C- 6. 3. 3 Description of Permittee(s) Drainage Area within the Subwatershed

When a Permittee has collaboratively developed an EWMP, reference to the EWMP and any
revisions to the EWMP may suffice for information regarding the Drainage Area within the
subwatershed:

1.  A subwatershed map depicting the Permittee(s) jurisdictional area and the MS4, including major
outfalls ( with identification numbers), and low flow diversions located within the Permittee( s)

jurisdictional area.

2.   Provide the estimated baseline percent of effective impervious area ( EIA) within the Permitte( s)

jurisdictional area.

C- 6. 3. 4 Annual Assessment and Reporting

The following sections will be included in the CIMP Annual Report to meet the MRP
requirements. The Annual Report will clearly identify all data collected and strategies, control
measures, and assessments implemented by each Permittee within the EWMP area, as well as
those implemented by multiple Permittees on a watershed scale.

Stormwater Control Measures

All reasonable efforts will be made to determine, compile, analyze, and summarize the following
information for each Permittee:

1.  Estimated cumulative change in percent EIA since the effective date of the Order, and if possible,

the estimated change in the stormwater runoff volume during the 85th percentile storm event.
2.   Summary of New Development/ Re- Development Projects constructed within the Permittee( s)

jurisdictional area during the reporting year.
3.   Summary of Retrofit Projects that reduced or disconnected impervious area from MS4 during the

reporting year.
4.   Summary of other projects designed to intercept stormwater runoff prior to discharge to the MS4

during the reporting year.
5.   Estimate the total runoff volume retained on site by the implementation of such projects during the

reporting year.
6.   Summary of actions taken in compliance with TMDL implementation plans or approved EWMP to

implement TMDL provisions.

7.   Summary of riparian buffer/wetland restoration projects completed during the reporting year. For
riparian buffers include width, length and vegetation type; for wetland include acres restored,

enhanced, or created.

8.   Summary of other MCMs implemented during the reporting year, as the Permittee deems relevant.
9.   Status of all multi-year efforts that were not completed in the current year and will therefore

continue into the subsequent year(s). Additionally, if any of the requested information cannot be
obtained, the Permittee(s) will provide a discussion of the factor(s) limiting its acquisition and steps
that will be taken to improve future data collection efforts.

Page C- 73



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

Effectiveness Assessment of Stormwater Control Measures

The following information will be included to detail Stormwater Control Measures during the
reporting year:

1.  Rainfall summary for the reporting year, including the number of storm events, highest volume
event( inches/ 24 hours), highest number of consecutive days with measurable rainfall, total rainfall

during the reporting year compared to average annual rainfall for the EWMP area.
2.  A summary table describing rainfall during stormwater outfall and wet-weather receiving water

monitoring events. The summary description will include the date, time that the storm commenced
and the storm duration in hours, the highest 15- minute recorded storm intensity ( converted to
inches/hour), the total storm volume ( inches), and the time between the storm event sampled and
the end of the previous storm event.

3.   Where control measures were designed to reduce impervious cover or stormwater peak flow and

flow duration, hydrographs or flow data of pre- and post- control activity for the 85th percentile, 24-
hour rain event, if available.

4.   For natural drainage systems, a reference watershed flow duration curve and comparison to a flow

duration curve for the EWMP area under current conditions.
5.  An assessment as to whether the quality of stormwater discharges as measured at designed

outfalls is improving, staying the same, or declining. Water quality data may be compared from the
reporting year to previous years with similar rainfall patterns, a trends analysis may be conducted,
or other means may be used to develop and support the assessment' s conclusions.

6.  An assessment as to whether wet-weather receiving water quality is improving, staying the same
or declining, when normalized for variations in rainfall patterns. Water quality data may be
compared from the reporting year to previous years with similar rainfall patterns, a trends analysis
may be conducted, regional bioassessment studies may be drawn from, or other means may be
used to develop and support the assessment's conclusions.

7.   Status of all multi-year efforts, including TMDL implementation, which were not completed in the
current year and will continue into the subsequent year(s). Additionally, if any of the requested
information cannot be obtained, a discussion of the factors( s) limiting its acquisition and steps that
will be taken to improve future data collection efforts will be provided.

Non-stormwater Water Control Measures

The following information will be included to detail non- stormwater control measures:

1.  An estimation of the number of major outfalls within the EWMP area.
2.   The number of outfalls that were screened for significant non- stormwater discharges during the

reporting year.
3.   The cumulative number of outfalls that have been screened for significant non- stormwater

discharges since the date the Permit was adopted through the reporting year.
4.   The number of outfalls with confirmed significant non- stormwater discharge.

5.   The number of outfalls where significant non- stormwater discharge was attributed to other NPDES
permitted discharges;  other authorized non- stormwater discharges;  or conditionally exempt
discharges.

6.   The number of outfalls where significant non- stormwater discharges were abated as a result of the

EWMP Group actions.
7.   The number of outfalls where non- stormwater discharges was monitored.

Page C- 74



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

8.   The status of all multi- year efforts, including TMDL implementation, which were not completed in
the current year and will continue into the subsequent year(s). Additionally, if any of the requested
information cannot be obtained, a discussion of the factor(s) limiting its acquisition and steps that
will be taken to improve future data collection efforts will be provided.

Effectiveness Assessment of Non-Stormwater Control Measures

The following information will be included to assess non- stormwater control measures
effectiveness:

1.  An assessment as to whether receiving water quality within the EMWP area is impaired, improving,
staying the same or declining during the dry-weather conditions. Water quality data from the
reporting year to previous years with similar dry-weather flows may be compared, a trends analysis
may be conducted, regional bioassessment studies may be drawn from, or other means may be
used to develop and support the assessment's conclusions.

2.  An assessment of the effectiveness of the control measures in effectively prohibiting non-
stormwater discharges through the MS4 to the receiving water.

3.  The status of all multi- year efforts that were not completed in the current year and will continue into

the subsequent year(s).

Integrated Monitoring Compliance Report

The following information will be included to assess the Permittee( s) compliance with applicable
TMDLs, WQBELs, RWLs, and action levels:

1.  An Integrated Monitoring Report that summarizes all identified exceedances of the following
against applicable RWLs, WQBELs, non- stormwater action levels, and aquatic toxicity thresholds:

a.   Outfall- based stormwater monitoring data
b.  Wet weather receiving water monitoring data
c.   Dry weather receiving water data
d.   NSW outfall monitoring data

All sample results that exceeded one more applicable thresholds shall be readily identified.

2.   If aquatic toxicity was confirmed and a TIE was conducted, the toxic chemicals, as determined by
the TIE, will be identified. All relevant data to allow the Regional Board to review the adequacy and
findings of the TIE will be included. This shall include, but not be limited to:

a.  The sample(s) date

b.   Sample( s) start and end time

c.   Sample type(s)

d.   Sample location( s) as depicted on a map
e.  The parameters, analytical results, and applicable limitation.

3.  A description of efforts that were taken to mitigate and/ or eliminate all non- stormwater discharges

that exceeded one or more applicable WQBELs, or caused or contributed to Aquatic Toxicity.
4.  A description of efforts that were taken to address stormwater discharges that exceeded one or

more applicable WQBELs, or caused or contributed to Aquatic Toxicity.
5.   Where RWLs were exceeded, provide a description of efforts that were taken to determine whether

discharges from the MS4 caused or contributed to the exceedances and all efforts that were taken

to control the discharge of pollutants from the MS4 to those receiving waters in response to the

Page C- 75



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

exceedances.

Adaptive Management Strategies

The following information will be included to outline Adaptive Management Strategies:

1.  The most effective control measures, why the measures were effective, and how other measures
will be optimized based on past experiences.

2.   The least effective control measures, why the measures were deemed ineffective, and how the
controls measures will be modified or terminated.

3.   Significant changes to control measures during the prior year and the rationale for the changes.
4.  All significant changes to control measures anticipated to be made next year and rationale for the

changes. Those changes requiring approval of the Regional Board or its Executive Officer will be
clearly identified at the beginning of the Annual Report.

5.  A detailed description of control measures to be applied to New Development or Re- development

projects disturbing more than 50 acres.
6.   The status of all multi-year efforts that were not completed in the current year and will continue into

the subsequent year(s).

Supporting Data and Information

All monitoring data and associated meta-data used to prepare the Annual Report will be
summarized in an MS Excel© spreadsheet and sorted by monitoring station/outfall identifier
linked to the EWMP area map. The data summary will include the date, sample type ( flow-
weighted composite, grab, field measurement), sample start and stop times, parameter, analytical
method, value, and units. The date field will be linked to a database summarizing the weather
data for the sampling date including 24- hour rainfall, rainfall intensity, and days since the
previous rain event.

C- 6. 4 Signatory and Certification Requirements

All applications, reports, or information submitted to the Regional Board, State Board, and/ or

USEPA will be signed and certified as follows:

1.  All applications submitted to the Regional Board shall be signed by either a principal executive
officer or ranking elected official. For purposes of this section, a principal executive officer includes:

i) the chief executive officer of the agency ( e. g., Mayor), or ( ii) a senior executive officer having
responsibility for the overall operations of a principal geographic unit of the agency ( e. g., City
Manager, Director of Public Works, City Engineer, etc.).

2.  All reports required by the Permit and other information requested by the Regional Board, State
Board, or USEPA shall be signed by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official or
by a duly authorized representative of a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. A
person is a duly authorized representative only if:

a.  The authorization is made in writing by a principal executive officer or ranking elected
official.

b.  The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for the
overall operation of the regulated facility or activity such as the position of plant manager,
operator of a well or a well field, superintendent, position of equivalent responsibility, or an

Page C- 76



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

individual or position having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the
company. (A duly authorized representative may thus be either a named individual or any
individual occupying a named position.)

c.   The written authorization is submitted to the Regional Board.

3.   If an authorization of a duly authorized representative is no longer accurate because a different
individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility, a new authorization
will be submitted to the Regional Board prior to or together with any reports, information, or
applications, to be signed by an authorized representative.

4.  The following certification will be made by any person signing an application or report:
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my

direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel

properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or
persons who manage the system or those persons directly responsible for gathering the
information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate,
and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information,
including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations."

C- 6. 5 Use of Submitted Data

As stated in Part II.A.2 of the MRP, a Primary Objective of the Monitoring Program is to assess
compliance with RWLs and WQBELs established to implement TMDL wet weather and dry
weather wasteload allocations WLAs. As such, a discussion of how the compliance evaluation

will be conducted is warranted and is presented below.

C- 6. 5. 1 Compliance Evaluation

The compliance evaluation will take into consideration the relationship between the types of
monitoring and the pathways for determining compliance outlined in the Permit. For example,
the receiving water monitoring sites meet the MRP objectives and support an understanding of
potential impacts associated with MS4 discharges. However, as described in the MRP ( Part

II.E. 1), receiving water sites are intended to assess receiving water conditions. An exceedance of
a RWL at a receiving water site does not on its own indicate MS4 discharges caused or
contributed to the RWL exceedance. As the receiving water sites also receive runoff from non-
MS4 sources, including open space and other permitted discharges, the exceedance of a RWL
may have been caused or contributed to by a non- MS4 source. Additionally, an exceedance at an
outfall location when the corresponding downstream receiving water location is in compliance
with the water quality objectives and RWLs does not constitute an exceedance of a WQBEL.

Finally, reporting of compliance will be accomplished by evaluating the data, in addition to the
status of EWMP implementation consistent with the Permit ( Parts VI.C.2, VI.C. 3 and VI.E.2).

Generally, reporting of compliance will consider whether the following conditions, as applicable,
are met:

1.  There are no violations of the effective WQBEL( i. e., interim or final) for the specific pollutant at the

Permittee' s applicable MS4 outfall(s).

2.   There are no exceedances of an applicable RWLs for the specific pollutant in the receiving water(s)
at, or downstream of, the Permittee' s outfall(s).

3.  There is no direct or indirect discharge from the Permittee's MS4 to the receiving water during the

Page C- 77



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

time period subject to the WQBEL and/ or RWL for the pollutant(s) associated with a specific TMDL.
4.   In drainage areas where Permittees are implementing an EWMP, ( i) all non- stormwater and ( ii) all

stormwater runoff up to and including the volume equivalent to the 85th percentile, 24- hour event is
retained for the drainage area tributary to the applicable receiving water.

5.  The approved USGR EWMP is being implemented pursuant to Part VI. 0 of the Permit.
6.   Conditions of effective Time Schedule Orders( TSOs) are met.
7.   Exceedances of RWLs not otherwise addressed by a TMDL are addressed pursuant to Part VI. C. 2

of the Permit.

In addition,  evaluation of compliance for pollutants subject to TMDLs will consider the

requirements specified in the applicable TMDLs described in the following subsections.

SGR Metals TMDL Interim Milestones Compliance Determination

Per the Metals TMDL, the EWMP Group is required to show increasing percentages of the total
watershed meeting dry and wet weather WLAs phased over a 12- year period. Table 22 lists the
compliance milestone dates as well as the required percent compliance for the total watershed.

The percent compliance for the EWMP Group will be calculated using an annual average. The
annual average will be determined by averaging the total percentage for all of the sampling
events occurring during an individual year to adequately characterize the dry or wet weather
conditions for the reporting period.

Table 22. Compliance Milestone Dates and Required Percent Compliance

Compliance Milestone Dry Weather Percent of Total Wet Weather Percent of Total

Date
Drainage Area Served by MS4 Drainage Area Served by MS4
Meeting WLA Meeting WLA

September 30, 2017 30%   10%

September 30, 2020 70%   35%

September 30, 2023 100%   65%

September 30, 2026 100%  100%

Lakes TMDL Special Considerations

The East San Gabriel Valley WMP group is collecting the Stormwater samples required under
the Lakes TMDL for Puddingstone Reservoir. The data collected at the LTA site of the receiving
waters discharging into Puddingstone Reservoir will be used as reprehensive stormwater
discharges to the reservoir. As detailed in the CIMP, the Lakes TMDL monitoring requirements
specified in the MRP were considered when choosing the parameters. To estimate stormwater
flows entering the lake, the rational method or the watershed model used to develop the EWMP
will be used, and the chosen calculation method will be detailed in the Annual Report.

Use of Specie-Specific Data for Chlordanes, PCBs, and PAHs

Chlordanes, PCBs, and PAHs are unique in that they are pollutant categories which may be
analyzed for the species that make up the pollutant category and the species of interest varies

Page C- 78



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

depending on the purpose of data collection.  The individual constituents are summed to

determine " total" concentrations. The following describes how individual chlordane, PCB, and
PAH species will be summed for comparison to applicable WQBELs, RWLs, TMDL targets,
WLAs, and/or State adopted objectives.

Analysis included in this CIMP for chlordane includes the following species: alpha-chlordane,
gamma-chlordane, oxychlordane, cis-Nonachlor, and trans-Nonachlor. The calculation of total
chlordane will be conducted as follows:

When evaluating sediment concentrations and loads associated with the direct effects California
Sediment Quality Objectives, quantified concentrations of alpha-chlordane, gamma- chlordane, trans-
Nonachlor will be summed.

When evaluating sediment concentrations and loads and tissue concentrations associated with indirect
effects, quantified concentrations of alpha-chlordane, gamma-chlordane, oxychlordane, cis- Nonachlor,

and trans- Nonachlor will be summed.

Upon approval by the State Board, for the purposes of conducting analyses associated with the
Decision Support Tool ( DST) for determining impairment due to indirect effects associated with
sediment concentrations, data for each species will be utilized in a manner consistent with the

supporting documentation.

Analysis included in this CIMP for PCBs includes the following species: Aroclors 1016, 1221,
1232, 1242, 1248, 1254, 1260 and congeners 8, 18, 28, 31, 33, 37, 44, 49, 52, 56, 60, 66, 70, 74,

77, 81, 87, 95, 97, 99, 101, 105, 110, 114, 118, 119, 123, 126, 128, 132, 138, 141, 149, 151, 153,

156, 157, 158, 167, 168, 169, 170, 174, 177, 180, 183, 187, 189, 194, 195, 201, 203, 206, and

209. The calculation of total PCBs will be conducted as follows:

When evaluating water concentrations for the purposes of comparing to the California Toxics Rule
CTR) aquatic life criteria, quantified concentrations of aroclors 1016, 1221, 1232, 1242, 1248, 1254,

1260 will be summed.

When evaluating water concentrations for the purposes of comparing to the CTR human health criteria,
quantified concentrations of aroclors 1016, 1221, 1232, 1242, 1248, 1254, 1260 or congeners 8, 18, 28,
31, 33, 37, 44, 49, 52, 56, 60, 66, 70, 74, 77, 81, 87, 95, 97, 99, 101, 105, 110, 114, 118, 119, 123, 126,

128, 132, 138, 141, 149, 151, 153, 156, 157, 158, 167, 168, 169, 170, 174, 177, 180, 183, 187, 189,
194, 195, 201, 203, 206, and 209 will be summed.

When evaluating sediment concentrations and loads associated with the direct effects California
Sediment Quality Objectives, quantified concentrations of congeners 8, 18, 28, 44, 52, 66, 101, 105, 118,
128, 138, 153, 170, 180, 187, 189, 195, 206, and 209 will be summed.

When evaluating sediment and tissue samples associated with indirect effects, quantified concentrations
of congeners 18, 28, 37, 44, 49, 52, 66, 70, 74, 77, 81, 87, 99, 101, 105, 110, 114, 118, 119, 123, 126,

128, 138, 149, 151, 153, 156, 157, 158, 167, 168, 169, 170, 177, 180, 183, 187, 189, 194, 201, and 206

Page C- 79



USGR EWMP Group Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment C

will be summed

Upon approval by the State Board, for the purposes of conducting analyses associated with the DST for
determining impairment due to indirect effects associated with sediment concentrations, data for each
species will be utilized in a manner consistent with the supporting documentation.

Analysis included in this CIMP for PAHs includes the following constituents: Benzo(a) pyrene,
3, 4 Benzofluoranthene,   Benzo(k) flouranthene,   Chrysene,   Dibenzo( a,h)anthracene,   and

Indeno( 1, 2, 3- cd)pyrene. The calculation of total PAHs will be conducted as follows:

When evaluating sediment and tissue samples associated with direct and indirect effects, quantified
concentrations of Benzo( a) pyrene,   3,4 Benzofluoranthene,   Benzo( k)flouranthene,   Chrysene,

Dibenzo( a, h) anthracene, and Indeno( 1, 2,3- cd) pyrene will be summed.

Upon approval by the State Board, for the purposes of conducting analyses associated with the DST for
determining impairment due to indirect effects associated with sediment concentrations, data for each
species will be utilized in a manner consistent with the supporting documentation.

Page C- 80



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 1

Appendix 1 Example Field and Chain-of-Custody
Forms

EXAMPLE Field Log Page 1 of 2

GENERAL INFORMATION Date:

Site ID:     Sampling Personnel:

GPS Coordinates:( lat)   Ion)   PictureNideo#:

OBSERVATIONS

Weather:

Water Color:    In stream Activity:

Water Characteristics( flow type, odor, turbidity, floatables):

Other comments( trash, wildlife, recreational uses, homeless activity, etc.— Use notes section if more room is needed):

In situ WATER QUALITY MEASUREMENTS

Time
Temp D. O.   D.O. Elec Cond.

C)     mg/ L)  Sat uS/ cm)

COLLECTED WATER QUALITY SAMPLES

Sample ID Analysis Time Volume Notes

Field blank

Field duplicate

ADDITIONAL WATER QUALITY SAMPLING NOTES:

Page Appendix 1- 1



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 1

Example Field Log Page 2 of 2

FLOW MEASUREMENTS WITH VELOCITY METER

Estimated Total Width of Flowing Water( ft): Distance measured from( circle): RIGHT or LEFT

Measurement Number 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

Distance from Bank( ft)

Depth( ft)

Velocity( ft/s)

FLOW MEASUREMENTS WITH FLOAT AND STOPWATCH Number of Flow Paths:

Fill out Path#,   Path#       Path# Path# Path# Path#

Width of Flow at Top of Marked Section:
Width of Flow at Middle of Marked Section:

Width of Flow at Bottom of Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 0% of Top Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 25% of Top Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 50% of Top Marked Section:
Depth of Flow at 75% of Top Marked Section:  — ----

Depth of Flow at 100% of Top Marked Section:
Depth of Flow at 0% of Middle Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 25% of Middle Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 50% of Middle Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 75% of Middle Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 100% ofMiddle Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 0% of Bottom Marked Section

Depth of Flow at 25% of Bottom Marked Section

Depth of Flow at 50% of Bottom Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 75% of Bottom Marked Section:

Depth of Flow at 100% of Bottom Marked Section

Distance Marked-off for Velocity:
Time 1:

Time 2:

Time 3:

Specify if measurements are in inches or feet using" in" or" ft"

FLOW MEASUREMENT WITH GRADUATED CONTAINER

Container Volume:   Percent Capture:

Time to fill container:

Minutes Seconds

Timel

Time2

Time3

ADDITIONAL FLOW MEASUREMENT NOTES:

Page Appendix 1- 2



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 1

Example Chain-of-Custody Form

CHAIN- OF.CUSTODY RECORD Date.    Lab ID.

Destination Lab

Address

Phone

Fax.

Sampled By:

Contact:

Project:

Sample Sample Sample Container

Client Sample Id Date Time Matrix    #    Type Pres. Notes

Sender Comments aei nquistutl By Ill Relnquished By( 2)
Bputl. r

Print:

0

Dam rnn.      Dare lYttc

aoo- atory Comments Pecked Ely( 1). PAMa(2t
Mangum

Pr..

orosnirrke.

Dote TRIM De..      1Ytn.

Crew

Page Appendix 1- 3



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Appendix 2:  Chapter 13 QA/QC Data Evaluation from

Caltrans Guidance Manual:   Stormwater Monitoring
Protocols, 2nd Edition

Page Appendix 2- 1



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

SECTION 13

QA/ QC DATA EVALUATION

All data reported by the analytical laboratory must be carefully reviewed to determine
whether the project' s data quality acceptability limits or objectives( DQOs) have been
met. This section describes a process for evaluation of all laboratory data, including the
results of all QA/QC sample analysis.

Before any results are reported by the laboratory, the deliverable requirements should be
clearly communicated to the laboratory, as described in the" Laboratory Data Package
Deliverables" discussion in Section 12.

The current section discusses QA/ QC data evaluation in the following two parts:

Y Initial Data Quality Screening

TOPICS Data Quality Evaluation

The initial data quality screening identifies problems with laboratory reporting while they
may still be corrected. When the data reports are received, they should be immediately
checked for conformity to chain of custody requests to ensure that all requested analyses
have been reported.   The data are then evaluated for conformity to holding time
requirements, conformity to reporting limit requests, analytical precision, analytical
accuracy, and possible contamination during sampling and analysis. The data evaluation
results in rejection, qualification, and narrative discussion of data points or the data as a

whole. Qualification of data, other than rejection, does not necessary exclude use of the
data for all applications. It is the decision of the data user, based on specifics of the data

application, whether or not to include qualified data points.

INITIAL DATA QUALITY SCREENING

The initial screening process identifies and corrects, when possible,  inadvertent
documentation or process errors introduced by the field crew or the laboratory.  The

initial data quality control screening should be applied using the following three- step
process:

1.  Verification check between sampling and analysis plan( SAP), chain ofcustody forms,
and laboratory data reports: Chain of custody records should be compared with field
logbooks and laboratory data reports to verify the accuracy of all sample
identification and to ensure that all samples submitted for analysis have a value

reported for each parameter requested. Any deviation from the SAP that has not yet

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 1 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 2



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

been documented in the field notes or project records should be recorded and corrected
if possible.

Sample representativeness should also be assessed in this step.   The minimum

acceptable storm capture parameters( number of aliquots and percent storm capture)

per amount of rainfall are specified in Section 10. Samples not meeting these criteria
are generally not analyzed; however, selected analyses can be run at the Caltrans task

manager' s discretion. If samples not meeting the minimum sample representativeness
criteria are analyzed, the resulting data should be rejected (" R") or qualified as

estimated(" J"), depending upon whether the analyses were approved by Caltrans.
Grab samples should be taken according to the timing protocols specified in the SAP.
Deviations from the protocols will result in the rejection of the data for these samples

or qualification of the data as estimated. The decision to reject a sample based on

sample representativeness should be made prior to the submission of the sample to

the laboratory, to avoid unnecessary analytical costs.

2.  Check of laboratory data report completeness: As discussed in Section 12, the end

product of the laboratory analysis is a data report that should include a number of
QA/QC results along with the environmental results. QA/ QC sample results reported
by the lab should include both analyses requested by the field crew( field blanks, field
duplicates, lab duplicates and MS/MSD analysis), as well as internal laboratory
QA/QC results( method blanks and laboratory control samples).

There are often differences among laboratories in terms of style and format of reporting.
Therefore, it is prudent to request in advance that the laboratory conform to the style and
format approved by Caltrans as shown in Section 14. The Caltrans data reviewer should
verify that the laboratory data package includes the following items:

A narrative which outlines any problems,  corrections, anomalies,  and
conclusions.

Sample identification numbers.

Sample extraction and analysis dates.

Reporting limits for all analyses reported.

Results of method blanks.

Results of matrix spike and matrix spike duplicate analyses,  including
calculation of percent recovered and relative percent differences.

Results of laboratory control sample analyses.

Results of external reference standard analyses.

Surrogate spike and blank spike analysis results for organic constituents.

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 2 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 3



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

A summary of acceptable QA/ QC criteria( RPD, spike recovery) used by the
laboratory.

Items missing from this list should be requested from the laboratory.

3.  Check for typographical errors and apparent incongruities: The laboratory reports
should be reviewed to identify results that are outside the range of normally observed
values. Any type of suspect result or apparent typographical error should be verified
with the laboratory. An example of a unique value would be if a dissolved iron

concentration has been reported lower than 500 sg/L for every storm event monitored
at one location and then a value of 2500 .tg/L is reported in a later event.  This

reported concentration of 2500 sg/L should be verified with the laboratory for
correctness.

Besides apparent out-of-range values, the indicators of potential laboratory reporting
problems include:

Significant lack of agreement between analytical results reported for

laboratory duplicates or field duplicates.

Consistent reporting of dissolved metals results higher than total or total
recoverable metals.

Unusual numbers of detected values reported for blank sample analyses.

Inconsistency in sample identification/ labeling.

If the laboratory confirms a problem with the reported concentration, the corrected or

recalculated result should be issued in an amended report, or if necessary the sample
should be re- analyzed. If laboratory results are changed or other corrections are made
by the laboratory, an amended laboratory report should be issued to update the
project records.

DATA QUALITY EVALUATION

The data quality evaluation process is structured to provide systematic checks to ensure
that the reported data accurately represent the concentrations of constituents actually
present in stormwater. Data evaluation can often identify sources of contamination in the
sampling and analytical processes, as well as detect deficiencies in the laboratory analyses
or errors in data reporting. Data quality evaluation allows monitoring data to be used in
the proper context with the appropriate level of confidence.

QA/QC parameters that should be reviewed are classified into the following categories:

V Reporting limits

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 3 May 2000
QA/ QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 4



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Holding times

Contamination check results( method, field, trip, and equipment blanks)

Precision analysis results( laboratory, field, and matrix spike duplicates)

Accuracy analysis results ( matrix spikes, surrogate spikes,  laboratory
control samples, and external reference standards)

Each of these QA/ QC parameters should be compared to data quality acceptability
criteria, inalso known as the project' s data quality objectives( DQOs). The key steps
that should be adhered to in the analysis of each of these QA/QC parameters are:

1.  Compile a complete set of the QA/QC results for the parameter being analyzed.

2.  Compare the laboratory QA/QC results to accepted criteria( DQOs).

3.  Compile any out-of-range values and report them to the laboratory for
verification.

4. Prepare a report that tabulates the success rate for each QA/ QC parameter
analyzed.

This process should be applied to each of the QA/ QC parameters as discussed below.

Reporting Limits

Stormwater quality monitoring program DQOs should contain a list of acceptable
reporting limits that the lab is contractually obligated to adhere to, except in special cases
of insufficient sample volume or matrix interference problems. The reporting limits used
should ensure a high probability of detection. , Table 12- 1 provides recommended

reporting limits for selected parameters.

Holding Times

Holding time represents the elapsed time between sample collection time and sample

analysis time. Calculate the elapsed time between the sampling time and start of analysis,
and compare this to the required holding time. For composite samples that are collected
within 24-hours or less, the time of the final sample aliquot is considered the" sample

collection time" for determining sample holding time. For analytes with critical holding
times( s48 hours), composite samples lasting longer than 24- hours require multiple bottle
composite samples. Each of these composite samples should represent less than 24

hours of monitored flow, and subsamples from the composites should have been poured

off and analyzed by the laboratory for those constituents with critical holding times( see
Section 12). It is important to review sample holding times to ensure that analyses
occurred within the time period that is generally accepted to maintain stable parameter

concentrations. Table 12- 1 contains the holding times for selected parameters. If holding
times are exceeded, inaccurate concentrations or false negative results may be reported.

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 4 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 5



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Samples that exceed their holding time prior to analysis are qualified as" estimated", or
may be rejected depending on the circumstances.

Contamination

Blank samples are used to identify the presence and potential source of sample
contamination and are typically one of four types:

1. Method blanks are prepared and analyzed by the laboratory to identify
laboratory contamination.

2. Field blanks are prepared by the field crew during sampling events and submitted
to the laboratory to identify contamination occurring during the collection or the
transport of environmental samples.

3.  Equipment blanks are prepared by the field crew or laboratory prior to the
monitoring season and used to identify contamination coming from sampling
equipment( tubing, pumps, bailers, etc.).

4.  Trip blanks are prepared by the laboratory, carried in the field, and then
submitted to the laboratory to identify contamination in the transport and
handling ofvolatile organics samples.

S.  Filter blanks are prepared by field crew or lab technicians performing the sample
filtration. Blank water is filtered in the same manner and at the same time as other

environmental samples. Filter blanks are used to identify contamination from the
filter or filtering process.

If no contamination is present, all blanks should be reported as" not detected" or" non-

detect"( e. g., constituent concentrations should not be detected above the reporting limit).
Blanks reporting detected concentrations(" hits") should be noted in the written QA/QC
data summary prepared by the data reviewer. In the case that the laboratory reports hits
on method blanks, a detailed review of raw laboratory data and procedures should be
requested from the laboratory to identify any data reporting errors or contamination
sources. When other types of blanks are reported above the reporting limit, a similar
review should be requested along with a complete review of field procedures and sample

handling. Often times it will also be necessary to refer to historical equipment blank
results, corresponding method blank results, and field notes to identify contamination
sources. This is a corrective and documentative step that should be done as soon as the
hits are reported.

If the blank concentration exceeds the laboratory reporting limit, values reported for each
associated environmental sample must be evaluated according to USEPA guidelines for
data evaluations of organics and metals( USEPA, 1991; USEPA, 1995) as indicated in
Table 13- 1.

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 5 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 6



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Table 13- 1. USEPA Guidelines for Data Evaluation

Step Environmental Phthalates and Other Organics Metals
Sample other common

contaminants

1.  Sample> lox
No action No action No action

blank concentration

2.  Sample< l0X Report associated No action Results considered
blank concentration environmental an" upper limit" of

results as" non-  the true

detect" at the concentration ( note

reported contamination in
environmental data quality
concentration.   evaluation narrative).

3.  Sample< 5X blank Report associated Report associated Report associated
concentration environmental environmental environmental

results as" non-      results as" non-      results as" non-

detect" at the detect" at the detect" at the
reported reported reported

environmental environmental environmental

concentration. concentration. concentration.

Specifically, if the concentration in the environmental sample is less than five times the
concentration in the associated blank, the environmental sample result is considered, for

reporting purposes, " not-detected" at the environmental sample result concentration

phthalate and other common contaminant results are considered non-detect if the

environmental sample result is less than ten times the blank concentration).   The

laboratory reports are not altered in any way. The qualifications resulting from the data
evaluation are made to the evaluator' s data set for reporting and analysis purposes to
account for the apparent contamination problem. For example, if dissolved copper is

reported by the laboratory at 4 g/L and an associated blank concentration for dissolved

copper is reported at 1 Dg/L, data qualification would be necessary. In the data reporting
field of the database( see Section 14), the dissolved copper result would be reported as 4

g/L), the numerical qualifier would be reported as"<", the reporting limit would be left
as reported by the laboratory, and the value qualifier would be reported as" U"(" not

detected above the reported environmental concentration").

When reported environmental concentrations are greater than five times( ten times for
phthalates) the reported blank" hit" concentration, the environmental result is reported

unqualified at the laboratory-reported concentration. For example, if dissolved copper is
reported at 11 g/L and an associated blank concentration for dissolved copper is
reported at 1 g/L, the dissolved copper result would still be reported as 11 g/L.

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 6 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 7



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Precision

Duplicate samples provide a measure of the data precision( reproducibility) attributable
to sampling and analytical procedures. Precision can be calculated as the relative percent
difference( RPD) in the following manner:

2 1O; LD1
RPD;_  100%

O;+ D;)

where:

RPD,  =  Relative percent difference for compound i

O;     =  Value ofcompound i in original sample

D,     =  Value of compound i in duplicate sample

The resultant RPDs should be compared to the criteria specified in the project' s DQOs.

The DQO criteria shown in Table 13- 2 below are based on the analytical method

specifications and laboratory- supplied values.   Project-specific DQOs should be

developed with consideration to the analytical laboratory,  the analytical method
specifications, and the project objective. Table 13- 2 should be used as a reference point

as the least stringent set of DQO criteria for Caltrans monitoring projects.

Laboratory and Field Duplicates

Laboratory duplicates are samples that are split by the laboratory. Each half of the split
sample is then analyzed and reported by the laboratory. A pair of field duplicates is two
samples taken at the same time, in the same manner into two unique containers.

Subsampling duplicates are two unique, ostensibly identical, samples taken from one
composite bottle( see Section 10).  Laboratory duplicate results provide information

regarding the variability inherent in the analytical process, and the reproducibility of
analytical results. Field duplicate analysis measures both field and laboratory precision,
therefore, it is expected that field duplicate results would exhibit greater variability than
lab duplicate results. Subsampling duplicates are used as a substitute for field duplicates
in some situations and are also an indicator of the variability introduced by the splitting
process.

The RPDs resulting from analysis of both laboratory and field duplicates should be
reviewed during data evaluation. Deviations from the specified limits, and the effect on
reported data, should be noted and commented upon by the data reviewer. Laboratories
typically have their own set of maximum allowable RPDs for laboratory duplicates based
on their analytical history. In most cases these values are more stringent than those listed
in Table 13- 2. Note that the laboratory will only apply these maximum allowable RPDs
to laboratory duplicates.  In most cases field duplicates are submitted " blind" ( with

pseudonyms) to the laboratory.

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 7 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 8



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Environmental samples associated with laboratory duplicate results greater than the
maximum allowable RPD( when the numerical difference is greater than the reporting
limit) are qualified as" J"( estimated). When the numerical difference is less than the RL,

no qualification is necessary. Field duplicate RPDs are compared against the maximum
allowable RPDs used for laboratory duplicates to identify any pattern of problems with
reproducibility of results.   Any significant pattern of RPD exceedances for field
duplicates should be noted in the data report narrative.

Corrective action should be taken to address field or laboratory procedures that are
introducing the imprecision of results.   The data reviewer can apply " J" ( estimated)

qualifiers to any data points if there is clear evidence of a field or laboratory bias issue
that is not related to contamination. ( Qualification based on contamination is assessed

with blank samples.)

Laboratories should provide justification for any laboratory duplicate samples with RPDs
greater than the maximum allowable value. In some cases, the laboratory will track and
document such exceedances, however; in most cases it is the job of the data reviewer to

locate these out-of-range RPDs. When asked to justify excessive RPD values for field
duplicates, laboratories most often will cite sample splitting problems in the field.
Irregularities should be included in the data reviewer' s summary, and the laboratory' s
response should be retained to document laboratory performance, and to track potential
chronic problems with laboratory analysis and reporting.

Accuracy

Accuracy is defined as the degree of agreement of a measurement to an accepted reference
or true value. Accuracy is measured as the percent recovery(% R) of spike compound(s).

Percent recovery of spikes is calculated in the following manner:

R   =  100%*[( CS— C)/ S]

where:

R   =  percent recovery

CS     =  spiked sample concentration

C     =  sample concentration for spiked matrices

S      =  concentration equivalent of spike added

Accuracy(% R) criteria for spike recoveries should be compared with the limits specified

in the project DQOs. A list of typical acceptable recoveries is shown in Table 13- 2. As

in the case of maximum allowable RPDs, laboratories develop acceptable criteria for an
allowable range of recovery percentages that may differ from the values listed in Table 13-
2.

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 8 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 9



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Percent recoveries should be reviewed during data evaluation, and deviations from the
specified limits should be noted in the data reviewer' s summary. Justification for out of
range recoveries should be provided by the laboratory along with the laboratory reports,
or in response to the data reviewer' s summary.

Laboratory Matrix Spike and Matrix Spike Duplicate Samples

Evaluation of analytical accuracy and precision in environmental sample matrices is

obtained through the analysis of laboratory matrix spike( MS) and matrix spike duplicate
MSD) samples. A matrix spike is an environmental sample that is spiked with a known

amount of the constituent being analyzed. A percent recovery can be calculated from the
results of the spike analysis. A MSD is a duplicate of this analysis that is performed as a

check on matrix recovery precision. MS and MSD results are used together to calculate
RPD as with the duplicate samples. When MS/ MSD results(% R and RPD) are outside

the project specifications, as listed in Table 13- 2, the associated environmental samples

are qualified as" estimates due to matrix interference". Surrogate standards are added to

all environmental and QC samples tested by gas chromatography  ( GC)  or gas

chromatography- mass spectroscopy ( GC-MS).  Surrogates are non-target compounds

that are analytically similar to the analytes of interest. The surrogate compounds are
spiked into the sample prior to the extraction or analysis.  Surrogate recoveries are

evaluated with respect to the laboratory acceptance criteria to provide information on the
extraction efficiency of every sample.

External Reference Standards

External reference standards( ERS) are artificial certified standards prepared by an external
agency and added to a batch of samples. ERS' s are not required for every batch of
samples, and are often only run quarterly by laboratories. Some laboratories use ERS' s in
place of laboratory control spikes with every batch of samples. ERS results are assessed
the same as laboratory control spikes for qualification purposes( see below). The external
reference standards are evaluated in terms of accuracy, expressed as the percent recovery
comparison of the laboratory results with the certified concentrations). The laboratory

should report all out-of-range values along with the environmental sample results. ERS
values are qualified as biased high" when the ERS recovery exceeds the acceptable
recovery range and" biased low" when the ERS recovery is smaller than the recovery
range.

Laboratory Control Samples

LCS analysis is another batch check of recovery of a known standard solution that is used
to assess the accuracy of the entire recovery process. LCSs are much like ERS' s except
that a certified standard is not necessarily used with LCSs, and the sample is prepared
internally by the laboratory so the cost associated with preparing a LCS sample is much
lower than the cost of ERS preparation. LCSs are reviewed for percent recovery within

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 9 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 10



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

control limits provided by the laboratory. LCS out-of-range values are treated in the same
manner as ERS out-of-range values. Because LCS and ERS analysis both check the entire

recovery process, any irregularity in these results supersedes other accuracy-related
qualification.   Data are rejected due to low LCS recoveries when the associated

environmental result is below the reporting limit.

A flow chart of the data evaluation process, presented on the following pages as Figures
13- 1( lab- initiated QA/QC samples) and 13- 2( field-initiated QA/QC), can be used as a

general guideline for data evaluation.  Boxes shaded black in Figures 13- 1 and 13- 2

designate fmal results of the QA/ QC evaluation.

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 10 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 11



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Table 13- 2. Typical Control Limits for Precision and Accuracy for Analytical
Constituents

Maximum

Awe
EPA Method Number

Maximum Recovery Recovery
or Standard Method

RPD
Upper Limit Lower Limit

Conventionak

BOD 405. 1; SM 5210B 20%       80%       120%

COD
410. 1; 410. 4; SM 5220C;    

20%       80%       120%
SM 5220D

Hardness 130. 2; 130. 1; SM 2340B 20%       80%       120%
pH 150. 1 20%       NA NA

TOC/ DOC 415. 1 15%       85%       115%

TDS 160. 1 20%       80%       120%

TSS 160. 2 20%       80%       120%

Turbidity 180. 1 20%       NA NA

Nutrients

NH3- N 350. 2; 350. 3 20%       80%       120%

NO3- N 300. 0 20%       80%       120%

NO2- N 300. 0 20%       80%       120%

NO3/ NO2- N 353. 2 20%       80%       120%
P 365. 2 20%       80%       120%
Ortho- P 365. 2; 365. 3 20%       80%       120%
TKN 351. 3 20%       80%       120%

Metals

Ag 272. 2; 200. 8 20%       75%       125%
Al 200. 9; 200. 8 20%      75%       125%
Cd 213. 2; 200. 8 20%      75%       125%

Cr 218. 2; 200. 8 20%       75%       125%

Cu 220. 2; 200. 8 20%       75%       125%

NI 249. 2; 200. 8 20%       75%       125%
Pb 239. 2; 200. 8 20%       75%       125%
Zn 289. 2; 200. 8 20%       75%       125%

As 206. 3; 200. 8 20%      75%       125%
Fe 200. 9; SM 3500- Fe B 20%      75%       125%
Se 200. 9; 270. 3; 200. 8 20%       75%       125%

Hg 1631 21%       79%       121%

Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons

TPH( gasoline) 21%       45%       129%
TPH( diesel)   8015b 21%       45%       129%
TPH( motor oil) 21%       45%       129%

Oil& Grease 1664 18%       79%       114%

Pesticides and Herbicides
Glyphosate 547 30%       70%       130%

OP Pesticides

esp. diazinon 8141; ELISA 25%
and chlorpyrifos)

OC Pesticides 8081 25%   see method for constituent
Chlorinated

8150; 8151 25%   
specific

Herbicides
Carbamate

8321 25%
Pesticides

Miscellaneous Organic Constituents
Base/ Neutrals

625; 8270
30% to 50%

and Acids analyte see method for constituent
PAHs 8310 dependent) specific

Purgeables 624; 8260 20%

Purgeable
601 30%   see method, Table 2

Halocarbons

Purgeable
602 P0%   see method for constituent

Aromatics specific

Miscellaneous Constituents

Cyanide I 335. 2 I 20%   I 75 I 125

Bacteriological

rm SM 9221E

Total lColiform I SM 9221B I    -    I     -    I     -

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 11 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation Revised May 2002)

Page Appendix 2- 12



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Qualify results as estimated if holding
f' 

com

nanlcee

p   )   no time variance allowed, or rejectW
results. Proceed to next step.

Are Method blanks
AeSUSam

Are sample results

C. ND or within project) no /     
p

no 10x( phthalates 8 common contaminants) orCr e 1 No qualification.

specs,    
Its ND?

J     <
Sx( semi-& non- volatiles 8 metals')       no

Proceed to next step.
blank concentration,

a 1

No qualification.       Qualify associated detected
Proceed to next step.    environmental sample results as" U".

Proceed to next step.

1
Are measured differences between sam Qualify sample results as estimate

Are Lab duplicate RPDS p es

within project specso no less than the reporting IimiY/     no due to analytical variability.
Proceed to next step.

e

If MS result is> UL,
No qualification. qualify detected associated environmental sample results as

Proceed to next ste•.       estimates due to matrix interference.
4' 

Are MS recoveries

within project specs?) no
If MS result is< LL,

qualify associated environmental sample results as estimates

due to matrix interference and consider rejecting associated

1 environmental sample data below detection based on other

supporting QA/QC data.

Are MSD RPDS csthin1 Qualify sample results as estimates
project specs?    J

no due to matrix interternce.

Proceed to next step.

1 If spike recovery result is> UL,
qualify associated environmental sample results above detection levels as
estimates due to high analytical bias.

8.
LCS 8 ERS recoveries   __   

If spike recovery result is< LL or more than half of recoveries are outside
within project specs?.•       

acceptability limits,
qualify associated detected environmental sample results as estimates due to low
analytical bias and reject associated environmental sample data below detection.

No qualification.

Proceed to field- initiated QA/ QC data evaluation

Environmental results between 5x and 10x the blank concentrator are qualified as' an upper limit on the true concentration' and the data user should be cautioned.

Figure 13- 1. Technical Data Evaluation for Lab-Initiated QAIQC Samples

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 12 May 2000
QA/ QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 13



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Appendix 2

Are sample results

C7. Are field blanks NDn) 
no (

Are sample) 
no

10x( phthalates& common contaminants) or

No qualification.

JJ l\ results ND?J      < 5x( semi-& non- volatiles& metals')      no

proceed to next step.blank concentration?

u a

Q
No qualification.
Proceed to next step.    Qualify associated detected

environmental sample results as" U".

Proceed to next step.

Report patterns in data report

Et Are field duplicate RPD    ( Are measured differences between samples 11 narrative. Remediate field and lab

within project specs?  
nO t less than the Reporting Limit? no protocols as necessary. Qualify

results if deemed necessary.
Proceed to next step.

No qualification.
Proceed to next ste•.

C Do overall DC results Make additional data qualifications as
9. indicate systematic Yes necessary matrix, method, etc.

problems?      J Qualified data should be noted and reported.

No limitation on use of

unqualified data.

Qualified data should be

noted and reported.

Environmental results between 5x and 10x the blank concentration are qualified as" an upper limit on the true concentration' and the data user should be cautioned.

Figure 13-2. Technical Data Evaluation for Field-Initiated QA/QC Samples

Implementing the Monitoring Plan 13- 13 May 2000
QA/QC Data Evaluation

Page Appendix 2- 14



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment D

Attachment D

Water Quality Objectives

Page D- 1



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment D

Basin Plan CTR EPA 304( a)

Constituent Units Min non- MUN Min MUN Min non- MUN fresh Min non- MUN salt Mm MUN fresh criteria

1, 1, 1- Trichloroethane g/ L 200

1, 1, 2, 2- Tetrachloroethane g/ L 1 11 11 0. 17

1, 1, 2- Trichloro- 1, 2, 2- Trifluoroethane µ g/ L 1200

1, 1, 2- Trichloroethane WI_      5 42 42 0. 6

1, 1- Dichloroethane 14/ 1-      5

1, 1- Dichloroethylene g/ L 6 3. 2 3. 2 0. 057

1, 2, 4-Trichlorobenzene g/ L 70

1, 2- Dibromo- 3- Chloropropane     µ g/ L 0. 2

1, 2- Dichlorobenzene g/ L 600 17000 17000 2700

1, 2- Dichloroethane g/ L 0. 5 99 99 0. 38

1, 2- Dichloropropane g/ L 5 39 39 0. 52

1, 2- Diphenylhydrazine g/ L 0. 54 0. 54 0. 04

1, 2- Trans- Dichloroethylene g/ L 10 140000 140000 700

1, 3- Dichlorobenzene g/ L 2600 2600 400

1, 3- Dichloropropylene g/ L 0. 5 1700 1700 10

1, 4- Dichlorobenzene g/ L 5 2600 2600 400

2, 3, 7,8-TCDD( Dioxin)    pg/ L 30 0. 014 0. 014 0. 013

2, 4, 5- TP g/ L 50

2, 4, 6- Trichlorophenol g/ L 6. 5 6. 5 2. 1

2, 4- D g/ L 70

2, 4- Dichlorophenol g/ L 790 790 93

2, 4- Dimethylphenol g/ L 2300 2300 540

2, 4- Dinitrophenol g/ L 14000 14000 70

2, 4- Dinitrotoluene g/ L 9. 1 9. 1 0. 11

2- Chloronaphthalene g/ L 4300 4300 1700

2- Chlorophenol g/ L 400 400 120

2- Methyl- 4, 6- Dinitrophenol       µ g/ L 765 765 13.4

3, 3'- Dichlorobenzidine g/ L 0.077 0. 077 0.04

4,4'- DDD g/ L 0. 00084 0.00084 0. 00083

4,4'- DDE g/ L 0. 00059 0.00059 0. 00059

4,4'- DDT g/ L 0. 00059 0. 00059 0. 00059 0. 001 G, ii

Acenaphthene g/ L 2700 2700 1200

Acrolein g/ L 780 780 320 3ug/ L

Acrylonitrile g/ L 0. 66 0. 66 0.059

Alachlor g/ L 2

Aldrin g/ L 0. 00014 0.00014 0. 00013 0

alpha- BHC g/ L 0.013 0. 013 0. 0039

alpha- Endosulfan g/ L 0. 056 0.0087 0.056 0. 056 G, Y

Aluminum g/ L 1000

Ammonia( Total) as N mg/ L 0. 035 0. 035

Ammonia as N mg/ L 2. 23 2. 23

Anthracene g/ L 110000 110000 9600

Antimony g/ L 6 4300 4300 14

Aroclors ug/ L 0.00007 0.00007 0.00017 0.00017 0. 00017

Arsenic g/ L 50 150 36 150 150 A, D

Asbestos MFL 7 0 0 7

Atrazine g/ L 3

Barium g/ L 1000

Bentazon g/ L 18

Benzene g/ L 1 71 71 1. 2

Benzidine g/ L 0.00054 0.00054 0. 00012

Benzo(a) Anthracene g/ L 0. 049 0.049 0. 0044

Benzo( a) Pyrene g/ L 0. 2 0. 049 0.049 0. 0044

Benzo( b) Fluoranthene ug/ L 0. 049 0.049 0. 0044

Benzo( k) Fluoranthene g/ L 0. 049 0.049 0. 0044

Beryllium LTA 4 0 0 0

beta- BHC g/ L 0. 046 0.046 0. 014

beta- Endosulfan g/ L 0. 056 0. 0087 0.056 0.056 G, Y

B ioaccu m u lation

Biostimulatory Substances

Bis( 2- chloroethyl) Ether g/ L 1. 4 1. 4 0.031

Bis( 2- chloroisopropyl) Ether g/ 1 170000 170000 1400

Bis( 2- ethylhexyl)Adipate g/ L 400

Bis( 2- ethylhexyl) Phthalate g/ L 4 5. 9 5. 9 1. 8

BOD mg/ L
Boron mg/ L 0

Bromoform g/ L 360 360 4. 3

Butylbenzyl Phthalate g/ L 5200 5200 3000

Cadmium ug/ L 5 2. 2 9. 3 2. 2 0. 25 D, E

Carbofuran ug/ L 18

Carbon Tetrachloride g/ L 0. 5 4.4 4. 4 0. 25

Chemical Constituents

Chlordanes g/ L 0. 1 0.00059 0. 00059 0.00057

Chloride mg/ L 230000

Chlorine( Total Residual)  g/ L 100

Page D- 2



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment D

Basin Plan CfR EPA 304( a)

Constituent Units Min non- MUN Min MUN Min non- MUN fresh Min non- MUN salt Min MUN fresh criteria

Chlorobenzene g/ L 70 21000 21000 680

Chlorodibromomethane g/ L 34 34 0.41

Chromium g/ L 50

Chromium( III) g/ L 180 180 74 D, E
Chromium( VI) g/ L 11 50 11 11 D

Chrysene g/ L 0.049 0.049 0.0044

cis- 1, 2- Dichloroethylene g/ L 6

Color 0

Copper B/ L 9 3. 1 9 4.8 D, cc

Cyanide g/ L 200 5. 2 1 5. 2 5. 2 Q
Dalapon g/ L 200

Dibenzo( a, h) Anthracene g/ L 0.049 0.049 0.0044

Dichlorobromomethane g/ L 46 46 0.56

Dieldrin g/ L 0. 00014 0.00014 0.00014 0. 056 0

Diethyl Phthalate g/ L 120000 120000 23000

Dimethyl Phthalate g/ L 2900000 2900000 313000

Di- n- Butyl Phthalate g/ L 12000 12000 2700

Dinoseb g/ L 7

Diquat g/ L 20

Dissolved Oxygen mg/ L 5 5

E. Coli MPN/ 100mL 126 126

Endosulfan Sulfate yg/ L 240 240 110

Endothall g/ L 100

Endrin g/ L 2 0.036 0.0023 0.036 0.0360

Endrin Aldehyde g/ L 0.81 0. 81 0.76

Enterococcus MPN/ 100mL 35 35

Ethylbenzene g/ L 700 29000 29000 3100

Ethylene Dibromide g/ L 0. 05

Exotic Vegetation

Fecal Coliform MPN/ 100mL 200 200

Floating Material

Fluoranthene pg/ L 370 370 300

Fluorene g/ L 14000 14000 1300

Fluoride mg/ L 2

gamma- BHC( Undone)   g/ L 0. 2 0.063 0.063 0.019 0

Glyphosate g/ L 700

Gross Alpha particle activity pCi/ L 15

Gross Beta particle activity pCi/ L 50

Habitat

Heptachlor g/ L 0.01 0. 00021 0.00021 0.00021 0.0038 G

Heptachlor Epoxide g/ L 0.01 0. 00011 0.00011 0.0001 0.0038 G, V

Hexachlorobenzene g/ L 1 0. 00077 0. 00077 0.00075

Hexachlorobutadiene g/ L 50 50 0.44

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene       µ g/ L 50 17000 17000 240

Hexachloroethane g/ L 8. 9 8.9 1. 9

Hydrology

Indeno( 1, 2, 3- cd) Pyrene pg/ L 0.049 0. 049 0.0044

Isophorone g/ L 600 600 8.4

Lead g/ L 2. 5 8. 1 2. 5 2. 5 D, E

MBAS yg/ L 500

Mercury g/ L 2 0.051 0. 051 0.05 0.77 D, hh

Methoxychlor g/ L 40 0.03 C

Methyl Bromide g/ L 4000 4000 48

Methylene Chloride g/ L 5 1600 1600 4.7

Molinate g/ L 20

Nickel g/ L 100 52 8. 2 52 52 D, E

Nitrate as N mg/ L 10

Nitrate as NO3 mg/ L 45

Nitrite as N mg/ L 1

Nitrobenzene g/ L 1900 1900 17

Nitrogen( NO3- N+ NO2- N) mg/ L 10

N- Nitrosodimethylamine g/ L 8. 1 8. 1 0. 00069

N- Nitrosodi-n- Propylamine g/ L 1. 4 1. 4 0.005

N- Nitrosodiphenylamine g/ L 16 16 5

Oil+ Grease mg/ L

Oxamyl g/ L 200

PCBs 1g/ L 0.00017 0.00017 0. 00017

Pentachlorophenol g/ L 1 8. 2 7. 9 0. 28 15 F

pH pH Units 6. 5 6.5 6.5- 9 C

Phenol g/ L 4600000 4600000 21000

Picloram g/ L 500

Pyrene sg/ L 11000 11000 960

Radioactive Substances pCi/ L

Radium- 226+ Radium- 228 pCi/ L 5

Ratio Fecal/ Total Coliform

Selenium g/ L 50 5 71 5 5. 0 R

Page D- 3



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment D

Basin Plan CTR EPA 304(a)

Constituent Units Min non- MUN Min MUN Min non- MUN fresh Min non- MUN salt Min MUN fresh criteria

Silver ug/ L 3. 4 1. 9 3. 4 0

Simazine tg/ L 4

Strontium-90 pCi/ L 8

Styrene ug/ L 100

Sulfate mg/ L
Taste and Odor

TDS mg/ L
Temperature C 26. 7 26. 7 0

Tetrachloroethylene ug/ L 5 8. 85 8. 85 0. 8

Thallium g/ L 2 6. 3 6. 3 1. 7

Thiobencarb g/ L 70

Toluene ug/ L 150 200000 200000 6800

Total Coliform MPN/ 100mL 70 70

Total Settleable Solids

Toxaphene ug/ L 3 0. 0002 0. 0002 0.0002 0. 0002

Toxicity
Trichloroethylene ug/ L 5 81 81 2. 7

Trichlorofluoromethane ug/ L 150

Tritium pCi/ L 20000

TSS mg/ L

Turbidity NTU

Uranium pCi/ L 20

Vinyl Chloride ug/ L 0. 5 525 525 2

Xylenes( Total) ug/ L 1750

Zinc ug/ L 120 81 120 120 D, E

Page D- 4



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment E

Attachment E

Stormwater Outfall Selection

Page E- 1



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment E

E- 1 STORMWATER OUTFALL SITE SELECTION

The primary criterion cited in the MRP for selection of monitoring sites for the stormwater
outfall monitoring program is that the sites are representative of the range of land uses in the
area. An additional stated criterion for site selection is the ability to accurately measure flows for
pollutant loads characterization. Flow measurement is easily addressed by physical assessment of
the site conditions and consideration of access to the site. The primary criterion in the MRP
implies an assessment of variation of land uses within the WMA, potential variation in water

quality issues for different HUC- 12 drainages, and geographic variation in factors influencing
runoff quality.

The Permit-defined specific objectives for the stormwater outfall monitoring are as follows:.

Determine the quality of discharge relative to municipal action levels
Determine whether the discharge is in compliance with WQBELs derived from TMDL

WLAs

Determine whether a discharge causes or contributes to exceedances of receiving water
limitations( RWL).

The default approach in the MRP to achieving adequate representation is to select one major
outfall in each hydrological unit ( HUC- 12) within each individual Permittee' s jurisdiction.

Consequently, the minimum number of outfalls required for monitoring under the default
approach is equal to the total number of unique combinations of HUC- 12s and jurisdictions. The

default approach is geared toward ensuring adequate accountability and representation if the
Permittees monitor as individual entities, but would result in monitoring more outfall discharges
than needed for efforts coordinated among the USGR EWMP Group. For the San Gabriel River
WMA, there would be 16 stormwater outfalls using the default approach.

As an alternative to the MRP' s default monitoring approach, the EWMP Group is proposing to
monitor one major outfall for each Group Member in the WMA. The resulting data would be
considered representative of Group Members' discharge in their respective jurisdictions, would
provide representative results needed to meet all three specific monitoring objectives, and would

also provide the basis for stormwater management decisions for all Group Members. The
rationale supporting the EWMP Group' s alternative approach follows.

E-2 REPRESENTATIVENESS OF SELECTED OUTFALLS

The principal criterion for the site selection for stormwater outfall monitoring is that sites are
representative of the range of land uses in the WMA. The drainages within the EWMP Group' s
WMA are comprised primarily of residential, commercial, and industrial land uses, with minimal
percentages of agriculture and undeveloped open space. The six proposed outfalls were selected

specifically to characterize runoff from drainages that are representative of the mix of these
primary land uses in the WMA, and to minimize contributions from other land uses. Land use
summaries for the USGR EWMP Group are listed in Table E- 1. Pictures and drainage area maps
for the selected stormwater outfall sites can be found in Section B-2.

Page E- 2



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment E

Table E- 1.

Relative Land Use Area within Drain Area to Stormwater Outfall Sites

Percent of Land Area(1)

Group Member Area Res I Com/ Ind 1 Ag/Nur I Open

Baldwin Park I Jurisdiction 66 31 1 2 I 1

BI 1701- Line A 75 24 0 1

Covina 1 Jurisdiction 65 I 32 I    < 1 1 2

BI1123 66 I 31 1 0 1 3

Glendora Jurisdiction 70 20 1 1 8

BI 3701- Line C 90 8 1 1

Industry I Jurisdiction 1 I 91 I 3 1 6

B14301- Industry 1 5 1 92 I 0 I 3

La Puente Jurisdiction 72 25 1 3

BI4801- Line._B....__....... .   ...........fi4....................26..................       0.........................  ..............1.0...............
County of Los Angeles Jurisdiction 68 20 2 11

PD 2425 71 1 28 1 0 1 1

1 Land use classifications include: residential( res), commercial and industrial( com/ ind), agriculture and nursery( ag/nur), and
open space( open). Totals correspond to the percent of the MS4 area considered in the EWMP.

E-3 STORMWATER MONITORING DATA VARIABILITY
The inter-event variability ( e. g., for different storm events) in stormwater discharge quality is
much greater than between individual outfall drainages or major land uses. Based on stormwater

monitoring results from other programs, discharge quality from drainages with similar mixed
land uses is not substantially different, and it will be impossible to distinguish statistically
between drainages with a reasonable amount of monitoring because of the high variability in
discharge quality for each site. The statistical power analysis based on the range of typical
stormwater discharge quality distributions and the number of sample collected for the permit
term, 15 samples per site, is enumerated in Table E-2. For example, the analysis results in an
average difference between sites would need to be greater than 62% to be detected with 95%
confidence and 80% power for a pollutant with a fairly " typical" coefficient of variance ( COV)
of 0. 66. COVs for stormwater discharge quality are generally greater than 0. 2 and commonly
exceed 1. 0. Programmatically meaningful differences ( i. e., differences between sites as small as
20%) would not be expected to be detected for most constituents over the time frame of the
permit.

Given the high variability typical of stormwater pollutant levels, and with only a few storm
events that can be collected per year, it will not be possible to make meaningful distinctions

between drainages, either within land use types, across land use types, or between jurisdictions.

Management implementation by the Permittees is also expected to be relatively consistent
throughout the WMA, so additional focus on geographic differences is not necessary. This
means that only a handful of sites are needed to adequately characterize residential land use
discharge quality within the WMA. Consequently, sampling more than a few representative sites

Page E-3



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment E

is unlikely to significantly improve characterization of runoff quality, or to better inform the
EWMP Group' s management decisions.

Realistically achievable changes in stormwater runoff quality or loads ( e. g., 20- 50% reductions)

are statistically demonstrable only over relatively long periods of time (> 10 years). This is also

due to the high variability between events and the relatively few number of events that can be
sampled each season, and additional monitoring sites will do little to improve the statistical
power of such trend analysis within the permit time frame compared to longer periods of

evaluation. This also supports the need to assess management effectiveness and compliance

based primarily on successful implementation actions rather than explicit demonstration of
improvements in runoff quality.

E-4 RECOMMENDATION FOR STORMWATER OUTFALL SITE

SELECTION

Based on the evaluations above, the EWMP Group' s proposed CIMP approach to monitor one
outfall for each Group Member in the WMA will provide the representative data needed to meet
the specific permit objectives for stormwater outfall monitoring and support management
decisions of the EWMP Group.  Additional monitoring sites within six Group Member
jurisdictions will not provide significant improvements in representation or characterization of

discharge quality, or additional information for discharge quality management.

Table E- 2.

Detectible Significant Percent Differences between Sites

Sample Size= 15, alpha= 0. 05

COV power=0. 8 power 0. 9

0. 20 21%       24%

0. 31 32%       36%

0.42 42%       48%

0. 53 52%       59%

0.66 62%       70%

0. 80 71%       81%

0. 95 80%       91%

1. 12 89%       100%

1. 31 97%       109%

Page E- 4



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

Attachment F

Stormwater Outfall Sites ( Including Potential
Alternates)

Page F- 1



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

r  •-      7. v ILVIA% 0̀1i.   
L

9 r  \  

al
a".      f

i i—_

If
k      ,-

q

I   '' l
yR

f
r

c

y
i`    

c       3, i 5      . i  •...a
r

I C       
ii

vy,,Neach'   2,..,  :„   
3c;       .' 

F

a T\    w
7..

a' r' n" l T Y yt r

17f

3:..

UELJA G
j

S ac 54 a' 

rte
0. 

c    ,
z,.`       

x•
S

Nr r#"  F
yam  ¢   w

y0,. 
r

k

0
11 I:r

R. 1
c

g'   ..-.  ,  ,- _   11 J'

n'  

ti

2,
5,..     ,.. r..

r.7.    
3

9   ^
aunty      -`     g    

rd msf

N.

1

i

za  . ate r  '`

k    - -     -.   v Legend

i   _     Potential Outfalls Land Use

0 Baldwin Park Residential

0 County Commercial/ Industrial

0 Covina Open Space

0 Glendora Agriculture

0 Industry

sr
x P ;  r

z      
M,,ei.•   

4 a Puente

Page F- 2



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

Table F- 1. Land use percentages for potential alternate outfalls

Res Com/ Ind Ag Open

Baldwin Park

BI 0604- Line C 61%  37%  0%   2%

BI 9705 84%  13%  3%   0%

County

BI 0531- U2 Line
B1

63%  35%  0%   3%

BI 0531- U2 Line
B2 64%  33%  0%   3%

Covina

MTD 0105 74%  22%  0%   4%

BI 0612 59%  40%  0%   1%

Glendora

BI 0517- Line B 74%  25%  0%   1%

BI 0517- Line
A3 55%  44%  0%   2%

BI 0517- Line
A4

56%  43%  0%   2%

Industry

PD
01985 0%  99%  0%   1%

Pellissier Place
Drn6

0. 0% 99. 9%   _    0. 1% 0. 0%

La Puente

BI 4801- La Puente- Line A 73%  27%  0%   0%

RDD 0291 97%  0%   0%   3%

1. Contains 7. 03 acres of commercial/ industrial areas and 0.83 acres of residential areas from La

Mirada

2. Does not include land uses from La Mirada

3. Contains 7. 9 acres of Caltrans land use

4. Does not contain the Caltrans land use

5. Contains 0. 63 acres of Caltrans land use, does not change percentages

6. Contains 2. 7 acres of Caltrans land use, does not change percentages

F- 1 CITY OF BALDWIN PARK POTENTIAL OUTFALLS

Table 1. Potential Wet Weather Outfall Monitoring Sites— City of Baldwin Park

Water
Jurisdiction

Drain
Size Shape Material Lat Lon

Body Name

Big Baldwin BI 0604-      Reinforced
Dalton

Park Line C
66" Round

Conc. Pipe
34.081651   - 117. 955909

Wash

Walnut Baldwin BI 1701 -     
126„     

Square or Reinforced
34.062694 117. 988920

Creek Park Line A Rectangle Conc. Box

SGR Baldwin
BI 9705 96"      

Square or Reinforced
34.071568 118.00019

Reach 4 Park Rectangle Conc. Box

Page F- 3



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 1. 1 BI 0604 - Line C

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Big Dalton Baldwin
BI 0604- Line C 66 inches SW Outfall 34. 081651   - 117. 955909

Wash Park

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Big Dalton Wash downstream of
Pacific Ave.

L

u

0 0-05 co rt.'7114111.

Legend

Potential Outfall

Residential 1

Commercial/ Industrial

Open Space

Agriculture

Page F- 4



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

T}
4111

11

i

4

o Soiht,t
N,

de

I

M

a
s

7-.

774%
f`J

X

i

BI 0604- Line C Aerial View

Page F- 5



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 1. 2 BI 1791 — Line A

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Walnut Baldwin 126

Creek Park
BI 1701 - Line A

inches
SW Outfall 34. 062694   - 117. 988920

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Walnut Creek downstream of
Baldwin Park Blvd.

r  ,

F

t

I  ,
4

L.

A a,

4.„,,f'„:.- _      ,     

e 0      . 175 a     -       •,. s y=   •%*

40N-
N-

0 aj L,—      F—Cam.
4-

110'     
f5 I•     

k...SW
r'

r

Cy v

County e 4" 7

7
o-,

Legend
r

0 Potential Outfall J
Isrl-

Residential

j<
k\

4

Commerctaltlndustnal

L'

14;'`',   r' 1

Open Space L _.1-'.01...

Agriculture

Page F- 6



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

44. 

t.     

Wit,   a, 
be

r

A i

s

a

r-r   ..    

a . rw :

e

a

74
if  .,'

M; it."'"    
s v

r

fir„

yr.

t..
yam    ',  A- ia.,       ..**,!,

BI 1701 — Line A Aerial View

Page F- 7



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 1. 3 BI 975

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

SGR Baldwin
BI 9705 96 inches SW Outfall 34. 071568   - 118. 00019

Reach 4 Park

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to San Gabriel River Reach 4
downstream of the 605 Freeway.

4106
1:-"----

4'  
1 %

I: 4f'    '''-.      .  rist*   --..-40a' 1 10111L.III Vifilipt       "‘ok     _

8atdw vParl':',

Q

N

tI

0 0 075 .  _.     0.3

fit:

Legend
it:

O Potential Outfall
Residential 444       —      t

Commercial/ Industrial

1........................: 
a

1 A Open Space
Agriculture

Page F- 8



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

0'

a„

y.

A.

fi

wstk

N.4. class
BI 9705 Aerial View

Page F- 9



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F-2 Los ANGELES COUNTY POTENTIAL OUTFALL SITES
Table 2. Potential Wet Weather Outfall Monitoring Sites— Los Angeles County

Water
Jurisdiction Drain Name Size Shape Material Lat Lon

Body

N Fork BI 0531 - U2
Reinforced

Coyote County Line B-       36"       Round
Conc. Pipe

33. 921058   - 118.036397
Creek S. Whittier

N Fork PD 2425
Square or Reinforced

Coyote County Sorenson 36"     
Rectangle Conc. Box

33. 936115   - 118. 036951

Creek Ave Drain

Page F- 10



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 2. 1 BI 0531 — U2 Line B, South Whittier

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

N. Fork
BI 0531 - U2 Line

Coyote County B- S. Whittier
36 inches SW Outfall 33. 921058   - 118. 036397

Creek

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to N. Fork of Coyote Creek
downstream of Leffingwell Rd.

4:
f^

r

X_

a

lirish,     •
Si 0531- U2 Line 8- S Whittier

1-•

0 0. 1 0. 2 0 4Wes
X _.       

r yr;

t  ?vu t°S

iik
s, : AM A.,*   , to. 4-

sc.,'

Legend 4

4  ..    ," Potential Outfall

X
j zs Residential

i.   
y'

7r ;' Commercial Industrial r.,

Open Space
I i q, 1'r

3 e j Agriculture NIL

Page F- 11



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

i.
1 15' a l

3t+' t

y a

alig
1,    

f ji,

may-   

7 1.
7

LeSf\

n9We1 ° r%  
i

Le

G1°1
t

1,

is

ekfincrIP\\
1

7**•,--.,   ,

l'..,‘ ' s -   ,    '''''..'  .  ,,,-., ..,..!:.-

it- ': :.,,,,

s\•

ii

1 i ti,     ,,,,
t-...,","       

t,,

br       /   '     Ri

BI 0531 U2 Line B— S. Whittier Aerial View

Page F- 12



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 2. 2 PD 2425 — Sorenson Ave Drain

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude

Body Member

N. Fork PD 2425-

Coyote County Sorenson Ave 36 inches SW Outfall 33. 936115   - 118. 036951

Creek Drain

General Description:  New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to N. Fork Coyote Creek
downstream of Mills Ave.

C ,      np,
1 w

F.

9

r•.

Itjeoi•

k`   dab
o

di

rtr 41miiSiA7AiiAk

Legend 1t

iti O Potential Outfall s.
s

j-

Residential 1.

Commercial/ Indust' a

all Open Space L.Ws-'1-1
w N.

Agriculture e

Page F- 13



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

111101pkof I
k

0.

v

f,

a

A
r

IF
iii

Al
w

d•

4

141114
4

PD 2425— Sorenson Ave Drain Aerial View

Page F- 14



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 3 CITY OF COVINA POTENTIAL OUTFALL SITES

Table 3. Potential Wet Weather Outfall Monitoring Sites— City of Covina

Water
Jurisdiction Drain Name Size Shape Material Lat Lon

Body

Charter
Reinforced

Oak Covina MTD 0105 36"       Round
Conc. Pipe

34.077646   - 117. 884103

Creek

Charter
Reinforced

Oak Covina BI 0612 60"       Round
Conc. Pipe

34.075697   - 117.887446

Creek 2

Big Reinforced
Dalton

3

Covina BI 1123 81"       Round
Conc. Pipe

34.086451   - 117. 915529

Wash

1. Tributary to Walnut Creek
2. Manhole location

3. Drain eventually discharges to Big Dalton Wash

Page F- 15



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 3. 1 MTD 0105

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Charter
Covina MTD 0105 36 inches SW Outfall 34. 077646   - 117. 884103

Oak Creek

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Charter Oak Creek' a tributary to
Walnut Creek, downstream of Rowland Ave.

t

r

7414`     N
0 000

tea.

MF
ipt3ii • :   , Legend 5.0i   -

0 Potential Outfall
k

Residential k

L.1 s Commercial industrial
a-

n
Open Space mom.

Agriculture x     `
1

Page F- 16



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

I     .  : —-     ..'- I

pr   .4 r''

h_

mss'  t0

1-  t:

a W
s

rt t

w

la

I
t    -  ..

i,       tilLk,
t

y R w

MTD 0105 Aerial View

Page F- 17



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 3. 2 BI 0612

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Charter
Covina BI 0612 60 inches SW Outfall 34. 075697   - 117. 887446

Oak Creek

General Description: New man hole SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Charter Oak Creek' a
tributary to Walnut Creek.

IIIZIIIIIIII.

I
1

i.

I
f

A

Fr
w„

i
I

e M""    0 0075 0. 15 CO

K
D

0

Y

b

ate., fr

Legend 40.4410

a IO
E

Potential Outfall

Residential om_   _
y

Commercial/ Industrial t' ,+ 

Open Space

Agriculture f       .      a

Page F- 18



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

INIWIWINOF

4404000. a.  ;

r

Y 1,

ast II of.

P
m       --      y

1

MTD 0105 Street View

Page F- 19



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 3. 3 BI 1123

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Big Dalton
Covina BI 1223 81 inches SW Outfall 34. 086451   - 117. 915529

Wash

General Description: New man hole SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Big Dalton Wash

414ti cuunry

ix
14,21

Guvena   _

E I

a . 3• 
0 015 Q3 0!

4,,
tom''

aRer+t

tM.   
Legend 1

ii

0 Potential Outfall
i

Residential

Commercial Industrial    '     

A

Open Space p,

Agriculture ta

o

Page F- 20



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

s

4

i
r

a+rn      ?•

a

BI 1223 Street View

Page F- 21



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F-4 CITY OF INDUSTRY POTENTIAL OUTFALL SITES

Table 4. Potential Wet Weather Outfall Monitoring Sites— City of Industry

Water
Jurisdiction Drain Name Size Shape Material Lat Lon

Body

SGR
Industry PD 0198 75"      Round

Reinforced
34.056824   - 118.006203

Reach 3 Conc. Pipe

SGR
Industry

Pellissier PI
48"      Round

Reinforced
34.024104   - 118.03951

Reach 2 Drain Conc. Pipe

SJC
Industry

131 4301 -      
72"      Round

Reinforced
34. 020765   - 117.971385

Reach 1 Industry Conc. Pipe

1. Channel eventually discharges to SGR Reach 2

Page F-22



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 4. 1 PD 0198

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

SGR
Industry PD 1098 75 inches SW Outfall 34. 056824   - 118. 006203

Reach 3

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to SGR Reach 3' just downstream of
the confluence of the San Gabriel River and Walnut Creek.

1

i
8aidwr

4u
Ji

4

YF+

4.

N
N„ o o.     o. 1s 0

t.-  -

3,,_,-.4-t, 7--    

1M 11

CSia

Legend s

Potential Outfall

Residential f— : `  x•'  .=:>   u;,
01 f`

Commercial/ Industrial t

i;,*,   Open Space I
Agriculture

Page F- 23



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

s'

e:rxt
OrlrJ    .
1400r

a

e

10 vg

i        `   , t+ e

t, i

1

It..., '''Ite.'  ,.., --_,...' . .,.      

PD 0198 Aerial View

Page F- 24



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 4. 2 Pellissier PI Drain

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

SGR
Industry Pellissier PI Drian 48 inches SW Outfall 34. 024104    - 118. 03951

Reach 2

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to SGR Reach 2' just downstream of
Peck Rd.

4N r

0 0.05 0. 1 0.2

4

to,
d+,     

Legend s ..       ',

Potential Outfall J    ..

L e~Residential

All.....____
Commercial?Industrial

y

Open Space F'''''L-  

Agriculture

Page F- 25



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F

b    
g

r ....   .  , ,,      

c.

Y

l

rs.„
0.s1(144solit     - ,      f; : /    /  

dy;....  
4,'.,,,

t
5,

Ar.,,,,,' -     -

41)- 

r

Pellissier Place Drain Aerial View

Page F- 26



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 4.3 BI 4301 — Industry
Water Group

Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

SJC Reach
Industry 81 4301 — Industry 72 inches SW Outfall 34. 020765   - 117. 971385

1

General Description:  New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to SJC Reach 1 just downstream of
Turnbull Canyon Rd.

La Pue  ,

y

Al

410cy:::„
aim,/

by

W,

C/,

0 0. 075 0, 15 / 0. 3

M1104

t

a

A'      i  _.
4r*

0  •       I,

Legend 4

1 A
r'

Potential Outfall
f

Residential

Commercial/ Industrial

Open Space

tiAgriculture i"11156-     Nr

Page F- 27



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

5,

0114,0#1j
r

f

7, f,   

r      -

t

NO

4844111/644

BI 4301 - Industry Aerial View

Page F- 28



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 5 CITY OF GLENDORA POTENTIAL OUTFALL SITES
Table 5. Potential Wet Weather Outfall Monitoring Sites— Glendora

Water
Jurisdiction Drain Name Size Shape Material Lat Lon

Body

Big
BI 3701 Reinforced

Dalton Glendora
Line C

60"     Round
Conc. Pipe

34. 128306   - 117. 846414
Wash

Big
BI 0517 Reinforced

Dalton Glendora
Line B

42"     Round
Conc. Pipe

34. 121922   - 117. 864099
Wash

Big BI 0517 Reinforced
Dalton Glendora

Line

0517
75"     Round

Conc. Pipe
34. 117804   - 117. 872865

Wash

Page F- 29



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 5. 1 BI 3701 — Line C

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Big Dalton
Glendora BI 3701 — Line C 60 inches SW Outfall 34. 128306   - 117. 846414

Wash

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Big Dalton Wash just downstream
of East Route 66.

y
r

N

e

Gland.

U

r v,      

E

I.    .'M`„

f
i4 ij

Legend
t

Potential Outfall

Residential

Commercial/ Industrial

MI Open Space
V }    Agriculture

o       ,    °       

of

sis
L--6.0.. .

4
Iii

I i

r

vim,  7-     ,,,. 
s.,  -,

li"

t

5` l

e

Page F- 30



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

i„,

si

7444446. 111. 1: 

r;raFr)]  i 1 1 1 1 I i
67,

1A

a

r

PIlii50    'illr:
w

Ie"    t  :     y;»

s

i atII.   

4

IS

BI 3701 — Line C Aerial View

Page F- 31



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 5. 2 BI 0517 — Line B

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Big Dalton
Glendora BI 0517- Line B 42 inches SW Outfall 34. 121922   - 117. 864099

Wash

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Big Dalton Wash just downstream
of Glendora Ave.

Legend

Potential Outfall

Residential

Commercial/ Industrial

iln Open Space
Agriculture

i o
4

ilk
4.  '

z

a tom

81 0517- Line Et r'
T

1 0 005 0. 1 as ttRmotes 4

Page F- 32



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

r

I
jail;

X"

r i1I

At

Ile

s,    

T.

i      .    • er,

4i
w

el it imomia'

io ii

3 iiiiir--:

BI 0517- Line B Aerial View

Page F- 33



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 5. 3 BI 0517 — Line A

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Big Dalton
Glendora BI 0517- Line A 75 inches SW Outfall 34. 117804   - 117. 872865

Wash

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Big Dalton Wash just downstream
of Grand Ave.

T

L-

Legend

Potential Outfall

Residential

Commercial/ Industrial

I Open Space

Agriculture

r.

co

7

BI 0517- L1neA

0 0.075 alb 0 3       , 
4....  10).„ ,1M ass    .,.     -.-       

va

Page F- 34



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

i
r,

t44
I

r

w.

1

8, 400 33
f

i

rs4a. ' ' '     

U

P

x

T

r 0„ t

t t i et

BI 0517— Line A Aerial View

Page F- 35



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F-6 CITY OF LA PUENTE POTENTIAL OUTFALL SITES
Table 6. Potential Wet Weather Outfall Monitoring Sites— City of La Puente

Water
Jurisdiction Drain Name Size Shape Material Lat Lon

Body

SJC
La Puente

BI 4801 - La
42"     Round

Reinforced
34. 018048  - 117. 951518Reach 1 Puente, Line A Conc. Pipe

Puente BI 4801 -    Reinforced
Creek2 La Puente

Line B
66"     Round

Conc. Pipe
34. 033704   - 117. 950301

Puente
La Puente RDD 0291 36"     Round

Reinforced
34.033697  - 117. 958337Creek Conc. Pipe

1. Drain eventually discharges to San Jose Creek Reach 1

2. Drain eventually discharges to Puente Creek

Page F-36



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 6. 1 BI 4801 — La Puente, Line A

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

SJC Reach
La Puente

BI 4801 — La
42 inches SW Outfall 34. 018048   - 117. 951518

1 Puente, Line A

General Description: New man hole SW outfall monitoring site discharging to SJC Reach 1.

ye+amX'

J

aA#
V

1 T

N
0 00375 0.075

Who

1%,  dr

E 4

k

Legend

O Potential Outfall

II1

Residential

Commercial/Industrial

liNg Open Space
Agriculture

Page F-37



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

a

s.a

ll

yy

ft. :14018048.-

4 Fr

BI 4801 — La Puente, Line A Street View

Page F- 38



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 6. 2 BI 4801 — Line B

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Puente
La Puente BI 4801 — Line B 66 inches SW Outfall 34. 033704   - 117. 950301Creek

General Description: New man hole SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Puente Creek.

L r

w.--._

a®.

e

c.'

La Pero'   
a

Jl

1-(

t..\
tl Q05 0. 1 0.2

MAW

r
n

r

r

4
to   , r,

d

Legend
r

O Potential Outfall 0;*
Residential t x..

Commercialtlndustnal

R`      ?Open Space

Agriculture

Page F- 39



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

lillwr•

kr.,01iiiiips.      i

0,     
1.--------"\-

N1114

BI 4801 — Line B Street View

Page F- 40



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

F- 6. 3 RDD - 0291

Water Group Drain Name Size Site Type Latitude Longitude
Body Member

Puente
La Puente RDD 0291 36 inches SW Outfall 34. 033697   - 117. 958337Creek

General Description: New SW outfall monitoring site discharging to Puente Creek just downstream of
Temple Ave.

jj 44
1J

I

li

A MMIN
ii

r'
SAC.  

w

Legend 1-     Q

0 Potential Outfall
Residential i

Commercial/ Industrial I

L Open Space

Agriculture

Page F- 41



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment F

X

1110101,

1

yam

i

i

J       \ 
i

we

I

gar.       

N.

0 Si

y

liN4

i    -

RDD 0291 Street View

Page F-42



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment G

Attachment G

CIMP Participation by City of South El Monte

Page G- 1



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment G

The City of South El Monte ( City) is located in the Los Angeles River ( LAR) and San Gabriel
River( SGR) Watershed Management Areas ( WMAs), with the City located within the Alhambra
Wash Hydrologic Unit Code- 12 ( HUC- 12) of the LAR WMA ( as shown in Figure G- 1.) In a

letter addressed to the Executive Officer of the Regional Board, dated February 26, 2015, the
City committed to joining the Upper Los Angeles River Group' s EWMP and the CIMPs for both
Upper Los Angeles River Groups and USGR EWMP Group for compliance with the MS4
Permit. The members of the USGR EWMP Group have agreed to include the City in the Revised
CIMP and will be entering into a Memorandum of Understanding with the City for the
implementation of the CIMP.

The City encompasses a total of 1, 824 acres of land area, of which only 231 acres or 13% is

within the SGR WMA. The portion that is tributary to the SGR WMA constitutes about 0. 3% of

the USGR EWMP area( see CIMP Table 1- 1), and the MS4 is conveyed by a single storm drain
to Outfall SGR-059. The City' s land uses are provided in Table G- 1.

Table G- 1. City of South El Monte Land Use in San Gabriel River Watershed

Residential Commercial/ Industrial Open Space Agriculture

Area( Sq Mi)  0. 14 0. 20 0. 01 0. 02

Percent of Area 40%    55%     1%       5%

Outfall SGR-059 discharges into SGR Reach 3, and is included in the non- stormwater outfall

screening and monitoring program. LTA, TMDL, and stormwater outfall monitoring data from
other members in the EWMP Group will be considered in assessing whether the City' s MS4 may
be causing or contributing to observed exceedances of Water Quality Objectives.

Page G- 2



USGR EWMP GROUP- Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program Attachment G

Figure G- 1

Portion of South El Monte in the San Gabriel River Watershed Management Area

APP

a.
3s

1,;  .
i'

yp
w    Syr

LOS ANGELES RIVER fie
WATERSHED i gf»     . eye;`.:

t . s.

MANAGEMENT AREA
4r 4

4 t

i
tr

SAN GABRIEL RIVER

WATERSHED

MANAGEMENT

s• N
1

1

1)\

0 

11111•

Legend

Outfall
4.

San Gabriel River

Storm Drain

Watershed Management Area Boundary
somas

City of South El Monte

R- 059 Sourc Unincorporated Area
USDA

ate,,..      User -   •

Page G- 3



4,       `

O
m o

0 0 0
C 13 0

0
a

C  +•

C
U

ma
a

a

a
0 ra

u v O
Iii

0 0 IL1

a E M         

inI

O
c I aP 0 0 c c ti

T
V i a a a`  a`  4

0

o a w

0 O
v

6;    Q '       Ui L f
L.9 C7 p

e..    U a   <       i

o C 17)   j

rn j   -la a v a y

pi
p`  u 2 2 cn C7 6 a 1

C
j U U Qrcn S O m m

O

E i 4
a

c      .,

18
a v
aal a.   a  , Ln-1

m o

a 41U
ri

CD o.  ò 0

0 E
G1 E
In

h1 oI

0 VI4o r,,I iii!

O

E

c I a

cEI c

i o aci aci aci CZ
OM

1 ~'       C C C
4

L L LC

C C C

u p!       W W W E     ;

Z
a

c IE1 1 Z

4g p   •-   Ni M Cr Ln lc.   1,..   : 8

Ci a u u u u u u u acri

1! 7

O

rj o J J J J J J J o V       ,
L.       i

N
Z g 1 L.1. 1.1U- W

44

V

Ln cn I d Z
I

Ce

01 ai
O w

To   ® w     =+     a   - i ry cn Tr ul a1 E I V
I Q m   -

in
C

0 0 0 0 0 a)  a

c c ar u u
a E N

a.       j
111

V F•   O O 0 0 0 U tL V v.'       11 Q•   —

v
pad 13    $    V H:

Jrn
c U

ric,
o

u m 5 a

t
1



of Co`

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE June 2, 2015 ITEM NO. CC 8

STAFF SOURCE Siobhan Foster, Public Works Director

ITEM TITLE Change Orders for Project T-0814B,  Pedestrian and Metrolink

Station Improvements

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

1)  Approve Change Order Nos. 3, 6, 7,  10,  12,  13, and 14 for Project T-0814B Metrolink

Station Improvements increasing the construction contract by a total of$44,546; and
2)  Authorize the City Manager or her designee to execute the approved change orders.

FISCAL IMPACT

Approval of Change Order Nos. 3, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13, and 14 will increase the construction contract

by a total of$44,546.  The cumulative effect of these change orders and the deductive changes

orders totaling $49, 199 previously approved by the City Council on May 5, 2015, the contract
budget totals $ 1, 418,338 a decrease of $4,653 from the original project budget of $1, 422,991.

Project funding is available in the Department of Public Works budget ( account 4300-4350-
55200).

BACKGROUND

On October 7, 2014, the City Council awarded a $ 1, 422,991 construction contract to Hillcrest

Contracting for Project T-0814B, Metrolink Station Improvements.   At the time of contract

award, the Department of Public Works did not request approval of a project contingency,
necessitating City Council consideration of project change order requests at this time. As of May
20, 2015, the City Engineer has reviewed the following change orders for completeness and
accuracy as to the materials and labor included:

Change Order No. 6:   Power relocation was required for the replacement of an aged

irrigation controller on Front Street.  The change in contract cost due to Change Order# 1

is an increase of$ 1, 533 to the contract cost.

Change Order No. 7:  The existing irrigation controller on Front Street did not have the
capability to read flow sensor data and meet current water conservation standards.
Therefore, the installation of a new irrigation controller on Front Street was indicated; an

increase of$3, 536 to the contract cost.

Change Order No. 10:   Project plans showed the point of irrigation connection on the

westerly end of the Metrolink parking lot, but it was determined after field investigation
to be located on the easterly end. Therefore, additional conductors and conduit were



required for the flow sensor and master valve to a new point of connection; an increase of

1, 862 to the contract cost.

Change Order No.  12:   During construction, conduits were discovered running in the
Metrolink parking lot for the Bikestation that were not shown on the project plans.  It was
necessary to lower the existing conduits, remove existing pull boxes, and install a traffic
rated pull box to bring the area to grade; an increase of$ 3, 451 in the contract cost.
Change Order No. 13:  This change order is related to change order # 10, in which the

plans erroneously showed the point of irrigation connection on the west end of the
parking lot instead of the east end. An additional water service line was needed for a new
point of connection; an increase of$ 789 to the contract cost.

Change Order No. 14: Quantities were underestimated in design on Bid Item No. 4 for

concrete removals and hauling resulting in additional concrete removals in a quantity
above 125% of the original design specifications.  The additional removals completed at

time and material cost were deemed to be paid as extra work; an increase of$20,646 to

the contract cost.

As design inaccuracies/deficiencies may have contributed to the Change Orders, the Department
of Public Works will be consulting with the City Attorney as to appropriate next steps, if any.

Additionally,  the Department of Public Works is resubmitting Change Order No.  3 for

reconsideration by the City Council to reflect the correct amount of the additive work completed.
On May 5, 2015, the City Council approved Change Order No. 3 in the amount of$ 14, 153.  The

correct amount of the Change Order No.  13 is  $ 12, 729,  a reduction of $ 1, 424 from the

previously approved amount.

Change Order No. 3: Improvements to Front Street entry to Metrolink Parking Structure
not included in project plans; asphalt overlay of Front Street add brick pavers and
additional concrete grinding; increase of$ 12, 729 to contract cost.

The Department of Public Works returned Change Order No. 11 to the contractor for additional

information and subsequent review by the City Engineer and will be brought forward for City
Council consideration, if necessary, at a future date.  The City Council approved Change Orders
Nos. 8 and 9 on May 5, 2015.

EXHIBITS

A.  Change Order Nos. 3, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13, and 14

Respectfully submitte

I/

Siobhan Foster/ Public Works Director

Public Works Department



of co,,,

CITY OF COVINA

C,,,, 4. 125 East College Street •  Covina, California 91723- 2199

Alf'       www.covinaca.gov

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Engineering 626) 384-5490 FAX( 626) 384-5479

CHANGE ORDER

Change Order No. 3

DATE:    April 15, 2015

PROJECT NO.  T- 0814B Federal Project No. HPLUL-5118(016)

CONTRACT:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Improvements Project

CONTRACTOR:  Hillcrest Contracting, Incorporated.

Revised- Remove and Replace Front Street Entry with 12" PCC Band.

1.   Remove & Replace Front Street Entry- Pavers, Grind,

And Asphalt Overlay not included.
Total increase = $ 14, 153.60

2.  Adding 12" PCC Band, eliminate 75SF of line item 39-
Brick pavers ( basket weave pattern) at $19/ sf

Total decrease=   $ 1, 425.00

3.  Time Extension: 3 days

4.  Change in contract cost: Increase of$ 12, 728.60

Submitted by f-7 Date L(/ i
Title:   City n:    er

i
Accepted by:   Date 1( 21110

Title:   Contr. tor,   it rest   • ntacting, Inc.

Approved by:       _ . ' !./     sA Date 5760)--
Title:    Interim Public Works' Director

The City of Covina provides responsive municipal services and manages
public resources to enhance the quality of life for our community.



Laura Lara

From:   jason @hillcrestcontracting.com
Sent:     Wednesday, March 25, 2015 9:06 AM
To:       z.Kamran Saber; Kamran Saber

Cc: Laura Lara

Subject: COR# 003 REVISED - Remove & Replace Front St. Entry w/ 12" PCC Band - Pavers, Grind

and Ashalt Overlay NOT Included
Attachments:  D00032515.pdf

Kamran,

COR# 003 REVISED- Remove& Replace Front St. Entry w/ 12" PCC Band - Pavers, Grind and Ashalt Overlay NOT
Included. By adding the 12" PCC band you are eliminating approximately 75 SF x$ 19.00=$ 1, 425 savings on Item 39—

Brick Pavers( Basketweave Pattern).

Thank you,

Jason G. Jones

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.
Office: 951-273- 9600 x- 120

Mobile: 951-283- 5601

1k
HILLCREST

1



HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.
License No. 471664

March 25, 2015

City of Covina
125 East College St.

Covina, CA 91723

PH: 626-384-5483

ATT Laura Lara

REF Pedestrian & Metrolink Station Improvements

Project No. T-0814B

REVISED COR#003- Remove & Replace Front St. Entry w/12" PCC Band - Pavers,

RE:  Grind and Asphalt Overlay Not Included

Dear Laura,

We are requesting a change order for the additional work as follows:
DATE

Item PERFO DESCRIPTION QTY U/ M UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
RMED

Remove& Replace Front St. Entry w/12"
1 N/A PCC Band- Pavers, Grind and Ashalt 1 LS    $ 14, 153.60   $     14, 153. 60

Overlay NOT Included

TOTAL THIS REQUEST:  $     14, 153.60

If you have any questions, please contact me at (951) 273 9600 Ext. 120

s       . Jones

illcr Contracting, Inc.
JOB: 2618



Details Report For: PEDESTRIAN- METROLINK STATIONIMP. P

Hillcrest Contracting JERRY BLAIR 3/25/2015

Ph.   Item Description

X 1 REMOVE& REPLACE FRONT Quantity U/M Unit Cost Total Cost Margin%    Unit Pricet Total Price

ST ENTRY- NO PAVERS 1. 00 LS 12,000. 54 12,000.54 17. 94 14, 153.60    $ 14, 153. 60

Activity REMOVE AC& BRICK PAVERS Crew REMOVE AC Activity Qty 1. 00 LS

Rate:  Days:   
TotalCost: 2,625.49

Day:  1. 00 LS 650 SF/ 19 Labor 1. 00

Hour:  0. 10 LS Equipment 1. 00 UnitCost: 2,625.490

Actual:  1. 00

Labor Quantity Hours Days Unit Cost

GENFO GENERAL FOREMAN G 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 77.70 310.81

LAB 1 LABORER GROUP 1 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 58.67 234.68

Total 545.49

Equipment Quantity Hours Days Unit Cost

TRPU PICKUP TRUCK 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 20.00 80.00

BKHOE BACKHOE 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 135.00 540.00

SAW SAW CUT 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 125. 00 500. 00

Total 1, 120.00

Trucks Quantity Unit Cost

TRKSU SUPER 10 DUMP TRUC 8.00   $ 90.00 720.00

Total 720.00

Other Quantity Unit Cost

DMP DUMP FEE- TRASH 3.00   $ 80. 00 240. 00

Total 240.00

Act Note:

Page 1 of 4



Details Report For: PEDESTRIAN- METROLINK STATIONIMP. P

Hillcrest Contracting JERRY BLAIR 3/25/2015

Ph.   Item Description

X 1 REMOVE& REPLACE FRONT Quantio,  UM Unit Cost Total Cost Margin%    UnitPricet Total Price

ST ENTRY- NO PAVERS 1. 00 LS 12, 000.54 12,000.54 17.94 14,153. 60    $ 14,153.60

Activity SKIPLOADER GRADING Crew GRADING SKIPLOADER CR Activity Qty 1. 00 LS

Rate:  la's'   
TotalCost: 1, 764.29

Day:  1. 00 LS 650 SF Labor 1. 00

UnitCOSt: 1, 764.290
Hour: 0.30 LS Equipment 1. 00

Actual:  1. 00

Labor Quantity Hours Days Unit Cost

GENFO GENERAL FOREMAN G 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 77. 70 310.81

LAB 1 LABORER GROUP 1 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 58.67 234.68

LGC GUINEA CHASER LABO 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 59.54 238. 15

Total 783.64

Equipment Quantity Hours Days Unit Cost

TRPU PICKUP TRUCK 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 20.00 80.00

SKIP SKIPLOADER 1. 00 4. 00 HR 1. 00 140. 00 560.00

TRW20 WATER TRUCK 2000 B 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 50. 00 200.00

RLPUP ROLLER PUP/ Fuel 1. 00 4.00 HR 1. 00 35.00 140. 00

Total 980.00

Material Quantity Unit Cost

MSC G HUBS, PAINT, STRING 650.00     $ 0.00 0.65

Total 0.65

Other Quantity Unit Cost

EQM 1 EQUIPMENT MOVE RA 0.00  $ 300.00 0.00

Total 0.00

Act Note:

Page 2 of 4



Details Report For: PEDESTRIAN- METROLINK STATIONIMP. P

Hillcrest Contracting JERRY BLAIR 3/25/2015

Ph.   Item Description

X 1 REMOVE& REPLACE FRONT Quantity U/M Unit Cost Total Cost Margin%    Unit Pricer Total Price

ST ENTRY- NO PAVERS 1. 00 LS 12,000.54 12,000.54 17.94 14, 153.60    $ 14,153.60

Activity FORM& POUR 6" PCC SUB-SLA Crew 8 MEN CONCRETE CREW Activity Qty 1. 00 LS

Rate:  Days'   
TotalCost: 6, 805.67

Day:  1. 00 LS 18 CY Labor 1. 00

Hour:  0. 10 LS Equipment 1. 00 UnitCost: 6, 805.670

Actual:  1. 00

Labor Quantity Hours Days Unit Cost

4MPCC FOREMAN CONCRETE 1. 00 8.00 HR 1. 00 78.49 627. 92

MAS CEMENT MASON 4.00 8.00 HR 1. 00 63.82 2,042.24

TEAMS TEAMSTER III 1. 50 8.00 HR 1. 00 62.00 743. 96

LABPC LABOR CONCRETE W 2.00 8.00 HR 1. 00 58.67 938. 70

Total 4,352.82

Equipment Quantity Hours Days Unit Cost

TRPU PICKUP TRUCK 1. 00 8.00 HR 1. 00 20.00 160.00

TRFOR FORM TRUCK 1. 00 8. 00 HR 1. 00 50.00 400. 00

Total 560.00

Material Quantity Unit Cost

CONLO CONLOD- NATIONAL R 2.00   $ 54.00 108. 00

MISCO2 MISC CONCRETE SUP 18.00     $ 2. 50 45.00

REBR2  # 4 REBAR 20' LONG+   105. 00     $ 5. 50 577.50

CON6S CON6SK- NATIONAL R 15.00   $ 77.49 1, 162. 35

Total 1, 892.85

Act Note:

Page 3 of 4



Details Report For: PEDESTRIAN- METROLINK STATIONIMP. P

Hillcrest Contracting JERRY BLAIR 3/25/2015

Piz.   Item Description

X 1 REMOVE& REPLACE FRONT Quantity U/M Unit Cost Total Cost Margin%    Unit Pricet Total Price

ST ENTRY- NO PAVERS 1. 00 LS 12,000.54 12,000.54 17.94 14, 153. 60    $ 14,153.60

Activity SLOT PATCH Crew PAVING CREW HAND WOR Activity Qty 1. 00 LS

Rate'  Days:   
TotalCost:   805.09

Day:  1. 00 LS Labor 1. 00

Hour:  0. 50 LS Equipment 1. 00 UnitCost:   805.090

Actual:  1. 00

Labor Quantity Hours Days Unit Cost

GENFO GENERAL FOREMAN G 1. 00 2.00 HR 1. 00 77.70 155.41

LAB 1 LABORER GROUP 1 2.00 2.00 HR 1. 00 58.67 234.68

Total 390.09

Equipment Quantity Hours Days Unit Cost

TRPU PICKUP TRUCK 1. 00 2.00 HR 1. 00 20.00 40.00

TRCRE CREW TRUCK 1. 00 2.00 HR 1. 00 40.00 80.00

RLPUP ROLLER PUP/ Fuel 1. 00 2. 00 HR 1. 00 35.00 70.00

Total 190.00

Material Quantity Unit Cost

AC AC- ALL AMERICAN AS 4.00   $ 55.50 222.00

ACENV ACENVR- ALL AMERIC 1. 00     $ 3. 00 3.00

Total 225.00

Act Note:

Item Note:

Cost     % MU Price

Labor

Equip

Equip.Rent

Material

jTransportation

Sub/Service

Other

Bond

TotalBid

Total Margin

Page 4 of 4



Laura Lara

From:    Kamran Saber < KSaber @jmdiaz.com>

Sent:     Friday, April 03, 2015 10:05 AM
To:       jason @hillcrestcontracting.com; Kamran Saber
Cc: Laura Lara; Juan Diaz; Ron Hadloc; tolentinoleo@gmail.com

Subject: RE: COR# 003 - Remove & Replace Front St. Entry

Approved as submitted.

Thank you

Kamran Saber, PE I Director, Transportation Services
JMDiaz, Inc. (JMD)

JMD

Los Angeles County

18645 East Gale Avenue I Suite 212 I City of Industry, CA 91748- 1363
626) 820- 1137 Tel I( 626) 820- 1136 Fax

Orange County

2400 East Katella Avenue I Suite 800 I Anaheim, CA 92806
714) 627-2447 Tel I( 714) 627- 2401 Fax

www.jmdiaz.com

From: jason @hillcrestcontracting.com [ mailto:jason @hillcrestcontracting.com]
Sent: Friday, April 03, 2015 8: 39 AM
To: Kamran Saber; Kamran Saber Covina ( KSaber@covinaca.gov) ( KSaber@covinaca. gov)

Cc: Laura Lara ( Ilara( icovinaca.gov)

Subject: FW: COR # 003 - Remove& Replace Front St. Entry

attached

Thank you,

Jason G. Jones

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.
Office: 951- 273- 9600 x- 120

Mobile: 951-283- 5601

HI LLCREST

From: jason@hillcrestcontracting. com
Sent: Tuesday, March 17, 2015 2: 30 PM
To: Kamran Saber( KSaber@jmdiaz. com); Ilara@covinaca.gov

Subject: FW: COR # 003 - Remove& Replace Front St. Entry

1



Laura & Kamran,

Attached is COR# 003- Remove & Replace Front St. Entry which was sent to Jack yesterday. Thank you.

Thank you,

Jason G. Jones

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.
Office: 951-273- 9600 x- 120

Mobile: 951-283- 5601

IL
HILLCREST

From: jason@hillcrestcontracting. com
Sent: Monday, March 16, 2015 4: 43 PM
To: Jack Shah; jackshah21 @gmail. com

Cc: Jean@hillcrestcontracting. com
Subject: COR # 003 - Remove& Replace Front St. Entry

Jack,

COR# 003— Remove& Replace Front St. Entry is attached for your review. This price is based on the revised Front St.

entry plan received from your office on 3/ 11/ 15. Items included are remove existing, grading, 9" PCC banding, 6" PCC
sub- slab, and AC slot patch. The brick pavers, asphalt grinding and asphalt overlay are not included as they would be
billed per their specific contract items.

Thank you,

Jason G. Jones

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.
Office: 951- 273- 9600 x- 120

Mobile: 951- 283- 5601

IF
HILLCREST

2



Laura Lara

From:    Kamran Saber

Sent:     Thursday, April 16, 2015 9:41 AM
To:       jason @hillcrestcontracting. com; z.Kamran Saber
Cc: Laura Lara; Ron Hadloc; jean @hillcrestcontracting.com; tolentinoleo @gmail.com
Subject: RE: Additional Working Day Request Due to Added Front St. Driveway

Approved.

Lauran and Ron,

Please make a note of that.

Thank you

Kamran Saber, PE

City Engineer
ksaber@covinaca.gov

626) 384-5491

From: jason@hillcrestcontracting. com [ mailto jason@hillcrestcontracting. com]
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2015 9: 18 AM
To: Kamran Saber; z. Kamran Saber

Cc: Laura Lara; Ron Hadloc; jean@hillcrestcontracting. com
Subject: Additional Working Day Request Due to Added Front St. Driveway

Please find our request for Additional Working Day Due to Added Front St. Driveway attached.

Thank you,

Jason G. Jones

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.
Office: 951-273- 9600 x- 120

Mobile: 951- 283- 5601

It
HILLCREST

1



HILLCREST CONTRACTING

General Engineering Contractors License # 471664A

April 16, 2015

Mr. Kamran Sabar

City Engineer
City of Covina
125 E. College St.

Covina, CA 91723

RE: Request for Additional Working Days Due to Addition of Front St.
Driveway - Covina Pedestrian and Metrolink Improvements

Dear Mr. Sabar:

Hillcrest Contracting requests that an additional 3 working days be added to the
contract project timeline due to addition of the Front St. driveway.

Please call me at 951- 283-5601 if you are need of any additional information
relating to this letter.

Sin/

aso JJones

Project anager

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.

P.O. Box 1898 • Corona, California, 92878- 1898 •( 951) 273- 9600 * FAX( 951) 273- 9608



of cop,
6(:,-;,,..„..„:„     CITY OF COVINA

C,    .._. 1Q'
125 East College Street •  Covina, California 91723- 2199

L     'IFS www.covinaca.gov

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Engineering 626) 384-5490 FAX( 626) 384-5479

CHANGE ORDER

Change Order No. 6

DATE:    April 15, 2015

PROJECT NO.  T-08148 Federal Project No. HPLUL- 5118(016)

CONTRACT:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Improvements Project

CONTRACTOR:  Hillcrest Contracting, Incorporated.

Power relocation to the irrigation controller cabinet.

1.   Furnish and install conduit and extend to new

irrigation controller location.

Total increase = $ 1, 532.64

2.  Time Extension: 3 days

3.  Change in contract ost: Increase of$ 1, 532. 64

Submitted by     '-      A,       ,/    A..  _ Date q—i. - / 3.--

Title:   Cit Engineel

SS Z    SAccepted by:       Date

Title:   Contrac  _t, Ili  ' rest Contacting, Inc.

Approved by:  Date

Title:    Public Works Director

The City of Covina provides responsive municipal services and manages
public resources to enhance the quality of life for our community.



Laura Lara

From:    Kamran Saber < KSaber@jmdiaz.com>

Sent:    Wednesday, April 15, 2015 3: 52 PM
To:       jean @hillcrestcontracting.com; Kamran Saber; Laura Lara
Cc:       jason@ hillcrestcontracting. com; Juan Diaz
Subject: RE:# 2618 Covina COR# 006 &# 007

Attachments:  D00041515- 005.pdf

Hi Jason,

Change Order# 6: Accepted as submitted

Change Order# 7: I need to see material (vendor' s price quote) and labor cost breakdown.

Thank you

Kamran Saber, PE Director, Transportation Services

JMDiaz, Inc. (JMD)

JMD

Los Angeles County

18645 East Gale Avenue I Suite 212 i City of Industry, CA 91748- 1363
626) 820- 1137 Tel 1( 626) 820- 1136 Fax

Orange County

2400 East Katella Avenue I Suite 800 I Anaheim, CA 92806
714) 627-2447 Tel 1( 714) 627-2401 Fax

www.jmdiaz.com

From: jean@hillcrestcontracting. com [ mailto:jean @hillcrestcontracting. com]
Sent: Wednesday, April 15, 2015 3: 10 PM
To: Kamran Saber; ' llara@covinaca. gov'; Kamran Saber

Cc: jason @hillcrestcontracting. com
Subject: # 2618 Covina COR # 006 & # 007

Kamran,

Attached are two change order requests for installing the irrigation controller on Front St. COR# 006 is the electrical contractor
portion for electrical power, COR# 007 is for the landscaper to install the controller. We need your review and approval to proceed
with the controller installation.

Thank you,

Jean Hellwtavt

HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.

1467 Circle City Dr., Corona, CA 92879
P-( 951) 273- 9600x133/ F-( 951) 273- 9608

It
H[ LLCREST

Lu Y. vA 5 euu.. NC`.

1



HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.
License No. 471684

April 10, 2015

City of Covina
125 East College St.
Covina, CA 91723

PH:     626-384- 5483

ATTN: Laura Lara

REF:   Pedestrian & Metrolink Station Improvements

Project No. T-0814B

RE:     COR#006 - Power relocation to the Irrigation Controller Cabinet

Dear Laura,

We are requesting a change order for the additional work as follows:

Item
DATE DESCRIPTION QTY U/ M UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

PERFORMED

1 N/A
Furnish& Install conduit& extend to new

1 LS    $    1, 488.00  $   1, 488.00
Irrigation Controller location

MU N/A Mark-up 3%   1 LS    $       44.64  $      44.64

TOTAL THIS REQUEST: $   1, 532.64-

If you have any questions, please contact me at ( 951) 273 9600 Ext. 120

pert",nes

ntracting, Inc.
JOB:  2618



1ill Aliatill      --

ExEciNIC„  INC

Lk# 822450, C10

CCO QUOTATION

Project Description:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Station

City Project No T-0814B

Owner/Contact:     City of Covina

Bid Date:      April 9, 2015

1 w..p:;.;:w:,,,,,,E.,,,. vostoit.4: 4-.4,tft.,-...,N.-3 ;.. ti;,•,:i5::...,:-;, ;;;V-i;t4:-.V..
tz.-,:..;
44,,.:$23

mt,--igoiterta%3;11-tralf*AerAiig:Aiiimrki irc temoilow,:l.tyiittolifiam
1

1 Furnish& Install( 20') 1" pvc sch 40 conduit,

100') it 10 awg, intercept existing conduit and
extend to new Irrigation Controller location,

Terminate and splice.  1 Ls       $ 1, 488. 00 1, 488. 00

Grand Total  $      1, 488.00

EXCLUSIONS: Bond, survey, permits and fees, inspection fees, engineering fees, utility fees,
railroad insurance and training, signage& striping.

Prepared by: Kevin Moore

4938 E. La Palma Ave.  Anaheim, CA 92807- Tel( 714) 693- 4837, Fax( 714) 693- 4838
Mobile#( 714) 713-2409

SBE Cert# 59314

1



of cok

CITY OF COVINA
125 East College Street •  Covina, California 91723- 2199

AIF• V www.covinaca.gov

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Engineering 626) 384-5490 FAX( 626) 384-5479

CHANGE ORDER

Change Order No. 7

DATE:    April 22, 2015

PROJECT NO.  T-08146 Federal Project No. HPLUL-5118(016)

CONTRACT:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Improvements Project

CONTRACTOR:  Hillcrest Contracting, Incorporated.

Install New Irrigation Controller at front Street Location

1.   Rainbird ESP12LXMEF, Rainbird ET Manager Cartridge,

Rainbird rain sensor RSD- CEX, Rainbird stainless steel

cabinet and pedestal.

Total increase = $ 3,535.99

2.  Time Extension: None.

3.  Change in contract cost: Increase of$ 3, 535. 99

22-/ S—
Submitted by      ,       //. 1/      Date 7

Title:   City Engi  - er

Accepted by:  Date41A
Title:   Conte tor,    Ilfest Contacting, Inc.

Approved by:  Date

Title:    Public Works Director

The City of Covina provides responsive municipal services and manages
public resources to enhance the quality of life for our community.



Laura Lara

From:    Kamran Saber

Sent:     Wednesday, April 22, 2015 8: 16 AM
To:       jean @hillcrestcontracting.com; z. Kamran Saber; Laura Lara
Cc:       jason @hillcrestcontracting. com; tolentinoleo @gmail. com
Subject: RE: Covina Metrolink Revised COR# 007

Jean,

It is accepted as submitted.

Thank you

Kamran Saber, PE

City Engineer
ksaber @covinaca.gov

626) 384-5491

From: jean@hillcrestcontracting. com [ mailto:jean@hillcrestcontracting. com]
Sent: Wednesday, April 22, 2015 8: 08 AM
To: Kamran Saber; z. Kamran Saber; Laura Lara

Cc: jason@hillcrestcontracting. com
Subject: Covina Metrolink Revised COR# 007

Kamran,

Attached is our Revised COR# 007— Install New Irrigation Controller at Front St. location which has a price reduction for your review.

Thank you,

Jeavt Hellman

HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.

1467 Circle City Dr., Corona, CA 92879
P-( 951) 273- 9600x133/ F-( 951) 273-9608

IL
HILLCREST

1



HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.
License No. 471664

April 15, 2015 Revised 4/ 21/ 2015

City of Covina
125 East College St.
Covina, CA 91723

PH:     626-384-5483

ATTN: Laura Lara

REF:   Pedestrian & Metrolink Station Improvements
Project No. T-0814B

RE:     REVISED COR#007- Install New Irrigation Controller at Front St. location

Dear Laura,

We are requesting a change order for the additional work as follows:

Item
DATE

DESCRIPTION QTY U/ M UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
PERFORMED

Rainbird ESP12LXMEF, Rainbird ET

1 N/A Manager Cartridge, Rainbird rain sensor& 1 LS    $    3,433.00   $   3,433.00

Rainbird stainless steel cabinet& pedestal

MU N/A Mark- up 3%   1 LS    $      102. 99   $     102.99

TOTAL THIS REQUEST:  $   3, 535.99

If you have any questions, please contact me at( 951) 273 9600 Ext. 120

Si erely,

sons ones

ilicre t ontracting, Inc.
JOB:  2618



BLUE
DIAN OND

LANDSCAPE INC .

REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER <>

R.C.O: 002

April 20, 2015

HILLCREST CONSTRUCTION

ATTN.: JASON G. JONES

1467 CIRCLE CITY DR.

CORONA, CA

T-( 951) 273- 9600

F-( 951) 273-9608

JOB NAME:     PEDESTRIAN AND METROLINK STATION IMPROVEMENTS

LOCATION:     COVINA, CA

REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER: REMOVAL AND TURNOVER SALVAGABLE IRRIGATION TO CITY

PER LINE ITEM NO: 66

BASE BID:

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY UIM PRICE EXTENSION

1 RAINBIRDESPI2LXMEF, RAINBIRD ET MANAGER,

CARTRIDGE, RAINBIRD RAIN SENSOR AND

STAINLESS STELL CABINET LS 1 2,052. 00 2, 052.00

2 RAINBIRD STAINLESS STEEL ENCLOSURE

PEDESTAL LS 1 1, 381. 00 1, 381. 00

TOTAL 3,433. 00

NOTES:

1 ELECTRICAL HOOK UP BY OTHERS

1240 E. ONTARIO AVE., SUITE 102 CORONA, CA 92881* T.951.278.3801* F.951. 278.3816



REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER <>

GEN RAL CONDITIONS:
1. Proposal based on plans and specifications by:

Architect: LAWRENCE R. MOSS AND ASSOCIATES

Plan Sheets: 15 OF 32 THRU 28 OF 32

Plans Dated: 08/05/ 14

Specifications: PER CONSTRUCTION PROVISIONS

Addendums: 1

2. Bid is based on a five-day work week( Mon. through Fri.), 8 hour day maximum. All requested overtime work
to be billed as extra. And w/ prior consent and authorization from the owner/client.

3. Contractor shall hold subcontractor harmless for damaged utility lines which are not buried to the depth specified
by the utility companies. In addition, there will be an extra charge for all drain lines or pipes required to be placed
deeper than shown on the plans.

4. Any rock, concrete or other hard surfaces that cannot be excavated or trenched through using normal methods
i. e backhoe with excavation bucket, trencher with digging cups) will be deemed as an addition to contract and

and will be performed on time and material after written approval by owner or owner's representative.

5. All costs for obtaining, transporting and utilization of water for construction, hydroseeding or irrigation are ( Not inc.)
6. Grade to be received by Blue Diamond Landscape, Inc. at -. 10' of finish grade, and in a weed-free condition

unless noted otherwise. ( No rough grading& import/ export of soil included)
7. Blue Diamond Landscape will not be responsible for damage due to poor soil conditions, rodents, vandalism,

theft and/or' Acts of God'

8. Water/electric meters, hot taps, water costs, permits, power to controllers, and utility costs ( By others)

9. Bid is based on two mobilizations. Any additional mobilizations will be at a cost of$ 1, 250.00 each.
10. Any specimen trees, park furniture, etc. will require a 50% deposit to initiate order.Payment from the

owner/client to Blue Diamond Landscape, Inc. prior to placeing order. Balance to paid at time of delivery.
11. Sleeving to be installed prior to asphalt or concrete. (No saw cutting, patching and boring included)
12. Due to current market trends, pricing for palm trees are good for( 30) days and may be subject to availability.
13. This bid proposal will be considered a part of the contract if Blue Diamond Landscape, Inc. is awarded the

contract. It can either be an exhibit to the contract, or its pertinent points may be added to the contract
14. Our proposal excludes any and all bonds.
15. Hand/ manual watering of plant material due to no water or electrical power to controller will be an add. cost.
16. Payment schedule: Progressive monthly payments for all work completed and accepted. Five ( 5%) percent

retention of progress amount may be held for thirty( 30) days from the date of last invoice. All invoice paid after( 45)
days will be subject to 3% interest thereafter.

17. Should this proposal be used to list us for this project all terms,conditions, exclusions and qualifications

of this proposal are being accepted.

EXCLUSIONS: ( Unless specifically itemized above)
1. Water/electric meters, services and hot taps, power to irrigation controllers, permits, water costs and lighting

2. Concrete, masonry, rough grading, import/export of soil, demolition, clearing, grubbing, SWPP, erosion control.
3. Drainage, downspout connections, coring, boring or saw-cutting, pest control, restoration and or retrofitting,
4. Waterproofing, pottery, site furniture, fencing, overtime and traffic control

KEY NOTES:

1. This proposal is based on State Prey. Wages.

2. If you require a waiver of subrogation add a additional$ 340.00 to the base bid.

3.

4.

Thank you for your consideration. Should you have any questions, please contact us at( 951) 278- 3801.

Respectfully Submitted,

Estimating Department
License:# 799647)

1240 E. ONTARIO AVE., SUITE 102 CORONA, CA 92881. T.951.278.3801* F.951.278.3816



cop!

CITY OF COVINA
Z O

c• e. 125 East College Street •  Covina, California 91723- 2199

9L11,'    www.covinaca.gov

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Engineering 626) 384-5490 FAX( 626) 384- 5479

CHANGE ORDER

Change Order No. 10

DATE:    May 5, 2015
PROJECT NO.  T-08148 Federal Project No. HPLUL-5118(016)

CONTRACT:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Improvements Project

CONTRACTOR: Hillcrest Contracting, Incorporated.

Additional conductors and conduit for Flow Sensor and Master Valve for Relocation of POC

from the west end of the Metrolink Parking lot to the east end.

1.  Additional conductors and conduit for flow sensor and

master valve for relocation of POC from the west end of

the Metrolink Parking lot to the east end.
Total increase = $ 1, 862. 19

2.  Time Extension: None.

3.  Change in contract cost: Increase of$ 1, 862. 19

Submitted by AL.   I Date
5——I

Title:   City ngin_

Accepted by:  DateS/ i‘  ()
Title:   Contra, or, 

Hip
r t Contacting, Inc.

Approved by:  Date

Title:    Public Works Director

The City of Covina provides responsive municipal services and manages
public resources to enhance the quality of life for our community.



Laura Lara

From:    Kamran Saber

Sent:     Tuesday, May 05, 2015 3: 53 PM
To:       jason @hillcrestcontracting.com; z.Kamran Saber
Cc: Laura Lara; Ron Hadloc; jean @hillcrestcontracting.com; Juan Diaz; Kristen Weger; Alex

Gonzalez

Subject: RE: COR# ODQ- Additional Conductors and Conduit for New P. O.C.
V

Accepted as submitted.

Thank you

Kamran Saber, PE

City Engineer
ksaber@covinaca.gov

626) 384-5491

From: jasonOhillcrestcontracting.com [ mailto:jason@ hillcrestcontracting. com]
Sent: Friday, May 01, 2015 9: 36 AM
To: Kamran Saber; z. Kamran Saber

Cc: Laura Lara; Ron Hadloc; jeanOhillcrestcontracting. com
Subject: COR # 009 - Additional Conductors and Conduit for New P. O. C.

Please find COR# 009- Additional Conductors and Conduit for New P. O. C. attached for your review. Thank you.

Thank you,

Jason G. Jones

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.
Office: 951- 273- 9600 x- 120

Mobile: 951-283- 5601

1k
H ILLCREST

1



HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.
License No. 471664

May 2, 2015

City of Covina
125 East College St.

Covina, CA 91723

PH:     626-384-5483

ATTN: Laura Lara

REF:   Pedestrian & Metrolink Station Improvements

Project No. T-0814B

COR#009 - Additional Conductors and Conduit for for Flow Sensor and Master Valve for

RE:     Relocation of P. O.C. form the West End of the Metrolink Parking Lot to the East End

Dear Laura,

We are requesting a change order for the additional work as follows:

DATE
Item

PERFORMED
DESCRIPTION QTY U/ M UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

Additional Conductors and Conduit for for

1 N/A
Flow Sensor and Master Valve for Relocation

1 LS    $    1, 807. 95   $   1, 807.95
of P. O. C. form the West End of the Metrolink

Parking Lot to the East End

MU N/A Mark-up 3%   1 LS    $       54.24   $      54.24

TOTAL THIS REQUEST:  $   1, 862.19

If you have any questions, please contact me at( 951) 273 9600 Ext. 120

Si rel ,

aso     . Jones

Hilicr s Contracting, Inc.
JOB:  2618



BLUE
DIAMOND

LANDSCAPE INC_

REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER <>

R.C.O: 004

May 1, 2015
HILLCREST CONSTRUCTION

ATTN.: JASON G. JONES

1467 CIRCLE CITY DR.

CORONA, CA

T-( 951) 273-9600

F-( 951) 273-9608

JOB NAME:     PEDESTRIAN AND METROLINK STATION IMPROVEMENTS

LOCATION:     COVINA, CA

QUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER: ADDITIONAL CONDUCTORS AND CONDUIT FOR FLOW SENSOR AND MASTS
VALVE FOR RELOCATION OF P. O.C. FROM WEST END OF PARKING LOT TO EAST END

BASE BID:

I DESCRIPTION gia UIM PRICE EXTENSION

1 2 WIRE SHIELDED CABLE WITH 1/ 2" CONDUIT LF 650 0. 98 637.00

2 # 14 DIRECT BURIAL CABLE LF 1, 300 0. 11 143.00

3 PULL BOXES EA 3 34.25 102.75

4 LABOR HR 8 60.65 485.20

5 MIN! EXCAVATOR HR 8 55.00 440.00

TOTAL 1, 807.96

1240 E. ONTARIO AVE., SUITE 102 CORONA, CA 92881* T.951.278.3801* F.951.278.3818



REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER <>

GENERAL CONDITIONS:

1. Proposal based on plans and specifications by:
Architect: LAWRENCE R. MOSS AND ASSOCIATES

Plan Sheets: 15 OF 32 THRU 28 OF 32

Plans Dated: 08/05/14

Specifications: PER CONSTRUCTION PROVISIONS

Addendums: 1

2. Bid is based on a five-day work week( Mon. through Fri.), 8 hour day maximum. All requested overtime work
to be billed as extra. And w/ prior consent and authorization from the owner/client.

3. Contractor shall hold subcontractor harmless for damaged utility lines which are not buried to the depth specified
by the utility companies. In addition, there will be an extra charge for all drain lines or pipes required to be placed
deeper than shown on the plans.

4. Any rock, concrete or other hard surfaces that cannot be excavated or trenched through using normal methods
i. e badkhoe with excavation bucket, trencher with digging cups) will be deemed as an addition to contract and

and will be performed on time and material after written approval by owner or owner' s representative.
5. All costs for obtaining, transporting and utilization of water for construction, hydroseeding or irrigation are( Not inc.)
6. Grade to be received by Blue Diamond Landscape, Inc. at -. 10' of finish grade, and in a weed-free condition

unless noted otherwise.( No rough grading& import/ export of soil included)
7. Blue Diamond Landscape will not be responsible for damage due to poor soil conditions, rodents, vandalism,

theft and/or' Acts of God'

8. Water/electric meters, hot taps, water costs, permits, power to controllers, and utility costs ( By others)
9. Bid is based on two mobilizations. Any additional mobilizations will be at a cost of$ 1, 250.00 each.

10. Any specimen frees, park furniture, etc. will require a 50% deposit to initiate order.Payment from the

owner/dient to Blue Diamond Landscape, Inc. prior to placeing order. Balance to paid at time of delivery.
11. Sleeving to be installed prior to asphalt or concrete. (No saw cutting, patching and boring included)
12. Due to current market trends, pricing for palm trees are good for( 30) days and may be subject to availability.
13. This bid proposal will be considered a part of the contract if Blue Diamond Landscape, Inc. is awarded the

contract It can either be an exhibit to the contract, or its pertinent points may be added to the contract.
14. Our proposal excludes any and all bonds.
15. Hand/manual watering of plant material due to no water or electrical power to controller will be an add. cost.
18. Payment schedule: Progressive monthly payments for all work completed and accepted. Five ( 5%) percent

retention of progress amount may be held for thirty( 30) days from the date of last invoice. All invoice paid after( 45)
days will be subject to 3% interest thereafter.

17. Should this proposal be used to list us for this project all terms,conditions, exdusions and qualifications

of this proposal are being accepted.

EXCLUSIONS:( Unless seeclflcally itemized above)

1. Water/electric meters, services and hot taps, power to irrigation controllers, permits, water costs and lighting
2. Concrete, masonry, rough grading, import/export of soil, demolition, clearing, grubbing, SWPP, erosion control.
3. Drainage, downspout connections, coring, boring or saw-cutting, pest control, restoration and or retrofitting,
4. Waterproofing, pottery, site furniture, fencing, overtime and traffic control

KEY NOTES:

1. This proposal is based on State Prey. Wages.

2. If you require a waiver of subrogation add a additional$ 340.00 to the base bid.
3.

4.

Thank you for your consideration. Should you have any questions, please contact us at( 951) 278-3801.

Respectfully Submitted,

Estimating Department
License:# 799847)

1240 E. ONTARIO AVE., SUITE 102 CORONA, CA 92881" T.951. 278.3801* F951.278.3818



CpG

CITY OF COVINA
V

i

C• 1Q'
125 East College Street  •  Covina, California 91723- 2199

Air• Rfi
www.covinaca.gov

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Engineering 626) 384-5490 FAX( 626) 384-5479

CHANGE ORDER

Change Order No. 12

DATE:    May 13, 2015
PROJECT NO.  T- 08146 Federal Project No. HPLUL-5118(016)

CONTRACT:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Improvements Project

CONTRACTOR: Hillcrest Contracting, Incorporated.

Lower existing conduits, remove pull box and install traffic rated pull box.

1.   Lower existing conduits, remove pull box and install
3- 1/ 2 traffic rated pull box encase with galvanized

steel lid.

Total increase = $ 3, 450.50

2.  Time Extension: None.

3.  Change in contract cost: Increase of$ 3, 450.50

5-     /3
Submitted by r 4,------   Date

Title:   City E  _'  eer

Accepted by:      Date 5/ 4.‘// 1

Title:   Contr.' tor,   iltcfest Contacting, Inc.
1

Approved by:  Date

Title:    Public Works Director

The City of Covina provides responsive municipal services and manages
public resources to enhance the quality of life for our community.



Laura Lara

From:    Kamran Saber

Sent:     Wednesday, May 13, 2015 10:51 AM
To:       jason @hillcrestcontracting. com; z.Kamran Saber
Cc: Laura Lara; jean@ hillcrestcontracting. com; Juan Diaz; tolentinoleo @gmail.com
Subject: RE: COR# 0   - Lower Existing Conduits, Remove Pull Box and Install# 3- 1/ 2 Traffic

Rated Pull Box\•

Jason,

The COR# 011 is accepted as submitted.

Thank you

Kamran Saber, PE

City Engineer
ksaber@covinaca.gov

626) 384-5491

From: jason© hillcrestcontracting. com [ mailto:jasonOhillcrestcontracting. com]
Sent: Wednesday, May 06, 2015 3: 37 PM
To: Kamran Saber; z. Kamran Saber

Cc: Laura Lara; jean@hillcrestcontracting. com
Subject: COR # 011 - Lower Existing Conduits, Remove Pull Box and Install # 3- 1/ 2 Traffic Rated Pull Box

Kamran,

COR# 011- Lower Existing Conduits, Remove Pull Box and Install# 3- 1/ 2 Traffic Rated Pull Box is attached for your review
and approval.

Thank you,

Jason G. Jones

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.
Office: 951- 273-9600 x- 120

Mobile: 951- 283- 5601

It
HILLCREST

1



HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.
License No. 471664

May 6, 2015

City of Covina
125 East College St.

Covina, CA 91723

PH:     626-384-5483

ATTN: Laura Lara

REF:   Pedestrian & Metrolink Station improvements

Project No. T-0814B

COR# 011 - Lower Existing Conduits, Remove Pull Box and Install# 3- 1/ 2 Traffic Rated Pull
RE:     Box

Dear Laura,

We are requesting a change order for the additional work as follows:

DATE
Item DESCRIPTION QTY U/ M UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

PERFORMED

1 N/A
Lower Existing Conduits, Remove Pull Box

1 LS    $   3,450.50   $   3,450.50
and Install# 3- 1/ 2 Traffic Rated Pull Box

TOTAL THIS REQUEST:  $   3,450.50_

If you have any questions, please contact me at (951) 273 9600 Ext. 120

Si cerel ,

as       . Jones

ills a Contracting, Inc.
JOB:  2618



EIETRIO.  INC.

Lic# 822450, C10

CCO QUOTATION

Project Description:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Station

City Project No. T-0814B

Owner/ Contact:     City ofCovina

Bid Date:      May 6, 2015

J._ t'- emu'%.. n. x...     xa_?.: ivT°.,..+;s"• s.•P:a!??E...,. E._...... h,':S:x: i=;:<1.- i"ri..... A...t.    __ _  _      xS.:  . cT.::_ _ a7:43i;^•  w$•t..f_._._.   __.- mss_. t^     -_. 
a... 4.— 5 1!:;;  

IMO
r n;.._. 4_..._ E •_ C.„   .. Y..._•_ Ay_... . Sc> E{^ t' u. i._tnrg uaa-,:• ru-nu.. Mlr.. u—yni •,

y^ 
lY.    -  ti•e: _.., t    —     .` r'. 1 i. y-.r

I t      -   mot  c#`?'eik, £.. -  _   .-     uaitfl 1 .

1 Remove Existing Pull Box, Lower Existing
Conduits& Install# 3- 1/ 2 traffic rated pull box-

encased, with galvanized steel lid.      2 Ea       $ 1, 675.00 3, 350.00

Grand Total  $   3,350.00

3 F/. 11y<d-  .  -o

t.   i O0. CO

r

EXCLUSIONS: Bond, survey, permits and fees, inspection fees, engineering fees, utility fees,     4 S D S b
railroad insurance and training, signage& striping.

Prepared by: Kevin Moore

4938 E. La Palma Ave.  Anaheim, CA 92807- Tel( 714) 693. 4837, Fax( 714)693-4838
Mobile#( 714) 713- 2409

SBE Cert# 59314



pF CpGf
ut:v CITY OF COVINA

125 East College Street  •  Covina, California 91723- 2199

F• R www.covinaca.gov

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Engineering 626) 384-5490 FAX( 626) 384- 5479

CHANGE ORDER

Change Order No. 13

DATE:    May 13, 2015
PROJECT NO.  T- 0814B Federal Project No. HPLUL- 5118(016)

CONTRACT:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Improvements Project

CONTRACTOR:  Hillcrest Contracting, Incorporated.

Additional water service line needed due to new point of connection.

1.  470 LF of additional 1" PVC SCH80 water service due to

new point of connection.

Total increase = $ 789.08

2.  Time Extension: None.

3.  Change in contract cost: Increase of$ 789.08

Submitted by Date 5-  —
Title:   City Engi er

1

Accepted by:  Date 3/ Z‘/  ---
Title:   Contr tor',   •   rest Contacting, Inc.

Approved by:  Date

Title:    Public Works Director

The City of Covina provides responsive municipal services and manages
public resources to enhance the quality of life for our community.



Laura Lara

From:    Kamran Saber

Sent:    Wednesday, May 13, 2015 10:48 AM
To:       jason @hillcrestcontracting. com; z.Kamran Saber
Cc: Laura Lara; Ron Hadloc

Subject: RE: COR# 013 - 470 LF of Additional 1" PVC SCH80 Water Service Due to New P.O.C. is

attached for your review and approval

Jason,

Your COR# 13 is accepted as submitted.

Thank you

Kamran Saber, PE

City Engineer
ksaber@covinaca.gov

626) 384-5491

From: jasonOhillcrestcontracting. com [ mailto: jason@ hillcrestcontracting. com]
Sent: Thursday, May 07, 2015 12: 42 PM
To: Kamran Saber; z. Kamran Saber

Cc: Laura Lara; Ron Hadloc

Subject: COR # 013 - 470 LF of Additional 1" PVC SCH80 Water Service Due to New P. O. C. is attached for your review
and approval

Kamran,

COR# 013 - 470 LF of Additional 1" PVC SCH80 Water Service Due to New P. O. C. is attached for your review and
approval.

Thank you,

Jason G. Jones

Hillcrest Contracting, Inc.
Office: 951- 273- 9600 x- 120

Mobile: 951- 283- 5601

IL
H I LLCREST

1



HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.
License No. 471664

May 7, 2015

City of Covina
125 East College St.

Covina, CA 91723

PH:     626-384-5483

ATTN: Laura Lara

REF:   Pedestrian & Metrolink Station Improvements

Project No. T-0814B

RE:     COR#013 - 470 LF of Additional 1" SCH80 Water Service Due to New P.O.C.

Dear Laura,

We are requesting a change order for the additional work as follows:

Item
DATE

DESCRIPTION QTY U/ M UNIT PRICE AMOUNTPERFORMED

470 LF of Additional 1" PVC SCH80 Water
1 N/A

Service Due to New P. O. C.  
1 LS    $     789. 08  $     789.08

TOTAL THIS REQUEST:  $     789.08

If you have any questions, please contact me at( 951) 273 9600 Ext. 120

Si erel ,

J o     .  ones

Icr t ontracting, Inc.
JOB:  2618



BLUE DIAMOND LANDSCAPE,  INC.
LICENSE# 799647

CLIENT:HILLCREST CONTRACTING JOB NAME: METROLINK STATION COVINA

1467 Circle City Drive REQUEST CHANGE ORDER#: 3

Corona, Ca. 92879 RCO DATE: 5/ 6/ 15

951. 273.9600 Office REQU EST CO REQUEST CHANGE ORDER TO:

951. 273.9608 Fax JASON JONES

SCOPE OF WORK: INSTALL 600LF OF 1IN MAINLINE SCH80 PIPE

DESCRIPTION U. O.M.       QTY RATE TOTAL

1IN. SCH80 PIPE LF 600FT     $     1. 28  $  768. 00

1" SCH80 FITTINGS EA 20      $     0. 85  $    17.00

MATERIAL5% 0/ P 39.25

LABOR HR 2. 5      $    52. 74  $   131.85

LABOR 15% 0/ P 19.78

it3o L. F

SUBTOTAL $   975. 88

TOTAL  $   975.88 D v
D

Signature Date

THANK YOU!     
GRAND TOTAL S 975. 88 or * 1, 63A.

Print Title

1240 E, ONTARIO AVE. SUITE 102, CORONA, CA. 92881 OFFICE 278. 3801 FAX 951.278.3816  //

00 LP 41. 63 47-6g. ii,
3 %  q//Icr., 1—Mik -      22 , 98

T / ( OJ  $



of copy
As.     .

4

CITY OF C
125 East College Street •  Covina, California 91723- 2199

kip• R www.covinaca.gov

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Engineering 626) 384-5490 FAX( 626) 384- 5479

CHANGE ORDER

Change Order No. 14

DATE:    May 19, 2015
PROJECT NO.  T-08148 Federal Project No. HPLUL- 5118(016)

CONTRACT:    Pedestrian and Metrolink Improvements Project

CONTRACTOR:  Hillcrest Contracting, Incorporated.

Additional line item 4, Concrete removals to 125% of Original Quantity remainder on T& M.

1.  Additional Item 4- Concrete Removals to 125% per

contract unit price 18 CY at $165/ CY

Total increase =  $ 2,970.00

2.   180 CY additional of Item 4- Concrete Removals above 125% per

T& M ($ 19,444.34/ 198 CY= $ 98. 20/ CY)

Total increase = $ 17, 676.00

3.  Time Extension: 3 days

4.  Change in contract cost: Increase of$ 20,646.00

Submitted by       `.       /_` L/   Date
g-) 3^

Title:   City n:   -

Accepted by:  Date WI
Title:   Cont , ctol-/ Hfcrest Contacting, Inc.

Approved by:  Date

Title:    Public Works Director

The City of Covina provides responsive municipal services and manages
public resources to enhance the quality of life for our community.



CITY OF COVINA

PEDESTRIAN AND METROLINK STATION IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

PROJECT NO. T-0814B FEDERAL PROJECT NO. HPLUL- 5118(016)
ON-SITE MEETING— CONSTRUCTION UPDATE

MAY 19, 2015

9:0 AM

TO:       Meeting Attendees

FROM:   Kristen Weger, City of Covina

DATE:    May 19, 2015

SUBJECT:       City Project No. T-0814B

Meeting Participants

Kamran Saber, City of Covina

Laura Lara, City of Covina

Ron Hadloc, City of Covina
Kristen Weger, City of Covina
Anne Perkins- Yin, City of Covina

Leo Tolentino, City of Covina
Jason Jones, Hillcrest Contracting
Bill Tremble, Hillcrest Contracting
Jerry Blair, Hillcrest Contracting
Juan Diaz, JMDiaz, Inc.

Change Orders

Change Order No. 14 for additional concrete removals, item 4 of the line items was
approved per Kamran.

Change Order No. 15 for additional asphalt concrete removals on T& M will be pulled per

Jason. Contractor to bill under unclassified excavation by CY after a final quantity count
has been determined.

Jason to provide a change order for the six ( 6) additional planter pots and raised planter

foundations which include EG pedestal, NPDES green design and stabilizers. No brick
shall be used.

Schedule— Three (3) Week Look Ahead

An updated schedule was not submitted.

Submittal Status:

No submittals were submitted.



Request for Information (RFI):

No RFIs were submitted.

Construction Observations:

Fence near platform is rocking. Metrolink is requiring the City to repair the rocking fence
near the platform. Hillcrest will provide a quote for the repair work. Tubular railing shall
be installed with bolts and brackets affixed to existing railing. Jason to submit a quote

Plan Clarifications:

Jason expressed the signage subcontractors concern in relation to the enamel finish.

Juan will contact Jason at SKA to confirm if any changes can be made to signage enamel.

However, the project must comply with Metrolink requirements.
BIG needs six ( 6) weeks to build the prefabricated restroom unit. Hillcrest will set the

structure. Restroom fixtures will be provided but will need to be hooked up and
connected.

Outstanding Items:

Jason to provide a quote for chopping off the curb nose in the median and placing curb
back.

Bill will add wheelchair ramp on northside of driveway entrance to parking lot.
Contractor to bill per line item 13 curb ramp any additional work completed will be paid
per T& M.

Meeting adjourned: 10:47 AM

Meeting notes submitted by Kristen Weger



HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC.
License No. 471664

May 12, 2015

City of Covina
125 East College St.

Covina, CA 91723

PH:     626-384-5483

ATTN: Laura Lara

REF:   Pedestrian & Metrolink Station Improvements

Project No. T-0814B

COR#014- Additional Item 4 - Concrete Removals to 125% of Original Quantity and
RE:     Remainder on T&M

Dear Laura,

We are requesting a change order for the additional work as follows:

Item
DATE

DESCRIPTION QTY U/ M UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
PERFORMED

1 04/23/ 15
Additional Item 4- Concrete Removals to

18 CY    $      165.00  $  2, 970.00
125% per Contract Unit Price

4/23/ 15,   Additional Item 4- Concrete Removals to

2 4/24/ 15 &  125% perT&M( 198 CY/$19,444.34=$ 98.20 180 CY    $       98.20   $ 17,676.00

4/ 27/15 CY)

TOTAL THIS REQUEST:  $ 20,646.00

If you have any questions, please contact me at( 951) 273 9600 Ext. 120

Sii erel ,

so,      Jones

illcr t Contracting, Inc.
JOB:  2618



00 0 * " D 00
C c o 0 0 to D)
3 3 0 0 "       D 0
o In 0

CD CD 0 7J4

o D cm
0 0 C

co       =    
D o -o Cr a
9 0 CD

w am m 3 0 W       . 92. - D'.. 
Cl)N

v        a     °   v
xg a 0

m

aclto
B.       ma    - 0

D m 33
0 z

rZ o 0 0 al

O N N
O_       3 - 1

Tim 7J at
C

O v •
3 I CD O 0 O _      

3m m-a n.  a       _ D 0 0

co
O y m

0 —
w

0 a

Cn <       O
ffl

m
M_(7 0

3> 
cr

fD FZ'.<
to o cn a w co o r

0 r

m cow Cry 000000 v
C) 

O m

I 0 0    '' m O Cli °<      
x

o

69 69    = N EA 4:4 EA 69 69 0 0 N

O Z
O O W

V O O V W O tD
N

th O O O N O I O.      O

66    .y+    666 '06       ,<     
tU

O O 00000 3-

69 69 EA EA EA 69 69 EA 69 69 69 EA fA 69 ffl 69 69 EA a Z• 
3 m

N OM 0

O co W O W M N N
3

0 fD X
W O

0
N

W O O o1 O g r

A O O O 6
0 0 0 0 00000 0 fi

r r -n cn

N n a c C 0-a Q o 20 ur
oO y Q_ C C O O ( D

I O o "       O N
7 N N p fmD 3 7

nm30I
020

66 -, -. m,  

0C<

3

f

d•    
K-9. 6-,

O O 0 S
fll 0 .: N w

to
m. 3 -,

fD n l
N Q N CD

u       . 0
m W

m
I W

ID
XI-

I       '
ai xV

s.

Z Z P
0 0 o

0
1 - 1 - o > 0

n C O o
tD3 0

o
pp O m 0 OCn

I o w cn 0 ao

r
m , c mg

O 06666
m x " o

D
0000 .  

m ›
r

EA 69 EA m
69EAEAEAEfl N 0

nmD C7wDo D NN00 :-,1 M C
6 O in V V —    fD ,.       Z

O W W tT N V O

to 64 69 69 69 69 EA EA 64 69 Et 69, 6A 4fl 69 64 E, 69 64 69 W -O 64 69 EA
W

CD

P

V 1. N N N 1 coN
WC

O W

0 0 A. W N D coCD N .   o o D 0 N

W D D M O CD O ,  , 0 J V W A V

W th 0 W"    

0 0 0 0 0 0 00 N 00



HILLCREST CONTRACTING
48232

General Engineering Contractors P.O. Box 1898• Corona, CA 91718- 1898

AUTHORIZATION FOR EXTRA WORK OR CHANGE IN PLANS

CUSTOMER' S NO.  JOB. NO.    2Z0 5 ITEM NO.     DATE 1 3)' 5

BILL TO:      £ -      1 OP CO'} l ;q

LOCATION OF WORK:      Ith I T i r K QA124 IJe7 L- t0

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: EMD"  0rp_Er-     P WLiL) A)     LeT

1 c/)

ESTIMATOR:    J A PIJ c.oj S
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

TYPE OF LABOR, EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS USED
HOURS/     

RATE
QUANTITY

EOM   / i A-2  )      X   $` 7. 17   =   64/. 3!0

e C.--     .'t P x 3 0, oo   =  a Lfo. oa

LA$So lL 13 x1,0. 76  =  014. 7S

6 Pat-   -P g-     13 x 1A-53   =  1072• S'

S•):._) PL- fiPieoP1 x 7a• oo    =

C o e7cA-T x OP   =   01,

f ut nP FeE t: r..)6E uF 1 o x 9D. pp   =   qo- oo

oum e r65 t--P• 62,146 -} ii•16 LPAOS x  )      . O9   =  J 000. 0,0

AA(-'-"! Z DU! hto Po& lot WOOD 5 x e . oo    =  1-13D. r''o

614.972,   Ot.yif BPS JO. 3 x 7S. vo     =

x

x

x

FORM NO. 001( REV. 8/99)
SUBTOTAL:

TOTAL: 0 / 49. 140  - I-  iM 4

Hillcrest Representative Customer' s Representative

WHEN WORK IS DONE ON EQUIPMENT RENTAL BASIS UST ALL EQUIPMENT USED AND NUMBER OF HOURS USED.

WHITE- Office Copy CANARY- Customer Copy PINK- Field Copy



04/ 23/ 2015 16: 40 9517696859 BILL TREMBLE PAGE 01
ID: HILL TREMBLE P àge 1 or 2 2015-0422 2C:40:44( GMT) 19818489916 From: James Wong

L) aily Time Sheet TX(1/ZS 9.±..?

Date: 4/23/2015 Job No: 2618 PEDESTRIAN - METROLINK STATION

kilp Page: CAMS Straw: jgCot Rep:   Foreman: 8580 Tremble. Witham Proj. Mgr: JERRY BLAIR
ft,

STREETS WORKED ON THIS DAY Meritcii.../.....e.k pt. IL.r..../ L.    7  - i
STATIONILOTS/LOCATION OF WORK:

Job Codas:

Item/Act. No Item Dew.   Id Quantity Daily Qty.      Materiels Used I M

A2

e142

f..
Aag_-Pict)........  : 77—..

f
W.  E c 4* 5115 e

0. 0.

ABW•

r.-,—..............--.....----.—...
A-11 T -- 7--- ' 

0. 0

HEW:.

AA I   .    j. - i i 0 0
I
Aew:F-

i_ . ,  ....

f_ ____
AEW:

A.: 1..................   ______----

F I

C-Contreet Work, X-Extra Work. T-TILIA Work .. no,   .......  ,   L,....._i.-.)tie _kt.  12-.10 0 1-.4=:' - 1-Zra-e)

Bk4E:3 L .     li Ii 1 1 Total

COiataata:=•%   Material tooay is from: ..--   Phan-  toi•:  .)     •.

4.-. ' : .    

121 lir

iI 4., --  .._ -
2...  E '       OW

2. A A kla LABOR APP I SPC r- 3; "
Ohm Juan Gomel Tar

A  . 74:100q Roman 5 i IT     !t f 8580 Tremble, Willem A
A IA WAN SPEC.] 5 0Ali 1111

ill 9360 White, Kenneth

A 101 OFER2 SP I rigillill 0
twej clj

E (       5486 Marton. Herlberte

el wa50   -    
j-..-.-  r„...__

ci-t,  e-  . Pesv..t..)  .    -
3

01.111414 Fe‘  iI5.AiSelAy& I 1111111111 SCAT Sato

R464 Elobeat-Horlbedo
ey 0

C-.R.mittNia 7 La -  - S

ammo MI 1111111111M1E SKIP Sittoloffa.

R45 7 Ski• ° oder 4WD

E tIRRI picstv Twat ragir
R528 PICKUP TRUCK-BSI illE C-J

IIIIIMIIIIIIIIIIIIIIMin
4--

min 1101
0

al d
yo

ilicrwt Con ang' Coron& . a Dates 4/23/201 Job No:  2618

Phone No.( 909) 2734600
FAX: OM 2734408

IF 8714" au•ex.:L.    0 P C.e.re.e..   9 Le,

di 0 5 a is c..aa n- 1443
0 N   (J 60 g 77, c)

47



a 0 * - a 0 0
a

co 0.       

1D0 3 0 to
m co 4- 4-

00_
a o R- co

ri

0 0

a a
7.  0

cn a) - 15
a) o X 4
M

0 4       ( DO
cn 13    .     

7 0

1 in-' g ,
m cn

0
03

T-
U) 71

3- (D
O 0 3 > ,...-      

C 0
17 CT- 0

FDI
0

0
ii •-.- cc)   X g C1

1
4. R3

71 ia 2
ca.      

8.       m a    •    
a)   5. m

CD-. -
0

E.
a

O 0 o r- Z
EA a 3 al

co su H
o 71 cn

I

M
0 xi co h)Cul

3 H
e.-. o

7, 

c-

x a)
CD tCD b 0H

a 3
on a 13 a

3 a)

ii)     01-.
o

71
co rd o 0
co 0 64 ca

0
4..    3

M .. t O.

cr) CD 0 7CD
0       ';'' rs

XI 1 0 a

Z"<  co F -      

g 9 a)
n

cn
co co CO

0,    b ia in
3 r-
o C) 0

F

mC CD 0 CI Ct
o a) ". 0

m o X
H o       -.

7.: i5 0 a) <      i
a.  

4.4 C 7,- b.)    in in to 0

I ca 0 1:i
M

0

6 1)     b 6 b b CD

a 0 o o c)      

ma) >
X °.(ili

x
0 ,0-

a - 1 -      
XI

1 Z go

M
CI

1.)      
E 0 0

H
7

x/
ct,

V a)

4:11:  cn cn
c)    4). --.) - it,.       ...,. 0

CO 0 0 0

Q C) ,  ,  ,  ,  ,  ,  ,  ,  •   
i  .  •  •

0 000

0 0 a.

0:  0 0 0 000 0 5
a

i•       m H o) co 00 r m

N.) . a 43 C C 0 "0 CO 0 ao 17

C.11 0 I     — I C. < Cr O. CD CD 0- ",o 0 K 5--a 0 0
i zi.9,    " a•• 1 0-5 0 T- a) Fd F,

1)

3 g

40    ,
020i     --

i B     (- =
a) >Ill ay ..--.. 

L71 CU
91 5.71 1 7 3-

rn     .     r- a 0 9 0o 0.
r K-0 67 1 0 g =

CD 0) (.
11

M ffi — I

1 D3 C- 
Cr '     0 0 CC)     =

W V IV a'     I-

X 5" 5 0 1 U) < CD 0 a
al 3 P3-

Cl)va fl) a) 0 ,
co 0. e

X1 a c,  1 0 N io     ''
co

I CO n
m

1 c.)

11 K 4•::o•
0 cu i 03
XI co I 0

I n.ol
v 73

oo

Z Z Pt

o P 2

co Cl)

c 0 C
0 0

a_ - 1 3 0
in-    0

cp

6
c'   93
4-     

oco :< 00

1
co co co

w
7.

0 b ia in in 0 x -- -

I 0
o 0 0

1—      

EA EA- 69 TI X
VI VI    - EA- EA CD

CD

N.)
I la

003 > 001 > g 5->    co co    - 4 co X 0 M.

b in in    "-- J --•    a)

a c..) co c.n V 9
Z

eft 14,01- m- ci)- 6,44.9 . 6/569 -69 - E0)    429    - 69tet44)449 to EA 69 69 .69 69 69 69 69 ( 9
DS

CD

11.   IN•

1 IIQ N r.)     cono
lo    --. ca c.n - co 0) -.)-4 1 co a)    cn cs)    0 0 Cr.)

V CO CO - D. - V 0) • La•      1).     IV 0)    a) co C Er
Ch V W CO C.J1 Cri CO .  .  

i
CO CJ1 0 CY) V 0

CC    ' CA .-. 1 ... Co .c:3 iin CD
i  •  •

co is.)    00)

0 01 CO 000 a o •i=,.    00)



HILLCREST CONTRACTING
48231

General Engineering Contractors P.O. Box 1898• Corona, CA 91718- 1898

AUTHORIZATION FOR EXTRA WORK OR CHANGE IN PLANS

CUSTOMER'S NO.  JOB. NO.   WI))S ITEM NO.     DATE     )?
UJ/  5

BILL TO: C ii or Gl J) 1JA

LOCATION OF WORK:       
The'r PA-    ..1A) ti t-or

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:     leErnDvpi,   OF GDAIC,eery fr1 P(21' 4g-IA)Z'

ESTIMATOR:    ' Ah)    J DAIS
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

TYPE OF LABOR, EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS USED
HOURS/     

RATE
QUANTITY

r-OR MRn3 x g7. )7    —(A-7- 3434

pp x 3O. Po   = 211,0. 00

OP a--,-oe.s 1$   x ga s3   = )486.   41

LA-e7D A64 x  ' 70. 75   =  S 1o( o- oo

SK Pt DAp      g x   -7a.oa     =  G- 1x• 00

e706CA-r x SD..00     = 6LlD- oo

tAmDs  -;,2UCKiJIU i
15  ' z       x   '7' , ao     =  l Dal . 0

aM p 1„B . GZi4S#1- iO4 1 l fry x 1 3'75. c

X

X

X

X

FORM NO. 001( REV. 8/99)
SUBTOTAL:

TOTAL:       i 7 g g ,' 1 C  +  M(.

Hillcrest Representative Customer's Representative

WHEN WORK IS DONE ON EQUIPMENT RENTAL BASIS LIST ALL EQUIPMENT USED AND NUMBER OF HOURS USED.
WHITE- Office Copy CANARY- Customer Copy PINK- Field Copy



04/ 24/ 2015 17: 04 9517696859 BILL TREMBLE PAGE 01

L.....illy Time Sheet ge I VA)
vimaselillMorIMMIIIIIIIMPINOMI

i i

DIM: 1
2

41,    15JOb No: 248111 PEDIES1TUAN- INETROUNK STATION

NapPsot:
cross Streets:

Cat Rip;   
FOMM1K: 8580 irernble. Nilliarn Prof. Mar: JERRY BLAIR

STREETS WORKED ON TNIE DAY:     _    is gr.,y...._    Lot- MIA_--CTIP—P 1, 1, 4   —._......._   -   fgA7

STATION/LOTSILOCATIM OF WORK:
Jabeogios;

iterniAol. No Note poser. 
aid ctuantit; .  . .  . Dotty

I to
Oiy   ...

iiiariu—ia- 1. 11; Od Li    • '

141 . 41 . .. 1_ 
A    ° ....' OWIA:L..•...C2AC' . .  4:W.C,....    „  jeAI..#...,.. '

I..' .....'...  ..(j...
411 i   . 

AtAll ..   „..... l

AEOP: 

i

ArASi 1 41)

A3 g

sa'Xii ••-• ' 
I,  

i ..: ..   : 111-- 
0.01      .  ...

AFtili::
a-- "

EW 1.,
AIS:

ALtry 0.01

ASIN:     

1

C- Cootroot Wont, 2.4,xt
isralWorli. T• Talfl Wp( me>.

i

Tao!

atiAl..--7" .
COIRMOol:oP Mater* twisy is! lam P- oro No (  }  -   Prison. e,( fr

1 H
u

1     ?.../   I 3
4•

is

eic..0    'B3S 018,....____,     160111• E

HA
4 1

11 8580 Trsmble, WNW
111111 1,—.—....— --..\

4,    , rall  ,       IN 1
1.- 44.............--. 4r

i t   ........
92f;St_.„  WM., Kenneth C - 

t)

4.. 0 i

1

1/      . f48E Martino! Noribisr,.....     IrrAlif IN    ,    1

IleiT3

f

a61.,     .-i2:;./.::.•

i

ca)

2.:_m)   iLf1-Aci...L.tiate.'ir
r

Le-

AA:1i'       pj , ar

dil

11..... M.•••••••••••••••••

ki1/34 86120814marelsorio

40,........,••••••••••     
1111.•••••••••••••••      

11 110...•       

M.
11

1.    . g
1., el    •

k-238 Pup Roil' s'     4

1      ._. _  iL,
4  •. t.'.. L.

11
naryeawar,

NEScres1 Contracting. Corona. C
Phone Ka. MOM 2734600

Date:    y/ 2.-L/ ..• / 5 Job No:  218

fir
FAX;( SOS) MAKS MO VA--L..    C C.-Ci" 1 C-      4-7—  )    A-n...k.,Lo

se1T.   tio.A,     1 /    c_

s
N 0 5 0 L.) 0 it- it---   1 a L7



0 0 * - El 00
4) 0 a w , 51)

0

m o
0 o R- co     ( D CD

CD
II CD la'    .-. 1 co
a) M 4
m g. o 4 CD 0
CD       - a.  

7 0

I a
tag 0

IQ g f-
rn 4 cD

O• 
0

cr0
C70A70 cD O.

ry.   r-       
7 ... 7-,   a Ch

r.i

71q 0
a       -- Im

m 2     ,   

to co

CD     (
Pi a

3
m --.4

B.    4:#3
5- M
r- z

1

CI 0 0 5 cn
co a - I x•

No
Mm

m 73
O

c

a ia 3- 0
a 73 CD Cl)

a

o 5)-  - 1
C .  0      .Ls

r-  7

5
0

Mai m o r
ai 0 0     & F so 0
ai 0 2 co

cx.   
x

x a    ..
0.

UT <       o

C/) CD 0 a

U R m

CS
7J 1 0 IV

Z"‹       
CD

C
0 (/) C.71 CJI AM 3 F-

e 0 9„      
F

al Ci-i b b 1M I%)       C W 000a

Z b a a.      LI fr, 0 m

I 00 <      
x

I
6- x

C G.    
0 --

I .-

0_a

i Pi (;) ' 13

N 0    'CB
cA Co -. J Co 0 ii; z- o

b a in O ia 6 7-,     W 3O CD

0
ca000 co > _      A

13 -. 1 -      
73

te +a * a 41) 69• en to fe, to 69 61 4,9 - 6A 64 69
D

0 0

A.  cn cn co 4). co 42.    0 0
C3

1 1 1 1      .  .      .  .  " 
C) C° C)    

7 Sli 0 3
le*  b cn 01 b b Ca    ( 74-
0..  o o 0000 o 5.

a A-

M H 03 03 0 0 6-- 

orn
H 0

M1 0 " cC 1713 go C
0910 .  H C.       

0..< 
Cr cD CD      -

5 .-=.R1 cra ma so co Fe, 3 oa
CI 0 H a 5

o
a    -, a

1 zOi
m0 a) .--   ID

3
m 7  .     I- M ...` 

C)       
Io

q '
1 0 c 5) a ( 9 g I.

E)
N al r-

x FD-    0  ,     0 < 0 CD D-.-
w 3    &

C7D to. o; 0 Ct. a)   
C-ET 11-

33 m o 0 N

1- 1
co

m 4.    

O 1tv
03

XI 8-
1

Ed    ` I 23

20

Z Z
0 9 P

t

cr) i - i - 0 > 0
0 C

o o -, 3 0
o co. a
CO 0:1 OR000

II

x91
0)    03 CO

g
at-< m S ,•

o in ia 00 a)

i
00 00

tn -covo - um
tato    -e)..tn co" ( 1)

NN OV MC
5
rm.

O inal r. C-u Fo".. 1
o WW thV 9

1 r

ft to Ea ree 61 49 49 49 69 EA CA 44- en - Go 49. en to En 69 69 69 4il- EA . rdo * A if)      
co

CD

3>   o•

3 -- I ooNo
o.       -. AN - W lo 1h. o mm 00 W

0 NVVMMV I 01 co co CD C  .- CA

N MA040V .  . V WO MV 0

in b b in b in in in MN OW

0 OMOOON Ni N4 OM
I  ,



HILLCREST CONTRACTING
48233

General Engineering Contractors P.O. Box 1898• Corona, CA 91718- 1898

AUTHORIZATION FOR EXTRA WORK OR CHANGE IN PLANS

CUSTOMER'S NO.  JOB. NO.    ITEM NO.      01 3 DATE 14) a 1 5

BILLTO:      0.417 0 COI/ WA

LOCATION OF WORK:      ) 1117-0?- 1(22-) Ax-   PA-    ) Al 67 1..- 0T

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:   leEmOVAc.  Cr9NCger--  14--r PA-44,A,)41 LOT

1g c)t)

ESTIMATOR:   JA 0o)     J0?3
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

TYPE OF LABOR, EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS USED
HOURS/     

RATE
QUANTITY

4 Eft1 x  '' 7. 11     =  ( ogl. 3(o

p)GU- uP x 3t9. Q0 0- r90

1-A-60tF.0- x 70. 75   =  5!ote. e90

OPai9TVPS 1    • 5 x La,53    = i ) 14,  to

6P6CA1-      6. 5 x qD . ao   =  +-1- 40. 00

f A-70 x a o  -    $  p o

10 1,    -     x 3S. op   =  f4    -- o

PIAMP C i-sifi o. 3Ei LOADS X  )   6.00   =   250 -OD

x

x

x

x

x

FORM NO. 001( REV. 8/99)
SUBTOTAL:

TOTAL:   3 7 t$  O ?.

Hillcrest Representative Customer's Representative

WHEN WORK 1S DONE ON EQUIPMENT RENTAL BASIS LIST ALL EQUIPMENT USED AND NUMBER OF HOURS USED.
WHITE- Office Copy CANARY- Customer Copy PINK- Field Copy



04/ 27/ 215 1 : 35 9517696859
To: MILL- rRemaLs Pac. 1 or

nIriCEMBLE PAGE 01

uaily Time Sheet
Date: 4/27/2015 Job Ns: 2815 PEDESTRIAN- METNOLINK STATION Y14 0 isi O
MapPage:   CTOS$ Streets:

Cot Rep:    Forman: 8580 Tremble, Wallam Prol Mgr JERRY 8LAIR

STREETS WORKED ON THIS DAY: .. 1,24__.er!..r°. L.1...K..K.._pk...v2.....x._......._

STAT1CAULOTSLOCATION OF WORK:. .,........._       .. .......„...__._ ________. ...._,......_...    -..-_..„„.,,= .,..,....)

i ei;-& Cik; a7— ---—--—---  -.   -.. -
r.-- 5;;,! Aci---gw-- iii'W- resii—,  '.----- ------- iilticilia—nitti ---- iia111; tiiy7-- ' fiiii;;;Gii- " ad - 1-71i---:

WV"."—   -i--..___q  _- _.......   .._.(!..k... .......--,

1-kTr.   os21.2.a......
1.--- 0,,,..  i_

T-  - 
0.0

A4:    

0.01 1

4. e41:'

AT-WI- 
I

I, eo I       - '   '      
r_...... 0 v

Amv..

7.IA7 i   _ i
u.or1- -   

1---    i
1    ...._......_....

i_._. ._......___.. ._......_.

C- Contraat Wont. X- Eatra Work, T- 1440 VJant .... 7.  
I— i 1-- 1 r....3   ___-]   l.._.._.   ....._... I

T0E  -
T
1 I Jr—] E:1 Total

mrnener)  malanai I ,,, is ham,       Pic  __.  arson: 

6-`

sjAy
1F7PF:105,r011 Nic-lt 1 2.:"    a I l'    a 0 IA

A  ...     
43 LAK4/ 74`      AM:il.:     

gr 3; ex

goo 938 Diaz, Juan Gone!

A; 0: R rVt. Y!

i r 8580 Tremble, WHOM
Pr IIII 111 il

4  . 14 161,11$ 0114h.. f g1, pa.. o - g- 111111.    e if

II 9350 White. Kenneth t•.

4*      Cc t74•::, IP I

1 (     548e Martina, Harlbana 5 6' iiiii 5 94 I 1

ibi‘ 1111111111111 2.   1 i
7721 Sancti Richard MRA» I 6 al IM.IN all 2-

kisit3 g-  r.  G.

S i's. 4'     bow

R464 Satuat-Haribtria e._I 5 .4.
num.

R460 ilabcat DM

E ,..      ROM

A 23 6 Pu• Roller
tb•

115

f i.o,'     .':• sic.assr

R457 ski. iaacter

44,M 11111 11111
3-    MUNI MK'       irr_ill
Hilicrast  •  , acting , on: na, Ca.    ...
Phone No.( 909) 2   ,.. 0 0

Date:    4127/201 Job No:  2618

FAX:2N) ,  !.,:      cz E 14Noki at. L.   .3 -0 C d Al C-     2.  1- 0 4- c)

Akft I .., . 5 ° 6A.       C oni C Ce...  .1.4.)   p
173 1-' 6-  ANJ 5O SLAAS 392,    ,F--:  TeicVt,....    d•IV

1

Fib:PM T   ' I 1 G K)*
Si 5 6:    Pvld VerX)   rel.6d-

4r P A- PL. Tit?    LOT-   Ai eTrz,zs CI"(



O1'COG

C''   .._'-= 1. 01\4‘-•

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE June 2, 2015 ITEM NO. CB 1

STAFF SOURCE Andrea Miller, City Manager

ITEM TITLE Budget Options Report

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Review City Manager recommendations and provide direction.

BACKGROUND

The Fiscal Year 2015/ 16 Preliminary Budget presented to the City Council at the Special Study
Session Meeting on May 21, 2015, included projected expenditures of $33, 915, 121 million,

which reflects a decrease of $ 1, 522,903, or 4.3%, when compared to the FY 2014/ 15 revised

expenditures of $35,438,024.  Projected revenues in FY 2015/ 16 are $ 33, 293, 855.  This reflects

an increase of$ 1, 315, 647, or 4. 11%, over the prior fiscal year budgeted revenues of$ 31, 978,208.
A deficit of $801, 326, which includes required Transfers Out of $180,060, is projected in FY
2015/ 16.  This deficit would have been higher, at a projected $ 2.4 million; however, transfers

from other funds are recommended to offset operating costs in this fiscal year to enable the City
to continue to provide essential municipal services while implementing measures that will
enhance the City' s long-term financial sustainability and viability.

Increases in the City' s expenses have outpaced the growth in revenue over the last several years,
requiring the City to draw down its reserves and utilize one- time monies and special,  or

restricted, funds which may be used for capital improvements to fund operational costs.  This

practice is unsustainable as budget shortfalls are projected for the foreseeable future.  Further,

because the deficits the City is facing in the preliminary budget and in the two preceding fiscal
years are structural in nature and reserves are, by definition, one- time monies, the City would
simply be shifting the budget issue out one more year if measures are not implemented now to
accomplish the following:

1.  Reduce operating costs while continuing to provide quality programs and services;
2.  Increase revenues that support essential government services;

3.  Develop funding sources for capital investment in the City' s streets, public buildings and
facilities, parks, and open space areas; and

4.  Restore undesignated and designated reserves to address future liabilities and any
unforeseen circumstances as this serves as the City' s safety net.  Without these funds, the



City will not be equipped to address unforeseen expenditure needs or offset future drops
in revenue.

FINDINGS AND ANALYSIS

Eliminating the projected deficit in FY 2015/ 16 and positioning the City to avoid deficits in
future years will require difficult policy decisions.  Further,  given the funding gap in the
upcoming fiscal year and the anticipated growth in the costs of operations in future years,
revenue increases alone should not be the only option considered to eliminate the deficit and put
the City on stable financial footing.

This Report identifies, for the City Council' s consideration and direction, various options to
balance expenditures against revenues, address immediate and long- term fiscal obligations, and
promote long- term financial sustainability.  The list of options is not an exhaustive list, and staff

will continue to explore opportunities to reduce costs and increase revenues while maintaining a
high level of service. The options, which are described below, are organized into the following
categories:

1.  New or Expanded Revenue Measures

2.  Compensation and Benefit Strategies

3.  Service Delivery Model Changes
4.  Financial Philosophy and Policy Changes

Each option includes suggestions for consideration and recommendations. Given the rate at

which the City' s operating costs are growing in comparison to the growth in annual revenues, it
is anticipated that the most effective strategy moving forward will involve a combination of
reducing personnel costs, changing service delivery models including out sourcing some city
services,  more efficient revenue collection procedures,  and potential voter approved tax

measures.

NEW OR EXPANDED REVENUE MEASURES

User Fees and Cost Allocation

A diverse set of fees are charged by the City to recover all or a portion of the City' s costs for
providing a service or access to public property, or for mitigating the impacts of the fee payer' s
activities on the community. Intended for cost recovery, a fee may not exceed the actual cost of
providing the service or facility plus overhead for which the fee is charged.  Examples of City
fees include building permits, recreation classes, false alarms and development impact fees.

Opportunities exist to increase fees for some services to match the costs of the service being
provided, consistent with the City' s general practice of striving for full cost recovery where
possible.  There are some fees that the Council has generally subsidized.  The Council has not

adopted a formal policy related to cost recovery expectations.  A policy will be developed and
presented to the City Council for adoption.  This policy will guide City staff recommendations
related to user fees and will address the following:

Wage



User fees should be used to recover the cost of services that benefit specific segments of

the community.

User fees should be reviewed and adjusted at least annually to avoid sharp changes.
User fees and charges should not exceed the City' s full cost of providing the service.
User fees should be established at a level which reflects the full cost of providing those
services.

The City Council may determine for any service whether a subsidy from the General
Fund is in the public interest.

User fees shall only be used when the cost of providing the service can be readily
calculated and administered.

User fees should be adopted by Council resolution and included in the Annual Fee
Schedule.

Willdan Group Inc.  (Willdan) commenced a Cost Allocation Plan in 2013.   The Plan was

completed in 2014, reviewed and approved by the City' s auditors, and implemented in the FY
2014/ 15 Budget, forming the basis of the allocation of costs to the various City departments.
Willdan also commenced a Comprehensive Fee Study in 2014.  Prior to the 2014 study, fees for
programs and services were updated periodically by the individual departments and presented to
the City Council for approval.  The data and recommendations made by Willdan as part of the
Comprehensive Study have been reviewed by City staff, and the Study will be presented to the
City Council with a recommendation to adopt the proposed fee structure.  Thereafter, the Cost

Allocation Plan and Comprehensive Fee Schedule will be updated annually and presented to the
Council for possible adjustments.

Recommendations:

1.  Direct staff to develop a cost recovery policy to be presented for Council' s review
and approval.  The policy will establish guidelines related to the recovery of fees
and provide guidance to staff in the development of participant fees for new

recreation programs.

2.  Each year,  a fee analysis and cost allocation plan will be completed,  and a

proposed fee schedule based on the results of the analysis will be presented to the

City Council for consideration and adoption.
3.  Staff will implement effective administrative practices to ensure fees are

collected.

Subsidies or Contributions by the City
The City currently subsidizes a variety of programs and services.  Examples of subsidies include

parking and bus passes, fee exemptions, support for local events, and use of public property.  The
value of the subsidies is estimated at$ 80,000 to $ 150,000.

Recommendation: Direct the City Manager and staff to identify the various subsidies
and in-kind support provided by the City; present the information to the City' s Finance
Committee; and request the Finance Committee to review and analyze the information

and recommendations to the City Council.

3 1Page



Potential Tax Increases

Below is a preliminary discussion related to potential tax increases and estimated potential
revenues associated with the following tax increases. All would require voter approval.  If there

is interest in pursuing one or more of these measures, a considerable amount of additional
analysis and discussion is required.

Real Property Transfer Tax

In California, some cities have imposed a tax on the transfer of property located within the city.
The tax, known as the documentary transfer tax or real property transfer tax, is largely based on
the federal documentary stamp tax, which was repealed in 1976.   In California, counties and

cities have been authorized to impose a tax on deeds of transfer of realty. The amount of the tax
is based on the consideration or value of the realty transferred. The current County rate is one
dollar and ten cents ($ 1. 10) for each one thousand dollars ($ 1000) of value.  Of that amount, the

City receives $ 0. 55 and the County receives the remaining $0. 55.  The transfer tax must be paid

by the person who signs or issues any document subject to the tax or for whose use or benefit the
document is made, signed or issued. Real Estate Transfer Taxes, authorized as documentary
transfer taxes by the California Revenue and Taxation Code on the sale or transfer of real
property, are currently levied by all counties and many cities.

Real Property Transfer Taxes may be applied only to residential sales or to other types of real
estate transactions including commercial and industrial sales. Revenue raised from the Real
Property Transfer Tax is added to the City' s General Fund.

The Real Property Transfer Taxes imposed by cities in Los Angeles County range from $ 2.2

Pomona, Redondo Beach) to $4.50 ( Culver City, Los Angeles).  If the City were to implement a
rate of $4.50 per $ 1000 of value, which is at the high end, to provide a base level of funding
necessary to deliver essential services to the community.   The proposed rate would generate

roughly$ 609,530 million annually.

Utility User Tax
Like Covina, many cities charge a tax on utilities, ranging up to 9. 5% ( Huntington Park). Covina

currently charges 6%.  Each 1% increase on utilities currently taxed ( telephone, cable, electric,
water and gas) would yield approximately$ 867,000 annually.

Utility user taxes ( UUT) are paid by Covina residents and businesses and are collected by the
utility providers who serve them.   The utility then remits the tax payments to the City.  The

estimated annual revenue in FY 2014/ 15 from utility user taxes ( electric, gas, water, cable, land
line phone, and cell phone) is $ 5. 2 million. The City has made annual revenue projections
considering possible tax increases at 1% and 2%. Further, sanitary sewer service, sanitation, and
refuse collection are currently not part of the utility user tax. The City may want to consider
modernizing and expanding the utility user tax to cover utilities not currently included.

A utility user tax increase can only be voted on during a general election ( a simple majority is
needed), unless the City Council declares a fiscal emergency and puts the potential tax increase
to a vote during a special election. It should be noted that costs for special elections are higher.
For Covina, a special election would cost approximately$ 90,000.

Wage



Sales Tax

Sales tax is one of the City' s largest sources of General Fund revenue.  Covina receives 1% of

the local sales and use tax levied on the sale or use of tangible personal property, which is
collected at the time of the transaction and remitted to the State Board of Equalization for

administration.  In addition to the local measure, some cities have imposed a transaction and use

tax within the city to fund general municipal services.  The current total tax on retail sales in

Covina is presently 9%.  Of this, 0.75% flows to the General Fund budget of Covina, amounting
to a projected $7.09 million in FY 2015/ 16.  It is estimated that a 1/2 cent increase in the sales tax

rate would provide approximately$ 2.5 million in General Fund revenue.

Transient Occupancy Tax( TOT)
The Transient Occupancy Tax ( TOT) is a tax charged on hotel stays.  Covina presently has a
TOT rate of 10%, which is the County average.  In the Los Angeles County area, some cities
charge as much as 14% ( City of Los Angeles, Santa Monica, Beverly Hills).  For our City, TOT
generates approximately $ 335, 000 per year in revenues,  meaning that each 1%  of the tax

generates about$ 33, 500.

Increasing the rate by 1% would retain Covina' s rate at the lower end of the County range and
would generate $ 33, 500 in annual revenues.  There might be some negative impact of the higher

tax rate on occupancy rates at the local hotel.  For these reasons, we are not recommending an
increase of the existing TOT.

City- wide Landscape/LifihtinM District

The City currently has a Street Lighting Assessment District as well as a Street Trees and
Landscape Assessment District that cover only a small portion of the City' s properties.  These

districts are intended to defray the costs of maintenance, electricity, water and landscaping
services for the City' s medians, urban forest and street lights.  Because of the territory of the
District, the costs to provide these services exceed the assessments resulting in an annual General
Fund contribution of approximately $ 150,000 per year.   The creation of a City-wide District
would increase the assessments, which would be used to fund these costs.

Public Safety Parcel Tax

A special tax that shall be used only for the purpose of providing public safety, e. g.  law
enforcement and fire services, may be adopted.  There are currently 12,414 parcels within the
City.  If each parcel were assessed $ 200, this would result in approximately $ 2.45 million per

year in revenues that would be required to be used to pay for public safety costs.  In FY 2015/ 16,

the estimated cost for fire suppression services is $ 8. 7 million and $ 14.4 million is allocated for

the Police Department.

911 Communications Fee

While often called a " fee," this potential revenue source is actually a tax requiring voter
approval.  If approved by the voters, the tax would be charged on most personal and business
telephone lines and cell phones in the City.  This charge would be in addition to the existing
75% state- wide surcharge on all landline and cellular telephones.  Some exemptions typically

5 13   ,
8



exist, mainly relating to customers on lifeline service and service to non-profit organizations and
government offices.

Communities that have implemented this fee estimate that approximately 90% of the phone

accounts in their community are taxed.  The justification for charging a fee to telephone
subscribers is that only people who have telephones can call 911 for emergency services.
Further, the telephone service subscribers derive significant benefits from ongoing operation of
the modernized integrated system in the form of more efficient dispatch of services to a 911

emergency request.

Recommendation: Request the City' s Finance Committee review, evaluate, and make
recommendations to the City Council regarding new or increased taxes;  and if the

Committee recommends pursuing certain tax measures,  develop an action plan and
schedule to seek voter approval of new or revised measures.

Property Assessment Audits

Property Tax revenues have been impacted in recent years by the downturn in the housing market
and in housing new starts.   Property tax revenues on secured property experienced slight
increases over the last three years and there have been recent minor increases in assessed values.

It would be helpful to conduct an audit of assessed values assigned to each property within the
City.  In prior years, there have been across the board reductions in assessments without review

and analysis, and conducting an audit of property assessments to ensure accuracy may generate
additional revenue and avoid costly appeals.

Recommendation:  Direct staff to engage a private firm to perform an audit of the

property tax assessments to ensure data is current and accurate and the property taxes
owed are received.

Franchise Agreements and Long-Term Contracts

Like most cities, Covina has long-term contracts and franchise agreements with a variety of
vendors.  To ensure the services are being provided in the most cost effective manner possible,
and at competitive rates, staff should review in-house operations as well as external contacts with

terms exceeding two-years to identify opportunities to renegotiate the terms or to outsource the
services to outside contractors.   Additionally, consideration should be given to restructuring
potential revenue generating contracts, such as refuse services.

Recommendation:   Direct staff to review and evaluate all franchise agreements and

contracts for cost savings and/or revenue generating opportunities. Present information to
the City Council for direction as opportunities are identified.

Utility Franchise Fee

A potential revenue source to be considered, although it requires state legislative action, is to

revise the utility franchise fee paid to municipalities in areas served by Southern California
Edison ( SCE). Inequity exists in what older communities such as Covina receive from franchise
agreements when compared with newer cities which have negotiated with SCE.

61Page



The Franchise Act of 1937 sets one-half of one percent as a minimum franchise fee charged.

Because of the methods used by the California Public Utilities Commission to set and account
for investor-owned utility rates, SCE blends the cost of all franchise fees across its entire rate
base, regardless of the return to each respective city. As a result, every SCE customer is subject
to a 0. 84% franchise fee charge, regardless of whether the customer resides in a city that is being
paid a 1% fee or a 0. 5% fee.  Covina receives only 0. 5%, while some other, newer communities

receive 1% franchise fee because of rates they negotiated with SCE. The result is that some cities
are subsidizing others. Analysis should be conducted of the potential new revenue to the City if a
legislative change was enacted.   The potential of legislative change should be monitored and

coordinated with other cities throughout the State advocating for change.

Recommendation: Analyze the amount of additional revenue that would be received by
the City if the utility franchise fee was increased to 1%. Advocate for a change in

legislation to correct the inequity of payments to cities of utility franchise fees.

Paramedic Cost Recovery and Subscription Program

A paramedic cost recovery fee and a paramedic subscription program administered by the City
may be used to offset the costs related to paramedic/ fire services.  Residents would have the

opportunity to pay for the service if utilized or participate in the paramedic subscription program.
This program would function as a form of insurance in that subscribers are not responsible for

paying out-of-pocket costs for emergency medical services ( EMS) above what is covered through
insurance, Medicare or Medi-Cal.

California cities that have paramedic subscription programs charge from $24 to $60 annually per
household. The most common rate is $ 48 per year.   Some cities have varying rates for local
businesses, convalescent homes, and low-income residents ( e. g., residents who qualify for low-
income discounts on their city water bill). Revenues vary by city and are evaluated in terms of
market penetration; the ratio of subscribing households to the total number of households.
Market penetration rates are generally related to community demographics, population density,
whether transport services are provided,  and the amount of other EMS fees.  Typically,
communities with a high percent of residents over 60 years of age and those in rural areas or do

not live in close proximity to emergency medical facilities have higher market penetration ( i.e.,
number of members).  Given the number of residential parcels in the City and demographics, it is
anticipated there is an opportunity for this program to reduce the overall costs to the General
Fund for fire/paramedic services.

The City currently provides a premium paramedic program that is not provided by the Fire
Department in other cities.  In an effort to maintain the highest quality service, the City may wish
to consider implementing a cost recovery fee and a subscription program as well as a marketing
plan in an effort to inform residents and engage subscribers.  This revenue could then be used to
fund paramedic costs.  The City' s total number of housing units is 16,411, and the amount of
revenue generated would depend on the penetration rate, or number of subscribers.

Recommendations:

1.  Direct staff to present information on the proposed paramedic cost recovery fee
and paramedic subscription program to recover costs associated with

71Page



Fire/Paramedic Service to the Finance Committee and request the Committee

review and analyze the information and make a recommendation to the City
Council.

2.  If the paramedic cost recovery fee and paramedic subscription program are
recommended,   develop an ongoing marketing program for paramedic

subscriptions with a goal of market penetration of at least 50% of households.

False Alarm Fees

Responding to false alarms is unproductive use of Police Department resources.  While we are

unaware of the actual minutes spent per alarm response, we believe possibly 90- 95% of total

alarm calls are false alarms.   Based on the fees currently charged and the costs of officers
responding, it appears that the City may be losing thousands of dollars each year that is not paid
for by fees. All City costs ( police response and administrative overhead) incurred by false alarms
should be paid for by the alarm owner.

Recommendation:  Review and analyze the false alarm program, determine whether an

adjustment to the fee and/or change in the practices related to the collection on first

offenses is accomplishing the City' s goals, and make recommendations.

Asset Management

Cities own many buildings and physical facilities such as parks, office buildings, corporate yards,
streets,  sidewalks,  and parking lots and structures.  Asset management is the process of

monitoring the inventory and leasing or licensing the use of these investments, that can and
should be considered as a cost reduction strategy.

Covina is developing an updated asset inventory. Over the long- term, an asset management
program should integrate with maintenance and replacement schedules for the development of

long-range capital improvement program funding needs.

The identification of surplus, under-performing properties that can be sold will result in one- time
revenues and a reduction in ongoing maintenance costs. Market rate rents should be calculated
and updated periodically for all City and Successor Agency properties that are rented or leased.
Market rental rates as well as the level of subsidy should also be identified for properties rented
or provided to community and non-profit organizations and for economic development purposes.
The subsidies should then be supported by the appropriate program and funding source. This will
identify the true costs of such programs, allow them to be properly charged, and provide relief to
the General Fund.

Every parcel owned by the City or Successor Agency represents property taxes that the City does
not receive.  Currently, the City and Successor Agency own 64 parcels with total book value of

13,404,546.  Many of these properties are relatively small and undevelopable.  As a result, the

likely sales estimate is significantly lower that the book value.  Assuming the City were able to
sell the properties for $4 million and given the City' s 18% share of the property assessment, the

sale of these parcels would generate roughly$ 720,000 in revenue.

8IPagc



The City and Successor Agency may also wish to explore selling or leasing some of the parcels at
below-market rates in order to incentivize developers and other business interests to spur
additional economic development and development-related revenues.

Recommendation:    Develop a comprehensive asset management program,  identify
market rental rates and subsidies, and sell unneeded and under-performing properties.
Conduct an analysis of all property assets as part of the asset management program.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT STRATEGIES

Personnel costs account for about 60% of the General Fund operating expenses and include the
costs related to salaries, the City' s share of the retirement benefit, medical and unemployment
insurance, workers compensation and employer taxes.

Pension costs are a combination of an " employer"  and " employee"  share.  PERS sets the

employer share for each agency depending on actuarial assumptions. For Covina, the employer
share is 26. 119% of compensation for public safety employees and 21. 953% for non-safety
employees. Those levels will grow to 27. 189% for safety and 23. 8% for non-safety in FY
2016/ 17. The employee share is set by PERS at 9% for public safety and 8% for non-safety and
12. 25% for safety new hires.    The Public Employee Pension Reform Act of 1913 ( PEPRA)

provides that beginning in 2018 an employer may require employees through negotiations to pay
50 percent of the total annual normal cost, which is based on the employee and employer

contributions, up to an 8 percent contribution rate for miscellaneous employees, and an 11
percent or 12 percent contribution rate for safety employees.

Through recent negotiations, Covina employees agreed to pay the full employee share ( 9% for

safety and 8% for non-safety), which significantly reduced the costs to the City.  In addition, a
two-tier retirement benefit program of 3% at 55 for safety employees has been implemented.
PEPRA also implemented reduced benefit formulas and increased retirement ages for both new
non-sworn and sworn personnel.  Those benefits are: 2.7% at 57 years of age for sworn and 2%

at 62 for non- sworn.  Savings are based on workforce turnover and thus initial cost reductions are
minimal.   However, the savings to Covina over the long-term are significant.    Despite these

measures, the long-term, unfunded PERS liability owed by the City is estimated at $ 31, 555, 193,
and this, when coupled with the City' s other long-term obligations, requires new strategies to
reduce costs in the City' s largest expenditure category— personnel.

Vacant Positions and Overtime Reduction

Given the financial position, it is recommended all vacant positions remain unfilled except where

the position is determined by the City Manager to be critical for the effective operation of the
organization or to address health or safety issues.  Efforts should also be made to reduce overtime
and implement effective planning to reduce the unanticipated overtime expenses except for the
overtime costs reimbursed by other agencies.

Recommendations:

1.  Freeze all vacant positions except as approved by the City Manager.
2.  Reduce overtime except for reimbursed overtime costs.

9 I t9 I 11
age



Early Retirement Incentives

Various public agencies have implemented a variety of strategies to manage the size of their
workforce. One strategy, an early retirement incentive plan ( ERIP), increases retirements above

natural attrition by enhancing employee retirement benefits. This strategy allows employers to
decrease payroll costs, reorganize staff, and trim down higher-paid middle management.  The

organization achieves fiscal savings only by keeping the positions vacant or replacing retiring
employees, who are typically at the top of the salary schedule, with entry- level employees. While
California has several retirement incentives, the cost-effectiveness of these programs must be

examined within the context of an aging workforce.

The program often used is referred to as the " Golden Handshake."  This program was made

available under the California Public Employees Retirement Law (Gov. Code 20903) and is also

known as the Ca1PERS Two Years Additional Service Credit benefit.  This option allows an

agency to provide two additional years of service credit to members who meet the minimum

eligibility for retirement ( at least age 50 and at least 5 years of service credit), are employed in

the designated classification,  department or organizational unit,  and who retire during a
designated window period because of imminent demotions, mandatory transfers, or layoffs. And
while it can provide some short- term savings, it adds to a city' s future retirement costs and limits
flexibility when it comes to filling vacated positions since the Ca1PERS program requires that
they remain permanently unfilled. This program also does not necessarily provide an incentive to
those who are not at or above retirement age.

Other, less costly, less restrictive options are available and may be created to address the specific
needs of the organization and its employees.  Agencies, such as the Public Agency Retirement
System  ( PARS),  assist public agencies in designing designs and implementing retirement
programs in conjunction with existing PERS retirement programs.  More recently, there are some
limitations on the programs due the Pension Reform Laws; however, opportunities remain to

create incentive programs.  The PARS early retirement program goes far beyond the limitations
of the PERS option and is far more flexible. The PARS program can be structured to provide

years of service credit or other benefits such as medical coverage and the terms of the payment of

the benefit can be defined and eligibility structured to meet City and employee needs.

These types of programs also allow the City to determine the number of positions by
classification and department,  thereby minimizing economic risk.  Also,  once the Council

determines a need for a separation incentive program, the plan administrator can implement the

program and can offer early retirement incentives as necessary as broadly or as narrowly as
necessary.    PARS offers the flexibility of providing structured payments to the employee
including lump sum payments, monthly payments for life, or a monthly payment for 5, 10, or 15
years. The PARS early retirement option could be offered as a supplement to PERS and can be
structured to complement PERS and social security eligibility.

The cost for the PARS retirement option program is calculated based upon the number of early
retirements offered plus an administrative fee of 6% based upon cost of the retirements. It is

considered a fee-for-service plan. Rather than paying for the cost within the first two years, costs
are paid as expended or may be pre- funded.

10IPag



Recommendation: Direct staff to identify possible incentives to promote early retirement
and present options to the City Council for consideration.

Salary Step Adjustments

Traditional public agency salary schedules with an average of five or six steps in the range were
developed before the onset of widespread collective bargaining and were intended to provide an
opportunity to reward employees annually for their performance and for the growth of their
experience and productivity as they become more effective on the job. The increases are often
known as merit increases, and many are implemented automatically.  Consequently, it only takes
three and a half to four years for the employee to get to the top step.

During this period the employee is typically awarded a step increase, and if available, cost of
living adjustments negotiated by their bargaining group. Because of this practice, new employees
have sometimes received raises of between eight and nine percent annually in the first few years
of their employment with the City. Most employees at the City are presently at the top of their
salary range.

A 10 to 15 step range for management and non-management employees would reduce the City' s
costs and could spread the opportunity for performance increases over six to nine years rather
than the current three and a half to four years. Such a change in the salary schedule would need to
be negotiated with each of the City's bargaining units and would be considered by both sides as
part of the total compensation package during negotiations.

Recommendation:  As part of the FY 2016/ 17 labor negotiations and successor

Memoranda of Understanding, consider instructing staff to implement a 10 to 15 step
range to spread out merit ( performance) increases over six to nine years rather than the

current three and a half to four years and present options to the City Council for
consideration.

SERVICE DELIVERY MODEL CHANGES

With the increasing demand for responsive government services exacerbated by the recession,
government agencies are rethinking how to provide the best, most effective service at the lowest
cost.  Each community has its own unique approach to alternative service delivery; however, the
one commonality is the need to identify a way to reduce the cost of delivering a broad spectrum
of public services while meeting the expanding service demands in the most cost effective
manner possible.

Outsourcing, Consolidation, and Shared Services are alternative service delivery models being
used successfully in cities and communities throughout California.  These require a shift of the

municipal work to another entity.  This shift can be to an outside entity,  referred to as
outsourcing, or it may mean the city will significantly affect the design of the organizational
structure through the consolidation of services or shared services with another agency.

111Pagc



A recent study reported in the The Municipal Year Book 2014 shows that more communities are
participating in shared services cooperation than ever before.  This is reflected in an increase in

the use of shared services from 17%  in 2002 to almost 24%  in 2012. As a result of the

cooperation,  these communities are saving money,  achieving economies of scale,  and

strengthening collaborative intergovernmental relations. The study also noted that the list of
services provided in this manner continues to grow.  The data concludes that communities are

looking to find greater economic efficiencies through the use of shared services.

Proponents of alternative service delivery models report greater flexibility in the provision of
services, predictability in terms of annual and long-term costs, increased control and resource
efficiency, and often greater levels of expertise and service.

Recommendation: Direct the City Manager to evaluate the City' s programs and services,
and where she deems appropriate, to explore alternative service delivery models for the
provision of City services and obtain proposals from other public and private agencies.

FINANCIAL PHILOSOPHY AND POLICY CHANGES

To ensure the budget reduction actions are meaningful and will make an ongoing impact to the
financial health of the City, the following should be integrated as underlying goals:

The City will proactively seek to protect and expand its tax base by encouraging a
healthy, underlying local economy.   Covina should continue to encourage shopping,
dining, and visiting Covina' s stores, restaurants, and hotel. Covina should continue to
explore ways to capitalize on its resources such as its regional location with convenient

access to Los Angeles, Orange, San Bernardino and Riverside Counties; access to major

transportation corridors including freeways, rail and the ports of Los Angeles and Long
Beach; commercial and industrially zoned property; and retail opportunities.

The City will establish and maintain appropriate cash reserves.

City revenue and expenditure performance will be reviewed monthly and appropriate
budget adjustments will be made in advance of the end of a budget year if revenue

performance is not meeting projections.  Proposed budget amendments will be evaluated

in the context of the City' s financial condition.

The City will consider competitive contracting of services and equipment when
appropriate and where clear, cost-effective alternatives exist.

The City will establish appropriate cost-recovery targets for its fee structure and will
annually adjust its fee structure to ensure that the fees continue to meet cost recovery
targets.

The City will work in partnership with its employees to ensure fair and competitive
compensation and that costs related to pension and other benefits are appropriately
allocated between employer and employees.

12I1' age



The City will work to strengthen revenue collection practices and procedures.

An important strategy for avoiding structural budget deficits is to adopt a budget philosophy that
is relatively easy to understand and can serve as a meaningful framework for maintaining
financial discipline. The following reflects best practice policies in public financial management:

Structurally Balanced Budget.  The annual budgets for all City funds should be structurally
balanced throughout the budget process. Ongoing revenue should be equal to or exceed operating
expenditures in both the proposed and adopted budgets. If a structural imbalance occurs, a plan

should be developed and implemented to bring the budget back into structural balance.

Multi-Year Financial Forecasting.   To ensure that current budget decisions consider future

financial implications, a ten- year financial forecast should be utilized by the staff and Council.
The annual General Fund proposed budget balancing plan should be presented and discussed in
context of the ten-year forecast. Any revisions to the proposed budget should include an analysis
of the impact on the forecast out years. If a revision creates a negative impact on the forecast, a

funding plan should be developed and approved to offset the impact. The ten-year forecast
should be updated at least twice per year to reflect changes in revenues and unexpected changes

in expenditures. The forecast should be presented to the City Council for discussion and to
provide information to the public.

Use of One-Time Resources.  One-time resources ( e.g., revenue spikes, budget savings, sale of
property, and similar nonrecurring revenue) should not be used for current or new ongoing
operating expenses.  Examples of appropriate uses of one-time resources include rebuilding
reserves, retiring debt early, making capital expenditures ( without significant operating and
maintenance costs), and other nonrecurring expenditures.

Established Reserves.   Covina has multiple funds, based on different revenue sources and

requirements. Because there are risks ( both known and unknown), it is important that reserve

levels in all funds be maintained as a hedge against such risks. Without proper reserves, there can

be major disruptions in services when unforeseen financial demands emerge,  requiring

immediate attention. The City should maintain an adequate reserve level and/ or ending fund
balance for each fund, not just the General Fund, as determined annually and as appropriate for
each.  For the General Fund, different types of reserves should be maintained, including an
economic uncertainty reserve to provide a cushion for unexpectedly low revenues in any given
year, and a contingency reserve for other emergency needs that arise. City Council and City
Manager authorization should be required for the expenditure of established reserves, along with
repayment requirements.

Debt Issuance. A municipality should not issue long- term( over one year) debt to support ongoing
operating costs ( other than debt service) unless such debt issuance achieves net operating cost
savings and such savings are verified by appropriate independent analysis. All debt issuances shall
identify the method of repayment ( or have a dedicated revenue source) without an impact to
operations.

13IPag



Employee Compensation.    Negotiations for employee compensation should continue to

consider total compensation bargaining concepts and focus on all personnel services cost changes
e. g., step increases and the cost of benefit increases). Compensation costs should be included in

the ten-year financial forecast to ascertain affordability to the municipality, within context of
expected revenues.

Fees and Charges.  Fee increases should be utilized, where possible, to assure that program

operating costs are fully covered by fee revenue. Opportunities should be explored to establish
new fees for services where appropriate.

Capital Improvement Projects.  Capital improvement projects with future annual operating and
maintenance costs exceeding $ 25, 000 should not proceed without City Council certification until
funding is identified in the applicable year of operation.

Grants.   City staff should seek, apply for and effectively administer federal, state and other
grants that address the City' s priorities and policy objectives and provide benefits. Before any
grant is pursued, staff should provide a detailed pro- forma that addresses the immediate and

long- term costs and benefits to the City. One-time operating grant revenues should not be used to
begin or support the costs of ongoing programs.

Performance Measures.   All requests for departmental funding should include performance
measurement data so that funding requests can be reviewed and approved in light of service level
outcomes to the community and organization.

Recommendations:

1.  Direct staff to review, revise and present to the City Council for adoption updated
financial policies and a budget philosophy that reflect best practices and provide a
meaningful and easy to understand framework for maintaining financial discipline.

2.  Report on the state of the City' s finances to the City Council and Finance Committee
for public discussion at least quarterly.

3.  Present an updated Ten-Year Financial Plan to the City Council and Finance
Committee in December and June of each year.

Respectfully submitted,

An rea Miller

City Manager

14 I a



ofvco,

uto-
U \ Is

tp

j O
Y,/

tile,•''
1`\"

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE June 2, 2015 ITEM NO. NB 1

STAFF SOURCE Debbie Pacheco, Acting Director of Finance
Nuala Gasser, Sr. Housing & CDBG Economic Development Manager 1 1

ITEM TITLE Resolutions relating to the annexation of territory to Community Facilities
District No. 2007- 1 ( 269- 275 W Center Street)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

a).    Adopt City Resolution No. 15- 7353, declaring its intention to authorize the annexation of
territory to Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services); and

b).    Adopt City Resolution No. 15- 7354, adopting boundary map showing territory proposed to
be annexed in the future to Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services).

FISCAL IMPACT

There are eight residential units in the proposed annexation area, of which seven are subject to
the special tax.   The " Special Tax" authorized by the proposed annexation to Community
Facilities District 2007- 1 ( the " CFD") will generate up to $ 3, 249. 19 annually based on the 2014-
2015 tax rate of$464. 17 per multi- family unit, and will be deposited to Account No. 2740- 4800-
45800.   The Special Tax shall be used to pay for the following services: police, fire protection
and suppression, paramedic services, and park maintenance.   The Special Tax will increase

annually by the greater of two percent ( 2. 00%), or the percentage change in the Consumer Price

Index.

BACKGROUND

The purpose of the subject resolutions is to 1) notice the intent of the City to annex property to
the CFD, 2) identify the boundaries of the proposed annexation, 3) identify the types of services
to be funded by the CFD, and 4) notice that a public hearing will be held on July 7, 2015, where
the City Council will consider the proposed annexation.   The subject resolutions are hereby
presented to the City Council,  pursuant to the Conditions of Approval for an 8- unit

condominium/apartment development at 269- 275 W.  Center Street, Covina,  CA, Assessor' s

Parcel Numbers are 8444- 002- 011 and 8444- 002- 012.

On June 5, 2007, the City Council held a public hearing and formed CFD 2007- 1.  Pursuant to

the Conditions of Approval for an 8- unit apartment development at 269- 275 W. Center Street,

the builder agreed to annex to the CFD, or to pay an in-lieu fee based on the financial impact on
Police, Fire, Emergency and Parks services.   The builder has opted to annex into the CFD.

Under the CFD, in Fiscal Year 2014- 2015, any newly constructed residential units are charged
464. 17 per year for the following services: police, fire protection and suppression, paramedic

services, and park maintenance.  This Special Tax appears on the annual Property Tax bill for
each parcel.  The Special Tax authorized by the CFD shall be levied on all parcels for which



building permits were issued on or before May 1 of the preceding fiscal year.   Because one

existing dwelling unit on the property will be demolished and replaced, there is a net increase of
seven residential units subject to the special tax.

The purpose of the CFD is to finance the aforementioned public safety and park services that are
in addition to those currently provided for the territory within the District.  In Fiscal Year 2014-

2015, the estimated amount for these services, for each additional multi-family residential unit, is
464. 17.    This program has been conceived with the intention that all future residential

development, which results in a net increase of residential units, will annex to the CFD or pay an
equivalent mitigation fee.  Residential units constructed prior to formation of the CFD are not

subject to the Special Tax.

RELEVANCE TO THE STRATEGIC PLAN

This action will assist the City to reach the goal of enhancing financial stability, as the special tax
assessed on all future residential development will provide some of the needed funding to
provide public safety and park services.

EXHIBITS

A.       Resolution No. 15- 7353

B.       Resolution No. 15- 7354

Respectfully submitted,

Debbie Pacheco

Acting Director of Finance



EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTION NO.  15- 7353

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA,  DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO AUTHORIZE THE
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICT NO. 2007- 1 ( PUBLIC SERVICES)

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covina, California,( hereafter referred to as the
City Council"), at this time desires to authorize the annexation of territory to City of Covina

Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services) (" CFD No. 2007- 1") pursuant to the

terms and provisions of the" Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982", being Chapter 2. 5, Part
1, Division 2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended( the" Act"); and

WHEREAS, CFD No. 2007- 1 was formed to finance new police services, fire protection and

suppression services, paramedic services, and park maintenance and other public services in addition

to those provided in or required for the territory within CFD No. 2007- 1 and will not be replacing
services already available; and

WHEREAS, certain territory is proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2007- 1 and such
territory shall be known and designated as Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1  ( Public

Services), Annexation No. 8 (" Annexation No. 8").

WHEREAS, this legislative body now desires to proceed to adopt its Resolution of Intention
to annex Annexation No. 8 into CFD No. 2007- 1, to describe the territory proposed to be annexed,
Annexation No. 8, to specify the services to be financed from the proceeds of the levy of special
taxes within Annexation No. 8, to set and specify the special taxes that would be levied within the
territory to finance such services, and to set a time and place for a public hearing relating to the
annexation of Annexation No. 8 into CFD No. 2007- 1; and

WHEREAS, a map showing the boundaries ofAnnexation No. 8 proposed to be annexed has
been submitted, and a copy of the map shall be kept on file with the transcript of these proceedings.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the City Council of the
City of Covina, as follows:

SECTION 1 Recitals.  The above recitals are all true and correct.

SECTION 2 Authorization. The proceedings for annexing Annexation No. 8 into CFD No.
2007- 1 are authorized and initiated by this legislative body pursuant to the authorization of the Act.

SECTION 3 Intention to Annex. This legislative body hereby determines that the public
convenience and necessity requires that Annexation No. 8 be added to CFD No. 2007- 1 in order to
pay the costs and expenses for the required and authorized new services generated from new

1
Exhibit A Page 1 of 8

269- 275 West Center Street, Covina



development within the City and this City Council declares its intention to annex Annexation No. 8
to CFD No. 2007- 1.

SECTION 4 Boundaries.  A general description of the boundaries of Annexation No. 8

proposed to be annexed is as follows:

All that territory proposed to be annexed to CFD No. 2007- 1, as such property is shown on a
map designated as " Annexation Map No. 8 of Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1
Public Services), City of Covina, County of Los Angeles, State of California," attached

hereto as Exhibit" A" and hereby incorporated by reference.

SECTION 5 Name of District.  The name of the district is " City of Covina Community
Facilities District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services)" and the designation for the territory to be annexed
shall be " City of Covina Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services), Annexation

No. 8."

SECTION 6 Services Authorized to be Financed by CFD No. 2007- 1, Annexation No. 8.
The services that are authorized to be financed by CFD No. 2007- 1 are certain services which are in
addition to those provided in or required for the territory within CFD No. 2007- 1 and Annexation
No. 8 and will not be replacing services already available. A general description of the services to be
financed by CFD No. 2007- 1 and Annexation No. 8 is as follows:

PUBLIC SERVICES

New police services, fire protection and suppression services, paramedic services, and

park maintenance, including but not limited to ( i) the costs of contracting services, ( ii)

related facilities, equipment, vehicles, ambulances, fire apparatus and supplies, ( iii) the

salaries and benefits of City staff that directly provide police services, fire protection and
suppression services, paramedic services, and park maintenance respectively, and ( iv)
City overhead costs associated with providing such services within CFD No. 2007- 1 and
Annexation No. 8. The Special Tax provides only partial funding for Public Services.

The same types of services which are authorized to be financed by CFD No. 2007- 1 are the
types of services to be provided in Annexation No. 8. If, and to the extent possible, such services

shall be provided in common within CFD No. 2007- 1 and Annexation No. 8.

SECTION 7 Special Taxes. It is the further intention ofthis City Council body that, except
where funds are otherwise available, a special tax sufficient to pay for such services to be provided in
CFD No. 2007- 1 and Annexation No. 8, and related incidental expenses authorized by the Act,
secured by recordation of a continuing lien against all non-exempt real property in Annexation No. 8,
will be levied annually within the boundaries of such Annexation No. 8. For further particulars as to
the rate and method of apportionment of the proposed special tax, reference is made to the attached
and incorporated Exhibit" B"( the" First Amended Rate and Method ofApportionment"), which sets

forth in sufficient detail the method of apportionment to allow each landowner or resident within

proposed Annexation No. 8 to clearly estimate the maximum amount that such person will have to
pay.

2
Exhibit A Page 2 of 8

269- 275 West Center Street, Covina



The special tax proposed to be levied within Annexation No. 8 for services to be supplied

within Annexation No. 8 shall be equal to the special tax levied to pay for the same services in CFD
No. 2007- 1, to the extent that the actual cost of providing the services in Annexation No. 8 is
equivalent to the cost of providing those services in CFD No.  2007- 1. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the special tax may not be levied at a rate that is higher than the maximum special tax
authorized to be levied pursuant to the First Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

The special taxes herein authorized, to the extent possible, shall be collected in the same

manner as ad valorem property taxes and shall be subject to the same penalties, procedure, sale and
lien priority in any case of delinquency as applicable for ad valorem taxes.  Any special taxes that
may not be collected on the County tax roll shall be collected through a direct billing procedure by
the City Treasurer.

The maximum special tax rate in CFD No. 2007- 1 shall not be increased as a result of the

annexation of Annexation No. 8 to CFD No. 2007- 1.

SECTION 8 Public Hearing. Notice is given that on the 7th day of July, 2015, at the hour
of 7: 30 p.m., in the regular meeting place of the City Council being the Covina City Hall located at
125 E. College Street Covina, CA 91723, a public hearing will be held where this City Council will
consider the authorization for the annexation ofAnnexation No. 8 to CFD No. 2007- 1, the proposed

method and apportionment of the special tax to be levied with Annexation No. 8 and all other

matters as set forth in this Resolution of Intention.

At such public hearing, the testimony of all interested persons for or against the annexation of
Annexation No. 8 or the levying of special taxes within Annexation No. 8 will be heard.

At such public hearing, protests against the proposed annexation of Annexation No. 8, the
levy of special taxes within Annexation No. 8 or any other proposals contained in this resolution may
be made orally by any interested person. Any protests pertaining to the regularity or sufficiency of
the proceedings shall be in writing and shall clearly set forth the irregularities or defects to which
objection is made. All written protests shall be filed with the City Clerk prior to the time fixed for the
public hearing. Written protests may be withdrawn at any time before the conclusion of the public
hearing.

SECTION 9 Majority Protest.  If (a) 50% or more of the registered voters, or six ( 6)

registered voters, whichever is more, residing within CFD No. 2007- 1, ( b) 50% or more of the

registered voters, or six( 6) registered voters, whichever is more, residing within Annexation No. 8,
c) owners of one-half or more of the area of land in the territory included in CFD 2007- 1, or ( d)

owners of one-half or more of the area of land in the territory included in Annexation No. 8, file
written protests against the proposed annexation of Annexation No. 8 to CFD No. 2007- 1 and such

protests are not withdrawn so as to reduce the protests to less than a majority, no further proceedings
shall be undertaken for a period of one year from the date of the decision by the City Council on the
annexation of Annexation No. 8 to CFD 2007- 1.

SECTION 10 Notice. Notice of the time and place of the public hearing shall be given by
the City Clerk by publication in a legally designated newspaper of general circulation, in the territory

3
Exhibit A Page 3 of 8

269- 275 West Center Street, Covina



of Annexation No. 8 and CFD 2007- 1 pursuant to Section 6061 of the Government Code. Said

publication shall be completed at least seven( 7) days prior to the date set for the public hearing and
shall contain the information prescribed in Section 53322 of the Act.

SECTION 11 The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of June, 2015.

John C. King, Mayor

ATTEST:

Evelyn Leach

Interim Chief Deputy City Clerk, City of Covina

APPROVED AS TO FORM;

City Attorney

4
Exhibit A Page 4 of 8

269- 275 West Center Street, Covina



CERTIFICATION

I, Evelyn Leach, Interim Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, hereby CERTIFY

that Resolution No. 15- 7353 was adopted by the Covina City Council at a regular meeting of the City

Council held this 2nd day of June, 2015, and was approved and passed by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Evelyn Leach

Interim Chief Deputy City Clerk

5
Exhibit A Page 5 of 8

269- 275 West Center Street, Covina



EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION

ANNEXATION MAP

6
Exhibit A Page 6 of 8

269- 275 West Center Street, Covina



oo c, 3

o

U

3nN3nv aae s

1 i

a)

1
N

1
N

I

1

W
r W

WCrCC

O CO viT
O w

N z0 w

Z m1 z

0

co 1-- I

p V N
a• f'" U   g

NQ•     > = zc P"a

LL J 7 n

0WV) OOO
I U v 3f1N3AV HD S 1Q J J   ”,      a»

XUm
oy

1 i
W Q =
Z LL a

Z I
n
2

O I

I
5

g
4 w p s

o

h W H

m
d

C[(G O7$ 

x5g
a Vwoo ozS

g

ii Orv w Wr" g2     1-   20. 5wm a
w

w awl o 8= 1o$$     6mog.   TO.       Z a1Iy-paz= o  -+ muSVOO w v+  
xx

U_

s
WwF-iuegt

G   

O y
t L

vi;

a i 
n

l
a)

w 0   =, 7,      6 w_      wA
1'

wC Ely
oh

i=       ...
1....11

OSR TiT w wq!     E ug4Y   . g w°., 13

q   .S1W 1 as z o2 2,   0 w ;  c

mGUP
O 6'

wW VV w200 CY mUUV   CLUYYUUU111111- mmm     , y8      o



EXHIBIT B TO RESOLUTION

FIRST AMENDED RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

8
Exhibit A Page 8 of 8

269- 275 West Center Street, Covina



FIRST AMENDED

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

CITY OF COVINA

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2007- 1 ( PUBLIC SERVICES)

A special tax as hereinafter defined shall be levied on and collected for Community Facilities District
No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services) of the City of Covina(" CFD No. 2007- 1") each Fiscal Year, commencing
in Fiscal Year 2007- 2008, in an amount determined by the City Council of the City of Covina through
the application of the appropriate Special Tax for" Developed Property," as described below. All of the

real property in CFD No. 2007- 1, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof,shall be taxed for
the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner herein provided.

A.  DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Act" means the Mello- Roos Communities Facilities Act of 1982 as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

Administrative Expenses" means any actual ordinary and necessary expense of the City of
Covina, or designee thereof or both, to carry out the administration of CFD No. 2007- 1 related to
the determination of the amount of the levy of the Special Tax, the collection of the Special Tax
including the expenses of collecting delinquencies, the payment of a proportional share of salaries
and benefits of any City employee whose duties are directly related to the administration of CFD
No. 2007- 1, fees and expenses for counsel, Special Tax consultant and other consultants hired by
the City in relation to CFD No. 2007- 1, costs associated with responding to public inquiries
regarding CFD No. 2007- 1, and costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized
purposes of CFD No. 2007- 1.

Affordable Housing" means any Unit within CFD No. 2007- 1 that is subject to a written and
recordable covenant, deed restriction, resale restriction, regulatory agreement or similar agreement
with either the City of Covina or the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Covina, which restricts
the amount of rent for that Unit to " affordable rent" ( as that term is defined in California Health

and Safety Code Section 50053) for a period of not less than fifty-five (55) years, or which restricts
the purchase price for that Unit to" affordable housing cost" ( as that term is defined in California

Health and Safety Code Section 50052. 5) for a period of not less than forty-five (45) years. A Unit
shall no longer be considered Affordable Housing following the expiration or termination of the
applicable covenant, restriction or agreement.

Annual Escalation Factor" means for the Special Tax, the greater of( i) two percent( 2. 00%), or

ii) the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for the Calendar Year ending in December
of the prior Fiscal Year.

Assessor' s Parcel" means a lot or parcel of land designated on an Assessor' s Parcel Map with an
assigned Assessor' s Parcel number within the boundaries of CFD No. 2007- 1.

City of Covina January 20, 2009
Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 EXHIBIT B TO RESOLUTION 15- 7353 Page 1



Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating parcels
by Assessor' s Parcel number.

Base Year" means Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2008.

Boundary Map" means the map of the boundaries for CFD No. 2007- 1, as approved by the City
Council, and recorded with the County in maps of assessments and community facilities districts.

Building Permit" means a permit for new construction for a residential dwelling Unit. For
purposes of this definition, " Building Permit" shall not include permits for construction or

installation of retaining walls, utility improvements, or other such improvements not intended for
human habitation.

Calendar Year" means the period commencing January 1 of any year and ending the following
December 31.

CFD Administrator" means an official of the City, or designee thereof, responsible for
determining the Special Tax Requirements and providing for the levy and collection of the Special
Tax.

CFD No. 2007- 1" means Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services) established
by the City under the Act.

City" means the City of Covina.

City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the Legislative Body of CFD No.
2007- 1, or its designee.

Consumer Price Index" means the index published by the U.S. Department ofLabor, Bureau of
Labor Statistics for all urban consumers in the Los Angeles-Riverside- Orange County area.

County" means the County of Los Angeles.

Developed Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels within CFD No. 2007- 1 for which Building
Permits were issued on or before May 1 preceding the Fiscal Year for which the Special Tax is
being levied, provided that a Final Map was created on or before January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year
and that each such Assessor' s Parcel is associated with a Lot, as determined reasonably by the City
and/ or CFD administrator.

Exempt Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels within CFD No. 2007- 1 designated as being
exempt from the Special Tax as determined in Section F.

Final Map" means a subdivision of property evidenced by the recordation of a final map, parcel
map, or lot line adjustment, pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act (California Government Code
Section 66410 et seq.) or the recordation of a condominium plan pursuant to California Civil Code
1352 that creates individual lots for which Building Permits may be issued without further
subdivision.

Fiscal Year" means the period commencing on July 1 of any year and ending the followingJune
30.

City of Covina January 20, 2009
Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 EXHIBIT B TO RESOLUTION 15- 7353 Page 2



Lot" means an individual legal lot created by a Final Map for which a Building Permit could or
has been issued.

Maximum Special Tax" means the Maximum Special Tax determined in accordance with

Section C, which can be levied by CFD No. 2007- 1 in any Fiscal Year on Taxable Property within
CFD No. 2007- 1.

Mixed-Use Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property for which Building
Permit(s) have been issued for purposes of constructing Non-Residential Property and Residential
Property. Residential Units on Mixed-Use Property shall be classified as Multi-Family Residential.

Multi-Family Residential" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property for which a
Building Permit has been issued for purposes of constructing a residential structure consisting of
two or more residential Units that share common walls, including, but not limited to, duplexes,
triplexes, town homes, condominiums, apartment Units, and residential Units on Assessor' s Parcels

that are considered Mixed-Use Property.

Non-Residential Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels for which a Building Permit was issued
for any type of non-residential use.

Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 2007- 1 that is owned
by or irrecoverably dedicated to the City, the federal government, the State of California, the
County, CFD No. 2007- 1, or other public agency. For purposes of this definition, property owned
by the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Covina is not considered Public Property and any
property owned by the Redevelopment Agency will be subject to the levy of a Special Tax in
accordance with Sections C and D herein.

Public Services" means new police services, fire protection and suppression services, paramedic

services, and park maintenance, including but not limited to (i) the costs of contracting services,( ii)
related facilities, equipment, vehicles, ambulances, fire apparatus and supplies, (iii) the salaries and

benefits of City and Fire District staff that directly provide police services, fire protection and
suppression services, paramedic services, and park maintenance, and ( iv) City and Fire District
overhead costs associated with providing such services within CFD No. 2007- 1. The Special Tax
provides only partial funding for police, fire protection services, paramedic services, and park
maintenance.

Special Tax" means any special tax authorized to be levied by CFD No. 2007- 1 pursuant to the
Act to fund the Special Tax Requirement.

Single- Family Residential" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property for which a
Building Permit has been issued for purposes of constructing one single- family residential dwelling
Unit.

Taxable Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels within CFD No. 2007- 1 that are not exempt
from the levy of the Special Tax.

Tax Class" means any of the classes listed in Table 1 below.

Undeveloped Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels within CFD No. 2007- 1 for which Building
Permits have not been issued and that is not classified as Approved Property or Public Property.

City of Covina January 20, 2009
Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 EXHIBIT B TO RESOLUTION 15- 7353 Page 3



Unit" means any separate residential dwelling unit in which a person or persons may live, which
comprises an independent facility capable of conveyance separate from adjacent residential
dwelling units and is not considered to be for commercial or industrial use.

B.   CLASSIFICATION OF ASSESSOR'S PARCELS

Each Fiscal Year, beginning with Fiscal Year 2007- 2008, each Assessor' s Parcel within CFD No. 2007- 1
shall be classified as Developed Property or Exempt Property. In addition, each Fiscal Year, beginning
with Fiscal Year 2007- 2008, each Assessor' s Parcel of Developed Property shall be further classified as
Single-Family Residential, Multi-Family Residential, or Mixed-Use Property.

C.  MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor' s Parcel classified as Single- Family Residential, Multi-
Family Residential, and Mixed-Use Property in Fiscal Year 2007- 2008 shall be equal to the Maximum
Special Tax set forth in Table 1.

TABLE 1

MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX RATES

Fiscal Year 2007- 2008

Tax Class Description
Maximum

Special Tax

1 Single-Family Residential 527 per Unit

2 Multi-Family Residential 395 per Unit

3 Mixed- Use Property 395 per Unit

For each subsequent Fiscal Year following the Base Year, the Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor' s
Parcel classified as Developed Property shall be adjusted by the Annual Escalation Factor.

Multiple Tax Classes

In some instances an Assessor' s Parcel may contain more than one Tax Class. The Maximum Special
Tax levied on such Assessor' s Parcel shall be the sum of the Maximum Special Tax that can be imposed

on all Tax Classes located on that Assessor' s Parcel.

D.  METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

Commencing with Fiscal Year 2007- 2008, and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the Special Tax shall be
levied on each Assessor' s Parcel of Developed Property at the applicable Maximum Special Tax as set
forth in Section C.

E.   TERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be levied in perpetuity to fund Public Services provided to CFD No. 2007- 1.

City of Covina January 20, 2009
Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 EXHIBIT B TO RESOLUTION 15- 7353 Page 4



F.   EXEMPTIONS

The City shall classify as Exempt Property: ( i) Public Property, ( ii) Non-Residential Property, ( iii)
Undeveloped Property, ( iv) Affordable Housing, or ( v) Assessor' s Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for other purposes than those set forth in the easement.

G.  APPEALS

Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct may file a
written notice of appeal with the City Council not later than twelve months after having paid the first
installment of the Special Tax that is disputed. A representative( s) of CFD No. 2007- 1 shall promptly
review the appeal, and if necessary, meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence
regarding the amount of the Special Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative' s decision requires
that the Special Tax for an Assessor' s Parcel be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, a
cash refund shall not be made, but an adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on that Assessor' s
Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s).

H.  MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Taxes shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad
valorem property taxes, provided, however, that CFD No. 2007- 1 may collect the Special Taxes at a
different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet its financial obligations.

City of Covina January 20, 2009
Community Facilities District No. 2007- 1 EXHIBIT B TO RESOLUTION 15- 7353 Page 5



EXHIBIT B

RESOLUTION NO.  15- 7354

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING BOUNDARY MAP SHOWING TERRITORY
PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED IN THE FUTURE TO COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2007- 1 ( PUBLIC SERVICES)

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covina, California, (hereafter referred to as

the " City Council"), formed a Community Facilities District, designated as Community Facilities
District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services) (" CFD No. 2007- 1"), pursuant to the terms and provisions

of the " Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982", being Chapter 2. 5, Part 1, Division 2,
Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended ( the " Act"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to initiate proceedings to annex certain territory to
CFD No. 2007- 1; and

WHEREAS, there has been submitted a map showing the territory proposed to be
annexed to CFD No. 2007- 1, said area to be designated as Community Facilities District No.
2007- 1 ( Public Services), Annexation No. 8 ( hereafter referred to as " Annexation No. 8").

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the City Council of
the City of Covina, as follows:

SECTION 1 Recitals.  The above recitals are all true and correct.

SECTION 2 Annexation Map.  The map showing Annexation No. 8 to be subject to the
levy of a special tax upon the annexation of such territory to CFD No. 2007- 1 is hereby approved
and adopted.  Such map is designated by the name of" Annexation Map No. 8 of Community
Facilities District No. 2007- 1 ( Public Services), City of Covina, County of Los Angeles, State of
California."

SECTION 3 Certificate.  A certificate shall be endorsed on the original and on at least
one  ( 1)  copy of the map of Annexation No.  8,  evidencing the date and adoption of this
Resolution, and within fifteen days after the adoption of the Resolution of Intention fixing the
time and place of the Public Hearing to annex Annexation No. 8 to CFD No. 2007- 1, a copy of
said map shall be filed with the correct and proper endorsements thereon with the Los Angeles
County Recorder, all in the manner and form provided for Section 3111 of the Streets and
Highways Code of the State California.

SECTION 4 The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution.

1

Exhibit B Page 1 of 2



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of June, 2015.

John C. King, Mayor

ATTEST:

Evelyn Leach

Interim Chief Deputy City Clerk, City of Covina

APPROVED AS TO FORM;

City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Evelyn Leach, Interim Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, hereby

CERTIFY that Resolution No. 15- 7354 was adopted by the Covina City Council at a regular

meeting of the City Council held this 2nd day of June, 2015, and was approved and passed by the

following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Evelyn Leach

Interim Chief Deputy City Clerk

2
Exhibit B Page 2 of 2



of Cop

K.; i„8rriil%
tIF iRfi

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE:   June 2, 2015
ITEM NO. NB 2

STAFF SOURCE:   Debbie Pacheco, Acting Finance Director
Steven Smith, Senior Management Analyst

ITEM TITLE: Review of User Fees

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Review attached User Fees.

FISCAL IMPACT

The exact dollar impact across funds is currently unknown. However, any changes in fees will
move the City closer toward full cost recovery for services rendered.

BACKGROUND

The California Government Code allows cities to recover all or a portion of the cost of providing

services through the application of fees.   The fee charged may not exceed the actual cost to
provide the service or use of a facility.

In the past, the fee study has been updated and adopted every five (5) years.

In June 2014, the City contracted with Willdan Financial Services ( Consultant) to update the
City' s cost allocation plan and user fees. The methodology employed to determine the City' s
cost of the services it provides included:

The fully-allocated employee cost per hour, which consists of an employee' s full
salary and benefits, plus total overhead was calculated; and
A " time survey" to determine the position( s) and time required to provide each
service.  Times were based on minutes spent for each service and reflect an

average for each fee.

Each department was interviewed by the Consultant in July and August.  Each department was

then sent the fee worksheet which was completed with information regarding employees time
and position in order to calculate the fee.   Thereafter, the Finance department met with each

department to review the information provided and recommend changes as necessary. Based on
the data collected, the fees as presented on the attached charts accurately reflect the cost of the
service provided.



Exhibit A details the type of fee, the full cost of providing the service related to that fee, the
current fee, the recommend cost recovery level, the suggested fee, and the amount of increase or
decrease. Some fees show a proposed decrease over the current charge being assessed. This
reflects the current cost of providing that service.

While 100% cost recovery is generally recommended, there are instances when a lower recovery
amount may be considered.  For instance, certain recreation program fees may be set at a lower
cost recovery amount to encourage participation to achieve other important policy

considerations.  In other instances, certain fees are capped by state or federal statutes.

The most significant addition to the City' s fee schedule is the inclusion of a General Plan
Recovery Fee.  The revenue generated by this fee will be set aside to fund future General Plan
updates and is assessed as a percentage of building permits.   Building permits are the most
commonly used method of recovering General Plan update costs as most activities include a
building permit. The proposed General Plan Recovery Fee is based on an assumption of the
General Plan update costing $ 750,000 with the cost being recovered over 12 years. Based on
estimated annual building permit revenue of$ 555, 000, this equates to 11. 3% of building permit
costs.  Additionally, it is recommended that that if a General Plan Amendment and Zone Change
are filed simultaneously, that a 50% " discount" be applied to those costs.

Each department has provided a recommended percentage of recovery.  However, Council has

the discretion to change the cost recovery level up to 100% of the cost of providing the service as
desired.   At a Council meeting in August, a policy which will set the framework for future
recovery of fees will be presented for adoption.

This item will be presented at a public hearing at the June 16, 2015 Council meeting and
following the hearing, staff will recommend adoption of a resolution establishing a Citywide Fee
Schedule.

EXHIBITS

A.  Fee Study

Respectfully submitted

Debbie Pacheco, Acting Finance Director
Finance



0 0 0
o 0 0

ra 1•• 1I eef av

0

v
CO

b
y

v v in. an. v       

M

M O pp pp
y

Ny

v
LL N 7
v

41

00bA

4I 1/!

O

o

O v 0 0 0 0 0

av
v

f—

en  O O O C
ouioum m

N To

NNLL
CN

Su

Z01 in N Z
node
33 i

o
N

LL I

O

m

w uo

o a'.

5
V C

6

o

T
C'

a y
v

m U,

O N e 41
Z    < sd

C
a/

F

a)    
a)'

CO

u N

AV1
3 t 0

W a,°
C .

j
co s °"

r' N U U' N°

CU
A\  C Y  N W1 In N

V
O U cc .CUCUCU

U U U U
C

r

J' J Jy

v
N      N,   NB a7al v1 VI N. U
a)    ` N
a C C C; 6—

N Y IA N N= Li7I
TIu1 LL•    a<. co m colv



88e8 8      
@@§ @ @      §

4

2
A•  4"      -      

X
m

k\      

z zzzz z J

IS mr.  m   !
e r2    ;   :ti      ,

0oE
23

1 11 n

C
E       .

IlL 
C   .    ;
g 3 (

o

a
t

o   2      -0•      

a    .

I.  
r12

U  \ 
s /      /

E 1 k k k
E.'

0      «

a  ;   a

r\/
a +co

E f§ f

k 8•  2.2.     -        -
k !! !   :

5:       t6 \

E
u 1-

l;      a Lk && K k a



N.
i e91 O O 4 0

0 O O 00 00
O O a a0 0 6 6N O ui vi

v

M

G

0v
V

v
U

AA LIP N V! L•   N N N N N N LY N H N N

N p O pp '   u1 O O O O O p O O O O
N R O O N O O O 0 0 O O N N O

LL
O O u1 m N O      .-

1 011 N  . 0-1 N NLei N O O u1
0

C

W
a,      u

a
4

COCOD
L!   N L!  N N N N L> N Ll N i? iA L}  h

N
O

o v
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q Q Q 0 0 Q Q Q

U
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Z Z Z 0 O Z Z Z

1 N   .-- 1 N 1-- 1 1-- 1      .- 1     .-- I 1-- 1 N
a 3
v

v
CO

0
H

ON   . 0•
I O O110

0
0000 000 000 0/ O O O O O O
y.      E0 O O 0 N N 0

0 0 N N ( 5 O a N A W vi O 0 0 0 uicn
t L L L  .0 N N N

o u u u u u
1 0 0 0 0 0

LL
z z z Z a

vv

c
v

U
U

N 0 0 CO z N u1 ran Z Z Z Li'  10 Z Z ZO O In Oi O ui M In In
m N on N N

0
U

N

W
L}   L   N N N L}    CA LL LT O

M

o

c6 C,  c
0 r 0:  o

r N: N:N
o

E E^
E E E'  E
of UU 0

oo Ef h N.:.  N
ry

Xi U CU a,ry
COe

V

GA E!  r N N! tJ
C Or

CIJ
p O   ,       ' LL n.  a

CO

N

Inu
La

Y u vu a.
1

N ._     ._

0O LL N c..00. LL d
c.

U

8
a, =‘,. a co co. w

Vf:

aL-+ 
Li Y

A'  ( Ur,

RS Z w a, v a v v= v
a o{ In'.      OTIn In; In

H
m

V

cuL
a o u

i.r w 3
N Y yN.

AV
vg c v c' in' c

W

O

E E
a

o p E 0 E

cif,, 
E

r u p 0-    ar v a

erZ 0

a0',      
0

vp
00 N c

N
al

3          m      =     w

LLa
c p; c

E 04 '   0a o0

O
Y a O

C C O

D
u O

cu
to '

O C

U O
C,

y>,     
c i O

U
O ;  2

r'

E' C E
03 0, to
U U U U a"1 E E cow o o

O o01 0 U  . EE a>     

o.   
E E!.‘ 2.  p    ; 0 0 o

a

1 1
Q

o d o v E v n    =      c
0

0  . 6'  o u' o 0
c ` A

m1V a -'     ; w
o,   E g w zQ, a

a2, 
ttt ao `0 0 0 0 ° 

0
m n 0 > >

t'l m In In     " O  • pc_o Y
u

N   - o A p:  p     - p -p v `,,
o w w` a v w     _  

o u 0....  0.  X 0 2. 2 °VO

C h n O;r1

CO U U Cl '
U .e LL U Q u , 0.0.)). a Zg a co 0'



a 88 88 .or4 .o. 2 .o. 8 8 8 8888824 8 8 888885 8
N A '    n O O C C O

N
aC
N 0N0 N D D b tG O -  ' O

tN
f N

YM N Y N N M.-
1

co

C

N

N N of in y N N . A N N N of of of in in in in N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
F•`• I

888884 44 84/ 88888888888488888888888
o N V N N N C a a N G N O O1 N N Yf a G G G A N N O N M O of N d N YI VM m O O N N N N N N N N N N N N V N r,e.    N

F 1
v

N

N N in N of N in N of N in in N N N N of N N N in of N N N of of of N N N N in

O 7.
U >   

N -   N 0 -v >
pp ^ 

0 n N N ^ Z
pp

O O O O O O n - z 0
pp ^ 

8 - 0 ^ 
pp

0 0m N

ti v
5

88888 .4. 2 42 .4. 88888888888888 W y y8 y8 y8 yM M ..      0 0 0 .. O . 4
N V e V V O V V V .  .  N N Z Z Z •+ Z N Z Zv M N

Q V
v

v o

U

Q Q Q as v V N m m as as O O Q M N O N w O .. V N
w ao .. . w 4 too, a m Z Z Z N N N ao .. .. w .. O M Z m M w M v N o o a ..
co al N P 14 N N N M ai O O N O O O O N M O V  . o Q Y1 CO N N toV ..    M M M M M    .. .- I .. .. N N .. V I

O I N
U

N N of un N u! N N N N N of N N N of of u/ N u/ VT u/ N N N N VT. A N

RI'
a N

oO       ' 72 rw
O

O
v; 70,C C C C C C     , v,

2ac°      a

m m m m m m mm n

O" a a a Q a a"a' C
2 ` m 0. v'     in

1,- I m m m R- m la'   y J

a+ ` w ` m d ` w w m= di, m n

N m m m is m m" m
mE E E E E E E E
m,amm m m Tm m m

a
N a, m N N N R m Y

o N N N 5?, 
c S > > > > > > o 8     ° S

L

mz a a a a a a a a a a m a. w

co

a

a

L°t OG U

N

0 L
W

O

d EE
m w

Z
o aaN U     :     

E w    .  .    ` w

2. c S ; a. . m. a c
9E E E S S ` a a w a

U
w C v y w

c o m.c a o o 2 .
o

O    >    
c'   

5;& 0-;", 7, Th
O o C d

o

yJ
O:   N

is• 

a
E E a o

o

o
a V, o o

d    .. g.14

a

Y.     '   s.   c c 1
0 E o dmLL d t..    m g

LL

CA c c a

u 8 u u-=    
m   ' s

w
LL c    ¢

o
o m o

d 9-  o a
c w

VI VI V,

w cy u
LL c      ,

4 w w d w a w w Y d m O
o

e   °   >

w
aar

m m8 pi
m m

m m

u
o mv    °  

Na
z cLL . LL LL u`. i . . . 

mm O o
m

m
LL dM   .   LL

t')       
p 8 m 8 u u v u 8

a L L L m u G u u U. Q N
o N m ..,

m a m mm ma '  0 m a u = _Z Z Z Z 2 2 2 Q
m mm

m
m

m
m mm Qa o a n   . ~       0

co t A 9, g N N N 31 o 3 3 3 E E E E E E E E a, o a, E t < N o o } m y  
u+

I v

m m N N N N m m N N N m g 0 0 g 0 g g 0° U A p p d 6' N W N 6 LL 0   .fl
v ? ,. y .

2 E E E v 0

LL
a a s s` a s -) - a a a . n` 0 0 0 o J o 0 .. N a,

am.
o. w    .• 0 0 0. 0, t x_J m.      J J J. J, m: mcz J, J J; J;,Jim    _   ' uF J. U' S'_2 U; miai2:.



88888888888888 SSSBSSSSS 8888
P11 m 10 M 1C in f.1 N N H 10 N el. O . G . 0 In N N N 01 N 1 a1 .- i a1 0pf0 N N N N In M M1 N t0 N 00 M t0 . OE

al"'O
v

a F
a

f../yu
Iw

C
1•

iA N in in N in in N V! In. in Vf 4/ 1- N i,N in in V} in i? 4? IA IA N N 44 VI. 4l•   in• 1• V V1 i? V! x

888888888888888888888888888888888888 W
a,    000000 . 4 a0 auininva; .-iuiNvuiviui666c) a . 4aae: NaiuiN . 4taeiaa.,    a Iro Co N t0 01 01 01 01 01 Al Al M M N et 01 u1 N N O N u1 a1 N O N N a1 O O 01 inLL

I   .- I      ,. I ." I ri N M N N IM)
a)

tia)
byOA
vl

Vf VF in 4/ N i? Vf i V> V} V) in i? Vf 41 V? N N V> Vf V} V V! V} 44 Vf 44'. f V> y Vf V! N N 44 N V?

T

a)

0ual

o

v    'ulC) CD C) `^ ° o °oCDoU/ 
oo °Do

Z ZZZZZ vlu°i uul V) u°i1°r1iu)

aniuu°`

i1°ul " uiu°\

i3 
N g o o o g o z z z z z z o      ° o o°

J
N N N    ,- i N N N N ,- 1 N ^ N ^ ^ N r. h N N n c-1 N N ', i '-1

a)

O)

mI-

7 O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0Cr . 0 O OO O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O S O O O
m O u1 W ui try O O O O O N O 01 O O u1 ui In 0 0 0 0 O ui fry ui In O O a N N ui ui ui N
c- I

er . 0 t0 . 0 t0 01 a1 a1 O1 N en N N Al N R a1 u1 1- 1 N 0 u1 er n 00 N u1 In N I N N 00
O N N N N

NJ

A-u

ala)

a=a)

JU
N

a1 01 01 01 01 - I . 1 a ri 01 01 00 t0 .- 1 00 aT N N 00 t1 N N 00 u1 N a1 . 0 .- I N 00 Flyin . 0 . 0 t0 t0 N N N N N a a a1 O 00 en et N en N N O O 1f1 N 00 t0 In 01 01
00060  .-  o auiniNaio .- uNo el: uieo .4rrieriNl: re; .+ u .- ao Ot0 t0 N a1 a1 Q1 a1 a1 N M M M M N O1 N N N N N N N a N N M in

Su.

V? V! 46 Vf V} Vf V? Vf Vf iA N 44 iA 44 Vf Vf N 46 46 i? V} Vf in. V? Vf V> 44 V V} Vf

O a f I  °  B ED D I  .  n I 9     °  °  G
t   ]      

I     ;  
0 L J 1 F 0 0     ' F

7  °  

a

L  °

9
Ba 8

E

1 1 a a 1
S,   

a
a

0 Ill
a

L

h
Y II

L 4  °

a) a a)°    
a 6 9

Y a),
0) 

a 1

3 3
3v 0.4

N m s m^ a
o.°   

m 4 vg a°/igL.   

f0 a f0°   E'I
Y O,a NSN

N".   
a,      i

i 73,- 0 01e o O' 
C   ,  "

I CO

W a)"    3° NtN Y     a„ CV, y

Ca
on C ' Oa a a

O
a,:       v°   0) 0      >,  m1 N6 N •  °

ry-y
yg  .: Y a) Ni. 0° y'   f0 a), a) g a/ 

a), E w E o a Ta

Ilif,   
C    '

id-  1
fl  . a    , i

4Jy

g  ,      a pi m p fo>    °
4 a'

O a 3 c9
N oo.

1nv o ac,  a a
N , rCO ' O f0 Y `-' o. O

t° OO  °- a > 
f0 g

u

YI vi >° N a a v1 . a e N a

n

OCO
am

ti y O V'sY  - 

U- 
0) — a >  '  >",..°       a- Dg a Ogg C Via' O' I°> w      ' 1; va

3 u, v, CO r°a,    co,;? T mE o x nn

00
6 0.,Y 3 N 00 Og f0 f0`

3 ig co,  a 2 a   --
i- r7,'`,13r---i  -   y

O Oaig`      Cg
v a1. 3, Y N1m

F— W8 d i> a L      C F     °....° h ti 04  ° a1 £°   Fug
V W a) 0o a)     . a._:     ° a, 4 i, na an       _ s

U4.     °

C N„ C J C J V
H a tl.=     '•.

O 3 a c C c ' c °
a

aN)
g > g N..> .. o `°

a N. Ee y°  v'   f0 '' 
f"0 a) u° nv o C 7 cu."'CgCg00 m 1n u w- Via O) a

C CO O O.a f0 Cl." o N¢ E C C. 7 E,      01 N _ I - a v-> a)    Oo a E O O W

QZ/
C

U H f0

U- 

S'
0 - C—t+ +'C+a( 0

o-
1

N°O'   2 Wgc0° W Ud co 0°' a u .' a+

d-' 
7,, O°-°o. E 7 -o >

s

oa

it ° 0 f6
0. 0 0 O' >- 9c'+ 2' w' i y1y jy floo o > E'>, E —" ` 2° a, g3 ' m ° ca

VI
0_      . n m 1.- W > Y..> >„ co, r;y. Og NB Y-   Za L Lei-, cgl7 a` VI cg a1 a :ae N c. ° g 'r

h N  ,  ,,    a. a wM > X fa: C' i
Ca

C9 C', C! C a)°   0
y   

co_., VI E O Oe
C_ ` UJ O ( 0U   ' ` 

O O O? O ala a/ B a) o; c`,°
Jgw.

WaU Llg W1W W' WgW a'
f0 ' A CO COa>' a>' ial a1 G)9C 2-

lat..1 0 73 ya a~i'. y` va3g3L3. 30 E° t'',t) 1 Og O
Cd_°

1'

O ' O'
OC'° 

aat
V

Y Yevuv ~' N. moo, Z co
O. E    > ac ò m mamam E° a) ° a) a, g3 7 Eg 1-,,. 0_    C°N fa   ° a.o

CUs
a1a a) a)° E OJ

a)° Cs C.

co
v a/ .+ aJ a1°.+ 

co    > >.
Ou U a) a U Cc

a a   y   °   -
J . 

a, a y a a) a) p 3 c2 o{ a1, a) g , 0 Q
m; m, m m     )       co co    < <_

j

a a1 •.- a c a1 . o°W   ; :_ q_..,; a agago_;awl.na. nR. n1w°–,; aaafa, a 0-' 0-,>, V) 33"1n, 1n,. n°¢ a¢, g g z mg



888     ' VI 8 8 88888 8888888 83338888888 88 88
t0 01    ' O Ci O F "   wi O N

4 4 e4 4 ' N g n u1 uO ei . 4    `      uO uS uO M OD O O 00 g `  `   g} •- 100 eV

0
N .  N N 04 1 00

O

aa;     
1

v
ii

I I
N in in in V N in i? V N in N N N in V N N N 10 N V N 4/ 1. in in N N N 1/ 1. 4," V ? in in V V i? in VI i? V i? N N at:

0. 1
8 p

8 A N N N p p p p
N p p p p p " p pp

8
p pp p p

8 A A p p p p 8 p 8 p p p p p 8 p p x
LL

i 0 O O C
N D C N 0 N  . a ff 111 ~ . N V g C tG C     

1R Cr.;   S N
0

N O X;M S N N T IV
ei

N

v
1DOD

4/ 1. 46. 424 Vl i? i? i? i? V/ iA i?Vl i? Vf i? i?   i? V) i? i?N N i?       in i+ i? i? i? i4 in i4 iA in i? in i? i? i? in N i? in

v
0

v

0
2

0 0 0
2 gas:

0 0
2 ae

0
azg

0
2 0 0 0

as" 

0 0 0 0

3pc" 

0 0 0 0 0
X 0 0 0 0 0 0

2
0 0 egg 0

g 2
0 0o v 0 8 8 8 888 8 8 8 88 8 88 88 88 8 88 88 88 8 8 8 8 8 8

88
88 88 8 8 8 8 88 88 88 ° 0 8 0° 8 88 8 88 88 8 8 88 88V >   H H H H H H H M H H H H H H H H H H '• I H H H H H H H H H M H H H H H H H H H H H H H H e- 1 H

11QI

Nm

F

888 E . 1 ° ° 8880H888H8 08888888 8 8 ..IHH8 88pp8p888888888 i88
O~   

M .^•
1 N > C O O N m N

H O H ei H O . y
6 10i 10 .

NO.
1

u01 N I-1 N N m 0 0 0

001 R A 4D O .- I a .y N ••O-
I N r4

g ... .^ 
M

N 3
H N N M N N H

Q in

N N

C

C
N

u

3A. 44u11n1nNQQ ulHaowooHQw . iooA81n1n Q 0rr4g ominaolnu+ AQaQOn ao NNA.  . Z N N N Z Z N 1 ul IN ul Z 01 N N P 00 M z N N P in' N 10 O1 N aT P\\\ F. ul O 0 O
O1 { O u1 O O CI N ui 0 to 10 b d O N O M ui .- 1 w t0 uS . 0 614 N N .- 1 N N Of Z Z Z .- I O1 ri ss aN 0 M N .- 1 N , 1 N 10 0 0 1n M N N

Oy O N   ^   1n N I N N a0i1 1 N OD a N 01 N in

N N N N

Ni n A N N N i?     N i? i?i?V/ i? N   ? i? i? i? i? N N i? ? N N N N i? V .. A. in i? N N N N in

Q

Aa nj

V

41).H0W m

Y
W D
C C
C

a

V  .     N
O'

n N O11 H
O.Fw

O
01N u1 %  iU N N N

o

W m N 0 0 U U U

ES
1n y u C7 C7 ( 0 8

o
O . O tD O g,     D T      ?

ai
01 0

C7 l7 17 ` w o m w w N COg
a mz n o. o.i 0o. o Ef oL 3        o.

v8 w vn

tel
21. 1 21 E.    RED i.

n ° n8

na n, 0''   dew m

c
V

m
w

w   . 0
0 C0   °

a
C

u"     yo

a

LL m

ws    , w?   >
cc

L'       2 S o,':   ° w
r c      °   b

v E c du LL E
z w   °       a1 Eo 0 o Z m N c y a

10  _ u m
Z _       

Q        N C a,.r, W N C u C a1 N _'
0

CJ     ., 
21 u O1     ; G1 f0

N      
O,

N
U 7!  N

It

iwn
m c '

u  . o•     °, 
v 1,      c` wi E c m 1      ° w' :E °

a'
m

cJcc
c f0a

i..M V   ' a, O w
a;      3 9.' Z       °

y 2 1 N N @ al m aJ y a1

cu afad' K U N ay°.°      E C' 7 O J°  z E y o.   °
1     ` 1 A N as a1 N U a1

c E, c,
c c m

L-      ° 
o o

a1
f-   

t'N a1 moo'" e`  .   c J a+ w 0 u cQ H 7

cam`
d y .°' o.     n' „ 2-0. q*,°  > w o c o 4 c

o f p  :; c-`,   

o c .0

0
v '2  >     o

u
U 8 U° N ..

E•
t,UJ o Q H o • o U m, c Ln' re w o   -'' ' tE co.   a .°_ .°1.. E ° y

E E w = =  c ' o u
i.,
e=._ 

E xa,accmvp= 
2ua-      

o7u - 
urau•',       a.

0 «,° 
p > ay , 0. 2 CC a  .2.

LL m  °°` m
m m-- '-   w m° r .H•

1 °   c w v v 0;. 8 u,        to oa u_   >   r U m   u u to 4 c.
Mfr o U Zia it Q 1a_ 3 3 f a12 a  2ue m

t 0 0 0 - 0
0

o o m c Y m It m;Q > U > J  1'    J J 07 U a N LLQ L U U U N N    Q4C.j



88.. 8888 88888 8 8 88888888888888888 888888888 8
0a a       R a ^ n 00 N u 0 N O P N 4 . i N pi 01 01 N O G N wC P Of C1 e N N M1 M1 O Ofl M    .     N V N 1 p C O1 00 V ID V VD IA N P ID ill IA IA N ID N M V IDv en 0

t0 O
I ` N . i N M

0

N

v

N Vl N 4A N V/ V$ N V) N V) V/  N N N N N N Vf N N N Vf V$ N V) N N VT V$ VT N N 44 VT V$ V) V/ V) VT N

8 8 8 8 8 8 0 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8888 8 8888 8 8 88 8 8 8 88888 8 8 8 8 8 8
paX

N N N     ~ O . bO  . Nf0 ~ . 0gx8N N 0C pO N bei . I m ... 1 1    . I 1. 4 N . l  . I m IH b ,  .       N       - 1 m N 1

v t
i 4;   4; I/ ti

Q WN

CC003

N N V, V} V} V}   V1 VT 4n N V,  N Vr V, 44 VT V) VT V1 44 4A VT VL N N VT Vf 4n VY 44 Of VA N VI• 4n V1 V, N VT N

0

O N

Y
p E oe e o o * e e e e e e *  e o  * * o00 * * o00e * * e oo * * * o0 * * * * e o

o
8 8 8

p o
8

o
8 8 8 8 8 8 p 8 p p p 8 o 8 8 p p 8 8 8 p p p o 8 p p p 8 8 8 p pN N N .  .  .  .  . - e  , .  .  .  e     -   .  . - '  .  .  e  - e  .  .  e  - M -    e  - N e  .  .  - N N N  -

ro 0H uvK
a 8888888888888 888888888vg888o88888888888dd
M Ifl In 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 lfl O O If) VI Ifl O V1 In V1 Ifl Z Z O O

co;    
0 0 V1 Q O O O O Q I/ 1 Ifl Z ZN P

IR O M O N In N O1 D1 Ln O Q  .- I . i N Ifl ID . 4 aa D;       00 00 N 1C N N .- 1 .- 1 N . i 00 .- 1E'; .1 O In m N M N ei N N N N N N ei O N es? x O M In CO ID M en ei M en N ID x en

T    . i .i I ei    .- 1 i       . g N N ei D.

Q

2j

v

7
V    {

Ipp a
e4i ID M N 000 W Z 1Dan W {

MNp
m N M IN 4. 124

oa
l0D t0D 100fl n ID O 2 ' 4.' 2 01 . Oi

t0.Q0')
1 O 00 . Oi . Oi Iin

Or. pr. 
O IOn M 221

V N . ai N enn
co co

N N . i N . Wi  . 0i N M IOn ei ID .^. 1 . 0i 1 000 f1 0 .- 1 .. 4.0i 1011 [ ail lO 000 N . 1° i eei . 0.1 Mat M N a IQfI tit
i N i

N N 4n VT VT V/   4A V1 44 V1 VT V)   VI•  N VT Vf V} N H N N N V) VT V/ V) 44 44 V) VT N N 4A V/ V} 4n V} V) N

CO,, 8 of o o ' 6':,0 u u u u: v.
C°     

u ° ° u ° ° 8 ° °•

E O C C C c cl C C C C C C C C C O
c

a,       c, C C C c' 8 3 c c c c c c c c c
v

m o 0 0 o O:
0 2

u; u u, u u
o
u 8 8 8 8 8 8- 8 8 8

0,Z o'     -       a.. a. a:asa,a a a a a a a a a a a.

0

CO
a a

C
E o W
0 a

w P.a .

CO

C U
o 0

o CO    '

L E C°

C
CO

r.',

a C

Y 00

iii
W Clo,      

3 aC
w

m°'  

o
o v

oow..    e v E a o
c`.,     c    =    C w a

a1
L.;

5 ,..;     u C 0   ,- 0 CO E

000
O" O

Ea..  3 a      .     
f

C O C >       91   ; Ei
m

L

CO   , a
w

O 0 CO'   C a>'   

C

C 41
H

c
CO c

C 0 C COi E vv C o EU5 E ffi    ° c c m m
O v

4)       0—     

O    .
9 a

E
c' E 0

o w 0 1v E COc, h 0 CO CC 0 CCCa CO
Ili

u

Y ° v cof w
o    °    

c
m, 

E „ m i m      ' 
c2

120 v    L' c o o o m    >  c
CM3             

s 1n C y Z 

2- 

8 o N N w

E
m E E E E E

3
41 o aw

a - m E c w' Y E E E E E E°      ai +
1,

16-:   Co: o m a s tit t ut 3` a   ,\ e E':^

a

o.
L.    ar

O d
o

3
0 w 0 0 w u 9 E c E c r    - ° w Y s o  , 6«    « «' o v co0 4 C «,    
a a a a a aE E u

v
a ` o u

m m m m     ,  ° 
CO

3m on2 . CO
a 0 v C 0   °       C C CO i    .n

m c1
n' v'

U o w a a
C

0 L -  • 0   °
DW

1

C
CO

O CO O CO CO CO C CO CO i a 7 0 0 0    ` 
CO a    >    .. C

LL

C 114 c  .  > V C C
C V 0

ym COv E E E E E E o v•   v u v
0

C u u    \ \ \ \ Y a    -
4
J

UJ

b CO o o > O ' O O r:L L L Y L L CO CO 11 CO 11 N 13 21"., O
a) w y EEE CO CO- 

o t C a Lm m v m c a   : m m m 0  ,  m m 3 w; m w      : 
i° ° 

V
ai c m m im,   

o
O  a a'   4' L

O O O O O O V       _ 
L N 6

C' C

E
m       «    i E u a . g m  «

Ea
F U 3;-_,

7 C CC
i W      , 

C C C C - 8 C ' C '
O

0 O CO NO O I C C C . 0 CO E E CO C O
O

c

COVN7,

WCO
1 W;   V UIf-; Di O! W W W W W ; W > JI. ..,. .,;,-, A.: 0 <].. 

WWp

W QHI- -! - I-;>, i 0. 11 0_ C a



8 8 888888888888888888888 8 8 8 88 8 8888888888
01 01 v^ 10 O N D N 01

N
O nn N 0 N 10 N N M N ID 0 O O O

M

10 N 0a 0N O N IDD III 0000NM N N fO 00 N In N N N N 01 O N 1n N N Nvl M CO CO

v N i....   N N N N N N N N
0
c.

v
Io

L'    r ,

CelN N in N N N N N N N N N N N N N in N N y Vf in N V1 in in AA N V! N in N in in N N N N in N

8 8 88888888888888888888 O Op 88 G 8  ' 4888888888 x

w N N N 011

PM/
1 O

ni N N .NN O O h 101' l
co a 000 0 0 ONO N 000 ONt O O 8 N ( VI

it

U  . N^
y M N p01 0008 00 IID IMO .^ 0 000 WO O O M O N M O O N t0 00 O O N ID M M M M N N O O N ti  < 0 N M 10 O N N

0 00 00 00 N M 00 IA N M N N N N N N M M   ( VI N

C Q
a,   O
tip U

m7N
N N N N VN N N N N eA N N VN N N VN N in N N N N N N N Vp N N N N N N N N N N N N

0

O v
U >

7 J 0 0
00000000000x0

CCCe 00 o 00 0 0 0 0 0 o 0000000Y
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Z Z   <  

O O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 000 0 0 0 CO O O O O O O O O O O O O O Z Z Z O O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
v N   . ti  .- I  . ti N .-- I . N N .- t .-, N N . N .-, . ti '- 1 ti ti N N e- 1 t .-,  N  .- 1 N  ,-- 1 N N N .-- I N . 1 .-, .- I N
o3

T3 O

F- NK
O 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0. 0 0 0 8 0 8 8 O O O 8 8 G C O 8 ° ° 8

N

I, 8 y y y 0
t0 1.  N N tar: M IA acid O N tD O M 00 N O 1N O IO tD IO IO O O1 r U 1N  ! 1 00, N O Z ei Z Z Z OiN N N t0 M 00 00 10 N 0 0 CO 10 M 1/ 1 M N V

O
1f/

1
1 0t0D OD1 0D N C41

N A
N N N

N
N

N
n M.

01 1O1

IN
tM` 

N

0N 0N

oO
el

N O 0 N O

ui

1V1 N 00 N

N N N N N N 0.      NLL
Y

C .

M
Q

C1 0i N
U

ID ID to O at O M to O1 M 00 as ID 01 O N CO In N CO CO N Q Q Q O ID 0 W In 0 0 O1 0 N M N 00 N 0M M M O in N N CO N O N O 0 IA N N 01 O O1 CO N 01 Z Z Z 00 10 0 d M O O ID N N CO ID v, O N
I

00 00 00 N M N 00 00 N N N O O 00 M 00 N W N M 00 N IN O1 N A N 1C N t0 OC 00 .- 1 ni N N t0
N N N O1 M O N N N O O M M N O 00 O O 00 N 00 01

N CO M p N M N 01 00 O tO tO 111 M 003 O O M O N en O 0 N IO 00 O 0 N tD M M M M N N N N N M IO 0 N N
00 00 00 N M CO vi N 1r1 N N N N N N I

A N Vf in N N N eA N N 11 VN N N N N V> Vn N in N N Vp vs N N N N N N N N N N in H

N

I
I I Ov iI v

N N r-I

0.   02$   ; oe1 00
N

u 0 0
U

IOU U V

to la

U C O C O CO

o U p u p U
U

ill >      

U >a N >
7

m-0 a  ; a m a

tn    ‘ L -2. K.  ' N.

0
0Co 0C C

EEaEo
z 2 m1, m=C 2

C
a C

3 O

g'
O.

C0 C O 1    >      W

O
Q D

o

4  , a 7 , n n 3 of u

EN 8 uL     °   9 W9 a,

c C U   °  0 ;_ F.  E       . ! a,   °/

0 z c 1 m o a a£,      m a'    

aa,,
X.     

01 m
c o   °  a, y v W :   W ac

a 
c C o• > E °;    3    , a c a, u 3 a, c,

11, peace. ° c
oo p o '=U w   °   U  ' o ' o 3  > 3 u a

El e ao on, ea    ; U 0.4  '    , u, e c
p

UU         a,  z W
2`17

a, c   . c
a3-.

N N

Do m
o'+ E 3 r y a,  a w c m o'

ea C U V Y ' X x C  ,
U o d     ' C

U
0

a,  . c L N ea O = 

cp
C1

a m?      v1, W W 1. 5:.;E9
4 m  '' co w , OO, o o U 1

U o f v,     . E o 2 o

c;   c , W.
r

Q
v

u    -   
3 o7j, o w u QS; 9,

O.,       h    - W c h ti
N

v°

o X
c

p.    7 W   , a W W to 2 C O W6
2"

g W      £      E
o O

o   '" to C , o Jr, o
I v In E E C             

o,   
2 W

W
T V.   V 0

o a w a w o     ' E E      °
c_    r °

x '   .
0

0 3oti W y C >H 54-)      C •  [
r O  . 0 ~ W 1, E W E

C   , a O c C  > , L,  U o W U c C , a
c h pV v oca    : c      - o v v ea  ' u o W v

H
W    ....  u ti

o2J m co `      z
u W U a..

q)  3
O W

a°-+      
0 §
f§. o c i

E E E E o=
3 v '  3 v d o E;  o.  

v
OJ v o

W - 1•- 0 z v
alWei c p ou Q c   ` W c m z u v E

c E >` a a a aal- 5 a   >   a d

aa,, 
a,  y v;     

a "
n, o>.,,o=   a >' 2

W E a W a o g 3 c c W x    .,      
lce c. '>      v ° v°a• m t0 o C

I nl

c E o „
o 0 o  , a, 

U
u 3

0 0 3 3 aU i o O c ce  -   z E ,
a, a W z.      

a., 13;

c;
x > W a`,    

C

o ea
ceo

c E c c •° c_ > . m ` m 3 3 c >; Y, r m m j d ,
10.  m m y d v a , atf. 

J      ; p, , 13 c S. . y c
I

g  ' m p c v E ' 2 1.,2 1- a
W

3 3 v s: d c
c

aa,, aa,, ,
Q, 0 a,  a,   

ac,   ac,  
j j'  c c w rs v'£ a`, d £ , 5.).,;,1;

o` o
r Cu

a
v u 0 0h u o = > > ¢ c °c 0 c' a°m E y `' c H E E E E  < a N'  o g o v E U c ' c   - o eo, oo u

0 ea W ea y.._   . ea: n,  o c c   c c m a 0.   m c Q c, c. `
O W e ?_ c

c c   £ f0 «Y1 . E E 3 a Q a Q a a la o 0 o p W W      =  _  m
E ; o.

I.. 1 a,   . CC0CCwCEceossza; zaczIyy .0M!>>  5   '>    > '.
a, h' >   , 10 CMeA> E. O15C° CC

Ii
0 o i



8a 8 888 8 8 8 8 8 8 888 S 8 8 8 8 S 8 8 S 8 0 8 8 8 8 m
ao eri o a p v v a ri o+  . i pp : 

Al Al n v i rri ui '. 1
ri p n o 4F.! M N n O1 O In In N O M 10 10 . i N N et 0 -V M O1 r1 N O O M Sap O 10 i

N e V N M O N O1 oa 00 N  .- IN N N N R N In O1 N N . I N C M N .- 1 N
1 m

N
N

0

v 1

v E.
lwalE

geliA iA N N N N N VT. 0 VT N H 0. in. N N V!  V!  H an N V? N V+' iA V\ N N V} Vf In N
0*

8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 p 8 8 p p 8 8 p 88 8
t0

f
O

8 M

v

ea
10 N

M O a G C
i

O
N
P n

N N
N N

0C
n M M n a N

M
Vf N

rl N
i N 0

M
n

O
O

1nrN
l,       

U
4

X
v 1

N N M et N 40040404 N 7,1 ^ 4 .- 1 .- 4 .- 1 N O N M O1 N N N N V rO N N N IS h+ M

0 M M N N M O

LL:,

a.0009
n

Vf V" an. N IA 1" V! N N N V} N VT N N N V}  V}  V! Vf iA N V! N N N 1A N N V! V!

4_, o

o vU >   

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0y v

H

e- i a- I

rp O

No
p

8O 8 y ti t888S, 8 8 8 O 8. O y y y al y y N d W N N d d N W al N N
LL an ai z Z Z o 0 10 M m N N O 1G G Z 2 z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z z z z Z z z Z
N .-   100 .- 1 Ie0i ~ 00 N N CO N N IIA N
a, ' C N N

c ti
N

U

n M 1n D N N M O N N 1f1 0 M O IA N O ti  / M n IA 0 O N N M N O M al X
N 0 I.   O1 I0 O N R lD 1D 1D m 0 n S 10 ID M ID 01 er ID M ao N O N 1n O O M M

7 N M O R 0 0 0 n n f11 N N 1G 00 e+ l M t.   O N M If1 eV . fV C n DD O 00 N m i

0 N 10 N n O1 O . i M N N N 10 10 00 ID N N et 01 et M 01 .- 1 N O O M at 0 10 . i i

U
N N M et N m N N N N N N N N N N R n M CO N N . 1 N et M N . I N 10

N MMa N M

4/ 1 0 N N N N H N V} N N VF V> V• Vf N N N co. V! N VI. N V} V" V! V/ V! N Vf VI.

8
v N

G4

n ° > Ga

c > a

u '^ O1y 0

1 y O C
N c

da
U

O
O

N

X
T LL 7

aJ a

a
T

c d d

t n
c m w

Cm v  / V

c

U
m

0
1`0

v v m m°    
01 4El

v v     °  ° oz E o S    *  
tU
a,C

C N
u Z C

C N IS

O
N      -    

a n cZ

0 E Cl

p U
U i  ;

E C   ; N al+      71

0
0

C   ` 1 v 2
as

v;   0   ;.- i M:
u Z J

J    '  '    N W : 100 T 1 c C

c N a 3.      °
C C

C U J y a 2:  , L LL    2Z 0::     
E U a!

U
1L

Cl

a+ i,l- °+    c
C C i d i 0 0 u OG co

u._   cc cc y< c
m   > Oc c0    =, ZZ   , jy S

U °    O ° U 10 . 0 m U a 0 10 Nz zES 2
i 0 otf 5 o. .T.  

E a z >    Y 1i c c    .
c  °  

E
o V

1i 1• i c c w
m c w  ;,  c a+    m m E 0 Q       ° U.       3

c c O Z"  a7 C

H
a, a     T       vm n 1111E E.\   o v z    `_ .-  j a Y c L

o

To 00 vl N 0I     ~ C c 0  ° E A.
CU c c N w w a: c a s

1° as 3' 3
U

3 3   ; u co b T
Z.       U'. r c

UapV1 V1 N C C

Y U
0 y

E aJ  > W j > al   % a
N

n c al
m'       O O

o E c    >  > -+  > >    °    v- E o al v a - I 1L  `

WO 3 3 3 3 v      - o ii    ; E m c2• v a v m c -'     m
c ar w ° w m c a a,  c y c

oc

c

o oc a: 

N o a co E c o. 3a o v a c- c a°. c c
c' o     c    ° E m  .

1 0 ca aa

mxU

a . o10uLL

aauam10 £
sm: u ua+ 

cmo > >

m a In
O c c . i c c c

o a a u a+ 0 i c H < O. m « a! 7

C
o_   

vim'
C

R
c +

o o a c c c m
Io c m 0 0 c 0 . i` 0 0 m    >  ° c       .  4='

c c c: C c
N   < 

a a
cso Ca

IS IS ° Y
o c

C U
u u

f0
u u ¢ 

o
m .

B c E E E as u a E a

d to m e a0 co` O to m
C 

o •       u, O. c a+, `  ° c i u

CC1
c c c w c c O V1 x c c c c    • o.       w c.  ' c c

ar  : a! m m 0 ..  
f0

a

J m m m m ° v
oa oa c,  E E c ° a c  ^    v_ "    Y' o m

cea a a c ., ,: v +. 0
in .o I

a,   c v O o c a+ al o= 
v . o O t m, 0 0 x 0 0 + o •

E v `m s; a°a m m 0 c.® as v w i dJ, 0,0 . V',17 0,} <, 0, 0 Us <  < U, VI, a' U%U a', U a;..2 Q;>; UsN i,, V7 N N; V1



8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 88Z,    gi;  c...1 ei   . 4

g g g g g r...
4   ..... i m..

i
m..

4
in

Co Co 3    •    CT o C4 10 000,  
CO CO Q I,   0

o
N N CO N 1- 1   . 41 N 11 N I- 1 N MI   . 41 NE

W
a

a.,

le
a"

E.*,
46 an.   in tn.   tn.   4n.   in   - In 411.   . tn.   an In in an an In 44 In r: c1

1- 1
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 a ta 8 8 8 8

8   . 8 8a N ca N 00   . 7.   00   .- 1 N e- 1 N   , 1 N  ,.. 0 N SO e• I N P.T4
a•

i    v- r   _ I IP10
cll00

31u)

1   -( 13.   U An 1/ 1=   in.   in   ...n.   In In V In AA IA IA•   0A•   an VI"   vs 4/ 1.   an An

w

8

1 , 7,.,   8 8 8 8 C 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 C
8 8 1 C 8 C 8 8I., >    -.,  ....,   .   •_.   .   ,-.,   •-,   ,...,   •-

I   /- I   .- I 1- 1 I- I   •- I e- 4   -   •- I I 1- 1   .- I e,   ,- I7/ 3
4'',

CUD

ID-I-

8 8 8 8 8 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
u,     

8 6 cF,   
8 8 LA LA

01 01 11/   / 11 01 I/   CD If CD CI CU   / 3)
4.1.  . 4   ' CA co 6   , 5 45 5,   3   ,,   NZzzzzZzzzz2Zu_

in 10 1.0 N 1.0 I
cu 7r 4'

1= ` 1-)
2 ''-,,''

Dv

00 m in in in in in VI 01 N 00 0 N Q 1.4 rs Ch og I.   .- 1 N CO inN N in 111 in in 10 N CO V in O.   CO CO P•4
z CP 1 1"   IA 1.4.   in

01 in 4 ei N c../   N N e1 lb lb   .. I   .- 1   .- i 00 ad   , ai cr;   a;   ni in into in in IA U0 110 10 to 10 Mr V in CO in 01 01 00 in 10 Q 1. 4.   0u N
I- 1 N   , 1 N 11 N 1- 1 N WI 1- 1 N

2

CA IA.   VT IA CA 4A IA IA IA IA IA 4/ 1.   IA IA IA 4A•   IA IA.   IA IA 4A IA

eru
o

c   •    •    , 44
0

0

0   '10 1 J

tol t-'  r. - .

U 8 1 E' 5: 
0 ..0,  ,.., :    :    

1,

8   : 8 E 4

IS•     . e.   .. E.   . c   . c   . c = . c ' e : E `-'' ' C' ,  c '   E 9c co co E E E
c'     4-'   1-:.   -

0   - 0   - c, -, , ..„  a, 1-:,,  &       w E
w az,   t,    as 1 fa  °- c  = .  w ' .

c =  
w   „ 9   , 9   . 5 E w

E ° S'   C C E
70 0   ‘ 17   , 0 LO i 10 , I-0  .- L' 1 0 C 1- '  C 0 0 5 cn.   in an In ' In , 0 cW u   •-,.    0 0 0 u   ' 5 C-

o

a'    
0 :,-„ 2 an an an an an In ?  an !. 0 aq an C 0 a C an an 0

4    '`-. -

5 tv.  1 C.   Ef   - 2..   2 1 2 : Z-     ,: 20. ! r9),   f,   2   - f-,.   C.   f.,   IA oon

1 C C C C
J J o 9 0 ' 0 09

12

3 a
E. :  "      E.   &.   "  

c

T 7T
a      ,  

0cs'    "  
C C C O. 3 O.   O. 3 0. u O.     

1-    ..    4= 0101 C C C 111 0)   I)   a) '  w co '  IL   ( 1.)   CD "  0 0)   CD w a, a) tu"0 cm.  co co co 0 , 0 0 - 0 , 0 0. "  0.   O.   O.   0.   0.   O.   0. re 0 0.

7
7.7 g

6
0

v   . 2 0   .      c  ..-=  

J 0 o c

r.'  E E
a c

1.,      ' 2
C 0 0

TR-  2 E.
so 4- a 0

JD
E 0.,

6 1 0..   I O.    E  §   5E E C,   0.  c
O i•-   ',.,...   „_.-    g-    E w 2 7,-
C I LLJ   -,•   s-...   , t_ ` .-  E 2 w   . c
C

LLJ 1.` 7'   I CCA 0 -01 0 u 2 0 7,,   .3a.) C .. 0   , cri   ,,=,
4,   5 o    •
ce   ,   5 0

Q   . 7., , o.-;:',w=      d c

w SCD To' a)  1 E . 0
3 2" - 4-'

WO 0 ct3.2
I--   IR   ] II

E 5 A r 2   !' 3) 9 .  c 1 E
0;   CO 72   ' 2

17,  L..,   . 11
C

v)    70 .°       z 2 caiLri  >   :  L.,   w 6 ;  9 m Da
8  : 7, •-c g    .    . 0

w 2
3,  ce,.,

an    . 0 LLI a a a-- 1 a c
5

9  , 10  ....   ,   0
3":",o E     =U ra cc

o 0 _     . Lu C L n

11. 1 1% •,P,       C
I'Ll .-" U

E.....  ' Z ' Z CV ,  C  •-•  1       ' 8 W

ii CU 15,   ZZ.  w , c,"
5,..  

5 w   , m
c w o.     

5.,

E,  2 0     >

g e E & L.   ..   , 8 w  ..   5:     t,6 2 „ o2 .-  4 so 0 7,,',   10 0.   0. o   • --. e 0
o a.,   .. 5 w at- a G  .   EC cuz 22 oz.   c    ' a'   , 7,   :,-.   ( 1)  i,-;   ( a     . 2 00Ci) Ca °  71

E 2 = . 2 ' i,  -r, .....  rts 0 03 c    ,-,-;   
cc to     >   cca , aw w =     > 

foLL,   >   ; < ' a t [ t-,   co 0 2  ` g   : P.    c
E 0 7:1  . 3.   4"     0)   .

g i Mt.    rfj
L  §  

Lkj '

5E Lic[       K ; -( 1 t,,`:. 5  ,   2 V,    8 a 2 P   - 5,     .=-    : 13'To,   . c   ,

Tc
Poo c c 2 / z 2 icciits 5-    a'  8 8+  3   =   Ei    = 

ti;   ti) = l'''   .11) ' 3     - P,'  --   •._   0.   ..8  (. 901.

7,-   L.9   . ., - ,.. . v,   vi2..  2 =  . 2 2 2 2 E

5
w ‘;  a ap ..;,,t9   ;"- I 1- , i•-    c !  c , --- ...-- °  a,   co co co v-,   °

c .=  c c 2 2 F- 1 Z

z7-
1

1  ,
2; '  

c, i. t -.S'§  6 ,  g 0 E   , E9   . 9!)  . 1, -V.1) i 2-   E6 T. e -,,,.  ...    .•  ff 2 c 0022H 5 ,...  73 ; : 6-   E E 0 ci,  trate c   '-'0 8i.   8 *5 5 E E ! 1-- 01 Ce I-   o 1.-• , 1- 1 tj ] V, '  t- : P2 c  % ;  2 z z E   "  '  3 o  . 9
6 a, a ..,  ,_    L- ' ctE1.1)   ,<     L..., ' L.)   c c .  c , cw

ta 4-,   17.    .-.-    8   . C  . c
c.

c a u r2 .  c
um!    E uj.  gi cg!   &

I     '-'

t 8 cci ] 
2 =''' E  a   ` C C    ' O'   .. t E EaE m

1^. a cl)   C

8    _.   , T.,   , e    ,     50 5,

7,  0 0 k) 8 0
fit;

0
gs.,: Z : z 0 0

L .

0 i o

Fe ` t5i  ' c' = to',   11,   G'   0 0 0 E, 0 .T c) 1 it0 5 0IQ u_    w Z . 0 Z Z cn Ln" cn co cn co  .) ! l)



8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
s

i)

6z-----co
14

o3,

ZDc
vs vs vs on.   44   ,,   V/   ,,,,,,   ,,,   v,  ,,, 1, .,,,, . 4n. an 0:1

I 1

88 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 igI''
In

coo:   Non
g ID 00 g   ,„.4 6 6:  0.

30
i ,,

ip: or.: mei
u X

7--,     ,- 1   . 4   . 4   .- I   .- t us 1 To
0..-,

tu
otoo

14 V?   VI.   vs vs 44 44 in an 16 in in 16 In

a,

0 0a,
g g g g g g g g g.   g Y.' g g g g.

g 7,     8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
L., >     -,   .   .   ,-,   -,   ,-,   .   .   ,-,   .  .-, ,-, . . ...-

1

c L'-'
u

to
FY'

c.1-

3 6 6   '''''.   to"   6 6 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
o

mi LA
o o 6 A CU CIJ al a, a, a., a, a,

o-       Z r...   r.,1   ‘) L,   5 z z z zzzzz
4 7i To In

Cr Cr

E'' ":'

Li

CO er.   ' 8   ' 8 74 CO   . 4 n Ls;   s In 4 4141
r,     ni n:   ni v ID ci. A e4 r:  00 n: N 00
0 14 00 N CD 10 Cl 01 CO 10 CO us or, Cl
0

t

V/   V/   44 16 44 V/ V/   V)   16 V/ 44 44 44

r 1.
eqP

ea 0 @ I     '
1  .     U 1 WOW

E
r]    0 11  '     L  . 14, ,

C
II).

u i 8 E   ]     , ..  ] a,   

gi
5

13   .  C n'   .'     . 

8;To '      1,-;  3 Ls ...   ,  -
Ea ..    2   .  , 45,

111 4  '
e  .  :

1.. °     8 ...,(2-  =  P. 3] E]  !
r+  1 1 u   =  ! .. 33!,  1

i.' E To ' m a)   ,  ,cu     - co
t 0   ;  '0 0 CU

Z C4 11. iT: k3       , ,  S1 1 173' 13.'

0

221  ..0
3 e   ' 5 5 E

I-   s-

o
o o o ;,
c   .. c c ;

4,- 
0.e ,_ I ,_' _   ,  s13 CD ;

aq ,  ]0 a 0. a ,    a. 5, a o.: a a

o n ,      
0 .

Li'      !       
0

0
I. 

7.2 2 72 TA : 5 '
0 t 2

m 2 LL.  a

E E 3 - 2 4 1 0
a  ( 0

o., !. - 0 ,  °-0 1 cu

tI) mm
Li.

1. r
CD

L"
TO '  g.   5 !

2 L-   !  .    <

L,'  •,'CL) 0es al a w   °    w ]       
0   ,  ,    

0:

Wm
4-   co   ,_

c0.1 M e4
2 0  co Z' 5.   L  '',

V) Nan
fa

C0
LI) 8 0 0     ` 2 C   . 5 .   0

C o 0 o o z ]    ]
mo E:

C w o

ID 0.,     CT 113 E 1 33 ] 0 co-6
a)    

ce cE ce ce 0   ,.,_ : 5      '    w .. c

4.) c%     
a.,  w w 0.)   o i ' a '
El0 e IT 11" '  " 3 ;  ° -  

E

V) 2 co CO CD   ( 0 3 8   '       = it G)
1 1 2    -

c  - 5    - 5   - 5   '''   0-

AI
4-     -. 0.! i) ! 2 ] 2 - 2  :     ! cg; 0•];! 2,

Z C‘     = ° @ :=.   :=   C  .( T3 2 '  2 , a  :  !...,.' E. c,: 41:Z---,, 77.   E. ,  Lw    . E  "
E

3  -( 1 3 01 To 3 , ' EH 0 g VO lo2` "; AL!'

au
72 li, PO t,I ii ir) i  `>) ' 

L',.,

00 ]  t ]  ct E.,. a
0 Z 2 2; * 4 to' '  „, 4'   .

2.   ...-    ,.,„. .......  ' E  ( u,.• S
0 P, ! E   ! ti  , e-ar.  ].

2- c!
ro ...  .  . 

v"  .   . !  c—i,   > ] .= ;  > !,-
c z  =  lz 3 0

cu a gl. .2 Ot ,;    7[....
W 0 Oa,  0 0 i  '    CC '  ( 0 "  CO ;   tjO. F.^ ,I,  i 0., 810

a
6A '

gi 01 , •- ,  - ° 0- cV a, o] -! -] o]
x



8 8 8 8888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888
t0 e`  MI Of N a O 4 4 0'1 01 A Y1 ei 4 MI N g O Yf r- 1 1 1 tV OD C Yf ei ei N O1 OD 01 1f1 t0 Of Nf V 4 N' D P ' i 01 p N 1N..   N O N b f0 a0 ei

N
1e r1 n lO ei N P pp 00 N{ O 00 N 01 O N N M OD 1ff O1 1fl N OD M O OD N M     ' i T en NN.  N N` M N O N M N M N O N M t0 C C` N b N n tai O P OD t0 01 P N O N N.      e..N

N
O

Ti-
N

N N   - y 1 4/ 144 N NN N N N N N NN N N N - K N N N.4/ 1. N N N N N NN 4" / 1 V V N N- " 4" 4.4. N N V ^

8 8 8 88 8888 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 88 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 88 88 8 8 88888 8 8 8 8 888888 888
a a a a aClm

pp 
1: f: e: f: f: is o+ . . . .   N

i N m en m m mm mm mm m m Mm fmfl m m m m m m m MtM0 M m m mO n m m m M m m m m m ennnI m m M M N 4110 OD.- I 0000M
N 1y

it

v W

N

N N N 4.4 444^ 4" 4/ 1. N N NN- 4/1, 4 N N N N N N N N NN N N N N N N N N N N N N N Vl NNNNNNNNNN

T

O

N
cc °    

f e e eeeee e e e e eeee e e e eeeeee e e eeeeeeee e e eeeeeee ee e ee
v

O O

O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O 0 O o O OV N N N N N N N N N H N N M N N N N N N N N N.. N N H N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N ..- 1 N N N N N

a,N
no

tea O S 8 8 888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888
M ei a N N M O1 fO O

pn
ei N M N a0 O1 N N N to N ei OI Y1 ei N tD N O 01 N

dui
ei M N M tT nai 00 O pMp Of of M IA 14 papp NN O Ili

O
uO1

N
ttO R t0 et n 1^A 00 tN0 n CO N ONt N al n 0 CO0 N 001 O al .- 1 0 0 eN9 N O M N tND O M N M N O elf a tOA N Q t0 00 O N N

ei ei N H N ei ei ei ei ei e1 ei N N N ei N
T

N

N

lJ

m O1 O1 01 O1 O1 01 01 01 01 Of 01 O1 O1 01 01 01 01 O1 O1 O1 01 01 01 01 O1 O1 01 01 01 O1 O1 O1 O1 Of O1 00 W a0 W m m N N N 01 O N N
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N O1 O1 01 01 01 Of w N C C O N 01
a a a

M M N MNNNMMMMMMeenlNN MNNMNMMMMNmmmmNNmmmmeenieflNNAMMNa1 0̂meiromO
V N ei

O

N N N W N N N N N N N N N V1- 4^ N Yf a? N N N N 4" N N U N N N N to i? N N N N N N N N N N N N h to N N

C W

2
C an C

Ts O

c E  _ 3 r„      
O2

C C

t E H0    =

v y $y yy

i C y C d 1W LL W W a,'
L A LL LL LL LL

C U O    "       0 0 0 0 0 0 y
E A 10
1+   N u u u u u u 3

z z°   z Ns H e o aaaaaa

N N M O CO L
O O O O E O
E E E E N E

0 = 0rrE E E E
C C C C W W
E E E E N

E EE EE E

0-,       c c c c c E
V m m m it m m m m z t t a io m m tit m m m mS t m t,,

i

t m' u i m t m io Yo m To r, 14. 1-4 m m m io a ì y y `w ` w y %D C   =   = = C = G= G G¢ C C=, G== G= 1= G=='=====' Cl==== W=== r w=== rte== c= 4 4 4 4 4 d,C

Q

0

0
w

v,

3.
g 3'` 3 ' NmNaNf °z

Tv'      w'  w,  .    d   - w  { a w w v  ` w a v y w v

d o c
A A A m m m m

w a,     w y w w UC u V U U U
r3 w w c a c 25w v c w c ti, v a c ' c v > W a>i

w w>, 3 >` a y> v ` 3 ya y w ` ; ;' ci' t7, 7,   
ti,   °!

IIi1I c c
cw. c.   c 2. w c c c w °,   °   H H E E o 0

G,)       w. w. '  ' :., 0) 4)) '  ' w w v w 5( ( 5 U) W.     a w ;; w ,   CU wm ;    00`_ 00y`o_ }_00
b,)      y y   )  H N'- y y g m V y `w       •_ w w - w w V•- y y V)     H' E.  ' t.'£'''c' Y-i' f di d'+ di fCA 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 a w w w

N N
c c; o o N N

c c o o N N.
c c w w c c o o w w c c o o N N c cO o, , 0 0000 00ogo 0000 0000

000owwwwwwno2cLC' °„i°6i 6e(

5 ( 5 ( 5
Oi c e c c c c ce:   N N N N N N N N N N N m M M M e+ 1iM V O O R:  a to N N 1A to N t0 t0 t0 b to t0 o O Ty, N

NQ NNQLa
@ N N tU t0 t0 N• N 2

10 f0 N tOi 10 t0- t0 f0 N t0 10' t0 f0 A A N t0 10 N N R t0 10 t0 f Qe 8.a R.a a

N N R N N N N

et
U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U“ U U U U U U U UU,U UU U U U U' U U U U U G C C C C C C

6 w w 4. 4' "' w
1-.   w w w w w a w w w, w- w w w w w w° w w w w w w w w w w 42 w N N 1 N N N % N N N N}J

H 3 3 3 . 3; 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Z 7',    

w w

m ww w www w w w d w w w w w w w w w ww w ww w w w w w w 4 w m m m T m m m m i A m A m

N
C C 1 C C c C C C C c C Ci C C c= C C:; C C C C. C C' v C Ci C C C C C C C C t= t= c •> 7 7 7 7 > > 7 > > > > >

LL
A N A N N N N N N N N Na N N

Na N tO to to to N. N N N N N N N N N N N N N" O" OC 9 9' O V 9.7 0 L V 91-„ i S o   ' a S a n S a a a a a; a a a;a aa' a a ai a=.a aaia a a a a a a;a a s ac c c c c c c c c c, c- 99



8 8 8,  888 8
Iv; eti

N .
M.. N N °  N

0

N N N NNN N
MCI

8 8 8 888 8
N N N 00 N 0 H

N N H M N M

N W
09

N

N N N N N Vf

0

N —

H

a 8 8 8 888 8
N Yf̂ 0 N O N N

p N m M N N

0l

OJ

V

N N 00 m 0 00 00
4.00 O IN 01 ON N P

p t l N N  .- m N M

N N N N N N N

c N

v

0
m a c

c E v
m b

4

A u
m 3a E

N m 0

co Ti tyQ
z

c
m

co O

a n

c
m

U  C p

I.I
C m O

O E O

O Lz v  =  t

do_

0 c as
o c o

LL o odl
ŵ

y c w : 2a c'>0m
c;•
o! g

c

a3 p

0 m. 6.1913
N W c C y

n. l

O.  O E E• O W 0/
E u v W
LI w N O g O
Y c N N 12

V1
a

O c   —
m

3  . m 3 Y E o

yd
u

ate. d a a-8 3
Qu cc Q C' N Q t;



8880  Y 88 00 0 0 0 0 8 8 8 0 0
M

N N
1 s-N

a

N tG N
N M

N
O

4 0
M
0 HI

00
N v

al

u

a)O
a)
v
a)       

c Z
I* I

1" 4" i# 4pp1 I.A. 1A IA. V 1/ 1. IA. 4f VF tppRNN V  V>   il V1

8 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 8 O 0 O O O W
O N N M 01 to IN O N ' 4 M a' N N N co tO M 00
a N to co to s? M 00 a M 01 00 40 t0 00 N 0 01

a)    N N ei N N e4 N    ( A

a)U-

a)

v

ti0toc

N 1A V! V V> 1A I.A. vs in. V VT 14 V! 14 VF V}  V   N V

a)

O ua)cc 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

0 0 0 0y —

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0o a/    0000000000000000 0 0 0o  >    e- I .- i e- I ei ,- I I- I '- I e- I ei ei e1 I- I 4. 1 v- 1 .- i I- I ei ei e1

0 J
a)

CUtla

F–

0 0  . 0 y''I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  .   0   +  01 +  0)
00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O H ti N tL•>-       
to to O V O O O O N N N O O O O 0 c_ 0 _ CN M N M m 00 N N t! 1 N 0 N

CU V N ei 7 e•I N ei

E — E
LL u 7 a 7 Qm Q wc

a
u ti et

a, o Q Q N

4.4
u

G

00 LAW N O to N a t0 M N 0 01 00 O M in N N t" I
O N 1.0 M a 00 00 O O Y1 01 t0 C 01 01 a 00 N IA

0 N N M 01 t0 I: 0 . i N m CT N N N 00 to M 00

0 N N N to M 00 Al 01 CO N N CO
e^•I

0 M
u

7

1? 1? 1? V> 4 Vf 1A 1? 1/ 1. 4f 14 V N 44 N V/  V1•   41.   14

1 oi
si E

a S

r

U i N H
O 0 0 00
O m a
O

9   _      
3

a0   )    CV
M f0

a)
N o ti N N

0 3.  a i O1^       7 7

z a=      as a a

1.

c6
V

O:       Q a

9
9 t B   •-;  

1 VIP
tl

V' CU N 9
try N Nn

o i f0      ,.

Z   
an,—

7 I a
w,  

O p y, 0. O ,,. N' 4r

0 O y
vlmax

No Vii.£p
VI O a C' A, U Il c> re,' IL".11.) 11a ti In

1.1 N 0 O
C

N Z Q . 0 UU i
N4'  N yZ O —   i  . y' VduU-- a) o a) a
Z Q Ce 17 U N a) a N c   ;N C LL LL

CA c ai'      y c iz Ys O „       NON
CD O ma off,. io_   F.,..'t ya y 3 : o
A

Y

C °     .  ..,_, C a),- 0 C` Ci O a, v
r*
W

N 7 t0 9
a CoN        Cp C Nei f0

C    , 0
F? 1` 0;   

vp`
t°g m 81. c

a. o., 0 33 -o:: N

6
o    > " 

u

t0' 
Y 0a

af)
i > p Q°'

DO `- 
cc z a1.    4— c

sZ i

1

u a); K x
a+    43r d a+ a+ 

LL' O; O C' N

U 3 g; a, 
In —

j a) a
v•:v : a d

al C 1.. v a,` c,°:°..° 
a v

i: 0. 
0 N t-'   LL " O 7 ?   a 7' 7:   C 9 C Y '..  to

O
a LL 13 To Y. N i., 

f0 L c _, C G

O! 

Ca C t3
a+    Z

ti LL

O

C C

O a i al
C f0 O"

7 aI aJ a a! " O
1

O
a

a)    
al3:—,—,moa: 2; c 2 oe2 foe,o < 4F-[12 x 2 v1



000000000
0000000000000000000000000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 O 00000000

0 0 0 0 00
a\i OW tG 01 co to Y1 N 1 O1 to to L/ 1 LA Ll1 1. O .- 1 to 01 fV N N d' 01 N t CO 01    ! ff Lff

ro I ,I a V LD ID m N a- I 0 ! f fV N v N N V N N en M lD 10 ` m ai 01 01 N to m M v N
@ 4)   a- 1 ei ri a- I a+i

Cl.)  iU
U N

4/ 1 v in 1/ 1 v in 4/ 1 v v v. 0. i/),of 44 N i/1 v 1M of iA in in v v 14 i/f in of of v v 44 ii An. v i/  H

Q p p p p p p p

c-- c

CU 0 0 00 00 00 00 0 00 0 00 00 00 00 0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 00 00 0 00 0 0 00 00 0 0 0 00 0 rl
WyLL tff N ! V H1 N ! V N u, N n ri IA tf1 In N M n m to 14. If1 01 1- r. O1 tf1 01 r ei f` N Lf1 r 1! 1 M n  :

D N tO tO t0 tD t0 to N co qt 0 N N 10 N tO N O lD N N ai 00 et N N P • 0 er O N co N to
1 en m m m m ai N N M M N N N N ai N N a-i N N 4- 1 N M .- N ai M M M M N N N ai M

Wy

anNaAanCN
N i4 i? i? Vf i/F i/1 i/1 i/1 4/1 i/ N i/1 N i/f• i/F 4/ 4 iA i/1 i? N 1M 111 1/ 1 iA MF 4/ 1 1M V VF 4/ 1 Vf N iii?Lf

0o  >U
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

a  `       * * * * * * * * * * * \ * * \ o* * \ * * * \ o* \ \ * * \ \ \ o* \ \ \ o* o*

v o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
v o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ao a• i a- 1 . i .- 1 ri r-1 a- 1 .-( ri 1 .- c .- I r-1 1- 1 . 1 .- I e 1 r-1 ai .- 1 . i . i a- 1 .-- 1 .-- 1 . i . l e- 1 . c .- I

U

It1-  N

y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0p 0 0 0
LL 0000000000000000000000. 00000000000000

M t0 l0 l0 M M O 0 M O M 0 0 0 O O O M 10 M lD 1 vi O M to r. M 1- O M IC M 0 0 0
v ,-H M Mr 47 N 01 01 00 n cr to 00 CO OW O Lf1 00 to 00 t0 N 00 M 00 0 to 0 N M CO M 00 SD NLL ei M M Q N N N N ai N N N N N N ai N N ai N a1 N N ai ai N N 01 .- 1 ai N N ai M

M
C ri

4) 0

i N
C

U

1- tf1 10 LA M 111 47 ai 01 00 r- ai ai N N 47 N Lb 47 N N 1f1 0 00 M ai M 00 01 CO 01 ai O ei V CO
01 CO 00 CO CO CO N N a- 1 ai CO N N O N N N O N N N 01 N 4- 1 01 N 71 ai 00 ai 00 N N N N , i

S N m C

m N o O 4 0 00 N i m N N    .0NSD ID t0 10 1.0 lO N CO O N lo N 1.0 N 40 N N 41 00 N O m O OO N 10 m•ai M M M M M e-i N N M N N N N ai N N a- INN .-1 N m N N a1 M M N N N a-/

va0U
LL`  

N

W
44 44 44 44 4/ 101 1/144 4/ 1 4/ 1 4/ 1 4.4 4/ 144 1/ 114 111 4/ 144 1/1444/1 44 44 41144 1n1n44 1/ 1 444 411 44 C

9 J a 1 a a 10 0   ]   e   !      5 0 1 3
0 3 0 9   !   5 e 0 e      !  0

9 5 3   !   ]      

e 0
5 233 0

If
1 u7      !   !   3 t

0

3 e 0
J o o a a
e

4- 3
3   ° 

f
t

s l

J i
u 1 e a J 1 a a a a a

a O
a

a
a 0

a c a a
I J a 3 i0

5 p
c4-_-••'+-+

a a a
a    .- i 0 O

a a   ?
n L 0 a

C      !    u`    H u    `...
1

a1
a a      !

f0u E r N
o

ci a   ' U    W.    
C

a a Opi i n o°      J

Y'    L L O L p
C!   '.   

i i 1 rn.
5 00! 00¢     + to

a+

a ( moo a a N

0

O
0°    a) N

L

L Ln t
N       °    Up

0
O w w p U L u a) C

y

c F1 a 3 ,,         to to .l m > m    o 2 ' v wi.(5 v O a C t
J ( o u i   ,i;  0 O O l0 lL O W U \ L vi

11

OC
a` 4- U a

r L r o r , L o   a w_ O. Q C C c c 5 ' O C

QO
CD

a Ol ail N°       V i i s' L w ++s++ w ++ ++  
C10 M tl0 00    .-

3 f+'0 y `-'r/      N U
a C C°      a   ,    Ta a ac      • ( o

U   `      i L L
a) 

av) 07) 
L)   

w .- 1W•li 00 O°°   5       '''.....

4/ 0 C!   J

u U'    7, 
ca' 00000., 000

uaCO C
a= = >.      u U CD E uL L,.    L 3. a) 0 0 W W 0 0  0
0_'J 0-, p.  c c c).       +,   i,—+ +, L ri

0 a) 
r-I

m

m L 0) O

0.
5   _ C a m E 1: 1 a ca:      w L L    ( r1 m m io m m c c CO mWI CO L Q    '" 

N N C O o o V°       O t 3 u a C.    C  ( o c a C ( O t-   • U • U a U Ti
O O LL

7

iIII
O

7     + O }'   " L u U' v       °    O
a,,, ,  c •— •— c N N N N a N N N c6  •  d

P41 0_
O

c
M

a-- 1 O O 0 ' O   ' 4-'
a O'   u' O " O'.   

d c.. v5 O)' O +, f, O >  > O. O_ O. 0- N

wom2g .- 3v-.' (a' 3
al

0    ,_,_    }' Sari a°1i :_ o O / nHHH o o

u o m CO CO \\ 
0 0 3 a o 0!•°'_ o 0 0 -0 4 4-

5$      ai c; u; a) COto L L.     > 4 u 1-       Moll v co c c c. 
co co

m, 
c C —  p J p v 3 3 3_ e

o o , 1 d o o p
C C C C C C u u to

MO 0 a C c Ce—     C O • p 00   °    E t.„       p - 0 ' 0' I    ( o ” " ( o e e e e e e m m to D p
C a) a) a) s 3 7 • C U EZ. O. C i s N a >

a Y Y i   
a

a O
L 5_ a `. L o O v) O O O. C. C.    p5 515.

CU c c c a),,a) 3 m ` m 3 ` m - c '" x o e o` aui

aa)) au) a3) 
cu o. coo >

y > ca c (

co
a) (

cacm (
c(
0 Cl) i_ i_     O

LL N Q Q,:< 00. 0 QCO tit..) U C"
u.1c UpUaCI CI 0, 2, 2'.'M ill 0 O" LI) G L Laa. L L LL LL LL ri:



0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CD 9`. `-' 

v
99

0
CD CD gp CD CD CD

0 0 0 0 0 a-+ 0
CD Cf CD 0 CD gp CD CD C2 gp CD CD cl

0 0 0 0 o O O O O O O O 8 8 8 8
a)  v 10 Vf O P 01 t0 00 ei 00 01 Vf 01 ei lA 14 01 V1 re ei at ei ei e4 N Ili N ei 1G 14 N

my v N M 01 M N O ` M t0 M N N 01 M gt 01 N    ` N N M M 1 Mco a1 ei    . M I ei ei

v u
u a)

Vf 4" 4/ f 4/ 4 4/ 4 4/ 4 4/ 4 46 4A 4/ 4 4A i f N 401' Vf' Vf 4A 4/ 1 4? 4/ 4 ir. Lf 4R 4/ 4 404 414 404 4/ 4 4A 4A i/4 4/ 4 4A I/4 4/ 4 4/ 4

Z1a, 888888888888888888888888888888 pQ pQ pQ pQ
rdI

aLL n to n M 1- iN 14 N in I: 01 in N in in 01 to N in N in 01 N. in 01 in 01 in M 01 ' n in in 01 N. 01 1'+ 1
a 1D N 0 01 00 00 t0 M 00 M N 00 N N M 00 er 00 iv 00 M 00 1C M t0 in t0 10 N C 0 t0 N 00 M
a)   1 N N N N en M N N N N N N M N M N N ei    .- I .- I U U

ei N Win 10 0"
to
cup U i

Q Q
N

4/ 4 4? 404 401 4/ f 4A i# 111. iff iA 4/ 4 4/ 4 N 4/ 4 4/ 4 1/ 4 V 4A 4/ 4 iA A/ 4 iA try V A/ 4 414 1/ 4 4/ 4 4? iry 4/ 1 404 y/} L}

Ti.,

O  >U NJ
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O o O O o O O O o O o O o O O o O o O O O O O

v o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0v 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nrn >   a- I a1 a1 a- I a1 a1 .- 1 I- I a1 .- I .- I r-I a- I .- I .- I .- I e- I a1 e-- I a1 .- I ei a- I a1 ei e• I e- I e- 1 .- i e•- I a1 a1 ei e- I a- I
E u
ra a)

F- cc

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  '  0 0 0 0
U-    0000000000000000000000000000000 0000
a) t M O M M M O 10 10 N 10 1N it efi 0 tti O O 0 10 M O M 1C 0 O 1C O en O N 10 1D en O 1Na)    in 10 N N. In 00 00 N 0 00 1D 00 in tD 00 00 10 0 00 N V C1 10 10 00 CO 00 M 10 N 0 00 . i 00 NU \ er .- I N .- I N M N ei ei    - I N ei .- I r N .- I N N N N    .- I e- 11-1 M ei NM

Ca) No
7U

N N t0 0 0 0 Vl en O 00 ei 0 N ei CO Cl 00 01 00 Cl 00 0 CO . 0 CO d• MP CO +' Y Tr Cl 0 00
ei N N O CO N N 00 to N 01 N N N N 01 N ei .- I N ei 01 N N 01 N 01 N N 01 8 is N 01 N 01N in 1N M N. 1.4 N. N 1l1 1N Cl in 1N in in Cl in 1N 1l1 N in Cl 1: in Cl in Cl in in Cl U U in Cl N. Cl0 10 N 0 Cl CO 00 t0 en CO in N CO N N V1 00 CO Cr 00 In 00 10 in SD In 1D 10 V1 113 N CO V1

vs
1 N N N N en H N N N N N N M N M N NI-1    . i ei ei N f0 ei N

0 3 3
U U U

Q Q

N
W

4? 4/ 4 4/ 4 4A Mf 4/ 1 ih 4A Mf 4/ 4 N 4/ 4 4/ 4 Vf 4/ 4 4R 4/ 1 4/ 4 4/ 4 4/ 4 iA 4/ 4 4/ 4 4A 4/ 4 4/ 4 4/ 4 1/ 4 4R iR 4/ 1 4? 4/ 4 i/f O

s
a

5

@
s s a c a o u a a 1 1S      !      ^      

a
1

n n a

p9
9 8   '   u   ^   a u a a a a

u u o o 1 o

21 j
3 8

J 9 a 6 i

E f n a 0

E a t 2 as 0 C a       ' ' 

D a
a

e r tl      °   n o o s a Op-o a n d e s s a o
t

1 i f 1
t e G E E

9 3 0 r, r f 0
0 o

0 6
o

o

a t a

Ii s Cf a   ' 9cn a u ups
a 1 r a e o n o U o

s h0st a in H
J

O
eCJ to

ii
I a)  o       =  s

A
u

f u 1 U , 1 z O a,       J_

a aVO` O

w a 0 a w p U
1

s s a- 0 - sus m
in

i      .,,• 1- u 1- 04- t~ O,   a cno a• y IA C O O
N

a aa- 6 02 nl w N 0..    y,— • W''''   
n CO O C

s --       3 Qo O. Q
0

0: 000.0 p M.   !    t0' W C
3w c0 C O V1 O

t-  tee-.. ..  x0; 050 0 _c 1 O- Ca U o ' n ) 
E O N 0 a7

t- (C)      C.
u 0 Oe p5 .-     +-     u,   1'   '

Mreue co U .= 00 Os c E   ' 0 c    -O

Ud Va      !       a) a) 0    ''.     3
of f.... O s O O

d i +, 
P a

U cuO N - O N 7- C
y

e i a) a,., y., 0 a) c 0 E O'      a Y. h -
o,    

C
y

Q,
a) s a) s C Co s C h CA. r Nu0    ' al Os 3

a O     - - 0 - C E 2 c0 C L tCDa. Ea EI   ?   c 3 0 sM n...   ate.      f a) w Q a) " U L t

W

t"`

0 ou oo O v...
03 - -j   , ( O m. m rymju

Cam Inn t.. 
EE

Er
E

O' a

E tu' 

iO+ ..
to Q

v

N     ? •  L

Us V!  j Lf  . w+ y+. O O 00 0, 
a 0`. 

RV 1. 5 c0 co
E - p ai C; cn Q

W
00 O O

f•^     

a) a); C C , , 
a•,,

s}, a O O L_ 0    ,  
i a) a) U U  ! C!    to, OOe C ei ei

WY O
a•- I W. Os Cl

O
E Est a o-, 0..:. a

OPM
ar,- aw w `     

N C C' N C 
1

O U C C C MM
O o Cs   0 E Ea•{ n rn o s Ov

af0., ate.,  
O/ U y j.. t.Oj V Q. O y ra U ' O -     17

a a a+     
a,     

E E coi c°. a ) a,' a, a, v a aB 3' 
c) v y a u a .

3). a, —y '= N-.` V. N = v •olio W3
1}      

O     , A")./-0L0-_   O' O i ; ! 
0 ,  E- E, E Eg E O   ! co.:   O

U
O) 

0
Cd a

CO CO

U • U
fI

c..! a p p s ai 2?2 C C C C m i ' '    'd "O - ono "O N¢±' CO` f6

v Q — u as f0 - O - O a- N

1
w

L ° to:-O w w• -.    
C

c a Cap dsd C, Q C N 0)     C O D'
Q) c Ca cu N O. Oo O O F- 6w O a). 00 00 N O 00 >   E Na O a"' r O o

s

y 0 O
C s C

a•,
a ca

y,, s Y a P p -O - C
a(

O p L

s 4'' O a O° _

a)

a O O.!_:. O - r
C C C o O y;, U U Ln F+.•

a ay do N -C U O Oat  s s a 0 O¢ 

ate).-
e 3 U° c.), u; u v -0 o i H > >_  ' ° U -0 O O v -O cu

GU).
a I0 r_ 00 al cou ca? Nu coo a a+' a- 6 C CE Ca C C - C t co c0' O n- .- 0a0,, "O a) U L- 13 a aCO LL.   CD a U'  J U

di°
0- 0- 0. 0-      s' S O; Q w; waLu w W < d 0 U 00 O-!

I



0 00 00 00 0 0 0
0 00 00 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 000000

0

N v 10 01 N N N 01 M N 00 N t0 Y1 10 u. n N co M y 1A M e-i e- I tf1 tel N i- I ID i! 1 in IA N i-1 Mt M Nn to of e- 1 ri M e- 1 V M N e- 1 00 e- 1 t0 M v W en in    "" M v to O er i en v 01 -iM v ei

41 u
u a

QC p

1# iA iA in. iA iA iA iA i/ iA iA iA in. in. N 4•AA in. in.' t" iA to in. 4" iA iA in. VA 4"' t" in. 1' i/f if).44  [ N 1,  

0
a

O O
p p p

O O O p O O O O p O O O p O O O O p O O S O 0 0 0 0 0 pp pp ppCV FBI
LL n 01 N a1 I:   a1 M a1 N Oat tf1

N N
01 N n 011 .- i 1: n a1 a- I u1 N a1 a1 N u1 N a1 N N M N

a No N N to 00 in coOo 00 u1 to N to N N in co en N co gir en e4 00 N N V1 1/ 1 t0 t0 O to 00 00 N O Xv N N N N N ei    .- I N N M .- I .- I M M ei ei N N ei ei ei N N N e- 1
W

NtlAanDN
iA i/ iA to iA iA iA iA iA in. iA VI. N iA IA iA i/1• iA iA iA in. in. N iA IA iA iA IA VT iA iA i/ iA iA h

N

O  >U J
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

v °    0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Q1  >       ri ri e- I a1 e-i a-- I   .- 4 e- 1 e- I a-- I a•- 1 a1 a- I a-- I r-I r-1 a l a1 .-- I a-- I r- I e- I e1 a-- I . 1 ri a-- I e- I .- 1 .- 1 11 e• i  - 1 .- I . 1

AU OU
F- CC

00000 0 00000000000000000000000000Q Q °U-    0 0 0 0 0 0 00000000000000000000000000000
M O M N o ci o C n M ir1 C M O is M o C to O tD C tD ci t7 C M C O O n to ai O na) .--, M e- 1 N Cr Mr IV N t0 01 ri 00 a- I to N N O N V' O N . 4 t0 N .- 1 t0 N N N N OLL

m M N N N M 1 M V r I el Cr M e- I ri N .- 1 .- i a- I .- i .-i M c' N .- I

CN O
s_ N

DU

0 00 ei 00 0 00 01 a1 00 gr as izr a1 ei o0 01 O in er 0o oo to et ri ei oo co er V t0 00 01 471 ei t0
N 01 N a1 N a1 ei ei 01 N 01 N a1 N 01 .- I .- I a1 01 .- I ei a1 a1 N N 01 a1 N N N a1 .- I ei N N
N of N of 1:   a1 N N of N rn N of N of N N a1 .- i n 1. ai .- i N N ai a1 N N to ai N N N N
co N co co N iii

N N N N N M .t-I  - u-I '
Cr M I- I .

O-
I N N N N  -

i-I t- I .- i N N N ee 1

OU
D

Pr
N

i/A in II) i/b i/  iA IA iA VF ii).Lf iA to iA iA iA iA i/1 i/1 iA iA iA V AA iA iA iA i/• iA iA iA 4/ 1- 111- iA AA 0

d 9 4 B n 0 8 a 4 N
4 3   .      

a a 1
1 d

P
sC   §

9 1 J y a u 40
g

d a a r 8

4 P 0

1
d i J 1 1 4

3 a 1 i
9 6

C
J

0 a J

L n 4 a
V aE 1 q 9

p
d9 a

J
a L J s B a

u

4         tl
B 3

ra
0 s o
in    • o q 4 w

s
q

u
0 L u
in P a I     

S s
4 a a o u

COCD   °•.
c    (..)  s a n s s=    OqU.   tiV a d J a i0e

C C7 a a u ri
To 5,   nCj

w to
C N kCU J Ls L3 a 1L s .

M 0, 1011 O s s
4 t)   

s:
V..   , 0

as
4n, v 3°       ^< 3

0 y• -O
u 0 pQ. i+J      , 4- 04. 0 6      W

in 4-  0."O
a   ;'~,

a-- 1 v vi vin   °   n vi vi y
O c Q O O 0a      ° 0 0 s

O t6L L       °   s u Hai   , 00: fl. a1      ° 

V0
1q oinn voi s `

O,   
n s a

DI C7 e r ua 1 J
m

O tto 00
a O i 1

0'    .••i
a ", 

n'•°       i 0 C C u
To L L a 1 V d O 1 014 a1,       a) a1   '.; a-   

a
w d    C 00 '>_

L Q ` r= 
C

s
a

r-i t0 a N Q.   .    > g > e       > >     y s a of in f+

ruin
bi)    0 0 0:0 C1)    

m4 Cy
cs co o o,       o o=    4, e 90 e 0- of t1

4-       oa v,  c on, v,
L L in a+       H iJ ca4- .—     aJ 0L C' C'   H C C J 00

a   . C   _ N WCD WS s

p vii • 4! v OL m°   ° Os
u° O O u

O O i.     p 4-,     4

11
a.. 1 L; L. " O > >    a a O s   ` 4-, 5,...).    

O 3
a

i0 o a+ ±+     t0 !_'  +     Ol 4= L 4n u C

V.      al . v
Le= Q -- O     , 

C9 alr0°
0 Oa Ls CL 2`   ?   

4'

O 13%   -. 5 13- 0 C o 111

u

O Z
o ( 0 f0 m O a ri f6r u° 018++

ms m4    ±+ m° c0
v O

L
1/ 1 O M

3 V) }'' pr u .- sIy°
C 3; E E'   

F

3 E E p c
i-N

o C C M' a,
P E° Li a a) O

4_ 44_, O O p O u".      f0 3 vf§

y 0       •- •   a_ i' Ca' C ' C s 0.0 0 "
ln4....

9 to t0•, 7
OP

H Ni
O O 4=.  • O O

CE0 m 3 V)    CO OCOa CMa    _ C
a/ a1 CJ s L) U L)    ° C° E

a.:+...,++     
a—  

to
al

N 0 o E —\   01/ I'    cs

t6
V

LaG L Cr O,.0 CL CeO 4 c' C, V) C " C CU CO

e

C " 0 > \ 
C

1- 1 IV o >   :. 4.. 
C OeL L°\ s\ +' a O'      s O O in oo  ' _ @ C O - a 3

1 1 t0 t0 a_ a Y s a-•   a a1 s•— a      °   s V)      L O O f0 t6 " O
0 u ' Un > s > > q'> w vla L •*-' ue` SW p-.- '-  -,, Os a+ a_+ ,O O  + ++ Cc C O.    E u

L d v 7 —
N a1 a1 tea° co tò a '--   ° 0 e (

Jo- 0E°   ° 
a/ a/; E, E' 0 - a° 

Q Q    -
C C v  >

4 p    '
O a_  E, `. o y a) o CD

y,    
N Q O-s a OsO°.- s- 6a k 0 0 Or- Ca s   °- O 1. 0-

s an- 0 - 0 Ma a+ — - C 01 a/ •- t0 1- s•

sail
of V), 0,    C7= 0 tnptngY=Q i—u unoCgQ^=, D < < m,IDE< Q; v) v) ...a Q a- 1- q0 w LL LL"( 9s a



00 o O O O o o O 00 00

00, 
00 00 00 00 00 0 00 0 O 00 O O o o O O o 0 00 O O O O O o

N eJ 01 IA lff 01 n 00 C1 Il! r\ . 0.. Ni tff rC ! V N ! V 1f1 a- 1 U1 C 1 O t0 10 to 1f1 tf1 1: 01 N N O tC
V)  co 01 e i ei e- 1 o o N 01 N N M M M    . 0 , 4 V N N M M M M M ce m 01 M M M
v v
U N
C

i? ii i/1 4/ 1 Vf ii v4 v i? if?1I i/1 v4 v1 of v ii v of i/f i? v} of 4? V1+ n of 4? ur 1" v1. yf i/1 v i/1 i?

a, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o
Q0 Q8000000000000000000000000000000000 o8SI y11 If1 In N N Y1 01 O If1 N If1 r\ N r` If1 r` N If1 IA In r` r\ N O r` If1 01 0i 01 M co I! 1 I/ 1 In N M C1  :

N to N tO it) M et M O M co 00 O O O O to to ID N N 0 0 00 0 to 0 to er  - 1 er 0 N o o to Xo
N .- I N ei e- 1 N ei M . i N N er ei er er .- 1 ei ei N N N M N ei ei i- I ti N er N ei t l .- I

W

I
to

if?if?ofiAVf4/fif?V1 if?V1i/ if?if?if?if?if?i? if?if?V! 1/ 1 if?if?Vf4? V} if?if?if?if?if?if?v if?if?4/?

N

O  >U - J
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0a \ \ o* \ \ o* o* \ * \ * \ \ o* * \ * * * * * \ \ o*o

y o 000000000000000000000000000000000000
v 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0aJ  >       a- I ei e- I ei ei .- 1 ' i r-1 .- I e4 .- I - i a- I .- I .- 1 ei .- 1 a- I a- I a- I .- I e- 1 a- I ei ei t- I .- i .-1 e- 1 .- I a- I .- 1 .- 1 t- I ei ei

E0 OU
CO a)

1--- cL

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 pp ppLL 0000000000000000000004 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cll 71 M III M O CI O M N erf O O trf tT O M C1 M en O IO M O O D In M M en O en N ID en N IN n(1a)    en er .- 1 N LO er M N N er co at N 00 .- I en M en to co N ID 0 ID N M M CO et If1 M ID CO N N M11 I ei N .- I I- 1 e.1 e- I N N er et er . i .-I .- I .- I N .-1 N . i ei N ei N N N ei I
1- m

cv o
i N
D

U

it N er Cr 00 01 M 00 M O O IfI ID M M Cr er Cr N N N. to O to In M to co O No er ei r` LO MN N N N N O1 00 ID 00 ID N N ei N ei . i N N N N N O 00 N N N N N N 00 N N N N N N
N If1 re: If1 In 0i O In N In r` r\ r` IA r` r` In In In r` r` If1 O N IA 01 0i 01 In CO In In In r` If1 01

N ID U3 M MM et Oer er , t ON N N M er N oN Nvl N  - I    ,- I  - I N . i el N N e- I I N .- 4 I- I ei . I N 1

0U

N
W

i? if?if?if?i/1 V1 4/? if?i? Vf if?if?if?of 11? 44 if?if?Vf of if?i? if?if?L1 i? V1 i? i? i/1 Uf i? M. i? i?i?  0

a a 7 a i w t 1 8 9 tl 0 DO
6 a a a 1 a 1 p   €   1 1 1tl B

J i E L   ,   J
J

a a V
p

h L
e r 1 a p 7 7 7

e S i
J

o O O O
is a u O' 0 0

Y
L

7 7 7 C C
L L

js
o a isei .- i C a 

O O O
N N

L'..L t a   €    

co
ei . 0 . 0 L el .- I - OL

C i i Ua o Up p 4;       
tr

CU CU CD
o r N 9 N U

tl

O.    O. O. O- 0.       Vt N O. O. O.

1

i a

1 i i
JY t J j

p 1
2    

u

E J 1 d J P a a a
B P A

p W g   ' ll 3

0, 
o a

Cor
0s

O
tl

Cu

i S a p 1 i
s o a

a p a
p t c

a ar

am,   V J a C

0);   
t0

In 1   ,   °  <   •+-
i a' 

LLp p s Z!       N;       pi F C,       V' LL°
Ip u s s of 7'      G E       ,• 1 7w

N
i..

iy
o u a   ' 

CO"   V,       .      u( C o   ¢    0 d 7 4)
w

p n= o B Us C 0 LL
J

tp J    ( O J J o a

01
wo   ' 0s      "       ^ o i ' O^,     1 s

r      . c0 7
s n Q

j y p1

a
s s. L5.-. i

Or(

A C= (

C0.    .   c

a. Na s y N U
i+  0 C 4_ O;    ( C

s 0) 0)     C    —  j i   '   a

VI

y J
V U tl

C
a+ c 01J O O   , of 7 L r o Y a IL

LL O f0 s

s 7 • Cs 71-3-' 4- +   wu

J' y` Og00 Ovo o+-'       
t C oY i=1 Q! U

Otl 3.
i•     a i O CO!. p i U s a s U C U 7

L O).

H O.    
VI 0, 0 F O `

p Cs (C0 I—  
a y O O) O p j

a    >

CD
o

p w

271

t 9±' N " 0 C) il4Uh:    
O a o C''

O f6 ut ( 0 0)  '  
C

u y 1_a.QI o N
op i ao 0

L yd a o o=   a
o1

F,e% v v I—' C.') v a c 0 u 5 li -`°a
11M U 0 C i- 

LL

0 O- fVp
a°   ', 

0 O.a Qo-
I" 

a
3 O ' C       : O. CO CO 0 _m Z C w C

may Q      '.
a`+ ei    ++  ('''n  +     N L L°   a 7a

Q. 
Na i s O)  

O- O
3 C C H r IA C. C U a O to

PCS u L
O  ,    

00 -!" O
v) U a t0 u p u

C lc
O N 7, O.i C C) C) w U r_ F. LL

j••I N•
U O) 

C a+    LL. ' O L L L'. E N of it a N, c a C    - 0 01 O L 0 7 y
in tp . 2    - O tl C ( 0, ' a CJ O) O) = O/ i

C C U C Ei E O C. O   V
U

O).

7. 
I N W L O) 0'. 

i
t..
0 C

00 H-00
o

s
Op O  ?," E C O.' ((C o    .› 3 >  y CC0 d 5 O) a Ol U

taps
S (00 .

0
m

tv) 

00
N. ( 6 

p
V

LgL2
N N

T cu: CI' O. F Etl, O_p 3; 3 C,- O' Q N,   o Q O. C 0 Cl) N LU C to
CC1

a, tVa L 11 a.+a ( 0  , . , J >_ > Cs Li 7!" O° On OJ vi O) a Os O M Ny CE W, s 7a 7- C3 O C ,' 1 to

U.  

O) w
HO cm ( now O::-'O, 00 >,U—=( 7 QnUtlUH?CenZ, Z Co O0 M, Q: CCa CLEtn( n UoU W QW CC cc LL,



O O ` D

O O O O 0 01D O O O O O O
11 a t.0 O N 01 01 G N t0 M C'.  co of nl Ill
n ra M 01 M M M M M e11 01 00 H11

03 N

a U
UU cu

n N v of 4.4<R i/1. i/ i/f</f v4 v vF v i/ E" I
r1

OP
O O O

p p

O O
p p p O O O OO O

coO co O Oa,

I+ ILL 01 01 N IN M Ill to it; 01 10 01 in IA it; in
a

I    ,- I 1 - I ,- 4

ei°<   -
1 yCCU

Y W
Na)

MO0V) vt. in.<nv inv ii.  in. i414 in. in.i. i"

N U)

o  ,U J
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

a i       * * * 
O* \ O* * \ \ * O* \ \ O*

o O O O O O O O O O O O 0 O O O
a)       0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

U)  >       a- I r I ri ri 1- 1 a- I .- I ri r-I a- I a- I r I a- 1 1-- 1 .- I

i
U

OD N
I- cC

LL O O M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ci

a)   en N V N M M r-ii l0r1 M M M 10̂ 000 M IA
LL r      ri a- I ri N ri

F• M

CCu 0
i N
0

U

M IA co IN co 00 00 N 47 01 47 47 00
N N N N N N N N N 01 N N N N N

01 0, IA I: In Ill 1l1 in 01 1G 0, IA IA in 1l1
ID 1.0 47 0 47 4' 10 10 1D 10 ID 10 10 it

l ri ei ei ai
tn

OV
0

N

Wi
in•v! N i/f 4/ 1 4.4 v4 iR iA i/ iA i/ 1. 44 in•i? 0

1 01
a G a a      !   u o 1. i
G 0 I

i

7 i   ! 
O. Q i

0 E E G

L i' >r f0 ( 0 > r d
3 fV O 7 7 7 O O' 7!
0 O O O O O O O';
t ri t ..0 t C a- I ri -

v a    01 al al ai v v al c   ,
D O. O.   O. O. O. a O. O. 0.0

B l

t G G i
E G G

9 d i

G a G

1 G G J
J I

a u G

G

9 it
i o G iii

G
u

o a n a
0 I

J 1 1
i i G

I 1 G
G S E J
P F G J

3 fl

0.

c

C p G

01
a

f0 n

N    '
O To aoYE_, o

c
c!'       .= U

Ug E
Y - UG E a J G 3 i_

p o a/
L. C vv CGU VG in_

O 10°      n

CA O +     c0 n' onotcO vcupu

i c C
aci m c Uto cu al w 0) 'V.I o ¢     a •C U U vo

M//1     
v + ,     E E v U E' 4.

r c c,

1/ 1y

00
p 3

t0,,     
V V V LL O. o. G/.. a, y`6 o V J

al
N U ++ O O c G2 0_Fw III. NI Uo=

4---,       .'

C 3 p_e. L O 0 t0 cO o a/ al' a/_  H°

ate+" `
u O c H C c _o uo O Oo o f _c No Or;
N LL al IV CO

a.+ 
a) e¢ < < O_ O. LU I

Z
a)       

v >  >    c_ c C Co—ao 2  $
i

M U) W 0 CU O L" co
ale a/ o

ate.+ 
4-, LoLoo 5 L +' a

lil
LL LL of In 0 I— i— a-    in; in in nGF_ 0EQ,



0 III i I 11 1 1 ;      ir
AgivrA16141g4wsiMgAgrke     " IsIz4A1,--10Agir-1     *=, vAl63Angigi.Td..;' 41
iriaVgalggraitV ilgr4iGniir arlIElarnIatitrq'tin Villqii 1Z ii'W al'Sig al'a al ei:8-1EI"

8

TM:::11: 5:: 1124: 11: 5::" NtrliPq= LINMWMITIINLIHNIV

I.    - g' 2.1Fig.741       . 1V:Iiii* V1'.7. 2.       1. 7C“ Ii-T-Ig71;1.       ,      oi

2.101:1;!. 4Aicklg!raiL;a! eaiai4iLqii.4. 7.6.   ait; i1,    .. T.   44. ea'.-; luiaia..7,113-     a RA
1- 1

E.- a

aa'amv—v.;sZauaaro.;uvaa,,.a.-4aa,,,. uutaga,,,. 4a,:lsam,laaa; 74*» aaaaszwiaviaa,aual:ia2"  -   W

riti

tTr:lilt
trq

tl'“,.
z. 614=.:

1t tt trithitr t
tii

mngLIMEEMWMAgEREULiq§iFRO.WnnfgUFM§ERF.EIRR.VMitMliAR    . a».. laa'ar,a2Qa34422aasav“ asddal;»»..i»adu».1aaduath;daavvaas.lauut42.1dagaut;

H RMWMUIMilal::"MiTiAailltkCUTEIEltalUIRiRl'ilttU5s:Ji.WJUUMV:s4A,7:1!
le  .-;:z4; aa; i4L.41     . 41   . 111      . 11AnAai.';'iaii,%ald1       , 741.1411r4; 440ailt; 1L; Aoui.ta4u4aidvialaiAA..-4;

18U!MUUMEIARMIR19q.Egi:MkU,UIFJO4kREle,Ut.:AggrlfMALF41
d' ug-,duuduamag4.1. 1.1aasutldamtir,4aav;v-Iduatiaut;,guat:idagagg;itida„ ddatiS

wz A
i

a an“ M$ 1g8AE  .=14e.f4Wq“,!rdausavIgile..WgIA.1148;e8,,il*; q0411412 jatiliigglinlialq§31114VW2laitgtIg5ariliii1Vgliitgi'iggieinl*0u
z 6 8
0 A  ,: Agg82.1.     $ 2, 71,     82r.ir'3WRIG:g.   14a4.!    0iRs7.i
O       . l  : ' 5i   , 74. 13aEug.,7,aussafiuUlttliaavgarailUassaaua4:4Q; 12sii2uuassagusUanal&u
a.       •1 i   '     " :" ' 1 ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 1 1 " " "g z .   62; 63:-.      1:: 1145;40,r,,54,1. 9,19.181g1=     1= 7m3141.7.1; 44'A414171.7WA: 11
0 2!   qlit7.441.11c4;alaztaa11*),Z411.      1: 41t411241railtr4141.  1444i24441w;I:41tlalili4a1
Fg     . :, l    ,    II HI 11 li Iiiiillli 11111 !   Li IMil ' ii1111W : ; Hi !   1 „ ,   1

z•     i-; tMIty4g.g,' S"rOlg VLS,!      & 152,F, F, P001VG.    $ 8. 7,    0' 40$ R48V;44S.V;M 2.- 18SL;g2laaUUN«Eirs21,%    gaifIRIEI.ili44F44,74aliUE4aLz,A1   , 7: 44U;;IA4Uii,     0 J  '‹
LEJ 0

41

8111814111111111111411  " 1" 11"" 1" 11811111"
8"

1"g 7 V IF4''AWOMU;RAggX0,MMqg  ,VO. g,6bAg.grig:V4I'FAr.W5“ 5§ 10..§,W§Vi
w a a    . aauau2avuansaa2aQmvaaddsaarlaulauuu;;;;Autiaa224assiaut12am2atla4A'd

4 -- >.    .  
i•

5w) c l &  '4,TdA1 . 94g1s-114. 21gAlg41511$,°11tr,gi!=.17,34147,1.81     . 7,153AqAisiel81,  7510, n1gFA:      el
0 it .2 Lipirag,.1,7:Cgilniglgi,V0t5141FAM,',?:,   1;,,, 141§ Is'isgig." ,,, 1,--‘ 1°,' IsglijIgg,',* a101e4,'14101t11= 1= leillit'i Ill T.4U

1 e UlUIV,  .;: a   , a t^,AA213]ainAAlr,walr,i6nav,iaiu:   T,T,    I.v.;44:ular.Lait2i* is; AAin41, 1̂. 11tlii.4irs'i•Alr,la a4Aiul.,a;      0LL 2 2
w 0 ti

4.     ! :' ! ! :   : :    ! ! ! ] !   , ,   : :   : , :   ;     : : :   : : 1 ,   ( :, iii :   ii , iiiiii

r 6 g h§Elq1u4WELLiWilAiTkE13.:iikEHiER§ E,:ikiiamcgRp.u.lkaElauil4§FAR c4
U m o 3-.. iadud  ...      ..1dA.,,     ,,,I3N.,:v1Lag.E.4      ;;;    : luaL; daauslt;.saiciii.;,.121-d1;4.9i. d

a 1 i 1 H     :   rrr 1 ,
z
O Sgiakgvrt. 41744-thr, r/rOR172:AlzgrAti3O*.-4* t0X8qvcsA17,:! xl.4e*    A
w 11141ligWE.q1kEMESir.="3"lalaMlntria»ilfigW41441aW4Wigigiatli
3 II   • 1 i nn   ,

z P.

U.O V- 4:1: 11HEINE:11,:: MiNNEFTilnangiVAM: VrainHENtrantitlilLA,   

O

La faksfrrialm1=2* 1,141,141:2aig.nig; 7,..       241g,',. 1, q4tAWgglit7.41s1ftsiglI5,  4=!!
u N11 § 41a;4111;;Laia,  U4*. v.;41aaliadaillia.14.11144;a1.11i4'441V, a1fn LT =

0       =

2.,, ,,, R-- sg,       19agi,'147=7       ; j:ZW534sAALs'AFL: s!ga    ;4       .. flq81-4ULVa.,; 4: 41.1; E4az;an.“ t; a.t    .„.tr,a.    E. WIL,n,ugianaa'4.-4   ,       az4» 4* utia.FL.      Z.o
m E.)

zO 441-.2H4WXX,qn.a.2k     , 7111U: r..F4§ kRtzikiEMIliUeLigiikM4gAlirgEliArgREn
u muuaatqaxs4amansavaug» agasun--"- allualraudaa*  auwa.laaatIgaa

m 14r1; AZig.1, 9, Plisip.IP-.11`,1! 1$,`   P.  Igis.13Ais“;; Ig,T,2,1, 311;-02>i%.: Pir---.116-. c4, 4.0 4̀Z;11,°-118i7;1`, V411;11.7iiirqif?,:2 i1.! 1 RIE,I,Zitk4A,l'ILlirellUq4Mk,WW,ArilIgaViil.ill     ,Wat,14101Elark118.T4Ta01',711
ge ala,   alaa;g441L-,     si4,54L-Falulaiva;d.14 ' 44d44441:i441411.    11:“ 1

L ,   , " , , , , " ,    ,____   , - ,      " "   , , , , , ,   , , . ,   , , , ,     , , , ,    

1u2MWEEFE7-ÎERFU. E0T4E    :.1 4-1M; i4k71,7A, IiMARIggi* gr;
8" 2,1dL:ig“ g:       

11a4L«,
ttlag.LadtTi2    ,742z,ig.   daiu4d.IddagaU

101.--,  gg' S- L"

P: gg' S-". 9: ggg." 2:ggaggs    -',,-9:=-,, sig'gg-^ 52: ggg." 5,:ggg". 97ggg'-^ 9: gRg-

P.

E 2.

a

g A

g

g
2 g

t-     g 7c' 2 b
e

s
ag Cg

1 g g i g 1

4



9

a    

gY41,T1 1 3ry 8    = A;74: 1 8  $     S3mx F R B
a»'  s aa;aa a3sa  „» xat aaxl» aaaa apla       xal axaaaaaa  sasiax$'.

A    ; ut:    g' n4q,s- R° 8       ;    *., 7,1 4.    . 4     *$& o4a       “'. 1gi u,,b=°° R$$ aa L.2,,T.aluut aaH»» I»»inas4s»»» aa443.1.  m»4—rn.    »» as« x» cex« aa.luly to»»» at„ x». 1an

a S E- 1

i•

888.
x+^ 2.4“! 4e_^  "'$, 4°`^&  $  rM& ER°' g" a&^. t;',  4mxmlr< m       $$,°-£ gxs8a;a°'«. W2Ara x sa°       gE E E„ a

i„

stA" aka  " a.„say<_„€;`”^    -" a„ s;_ a; ar" a  „_ sa_  a Y m
0» zx    »» uuda2 x» 5»  aaaaau»« àa»» au2a»» a» ava t4 aaax.ia.uua  »  auaa"  .-; u    »

I
1G8 11.1 Sos A t 8

p
S  & ffi      $ 4.  4.

nE 1      _ a    Mi i5 M
a

1C<       § 1 n x a lad Vsa   -

11111111 I ' ' III 1111 1 1111 11 1 111 111111 ' 1

I A ViE iaogn$       ragm H-TA F  §H2    $  F n so        s      .   URli
0
Wz a   .

a0 11 84 0 4 iB SS' s AF:A 6Alg a mW sn g̀ s       > 3 8 F' S fr AAA     » m,,_ '
m: 4     '&; lr     . 41   , C:

c IV    »$ a.ilZia:a.a'  ErillittllgZigMg axaa;aaaxIlia 12,gE trilEittaaEg;ia.asga , W
V

z L8

0 M    „      s8_ ae a xa e< x      »
ax« aai» as» a«    »»„».   &; 4aaa5» x» axasa, ex aa »««» a» a» a» x»„»» a»;g    »

Waii,z       ;   ppU

z!,   O
U $   .   

2 9i i     , n°v      = o      ... 2i 11 g c'     ° m&   ''.

a        
a s

333      »       
1 ;   IHI1   : j

2 z'. G
5 a^       sg 4 a ss rsRs gs .  8a os as o

7,     c
hi8» sear.» a» x» ss»»„»    « se„ a»    zt„ ya85    »» st x» stteH»» ttx t» x» a» 5» x»  1»„    a» a

V

0 W.:      w 4a 4`,. w i n 4    . e-..     4 4 14 4 s,  ,=, 4,     1-       <`— n a,  r o    a    . b.$,
e„n V e. 1 b      ! v î

a N z AASF    .:» st4OHt§OW61§ ink nA Rgg?. 1MigMEE.4

jl
aAoJIamJaMMi• a EE= JIF

V a a an auAau» aa„ a“ suaaas44a* ad2a st'#€ aaa3Ld£1p  »  auc4.2 t; 14uaaauaadaaduuaa
Z _E.   

eriii ,

LL z 2
9a 9585 5aa 5» S»: 8» 8„ a  » S»». r3» a9»»»»» a5,     a.ax as 8».»    a       » x»       a9y.       0CO N

0 D 8`   1»  » dyad»»     xu$»»  s  $»»     »» a spy»»»  a»»» x a&»»»  sacra 1»» a» d r el

za a i1 .
C 1 sors4mu'_   gi» 84.     a cag g8 a5 a 8°   n ° rs" Mt
V WHIIIIa  »»»  »riafaa a„  x    »  $ i egE&  „ x s iagais51„gaaa3»    g
W

8Bz
s

p

C 89       ^ 8P8nK-4»,“- v8P-' 8 8'-Ns' O esxx',-- 883°     9S --, 86399999990; 99

J
xa» i»  »«  »l«x»»»„ s aaaasec;  a;  si aaa»»» itaa» skyaa5« t»aa» a»«  x«„

m

w 3      »  8ffi98      - 9; 888  _& S 8<  8 8       ° 8      < g 8 S5°„      &: m

N       . R st» xa  &» ia xa'»» 1»   539$ 3„ 88-»»„ 8:»    „.„«  x,»»'» 4 a814  rta83

o

Qa ,!Ab p 4:  8 g8 8 oS 8 vS      ° 88&' 8&= 3 848 8 8 884  ; m    $  r^
O 5W    « 3»»§« Z» a» l»„x»  »  8835»»

8»» 58»»» 5» 5»»»»»     »»  aa  » si5s4» guar,»„  »    „
J a
0 F

u S8eo z' 848°,°%      9. 88 aya8'$,,^,,v ry.' n, ryne s884n,     8`,1“ o°_°,v88, 5 84P$ am8

V 5998„ stUa» 59x» 9G  „ a» x9» 5^
axx  » 5595335599399933 9r;. a334988593985»» 398

III,       

8 8    8 8  9$   8 g 81. 0 MF'.      .IWRA-,0,iqUaiIgiWiiiAigini4MEin'FldiVaniFiniiininirg4IE
2r,  r,8«»„ a» 8x» 895:»8 ax» 5« a» x» 5»»»»»« 88333$ 8» a  9»» a x» 9;«»'». 44,;9»»»,»_ x» a'.,.

ki ” 2998  §§§§&§§§§§§§§§§   .§§§§§k§§§     s§§§§ k§§§§§§§§§§§ g§§§§ kggA998a
s s ss ggs-

7, 4,
8gs-, s8ss-„ oggs-„ sg s-„ og eggs fas

ss o sF g
r'

8 S

a a

E O
m m m m mA' B B B 8

E a a a a a k
U

U
m W 9 W 9

45



tgR 9 n' ° Z?o; E^ 3&`$_$ C:2ti; 882-"  A PITtfi; ly ê. 8a    :'^ P1.1     $ 5 Praia'8ng,ô3° 7S Vi rXgl; 4SFv;'.°."9S'.'
3aa3$ a3aa33aaaaagas, .sta»» satzu a

e.i&

a as ai!umv42E40.aRx51m34 uaagEs  $

R.„

18
g

a

wm Srn«,: 9.°-$.°, 3= gomva$ oe.N-1 A,74eRK.gg  <$lRa    $ v^ gr!I.''.,.ASr°$mv" ASSP,
54 5ia5isiaa» a»» aaa»» aa»ww„>;» r44:t S    » a=» g„» 5i  »»»„„= 5is =  »»»»»    »»  »»

210,     >A3 0a» a3    », tt L;42 4V ttH3  .1 8" atta5z8   ' tta c CO

1!
L     

g 8P:=.2 oo 9tta, aePF e s sM    

UQ
ss..      As

88 a LiaBwwNw etsii,,'L;'     LttNws wsi awatta4    .7 F4142gysw» uttNs; wxiusi» g W

1 Hitt°       
Ititl R$ S : M

41 F
c imA

1
ry

0 Zep k" a a 4-     
N tt w« N Ntt a- i saw b

pS A4 SRS A.  & 8 8 3 mA 385s.:3    $$.       , A  ,,
as p

3g 1m un u
o,

s s  .       &     k
ge

0
ehHd» tt»»  » w  » a- 3» i»«»a     »» tt»  wttNa dw«»w» w«» uw  »     » tt» uttNAws» i1Na» a»

Wz a.
x,

o$ 88  & 3N  $  smis; 8. 3G$  3 R 3 4]     r'&  £ ffie' amfaRS E, 6si fr, sS° IT'$ Ri9: { w' S¢''R e,& 8$ S
o Jas asaAAsai a a«• tt3Sasca$; a3aasa3 iaa  »as:ai8RS3alimasas aluiailla ulgl
CJ

Z B 8
O 8    . 4 s1448mv s$ 8 8     .* 7.„ n$ ryo°°      , o$^ nttmR'R=, 1' .    , n ^ agPz;gR°

tt$5 m
gaiaa» a»»» ai.--       NwN1.244,3„ 3aa    » Haagau44 x    » a»» gaug„ s »    a„ gtag.  „

WaHI
V

3N    » 
Qn

Naryyr.   
9

1,

5iw       -     

lZ
Z;   6 U.  e,       

t1.  D 9$ 8 ar r

Z 0
w g l.   N3tt  8www r41. 3N w3ttN«,    8ttri

ti
e

o3°<." n       ”

ffi

Z - 1 sq  „       asa» saH agg, att'"„  y» Hsti:»»6„ a*»»»axa»»  aaa,' S,i a5*L—
5;$,

2
W 0   .. 7'-<--

3 Htt    -
W gvs  $  

tt$  

4   

uaNA  $     
aNT      »     $  

uHa2u$ a»=

m

11$
g

a    »\       g u0s  »    u aav  »»u  »^ sass SSa 35i»  tt H s3aa5ttQ

W o 9 g 9g  • 8w S m
5

8 r  :   ,   3S3 N

u

Z 2
e N: tta3wwtttta3 3355; tttt335189aa5; 8$$$- a 3s1tt:tt 599$    83.33533533.3 95$

O O a

6 xMIIH atg$    
www»  

Vii§      i§§    -c rsFss° RI= i  $ s miVA   ., go4'       N
N» a3N» uNww wN» g.id w SawN ttwww» uwwNuN»   s; wt a;; waHa

o e^ o 5i; o^^   

3 sigiiitIng  »  aaa aria»„ ialEnli>;iV» i 1„ 11eg: , Haiilllil i40nigg8„, k
W

HZ
W 11  , pa v°iw&^       ^ g$$"  u

3rn;
ar1.

r°r4^! 8^ n  $^_ N L102,.  48 x

xiS=$
m    "; 14Rm gl° arStgSB RO

a3axNass3ua» S5a       » a„ Eyawa»«a„  aaN»  »  tttta» 3yaw u»     38aH8a38

p

Q Q W gr 8 H H 3    . p     .,      *  gao8    , 7 2g'  
W n8;  Nrv    a g83 A  °  ^ Ow Ne^

O e`1g»  a3y FL' i aatttt« 95i    « a     » ti»    „ 41;,.7»iay= 4» yH»« Haaf4Haiai S°°„= s»  8s
J 2    ¢      

w N

O

Z
xaoQvw^-  *

4,,,       wttc„ a”  saf—R...    as .    41r, soOP.Ms4; f2,    1 Attmb3'°, 1"174 4
4 0

n8  
and " n 10    14 1q,

n K=             <  .^

yrN
UM a eVW,7,4Ri s J  =       N    J^    JIB J- i$

u3395333835 88598888315 aa HGl91883533833I58u.282A a3» 4U" 33»* 8$

3$ 
aa8      °       r5 339II WIM,-.:ATalqUfkillE,EIMESE:P: 5.:M11101R1§,IIIM:MUV.,      41V44.iiE4Z

rga 3358898333 3 853N" u N33,5333398383337i    ^ 3351«',..0 a35251.«»
w3535i» wri

zgxM§ Fa i$<a O E_    8 a air ooN n M m E kr4     .=  s iU..?3 '»»»» a» aua2a  ^"» r s: awNh aNwN3Hww3 awwN a3s3«  w3NuuuN3H: tw3"  8a" g» st„ tt

8  "° f g 9 R9H"° g588      - 929988 98-,-'^ 9998       .. ry eg9H cgSts”
0

x
F

I I
A 1 1 m I z

s

8 s 3 s z z z



9 i•

1A PHA M; n xs Alt ry 11n1 8; n' 071' n1S Aln ail*

xim,
s

ssAA
s a S:   a ffie AA; 1, &° AvrA8, g881 A88 Air,n

ialgs aaas ttVia'aaxAAsa s  »    s.x saaaaiii a» xx" aasa» .
PJ

ig 8

y
W marp.

a
nS^ i` 

aoHNa  . 

V^  UniA- ngAeSM S3a**  r sa' n! am v a:“ IS S,^ 4a6 2A» Aa A» aAanuanUa«    » AAAA ;» aa»»  » a"       54»»    « aaa«  «aa2Sieg
d
Fe-  d ire s m R       I

i'•
7. 

A    A s
mo

e«       s s      »       o m?9WsA    "" A    " a    »  " aAF" A"    SA»».:."°"» A y"^"    a«»»    «"»»  " R"»"«»"" a»" r; G WQ

x ry xs4.    41 s a»  s  - s ss€ ss s°   su"&
a- s sg  $ 4 KRsG$ s  s», a ug4a  „ f s riVm.   s xi»aa        aaA Aa,

as  " xaa AA» a    " x»    »" a  "  " a Alm
a gAIA»«" u»« a"»    A A     A  »

pi
s•     s st A s os a»_ g

a e

AAs-
S,  

a 8 s s  "      s T8I Fg 1$2X g». A» S a'    2a4.       

18W0 Viq. 4mMa§,gi gsiaa esM    < si  - in xia HEZZEA       ° f

S
a""  uHaaaaad a" a»    """"       » ya"  » a" ASAAa" aA»" a" a4"" aaa da.i

Wz 9 3 III
m A$ Pinl 6ASi° ARA$• A417;* 4 1an A8&   R WA8&  A 888•       An3^ 1A<  '    ygA4

o m e :  1. 4.;,,,,:     

g      •!....
i1,-:.:lasvaismalukaa«ia„»pis¢aa a t a44: , aaalQ]% saiilaivasi§       la sz«

2 E, 8

W

gW
ax  ^ a

n    » rn»  
x  ° Aa

fc
a°

a  » aas    »  ltw gA5a«  «  ttaR9Aa aAA       »„
V

Aa  «    A    »»  A A»    «  »     »

z t U

ze 3= rs8 s_ ae'  gOlV mms 8^

a     —:.

zN     .gw o mam-*

as,»  -  < sm  -    °^  ,, s ,,
o    ^^       

ng   , mg^^    menaa  _ 2P2 4W.g
H Z • 3 1  »:

S» r1" 4" 2" 67141« Ltd»" 4." 4H  »»S„»»";; U"» 6»» H AN»" ri"•  ; 4 3»  "» E42»«» A•
W

0   ,   
ei m rvm       =     ..

0 ffi nA em o Se' S',e aa 3 i..
D. n... rv' 5- nun$'» v tvi. n wi' 8= i. N^.. ae v s. i. v a.^. n

E.   z"      « cryma,: a« s a s» a, a°s g= aa" JIeT

JI°
s  

m

aa?" aJlssF„ a sR  ,
Q . 

w    >       aard» Aaauasaaa2iASiaAAa44hiaaaAxdaa`aaAaa»»' s: A a ad» AA« a« IA Aaaa"IAam.l""I
ivallua.

a II IILIILIIL .    I  I11 11 1Z F-

VI E 8a 8 r
ag    :_      Sr S; 1:;" 4:=!2 S N

LL 2 Min.  M Akilkt»       s      a llktsms  .q sag s s       $      a_   fir
LL

ag aa2; Saa" AAA»»' S       SS"„,"     »: A""$$'  2$$ A'AOWL 33$2$  AA8!aaa"$ 3 2$ 1'$ 3$       0z wO C N
G `  1 34& E Ma» FxH^      sk s  ;

8    sam tugHl.   §  ei  ^<=g,qa 1 eHRFk Nu

D aa»  g» #»»     "« llaU  """    """» 2»» a»    """» xA»»  ""  ms» a» x» aaa» A»   » a" aA

2 -      1II I II 1
p g? 1, sgMA684Vi.`.j8. v̂5=    8 gin. n. , e4 a'° “

1. E.   
i.-;

g„ e g Q` BA-oF5 6C xS8gWA.-y$u lili aaaaa;a„ : aat„„ a» a»»” aa» aa,yiaAaagi„ a» a»„ iaasa„ aa» a« nahaai£ a"a» saa» a
sz

iglA       ;o o,""$ m IR8AN Q 4     S , o S AA_;-. FnVp
g 44.7;  2agSaAA» y 5238 5 8885 835AA"" AA^ aa  » am» aAAaA» a4» a»  »"    F221a3»W u

3

3a    &
N  &

AAA 4 12      .;       4.  & 8AM MME    ' M      Fr
U       . i l  » Is;”""» A»       -  " x":»  5" xa»    As»       a       -    ""»"" sr" asa

F-     S5 28„2A5    « ag r8 g& o2&    A 222 3 rS„  2A 5a283 S 5A    282oa )    s„ x» rAs a» t .ciatAi.. 4wAaaztaaa Aa  » yAma»«   i a»» aa» 3»« aa» xis$ a«
W  `J

2

ON       ' A gi 5i.^; 5ry$« S; an=a

5eJJIIl„ ',
3     ' I 5282I28289:9

M
28m..

R8285955255R553o aa: g kaaa ARA mnq a k V^ aagikUsk4     § RiiR EF§ Ca lF4Ru a2AAAaAAAASIA» SAA"» AAnAA2A» 4h AV A42AAMASa» Aw5" aAAA» A" UARASAaaaAxa

1
A

fag  &  ng$ ssos ass g a4g g
n

k   , ' gn angg
n  :

n s
gg as» x an»  " s" AA     » x"" s;"     " xA"    AxA" AAx""    » AAlaln az;    » AAMaaa» r; AA

18 <  M  . 1aM s:    ga xs ga x m Us VI! ER, a s      F. Eg F1; s r="
Ha»» Aa»»» xs»» xr.4,..1» a"    » AH"    x" g"» x"""»»" x» a»  " da"»»aA»» aad"

w_g54-- c5igss- merge- msRss-    sss       .. r       _ m       _ r       _

9
fi E p

v

E
3 6 E 1 1
Iwz Z z a

a
ad 8

5

5 u q

I I I 8I 8h 5 x

U

u z z e a N N ci z
z



I»  asi4g     »»»i„ tiiII Uilr43»» tt  » 1:11.4 '»  » 4a  »»»»» tt.iiii

2° ' 47.   tta: rq“ i;—aye:     & R>DSR$  = Ss I.A..  grmaRO4g,
s  "- u»» p»; agsia«  «»«» fix  »«»» y» aa» aa»»»»«  »» fit„ a9    »» x»«» H

U $    

m 4agm Ar8 44 Z       m       Z g xeg»  aaaaa»     Na     » a aa»»»»       » a a;»       Ha CO
s w s

ICI

7.      

aR aR       » tev1  $8Na g„- Nasattti»a»    . :»«     a»»
H»    :»»»    „•  axtt» d3 ,ttd »»      W,

s stt ma m s.

14H1
g  s_ a. We

g°'  0sn' gg g  „„  kla§ n  »     o olnim A
n m« N£ ittagaaa: 4.»» 

I -    

U     .   
I

IomF$
tttt«-»  as a  » N xa

1411;       »
a Pq   : Wg     _ m ra$   atHs g

0
usiHaya s» N»   a»«  sxtiaHtt,1ad a»» ttytt»«»»,, tta» ti« tta» H» asitt

Wz 11
II

m gR'F68i   $ 0 A8135A$^ PPY ` 88j¢ OPI4V8A18ANtv _,7”  6p   ° d g'  $ Sg gna

o i i smiusiltts    •  »' a iaa"E» 3I  »»l»  alas4alawasg  » asaga24i

z 8 8
O

sm rPmns„ e t  -° R°- s,--*,-
5 V       .", RP aHILIaaaa  »r» aa° asttiii; 4 Y^ x- a» NN» aaNttaI LN
C.

RO1
6U    - m 8  = g•    °  8

a
gO

2/ g» a„       aa  » a»      ,       a
a

te

z N 4g1spaMFoa a gg,     
sttN

gg; g; m4 amm< s ma m g?1“     _<
N o - 

E
84:8» s„»„       aNaNN»sattaay„„tiNHtt„„ as „ at r; 4Naa

O x

a    >    
oNdttaas A  « N tttttta iaD1aaSU4a a« N«» tt» N 2»»  NdU22Z'

a
It

W
e

4 ag  '   $    

a x

aa

a       »

N

0 t       < srg a M44 x g    •  ak Ig W
aatt a»    a a _ att a H C,L

z 2 a tt tt

D v siy
NU U a- wtt» a» ss4A lyaM»» daH tt»» H»»    » H»       » tt»  aa»

Za 9 I .      ii I

o c  „ sArgr a    .. 20,stt  tt    ,, 9,1.j, a 4 94,    s' gtt ttiea   s xlro 2u lxs»§ag»»  »» a» p s» s iEs„ illO  „    Ra A4M ls»a» ai»i g

2 B 5

w gl,, i7-va ô P?; ie,  V    „ 612A. 1: 16'  ^ S ng!ngP,$.5'1'4 4w.°°,6^ v= oê7.sAV,P.H9-o e .
8:   Na»» s« DiNasi«  sA Zr;Og4 440411asz« aa»» a»» a» aa» U»» 43.1! 4»Na4

5
4 99    &    s SFR K ffi R4      °

SF
55

N       , R I l'  a  »»' a.a» a» a a».  a  » ai   » aa» a»»      aac.i4. s;

ttti

LLo 1 oa
4

W a4

a    „ 8H
M» a     e$ .  aas

x»
PV    ,-;

c stoQs» EH»»       a  »» a41  . N» a n a»"»°  »  Natin

O       >•
0.

In 11.4N„ as$    
N..,

N„ p, V4AZA "     4F4g1y°, o nS M=`<  « t gifM.ro,

ttttaNa  » aaaN„ tt« ttaaaaa»a^   1.1 3»«attttaaNttattaatta» aaa

2gR8-^_ NR8    ° OR8 ^ nRs      -    _„       3S-  2SR8-  9 95
EA

F!'

E s

v
v u

u 3

S a

2 2 3 E z I
P,

um



or C0G,

up--

91   
1Q'

r

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE June 2, 2015 ITEM NO. NB 3

STAFF SOURCE Amy Hall-McGrade, Parks & Recreation and Library Services Director
Lisa Evans, Parks & Recreation Manager

ITEM TITLE Approve Contract Amendment for Alliant Consulting, Inc. for Cougar
Park Project# M-1204 in amount of$4, 351. 00

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract with Alliant Consulting, Inc. for Cougar Park Project
M- 1204 in the amount of$4,351. 00, increasing the contract cost from $ 19, 410 to $23, 761.

FISCAL IMPACT

Sufficient funding for the contract amendment is available in the Parks & Resources Department

budget ( account 46003400 55200).  Funding for the Cougar Park Project comes from $2, 125, 750
in Proposition A grant funds and  $ 360,000 in Bond Proceeds of the former Covina

Redevelopment Agency.

BACKGROUND

The California State Parks' Office of Grants and Local Services awarded the City of Covina and
Covina Parks & Recreation Department $ 2, 125, 750 in funding for the Cougar Park Project M-
1204 pursuant to Proposition 84 ( Public Resources Code §§ 75001 et seq.).  All Proposition 84

Grantees must provide a Labor Compliance Program Certification Form to the State Office of

Grants and Local Services before requesting a grant payment for construction costs.   Public

Resources Code § 75075 requires that" the body awarding any contract for a public works project
financed in any part from funds made available pursuant to this division shall adopt and enforce,
or contract with a third party to enforce, a labor compliance program pursuant to subdivision (b)
of Labor Code Section 1771. 5 for application to that public works project."

The purpose of the Labor Compliance Program is to ensure that the construction contracts

comply with prevailing wage laws, and that payroll records follow generally accepted accounting
practices.

The City entered into a contract with Alliant Consulting, Inc. in the amount of$ 19,410 for the

following services:

Prepare a Labor Compliance Program

Review bid ad, bid documents and general conditions

Attend pre-bid meeting
Attend pre-construction meting
Review construction payrolls



Prepare annual reporting
Complete site interviews

The contract period is May 20, 2013 to July 30, 2015.    The contract has exceeded the initial

contract amount due to project time extensions and issues with the contractor not providing
required payroll documentation in a timely manner.  The original contract amount was $ 19,410.

As of April 30, 2015, $ 23, 761 has been paid to Alliant Consulting, Inc.   The final contract

amount cannot be determined at this time as it is dependent on the Contractor providing the
necessary documentation to fulfill the Labor Compliance requirements.

EXHIBITS

A.  Alliant Consulting, Inc. Contract
B.  Alliant Consulting, Inc. Proposal

Respecully submitted

r       '   iVidyfi,61

Amy H l McGrade, Director
Parks & Recreation Department



CITY OF COVINA
t PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

1. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into this
20th

day of May, 2013 by and between the
City of Covina, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of California withits principal place of business at 125 East College Street, Covina, California 91723 (" City") andAlliant Consulting, Inc., a Corporation with its principal place of business at 555 Cajon Street,Suite A Redlands,  California 92373  (" Consultant").    City and Consultant are sometimes
individually referred to as " Party" and collectively as " Parties" in this Agreement.

2. RECITALS.

2. 1 Consultant.

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain
professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in thisAgreement.    

Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing Labor Compliance
Monitoring services to public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar withthe plans of City.

2.2 Project

City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the Cougar Park projectProject") as set forth in this Agreement.

3. TERMS.

3. 1 Scope of Services and Term.

3. 1. 1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to
the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional Labor Compliance Monitoring andcreation of the City' s LCP ( Labor Compliance Program) for the Project (" Services").   The

Services are more particularly described in Exhibit " A" attached hereto and incorporated hereinby reference.    All Services shall be subject to,  and performed in accordance with,  this

Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicablelocal, state and federal laws, rules, and regulations.

3. 1. 2
Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from May 20, 2013 to July 30,2015, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.   Consultant shall complete the Services

within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and deadlines.

65002. 0000216790206. 1 BB& K: 9- 10)

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A pagw 1 of 15



The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to
complete the Services.

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant.

3. 2. 1 Control and Payment of Subordinates;  Independent Contractor.    The
Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine
the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this
Agreement.  City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.
Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of
this Agreement.   Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on
behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under
Consultant' s exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other
amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this
Agreement and as required by law.    Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and
obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance,  disability insurance, and workers'
compensation insurance.

3. 2.2 Schedule of Services.       Consultant shall perform the Services

expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of
Services set forth in Exhibit  " A"  attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
Consultant represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the
Services in conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant' s conformance
with the Schedule, City shall respond to Consultant' s submittals in a timely manner.   Upon

request of City, Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to
meet the Schedule of Services.

3. 2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.     All work prepared by
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City.

3. 2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.   Consultant has represented to City thatcertain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should

one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of
at least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event that City and Consultant
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate thisAgreement for cause.   As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the
Services in a manner acceptable to the City,  or who are determined by the City to be
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by theConsultant at the request of the City.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are
as follows:  Christa Schott, President of Alliant Consulting, Inc.  and Vickie Westfall,  VicePresident.

3. 2.5 City' s Representative.  The City hereby designates City Manager, or his orher designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement  (" City' sRepresentative").  City' s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the City for all

Page 2 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002. 00002\6790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept direction or orders from any person
other than the City' s Representative or his or her designee.

3. 2.6 Consultant' s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Christa Schott,
President, Alliant Consulting, Inc., or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the
performance of this Agreement (" Consultant' s Representative").   Consultant' s Representative
shall have full authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under
this Agreement.  The Consultant' s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, usinghis best skill and attention,  and shall be responsible for all means,  methods,  techniques,

sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services
under this Agreement.

3. 2.7 Coordination of Services.   Consultant agrees to work closely with City
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City' s staff, consultants and other
staff at all reasonable times.

3. 2. 8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform
all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the
standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the
State of California.   Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional
calling necessary to perform the Services.    Consultant warrants that all employees and
subconsultants shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to
them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and subconsultants have all licenses,
permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the
Services, including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.   As provided for in the indemnification
provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without
reimbursement from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are
caused by the Consultant' s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any
employee of the Consultant or its sub-consultants who is determined by the City to be
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat
to the safety ofpersons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services
in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant
and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project.

3. 2. 9 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant shall perform
and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 3. 1. 2 abovePerformance Time"). Consultant shall also perform the Services in strict accordance with any
completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits " A" attached hereto, or which
may be separately agreed upon in writing by the City and Consultant  (" PerformanceMilestones"). Consultant agrees that if the Services are not completed within the aforementioned
Performance Time and/ or pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed pursuant to
provisions of this Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will sufferdamage.

3. 2. 10 Laws and Regulations; Employee/Labor Certifications.   Consultant shall
keep itself fully informed of and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and

Page 3 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.00002\6790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



regulations in any manner affecting the performance of the Project or the Services, including allCal/OSHA requirements, and shall give all notices required by law.  Consultant shall be liable
for all violations of such laws and regulations in connection with Services.  If the Consultant
performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without
giving written notice to the City, Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arisingtherefrom.   Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers,
employees, and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this
Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to complywith such laws, rules or regulations.

3. 2. 10. 1 Employment Eligibility;  Consultant.    By executing this
Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all requirements and restrictions of
state and federal law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, including, but not
limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended from time to
time.   Such requirements and restrictions include, but are not limited to, examination and
retention of documentation confirming the identity and immigration status of each employee of
the Consultant.  Consultant also verifies that it has not committed a violation of any such law
within the five ( 5) years immediately preceding the date of execution of this Agreement, and
shall not violate any such law at any time during the term of the Agreement.  Consultant shall

avoid any violation of any such law during the term of this Agreement by participating in an
electronic verification of work authorization program operated by the United States Department
of Homeland Security, by participating in an equivalent federal work authorization program
operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of newly
hired employees, or by some other legally acceptable method.  Consultant shall maintain records
of each such verification, and shall make them available to the City or its representatives for
inspection and copy at any time during normal business hours.  The City shall not be responsible
for any costs or expenses related to Consultant' s compliance with the requirements provided for
in Section 3. 2. 10 or any of its sub- sections.

3. 2. 10.2 Employment Eligibility; Subcontractors, Consultants, Sub-
subcontractors and Subconsultants.   To the same extent and under the same conditions as
Consultant, Consultant shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, sub- subcontractors and
subconsultants performing any work relating to the Project or this Agreement to make the same
verifications and comply with all requirements and restrictions provided for in Section 3. 2. 10. 1.

3. 2. 10.3 Employment Eligibility; Failure to Comply.  Each person

executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant verifies that they are a duly authorized officer
of Consultant, and understands that any of the following shall be grounds for the City toterminate the Agreement for cause: ( 1) failure of Consultant or its subcontractors, consultants,
sub- subcontractors or subconsultants to meet any of the requirements provided for in Sections
3. 2. 10. 1 or 3. 2. 10.2; ( 2) any misrepresentation or material omission concerning compliance with
such requirements ( including in those verifications provided to the Consultant under Section
3. 2. 10.2); or ( 3) failure to immediately remove from the Project any person found not to be in
compliance with such requirements.

3. 2. 10.4 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Consultant
certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which

Page 4 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.00002\6790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake
self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services.

3. 2. 10. 5 Equal Opportunity Employment.    Consultant represents
that it is an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant,
employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap,
ancestry, sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities
related to initial employment,  upgrading,  demotion,  transfer,  recruitment or recruitment
advertising, layoff or termination.  Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of
City' s Minority Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs
or guidelines currently in effect or hereinafter enacted.

3. 2. 10. 6 Air Quality.   To the extent applicable, Consultant must
fully comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in furnishing or using equipment
and/ or providing services,  including,  but not limited to,  emissions limits and permitting
requirements imposed by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) and/ or
California Air Resources Board  ( CARB).   Although the SCAQMD and CARB limits and
requirements are more broad, Consultant shall specifically be aware of their application to
portable equipment", which definition is considered by SCAQMD and CARB to include anyitem of equipment with a fuel-powered engine.  Consultant shall indemnify City against any

fines or penalties imposed by SCAQMD,  CARB, or any other governmental or regulatory
agency for violations of applicable laws,   rules and/ or regulations by Consultant,   its

subconsultants, or others for whom Consultant is responsible under its indemnity obligations
provided for in this Agreement.

3. 2. 11 Insurance.

3. 2. 11. 1 Time for Compliance.    Consultant shall not commence
Work under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has
secured all insurance required under this section.   In addition, Consultant shall not allow any
subconsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory
to the City that the subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this section.  Failure to
provide and maintain all required insurance shall be grounds for the City to terminate this
Agreement for cause.

3. 2. 11. 2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense,
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of
the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.
Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance
for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimumlevels of coverage:

A)     Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least asbroad as the latest version of the following: ( 1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability coverage ( occurrence form CG 0001); ( 2) Automobile Liability:

Page 5 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.0000216790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 ( any auto);
and ( 3) Workers' Compensation and Employer' s Liability: Workers' Compensation insurance as
required by the State of California and Employer' s Liability Insurance.

B)     Minimum Limits of Insurance.   Consultant shall maintain
limits no less than: ( 1) General Liability:  $ 1, 000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal
injury and property damage.   If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/ location or the general aggregate limit
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability: $ 1, 000,000 per accident
for bodily injury and property damage;  and  ( 3)  Workers'  Compensation and Employer' s
Liability:  Workers'  Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California. Employer' s Liability limits of$ 1, 000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

3. 2. 11. 3 Professional Liability.     Consultant shall procure and
maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five ( 5) years
following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their
profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $2, 000,000 per claim, and shall
be endorsed to include contractual liability.

3. 2. 11. 4 Insurance Endorsements.    The insurance policies shall
contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies:

A)     General Liability.  The general liability policy shall include
or be endorsed ( amended) to state that:  ( 1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipmentfurnished in connection with such work; and ( 2) the insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers,
or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant' s scheduled
underlying coverage.   Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors,officials,  officers,  employees,  agents,  and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant' s
insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way.

B)     Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shallinclude or be endorsed ( amended) to state that:   ( 1) the City, its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the
ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by the Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and ( 2) the insurance
coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City,  its directors,  officials,  officers,

employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage
excess of the Consultant' s scheduled underlying coverage.   Any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall
be excess of the Consultant' s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in anyway.

Page 6 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.00002\6790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



C)     Workers'    Compensation and Employer' s Liability
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the
insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant.

D)     All Coverages.   Each insurance policy required by thisAgreement shall be endorsed to state that:  ( A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced
or canceled except after thirty ( 30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City; and ( B) any failure to comply with reporting or other
provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

3. 2. 11. 5 Separation of Insureds;  No Special Limitations.     All
insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In

addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection
afforded to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

3. 2. 11. 6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions. Anydeductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant
shall guarantee that, at the option of the City, either:  ( 1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers; or ( 2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeingpayment of losses and related investigation costs,  claims,  and administrative and defense
expenses.

3. 2. 11. 7 Acceptability of Insurers.   Insurance is to be placed with
insurers with a current A.M. Best' s rating no less than A:VIII,  licensed to do business in
California, and satisfactory to the City.

3. 2. 11. 8 Verification of Coverage.   Consultant shall furnish City
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by thisAgreement on forms satisfactory to the City.   The certificates and endorsements for each
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on itsbehalf,  and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.    All certificates and
endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at anytime.

3. 2. 11. 9 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in
addition to Consultant' s insurer,  any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in
connection with the Services under this Agreement.

3. 2. 12 Safety.   Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoidinjury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations,
and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as

Page 7 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.00002\6790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  ( A) adequate life protection and life saving
equipment and procedures;  ( B)  instructions in accident prevention for all employees and
subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks,
confined space procedures,  trenching and shoring,  equipment and other safety devices,
equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or
injuries; and ( C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety
measures.

3.2. 13 Accounting Records.   Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate
records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such records
shall be clearly identifiable.   Consultant shall allow a representative of City during normal
business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other
documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all work,
data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three ( 3)
years from the date of final payment under this Agreement.

3.3 Fees and Payments.

3. 3. 1 Compensation.      Consultant shall receive compensation,   including
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth
in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.   The total compensation
shall not exceed Nineteen thousand four hundred and ten dollars ($ 19,410) without written
approval of the City Manager, or his or her designee.   Extra Work may be authorized, as
described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this
Agreement.

3. 3. 2 Payment of Compensation.   Consultant shall submit to City a monthly
itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by
Consultant.  The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the
initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate,
through the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review
the statement and pay all approved charges thereon.

3. 3. 3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any
expenses unless authorized in writing by City.

3. 3. 4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City mayrequest that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, " Extra Work" means any work
which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which
the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.
Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization
from City' s Representative.

3. 3. 5 Prevailing Wages.  Consultant is aware of the requirements of California
Labor Code Section 1720, et see,., and 1770, et sue,., as well as California Code of Regulations,
Title 8,  Section 16000,  et seq.,  (" Prevailing Wage Laws"),  which require the payment of
prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on  " public works"  and

Page 8 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.00002\6790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



maintenance" projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable " public
works" or " maintenance" project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total
compensation is $ 1, 000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing WageLaws.  City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in
effect at the commencement of this Agreement.  Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing
rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the
Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Consultant' s
principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold
the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

3.4 Termination of Agreement.

3. 4. 1 Grounds for Termination.   City may, by written notice to Consultant,
terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving
written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at
least seven ( 7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Consultant
shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, andConsultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.   Consultant may not terminate this
Agreement except for cause.

3. 4.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein,
City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data and other
information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance of Services
under this Agreement.   Consultant shall be required to provide such document and other
information within fifteen( 15) days of the request.

3. 4. 3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in whole
or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it maydetermine appropriate, services similar to those terminated.

3.5 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality.
3. 5. 1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  This Agreement

creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or sublicense
any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications,
studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in any tangible
medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data magnetically or
otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be prepared byConsultant under this Agreement (" Documents & Data").  All Documents & Data shall be and
remain the property of City, and shall not be used in whole or in substantial part by Consultanton other projects without the City's express written permission.    Within thirty ( 30)  daysfollowing the completion,  suspension,  abandonment or termination of this Agreement,Consultant shall provide to City reproducible copies of all Documents & Data, in a form and
amount required by City.  City reserves the right to select the method of document reproduction
and to establish where the reproduction will be accomplished.  The reproduction expense shall be
borne by City at the actual cost of duplication.  In the event of a dispute regarding the amount of

Page 9 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.00002\6790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



compensation to which the Consultant is entitled under the termination provisions of thisAgreement,  Consultant shall provide all Documents & Data to City upon payment of the
undisputed amount.  Consultant shall have no right to retain or fail to provide to City any suchdocuments pending resolution of the dispute.  In addition, Consultant shall retain copies of allDocuments & Data on file for a minimum of fifteen ( 15) years following completion of the
Project,  and shall make copies available to City upon the payment of actual reasonableduplication costs.   Before destroying the Documents & Data following this retention period,
Consultant shall make a reasonable effort to notify City and provide City with the opportunity toobtain the documents.

3. 5. 2 Subconsultants.   Consultant shall require all subconsultants to agree in
writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for any Documents & Data the
subconsultant prepares under this Agreement.     Consultant represents and warrants thatConsultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & Data.  Consultant makes no
such representation and warranty in regard to Documents& Data which were prepared by design
professionals other than Consultant or its subconsultants, or those provided to Consultant by theCity.

3. 5. 3 Right to Use.  City shall not be limited in any way in its use or reuse of the
Documents and Data or any part of them at any time for purposes of this Project or another
project, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement or on a
project other than this Project without employing the services of Consultant shall be at City' ssole risk. If City uses or reuses the Documents & Data on any project other than this Project, it
shall remove the Consultant' s seal from the Documents & Data and indemnify and hold harmless
Consultant and its officers, directors, agents and employees from claims arising out of thenegligent use or re-use of the Documents & Data on such other project.   Consultant shall be
responsible and liable for its Documents & Data, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, onlywith respect to the condition of the Documents & Data at the time they are provided to the Cityupon completion, suspension, abandonment or termination.  Consultant shall not be responsibleor liable for any revisions to the Documents & Data made by any party other than Consultant, a
party for whom the Consultant is legally responsible or liable, or anyone approved by theConsultant.

3. 5. 4
Indemnification.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its

directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the
indemnification provisions of this Agreement,  for any alleged infringement of any patent,
copyright, trade secret, trade name, trademark, or any other proprietary right of any person orentity in consequence of the use on the Project by City of the Documents & Data, including anymethod, process, product, or concept specified or depicted.

3. 5. 5 Confidentiality.  All Documents & Data, either created by or provided to
Consultant in connection with the performance of this Agreement, shall be held confidential byConsultant.  All Documents & Data shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used
or reproduced by Consultant for any purposes other than the performance of the Services.Consultant shall not disclose, cause or facilitate the disclosure of the Documents & Data to anyperson or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing
furnished to Consultant that is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has

Page 10 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.00002\6790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use
City' s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or
the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other
similar medium without the prior written consent ofCity.

3.6 General Provisions

3. 6. 1 Delivery of Notices.    All notices permitted or required under this
Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose:

Consultant:

Alliant Consultant, Inc.
Attn: Christa Schott, President
555 Cajon Street
Suite A

Redlands, CA 92373

City:
City of Covina
125 E. College St.
Covina, CA 91723

Attn: Amy Hall-McGrade
Parks& Recreation and Library Services Director

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed,
forty-eight (48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to
the party at its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date
actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of service.

3. 6.2 Indemnification.

3. 6.2. 1 Scope of Indemnity.    To the fullest extent permitted by law,
Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action,
costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or
persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any
alleged acts, errors or omissions of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, subcontractors,
consultants or agents in connection with the performance of the Consultant' s Services, theProject or this Agreement,  including without limitation the payment of all consequentialdamages,  expert witness fees and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Consultant' s Services are subject to Civil Code
Section 2782. 8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code
Section 2782. 8, to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of the Consultant.

Page 11 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002.0000216790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



3. 6.2.2 Additional Indemnity Obligations.  Consultant shall defend, with
Counsel of City's choosing and at Consultant' s own cost, expense and risk, any and all claims,
suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind covered by Section 3. 5. 6. 1 that may be brought
or instituted against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents.
Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against
City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such
claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Consultant shall also reimburse City for the cost of any
settlement paid by City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers as part
of any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Such reimbursement shall include payment
for City' s attorney' s fees and costs, including expert witness fees.  Consultant shall reimburse
City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/ or volunteers, for any and all
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing theindemnity herein provided.   Consultant' s obligation to indemnify shall survive expiration or
termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received
by the City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

3. 6. 3 Governing Law; Government Code Claim Compliance.  This Agreement

shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Venue shall be in Los Angeles County.
In addition to any and all contract requirements pertaining to notices of and requests for
compensation or payment for extra work, disputed work, claims and/ or changed conditions,
Consultant must comply with the claim procedures set forth in Government Code sections 900 et
se ,. prior to filing any lawsuit against the City.   Such Government Code claims and any
subsequent lawsuit based upon the Government Code claims shall be limited to those matters
that remain unresolved after all procedures pertaining to extra work, disputed work, claims,
and/or changed conditions have been followed by Consultant.   If no such Government Code
claim is submitted, or if any prerequisite contractual requirements are not otherwise satisfied as
specified herein, Consultant shall be barred from bringing and maintaining a valid lawsuit
against the City.

3. 6.4 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision ofthis Agreement.

3. 6. 5 City' s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  City reserves right to employother consultants in connection with this Project.

3. 6.6 Successors and Assigns.    This Agreement shall be binding on the
successors and assigns of the parties.

3. 6.7 Assignment or Transfer.   Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate, or
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the
prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees,
hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted
assignment, hypothecation or transfer.

3. 6.8 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any

Page 12 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002. 0000216790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not
work days.    All references to Consultant include all personnel,  employees,  agents,  and
subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise
specified in this Agreement.   The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope,
content or intent of this Agreement.

3. 6.9 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment
of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties.

3. 6. 10 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any otherdefault or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.   No waiver, benefit,

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party anycontractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise.

3. 6. 11 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Except to the extent expressly provided for
in Section 3. 6. 7, there are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed
by the Parties.

3. 6. 12 Invalidity;  Severability.   If any portion of this Agreement is declared
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainingprovisions shall continue in full force and effect.

3. 6. 13 Prohibited Interests.   Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solelyfor Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not
paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Consultant further
agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic
Interest with the City' s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of theServices.   For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this
Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of
City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom.

3. 6. 14 Cooperation; Further Acts.   The Parties shall fully cooperate with one
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary,
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

3. 6. 15 Attorney' s Fees.   If either party commences an action against the other
party,  either legal,  administrative or otherwise,  arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the
losing party reasonable attorney' s fees and all other costs of such action.

3. 6. 16 Authority to Enter Agreement.   Consultant has all requisite power and
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party

Page 13 of 15
BB& K: 9- 10)65002. 0000216790206. 1

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party.

3. 6. 17 Counterparts.   This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of
which shall constitute an original.

3. 6. 18 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof,  and supersedes all prior negotiations,
understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed byboth parties.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

65002. 00002\ 6790206. 1
Page 14 of 15

BB& x: 9- 10)

June 2,  2015 ® xhibit A



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICESAGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF COVINA

AND ALLIANT CONSULTING, INC.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the 20thday ofMay, 2013.

CITY OF COVINA

By'   Attest:
Daryl Parrish, City Manager Catherine ' 17" PM

Senior Deputy City Clerk

ALLIANT CONSULTING, INC.
a Corporation

By.     
Si a

2716
lm

Ghee 5. r--1-
Name( Print)

Peer-
Title( Print)

65002;0000216790206. 1
Page 15 of 15

BB& K: 9- 10)

June 2,  2015 Exhibit A



ALLIANT oNSULTINGN    , INC.
LABOR •• MPLIANCE MONITORING

Fee Schedule and Proposed Not to Exceed Amount

City of Covina Cougar Park Project

r

Alliant Consulting proposes to provide full Labor Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement services
pursuant to requirements of the Prop. 84 bond measure. Our hourly rates are inclusive of all time,
materials, phone calls, equipment and data for providing such services. Our site interview rate is
inclusive of all mileage, fuel, insurance and drive time to conduct weekly site interviews throughout
the duration of the project. The interview rate is also inclusive of all site interview summaries.

Alliant Consulting proposes to be compensated for services provided pursuant to the rates below:

Prepare Labor Compliance Program (flat rate) = $500

Review Bid Ad, Bid Docs and General Conditions (flat rate) = $250

Pre- Bid Meeting (flat rate) = $150

Pre-Construction Meeting (flat rate) = $300

Payroll Review, $52/ hr, estimated 8 hours per week for 35 weeks duration = $14,560

Annual Reporting (flat rate) = $500

Weekly site interviews, $90 per week for 35 weeks = $3, 150

ESTIMATED NOT TO EXCEED TOTAL: $ 19,410

This fee schedule and not to exceed proposal is good for one year, and is good for this project only. It is
based on an estimated construction cost of $ 2,000,000, the scope provided by the City of Covina and a time
duration of 9 months. For extension of services due to project delays, change orders or additional services

past grant requirements, Alliant Consulting will honor the same hourly amount but the Not to Exceed amount
will be changed to reflect the changes in Scope of Work.

Alliant Consulting' s monitoring cost will cover full review of certified payroll, on- going communication to
affected parties for resolution of any issues, issuance of reports to the state for non- compliance if necessary,
site interviews, and routine compliance reports as mandated by the City or Prop. 84 grant requirements.

Fees for Hearing Review

Should a case be prepared by Alliant for withholding and/or litigation that leads to a Hearing for a
noncompliant Contractor over the normal Scope of Work due to Hearing, it will result in additional costs of$ 65
per hour, plus direct material expenses.  These costs will not be included unless there is a case where a

litigation package must be prepared for the State's formal review of forfeitures and withholding.  Every effort
will be made by Alliant Consulting to keep the Contractor in compliance with CA labor laws.

Menu of Services

Personnel hours required for Phase III Audit and Investigation, Phase IV Enforcement, Phase V Hearing
Review, and Phase VI Annual Report are dependent upon the compliance of the Contractors on each project.

All services listed in the Proposed Method to Accomplish Work, will be provided solely by Alliant Consulting.

June 2,  2015 Exhibit B 1 of 1



U gF\`
Lt

C/,
1j`

Q`•
4/F

Rfiti

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE June 2, 2015 ITEM NO. NB 4

STAFF SOURCE Amy Hall-McGrade, Parks & Recreation and Library Services Director
Lisa Evans, Parks & Recreation Manager

ITEM TITLE Approve Change Orders Numbers 1- 46 for Cougar Park Project# M- 1204

completed by GMZ Engineering in the amount of$ 204,665. 33.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve Change Order Nos. 1- 46 for Cougar Park Project# M-1204 reflecting an increase in the
construction contract with GMZ Engineering in the amount of$204,665. 33.

FISCAL IMPACT

On July 3, 2012, the City Council amended the FY 2012- 13 Parks & Recreation Department

budget to add $ 2, 125, 750 in Proposition 84 revenue ( account 46003400- 42177) and provide

2, 125, 750 in expenditure authority ( account 46003400- 55200) for the Cougar Park project.  In

addition, on January 21, 2014, the City Council approved $ 360,000 in Bond Proceeds of the

former Covina Redevelopment Agency increasing project funding to $ 2,485, 750.   On January
21, 2014, the City Council awarded a construction contract to GMZ Engineering for the Cougar
Park project #M- 1204 in the amount of $1, 880,000.  The approval of Change Order Nos. 1- 46

would increase the project contract from $ 1, 880, 000 to $ 2, 084,665. Sufficient funding for the
Change Order Nos.  1- 46 is available in the Parks & Recreation budget ( account 46003400-

55200.

BACKGROUND

At the time of contract award, the Parks & Resources Department did not request a project

contingency, necessitating City Council consideration of the following change order requests at
this time.  As of May, 28, 2015, Parks & Recreation Department staff has reviewed the change

orders for completeness and accuracy as to the materials and labor included:

Change Amount to Amount to

Order No. Deduct Refund Explanation

1 N/A 200 calendar days were added for alternates

2 120,000. 00 Added alternates approved by Council 1/ 21/ 14

3 34,384.22
Increased the fire and sewer lines to 8 inch

diameter

4 699. 11 Added a footing for TS 4x4
5 2, 346. 00 Increased metal door gauge

6 8, 352. 00
Removed concealed asphalt paving from
easement



7 4, 833. 00
Changed all pavement to colored stamped

concrete

8 2, 823. 00
Omitted a 48 inch HDPE infiltration pipe and

replaced with IV drainage system

9 4,420.00
Omitted a catch basin and replaced it with a

custom formed reinforced concrete basin

10 2, 694.00
Changed the concrete area around the

playground

Added of a deep concrete mow curb along fence
11 4, 856. 00 line

12 6, 956.00
Created a new dirt swale on west property line
from trash enclosure to CVUSD property line

13 2, 323. 00 Addition of a concrete gutter in parking area

14 16, 844. 00
Removed unknown ivy root, excavation and re-
compaction

15 6, 697.00 Revised audio visual equipment

16 3, 302.00 Added wheel stops to parking lot
Omit security system and replaced with

17 25, 654. 00 Leverage Camera system to be in line with

Police Dept.

18 5, 196. 00 Modified the concrete paving by family
restroom to comply with ADA access

19 1, 295. 00 Omitted the trash enclosure metal mesh

20 9, 707. 00 Changed electrical fixtures and wiring

21 1, 501. 00 Added reinforced raised concrete ring with new
frame and grate

22 2, 963. 00 Added metal framing grids to ceiling
23 7, 537. 00 Omitted the room partitions and ceiling fans

Added 10 bubblers to fruit trees and 5 sprinkler

24 1, 527. 00 heads to turf area and contract was extended 26

days for LA County splash pad plan review

25 6, 944.00
Added 2 valves, valve boxes and installed

special saddle and contract was extended

26 4, 730. 00
Added 3 solar tubes to meeting room— also

contract was extended

27 3, 695. 00
Added copper water service line to splash pad' s

new location— also contract was extended

28 1, 912. 00
Installed condensation lines and contract was

extended

29 2, 275. 00
Upgraded the light fixtures and contract was

extended

30 N/A Contract extended

31 4, 985. 00 Upgraded, per LA County Health Department,
the splash pad tank and contract was extended

32 2, 287.00
Extended the reinforced concrete pads, extended

chain link fence and one gate

33 1, 173. 00
Replaced the base cabinet with doors where sink

was planned

34 1, 150. 00 Changed the entrance wall sign

35 2, 616. 00 Added tile backing to outside wall light fixtures
36 585. 00 Added subwoofers and shelf for AV equip



37 N/A Contract extended

38 8, 046. 00 Added Vitrocem to coat the outside stones

39 3, 955. 00 Added a fence to back parking lot with a deep
curb

40 2, 956. 00 Replaced lighting fixture

41 1, 584. 00 Replaced the 20 amp breaker for water heater to
a 70 amp breaker

42 4, 605. 00
Replaced unavailable seat wall with a new seat

wall faced with split face CMU

43 11, 922.00 Modified parking lot finish with DG
44 N/A Contract extended

45 N/A Contract extended

46 N/A Contract extended

EXHIBITS

None.

Respect lly submitted

7/ 117‘
Amy a  - McGrade, Director

Parks & Recreation Department


	Agenda
	ITEM PG#
	NB PG#
	CC 1
	CC 2
	CC 3
	CC 4
	CC 5
	CC 6
	CC 7
	CC 8
	CB 1
	NB 1
	NB 2
	NB 3
	NB 4



